
 

AGENDA | REGULAR TOWN COUNCIL MEETING 
July 26, 2022 at 6:00 PM 

Council Chambers - Apex Town Hall, 73 Hunter Street 
The meeting will adjourn when all business is concluded or 10:00 PM, whichever comes first 

Town Council and Administration 
Mayor: Jacques K. Gilbert  |  Mayor Pro Tem: Audra Killingworth 

Council Members: Brett D. Gantt; Cheryl F. Stallings; Terry Mahaffey; Edward Gray 
Town Manager: Catherine Crosby |  Assistant Town Managers: Shawn Purvis and Marty Stone 

Town Clerk: Allen Coleman, CMC, NCCCC |  Town Attorney: Laurie L. Hohe 

COMMENCEMENT 

Call to Order | Invocation | Pledge of Allegiance 

CONSENT AGENDA 

All Consent Agenda items are considered routine, to be enacted by one motion with the adoption of the Consent Agenda,  
and without discussion. If a Council Member requests discussion of an item, the item may be removed from the 

 Consent Agenda and considered separately. The Mayor will present the Consent Agenda 
 to be set prior to taking action on the following items: 

CN1 Resolution - Supporting Federal Funding to Replace the Primary Runway at Raleigh-

Durham International Airport 

Jacques K. Gilbert, Mayor & Councilmember Brett D. Gantt (sponsor)   

CN2 Annexation No. 729 - 1302 N. Salem Street – 0.4937 acres  

Allen Coleman, Town Clerk  

CN3 Annexation No. 736 – Huxley MSP – 71.543 acres  

Allen Coleman, Town Clerk  

CN4 Appointments – Transit Advisory Committee  

Allen Coleman, Town Clerk  

CN5 Budget Ordinance Amendment No. 1 – HR – Cost of Living Supplement   

Amanda Grogan, Budget and Performance Management Director   

CN6 Contract Multi-Year - Charles R. Underwood - Sewer Services - July 1, 2022 through 

June 30, 2025 

Michael Deaton, P.E., Water Resources Director 

CN7 Contract Multi-Year - MastTec North America Inc. - General Electric Services - July 1, 

2022 through June 30, 2025 

Eric Neumann, Electrical Utilities Director  



CN8 Contract Multi-Year - Sitelmprove - July 2022 through June 30, 2025 

 Stacie Galloway, Communications Director  

CN9 Contract Multi-Year - Wake County - Municipal Fire Protection Agreement - July 1, 2022 

through June 30, 2025 

Jeffrey Maynard, Interim Fire Chief  

CN10 Encroachment Agreement - 2210 Winston Circle Lot 2 

Marty Stone, Assistant Town Manager   

CN11 Ordinance Amendment Section 20-164(40) Production Drive No Parking Zone 

David Dillon, Deputy Fire Marshal  

CN12 Resolution - Public Sewer Easement Abandonment 

Steve Adams, Utility Acquisition Specialist  

CN13 Resolution – Abandon Multiple 5’ Public Utility Easements  

Steve Adams, Utility Acquisition Specialist  

CN14 Rezoning Case No. 22CZ03 Sweetwater PUD Amendment S&O 

Amanda Bunce, Current Planning Manager  

CN15 Tax Report – June 2022 

Allen Coleman, Town Clerk  

CN16 Triangle Home Services Waterline - Fee-in-Lieu (FIL) 

Michael Deaton, P.E., Water Resources Director 

CN17 Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) Amendments Statement - June 2022 

Dianne Khin, Director of Planning and Community Development 

CN18 Unity Mural Design – Proposal – Set Public Hearing  

Taylor Wray, Special Events Coordinator  

  

PRESENTATIONS 

PR1 Presentation by the Apex Public School Foundation – Quarterly Peak S.T.A.R. Awards 

Councilmember Terry Mahaffey (sponsor)  

PR2 Proclamation - Retiring Apex American Legion Post 124 Commander Mike Sayer 

Jacques K. Gilbert, Mayor & Councilmember Ed D. Gray (sponsor)  

 

 



REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

Mayor Gilbert will call for additional Agenda items from Council or Staff and set the  
Regular Meeting Agenda prior to Council actions. 

PUBLIC FORUM 

Public Forum allows the public an opportunity to address the Town Council.  The speaker is requested not to address items 
that appear as Public Hearings scheduled on the Regular Agenda.  The Mayor will recognize those who would like to speak at the  

appropriate time.  Large groups are asked to select a representative to speak for the entire group. 
Comments must be limited to 3 minutes to allow others the opportunity to speak. 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

PH1 Economic Development Agreement - Mills Chatham Development Group LLC 

Joanna Helms, Economic Development Director  

PH2 Rezoning Case No. 22CZ11 1522 Salem Church Road 

Amanda Bunce, Current Planning Manager  

PH3 Rezoning Case No. 22CZ05 Morris Tract PUD 

Sarah Van Every, Senior Planner  

PH4 Rezoning Case No. 22CZ06 Yellowbridge PUD 

Lauren Staudenmaier, Planner II  

PH5 Transportation Plan Amendments - Chapel Ridge Road 

Shannon Cox, Long Range Planning Manager 

PH6 Rezoning Case No. 22CZ07 Chapel Ridge North PUD 

Shelly Mayo, Planner II  

OLD BUSINESS – None  

UNFINISHED BUSINESS – None 

NEW BUSINESS – None  

UPDATES BY TOWN MANAGER 

CLOSED SESSION 

CS1 Closed Session to Consult with Attorney pursuant to NCGS 143-318.11(a)(3) 

Laurie Hohe, Town Attorney 

ADJOURNMENT 



 | Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 for consideration by the Apex Town Council 

 

 Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

 Meeting Date: July 26, 2022 

Item Details 

Presenter(s): Jacques K. Gilbert, Mayor  

Councilmember Brett D. Gantt (sponsor)   

Department(s): Governing Body  

Requested Motion 

Motion to approve a resolution titled “Resolution in Support of Federal Funding to Replace the Primary 

Runway at Raleigh – Durham International Airport (RDU)” which strongly the request from RDU for $275 

million in federal funding to replace its primary commercial service runway.   

Approval Recommended? 

Yes 

Item Details 

The RDU Airport Authority has developed an array of facilities to meet our region’s commercial air service 

needs since RDU opened in 1943. But today, RDU faces significant capital infrastructure funding challenges. 

 

The Regional Transportation Alliance (RTA), the voice of the regional business community on 

transportation, released a report (www.letsgetmoving.org/RDUAID) in July 2021 that examines these 

capital funding challenges and provides recommendations for addressing them. One of the primary 

challenges addressed is the need for the replacement and relocation of the primary runway 5L-23R at RDU. 

 

RTA, Research Triangle Park (RTP), Triangle-J Council of Governments (TJCOG), and RDU leadership are all 

focused on federal support for the runway as an urgent funding opportunity, with significant potential 

benefit for the national commercial aviation system.  This resolution indicates Apex Town Council is 

supportive of this urgent funding opportunity with significant potential benefit to the residents of Apex and 

the entire Research Triangle region.   

 

Attachments 

 Resolution in Support of Federal Funding to Replace the Primary Runway at Raleigh – Durham 
International Airport (RDU) 

- Page 4 -



TOWN OF APEX TOWN COUNCIL  
Resolution in Support of Federal Funding to Replace the 

Primary Runway at Raleigh-Durham International 
Airport (RDU) 

 

_____________________________ 
Allen Coleman, CMC, NCCCC 
Town Clerk  
 

 
WHEREAS, the Town of Apex is a rapidly growing municipality in the rapidly growing 
Research Triangle region of the rapidly growing State of North Carolina; and 
 
WHEREAS, Residents of Apex heavily rely on Raleigh-Durham International Airport 
(RDU) for personal and business travel across the United States and to international 
destinations; and 
 
WHEREAS, RDU is a critical driver of job creation, prosperity and quality of life in Apex 
and throughout the Research Triangle region generating an estimated $15 billion 
economic impact annually; and 
 
WHEREAS, RDU is a medium hub airport that keeps only a fraction of the entitlement 
funding it generates; and 
 
WHEREAS, RDU’s primary commercial runway is nearing its end-of-life due to 
pavement deterioration; and 
 
WHEREAS, RDU needs additional federal grant funding to help pay for the $366 million 
project to keep the runway in operation and allow for a terminal gate expansion as part 
of RDU’s 25-year master plan; and 
 
WHEREAS, without federal grant funding RDU will exhaust its cash reserves and max 
out its bonding capacity, impacting its ability to finance the terminal gate expansion and 
other projects that will support the Research Triangle region’s growth. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that we, the Town Council of the Town of 
Apex strongly supports the request from RDU for $275 million in federal funding to 
replace its primary commercial service runway; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that copies of this resolution are sent to DOT Secretary 
Pete Buttigieg, Senators Thom Tillis and Richard Burr, and Representative Deborah 
Ross in an effort to show support for this urgent funding opportunity with significant 
potential benefit to the residents of Apex and the Research Triangle region. 
 
 ADOPTED, this the 26th day of July 2022.  
 
 
                         ______________________________________ 

       Jacques K. Gilbert 
Attest:             Mayor  
 
 

- Page 6 -



 | Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 for consideration by the Apex Town Council 

 

 Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

 Meeting Date: July 26, 2022 

Item Details 

Presenter(s): Allen Coleman, Town Clerk  

Department(s): Town Clerk’s Office  

Requested Motion 

Motion to adopt a Resolution Directing the Town Clerk to Investigate Petition Received, to accept the 

Certificate of Sufficiency by the Town Clerk, and to adopt a Resolution Setting the Date of a Public Hearing 

for August 09, 2022, on the Question of Annexation - Apex Town Council's intent to annex 1302 North Salem 

Street, containing 0.4937 acres, Annexation No. 729 into the Town Corporate limits. 

Approval Recommended? 

Yes 

Item Details 

The Town Clerk certifies to the investigation of said annexation. Adoption of the Resolution authorizes the 

Town Clerk to advertise said public hearing by electronic means and on the Town of Apex’s website.  

Attachments 

 Resolution Directing the Town Clerk to Investigate Petition 
 Certificate of Sufficiency by the Town Clerk 
 Resolution Setting Date of Public Hearing 

 Legal Description 
 Maps 

 Annexation Petition 

 

- Page 7 -



    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

RESOLUTION DIRECTING THE TOWN CLERK 

TO INVESTIGATE PETITION RECEIVED UNDER G.S.§ 160A-31 

 

Annexation Petition#729 

1302 N. Salem Street – 0.4937 acres  

 

   WHEREAS, G.S. §160A- 31 provides that the sufficiency of the petition shall 

be investigated by the Town Clerk before further annexation proceedings may 

take place; and 

 

  WHEREAS, the Town Council of the Town of Apex deems it advisable to 

proceed in response to this request for annexation; 

 

   NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Town Council of the Town of 

Apex, that the Town Clerk is hereby directed to investigate the sufficiency of the 

above-described petition and to certify to the Town Council the result of his 

investigation. 

 

This the 26th day of July, 2022. 

______________________________________ 

Jacques K. Gilbert 

Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Allen L. Coleman, CMC, NCCCC 

Town Clerk 

 

  

- Page 8 -



  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CERTIFICATE OF SUFFICIENCY BY THE TOWN CLERK 

 

Annexation Petition #729  

1302 N. Salem Street – 0.4937 acres  

 

 

 

 

To:     The Town Council of the Town of Apex, North Carolina 

 

    I, Allen L. Coleman, Town Clerk, do hereby certify that I have investigated the 

annexation petition attached hereto, and have found, as a fact, that said petition 

is signed by all owners of real property lying in the area described therein, in 

accordance with G.S.§ 160A-31, as amended. 

 

    IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of the 

Town of Apex, North Carolina this 26th day of July, 2022. 

 

 

 

 

                                                                      

________________________________ 

Allen L. Coleman, CMC, NCCCC 

Town Clerk 

    

 

 

 
         (Seal) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

- Page 9 -



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

RESOLUTION SETTING DATE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

ON THE QUESTION OF ANNEXATION PURSUANT TO G.S.§ 160A-31 AS AMENDED 

 

Annexation Petition #729 

1302 N. Salem Street – 0.4937 acres  

 

WHEREAS, a petition requesting annexation of the area described herein has 

been received; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Town Council of Apex, North Carolina has by Resolution 

directed the Town Clerk to investigate the sufficiency thereof; and 

 

         WHEREAS, Certification by the Town Clerk as to the sufficiency of said petition 

has been made; 

 

      NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Town Council of the Town of Apex, 

North Carolina that: 

 

     Section 1.   A public hearing on the question of annexation of the area 

described herein will be held at the Apex Town Hall at 6 o’clock p.m. on the 9th day of 

August, 2022. 

 

      Section 2.   The area proposed for annexation is described as attached. 

 

      Section 3.   Notice of said public hearing shall be published on the Town of 

Apex Website, www.apexnc.org, Public Notice, at least ten (10) days prior to the date 

of said public hearing. 

 

     This the 26th day of July, 2022. 

 

                ________________________________________ 

              Jacques K. Gilbert, Mayor  

 

ATTEST:                        

 

 

__________________________________________ 

Allen L. Coleman, Town Clerk 

 

 

Attachment: Legal Description 

- Page 10 -

http://www.apexnc.org/


Smith & Smith Surveyors, P.A. 

P.O. Box 457 

Apex, N.C. 27502 

(919) 362-7111 

Firm License No. C-0155 
 

Lying and being in White Oak Township, Wake County, North Carolina and described 

more fully as follows to wit: 

 
BEGINNING  at  an  existing  angle  iron  (disturbed)  located  South  87 ’  28” West, 
599.24 feet from an existing axle “B” bearing NAD 83 (2011) coordinate values of North 

726,470.40 feet, East 2,044,983.79 feet (B.M. 2018, Pg. 8); thence South 87 ’ 28” 
West,  224.88  feet  to  an  existing iron  pipe on  the eastern  right of way of North Salem 

Street ~ NCSR 5878; thence with North Salem Street right of way North 20 ’ 50” 

West, 63.98 feet to an existing angle iron; thence North 70 ’ 02” East, 225.00 feet to 

an existing iron pipe; thence South 15 27’ 44” East, 130.79 feet to the BEGINNING, 
containing 0.4937 total acres more or less shown on a map prepared by Smith & Smith 

Surveyors, P.A. entitled “Annexation Map for the Town Of Apex, K-Jive Enterprise, 

LLC”, dated May 11, 2022. 

 

This description prepared for the sole purpose to annex a municipal boundary and for no 

other use. 

- Page 11 -



- Page 12 -



- Page 13 -



- Page 14 -



- Page 15 -



- Page 16 -



 | Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 for consideration by the Apex Town Council 

 

 Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

 Meeting Date: July 26, 2022 

Item Details 

Presenter(s): Allen Coleman, Town Clerk  

Department(s): Town Clerk’s Office  

Requested Motion 

Motion to adopt a Resolution Directing the Town Clerk to Investigate Petition Received, to accept the 

Certificate of Sufficiency by the Town Clerk, and to adopt a Resolution Setting the Date of a Public Hearing 

for August 09, 2022, on the Question of Annexation - Apex Town Council's intent to annex 71.543 acres, 

Huxley MSP, Annexation No. 736 into the Town Corporate limits. 

Approval Recommended? 

Yes 

Item Details 

The Town Clerk certifies to the investigation of said annexation. Adoption of the Resolution authorizes the 

Town Clerk to advertise said public hearing by electronic means and on the Town of Apex’s website.  

Attachments 

 Resolution Directing the Town Clerk to Investigate Petition 
 Certificate of Sufficiency by the Town Clerk 
 Resolution Setting Date of Public Hearing 

 Legal Description 
 Maps 

 Annexation Petition 

 

- Page 17 -



    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

RESOLUTION DIRECTING THE TOWN CLERK 

TO INVESTIGATE PETITION RECEIVED UNDER G.S.§ 160A-31 

 

Annexation Petition#736 

Huxley Master Subdivision Plan (MSP) – 71.543 acres 

 

   WHEREAS, G.S. §160A- 31 provides that the sufficiency of the petition shall 

be investigated by the Town Clerk before further annexation proceedings may 

take place; and 

 

  WHEREAS, the Town Council of the Town of Apex deems it advisable to 

proceed in response to this request for annexation; 

 

   NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Town Council of the Town of 

Apex, that the Town Clerk is hereby directed to investigate the sufficiency of the 

above-described petition and to certify to the Town Council the result of his 

investigation. 

 

This the 26th day of July, 2022. 

______________________________________ 

Jacques K. Gilbert 

Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Allen L. Coleman, CMC, NCCCC 

Town Clerk 

 

  

- Page 18 -



  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CERTIFICATE OF SUFFICIENCY BY THE TOWN CLERK 

 

Annexation Petition#736 

Huxley Master Subdivision Plan (MSP) – 71.543 acres 

 

 

 

To:     The Town Council of the Town of Apex, North Carolina 

 

    I, Allen L. Coleman, Town Clerk, do hereby certify that I have investigated the 

annexation petition attached hereto, and have found, as a fact, that said petition 

is signed by all owners of real property lying in the area described therein, in 

accordance with G.S.§ 160A-31, as amended. 

 

    IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of the 

Town of Apex, North Carolina this 26th day of July, 2022. 

 

 

 

 

                                                                      

________________________________ 

Allen L. Coleman, CMC, NCCCC 

Town Clerk 

    

 

 

 
         (Seal) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
- Page 19 -



 

 

RESOLUTION SETTING DATE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

ON THE QUESTION OF ANNEXATION PURSUANT TO G.S.§ 160A-31 AS AMENDED 

 

Annexation Petition#736 

Huxley Master Subdivision Plan (MSP) – 71.543 acres 

 

WHEREAS, a petition requesting annexation of the area described herein has 

been received; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Town Council of Apex, North Carolina has by Resolution 

directed the Town Clerk to investigate the sufficiency thereof; and 

 

         WHEREAS, Certification by the Town Clerk as to the sufficiency of said petition 

has been made; 

 

      NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Town Council of the Town of Apex, 

North Carolina that: 

 

     Section 1.   A public hearing on the question of annexation of the area 

described herein will be held at the Apex Town Hall at 6 o’clock p.m. on the 9th day of 

August, 2022. 

 

      Section 2.   The area proposed for annexation is described as attached. 

 

      Section 3.   Notice of said public hearing shall be published on the Town of 

Apex Website, www.apexnc.org, Public Notice, at least ten (10) days prior to the date 

of said public hearing. 

 

     This the 26th day of July, 2022. 

 

                ________________________________________ 

              Jacques K. Gilbert, Mayor  

 

ATTEST:                        

 

 

__________________________________________ 

Allen L. Coleman, Town Clerk 

 

 

Attachment: Legal Description 

- Page 20 -

http://www.apexnc.org/


Hackney Annexation Legal Description PIN No. 0722406699 
 
Beginning at an Existing Iron Pipe Located on the Northern Right of Way of Olive Chapel Road (SR#1160) 
and having North Carolina Grid Coordinates (NAD83, 2011), N: 719,823.90’, E: 2,025,316.49’; Thence, 
South 11°20'41" East a distance of 30.29' to a Point in the centerline of Olive Chapel Road; Thence, 
South 11°20'41" East a distance of 29.29' to a Point on the Southern Right of Way of Olive Chapel Road; 
Thence, with said Southern Right of Way of Olive Chapel Road, South 70°35'43" West a distance of 
67.17' to a Point; Thence, North 09°38'52" West a distance of 29.36' to a Point in the centerline of Olive 
Chapel Road; Thence, North 09°38'52" West a distance of 30.43' to a Point on the Northern Right of Way 
of Olive Chapel Road; Thence, leaving said Right of way, North 09°38'52" West a distance of 536.92' to a 
Point; Thence, South 78°41'14" West a distance of 566.96' to a Point; Thence, North 11°18'46" West a 
distance of 791.04' to a Point; Thence, North 78°41'14" East a distance of 615.50' to an Existing Iron 
Pipe; Thence, South 11°18'46" East a distance of 500.58' to an Existing Iron Pipe; Thence, South 
11°21'53" East a distance of 392.29' to an Existing Iron Pipe; Thence, South 11°20'41" East a distance of 
425.59' to an Existing Iron Pipe being the point and place of Beginning, and having an area of 11.961 
Acres (521,009 SF), More or Less. 
 
 
 
Hackney Annexation Legal Description PIN No. 0721492956 
 
Beginning at an Existing Iron Pipe Located on the Northern Right of Way of Olive Chapel Road (SR#1160) 
and having North Carolina Grid Coordinates (NAD83, 2011), N: 719,823.90’, E: 2,025,316.49’; Thence 
continuing along said Right of Way, South 70°32'42" West a distance of 65.39' to a Point; Thence, South 
70°31'17" West a distance of 649.92' to a Point, being the True Point and Place of Beginning; Thence, 
South 34°12'20" East a distance of 31.27' to a Point in the centerline of Olive Chapel Road; Thence with 
said centerline, South 70°19'56" West a distance of 169.20' to a Point; Thence, North 44°47'18" West a 
distance of 33.43' to a Point located on the Northern Right of Way of Olive Chapel Road; Thence leaving 
said Right of Way, North 44°47'18" West a distance of 6.65' to a Point; Thence, North 64°57'29" West a 
distance of 454.32' to a Point; Thence, North 62°35'47" West a distance of 49.52' to a Point; Thence, 
North 02°31'13" East a distance of 288.73' to an Existing Iron Pipe; Thence, North 02°31'45" East a 
distance of 382.15' to an Existing Iron Pipe; Thence, South 85°35'51" East a distance of 339.02' to a 
Point; Thence, South 00°58'41" East a distance of 436.43' to a Point; Thence, South 34°12'20" East a 
distance of 445.67' to a Point being the True Point and Place of Beginning, and having an area of 7.537 
Acres (328,294 SF), More or Less. 
 
 
 
Hackney Annexation Legal Description PIN No. 0722411102 
 
Beginning at an Existing Iron Pipe Located on the Northern Right of Way of Olive Chapel Road (SR#1160) 
and having North Carolina Grid Coordinates (NAD83, 2011), N: 719,823.90’, E: 2,025,316.49’; Thence 
continuing along said Right of Way, South 70°32'42" West a distance of 65.39' to a Point, being the True 
Point and Place of Beginning; Thence, South 09°38'52" East a distance of 30.43' to a Point in the 
centerline of Olive Chapel Road; Thence, South 09°38'52" East a distance of 29.36' to a Point on the 
Southern Right of Way of Olive Chapel Road; Thence continuing along said Right of Way the following 
four calls, South 70°35'43" West a distance of 159.50' to a Point; Thence, South 70°32'18" West a 
distance of 144.21' to a Point; Thence, South 70°14'02" West a distance of 34.45' to a Point; Thence, 

- Page 21 -



South 69°49'47" West a distance of 141.71' to a Point; Thence, North 20°06'34" West a distance of 
30.38' to a Point located in the centerline of Olive Chapel Road; Thence continuing along said centerline, 
South 70°29'55" West a distance of 151.57' to a Point; Thence, North 34°12'20" West a distance of 
31.27' to a Point located on the Northern Right of Way of Olive Chapel Road; Thence leaving said Right 
of Way, North 34°12'20" West a distance of 445.67' to a Point; Thence, North 00°58'41" West a distance 
of 436.43' to a Point; Thence, North 85°35'51" West a distance of 339.02' to an Existing Iron Pipe; 
Thence, South 02°31'45" West a distance of 382.15' to an Existing Iron Pipe; Thence, North 87°46'36" 
West a distance of 443.92' to an Existing Iron Pipe; Thence, North 01°42'56" East a distance of 1,191.60' 
to an Existing Iron Pipe; Thence, North 01°42'19" East a distance of 635.94' to the centerline of a Creek; 
Thence with the centerline of said creek the following seventy-six (76) calls: 
North 62°12'20" East a distance of 26.95' to a Point; Thence, North 85°25'51" East a distance of 12.16' to 
a Point; Thence, South 89°25'18" East a distance of 9.95' to a Point; Thence, North 72°42'15" East a 
distance of 16.28' to a Point; Thence, North 35°12'38" East a distance of 17.29' to a Point; Thence, North 
04°12'00" East a distance of 12.96' to a Point; Thence, North 21°34'14" West a distance of 18.72' to a 
Point; Thence, North 09°03'47" West a distance of 8.16' to a Point; Thence, North 41°28'27" East a 
distance of 26.53' to a Point; Thence, South 84°15'14" East a distance of 11.15' to a Point; Thence, South 
44°43'11" East a distance of 19.83' to a Point; Thence, South 71°15'05" East a distance of 13.95' to a 
Point; Thence, South 74°11'34" East a distance of 15.85' to a Point; Thence, South 74°44'51" East a 
distance of 12.72' to a Point; Thence, South 83°49'13" East a distance of 3.99' to a Point; Thence, North 
64°08'10" East a distance of 16.34' to a Point; Thence, North 47°07'30" East a distance of 15.60' to a 
Point; Thence, South 78°20'55" East a distance of 15.26' to a Point; Thence, South 56°02'16" East a 
distance of 5.33' to a Point; Thence, South 19°19'09" East a distance of 6.90' to a Point; Thence, South 
56°44'29" East a distance of 12.49' to a Point; Thence, South 83°31'01" East a distance of 16.05' to a 
Point; Thence, North 59°49'27" East a distance of 15.58' to a Point; Thence, North 16°43'28" East a 
distance of 6.92' to a Point; Thence, North 01°57'42" West a distance of 8.52' to a Point; Thence, North 
19°34'33" West a distance of 8.53' to a Point; Thence, North 22°27'53" West a distance of 25.52' to a 
Point; Thence, North 08°13'00" West a distance of 17.60' to a Point; Thence, North 13°08'01" West a 
distance of 25.39' to a Point; Thence, North 19°34'33" West a distance of 12.83' to a Point; Thence, 
North 00°51'00" East a distance of 8.68' to a Point; Thence, North 37°09'53" East a distance of 11.70' to 
a Point; Thence, North 49°22'35" East a distance of 26.46' to a Point; Thence, North 62°21'20" East a 
distance of 30.37' to a Point; Thence, North 67°46'29" East a distance of 19.95' to a Point; Thence, North 
02°19'02" West a distance of 8.02' to a Point; Thence, North 48°37'20" West a distance of 9.79' to a 
Point; Thence, North 51°28'51" West a distance of 14.82' to a Point; Thence, North 10°18'42" West a 
distance of 10.15' to a Point; Thence, North 29°53'30" East a distance of 7.06' to a Point; Thence, North 
67°41'49" East a distance of 9.59' to a Point; Thence, South 56°14'07" East a distance of 5.77' to a Point; 
Thence, South 63°24'14" East a distance of 9.29' to a Point; Thence, South 76°41'34" East a distance of 
9.25' to a Point; Thence, North 77°10'45" East a distance of 14.30' to a Point; Thence, North 49°00'07" 
East a distance of 13.34' to a Point; Thence, North 10°50'19" West a distance of 12.26' to a Point; 
Thence, North 64°58'17" West a distance of 15.90' to a Point; Thence, North 31°59'29" West a distance 
of 7.02' to a Point; Thence, North 01°03'18" West a distance of 7.87' to a Point; Thence, North 17°34'16" 
East a distance of 24.60' to a Point; Thence, North 26°59'18" East a distance of 8.17' to a Point; Thence, 
South 81°51'44" East a distance of 16.60' to a Point; Thence, South 33°48'00" East a distance of 15.96' to 
a Point; Thence, South 49°25'00" East a distance of 16.68' to a Point; Thence, North 78°59'30" East a 
distance of 12.42' to a Point; Thence, North 50°28'53" East a distance of 20.42' to a Point; Thence, North 
70°44'43" East a distance of 46.11' to a Point; Thence, South 89°01'57" East a distance of 16.84' to a 
Point; Thence, South 73°56'31" East a distance of 11.76' to a Point; Thence, North 66°33'30" East a 
distance of 13.41' to a Point; Thence, North 10°20'58" East a distance of 8.36' to a Point; Thence, North 
17°44'49" West a distance of 19.09' to a Point; Thence, North 07°53'24" East a distance of 12.39' to a 

- Page 22 -



Point; Thence, North 59°58'19" East a distance of 13.53' to a Point; Thence, South 42°16'28" East a 
distance of 13.69' to a Point; Thence, South 04°17'52" West a distance of 12.70' to a Point; Thence, 
South 10°35'03" West a distance of 9.31' to a Point; Thence, South 32°25'41" East a distance of 5.70' to 
a Point; Thence, South 46°46'35" East a distance of 17.73' to a Point; Thence, South 60°06'25" East a 
distance of 16.74' to a Point; Thence, North 86°29'56" East a distance of 19.64' to a Point; Thence, North 
81°25'49" East a distance of 16.54' to a Point; Thence, South 80°06'27" East a distance of 29.38' to a 
Point; Thence, South 84°39'29" East a distance of 22.26' to a Point; Thence, North 58°33'23" East a 
distance of 13.24' to a Point; Thence, North 74°43'49" East a distance of 8.91' to a Point; Thence leaving 
the centerline of said creek, South 20°58'05" East a distance of 22.05' to an Existing Iron Pipe; Thence, 
South 20°45'12" East a distance of 790.03' to an Existing Iron Pipe; Thence, South 56°33'25" East a 
distance of 611.03' to an Existing Iron Pipe; Thence, South 78°41'14" West a distance of 615.50' to a 
Point; Thence, South 11°18'46" East a distance of 791.04' to a Point; Thence, North 78°41'14" East a 
distance of 566.96' to a Point; Thence, South 09°38'52" East a distance of 536.92' to a Point being the 
True Point and Place of Beginning, and having an area of 52.045 Acres (2,267,092 SF), More or Less. 
 

- Page 23 -



- Page 24 -



- Page 25 -



- Page 26 -



- Page 27 -



- Page 28 -



- Page 29 -



- Page 30 -



- Page 31 -



 | Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 for consideration by the Apex Town Council 

 

 Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

 Meeting Date: July 26, 2022 

Item Details 

Presenter(s): Jacques K. Gilbert, Mayor 

Department(s): Governing Body  

Requested Motion 

Motion to reappoint Nick Bryant, Stuart Wagner, and Andrew Werking to the Transit Advisory Committee, and 

to reappoint Stuart Wagner as Chair and Andrew Werking as Vice Chair.  

Approval Recommended? 

Yes 

Item Details 

The members wishing to be reappointed are Nick Bryant, Stuart Wagner, and Andrew Werking and 

membership service will begin on July 27, 2022 and end July 27, 2024. 

 Nick Bryant, this would be his second term 

 Andrew Werking, this would be his second term 

 Stuart Wagner, this would be his second term 

All members stated interest in returning for another term. No other interest forms have been received via the 

Town Committee interest form system (Cognito forms).  

 

The Chair and Vice Chair roles are also in need of reappointment. Stuart Wagner is the current Chair and 

Andrew Werking is the current Vice Chair. Both are interested in continuing those roles for another term.  

 Stuart Wagner, this would be his second term as Chair 

 Andrew Werking, this would be his second term as Vice Chair 

 

Attachments 

 None 

 

- Page 32 -



 | Agenda Item | cover sheet 
 for consideration by the Apex Town Council 

 

 Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

 Meeting Date: July 26, 2022 

Item Details 

Presenter(s): Amanda Grogan, Director 

Department(s): Budget and Performance Management   

Requested Motion 

Motion to approve Budget Amendment 1 to allocate funds for Cost of Living Supplement to Full Time and 

Part Time Town of Apex Employees   

 

Approval Recommended? 

Yes 

Item Details 

Budget Amendment 1 allocates funds for all part-time and full-time employees to receive a one-time cost of 

living supplement, approved by Town Council at the June 7, 2022 Budget Workshop.  This one-time, lump 

sum payment will be made by direct deposit. 

 

To be eligible for the payment, employees must be on the Town’s payroll and actively employed on July 

29th. The amount of the supplement will be as follows, based on employment status/hours worked per 

week: 

 

  

LSE Eligibility:  *Employees who hold positions that require a minimum set schedule of 15-19 hours per 

week, year-round. 

 

Attachments 

• Budget Amendment 1 
 

 
- Page 33 -



General Fund

Section 1. Revenues:
$1,771,300

$1,771,300

Section 2. Expenditures:
Administration $28,900
Human Resources $37,100
Information Technology $63,900
Legal Services $16,500
Economic Development $16,500
Communications $12,400
Budget & Performance Management $28,900
Finance $82,400
Community Development & Neighborhood Connections $8,300
Planning $82,400
Facility Services $28,900
Police $427,300
911 Communications $49,500
Fire & Rescue $389,200
Transportation & Infrastructure Development $70,100
Public Works Administration $16,500
Streets $45,300
Solid Waste $64,400
Fleet Services $20,600
Inspections & Permitting $88,600
Parks & Recreation $181,200
Cultural Arts Center $12,400

$1,771,300

Electric Fund  

Section 3. Revenues:
$144,200

$144,200

Section 4. Expenditures:
$144,200

$144,200

Town of Apex 
Budget Ordinance Amendment No. 1

BE IT ORDAINED, by the Council of the Town of Apex that the following Budget Amendment for the
Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Budget Ordinance be adopted:

Appropriated Fund Balance
Total Revenues

Total Expenditures

Appropriate Fund Balance
Total Revenues

Total Expenditures
Electric Utility

- Page 34 -



Water & Sewer Fund 

Section 5. Revenues:
$255,600

$255,600

Section 6. Expenditures:
Water/Sewer Administration $61,800
Stormwater $24,800
Water Maintenance $78,300
Sewer Treatment $37,100
Sewer Maintenance $53,600

$255,600

Attest:

Jacques K. Gilbert, Mayor Allen L. Coleman, CMC, NCCCC
Town Clerk

Section 7. Within five (5) days after adoption, copies of this Amendment shall be filed with the
Finance Officer and Town Clerk.

Adopted this the 26th day of July, 2022.

Appropriated Fund Balance
Total Revenues

Total Expenditures

- Page 35 -



 | Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 for consideration by the Apex Town Council 

 

 Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

 Meeting Date: July 26, 2022 

Item Details 

Presenter(s): Michael Deaton, P.E., Director 

Department(s): Water Resources 

Requested Motion 

Motion to approve a 3-year Master Services Agreement with Charles R. Underwood, Inc. and to authorize the 

Town Manager to execute the agreement on behalf of the Town. 

 

Approval Recommended? 

Yes 

Item Details 

Charles R. Underwood, Inc., has historically provided the Town excellent service over the years.  This multi-

year agreement will secure their services for a 3-yr period, thus providing the Town a reliable contractor 

who is familiar with the Town’s sewer system, and can provide emergency services for pump station 

components, installations, and repairs.  Having this contractor under contract for multiple years will put the 

Town in position to receive the lowest pricing possible and save staff time managing and processing 

contracts, but more importantly, will help staff keep our pump stations running during emergency situations 

thereby preventing backups and sanitary sewer overflows that helps the Town maintain compliance with 

our NCDEQ Collection System Permit (WQCS00064). 

 

 

Attachments 

 Master Services Agreement / Rate Sheet Included 
 

 

- Page 36 -



- Page 37 -



- Page 38 -



- Page 39 -



- Page 40 -



- Page 41 -



- Page 42 -



- Page 43 -



- Page 44 -



- Page 45 -



- Page 46 -



- Page 47 -



- Page 48 -



 | Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 for consideration by the Apex Town Council 

 

 Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

 Meeting Date: July 26,2022 

Item Details 

Presenter(s): Eric Neumann, Electrical Utilities Director 

Department(s): Electric 

Requested Motion 

Motion to approve a multi-year contract with MasTec North America Inc. for the purposes of providing 

general electric services when requested by the Town including; installation, maintenance, repair, servicing, 

removal, testing, and inspection of underground electrical lines and poles, as well as other projects related 

to electric utilities; and authorize the Town Manager to execute the agreement.   

Approval Recommended? 

Yes 

Item Details 

On an annual basis, the Electric Department enters into a Master Services Agreement with MasTec North 

America to provide general electric services for underground electrical lines and poles.  With increased 

demand and to streamline installation and services, this work has previously been contracted out to provide 

a quicker service turnaround time.    

From an efficiency and budget impact standpoint, staff recommends the approval of a multi-year contract 

which would allow this contract to serve from July 1, 2022 (or date of approval) thru June 30, 2025.  

 

Attachments 

 MasTec North America Inc. – Multi-Year Master Service Agreement  
 

 

- Page 49 -



- Page 50 -



- Page 51 -



- Page 52 -



- Page 53 -



- Page 54 -



- Page 55 -



- Page 56 -



- Page 57 -



 | Agenda Item | cover sheet 
 for consideration by the Apex Town Council 

 

 Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

 Meeting Date: July 26, 2022 

Item Details 

Presenter(s): Stacie Galloway, Communications Director 

Department(s): Communications 

Requested Motion 

Motion to approve a 3-year contract with SiteImprove and to authorize the Town Manager to execute the 
agreement on behalf of the Town. 
 

.Approval Recommended? 

Yes 

Item Details 

SiteImprove is a web-based platform that provides website analytics, and monitors our site for ADA 

concerns. Apex began using the tool in 2017. The multi-year contract beginning July 2022 will allow the 

town to lock in the current rate, and eliminate the need to process renewal paperwork through 2025. 

Attachments 

• Contract Document 
 

- Page 58 -



Siteimprove, Inc
5600 West 83rd Street
Suite 400
Bloomington Minnesota 55437
United States

Order Form for Town of Apex
Offer Valid Through: 7/12/2022

Proposed by: Cassidy Soli
Quote Number: Q-137515.3

ORDER FORM
 
 

Address Information
 
Bill To:
Town of Apex
PO Box 250
Apex NC 27502
United States

Ship To:
Town of Apex
73 Hunter Street
Apex NC 27502-2312
United States

 
 
Contact Name: Stacie Galloway Phone: (919) 249-1135
Email Address: stacie.galloway@apexnc.org

 
 

Term & Payment Details
 
Start Date: 7/13/2022 End Date: 7/12/2025
 
Subscription Term: 36 Months Renewal Term: N/A
Renewal Price Increase: N/A Billing Frequency: Annual
Payment Term: Net 30 days Billing Method: Email
Payment Method: Bank Transfer Invoice Date: 7/19/2022
Automatic Renewal: [_]   

 
 

Included Services

Subscription Services Limit Type Quantity*

Response Response
Check Points

5

Quality Assurance & Policy Pages 1,500

Analytics Yearly Page
Views

3,000,000

SEO Pages 1,500

Accessibility Pages 1,500

Behavior Map Maps 250

info@siteimprove.com
www.siteimprove.com

Page 1 of 5- Page 59 -



Siteimprove, Inc
5600 West 83rd Street
Suite 400
Bloomington Minnesota 55437
United States

Order Form for Town of Apex
Offer Valid Through: 7/12/2022

Proposed by: Cassidy Soli
Quote Number: Q-137515.3

Subscription Services Limit Type Quantity*

Standard Support N/A 1
*When Subscription Services share the same Limit Type, the Quantity specified represents an aggregated amount, which is shared by these
services.

 

 
Annual Subscription Fee: USD 8,008.04
Annual Subscription Fee: USD 8,008.04
Total Subscription Fee: USD 24,024.12
 
At least 45 days prior the start of a new Billing Frequency Period, Siteimprove will send an invoice for the
proportionate Subscription Fee.
 

info@siteimprove.com
www.siteimprove.com

Page 2 of 5- Page 60 -



Siteimprove, Inc
5600 West 83rd Street
Suite 400
Bloomington Minnesota 55437
United States

Order Form for Town of Apex
Offer Valid Through: 7/12/2022

Proposed by: Cassidy Soli
Quote Number: Q-137515.3

Purchase Order Information
(Customer to complete)
 
Is a Purchase Order (PO) required for the purchase or payment of the products on this Order Form?
[    ] No
[    ] Yes
\dd1_poReq\

 
Is PO renewal required for each invoicing term?
[    ] No
[    ] Yes
\dd1_poRenew\

PO Number: 
\tbx_1_PONum\

 

PO requests must be sent to: 
\tbx_1_POContact\

 

 
 

Billing Information
(Customer to complete)
 
 

Billing Contact Name:
\tbx_1_BillConName\

 

Billing E-mail:
\tbx_1_BillConEmail\

 

Billing References:
\tbx_1_BillRef\

 

E-invoicing Information:
\tbx_1_BillEInvoice\

 

 
 

Sales Tax Information
(Customer to complete)
 
You may be subject to sales tax (or equivalent) unless you can provide proof of exemption. Are you exempt from sales
tax?
[    ] Yes, please attach exemption form.
[    ] No.
\dd1_poReq\

 

info@siteimprove.com
www.siteimprove.com

Page 3 of 5- Page 61 -



Siteimprove, Inc
5600 West 83rd Street
Suite 400
Bloomington Minnesota 55437
United States

Order Form for Town of Apex
Offer Valid Through: 7/12/2022

Proposed by: Cassidy Soli
Quote Number: Q-137515.3

Customer Signature
 
By signing below, Town of Apex agrees that this Order Form is subject to terms and conditions attached to this Order
Form.
 
On behalf of Customer:
 
Name:
\n1\
 
Date:
\d1\
 

\s1\
Signature

info@siteimprove.com
www.siteimprove.com

Page 4 of 5- Page 62 -



Siteimprove, Inc
5600 West 83rd Street
Suite 400
Bloomington Minnesota 55437
United States

Order Form for Town of Apex
Offer Valid Through: 7/12/2022

Proposed by: Cassidy Soli
Quote Number: Q-137515.3

STANDARD SUPPORT PLAN
 

1. SELF-HELP RESOURCES. Customers can take full advantage of Siteimprove self-help tools, available online
via our https://support.siteimprove.com/hc/en-gb (https://support.siteimprove.com/). From that page, Customers can
find links to technical documentation and knowledge base articles, discuss issues with other users in our community
forums, review what’s new, read technical notes, and access free webinars.
 
2. PRODUCT SUPPORT AND TRAINING. Customers can contact Siteimprove for product support, training, and
additional services by visiting our https://support.siteimprove.com/hc/en-gb. At that location, Customers can submit a
support ticket 24x7 every day of the year.
Service Levels: Siteimprove will utilize commercially reasonable efforts to promptly respond to all requests.
Siteimprove aspires to review and respond to at least ninety percent (90%) of all tickets and requests within three (3)
Business Days. “Business Days” are defined as the days on which Customer’s regional support center is open for
business (see Section 3).
 
3. SUPPORT AVAILABILITY. Siteimprove has regional support centers servicing the Americas, EMEA and APAC.
https://support.siteimprove.com/hc/en-gb/articles/360002402297
 
4. SUPPORT CHANGES. Siteimprove has the sole discretion to change the terms and conditions of the Standard
Support Plan.

info@siteimprove.com
www.siteimprove.com

Page 5 of 5- Page 63 -



 

SITEIMPROVE INTELLIGENCE PLATFORM (“SIP”) TERMS OF USE 

September 2021 - 

 

v. 01.09.2021 -  

 

1. GENERAL TERMS 

a. By accepting a Siteimprove Order Form, by paying the Subscription Fee and/or Prorated 

Subscription Fee specified in a Siteimprove Order Form or otherwise making use of the Included 

Services, the Customer agrees to be bound by these terms of use for the Included Services, 

including the specifications of the Siteimprove Order Form (combined the “Terms”). 

Furthermore, any action from the Customer specifying its wish to purchase the Included Services 

after having received these Terms, such as sending a purchase order, shall be considered actively 

consenting to these Terms. 

 

b. License Recipient Acceptance. If the Customer is accepting the Siteimprove Order Form as 

specified above on behalf of a third-party (“License Recipient”), Customer represents and 

warrants that it has the authority to bind the License Recipient specified in the Order Form to the 

Terms, and that Customer by accepting the Terms are doing that on behalf of the License 

Recipient. 

 

2. INVOICING 

a. Invoicing. All invoicing details are specified in the Order Form. If changes are required to the 

Ship To Address after the Terms are accepted, the Customer is required to submit an Address 

Change Form. At least forty-five (45) days prior to the start of each Billing Frequency Period, 

Siteimprove will send an invoice for the Subscription Fee or a proportionate amount, if 

applicable. 

 

b. Failure to pay. Late payments may bear interest at the rate of 1% per month, or the highest rate 

permitted by law, whichever is lowest, from the payment due date until paid in full. Additionally, 

in the event that an invoice becomes overdue, Siteimprove will notify Customer by phone or 

email. After Siteimprove has provided notice, Customer will have five (5) business days to pay 

the overdue invoice. If Customer fails to make the payment by the end of the notice period, then 

Siteimprove reserves the right to suspend provision of the Included Services until payment has 

been made. 

 

c. Taxes. Any applicable taxes will be determined based on the laws and regulations of the taxing 

authority(ies) governing the Ship To Address provided by the Customer on Siteimprove Order 

Form. 

 

- Page 64 -



d. Additional Services Fee. Any Additional Services Fee will be invoiced on your first applicable 

invoice date. 

 

3. USE OF THE INCLUDED SERVICES 

a. Ownership. Siteimprove owns and shall remain the sole owner of all intellectual property 

rights vested in the Included Services created prior to or during the performance by the parties 

under these Terms. This ownership right includes any inventions, patents, utility model rights, 

copyrights, design rights, mask works, trademark rights, or knowhow, whether registered or not. 

 

b. Right to Use. Siteimprove grants the Customer the right to use the Included Services (the 

“Subscription”). The Subscription granted is worldwide, revocable, non-exclusive, non-perpetual 

and non-transferable. The Customer has no right to retain or to use the Included Services after 

termination of the Initial Subscription Term or a Renewal Term (if applicable). Customer can 

create an unlimited number of users to the Included Services. Customer will have access to the 

Included Services only for those website domain(s) specifically agreed upon with Siteimprove. 

This right includes updates and new releases of the Included Services, but not new 

modules/services/products added to the Included Services. 

 

c. Limitations of use. The Customer’s use of the Included Services on such website(s) is subject 

to the agreed quantities as specified in the Siteimprove Order Form (the “Limits”). If the 

Customer exceeds the Limits, Siteimprove will notify the Customer of such excess use and 

discuss appropriate upgrades of the Customer Subscription. Subject to Section 9 below, 

Customer must be the owner or authorized administrator of the website(s) on which the Included 

Services are run. Unless agreed otherwise, the Included Services may not be run on any websites 

that contain sensitive information or special categories of personal data, e.g., as defined in the 

General Data Protection Regulation (EU) 2016/679 Article 9 or information subject to 

heightened regulations (e.g., HIPAA, or FERPA). Customer has no right to rent, lease, assign, 

transfer, sublicense, display or otherwise distribute or make the Included Services available to 

any third party, unless specifically stated in Section 9 (Assignability). The Included Services 

may not be (a) used in the performance of services for or on behalf of any third-party or as a 

service bureau; (b) modified, incorporated into or combined with other software, or created as a 

derivative work of any part of the Included Services; or (c) used for any illegal purpose. 

Customer may not modify, disassemble, decompile or otherwise reverse engineer the Included 

Services nor permit any third-party to do so except as expressly permitted by law. 

 

d. IP Indemnification. Siteimprove will indemnify and hold Customer harmless from all third-

party claims that use of the Included Services constitutes an infringement of any third-party 

intellectual property right(s), unless such claim is based on Customer’s wrongful or illegitimate 

use of the Included Services. The foregoing states the entire liability of Siteimprove and the sole 

- Page 65 -



and exclusive remedy for Customer with respect to any third-party claim of infringement or 

misappropriation of intellectual property rights. 

 

e. For Non-Public Website Use. Any use of the Included Services on customer intranet, log-in-

protected websites, staging websites, or any other form of non-public websites (“Non-Public 

Websites”) is subject to the obligations set out in this Section 3(e). For Siteimprove to allow that 

the Included Services are used on a Non-Public Website, Customer must ensure that there is an 

encrypted line for the secure transport of data between such Non-Public Website and 

Siteimprove. Customer must ensure that, to the extent necessary, or required by applicable laws, 

it has an appropriate legal basis for the processing of personal data for the purpose of the 

Included Services, and that it has the right to disclose any confidential information on the Non-

Public Website. Except when expressly agreed, Customer represents and warrants that the 

information on the Non-Public Website is not subject to heightened regulations (e.g., HIPAA, or 

FERPA). Additionally, Customer must assign an account with non-administrative rights to the 

Non-Public Website when using the Included Services on any website behind log-in protection. 

In the event of any failure by Customer to adhere to the obligations set out in this section, 

Siteimprove may reject to perform the Included Services on the Non-Public Website. Customer 

expressly understands and agrees that Siteimprove and its affiliates, directors and employees 

shall not be liable to Customer under any theory of liability for any direct, indirect, incidental, 

consequential or other special damages arising out of or due to Customer’s use of the Included 

Services if such use is in breach of Customer’s obligations in this section. 

 

4. DATA & PRIVACY 

a. GDPR. With respect to obligations to data subjects under the General Data Protection 

Regulation (EU) 2016/679 (“GDPR”), where applicable, Customer is a “data controller” and 

Siteimprove is a “data processor” (as such terms are defined in the GDPR). The Included 

Services are designed and developed to collect and process our Customers’ website content and 

certain operational data in relation thereto. Any personal data processed by Siteimprove when 

performing the Included Services is processed according to the Customer’s instructions and on 

its behalf. To fulfill both parties’ obligations under the GDPR, Customer is responsible for 

entering into a Data Processing Agreement (“DPA”) with Siteimprove which lives up to any 

then-current legal standards. If the use of the Included Services on Non-Public Websites and/or 

websites that contain special categories of personal data has been agreed upon, the Customer 

ensures that the DPA reflects the processing of non-public and/or special categories of personal 

data. If Customer has not facilitated a DPA to be signed on the day that Customer begins to use 

the Included Services, the parties are deemed to have entered into Siteimprove’s standard DPA 

available at siteimprove.com/privacy/. 

 

b. CCPA. As between the parties, with respect to obligations to consumers under the California 

Consumer Privacy Act (“CCPA”), where applicable, Customer is a “business” and Siteimprove 

- Page 66 -



is a “service provider” (as such terms are defined in the CCPA) and each party will be 

responsible for its respective obligations under the CCPA, as applicable to the Agreement. The 

Included Services are designed and developed to collect and process our Customers’ website 

content and certain operational data in relation thereto. Any personal data processed by 

Siteimprove when performing the Included Services is processed according to the Customer’s 

instructions and on its behalf. For more information on Siteimprove’s Data Privacy & Security 

practices, including an optional CCPA Data Processing Agreement, visit 

siteimprove.com/privacy/. 

 

c. Data Processing of Users and Customer Contacts. Other than the processing of Customer’s 

data under Section 4(a) and 4(b), Siteimprove collects some general usage and contact 

information about the users of Siteimprove’s services and other contact persons provided by 

Customer, such as the names and emails of the Siteimprove users, for internal necessary 

purposes such as customer identification, invoicing, support and sharing information about 

Siteimprove products to Customer. A detailed description on how Siteimprove processes 

Customer’s data under this section is available at: https://siteimprove.com/privacy/privacy-

policy/. In this regard, Siteimprove will be the data controller under GDPR and business under 

CCPA and the Customer acknowledges and agrees that general customer and user information 

will be collected for Siteimprove’s internal use. The Customer has the right to access, correct, 

modify and erase any personal data provided by the Customer to Siteimprove. To exercise these 

rights, contact privacy@siteimprove.com. 

 

d. Customer Owned Data. All data provided to Siteimprove through the use of the Included 

Services is and shall remain Customer property. Siteimprove does not resell any Customer 

owned data. Data mentioned under Section 4(a-b) will not be disclosed or transferred to any 

third-party unless otherwise specifically agreed. Data mentioned under Section 4(c) will only be 

disclosed or transferred to a third-party to the extent necessary to provide the Services. To enable 

Siteimprove to provide Customer with the Included Services, and subject to these Terms, 

Customer hereby grants to Siteimprove a non-exclusive right to use and process data provided by 

Customer solely in connection with Siteimprove’s operation of the Included Services. 

 

5. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY 

Each party shall only be liable for direct damages. As such, each party shall not be liable to the 

other party for any indirect, special, incidental, or punitive damages caused by Customer’s use of 

the Included Services, including, but not limited to, loss of data, loss of business or any other 

loss arising out of or resulting from a party’s performance under these Terms, even if it has been 

advised of the possibility of such damages. Except where excluded by applicable law, a party’s 

cumulative liability under these Terms shall not exceed the amount of the Fee. However, in no 

event shall a party be able to claim a limitation on its liability in the event of; i) non-compliance 

with obligations concerning personal data; ii) any third-party IP infringement claim, unless such 

- Page 67 -



claim is based on a party’s wrongful or illegitimate use of the Included Services; or iii) gross 

negligence or willful misconduct. 

 

6. REPRESENTATIONS & WARRANTIES 

a. For Siteimprove. Siteimprove represents and warrants that: (i) it has the full power and 

authority to enter into and perform its obligations under these Terms; and (ii) the Included 

Services will perform substantially as described in these Terms for the Initial Term and any 

Renewal Term, provided that it is used in accordance with these Terms, including on the 

specified domains. These representations and warranties are only for the benefit of Customer.  

 

b. For Customer. Customer represents and warrants that: (i) it has the full power and authority to 

enter into and perform its obligations under these Terms; and (ii) it has full and legal right or 

authorization to display, disclose, transfer, assign or convey the information set forth and 

accessible on the websites on which the Included Services will be administered. 

 

c. Disclaimer. Except for the express representations and warranties listed in these Terms, each 

party makes no representations or warranties of any kind, whether express or implied. No oral or 

written information or advice given by either party will create a representation or warranty. 

Specifically, Siteimprove makes no representations or warranties with regard to the use of the 

Included Services for the purpose of ensuring Customer’s compliance with any laws or 

regulations. 

 

7. TERMINATION OF SERVICES 

a. Termination of Auto-Renewing Subscriptions. During the Initial Subscription Term or any 

subsequent Renewal Term (if applicable), either party may cancel renewal of the Subscription by 

giving at least ninety (90) days written notice to the other party prior to the start of a Renewal 

Term. 

 

b. Termination with Cause. Without affecting any other right or remedy available to it, either 

party may terminate the Subscription with immediate effect in the event of a material breach by 

the other party. Material breach shall include: (i) any violation of the terms of Section 2(b), 3(b-

e), 4(c-d), 6(a-b), 8, and 9; (ii) any other breach that a party has failed to cure within fourteen 

(14) calendar days after receipt of written notice by the other party; (iii) an act of gross 

negligence or willful misconduct of a party; and (iv) the insolvency, liquidation or bankruptcy of 

a party. 

 

c. Reimbursement. In case of Customer termination under Section 7(a) or Siteimprove 

termination under Section 7(b), Customer remains liable for payment of all Fees owed for the 

current Subscription Term and will not be entitled to a credit or refund. In case of termination by 

- Page 68 -



Siteimprove under Section 7(a), Customer is entitled to a prorated refund corresponding to the 

remaining period of the Initial or Renewal Term, whichever is applicable. 

 

8. CONFIDENTIALITY 

Siteimprove acknowledges that they have been informed by the Customer that the Customer is 

required by North Carolina law to disclose “Public Records” as the term is defined by N.C. 

Gen. Stat. §132-1, upon request. All information disclosed to the Customer by the Siteimprove 

which is subject to that definition and whose disclosure is not otherwise protected by law will 

be released by the Town upon request as provided by N.C. Gen. Stat. §132-6. To the extent 

permitted by North Carolina Law, each of the parties agrees to (a) maintain in confidence any 

non-public information of the other party, whether written or otherwise, disclosed by the other 

party in the course of performance of these Terms (‘Confidential Information’); (b) use its best 

endeavors to protect Confidential Information in accordance with the same degree of care with 

which it protects its own Confidential Information; and (c) not disclose the other party’s 

Confidential Information to any third party, except in response to a valid order by a court or 

other governmental body or as required by law. The receiving party will promptly give notice to 

the disclosing party of any disclosure of the other party’s Confidential Information. 

 

9. ASSIGNABILITY 

These Terms are binding upon and will only benefit the parties. Except as otherwise expressly 

provided in these Terms, neither party may assign, transfer, convey or encumber these Terms or 

any rights granted in them without the prior written consent of the other party (such consent not 

to be unreasonably withheld). Notwithstanding the foregoing, a party shall have the right to 

assign these Terms to its Affiliates or to a successor entity in the event of a merger, 

consolidation, transfer, stock purchase, provided the assignee is subject to all obligations under 

these Terms. 

 

10. LAW & DISPUTE RESOLUTION 

a. For Customers in Australia, EEA, Switzerland, Canada & the United States. These Terms and 

any dispute in relation to the Included Services, or the Customer’s use hereof, will be governed 

by and construed in accordance with the laws of the country, state or province, whichever is 

applicable, where the Customer is located as specified in the Ship To address of the Order Form 

(the “Governing Territory”). In the event of any lawsuit or proceeding arising out of or related to 

these Terms, the courts of the Governing Territory will have exclusive jurisdiction. 

 

b. For Customers in other territories. These Terms and any dispute in relation to the Included 

Services, or the Customer’s use hereof, will be governed by and construed in accordance with 

the laws of the country where the Siteimprove entity specified in the Order Form is located (the 

“Governing Territory”). In the event of any lawsuit or proceeding arising out of or related to 

these Terms, the courts of the Governing Territory will have exclusive jurisdiction. 

- Page 69 -



 

11. RELATION TO OTHER DOCUMENTS 

These Terms constitute the entire agreement between the parties and supersede any prior 

communications, commitments, or agreements, oral or written, with respect to the subject matter 

of these Terms. Any other standard or boilerplate terms and conditions included in any document 

provided by one party to another (e.g., click-wrap agreements and purchase orders) are not to be 

considered agreed upon and will not be binding on either party. Any changes or modifications to 

these Terms must be in writing and signed before taking effect. 

 

12. LANGUAGE VERSIONS. 

In the event of any discrepancy between the English version of these SIP terms of Use and any 

other language translation, the English version prevails. 

- Page 70 -



 | Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 for consideration by the Apex Town Council 

 

 Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

 Meeting Date: July 26, 2022 

Item Details 

Presenter(s): Jeffrey Maynard, Interim Fire Chief 

Department(s): Fire 

Requested Motion 

Motion to approve a 3-year agreement with Wake County to provide Fire Protection Services in the 

unincorporated areas of the district (Hipex District) and authorize the Town Manager to execute the 

agreement on behalf of the Town.  

Approval Recommended? 

Yes 

Item Details 

This is a three year Fire Protection Agreement between Wake County and the Town of Apex which enables 

the Apex Fire Department to provide services in unincorporated Wake County for agreed upon 

compensation through the cost-share program.   

 

 

Attachments 

 Municipal Fire Protection Agreement FY2023-2025 

 

 

- Page 71 -



- Page 72 -



- Page 73 -



- Page 74 -



- Page 75 -



- Page 76 -



- Page 77 -



- Page 78 -



- Page 79 -



- Page 80 -



- Page 81 -



- Page 82 -



- Page 83 -



- Page 84 -



- Page 85 -



- Page 86 -



- Page 87 -



- Page 88 -



- Page 89 -



- Page 90 -



- Page 91 -



- Page 92 -



- Page 93 -



- Page 94 -



- Page 95 -



- Page 96 -



- Page 97 -



- Page 98 -



- Page 99 -



- Page 100 -



- Page 101 -



- Page 102 -



- Page 103 -



- Page 104 -



- Page 105 -



- Page 106 -



- Page 107 -



- Page 108 -



- Page 109 -



- Page 110 -



- Page 111 -



- Page 112 -



- Page 113 -



- Page 114 -



- Page 115 -



- Page 116 -



- Page 117 -



- Page 118 -



- Page 119 -



- Page 120 -



- Page 121 -



- Page 122 -



- Page 123 -



- Page 124 -



- Page 125 -



 | Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 for consideration by the Apex Town Council 

 

 Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

 Meeting Date: July 26, 2022 

Item Details 

Presenter(s): Marty Stone, Assistant Town Manager   

Department(s): Administration  

Requested Motion 

Motion to approve an encroachment agreement between the Town and property owners Timothy M. Murphy 

and wife, Vanessa L. Murphy to install pool equipment that will encroach 9 square feet, AC condenser that 

will encroach 9 square feet and another AC condenser that will encroach 13 square feet onto the Public Utility 

Easement (Sewer) and authorize the Town Manager to execute the same.  

Approval Recommended? 

Yes 

Item Details 

The proposed Encroachment Agreement is between the Town and property owners Timothy M. Murphy 

and wife, Vanessa L. Murphy (Grantees) for the property described as a residential lot known as Wake 

County PIN #0731-29-0118, Book of Maps 2020, Page 01640, lot is also known as 2210 Winston Circle, 

Apex, NC 27502.  Grantees wish to install certain improvements, more particularly described as pool 

equipment that will encroach 9 square feet, AC condenser that will encroach 9 square feet and another AC 

condenser that will encroach 13 square feet onto the Public Utility Easement (Sewer).  

 

 

Attachments 

 Encroachment Agreement  
 Exhibit A 

 

- Page 126 -



- Page 127 -



- Page 128 -



- Page 129 -



- Page 130 -



- Page 131 -



- Page 132 -



6/7/2021

1" = 40'

2210 WINSTON CIR.                                 APEX,  N.C.

LOT 2, WINSTON SUBDIVISION, 
RECORDED IN B.O.M. 2020, PG. 1640, WAKE CO.

65' R/W

WINSTON CIR.

1

5' TOWN OF APEX
PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT

DRIVE

ELECTRIC
METER

GAS
METER

HVAC

N
 4

2
°4

3
'5

0
" W

1
8
3
.8

5
'

17.5'

N 57°39'01" E
101.03'18.17'

19.56'

L3L2

7
2
.6

'

14.34'

C2

C1

S
 3

3
°4

0
'3

4
" 

E

2
' 8.6'

L1

2
3
1
.2

9
'

9.8'

VICINITY MAP (N.T.S.)

SCALE:

DATE:

BOOK:

BUILDING SETBACK

3

P
U

B
L
IC

 U
T

IL
IT

Y
 E

A
S

E
M

E
N

T

3
0
' T

O
W

N
 O

F
 A

P
E

X

0.566 AC.

2

WINSTON
  SUBD.

APEX BARBECUE RD.

K
E

L
L
Y

 R
D

.

I-5
4
0

B
.O

.M
. 2

02
0,

 P
G

. 1
64

0

0 40'20'40'

GRAPHIC SCALE
1"= 40'

- Page 133 -

nmaynard
Rectangle

nmaynard
Rectangle

nmaynard
Rectangle

nmaynard
Polygon

nmaynard
Text Box
POOL EQUIPMENT WILL ENCROACH 9 SF ONTO THE TOA PUE 

nmaynard
Text Box
AC CONDENSER WILL ENCROACH 9 SF ONTO THE TOA PUE 

nmaynard
Arrow

nmaynard
Text Box
AC CONDENSER WILL ENCROACH 13 SF ONTO THE TOA PUE 

nmaynard
Arrow

nmaynard
Text Box
NOTE:THIS MAP MAY NOT BE A CERTIFIED SURVEY AND HAS NOT BEEN REVIEWED BY A LOCAL GOVERNMENT AGENCY FOR COMPLIANCE WITH ANY APPLICABLE LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS AND HAS NOT BEEN REVEIWED FOR COMPLIANCE WITH RECORDING REQUIREMENTS FOR PLATS. 

nmaynard
Text Box
EXHIBIT A

nmaynard
Arrow



 | Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 for consideration by the Apex Town Council 

 

 Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

 Meeting Date: July 26, 2022 

Item Details 

Presenter(s): David Dillon, Deputy Fire Marshal 

Department(s): Fire Department 

Requested Motion 

Motion to approve an Ordinance amending Section 20-164 to add subsection (40) establishing a No Parking 

Zone on the east side of Production Drive, from a point 500 feet south of Reliance Avenue to a point 750 feet 

south of Reliance Avenue. 

Approval Recommended? 

Yes 

Item Details 

Currently, there is parking activity occurring on both sides of Production Drive that is inhibiting emergency 

ingress for fire trucks to serve the three (3) businesses along the end of the street.  Fire Department staff 

investigated this issue on multiple occasions in July 2022 and requests a No Parking Zone on the east side 

of Production Drive beginning 500 feet south of Reliance Avenue and terminating at a point 750 feet south 

of Reliance Avenue, at the end of the public street.  The fire hydrant is also located on the east side so 

prohibiting parking on that side will allow easier access to it.  Parking will still be permitted on the west side 

of the street.  Production Drive will eventually be extended south to Pristine Water Drive with future 

development and parking activity will be reevaluated at that time. 

 

Attachments 

 Ordinance 2022-_____ 

 

- Page 134 -



TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 

ORDINANCE NO. 2022-_______-____ 

 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 20-164 “NO PARKING ZONES” 

OF THE APEX TOWN CODE OF ORDINANCES 
  

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Town Council of the Town of Apex 

as follows: 

 

Section 1.   That Section 20-164 of the Town of Apex Code of Ordinances is hereby amended 

to add subsection (40) as follows: 

Sec. 20-164. – No parking zones. 

(40) Along the east side of Production Drive from a point 500 feet south of 

Reliance Avenue to a point 750 feet south of Reliance Avenue. 

Section 2. The Town Clerk and/or Town Manager are hereby authorized to renumber, revise 

formatting, correct typographic errors, to verify and correct cross references, 

indexes and diagrams as necessary to codify, publish, and/or accomplish the 

provisions of this Ordinance or future amendments as long as doing so does not 

alter the terms of this Ordinance. 

Section 3.   It is the intention of the governing body, and it is hereby ordained that the 

provisions of this ordinance shall become and be made a part of the Code of 

Ordinances and the sections of this ordinance may be renumbered to accomplish 

such intention. 

Section 4.   Severability, Conflict of Laws.  If this ordinance or application thereof to any 

person or circumstances is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other 

provisions or applications of the ordinance which can be given separate effect and 

to the end the provisions of this ordinance are declared to be severable.  All 

ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are hereby 

repealed. 

Section 5.   Effective Date.  This ordinance shall be effective upon adoption. 

 

Introduced by Council Member: _____________________________________ 

 Seconded by Council Member:   _____________________________________ 

 This the ____ day of ____________, 2022. 

 

- Page 135 -



       TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 

         

____________________________ 

       Jacques K. Gilbert 

       Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________ 

Allen L. Coleman, CMC, NCCCC 

Town Clerk 

  

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

____________________________ 

Laurie L. Hohe 

Town Attorney 

- Page 136 -



Town of Apex Ordinance 20-164 (40): 

No Parking Zone proposed for east side of Production Drive, from 500 feet south 
of Reliance Avenue to 750 feet south of Reliance Avenue (end of public street), 
as requested by Apex Fire Department 

 

No Parking Zone 

- Page 137 -



 | Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 for consideration by the Apex Town Council 

 

 Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

 Meeting Date: July 26, 2022 

Item Details 

Presenter(s): Steve Adams, Utility Acquisition Specialist  

Department(s): Administration / Development and Operations  

Requested Motion 

Motion to approve a resolution titled “Resolution to Abandon a Portion of Sanitary Sewer Easement” which 

will abandon lots identified as Lots 357-368, Parkside at Bella Casa, Phase 11.  

Approval Recommended? 

Yes 

Item Details 

Town of Apex presently has a sewer easement interest across several lots in the Bella Casa neighborhood 

that was set aside as a “20’ Sewer Easement for Future Development”. 

Town staff has determined that there is no need for this easement presently or in the future and seeks to 

abandon the easement 

Attachments 

 Resolution to Abandon a Portion of Sanitary Sewer Easement 
 Parkside Bella Case Vicinity Map – Page 1421 
 Parkside Bella Case Vicinity Map – Page 1422 

 

- Page 138 -



Resolution 2022-   

 

RESOLUTION TO ABANDON A PORTION OF A SANITARY SEWER EASEMENT 

 WHEREAS, the Town of Apex presently has a sanitary sewer easement interest in that 

certain area designated as “20’ TOA Sanitary Sewer Easement for Future Development” (the 

“Easement”); as shown on that certain survey plat entitled “Plat of Correction for: Parkside at Bella 

Casa Phase 11” by James Wade Atkinson, Jr., Surveyor, said survey plat being recorded in Book 

of Maps 2014, Pages 1421-1422, and attached hereto as Exhibit A (the “Survey”); and 

 

 WHEREAS, that portion of the Easement located within the lots identified as Lots 357- 

368, Parkside at Bella Casa, Phase 11, as shown on said Survey, is no longer needed because the 

Town has no future purpose for this portion of the Easement; and 

  

WHEREAS, the Town Council considers it advisable to abandon a portion of the 

Easement.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Town Council of the Town of Apex that 

portion of the Easement located within the lots identified as Lots 357- 368, Parkside at Bella Casa, 

Phase 11 is hereby abandoned; provided however, the Town retains all easement rights and 

interests in that portion of the Easement located north of the lots identified as Lots 357 and 358 

and within the Resource Conservation Area identified on the Survey. 

Upon motion duly made by Council Member_______________, and duly seconded by 

Council Member ____________________, the above resolution was duly adopted by the Apex 

Town Council at the meeting held on the ____ day of ________, 2022, in the Town Hall.  

 

 Upon call for a vote the following Council Members voted in the affirmative:   

 ____________________________________ 

 _____________________________________ 

 

 _____________________________________ 

 

 and the following Council Members voted in the negative:  

 ______________________________________ 

 ______________________________________ 

 ______________________________________ 

- Page 139 -



 2 

  This the _________day of ___________, 2022.  

 

 
        TOWN OF APEX 

              

        Catherine Crosby 

        Town Manager 

 ATTEST:  

       

Allen Coleman, Town Clerk, CMC, NCCCC 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Toa\Parkside-Bella Casa-Phase 11\abandonment of sewer easement\resolution to abandon sewer easement 

- Page 140 -



- Page 141 -

sadams
Polygon



- Page 142 -

sadams
Polygon

sadams
Polygon



 | Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 for consideration by the Apex Town Council 

 

 Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

 Meeting Date: July 26, 2022 

Item Details 

Presenter(s): Steve Adams, Utility Acquisition Specialist  

Department(s): Administration / Development and Operations  

Requested Motion 

Motion to approve a resolution titled “Resolution to Abandon Multiple 5’ Public Utility Easements” which will 

abandon eleven (11) existing 5’ public utility easements as identified in the resolution and referenced Exhibit 

A.   

Approval Recommended? 

Yes 

Item Details 

Utilities have been installed and portions of 5’blanket public utility easement are no longer needed.  

Developer has requested the utility easement be abandoned to accommodate retaining walls. 

 

Attachments 

 Resolution to Abandon Multiple 5’ Public Utility Easements  
 Exhibit A (Survey)  

 

- Page 143 -



Resolution 2022-   

 

A RESOLUTION TO ABANDON MULTIPLE 

5’ PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENTS 

 WHEREAS, the Town of Apex presently has existing public utility easement interests as 

shown in Book of Maps 2021 Page 1886, Wake County Registry and as shown on the survey 

attached hereto as Exhibit A; and 

  

 WHEREAS, the developer desires the Town to abandon those portions of 5’ public utility 

easements in those certain areas designated as “Existing 5’ TOA Public Utility Easement To Be 

Abandoned” as shown on that certain survey plat entitled “Easement Abandonment Plat The 

Courtyards on Holt for Epcon Holt Road, LLC” prepared by Advanced Civil Design, dated Jun 

27, 2022, said survey being attached hereto as Exhibit A; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the public utility easements are further labeled and identified on Exhibit A as 

follows:  

 

A: Existing 5’ TOA Public Utility Easement to be Abandoned (706 SF); 

B: Existing 5’ TOA Public Utility Easement to be Abandoned (522 SF); 

C: Existing 5’ TOA Public Utility Easement to be Abandoned (700 SF); 

D: Existing 5’ TOA Public Utility Easement to be Abandoned (652 SF); 

E: Existing 5’ TOA Public Utility Easement to be Abandoned (584 SF); 

F: Existing 5’ TOA Public Utility Easement to be Abandoned (582 SF); 

G: Existing 5’ TOA Public Utility Easement to be Abandoned (450 SF); 

H: Existing 5’ TOA Public Utility Easement to be Abandoned (427 SF); 

I: Existing 5’ TOA Public Utility Easement to be Abandoned (691 SF); 

J: Existing 5’ TOA Public Utility Easement to be Abandoned (833 SF); 

K: Existing 5’ TOA Public Utility Easement to be Abandoned (542 SF); 

 

 

WHEREAS, these portions of the existing easements the easements described above are 

no longer needed and the Town Council considers it advisable to abandon these easements. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Town Council of the Town of Apex 

hereby abandons the portions of public utility easement interests identified in the attached Exhibit 

A as easement areas A through K, provided however, the Town specifically retains any and all 

property interest it may have in the property not specifically identified as abandoned herein. 

Upon motion duly made by Council Member_______________, and duly seconded by 

Council Member ____________________, the above resolution was duly adopted by the Apex 

Town Council at the meeting held on the ____ day of ________, 2022, in the Town Hall.  

 

 

- Page 144 -



 2 

 

 

 

 

 Upon call for a vote the following Council Members voted in the affirmative:   

 _____________________________________

 _____________________________________

 _____________________________________ 

 

 and the following Council Members voted in the negative:  

 _____________________________________

 _____________________________________

 _____________________________________ 

 

 This the _________day of ___________, 2022.  

 

 
        TOWN OF APEX 

              

        Jacques K. Gilbert, Mayor  

        Town of Apex  

 ATTEST:  

       

Allen L. Coleman, CMC, NCCCC 

Town Clerk  

Town of Apex  

 

 

 

- Page 145 -



SITE

HOLT RD

G
IL

W
O

O
D

D
R

CATLETTE STR
A

VE
N

C
LI

FF
 S

T

PH
IL

LI
PS

BR
AN

CH
  S

T

HOLT RD

SITE

G
IL

W
O

O
D

D
R

R
A

VE
N

C
LI

FF
 S

T

PH
IL

LI
PS

BR
AN

CH
  S

T

H
O

LT
 R

D

SITESITE

SITESITE

LOCATION MAP

H
O

LT
 R

D

TW
IN

 C
R

EE
K

 R
D

Scale:

Sheet Number:

Project Number:

Date:

Drawn By:

EA
SE

M
EN

T 
A

B
A

N
D

O
N

M
EN

T 
PL

A
T

TH
E 

C
O

U
R

TY
A

R
D

S 
O

N
 H

O
LT

FO
R

EP
C

O
N

 H
O

LT
 R

O
A

D
, L

LC

1 / 2

EASEMENT ABANDONMENT PLAT

EPCON HOLT ROAD, LLC
FOR

GRAPHIC SCALE
0

1 inch = 300 feet

600150 300

N
C

 G
R

ID
 N

A
D

 83 (2011 A
D

JU
ST

M
E

N
T

)

A
D
V
A
N
C
ED

C
I
V
I
L

D
E
S
I
G
N

E
N

G
I
N

E
E
R

S
S
U

R
V

Y
E

O
R
S

THE COURTYARDS ON HOLT HOLT RD

- Page 146 -

AutoCAD SHX Text
Scale: 1" = 1,000'

AutoCAD SHX Text
Town of Apex    White Oak Township    Wake County, NC

AutoCAD SHX Text
18-0009-27

AutoCAD SHX Text
Revisions:

AutoCAD SHX Text
AS NOTED

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIRM # C-2798

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE DATA:

AutoCAD SHX Text
VICINITY MAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
Scale: 1" = 300'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
Zoning District:    PUD-CZ PUD-CZ Case #:      18CZ29 18CZ29 Annexation Number:    HIST. PIN: 0743236975  #680 #680 HIST. PIN: 0743237810  #680 #680 HIST. PIN: 0743234100  #680 #680 HIST. PIN: 0743225750  #680 #680 HIST. PIN: 0743229697  #680 #680 Area of Parent Tracts:   HIST. PIN: 0743236975  0.090  Ac. 0.090  Ac. HIST. PIN: 0743237810  0.433  Ac. 0.433  Ac. HIST. PIN: 0743234100  16.559 Ac. 16.559 Ac. HIST. PIN: 0743225750  1.781  Ac. 1.781  Ac. HIST. PIN: 0743229679  1.780  Ac. 1.780  Ac.        Total: 20.643 Ac. Setback Requirements: Front  - 20'  - 20' Side - 5'    Corner Side - 10' Rear - 10' - 10' 

AutoCAD SHX Text
51 Kilmayne Drive

AutoCAD SHX Text
Suite 102

AutoCAD SHX Text
Cary, North Carolina 27511

AutoCAD SHX Text
ph 919.481.6290

AutoCAD SHX Text
fax 919.336.5127

AutoCAD SHX Text
2022-04-28 TOWN SUBMITTAL #1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2022-05-16 TOWN SUBMITTAL #2

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTE: : 1. Purpose of this plat is to abandon Purpose of this plat is to abandon portions of existing 5-foot Town of Apex Public Utility Easements as shown on Book of Maps 2021, Page 1884 on Lots 10, 11, 20, 25, 34, 41, 42, 50, 56, 57, & 63. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
2022-06-03 TOWN SUBMITTAL #3

AutoCAD SHX Text
2022-06-22 TOWN ATTORNEY COMMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
06/27/2022

AutoCAD SHX Text
2022-06-27 TOWN ATTORNEY COMMENTS



74 73 72 70 69 6875

PH
IL

LI
PS

BR
AN

CH
 S

TR
EE

T
(V

ar
ia

bl
e 

W
id

th
 P

ub
lic

 R
W

)

23

22

21

2526
2728

29
30

31

32

33

34

20 19 18

17

16

15

14
1312

11

9 7
6

5

494847464544434241
40

39

38

37

36

35

56

55

53

52

51

50

58

57

10

59

60

61

62

54

63
8

OPEN
SPACE "I"

OPEN
SPACE "F"

OPEN
SPACE "F"

O
PE

N
 S

PA
C

E 
"H

"

O
PE

N
 S

PA
C

E 
"G

"

OPEN
SPACE

"F"

TUMBLESTONECOURT
(50' Public R/W)

PH
IL

LI
PS

B
R

A
N

C
H

 S
TR

EE
T

(V
ar

ia
bl

e 
W

id
th

 P
ub

lic
 R

W
) 

FLAT LAUREL STREET(50' Public R/W)

(50' Public R/W)

R
A

VE
N

 C
LI

FF
 S

TR
EE

T
(5

0'
 P

ub
lic

 R
/W

)

G
IL

W
O

O
D

 D
R

(5
0'

 P
ub

lic
 R

/W
)

CATLETTE STREET
(50' Public R/W)

SLOAN BRIDGEDRIVE

D

K

C

B

E

F

G

H

J

I

A

A
D
V
A
N
C
ED

C
I
V
I
L

D
E
S
I
G
N

E
N

G
I
N

E
E
R

S
S
U

R
V

Y
E

O
R
S

EA
SE

M
EN

T 
A

B
A

N
D

O
N

M
EN

T 
PL

A
T

TH
E 

C
O

U
R

TY
A

R
D

S 
O

N
 H

O
LT

FO
R

EP
C

O
N

 H
O

LT
 R

O
A

D
, L

LC

GRAPHIC SCALE
0

1 inch = 50 feet

10025 50LEGEND

N
C

 G
R

ID
 N

A
D

 83 (2011 A
D

JU
ST

M
E

N
T

)

Scale:

Sheet Number:

Project Number:

Date:

Drawn By:

2 / 2
- Page 147 -

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F Dennis & Cathy Rae Bixby PIN: 0743-13-8411 D.B. 15822, Pg. 2205

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F Wayne Riddle PIN: 0743-13-7194 D.B. 2317, Pg. 3942317, Pg. 394

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F Charles & Shirley Hamlett PIN: 0743-12-7874 D.B. 3293, Pg. 697

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F Middleton Owners Association, Inc. PIN: 0743-21-2832 D.B. 18267 Pg. 1921

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F  Kenneth Grimley PIN: 0743-33-1106 D.B. 2225,  Pg. 693

AutoCAD SHX Text
IPF

AutoCAD SHX Text
IPF

AutoCAD SHX Text
IPF

AutoCAD SHX Text
IPF

AutoCAD SHX Text
405

AutoCAD SHX Text
409

AutoCAD SHX Text
413

AutoCAD SHX Text
1404

AutoCAD SHX Text
1408

AutoCAD SHX Text
1412

AutoCAD SHX Text
1416

AutoCAD SHX Text
1420

AutoCAD SHX Text
400

AutoCAD SHX Text
410

AutoCAD SHX Text
406

AutoCAD SHX Text
414

AutoCAD SHX Text
1314

AutoCAD SHX Text
1318

AutoCAD SHX Text
1308

AutoCAD SHX Text
1304

AutoCAD SHX Text
1300

AutoCAD SHX Text
1301

AutoCAD SHX Text
1305

AutoCAD SHX Text
1309

AutoCAD SHX Text
1315

AutoCAD SHX Text
1319

AutoCAD SHX Text
1344

AutoCAD SHX Text
1348

AutoCAD SHX Text
1340

AutoCAD SHX Text
1336

AutoCAD SHX Text
1332

AutoCAD SHX Text
1320

AutoCAD SHX Text
1333

AutoCAD SHX Text
1337

AutoCAD SHX Text
1341

AutoCAD SHX Text
1345

AutoCAD SHX Text
1349

AutoCAD SHX Text
1353

AutoCAD SHX Text
1357

AutoCAD SHX Text
1361

AutoCAD SHX Text
1367

AutoCAD SHX Text
1371

AutoCAD SHX Text
1375

AutoCAD SHX Text
434

AutoCAD SHX Text
422

AutoCAD SHX Text
426

AutoCAD SHX Text
430

AutoCAD SHX Text
418

AutoCAD SHX Text
422

AutoCAD SHX Text
426

AutoCAD SHX Text
430

AutoCAD SHX Text
434

AutoCAD SHX Text
438

AutoCAD SHX Text
442

AutoCAD SHX Text
409

AutoCAD SHX Text
413

AutoCAD SHX Text
417

AutoCAD SHX Text
421

AutoCAD SHX Text
425

AutoCAD SHX Text
429

AutoCAD SHX Text
405

AutoCAD SHX Text
1400

AutoCAD SHX Text
RCA AREA #11

AutoCAD SHX Text
25,336 SF, 0.582 Ac.

AutoCAD SHX Text
RCA AREA #12

AutoCAD SHX Text
6,432 SF, 0.148 Ac.

AutoCAD SHX Text
(Playlawn)

AutoCAD SHX Text
RCA AREA #8

AutoCAD SHX Text
144,133 SF, 3.309 Ac.

AutoCAD SHX Text
RCA AREA #8

AutoCAD SHX Text
RCA AREA #9

AutoCAD SHX Text
29,359 SF, 0.674 Ac.

AutoCAD SHX Text
RCA AREA #9

AutoCAD SHX Text
29,359 SF, 0.674 Ac.

AutoCAD SHX Text
RCA AREA #10

AutoCAD SHX Text
15,377 SF, 0.353 Ac.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ex. Sanitary Sewer Easement Book: 17837 Page: 2461

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ex. 10' Retaining Wall HOA Maintenance & Access Easement

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ex. SCM Maintenance and Access Easement

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ex. 20' Public Greenway Easement

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ex. 20' Public Greenway Easement

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ex. 20' TOA Public Drainage Easement

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ex. 20' TOA Public Drainage Easement

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ex. 5' TOA Public Utility Easement

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ex. 5' TOA Public Utility Easement

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ex. 5' TOA Public Utility Easement

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ex. 5' TOA Public Utility Easement

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ex. 5' TOA Public Utility Easement

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ex. 20' TOA Public Drainage Easement

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ex. 10' Private Drainage Easement

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ex. 10' Retaining Wall HOA Maintenance & Access Easement

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ex. 5' TOA Public Utility Easement

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ex. 5' TOA Public Utility Easement

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ex. 5' TOA Public Utility Easement

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ex. 10' Private Drainage Easement

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ex. TOA Public Drainage Easement

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ex. 10' Retaining Wall HOA Maintenance & Access Easement

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ex. 5' TOA Public Utility Easement

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ex. 10' Retaining Wall HOA Maintenance & Access Easement

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ex. 5' TOA Public Utility Easement

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ex. TOA Public Drainage Easement

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ex. TOA Public Drainage Easement

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ex. 5' TOA Public Utility Easement

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ex. 5' TOA Public Utility Easement

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ex. 5' TOA Public Utility Easement

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ex. TOA Public Drainage Easement

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ex. 10' Retaining Wall HOA Maintenance & Access Easement

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ex. 10' Retaining Wall HOA Maintenance & Access Easement

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ex. SCM Maintenance and Access Easement

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ex. SCM Maintenance and Access Easement

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ex. 10' Public Path Easement

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ex. 10' Public Path Easement

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ex. 10' Private Drainage Easement

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ex. 20' TOA Public Drainage Easement

AutoCAD SHX Text
IPF

AutoCAD SHX Text
IPF

AutoCAD SHX Text
IPF

AutoCAD SHX Text
144,133 SF, 3.309 Ac.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ex. 30' Type 'B' Buffer

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ex. 30' Type 'B' Buffer

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ex. 30' Type 'B' Buffer

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ex. 20' Type 'B' Buffer

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ex. 10' Retaining Wall HOA Maintenance & Access Easement

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ex. 10' Retaining Wall HOA Maintenance & Access Easement

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ex. 10' Private Drainage Easement

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ex. 10' Retaining Wall HOA Maintenance & Access Easement (1,097 SF) B.M. 2022 Pg. 650

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ex. 20' TOA Public Drainage Easement

AutoCAD SHX Text
B.M. 2021 Pg. 1884

AutoCAD SHX Text
B.M. 2021 Pg. 1884

AutoCAD SHX Text
B.M. 2021 Pg. 1884

AutoCAD SHX Text
B.M. 2021 Pg. 1884

AutoCAD SHX Text
B.M. 2021 Pg. 1884

AutoCAD SHX Text
B.M. 2021 Pg. 1884

AutoCAD SHX Text
B.M. 2021 Pg. 1884

AutoCAD SHX Text
B.M. 2021 Pg. 1884

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ex. 10' Retaining Wall HOA Maintenance & Access Easement (931 SF) B.M. 2022 Pg. 650

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ex. 10' Retaining Wall HOA Maintenance & Access Easement (1,201 SF) B.M. 2022 Pg. 650

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ex. 10' Retaining Wall HOA Maintenance & Access Easement (3,340 SF) B.M. 2022 Pg. 650

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ex. 10' Retaining Wall HOA Maintenance & Access Easement (951 SF) B.M. 2022 Pg. 650

AutoCAD SHX Text
Existing 5' TOA Public Utility Easement to be Abandoned (522 SF)

AutoCAD SHX Text
Existing 5' TOA Public Utility Easement to be Abandoned (582 SF)

AutoCAD SHX Text
Existing 5' TOA Public Utility Easement to be Abandoned (691 SF)

AutoCAD SHX Text
Existing 5' TOA Public Utility Easement to be Abandoned (833 SF)

AutoCAD SHX Text
Existing 5' TOA Public Utility Easement to be Abandoned (542 SF)

AutoCAD SHX Text
Existing 5' TOA Public Utility Easement to be Abandoned (706 SF)

AutoCAD SHX Text
Existing 5' TOA Public Utility Easement to be Abandoned (652 SF)

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ex. Transformer

AutoCAD SHX Text
Existing 5' TOA Public Utility Easement to be Abandoned (584 SF)

AutoCAD SHX Text
Existing 5' TOA Public Utility Easement to be Abandoned (450 SF)

AutoCAD SHX Text
Existing 5' TOA Public Utility Easement to be Abandoned (427 SF)

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F Middleton Owners Association, Inc. PIN: 0743-22-7600 D.B. 17703 Pg. 2385

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F Middleton Owners Association, Inc. PIN: 0743-22-8288 D.B. 18267 Pg. 1921

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
CO

AutoCAD SHX Text
CO

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
Existing 5' TOA Public Utility Easement to be Abandoned (700 SF)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIRM # C-2798

AutoCAD SHX Text
51 Kilmayne Drive

AutoCAD SHX Text
Suite 102

AutoCAD SHX Text
Cary, North Carolina 27511

AutoCAD SHX Text
ph 919.481.6290

AutoCAD SHX Text
fax 919.336.5127

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTE: : 1. Refer to Page 1 of this multi-page plat for Refer to Page 1 of this multi-page plat for notes, restrictions, and other requirements pertaining to this plat. 2. See sheet 1 for line and curve tables. See sheet 1 for line and curve tables. 3. TOA = Town of Apex TOA = Town of Apex 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Existing Easement

AutoCAD SHX Text
Existing Property Line

AutoCAD SHX Text
Iron Pin Found

AutoCAD SHX Text
Iron Pipe Found

AutoCAD SHX Text
Iron Pipe Set

AutoCAD SHX Text
Iron Pin Found

AutoCAD SHX Text
Iron Pipe Found

AutoCAD SHX Text
Calculated Point

AutoCAD SHX Text
Existing Adjacent Property Line 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Stream Buffer

AutoCAD SHX Text
Wetlands

AutoCAD SHX Text
Mag Nail Set

AutoCAD SHX Text
Town of Apex    White Oak Township    Wake County, NC

AutoCAD SHX Text
18-0009-27

AutoCAD SHX Text
Revisions:

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" = 50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
2022-04-28 TOWN SUBMITTAL #1

AutoCAD SHX Text
Existing Right of Way

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOA   Town of Apex

AutoCAD SHX Text
Existing Building Foundation

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ex. TOA Utility Easement To Be Abandoned

AutoCAD SHX Text
06/27/2022

AutoCAD SHX Text
2022-05-16 TOWN SUBMITTAL #2

AutoCAD SHX Text
RCA

AutoCAD SHX Text
2022-06-03 TOWN SUBMITTAL #3

AutoCAD SHX Text
2022-06-22 TOWN ATTORNEY COMMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
2022-06-27 TOWN ATTORNEY COMMENTS



 | Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 for consideration by the Apex Town Council 

 

 Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

 Meeting Date: July 26, 2022 

Item Details 

Presenter(s): Amanda Bunce, Current Planning Manager 

Department(s): Planning and Community Development 

Requested Motion 

Motion to approve the Statement of the Town Council and Ordinance for Rezoning Case #22CZ03 

Sweetwater PUD Amendment, David Schmidt, ExperienceOne Homes, LLC, petitioner, for the properties 

located at 0 & 3233 US 64 Hwy W, 0 Core Banks St, and 1051 & 1075 Newland Ave (PINs 0722453275, 

0722456374, 0722458740, 0722550034, 0722544876, & 0722544404). 

Approval Recommended? 

The Planning and Community Development Department recommends approval. 

Item Details 

Rezoning Case #22CZ03 was approved at the June 14, 2022 Town Council meeting.  

 

Attachments 

 Statement of the Town Council 

 Ordinance to Amend the Official Zoning District Map  
 

 

- Page 148 -



STATEMENT OF TOWN COUNCIL AND ORDINANCE AMENDING THE OFFICIAL ZONING DISTRICT MAP OF 
THE TOWN OF APEX TO CHANGE THE ZONING OF APPROXIMATELY 44.76 ACRES LOCATED AT 0 & 3233 
US 64 HWY W, 0 CORE BANKS ST, and 1051 & 1075 NEWLAND AVE FROM PLANNED UNIT 
DEVELOPMENT-CONDITIONAL ZONING (PUD-CZ #18CZ01) TO PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT-
CONDITIONAL ZONING (PUD-CZ) 

#22CZ03 

WHEREAS, David Schmidt, ExperienceOne Homes, LLC, owner/applicant (the “Applicant”), submitted a 
completed application for a conditional zoning on the 1st day of February 2022 (the “Application”). The 
proposed conditional zoning is designated #22CZ03; 
 
WHEREAS, the Director of Planning and Community Development for the Town of Apex, Dianne Khin, 
caused proper notice to be given (by publication and posting) of a public hearing on #22CZ03 before the 
Planning Board on the 11th day of April 2022; 
 
WHEREAS, the Apex Planning Board held a public hearing on the 11th day of April 2022, gathered facts, 
received public comments and formulated a recommendation regarding the application for conditional 
zoning #22CZ03. A motion was made by the Apex Planning Board to recommend approval with conditions 
as recommended by staff; the motion passed unanimously for the application for #22CZ03; 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to N.C.G.S. §160D-601 and Sec. 2.2.11.E of the Unified Development Ordinance, the 
Director of Planning and Community Development caused proper notice to be given (by publication and 
posting), of a public hearing on #22CZ03 before the Apex Town Council on the 26th day of April 2022; 
 
WHEREAS, the Apex Town Council held a public hearing on the 26th day of April 2022. Amanda Bunce, 
Current Planning Manager, presented the Planning Board's recommendation at the public hearing; 
 
WHEREAS, all persons who desired to present information relevant to the application for #22CZ03 and 
who were residents of Apex or its extraterritorial jurisdiction, or who owned property adjoining the 
property for which the conditional zoning is sought, were allowed to present evidence at the public 
hearing before the Apex Town Council. No one who wanted to speak was turned away;  
 
WHEREAS, the Apex Town Council finds that the approval of the rezoning is consistent with the 2045 Land 
Use Plan and other adopted plans in that: The 2045 Land Use Map designates this area as Mixed Use: High 
Denisty Residential/Office Employment/Commercial Services. This designation on the 2045 Land Use Map 
includes the zoning district Planned Unit Development-Conditional Zoning (PUD-CZ) and the Apex Town 
Council has further considered that the rezoning to Planned Unit Development-Conditional Zoning (PUD-
CZ) will allow development to accommodate the growth in population, economy, and infrastructure 
consistent with that contemplated by the 2045 Land Use Map; 
 
WHEREAS, the Apex Town Council finds that the approval of the rezoning is reasonable and in the public 
interest in that: The rezoning provides more flexibility for development while providing a greater buffer 
or planting area than currently required in addition to a greater setback for most vertical construction 
from the current right-of-way of US Highway 64 to mitigate the impact of right-of-way acquisition that 
will be needed for a future interchange at Richardson Road and US Highway 64; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Apex Town Council by a vote of 3 to 2 approved Application #22CZ03 rezoning the subject 
tract located at 3233 US 64 Highway, 0 Core Banks St., 0 US 64 Highway, 1051 & 1075 Newland Ave from 
Planned Unit Development-Conditional Zoning (PUD-CZ #18CZ01) to Planned Unit Development-
Conditional Zoning (PUD-CZ). 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF APEX 

 Section 1:  The lands that are the subject of the Ordinance are those certain lands described in 
Attachment “A” – Legal Description which is incorporated herein by reference, and said lands are 
hereafter referred to as the “Rezoned Lands.” 

- Page 149 -



Ordinance Amending the Official Zoning District Map #22CZ03 

Page 2 of 2 

Section 2:  The Town of Apex Unified Development Ordinance, including the Town of Apex North 
Carolina Official Zoning District Map which is a part of said Ordinance, is hereby amended by changing the 
zoning classification of the “Rezoned Lands” from Planned Unit Development-Conditional Zoning (PUD-CZ 
#18CZ01) to Planned Unit Development-Conditional Zoning (PUD-CZ) District, subject to the conditions 
stated herein. 

Section 3:  The Director of Planning and Community Development is hereby authorized and 
directed to cause the said Official Zoning District Map for the Town of Apex, North Carolina, to be 
physically revised and amended to reflect the zoning changes ordained by this Ordinance. 

Section 4:  The “Rezoned Lands” are subject to the conditions in Attachment “B” Sweetwater PUD 
which are imposed as part of this rezoning. 

Section 5:  The “Rezoned Lands” shall be perpetually bound to the conditions imposed including 
the uses authorized, unless subsequently changed or amended as provided for in the Unified 
Development Ordinance. Site plans for any development to be made pursuant to this amendment to the 
Official Zoning District Map shall be submitted for site plan approval as provided for in the Unified 
Development Ordinance. 

Section 6:  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its adoption. 

 Motion by Council Member___________________________________ 

 Seconded by Council Member__________________________________ 

 With ____ Council Member(s) voting "aye." 

 With ____ Council Member(s) voting "no." 

 This the _____ day of _________________ 2022. 

  TOWN OF APEX 

  Mayor 
ATTEST:   

Allen Coleman, CMC, NCCCC  
Town Clerk 
 

  

APPROVED AS TO FORM:   
   

Town Attorney   
 

- Page 150 -



LAND DESCRIPTION FOR REZONING 
PROPERTY OF EXPERIENCEONE HOMES, LLC KEPE1 STC, LLC 
 
LYING AND BEING IN WHITE OAK TOWNSHIP, WAKE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA 
 
COMMENCING AT A POINT, SAID POINT BEING THE NORTH EASTERN MOST PROPERTY CORNER 
OF KEPE1 STC, LLC AS RECORDED IN DEED BOOK 18792 PAGE 51 LYING ON THE SOUTHERN 
MARGIN OF US HIGHWAY 64) AND BEING A COMMON CORNER WITH 64 WEST BUSINESS 
CONDOS AS RECORDED IN DEED BOOK 8609 PAGE 1464; HAVING NORTH CAROLINA GRID 
COORDINATES OF NORTHING: 725,901.98’ EASTING: 2,025,327.66’ AS SHOWN IN BOOK OF MAPS 
2016 PAGE 588; POINT IS HEREBY KNOW AS THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 
 
THENCE LEAVING MARGIN OF US 64 HIGHWAY IN A SOUTHERLY DIRECTION ALONG SAID 
COMMON LINE OF 64 WEST BUSINESS CONDOS PROPERTY S 01° 32' 52" W  FOR A DISTANCE 
687.66 FEET TO A POINT; SAID POINT BEING A COMMON CORNER WITH HWY 64 HOLDINGS; 
THENCE, S 88° 31' 32" E FOR A DISTANCE OF 190.35 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE, S 32° 00' 30" E 
FOR A DISTANCE OF 333.97 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE, S 00° 50' 49" E FOR A DISTANCE OF 414.52 
FEET TO A POINT; SAID POINT LYING ALONG THE COMMON BOUNDARY OF THE ANS TRUST 
PROPERTY AT THE CENTERLINE OF CHANTICLAIR DRIVE; THENCE ALONG THE CENTER OF SAID 
DRIVE, S 27° 32' 58" W FOR A DISTANCE OF 176.79 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE, S 27° 37' 14" W 
FOR A DISTANCE OF 111.78 FEET TO A POINT; SAID POINT BEING THE CENTERLINE OF A ROUND-
A-BOUT IN CORE BANKS STREET;  THENCE ALONG SAID STREET, N 76° 56' 05" W FOR A DISTANCE 
OF 160.47 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE WITH A CURVE TO THE LEFT, WITH A RADIUS OF 1000.00 
FEET HAVING CHORD BEARING AND OF  N 80° 40' 51" W FOR A DISTANCE OF 135.75’ FEET TO A 
POINT; THENCE, N 84° 34' 21" W FOR A DISTANCE OF 209.33 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE WITH A 
CURVE TO THE RIGHT, WITH A RADIUS OF 1000.00 FEET HAVING CHORD BEARING AND OF  N 73° 
28' 23" W FOR A DISTANCE OF 385.03’ FEET TO A POINT; THENCE, N 61° 45' 27" W FOR A DISTANCE 
OF 253.57 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE WITH A CURVE TO THE LEFT, WITH A RADIUS OF 700.00 
FEET HAVING CHORD BEARING AND OF  N 76° 06' 06" W FOR A DISTANCE OF 346.63’ FEET TO A 
POINT; THENCE, S 89° 33' 47" W FOR A DISTANCE OF 7.59 FEET TO A POINT; SAID POINT BEING 
THE INTERSECTION OF CORE BANKS STREET AND THE COMMON BOUNDARY LINE OF STALEY 
C. SMITH AND AARON E. SMITH JR.; THENCE IN A NORTHERLY DIRECTION ALONG SAID COMMON 
LINE, N 00° 26' 13" W FOR A DISTANCE OF 1102.81 FEET TO A POINT; SAID POINT BEING A 
COMMON CORNER OF SKJD HOLDINGS, LLC AND LYING ON THE SOUTHERN MARGIN OF US 64 
HIGHWAY; THENCE WITH SAID MARGIN, N 82° 54' 21" E FOR A DISTANCE OF 1231.79 FEET TO A 
POINT; SAID POINT BEING THE POINT AND PLACE OF BEGINNING, HAVING AN AREA OF 1,949,585 
SQUARE FEET OR 44.76 ACRES MORE OR LESS. 
 
BEING A PORTION OF PROPERTY ACQUIRED BY OWNERS IN DEED BOOK 16739 PAGE 1802 AND 
DEED BOOK 16823 PAGE 2446 OF THE WAKE COUNTY REGISTRY. 

- Page 151 -

abunce
Typewritten Text
Attachment "A"



Sweetwater PUD Amendment 

Proposed Rezoning Changes  

June 16, 2022 

(Limited to Mixed-Use Portion of Project – North of Core Banks Street Only) 

 

The PUD will retain all of the conditions from rezoning #16CZ21, #17CZ21 and #18CZ01 except: 

I. Revision to Section 6: 

 
Section 6:  Design Controls 

 
NONRESIDENTIAL/MIXED-USE AREAS:   
 
Residential: Maximum 230 units:  2nd story and above only (no other residential permitted in 

this section). 
 
Office: A minimum of 80,000 55,000 square feet of office will be provided in this section. 
 
 

II. Revision to Section 11: 
 

Section 11:  Public Facilities 
 
Water and Sanitary Sewer:  All lots will be served by Town of Apex public sanitary sewer and 
water.  Refer to PD Plan Sheet 3 for conceptual connections to infrastructure within adjacent 
development and roadways in accordance with the minimum criteria of the Town of Apex 
Standards and Specifications.  The utility design shall meet the requirements of the Town of Apex 
Utilities Master Plan.  Concurrently with the Town of Apex construction plan review, the Town of 
Cary will only review and approve the sewer connection directly connecting to Reedy Branch 
outfall.  Developer shall construct all water and sewer infrastructure for any specific phase prior 
to approval of the first plat for that specific phase. 
 
Roadway:  Internal Streets will be designed to Town of Apex public roads standards.  The proposed 
development roadway system will be in accordance with the Apex Thoroughfare and Collector 
Street Plan.  A functional alignment for the future Richardson Road thoroughfare will be created 
with the input from NCDOT and Town of Apex from its intersection with US 64 to the edge of the 
project area.  The ultimate cross-section for the future Richardson Road will be 4 lane median 
divided facility on a 100-foot public right-of-way.  In the initial phases of the development, the 
developer will construct a 2-lane median divided road.  The final design will be determined at 
Master Subdivision Plan.  The intersection of the future Richardson Road and US Highway 64 will 
comply with the NCDOT US 64 corridor plan, with interim measures. to accommodate the ultimate 

- Page 152 -

abunce
Typewritten Text
Attachment B

abunce
Typewritten Text



design for the interchange.  The developer will be responsible for construction of the interim 
measures deemed appropriate for by the Traffic Impact Analysis and NCDOT design criteria.  
Traffic calming devices, such as roundabouts, neighborhood traffic mini-circles and neckdown 
traffic facilities, will be incorporated at various locations within the proposed street network 
system.  Based on neighborhood input and concurrences with Staff, a proposed traffic circle with 
directional islands will be located on Timken Forest Drive and the proposed street to the portion 
of the residential subdivision located adjacent to Abbington Subdivision. 
 
Refer to PD Plan Sht-2 for proposed access points and planned/future connectivity access points 
shown are conceptual and will be finalized at the subdivision plan stage based on review of the 
Traffic Impact Analysis findings and recommendations.  These findings and recommendations are: 

 

1. The developer shall construct Richardson Road, serving as the major north-south 
thoroughfare south of US 64, on a minimum 100-foot public right-of-way as a median 
divided two-lane shoulder section thoroughfare or similar to be determined at the time 
of the subdivision and site plan submittal, allowing for future expansion to four-lane 
divided when needed.  Developer shall construct Richardson Road and the required 
collector streets (except for the final lift of asphalt) prior to the first building permit. 

2. The developer shall propose a conceptual design for the future interchange at US 64 if 
offered as an alternative to the interchange recommended in the US 64 Corridor Study.  
Reservation of future public right-of-way for the interchange shall be determined based 
on Town of Apex and NCDOT review and approval of the interchange concept(s) if not 
based on the US 64 Corridor Study.  This reservation shall be included in development 
plans and occur at the time of platting parcels for development adjacent to US 64.  Surplus 
parking and related facilities (lighting, landscaping, and storm drainage, etc.) can be 
constructed within the reservation area; with the understanding that these 
improvements may be removed in the future.  The developer shall make the necessary 
provisions to accommodate future loss of parking by appropriate site planning including 
addition of a 50’ Type A Buffer behind the reservation area. 

3. The developer shall construct a superstreet with left turn crossovers and downstream U-
Turns on US 64 at the intersection of Richardson Road and Jenks Road based on the 
recommendations in the TIA  and the US 64 Corridor Study subject to final approval.  Final 
approval of storage lengths, lane geometry, and installation of traffic signals is subject to 
Town of Apex and NCDOT review and approval at the time of site and/or subdivision 
plans.  The developer shall construct improvements according to the Town of Apex TIA 
review letter dated January 2, 2015, or as otherwise approved by Town of Apex and 
NCDOT during site and subdivision plan approval.  Developer shall construct these US 64 
improvements prior to the first building permit:  the signal will be installed when 
warranted. 

4. The developer shall monitor the superstreet intersections on US 64 during the 
development of Phase 1 (residential) and install traffic signals when warranted if not 
determined to be a responsibility of others prior to that time.  Traffic signals at one or 
more locations on the superstreet may be warranted prior to build-out of Phase 1.  This 
requirement does not prevent other developers from studying and installing traffic signals 

- Page 153 -



and/or additional turning lanes if determined to be necessary improvements by other as 
part of other development approvals.  If not installed in prior years, the developer shall 
install traffic signals and additional lanes recommended in the TIA as needed to serve site 
traffic during Phase 2 subject to Town of Apex and NCDOT review and approval. 

5. The developer shall remove the concrete diverter island on Beaver Creek Commons Drive 
at Kelly Road and restripe as a through-left lane prior to first plat. 

6. The developer shall provide traffic calming features in the horizontal design and layout of 
the street(s) connecting the proposed development and Stratford at Abbington subject 
to Town of Apex review and approval at the time of subdivision plans. 

Alleys:  The alleys will be constructed in accordance with Town of Apex Standards and 
Specifications. 
 
Sidewalks:  Sidewalks shall be provided on both sides of all streets and cul-de-sacs within the 
subdivision. 
 
The following is a new condition that is being added with this rezoning: 
 
I. New Section 17:  Environmental Advisory Board 

 
1. At least one (1) pet waste station shall be installed near the Hotel if the Hotel 

permits pets. 
 

II. New Section 18:  Additional Zoning Conditions (22CZ03) 
 

1. Excluding the gas canopy, a minimum 100’ setback for vertical construction from US 
64 shall be provided. 

2. Along US 64 east of Richardson Road, the Developer shall provide a 75’ Type ‘A’ 
Buffer. 

3. Along US 64 west of Richardson Road, the Developer shall provide an additional 
planting area between the 50’ and the back of curb that is no less than 10’ in width.  
This area may be disturbed and shall be replanted to a Type ‘A’ Buffer standard. 

 

- Page 154 -



SITE

301 GLENWOOD AVE. SUITE 220
RALEIGH,NC 27603

PHONE: 919-367-8790
www.cegroupinc.com

License # C-1739

SWEETWATER
PUD AMENDMENT PLANS

APEX, NC
JANUARY 2, 2018

REVISED: SEPTEMBER 18, 2018
REVISED: FEBRUARY 1, 2022

REVISED: MARCH 11, 2022

EXISTING EXHIBIT INFORMATION
PROVIDED BY WITHERS RAVENEL

SITE SUMMARY

ExperienceOne Homes, LLC
POST OFFICE BOX 5509
CARY, NC 27512
PHONE: 919-991-1402

PO BOX 5509
CARY, NC 27512

7001 BRUSH HOLLOW ROAD
STE 200
WESTBURY, NY 11590

SWEETWATER LIGHTBRIDGE, LLC

KEP APEX, LLC

DEVELOPERS
DAVID SCHMIDT
LANNY CALDWELL
COREY SCHMIDT

ENGINEER
MITCH CRAIG, PE
LICENCE# 034332

CE GROUP, INC.
301 GLENWOOD AVE
STE 220
RALEIGH, NC 27603
PHONE: 919-367-8790

1. THIS PROJECT WAS REVIEWED BY THE PRCR ADVISORY COMMISSION ON DECEMBER 10, 2014 AND UNANIMOUSLY RECOMMENDS DEDICATION
OF THE NECESSARY PUBLIC GREENWAY EASEMENTS AND CONSTRUCTION OF THE PUBLIC GREENWAY CONSISTENT WITH THE PRGOS
MASTER PLAN. THE DEVELOPER WILL RECEIVE CREDIT FOR CONSTRUCTING THE GREENWAY AGAINST THE SUBDIVISION PARKS AND
RECREATION FEES.

2. REQUIRED ROADWAY IMPROVEMENTS:
A.  THE DEVELOPER SHALL CONSTRUCT RICHARDSON ROAD, SERVING AS THE MAJOR NORTH-SOUTH THOROUGHFARE SOUTH OF US 64, ON

A MINIMUM 100 FOOT PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY AS A MEDIAN DIVIDED TWO-LAN SHOULDER SECTION THOROUGHFARE OR SIMILAR TO BE
DETERMINED AT THE TIME OF SUBDIVISION AND SITE PLAN SUBMITTAL, ALLOWING FOR FUTURE EXPANSION TO FOUR-LANE DIVIDED WHEN
NEEDED. DEVELOPER SHALL CONSTRUCT RICHARDSON ROAD AND THE REQUIRED COLLECTOR STREETS EXCEPT FOR THE FINAL LIFT OF
ASPHALT PRIOR TO THE FIRST BUILDING PERMIT.

B.  THE DEVELOPER SHALL PROPOSE A CONCEPTUAL DESIGN FOR THE FUTURE INTERCHANGE AT US 64 IF OFFERED AS AN ALTERNATIVE TO
THE INTERCHANGE RECOMMENDED IN THE US 64 CORRIDOR STUDY. RESERVATION OF FUTURE PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY FOR THE
INTERCHANGE SHALL BE DETERMINED BASED ON TOWN OF APEX AND NCDOT REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF THE INTERCHANGE CONCEPT(S)
IF NOT BASED ON US 64 CORRIDOR STUDY. THIS RESERVATION SHALL BE INCLUDED IN DEVELOPMENT PLANS AND OCCUR AT THE TIME OF
PLATTING PARCELS FOR DEVELOPMENT ADJACENT TO US 64. SURPLUS PARKING AND RELATED FACILITIES (LIGHTING, LANDSCAPING, AND
STORM DRAINAGE, ETC.) CAN BE CONSTRUCTED WITHIN THE RESERVATION AREA; WITH THE UNDERSTANDING THAT THESE
IMPROVEMENTS MAY BE REMOVED IN FUTURE. THE DEVELOPER SHALL MAKE NECESSARY PROVISIONS TO ACCOMMODATE FUTURE LOSS
OF PARKING BY APPROPRIATE SITE PLANNING INCLUDING ADDITION OF A 50' TYPE A BUFFER BEHIND THE RESERVATION AREA.

C. THE DEVELOPER SHALL CONSTRUCT A SUPERSTREET WITH LEFT TURN CROSSOVERS AND DOWNSTREAM U-TURNS ON US 64 AT THE
INTERSECTION OF RICHARDSON ROAD AND JENKS ROAD BASED ON TOWN OF APEX AND NCDOT REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF THE
INTERSECTION OF RICHARDSON ROAD AND JENKS ROAD BASED ON THE RECOMMENDATIONS IN THE TIA AND THE US 64 CORRIDOR STUDY
SUBJECT TO FINAL APPROVAL. FINAL APPROVAL OF STORAGE LENGTHS, LANE GEOMETRY, AND INSTALLATION OF TRAFFIC SIGNALS IS
SUBJECT TO TOWN OF APEX AND NCDOT REVIEW AND APPROVAL AT THE TIME OF SITE AND/OR SUBDIVISION PLANS. THE DEVELOPER
SHALL CONSTRUCT IMPROVEMENTS ACCORDING TO THE TOWN OF APEX TIA REVIEW LETTER DATED JANUARY 2, 2015, OR AS OTHERWISE
APPROVED BY TOWN OF APEX AND NCDOT DURING SITE AND SUBDIVISION PLAN APPROVAL. DEVELOPER SHALL CONSTRUCT THESE US 64
IMPROVEMENTS PRIOR TO THE FIRST BUILDING PERMIT: THE SIGNAL WILL BE INSTALLED WHEN WARRANTED.

D.  THE DEVELOPER SHALL MONITOR THE SUPERSTREET INTERSECTIONS ON US 64 DURING DEVELOPMENT OF PHASE 1 RESIDENTIAL AND
INSTALL TRAFFIC SIGNALS WHEN WARRANTED IF NOT DETERMINED TO BE A RESPONSIBILITY OF OTHERS PRIOR TO THAT TIME. TRAFFIC
SIGNALS AT ONE OR MORE LOCATIONS ON THE SUPERSTREET MAY BE WARRANTED PRIOR TO BUILD-OUT OF PHASE1. THIS REQUIREMENT
DOES NOT PREVENT OTHER DEVELOPERS FROM STUDYING AND INSTALLING TRAFFIC SIGNALS AND/OR ADDITIONAL TURNING LANES IF
DETERMINED TO BE NECESSARY IMPROVEMENTS BY OTHERS AS PART OF OTHER DEVELOPMENT APPROVALS. IF NOT INSTALLED IN PRIOR
YEARS, THE DEVELOPER SHALL INSTALL TRAFFIC SIGNALS AND ADDITIONAL LANES RECOMMENDED IN THE TIA AS NEEDED TO SERVE SITE
TRAFFIC DURING PHASE 2 SUBJECT TO TOWN OF APEX AND NCDOT REVIEW AND APPROVAL.

E.  THE DEVELOPER SHALL REMOVE THE CONCRETE DIVERTER ISLAND ON BEAVER CREEK COMMONS DRIVE AT KELLY ROAD AND RE-STRIPE
AS A THROUGH-LEFT LAN PRIOR TO FIRST PLAT.

F.  THE DEVELOPER SHALL PROVIDE TRAFFIC CALMING FEATURES IN THE HORIZONTAL DESIGN AND LAYOUT OF THE STREET(S) CONNECTING
THE PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT AND STRATFORD AT ABBINGTON SUBJECT TO TOWN OF APEX REVIEW AND APPROVAL AT THE TIME OF
SUBDIVISION PLANS.

3. WATER AND SEWER IMPROVEMENTS: DEVELOPER SHALL CONSTRUCT ALL WATER AND SEWER INFRASTRUCTURE FOR ANY SPECIFIC PHASE
PRIOR TO APPROVAL OF THE FINAL PLAT FOR THAT SPECIFIC PHASE.

MIXED USE DESIGNATED AREA= 45.65 AC
AREA IN R.O.W. = 4.23 AC
TOTAL MIXED USE DESIGNATED AREA= 41.42 AC

0722730032* =
*PARCEL LOCATED OUTSIDE OF MIXED USED DESIGNATED AREA

TOTAL ACRES FOR ZONING=

CURRENT ZONING: PUD-CZ

PROPOSED ZONING: PUD-CZ

WATERSHED: PRIMARY

HISTORIC STRUCTURES: NONE

AREA OF PUD MODIFICATION:

13.20 AC.

164.79 AC.

NO. DATEREVISION
1 02/09/18REVISED PER COMMENTS DATED 1/22/18
2 09/07/18REVISED PER COMMENTS DATED 2/19/18

SWEETWATER LIGHTBRIDGE, LLC
0722544404

KEP APEX, LLC
0722544876, 0722550034

KEPE1 HOLDINGS, LLC
0722453275, 0722456374, 0722458740

41.42 AC.

OVERALL PUD INFORMATION:

3 02/01/22OWNER REVISIONS

RCA AREAS (16CZ21, 17CZ21, 18CZ01) REQUIRED:
TOTAL TRACT(S) AREA: 164.79 AC

AREA OF DEVELOPMENT: 164.79 AC
- PERCENTAGES BELOW ARE OF DEVELOPED AREA RCA BUFFERS

NON-RESIDENTIAL AREA (PHASES 9 & 10 ) 45.65 AC (27.70%)
RCA1 STREAM BUFFERS 0.00 AC
RCA2 PERIMETER BUFFERS 1.90 AC
RCA3 OTHER BUFFERS (TRACT PIN 0722730032) 0.00 AC
RCA4 STREET BUFFERS (RICHARDSON RD) 1.70 AC

TOTAL RCA AREA = 3.60 AC (2.18%)

RESIDENTIAL AREA (PHASES 1-8) 106.38 AC (65.55%)
RCA1 STREAM BUFFERS 26.41 AC
RCA2 PERIMETER BUFFERS 1.34 AC
RCA4 STREET BUFFERS (RICHARDSON RD) 1.88 AC

TOTAL RCA AREA = 29.63 AC (17.98%)

DEDICATED VACANT TRACT (NOT PART OF DEVELOPED AREA)
RCA3 OTHER BUFFERS (TRACT PIN 0722730032) 13.20 AC

TOTAL RCA AREA: 46.43 AC
RCA AREA AS A PERCENTAGE OF DEVELOPED AREA: 28.18%

7001 BRUSH HOLLOW ROAD
STE 200
WESTBURY, NY 11590

KEPE1 HOLDINGS, LLC

OWNERS

LAND USE SUMMARY

RESIDENTIAL
ACREAGE 106.38 + 13.20 AC. = 119.58 AC
PROPOSED UNITS 410
TOTAL DWELLING UNITS 640
PROPOSED DENSITY (SINGLE FAMILY, TOWNHOMES, APARTMENTS) 3.89 DU/AC

NON-RESIDENTIAL/MIXED USE AREAS
ACREAGE 45.65 AC
APARTMENTS 230
MAX BUILDING HEIGHT 52 FT

WATERSHED PROTECTION DISTRICT: PRIMARY

FLOODPLAIN:
THERE IS FEMA FLOODPLAIN LOCATED ON THE SUBJECT PROPERTY PER
FIRM MAP #3720072200J, PANEL 0722J
EFFECTIVE MAY 2, 2006

VICINITY MAP
1" = 1500'

4 03/11/22REVISED PER COMMENTS DATED 2/18/22

- Page 155 -



AI
R

 P
AR

K 
D

R
IV

E

G
O

O
D

W
IN

R
O

AD (D.B. 5731, PG. 322)
U.S. HIGHWAY 64

(200' PUBLIC R/W)

JE
NKS

 R
D.

20
' T

YP
E 

A 
BU

FF
ER

10
'x7

0' 
SIG

HT
 EA

SE
ME

NT

10'
x70

' SIGHT EASEMENT

30
' T

YP
E E

 BU
FF

ER

30
' T

YP
E E

 BU
FF

ER

30
' T

YP
E 

E 
BU

FF
ER

3.56'
3.56'

3+
00

2+00
1+00

0+00

2+15
2+00

1+00

0+00

.

 8" GV

OUTFALL D

20.0'

15
' T

OA O
VE

RHEA
D UTIL

ITY
 EA

SE
MEN

T

20.0'

20.0'

30
' T

YP
E 

E 
BU

FF
ER

RESOURCE
CONSERVATION

AREA
LOT 3

18.37 AC
800,206 SF

20' PRIVATE STORM
WATER EASEMENT

TOWN OF APEX STORM
DRAINAGE EASEMENT

TOWN OF APEX STORM
DRAINAGE EASEMENT

JE
NK

S 
RD

20' TOWN OF
APEX UTILITY
EASEMENT

TOWN OF APEX
STORM DRAINAGE
EASEMENT

TOWN OF
APEX STORM
DRAINAGE
EASEMENT

TOWN OF APEX
STORM DRAINAGE
EASEMENT

20' PRIVATE STORM
WATER EASEMENT

TOWN OF APEX STORM
DRAINAGE EASEMENT

TOWN OF APEX STORM
DRAINAGE EASEMENT

TOWN OF APEX STORM
DRAINAGE EASEMENT

TOWN OF APEX STORM
DRAINAGE EASEMENT

TOWN OF
APEX STORM
DRAINAGE
EASEMENT

TOWN OF
APEX STORM
DRAINAGE
EASEMENT

TOWN OF APEX
STORM DRAINAGE
EASEMENT

TOWN OF
APEX STORM
DRAINAGE
EASEMENT

SEA LEVEL

PO
ULT

NEY
 A

LL
EY

BR
OW

N V
EL

VE
T 

LA
NE

PATH
20' TOWN OF
APEX UTILITY
EASEMENT

20' TOWN OF APEX
UTILITY EASEMENT

20' TOWN OF
APEX UTILITY
EASEMENT

W
HAL

E 
BO

NE 
AL

LE
Y

40' TOWN OF APEX UTILITY AND
GREENWAY EASEMENT

FUTURE GREENWAY CONNECTION

50' BUFFER W/TYPE A BUFFER IN FIRST 20'
ADJACENT TO PROPERTY LINE

50' BUFFER W/TYPE A BUFFER IN FIRST 20'
ADJACENT TO PROPERTY LINE

EX 40' TOWN OF CARY
UTILITY AND PIPELINE
EASEMENT
DB14453 PG1459

TOWN OF APEX PUBLIC
UTILITY EASEMENT

TOWN OF APEX PUBLIC
UTILITY EASEMENT

TOWN OF APEX
PUBLIC UTILITY
EASEMENT

10' x 20' TOWN OF APEX
UTILITY EASEMENT

10' DRY UTILITY EASEMENT

20' PRIVATE STORM
WATER EASEMENT

20' PRIVATE DRAINAGE
EASEMENT

SCM MAINTENANCE &
ACCESS EASEMENT

TOWN OF APEX STORM
DRAINAGE EASEMENT

10' DRY UTILITY EASEMENT

10' DRY UTILITY EASEMENT

10' DRY UTILITY EASEMENT

TOWN OF APEX STORM
DRAINAGE EASEMENT

10' DRY UTILITY
EASEMENT

10' DRY UTILITY
EASEMENT

TOWN OF APEX STORM
DRAINAGE EASEMENT

10'x20' TOWN OF APEX
UTILITY EASEMENT

100 YEAR FLOODWAY

SCM MAINTENANCE &
ACCESS EASEMENT

20' PRIVATE
STORM WATER
EASEMENT

20' PRIVATE
STORM WATER
EASEMENT

100 YEAR FLOODPLAIN

TOWN OF APEX PUBLIC
UTILITY EASEMENT

FUTURE
GREENWAY
CONNECTION

30' TOWN OF
APEX UTILITY
EASEMENT

30' TOWN OF
APEX UTILITY
EASEMENT &
TEMPORARY
CONSTRUCTION
EASEMENT
DB16143 PG1819

SCM
MAINTENANCE
& ACCESS
EASEMENT

60' TOWN OF
APEX UTILITY
EASEMENT

FUTURE
GREENWAY
CONNECTION

SCM
MAINTENANCE
& ACCESS
EASEMENT

100 YEAR FLOODWAY
100 YEAR FLOODPLAIN

FUTURE
GREENWAY
CONNECTION

EX 40' TOWN OF CARY
UTILITY AND PIPELINE
EASEMENT
DB14353 PG1812

EX 40' TOWN OF CARY
UTILITY AND PIPELINE
EASEMENT
DB14353 PG1812

EX 40' TOWN OF CARY
UTILITY AND PIPELINE
EASEMENT
DB14353 PG1812

EX 40' TOWN OF CARY
UTILITY AND PIPELINE
EASEMENT
DB14343 PG2028

EX 40' TOWN OF CARY
UTILITY AND PIPELINE
EASEMENT
DB14343 PG2044

EX 40' TOWN OF CARY
UTILITY AND PIPELINE
EASEMENT
DB14324 PG866

EX 40' TOWN OF CARY
UTILITY AND PIPELINE
EASEMENT
DB16270 PG1252

30' TOWN OF
GREENWAY
EASEMENT

30' TOWN OF
GREENWAY
EASEMENT

EX 40' TOWN OF CARY
UTILITY AND PIPELINE
EASEMENT
DB16270 PG1252

TOWN OF APEX
STORM DRAINAGE
EASEMENT

TOWN OF APEX
PUBLIC UTILITY
EASEMENT

SCM
MAINTENANCE
& ACCESS
EASEMENT

20' TOWN OF APEX JOINT
WATER & ELECTRIC

EASEMENT

20' TOWN OF APEX JOINT
WATER & ELECTRIC
EASEMENT

AMENITY
AREA

SEA LEVEL PATH

BRYANT P
OND LN

.

LANASSA
LANE

RUSS
ET

 LA
NE

GLO
RIO

SA
 S

TR
EE

T

10' x 70' SIGHT
EASEMENT (TYP.)

10' x 70' SIGHT
EASEMENT (TYP.)

G
R

IN
D

AL
L 

AL
LE

Y

BR
O

W
N

 V
EL

VE
T 

LA
N

E GLORIOSA STREET

HASSE AVENUE

FUTURE HASSE AVENUE

G
R

IN
D

AL
L 

AL
LE

Y

R
IC

H
AR

D
SO

N
 R

O
AD

G
O

LI
AT

H
 L

AN
E

CH
AN

TI
CL

AI
R

CORE BANKS ST.

LIT
TL

E 
GEM

 LA
NE

RIC
HAR

DSO
N R

OAD

RUFF
 A

LL
EY

SEA LEVEL PATH

LO
W

LA
ND S

T.

DR
IV

E

WATER LINE STUB

WATER LINE STUB

170

104

159
160

158

162
163

161

165
166

164

168
169

167

177

171
172

174
173

176
175

181

178
179

180

183

182

114

112
113

110
111

109
108

107
106

105

98

103
102

100
101

95

99

97
96

239

194

205
204

202
201

203

199
200

197
196

198

187

193

195

191
190

192

184

188
189

185
186

247

245
246

244

232

235

237
236

238

242

240

243

241

229
230

234
233

231

273

270
271

272

269

266
267

268

265

262
263

264

261

258
259

260

256
255

257

252

250
251

254
253

249

157
156

155

153
152

154

149
148

147

150
151

145

143

144

146

139

136
137
138

141
140

142

89

93

92

91

90

83

86

87

88

85

84

81

82

80

36

31

32

34

35

33

41

39

38

37

42

40

135

390
391

394

386
387

381
382
383

377
378

226

228
227

213

221

206

214

222

207

215

223

208

216

224

209

217

225

210

218

211

219

212

220

338

346

362

370

339

347

363

371

348

356

364

341

349

357

373

342

358

366

374

343

351

359

367

336

352

368

337

353

361

369

284

285

286

287

288

289

290

291

292

293

294

295

296

297

298

299

300

301

302

303

304

305

283

280
281

282

276
277

278
279

275

333

334

331

328
327
326
325

323

320

315317
316

319 318

306

25

360

372

365

354
355

340

344
345

350

307

379

380

395 397396
393

392
389

388

385

384

376

335

248

94
321

329

330

332

324

322

412

398

404

399

400

401

402

403

411

410

27

375

414

413

409

405

406

408

407

19

18

24

17

23
22

21

20

16

824

R
U

SS
ET

 L
AN

E

W
H

AL
E 

BO
N

E 
AL

LE
Y

309 310
311

312
313

308

20' TOA JOINT WATER &
ELECTRIC EASEMENT

20' TOWN OF APEX
UTILITY EASEMENT
DB16410  PG1732

20' TOWN OF APEX
UTILITY EASEMENT
DB16410  PG1741

20' TOA JOINT
WATER & ELECTRIC
EASEMENT

20' TOWN OF APEX
UTILITY  EASEMENT
DB16391 PG2620

20' TOA JOINT
WATER & ELECTRIC
EASEMENT

274

R/W

R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

587

R/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W R/W

x
x

x
x

x

R/W
R/W

R/W

R/
W

R/
W

R/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W

R/W
R/W R/W

20' TYPE A BUFFER

R/W

R/W

200.0'

200.0'

R/W

R/
W

R/W

R/W

R/W
20' TYPE A BUFFER

301 GLENWOOD AVE. 220

RALEIGH,NC 27603

PHONE: 919-367-8790

FAX: 919-322-0032

License # C-1739

www.cegroupinc.com

NORTH

1" = 200'

NORTH
0 200 400 800

N/F
HWY 64 HOLDINGS, LLC

PIN 0722557264
DB 16137 PG 280

N/F
THE ANS TRUST
PIN 0722641860

DB 15463 PG 1253
N/F

YELLOWBRIDGE CAPITAL, LLC
PIN 0722752304

DB 13508 PG 1177

N/F
WILLIAM & VIRGINIA OTT

PIN 0722621723
DB 6435 PG 617

N/F
 MICHAEL FERRARI
PIN 0722525514
DB 4856 PG 785

N/F
RICHARD & ANNE CASPAR

PIN 0722418856
DB 5497 PG 104N/F

JUDY HACKNEY
PIN 0722411102

DB - PG -

N/F
LENNAR CAROLINAS, LLC

PIN 0722219780
DB 16720 PG 953

N/F
STALEY & AARON SMITH

PIN 0722344615
DB 12874 PG 607

N/F
ANDREW CLARK &

STALEY SMITH
PIN 0722358117

DB 16287 PG 1689

N/F
D&S PROPERTIES, LLC

PIN 0722359614
DB 13187 PG 2577

N/F
JON & DENA WILKINS

PIN 0722368361
DB 15644 PG 2749

N/F
COC PROPERTIES INC.

PIN 0722463330
DB 7964 PG 200

N/F
JEANNE MALLIE, LLC

PIN 0722465567
DB 14657 PG 827

N/F
WESTFORD WEH, LP

PIN 0722567561
DB 16628 PG 2434

N/F
ABBINGTON COMMUNITY, INC

PIN 0722732444
DB 13262 PG 1338

N/F
LENNAR CAROLINAS, LLC

PIN 0722320646
DB 16720 PG 939

N/F
LENNAR CAROLINAS, LLC

PIN 0722334694
DB 16720 PG 923

N/F
WOODRIDGE COMMUNITY

ASSOCIATION INC.
PIN 0722629774
DB 8562 PG 1331

EXISTING EXHIBIT INFORMATION
PROVIDED BY WITHERS RAVENEL

SWEETWATER
EXISTING

CONDITIONS
APEX, NORTH CAROLINA

JANUARY 2, 2018
(REVISED SEPTEMBER 18, 2018)

(REVISED FEBRUARY 1, 2022)
(REVISED MARCH 11, 2022)

1
SHEET NO.

INTERIOR PROPERTY
OWNERS WITH PIN #

N/F
HWY 64 HOLDINGS, LLC

PIN 0722553229
DB 16137 PG 280

N/F
THE ANS TRUST
PIN 0722641245

DB 15463 PG 1253

N/F
64 WEST BUSINESS

PARK CONDOS
PIN 0722555708
DB 8609 PG 1464

N/F
HWY 64 HOLDINGS, LLC

PIN 0722558853
DB 16137 PG 280

GENERAL NOTES:
1. BOUNDARY, TOPOGRAPHIC, AND UTILITY INFORMATION BASED ON ACTUAL

FIELD SURVEY AND AVAILABLE WAKE COUNTY G.I.S. MAPPING
2. ADJACENT PROPERTY OWNERSHIP AND ZONING INFORMATION FROM WAKE

COUNTY G.I.S.
3. THIS PROPERTY LIES WITHIN THE JORDAN LAKE WATERSHED
4. WETLANDS DELINEATION PENDING.
5. 100-YEAR FLOODPLAIN PER FEMA FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP

3720072200J, DATED MAY 2, 2006.
6. WETLAND BUFFER CALLS BY WITHERS & RAVENEL, APEX PROJECT ID 14-014.

FEMA FLOODPLAIN - 10.78 AC

FEMA FLOODWAY - 11.80 AC

SWEETWATER LIGHTBRIDGE, LLC
0722544404

KEP APEX, LLC
0722544876, 0722550034

KEPE1 HOLDINGS, LLC
0722453275, 0722456374, 0722458740

- Page 156 -



AI
R

 P
AR

K 
D

R
IV

E

G
O

O
D

W
IN

R
O

AD (D.B. 5731, PG. 322)
U.S. HIGHWAY 64

(200' PUBLIC R/W)

PO
ULT

NEY
 A

LL
EYBR

OW
N V

EL
VE

T 
LA

NE

BR
O

W
N

 V
EL

VE
T 

LA
N

E

GLORIOSA STREET

HASSE AVENUE

FUTURE HASSE AVENUE

G
R

IN
D

AL
L 

AL
LE

Y

JE
NKS

 R
D.

20
' T

YP
E 

A 
BU

FF
ER

10
'x7

0' 
SIG

HT
 EA

SE
ME

NT

10'
x70

' SIGHT EASEMENT

30
' T

YP
E E

 BU
FF

ER

30
' T

YP
E E

 BU
FF

ER

30
' T

YP
E 

E 
BU

FF
ER

3.56'
3.56'

R
IC

H
AR

D
SO

N
 R

O
AD

IPF

LONG: W78.9054
LAT: N35.7454

CASEMENT END

IPF

G
O

LI
AT

H
 L

AN
E

CORE BANKS ST.

LIT
TL

E 
GEM

 LA
NE

RIC
HAR

DSO
N R

OAD

 8" GV

OUTFALL D

RUFF
 A

LL
EY

LO
W

LA
ND S

T.

LONG: W78.9052
LAT: N35.7454

CASEMENT END

BRYANT P
OND LN

.

LANASSA
LANE

30
' T

YP
E 

E 
BU

FF
ER

SCM

SCM

SCM

RUSS
ET

 LA
NE

GLO
RIO

SA
 S

TR
EE

T

SEA LEVEL PATH

JE
NK

S 
RD

FUTURE GREENWAY CONNECTION

50' BUFFER W/TYPE A BUFFER IN FIRST 20'
ADJACENT TO PROPERTY LINE

50' BUFFER W/TYPE A BUFFER IN FIRST 20'
ADJACENT TO PROPERTY LINE

FUTURE
GREENWAY
CONNECTION

FUTURE
GREENWAY
CONNECTION

FUTURE
GREENWAY
CONNECTION

CH
AN

TI
CL

AI
R

DR
IV

E

SCM

SCM

R/W

R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

587

R/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W R/W

x
x

x
x

x

R/W
R/W

R/W

R/
W

R/
W

R/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W

R/W
R/W R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/
W

R/W

R/W

R/W

PLANNED
ACCESS

COLLECTOR
STREET

AMENITY
AREA

SINGLE FAMILY
TYPE A, B, & C

LOTS

COLLECTOR
STREET

TOWNHOME

RCA #4

RCA #1

100-YEAR
FLOODPLAIN (TYP.)

100-YEAR
FLOODWAY (TYP.)

RCA #3

RCA #2 (TYP.)

PLANNED
ACCESS

PLANNED
ACCESS

PLANNED
ACCESS

20' TYPE B
BUFFER

10' TYPE B
BUFFER

SINGLE FAMILY
TYPE D LOTS

NON-RESIDENTIAL
MIXED USE
AREA (TYP.)

NON-RESIDENTIAL
MIXED USE
AREA (TYP.)

50' TYPE A
BUFFER
(TYP.)

ZERO PERIMETER
BUFFER

ZO
NE

 2
 R

IP
AR

IA
N 

BU
FF

ER

ZO
NE

 1
 R

IP
AR

IA
N 

BU
FF

ER
ZO

NE
 1

 R
IP

AR
IA

N 
BU

FF
ER

ZO
NE

 2
 R

IP
AR

IA
N 

BU
FF

ER

ZONE 3 RIPARIAN BUFFER

ZONE 2 RIPARIAN BUFFER

ZONE 1 RIPARIAN BUFFER

ZONE 1 RIPARIAN BUFFER
ZONE 2 RIPARIAN BUFFER

ZONE 3 RIPARIAN BUFFER

ZONE 3 RIPARIAN BUFFER
ZONE 2 RIPARIAN BUFFER

ZONE 2 RIPARIAN BUFFER

RESIDENTIAL
AREA

10' TYPE
A BUFFER

PLANNED
ACCESS

PLANNED
ACCESS

20' TYPE
A BUFFER

20' TYPE
A BUFFER

20' TYPE
A BUFFER

50' TYPE A
BUFFER (TYP.)

30' TYPE 'E'
BUFFER

301 GLENWOOD AVE. 220

RALEIGH,NC 27603

PHONE: 919-367-8790

FAX: 919-322-0032

License # C-1739

www.cegroupinc.com

NORTH

1" = 200'

NORTH
0 200 400 800EXISTING EXHIBIT INFORMATION

PROVIDED BY WITHERS RAVENEL

SWEETWATER
PRELIMINARY
LAYOUT PLAN

APEX, NORTH CAROLINA
JANUARY 2, 2018

(REVISED SEPTEMBER 18, 2018)
(REVISED FEBRUARY 1, 2022)

(REVISED MARCH 11, 2022)

2
SHEET NO.

FUTURE TOWN OF
APEX GREENWAY

RCA - (CURRENT)

MIXED USE

SITE LAYOUT NOTES:
1. ALL ELEMENTS SHOWN ARE CONCEPTUAL. EXACT LOCATION WILL BE

DETERMINED AT PRELIMINARY SUBDIVISION PLAN REVIEW AND APPROVAL.
2. AN ANNEXATION PETITION SHALL BE SUBMITTED PRIOR TO THE SIGNING OF

CONSTRUCTION PLANS.
3. INTERNAL PUBLIC STREETS SHALL BE DEDICATED TO THE TOWN OF APEX.

ROAD STUB-OUTS SHALL BE PROVIDED PER TOWN OF APEX REQUIREMENTS.
4. GREENWAYS ARE LOCATED WITHIN THE SUBJECT PROPERTY PER THE TOWN

OF APEX OPEN SPACE GREENWAY MAP. SIDEWALKS SHALL BE REQUIRED
AND CONSTRUCTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH UDO SECTION 7.5.4

5. RESOURCE CONSERVATION AREAS (RCA) SHALL BE PLATTED AT FINAL
SUBDIVISION APPROVAL.

6. PROTECTION FENCING MUST BE PLACED AWAY FROM ANY SAVED TREE
1-FOOT FOR EACH INCH OF TREE CALIPER. PROTECTION FENCING MUST BE
PLACED AT LEAST 10 FEET AWAY FROM ANY OTHER DESIGNATED RESOURCE
CONSERVATION AREA, SUCH AS BUT NOT LIMITED TO HISTORIC BUILDINGS
AND STRUCTURES, WETLANDS, AND PONDS. PROTECTION FENCING MUST BE
PLACED ALONG THE OUTSIDE LINE OF THE 100-YEAR FLOODPLAIN, AND THE
OUTSIDE EDGE OF ANY RIPARIAN BUFFER. ADDITIONAL PROTECTION
FENCING MAY BE REQUIRED IN OTHER LOCATIONS CLOSE TO CONSTRUCTION
ACTIVITY WHERE IT IS DEEMED NECESSARY BY THE ZONING ENFORCEMENT
OFFICER; SUCH AREAS MAY INCLUDE BUT ARE NOT LIMITED TO COMMON
PROPERTY LINES OR NEAR PUBLIC AREAS (SIDEWALKS, ETC.).

7. SITE ELEMENTS REQUIRED TO SATISFY RECREATIONAL REQUIREMENTS
SUCH AS BUT NOT LIMITED TO PLAYFIELDS AND GREENWAY TRAILS AND
ITEMS TYPICALLY ASSOCIATED WITH THEM (BENCHES, TRASH CONTAINERS,
SIGNS, ETC.) MUST MEET ANY APPLICABLE STANDARDS FOUND IN THE TOWN
OF APEX STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS AND CONSTRUCTION DETAILS AND THE
REQUIREMENTS OF THE TOWN OF APEX PARKS AND RECREATION
DEPARTMENT.

8. ALL REQUIRED SITES ELEMENTS SHOWN WITHIN A PARTICULAR PHASE MUST
BE INSTALLED BEFORE A FINAL CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY MAY BE ISSUED
FOR ANY BUILDING WITHIN THE PHASE.

9. NO SIGNS ARE APPROVED AS PART OF THE PUD PLAN APPROVAL. A
SEPARATE SIGN PERMIT MUST BE OBTAINED. MULTIPLE USE LOTS,
NON-RESIDENTIAL SUBDIVISIONS, AND MULTIPLE TENANT LOTS MUST SUBMIT
A MASTER SIGN PLAN FOR APPROVAL.

PUD SITE SUMMARY
RESIDENTIAL

-ACREAGE ±119.24 AC
-UNITS 410 UNITS

NON-RESIDENTIAL
-ACREAGE ±45.47 AC
-APARTMENTS 230 UNITS

PUD BOUNDARY

POTENTIAL ACCESS

SCM(s)

RCA AREAS (16CZ21, 17CZ21, 18CZ01) REQUIRED:
TOTAL TRACT(S) AREA: 164.79 AC

AREA OF DEVELOPMENT: 164.79 AC
- PERCENTAGES BELOW ARE OF DEVELOPED AREA RCA BUFFERS

NON-RESIDENTIAL AREA (PHASES 9 & 10 ) 45.65 AC (27.70%)
RCA1 STREAM BUFFERS 0.00 AC
RCA2 PERIMETER BUFFERS 1.90 AC
RCA3 OTHER BUFFERS (TRACT PIN 0722730032) 0.00 AC
RCA4 STREET BUFFERS (RICHARDSON RD) 1.70 AC

TOTAL RCA AREA = 3.60 AC (2.18%)

RESIDENTIAL AREA (PHASES 1-8) 106.38 AC (64.55%)
RCA1 STREAM BUFFERS 26.41 AC
RCA2 PERIMETER BUFFERS 1.34 AC
RCA4 STREET BUFFERS (RICHARDSON RD) 1.88 AC

TOTAL RCA AREA = 29.63 AC (17.98%)

DEDICATED VACANT TRACT (NOT PART OF DEVELOPED AREA)
RCA3 OTHER BUFFERS (TRACT PIN 0722730032) 13.20 AC

TOTAL RCA AREA: 46.43 AC
RCA AREA AS A PERCENTAGE OF DEVELOPED AREA: 28.18%

RESIDENTIAL

- Page 157 -



AI
R

 P
AR

K 
D

R
IV

E

G
O

O
D

W
IN

R
O

AD (D.B. 5731, PG. 322)
U.S. HIGHWAY 64

(200' PUBLIC R/W)

JE
NKS

 R
D.

20
' T

YP
E 

A 
BU

FF
ER

10
'x7

0' 
SIG

HT
 EA

SE
ME

NT

10'
x70

' SIGHT EASEMENT

30
' T

YP
E E

 BU
FF

ER

30
' T

YP
E E

 BU
FF

ER

30
' T

YP
E 

E 
BU

FF
ER

3.56'
3.56'

3+
00

2+00
1+00

0+00

2+15
2+00

1+00

0+00

IPF

LONG: W78.9054
LAT: N35.7454

CASEMENT END

IPF

.

 8" GV

OUTFALL D

LONG: W78.9052
LAT: N35.7454

CASEMENT END

50' COLONIAL PIPELINE
GAS EASEMENT

DB1563 PG389

20.0'

20' TOWN OF APEX
UTILITY  EASEMENT
DB16410 PG1710

50' CARDINAL PIPELINE
GAS EASEMENT

DB8233PG2742

50' CARDINAL PIPELINE
GAS EASEMENT
DB8305PG1907

20' TOWN OF APEX
UTILITY  EASEMENT
DB16391 PG2592

20' TOWN OF APEX
UTILITY  EASEMENT
DB16391 PG2583

15
' T

OA O
VE

RHEA
D UTIL

ITY
 EA

SE
MEN

T

20.0'

20.0'

20.0'

30
' T

YP
E 

E 
BU

FF
ER

RESOURCE
CONSERVATION

AREA
LOT 3

18.37 AC
800,206 SF

SCM

SCM

SCM

20' PRIVATE STORM
WATER EASEMENT

TOWN OF APEX STORM
DRAINAGE EASEMENT

TOWN OF APEX STORM
DRAINAGE EASEMENT

JE
NK

S 
RD

20' TOWN OF
APEX UTILITY
EASEMENT

TOWN OF APEX
STORM DRAINAGE
EASEMENT

TOWN OF
APEX STORM
DRAINAGE
EASEMENT

TOWN OF APEX
STORM DRAINAGE
EASEMENT

20' PRIVATE STORM
WATER EASEMENT

TOWN OF APEX STORM
DRAINAGE EASEMENT

TOWN OF APEX STORM
DRAINAGE EASEMENT

TOWN OF APEX STORM
DRAINAGE EASEMENT

TOWN OF APEX STORM
DRAINAGE EASEMENT

TOWN OF
APEX STORM
DRAINAGE
EASEMENT

TOWN OF
APEX STORM
DRAINAGE
EASEMENT

TOWN OF APEX
STORM DRAINAGE
EASEMENT

TOWN OF
APEX STORM
DRAINAGE
EASEMENT

SEA LEVEL

PO
ULT

NEY
 A

LL
EY

BR
OW

N V
EL

VE
T 

LA
NE

PATH
20' TOWN OF
APEX UTILITY
EASEMENT

20' TOWN OF APEX
UTILITY EASEMENT

20' TOWN OF
APEX UTILITY
EASEMENT

W
HAL

E 
BO

NE 
AL

LE
Y

40' TOWN OF APEX UTILITY AND
GREENWAY EASEMENT

FUTURE GREENWAY CONNECTION

50' BUFFER W/TYPE A BUFFER IN FIRST 20'
ADJACENT TO PROPERTY LINE

50' BUFFER W/TYPE A BUFFER IN FIRST 20'
ADJACENT TO PROPERTY LINE

EX 40' TOWN OF CARY
UTILITY AND PIPELINE
EASEMENT
DB14453 PG1459

TOWN OF APEX PUBLIC
UTILITY EASEMENT

TOWN OF APEX PUBLIC
UTILITY EASEMENT

TOWN OF APEX
PUBLIC UTILITY
EASEMENT

10' x 20' TOWN OF APEX
UTILITY EASEMENT

10' DRY UTILITY EASEMENT

20' PRIVATE STORM
WATER EASEMENT

20' PRIVATE DRAINAGE
EASEMENT

SCM MAINTENANCE &
ACCESS EASEMENT

TOWN OF APEX STORM
DRAINAGE EASEMENT

10' DRY UTILITY EASEMENT

10' DRY UTILITY EASEMENT

10' DRY UTILITY EASEMENT

TOWN OF APEX STORM
DRAINAGE EASEMENT

10' DRY UTILITY
EASEMENT

10' DRY UTILITY
EASEMENT

TOWN OF APEX STORM
DRAINAGE EASEMENT

10'x20' TOWN OF APEX
UTILITY EASEMENT

100 YEAR FLOODWAY

SCM MAINTENANCE &
ACCESS EASEMENT

20' PRIVATE
STORM WATER
EASEMENT

20' PRIVATE
STORM WATER
EASEMENT

100 YEAR FLOODPLAIN

TOWN OF APEX PUBLIC
UTILITY EASEMENT

FUTURE
GREENWAY
CONNECTION

30' TOWN OF
APEX UTILITY
EASEMENT

30' TOWN OF
APEX UTILITY
EASEMENT &
TEMPORARY
CONSTRUCTION
EASEMENT
DB16143 PG1819

SCM
MAINTENANCE
& ACCESS
EASEMENT

60' TOWN OF
APEX UTILITY
EASEMENT

FUTURE
GREENWAY
CONNECTION

SCM
MAINTENANCE
& ACCESS
EASEMENT

100 YEAR FLOODWAY
100 YEAR FLOODPLAIN

FUTURE
GREENWAY
CONNECTION

EX 40' TOWN OF CARY
UTILITY AND PIPELINE
EASEMENT
DB14353 PG1812

EX 40' TOWN OF CARY
UTILITY AND PIPELINE
EASEMENT
DB14353 PG1812

EX 40' TOWN OF CARY
UTILITY AND PIPELINE
EASEMENT
DB14353 PG1812

EX 40' TOWN OF CARY
UTILITY AND PIPELINE
EASEMENT
DB14343 PG2028

EX 40' TOWN OF CARY
UTILITY AND PIPELINE
EASEMENT
DB14343 PG2044

EX 40' TOWN OF CARY
UTILITY AND PIPELINE
EASEMENT
DB14324 PG866

EX 40' TOWN OF CARY
UTILITY AND PIPELINE
EASEMENT
DB16270 PG1252

30' TOWN OF
GREENWAY
EASEMENT

30' TOWN OF
GREENWAY
EASEMENT

EX 40' TOWN OF CARY
UTILITY AND PIPELINE
EASEMENT
DB16270 PG1252

TOWN OF APEX
STORM DRAINAGE
EASEMENT

TOWN OF APEX
PUBLIC UTILITY
EASEMENT

SCM
MAINTENANCE
& ACCESS
EASEMENT

20' TOWN OF APEX JOINT
WATER & ELECTRIC

EASEMENT

20' TOWN OF APEX JOINT
WATER & ELECTRIC
EASEMENT

AMENITY
AREA

SEA LEVEL PATH

BRYANT P
OND LN

.

LANASSA
LANE

RUSS
ET

 LA
NE

GLO
RIO

SA
 S

TR
EE

T

10' x 70' SIGHT
EASEMENT (TYP.)

10' x 70' SIGHT
EASEMENT (TYP.)

G
R

IN
D

AL
L 

AL
LE

Y

BR
O

W
N

 V
EL

VE
T 

LA
N

E GLORIOSA STREET

HASSE AVENUE

FUTURE HASSE AVENUE

G
R

IN
D

AL
L 

AL
LE

Y

R
IC

H
AR

D
SO

N
 R

O
AD

G
O

LI
AT

H
 L

AN
E

CH
AN

TI
CL

AI
R

CORE BANKS ST.
LIT

TL
E 

GEM
 LA

NE

RIC
HAR

DSO
N R

OAD

RUFF
 A

LL
EY

SEA LEVEL PATH

LO
W

LA
ND S

T.

DR
IV

E

WATER LINE STUB

WATER LINE STUB

R
U

SS
ET

 L
AN

E

W
H

AL
E 

BO
N

E 
AL

LE
Y

20' TOA JOINT WATER &
ELECTRIC EASEMENT

20' TOWN OF APEX
UTILITY EASEMENT
DB16410  PG1732

20' TOWN OF APEX
UTILITY EASEMENT
DB16410  PG1741

20' TOA JOINT
WATER & ELECTRIC
EASEMENT

20' TOWN OF APEX
UTILITY  EASEMENT
DB16391 PG2620

20' TOA JOINT
WATER & ELECTRIC
EASEMENT

SCM

SCM

R/W

R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

587

R/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W R/W

x
x

x
x

x

R/W
R/W

R/W

R/
W

R/
W

R/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W

R/W
R/W R/W

20' TYPE A BUFFER

R/W

R/W

200.0'

200.0'

R/W

R/
W

R/W

R/W

R/W
20' TYPE A BUFFER

301 GLENWOOD AVE. 220

RALEIGH,NC 27603

PHONE: 919-367-8790

FAX: 919-322-0032

License # C-1739

www.cegroupinc.com

NORTH

1" = 200'

NORTH
0 200 400 800

EXISTING EXHIBIT INFORMATION
PROVIDED BY WITHERS RAVENEL

SWEETWATER
PRELIMINARY UTILITY

PLAN
APEX, NORTH CAROLINA

JANUARY 2, 2018
(REVISED SEPTEMBER 18, 2018)

(REVISED FEBRUARY 1, 2022)
(REVISED MARCH 11, 2022)

3
SHEET NO.

FUTURE TOWN OF
APEX GREENWAY

RCA - (CURRENT)

UTILITY NOTES:
1. WATER AND SEWER SERVICE WILL BE OWNED BY THE TOWN OF APEX.

2. UTILITY SIZES AND LAYOUT FOR WATER AND SEWER IS CONCEPTUAL. FINAL
DESIGN WILL BE DETERMINED IN CONJUNCTION WITH THE OVERALL
DEVELOPMENT PLAN AND DESIGNED PER THE TOWN OF APEX STANDARDS AND
SPECIFICATIONS.

3. FIRE HYDRANTS, VALVES, SERVICES, METERS, AND APPURTENANCES SHALL BE
DESIGNED PER THE TOWN OF APEX CONSTRUCTIONS SPECIFICATIONS AND
WILL BE SHOWN ON SITE CONSTRUCTION PLANS DURING PERMIT PHASE.

4. WATER SERVICES WILL BE STUBBED AT THE PROPERTY LINE WITH HWY 64,
WATER MAINS WILL BE INTERCONNECTED VIA THE FUTURE INTERNAL STREET
NETWORK FOR THE DEVELOPMENT.

5. SANITARY SEWER SERVICE WILL BE STUBBED FROM THE ON-SITE EXISTING
SANITARY SEWER MAIN AND WILL BE DISTRIBUTED THROUGHOUT THE
DEVELOPMENT BASED ON THE FINAL UTILITY PLAN FOR THE PROJECT.

6. CONTACT RODNEY SMITH, TOWN OF APEX ELECTRIC UTILITIES DIVISION, AT
(919) 362-8166 FOR ELECTRIC SERVICE (TEMPORARY AND PERMANENT).

7. ALL UTILITY EASEMENTS SHALL BE PROVIDED AS NECESSARY. DELINEATION
WILL BE DETERMINED WITH FINAL DESIGN AT SITE PLAN STAGE.

8. THE TOWN OF CARY WILL REVIEW AND APPROVE THE CONSTRUCTION PLANS
FOR ANY NEW POINT OF CONNECTION TO THE WEST REEDY BRANCH GRAVITY
SEWER OUTFALL.

- Page 158 -



 | Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 for consideration by the Apex Town Council 

 

 Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

 Meeting Date: July 26, 2022 

Item Details 

Presenter(s): Allen Coleman, Town Clerk 

Department(s): Town Clerk’s Office 

Requested Motion 

Motion to approve the Apex Tax Report dated June 08, 2022. 

Approval Recommended? 

Yes 

Item Details 

At the regular meeting held on July 11, 2022, the Wake County Board of Commissioners approved the Apex 

Tax Report dated June 08, 2022. 

 

Attachments 

 Tax Report 

 

- Page 159 -



- Page 160 -



- Page 161 -



- Page 162 -



 | Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 for consideration by the Apex Town Council 

 

 Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

 Meeting Date: July 26, 2022 

Item Details 

Presenter(s): Michael Deaton, P.E., Director 

Department(s): Water Resources 

Requested Motion 

Motion to approve a Fee-in-Lieu (FIL) in the amount of $64,777.75 for a 12-inch waterline located along the 

US64 frontage of the proposed Triangle Home Services site.   

 

Approval Recommended? 

Yes 

Item Details 

The FIL is being sought instead of actually installing the water main as part of the development project.  At 

this time, the adjacent parcels to this development do not have available water for connection.  The Legacy 

project, which is next to this project on the west, will bring water from Olive Chapel Road and up to US64 

but their schedule is behind Triangle Home Services.  Once Legacy is constructed, the Town can use the FIL 

funds to build the waterline.  The Triangle Home Services site will utilize an on-site well for their water 

needs. 

 

 

Attachments 

 FIL estimate 
 

 

- Page 163 -



919.439.0100 p 
jroach@peakengineeringdesign.com 

1125 Apex Peakway ‖ Apex, NC 27502 
Triangle Home Services – Apex, NC www.PeakEngineeringDesign.com 

July 5, 2022 

Mr. James Gregg 
Town of Apex Engineering 
P.O. Box 250 
Apex, NC 27502 
james.gregg@apexnc.org 

Re: Triangle Home Services – Waterline Fee-in-Lieu 
Apex, NC 

Per Town of Apex standards, the above project requires a 12” waterline to be extended across the 
property.  For various reasons, the project requests a fee-in-lieu for the amount associated with 
the installation of said waterline.  Attached is an engineer’s estimate for construction of 
the 12” waterline.  Unit prices taken from the Town of Apex Bond spreadsheet.   

Sincerely, 

Daniel H. Woods, P.E. 
Peak Engineering & Design, PLLC 

enclosures 

Daniel H. 
Woods

Digitally signed by 
Daniel H. Woods 
Date: 2022.07.05 
11:11:07 -04'00'

- Page 164 -

mailto:jroach@peakengineeringdesign.com
mailto:james.gregg@apexnc.org


Triangle Home Services Waterline Fee-in-Lieu

12" Waterline Estimate
Item Unit Cost Quantity Total
Mobilization $5,000.00 /LS 1 LS $5,000.00
Erosion Control $1,000.00 /LS 1 LS $1,000.00
12" DIP Waterline $52.00 /LF 470 LF $24,440.00
12" Waterline Bends $500.00 /SY 5 SY $2,500.00
12" Gate Valves $2,500.00 /SY 2 SY $5,000.00
Blow off Assembly $3,500.00 /SY 1 SY $3,500.00
Fire Hydrant Assembly $5,500.00 /CY 1 CY $5,500.00
2" Surface Asphalt Repair $12.33 /SY 115 SY $1,417.95
2.5" Intermediat Asphalt Repair $15.45 /SY 115 SY $1,776.75
8" ABC Pavment Repair $12.50 /LF 115 SY $1,437.50
24" Curb and Gutter $25.00 /SY 10 $250.00

Total $51,822.20

25% Adjustment Factor $12,955.55

12" Final Estimate $64,777.75

8" Waterline Estimate
Item Unit Cost Quantity Total
Mobilization $5,000.00 /LS 1 LS $5,000.00
Erosion Control $1,000.00 /LS 1 LS $1,000.00
8" DIP Waterline $34.00 /LF 470 LF $15,980.00
8" Waterline Bends $300.00 /EA 5 EA $1,500.00
8" Gate Valves $1,600.00 /EA 2 EA $3,200.00
Blow off Assembly $3,500.00 /EA 1 EA $3,500.00
Fire Hydrant Assembly $5,500.00 /EA 1 EA $5,500.00
2" Surface Asphalt Repair $12.33 /SY 115 SY $1,417.95
2.5" Intermediate Repair $15.45 /SY 115 SY $1,776.75
8" Stove Pavment Repair $12.50 /LF 115 SY $1,437.50
24" Curb and Gutter $25.00 /SY 10 $250.00

Total $40,562.20

25% Adjustment Factor $10,140.55

8" Final Estimate $50,702.75

Final Fee-in-Lieu Estimate for 8" waterline Installation $50,702.75

*Unit Prices taken from Apex Bond Worksheet

- Page 165 -

jgregg
Rectangle



 | Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 for consideration by the Apex Town Council 

 

 Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

 Meeting Date: July 26, 2022 

Item Details 

Presenter(s): Dianne Khin, Director of Planning and Community Development 

Department(s): Planning and Community Development 

Requested Motion 

Motion to approve the Statement of the Apex Town Council pursuant to G.S. 160D-605(a) addressing action 

on the Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) Amendments of June 28, 2022. 

Approval Recommended? 

The Planning and Community Development Department recommends approval. 

Item Details 

 

Attachments 

 Statement of Town Council 

 

- Page 166 -



 

STATEMENT OF THE APEX TOWN COUNCIL PURSUANT TO G.S. 160D-605(a) ADDRESSING ACTION ON THE 
UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE (UDO) AMENDMENTS OF JUNE 28, 2022 
 

 Pursuant to G.S. §160D-601 and Sec. 2.2.11.E of the Unified Development Ordinance, the Director of 
Planning and Community Development for the Town of Apex, Dianne Khin, caused proper notice to be given 
(by publication and posting), of a public hearing on UDO Amendments before the Town Council on the 3rd 
day of June 2022. 
 

 The Apex Town Council held a public hearing on the 28th day of June 2022. Amanda Bunce, Current 
Planning Manager presented the Planning Board's vote to recommend approval by a vote of 6-0 at the public 
hearing. 
 

 All persons who desired to present information relevant to the UDO Amendments and who were 
residents of Apex or its extraterritorial jurisdiction were allowed to present evidence at the public hearing 
before the Apex Town Council. No one who wanted to speak was turned away. 
 

 The Town Council on the 28th day of June 2022 by a vote of 5 to 0, approved the Ordinance for UDO 
Amendments.  
 

The Apex Town Council finds from information and testimony provided at the public hearing that the 
approval of the various UDO Amendments of June 28, 2022 are consistent with the Advance Apex: The 2045 
Plan and reasonable and in the public interest for the following reason(s): 

1. The amendments to UDO Sec. 8.1.6 Retaining Structures provide standards for retaining structures 
associated with walk-out basements. 

2. The amendments to UDO Table 5.2.2.B.4 Permitted Encroachments into Required Setbacks remove 
HVAC and mechanical units from the appurtenances section and allows them to be placed anywhere 
in the side yard or rear yard to be consistent with state building code provisions. 

3. The amendments to UDO Secs. 4.3.2.N Use Classifications, Public and Civic Uses; 4.3.5.G Use 
Classifications, Retail Sales and Service; and 4.4.5.G Supplemental Standards, Commercial Uses, Retail 
Sales and Service allow “pet crematory” as an accessory use in “Kennel”, “Pet services”, and 
“Veterinary Clinic or Hospital”. 

4. The amendments to UDO Sec. 4.5.6.C Accessory Apartment allow accessory apartments outside of 
the Small Town Character Overly District to be up to 40% of the heated square footage of the principal 
single-family dwelling. 

5. The amendment to UDO Table 8.3-1: Off-Street Parking Schedule “A” removes “outdoor” from the 
use “Kennel, outdoor” in order to be consistent with the “Kennel” use listed in Article 4: Use 
Regulations. 

6. The amendments to UDO Sec. 8.3.6 Parking Lot Design Standards specify when wheel stops are 
required in parking lots and provide an exception to the standard concrete wheel stop on historic 
properties with gravel parking. 

 

______________________________________ 
Jacques K. Gilbert 
Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 
___________________________________ 
Allen Coleman, CMC, NCCCC 
Town Clerk 

 
_________________________ 
Date 

- Page 167 -



 | Agenda Item | cover sheet 
 for consideration by the Apex Town Council 

 

 Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

 Meeting Date: July 26, 2022 

Item Details 

Presenter(s): Taylor Wray, Special Events Coordinator  

Department(s): Parks, Recreation and Cultural Resources 

Requested Motion 

Motion to schedule a public hearing, per the Town’s Public Art Policy, for Tuesday, August 9, 2022, and 

consider the unity mural design created by artist, Loren Pease, at that time.  

 

Approval Recommended? 

Yes 

Item Details 

At their June 8, 2021 meeting, the Town Council approved the concept of a Unity Mural. On October 12, 

2021, the location of the side retention wall at the Apex Police Station was approved. This design has been 

reviewed by the Unity Mural subcommittee and approved by the Public Art Committee on June 27, 2022.  

That subcommittee consisted of representation from the Apex Police Department, Apex High School’s 

Student Equity Team, and several others. Per the guidelines of the Town’s Public Art Plan, the Public Art 

Committee is now ready to make a recommendation to the Town Council regarding the proposed Unity 

Mural design. 

 

 

Attachments 

• Unity Mural Design July 2022 
 



- Page 169 -



Unity Mural
Apex Public Art Committee
July 2022

- Page 170 -



Location 

• 205 Saunders Street 
• Wall to the left of the Apex Police Department building

- Page 171 -



Proposed Design

• Created by artist, Loren Pease

- Page 172 -



 | Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 for consideration by the Apex Town Council 

 

 Item Type: PRESENTATION 

 Meeting Date: July 26, 2022 

Item Details 

Presenter(s): Councilmember Terry Mahaffey, Sponsor  

Stephanie Mitchell of the Apex Public School Foundation 

Department(s): Apex Town Council and Apex Public School Foundation 

Requested Motion 

Presentation of the Peak S.T.A.R. Award – two recipients  

Approval Recommended? 

N/A 

Item Details 

The Apex Town Council is pleased to work in partnership with the Apex Public School Foundation (APSF) to 

present the Peak S.T.A.R. Award to a deserving Apex school staff member, teacher, or someone in school 

administration.  This award will be presented quarterly by the Apex Town Council and the APSF. 

 

Attachments 

 N/A 

 

- Page 173 -



 | Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 for consideration by the Apex Town Council 

 

 Item Type: PRESENTATION 

 Meeting Date: July 26,2022 

Item Details 

Presenter(s): Jacques K. Gilbert, Mayor  

Councilmember Ed D. Gray (sponsor)  

Department(s): Governing Body  

Requested Motion 

Motion to approve a proclamation declaring Friday, July 29, 2022 as "Mike Sayers Appreciation Day" for his 

many years of extraordinary public service to the community and congratulate him on his retirement from the 

Apex American Legion Post 124. 

Approval Recommended? 

Yes 

Item Details 

Mike Sayers has courageously served as the Commander for Apex American Legion Post 124 for 13 years 

and worked tirelessly for military veterans across our community. Mr. Sayers was instrumental in the 

completion of the Military Services Memorial in downtown Apex and has single handedly developed many 

programs and activities to increase the visibility of the Apex American Legion.  Mr. Sayers has been a 

phenomenal civic leader and outstanding contributor to the Town who will be greatly missed upon his 

retirement.  

 

Attachments 

 Proclamation  

 

- Page 174 -



Jacques K. Gilbert, Mayor 

 

 
“The Peak of Good Living”  

TOWN OF ANPOERTXH CAROLINA 
 
 

Proclamation 
  Mike Sayers Appreciation Day 

from the Office of the Mayor 
 
 

WHEREAS, The National American Legion was chartered by Congress in 1919 and 
continues to serve as the nation’s largest military advocacy group focusing on service to 
veterans, servicemembers, and communities; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Apex American Legion Post 124 was officially formed in 1995 and 

has consistently supported the community with Memorial, Patriots, and Veterans Day 
services; and  

 
WHEREAS, Post 124 provides support for local veterans and families as well as 

advancing the principle of Americanism though an oratorical contest and sponsorship of 
high school students to Boys State and Girls State; and 

 
WHEREAS, Mike Sayers has courageously served as the Commander for Apex 

American Legion Post 124 for 13 years and worked tirelessly for military veterans across 
our community; and  

 
WHEREAS, Mr. Sayers was instrumental in the completion of the Military Services 

Memorial in downtown Apex and has single handedly developed many programs and 
activities to increase the visibility of the Apex American Legion; and 

 
WHEREAS, Mr. Sayers has been a phenomenal civic leader and outstanding 

contributor to the Town who will be greatly missed upon his retirement; and  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Jacques K. Gilbert, Mayor of the Town of Apex, do hereby 
recognize Mike Sayers for his many years of extraordinary public service and proclaim 
Friday, July 29, 2022 as “Mike Sayers Appreciation Day”.  

 
 

I hereby set my hand and have caused the Seal of the  
Town of Apex, North Carolina, to be affixed. 

This the 26th day of July 2022. 



 | Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 for consideration by the Apex Town Council 

 

 Item Type: PUBLIC HEARING 

 Meeting Date: July 26, 2022 

Item Details 

Presenter(s): Joanna Helms, Director 

Department(s): Economic Development 

Requested Motion 

Public Hearing and possible motion to approve an Economic Development Agreement with Mills Chatham 

Development Group LLC (MCDG) and to authorize the Town Manager to execute the same. 

Approval Recommended? 

Yes  

Item Details 

MCDG and its affiliates propose to commercially develop a portion of a site near the intersection of US 

Highway 64 and NC Highway 751 in Chatham County. The site has previously been annexed by the Town of 

Apex. MCDG intends to make a capital investment of $25 million for real property, infrastructure 

improvements and a facility. This investment represents a project referred to as “Project Real” that intends 

to create a minimum of 180 full time jobs for a warehouse, distribution and company headquarters 

operation. In addition, MCDG affiliates intend to invest another $68 million for future infrastructure and 

facilities at the site. Therefore, the Town, upon completion of construction and the improvements, shall 

reimburse costs associated with extension and installation of public utilities, specifically water and sewer, in 

an amount not to exceed $2.2 million. 

 

 

Attachments 

 Development Agreement 

 

- Page 177 -



Page 1 of 17 
CHAR2\2622500v6 

3680535v2.EFD.32724.G53965 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA       ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT  

AGREEMENT 

     (APEX DEVELOPMENT SITE – PROJECT REAL)  

COUNTY OF CHATHAM              

           

This ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is entered into 

and effective as of this ___ day of _____________, 2022 (“Effective Date”) by and among 
MILLS CHATHAM DEVELOPMENT GROUP, LLC, a North Carolina limited liability 

company (the “MCDG”), and the TOWN OF APEX, North Carolina, a municipal corporation of 

the State of North Carolina (the “Town”), and describes the agreement between the parties relating 

to an economic development project (as described herein, and commonly known as “Project 

Real”) located in the Town of Apex, North Carolina.    

 

RECITALS  

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to North Carolina General Statute 158-7.1, the Town of Apex is 

authorized to make appropriation for economic development purposes when the Council 

determines the appropriations will increase the population, taxable property, employment, 

industrial output, or business prospects of the town; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Town  is vitally interested in the economic welfare of its citizens and the 

creation and maintenance of sustainable jobs for its citizens in strategically important industries 

and therefore wishes to provide the necessary conditions to stimulate investment in the local 

economy and promote business, resulting in the creation of a substantial investment in the Town 

and to encourage economic growth and development opportunities which the Town has 

determined will be made possible pursuant to the Project (as defined below); and 

 

WHEREAS, MCDG has contracted with an affiliate of BIN – AG LLC, a North Carolina 

limited liability company (“BIN – AG”) to develop the portion of the Site (as defined herein) 

owned by MCDG, including the design and construction of certain infrastructure improvements 

and an industrial or commercial building which will be leased to an affiliate of MCDG.  MCDG  

intends to make a capital investment for the real property, infrastructure improvements and facility, 

of at least $25,000,000.00 (the “Capital Investment”); and 

 

WHEREAS, the portion of the Site to be owned by BIN – AG or an affiliate of BIN – AG 

will be developed for the benefit of future tenants that would bring additional jobs and investment 

to the Town.  In connection therewith, BIN – AG  intends to make a capital investment of at least 

$68,750,000.00 for the infrastructure improvements and industrial or commercial buildings at the 

Site (as defined below); and 

 

 WHEREAS, such infrastructure and the building to be owned by MCDG and located on 

the Site are referred to as the “MCDG Facility;” the infrastructure and building to be owned by 

BIN – AG or an affiliate of BIN – AG and located on the Site are referred to as the “BIN – AG 

Facility;” and all of the facilities located on the Site are collectively referred to as the “Facilities;” 

and  

 

- Page 178 -



Page 2 of 17 
CHAR2\2622500v6 

3680535v2.EFD.32724.G53965 

WHEREAS, in order to locate the Project on the Site, a sewer and water line extension 

would be required to provide sewer and water services to the Site. The extension would benefit 

Project Real and future companies locating on the Site; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Town recognizes that the Project will bring direct and indirect benefits to 

the Town, including needed infrastructure, job creation, economic diversification and stimulus in 

technology and manufacturing skills, and has offered economic development incentives (the 

“Town Incentives” as defined below) to induce MCDG to locate the Project at the Site; and 

 

WHEREAS, MCDG fully intends to establish through the Project an important presence 

in the Town by making a substantial investment in the Project and hereby affirms that the terms of 

this Agreement, including specifically the Town Incentives and other assistance described in this 

Agreement, constitute a dispositive inducement for MCDG and its tenant to locate and develop 

the Facility at the Site.  

 

Based on the above Recitals and the Terms contained below, which the parties 

acknowledge constitute sufficient consideration to make this Agreement legally binding and 

enforceable, the parties agree as set forth below.   

 

TERMS  

 

I. TOWN INCENTIVES GENERALLY 

 

The Town will provide incentives, as specified below, so long as the provisions of this 

Agreement are specifically met.   

 

II. TOWN ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT INCENTIVES RELATED LAND 

DEVELOPMENT AND INFRASTRUCTURE 

 

A. Town’s Incentives  

 

Upon the completion of construction of the Improvements, as described below and 

in Section III, the Town will reimburse costs associated with the extension and 

installation of public utilities, specifically water and sewer, (the 

“Improvement(s)”) to the Site in an amount not to exceed two-million two hundred 

thousand dollars ($2,200,000.00) (“Maximum Town Incentive”). The 

Improvements are described more specifically in the construction plans which have 

been or will be submitted to and approved by the Town.  MCDG  will provide 

evidence of the amount and completion of the construction of the Facilities and 

Improvements to the Town. Such evidence will include an AIA certificate of 

substantial completion signed by MCDG’s architect, civil engineer and general 

contractor, as applicable for Facilities and EJCDC C-625 Certificate of Substantial 

Completion signed by MCDG’s engineer and general contractor, as applicable. The 

County Assessor may request additional evidence reasonably necessary to properly 

assess each phase of the Facility.   

  

- Page 179 -



Page 3 of 17 
CHAR2\2622500v6 

3680535v2.EFD.32724.G53965 

B. Town Incentive payments. 

 

Upon certification, inspection, and acceptance of the Improvements, the Town shall 

make ten (10) annual Town Incentive payments to MCDG.  Each payment shall be 

$220,000 and in no event shall the total Town Incentive paid to MCDG under this 

agreement exceed $2,200,000.00. The initial payment shall be made within six (6) 

months following the acceptance of the Improvements by the Town, and the 

remaining payments shall be made annually thereafter as provided herein so long 

as this Agreement remains in effect. 

 
III. MCDG OBLIGATIONS. 

 

A. Improvements to the property. 

 

MCDG and BIN - AG, at their sole cost and expense, shall construct the 

Improvements described above;  construct Facilities and develop the Project known 

as Project Real on a tract or tracts of land owned by MCDG consisting of 

approximately 54.51 acres; and a tract or tracts of land to be owned by BIN - AG 

consisting of approximately 77.6 acres, all such tracts located at the intersection of 

US-64 and NC-751 in the County of Chatham, North Carolina (collectively, the 

“Site”).  The Site is denoted on the map attached as Exhibit A.1 The tax parcels 

included in the Site are provided in the table attached as Exhibit B. 

 

Certification, Inspection, and Acceptance of Improvements.   

 

Upon completion of construction of the Improvements, MCDG shall provide the 

Town with written certification and as-built drawings from MCDG’s designated 

consulting engineering firm that the Improvements are complete and have been 

constructed and installed in compliance with this Agreement and within appropriate 

Town easements or fee simple parcels. The Improvements shall be offered for public 

dedication to the Town upon completion of construction and shall be subject to 

inspection and acceptance by the Town. Thereafter, the Town shall own the 

Improvements, have exclusive possession and control of the Improvements and 

responsibility for maintenance thereof.  In the event that any defect or breach of 

warranty claim becomes known to the Town after acceptance and dedication of the 

Improvements to the Town, MCDG agrees either to assign such rights and claims to 

the Town as directed by the Town and reasonably cooperate with the Town in the 

Town’s pursuit of its rights and claims against the contractor or other party 

responsible for the defect or breach of warranty.  In the event any recovery is actually 

received by MCDG, MCDG shall promptly pay over such recovery to the Town. 

 

B. Job creation.  

 

MCDG, whether directly or indirectly through its affiliates, lessees, licensees, 

vendors, or tenants, is expected to create a minimum of one hundred eighty (180) 

                                                 
1 Confirming if this is available.  If not, we would propose substituting the tax parcel maps. 

- Page 180 -



Page 4 of 17 
CHAR2\2622500v6 

3680535v2.EFD.32724.G53965 

new full time jobs (herein “Qualified Jobs”) within the Town of Apex (Chatham 

County) by the date that is thirty-six (36) months following the Effective Date.  The 

expected median average hourly wage for the Qualified Jobs at the Project is 

expected to be above the then-current median average hourly wage paid in Chatham 

County.  The term “median average hourly wage” is defined as the median average 

hourly wage for all insured industries in the County as determined by the 

Employment Security Commission for the most recent period for which data is 

available.  The Parties acknowledge that the median average hourly wage in 

Chatham County, according to data provided by the NC Department of Commerce, 

is currently $20.98 per hour with an annual average wage of $42,789.00.  

 

C. Tax Generation.  

 

The Project is expected to generate Property Tax Revenue, whether directly or 

indirectly through MCDG, BIN – AG, and their affiliates, lessees, licensees, 

vendors, or tenants, from the Site over its first ten years of operations, following 

the Effective Date, on the following schedule: 

 

 
It is recognized that these are revenue projections, based on current tax rates and tax structure. 

 

D. Commencement of Operations. MCDG, whether directly or indirectly through its 

affiliates, lessees, licensees, vendors, or tenants, is expected to commence 

operations within two and one-half (2.5) years of the Effective Date. 

 

- Page 181 -



Page 5 of 17 
CHAR2\2622500v6 

3680535v2.EFD.32724.G53965 

E. Other.  

 

(1) Permits. MCDG shall obtain and maintain all permits and approvals required by 

federal, state and local law for the construction and operation of the proposed 

Improvements and the Project. 

 

(2) Quarterly Reports. MCDG shall provide the Town’s Economic Development 

Director with copies of all monthly and/or quarterly tax and wage statements, at the 

time of filing, for MCDG and for each tenant or vendor of MCDG conducting 

business on the Site or operating as part of the Project for purposes of demonstrating 

compliance with the requirements of Sections IV.B. and C. below.  Said statements 

and other documents may be necessary to allow the Town to determine compliance 

with the Jobs Creation and Tax Revenue benchmarks. 

 

(3) Extensions. For good cause, including Force Majeure, the time for performance of 

any obligation set forth herein may be extended by the party to whom the 

performance is due; provided that the aggregate of extensions may not cause the 

time for completion of the Improvements to extend beyond five years from the 

Effective Date. 

 

IV. REDUCTION AND RECAPTURE OF INCENTIVES 

 

The Parties acknowledge that the creation of Qualified Jobs and additional Capital 

Investment, with corresponding projected increases in tax revenue to the Town, are the 

essence of this Agreement and form the legal basis for the Town’s participation.  Pursuant 

to NCGS § 158-7.1(h), the Town’s remedies for failure by MCDG to meet its obligations 

as set out herein are:  

 

A. If MCDG, along with that of its tenants, lessees, affiliates or Agents, fails to 

construct the contemplated Improvements within the times set out in this 

Agreement, then the Town may elect to terminate this Agreement under the 

provisions of paragraph F below. 

 

B. If MCDG, along with that of its tenants, lessees, affiliates or Agents, does not reach 

the number of Qualified Jobs as outlined in paragraph III.B as shown on its 

Quarterly Report within the times set out in this Agreement, then the Town may 

elect to terminate this Agreement under the provisions of paragraph F below.  

 

C. Failure to maintain jobs.  For any year in which MCDG, along with that of its 

tenants, lessees, affiliates or Agents, fails to retain the number of Qualified Jobs 

actually created in the prior years under this Agreement, the Town may elect to 

terminate this Agreement under the provisions of paragraph F below.  

 

D. Failure to Maintain Property Tax Revenue. Notwithstanding the initial capital 

investment, if MCDG, BIN – AG, and their successors or assigns, with their 

tenants, lessees, affiliates or Agents, fail to maintain a total level property tax 

revenue within Chatham County at the levels and for the periods of time set forth 

- Page 182 -



Page 6 of 17 
CHAR2\2622500v6 

3680535v2.EFD.32724.G53965 

in paragraph III.C then the Town may elect to terminate this Agreement under the 

provisions of paragraph F below, subject to the revenue catch up provisions of 

paragraph I below. 

 

E. If MCDG, along with that of its tenants, lessees, affiliates or Agents, is not current 

on all other taxes, fees, assessments or other amounts owed to the Town related to 

the Project at the time a Town Incentive is to be paid, in addition to any other 

remedies provided by law, this Agreement may be terminated.     

 

F. Termination. Upon failure of MCDG to meet its Obligations as set forth herein, the 

Town may elect to terminate this Agreement in whole or in part. If the Town elects 

to terminate, notice of termination shall be given in the manner set forth in Section 

IX.C. Failure of the Town to elect termination in whole or in part shall not constitute 

a waiver of the right of the Town to make such election at a later time. Nothing 

herein shall prohibit the parties from negotiating an alternative remedy for the 

failure of MCDG to meet one or more of its obligations, consistent with North 

Carolina law. 

 

G. The provisions of this Section IV survive the termination of this Agreement.  

 

H. Alternative Remedies for Partial Performance. To the extent permitted by North 

Carolina law, MCDG and Town agree that the following remedies or “claw backs” 

may be applied in the case of partial performance by Company. 

 

I. In the event of a failure by MCDG, along with that of its tenants, lessees, affiliates 

or Agents, to create or maintain the minimum number of Qualified Jobs, MCDG 

shall pay to Town an amount equal to the economic impact credit that MCDG 

received for each Qualified Job not created as required per this Agreement. The 

“economic impact credit” per job is defined as the Maximum Town Incentive less 

the 10-year average cumulative tax revenue estimate divided by the total number 

of Qualified Jobs.2  For purposes of this section, the parties acknowledge the 

“economic impact credit” per job equals five thousand, one-hundred forty dollars 

($5,140.00).  For example, if MCDG’s job creation is 20 less Qualified Jobs than 

that required by this agreement, MCDG would be required to reimburse the Town 

$102,8003.  In the event that MCDG fails to make the Capital Investment or that 

the Project for any reason fails to generate the projected property tax revenue as 

shown on the table in Sec. III.C, then MCDG shall pay to the Town the difference 

between the projected tax revenue and the actual tax revenue, subject to adjustment 

pursuant to the “Revenue Catch Up” provision below. 

 

J. Revenue Catch Up.   For any year in which the actual property tax revenues are less 

than the projected property tax revenues, MCDG shall be required to pay Town the 

difference, provided that Town may defer said payment for up to two years in order 

                                                 
2 Maximum Incentive – 10 yr avg tax / number of jobs required ($2,200,000 - $1,274,872 = $925,128) / 

180 = $5,139.60 Rounded to $5,140 
3 $5,140 multiplied by 20 = $102,800/ 

- Page 183 -



Page 7 of 17 
CHAR2\2622500v6 

3680535v2.EFD.32724.G53965 

to allow for the recognition of any surplus revenue in subsequent years, unless the 

deficit occurs in year 10, in which case MCDG shall pay the Town any difference 

between the total projected tax revenue and the actual tax revenue.  

 

Nothing herein shall prevent the parties from negotiating other remedies for partial 

performance, as allowed by North Carolina law and in no event shall MCDG be required 

to pay to Town an amount greater than the amount of Town Incentives actually paid by 

Town to MCDG pursuant to the terms of this Agreement. 

 

V. RIGHT TO CURE 

 

In the event the Town determines that MCDG is deficient in its obligations under this 

Agreement, the Town shall provide written notice of deficiency to MCDG describing the 

nature of the deficiency and the steps required to cure the deficiency. For each year in 

which a deficiency occurs, MCDG shall have a twelve (12) month cure period from the 

time it receives notice of the deficiency to provide written evidence to the Town that the 

deficiency has been cured, did not occur, or was cured prior to receipt of notice of 

deficiency. In the event MCDG does not cure or provide evidence of compliance within 

the twelve (12) month cure period, MCDG shall forfeit any Incentive Payment to which 

the deficiency applies. No default or deficiency by MCDG shall result in a termination or 

limitation of any rights of MCDG unless and until the Town shall have notified MCDG in 

writing of said default or deficiency.  Upon the cure of any deficiency, the Town Incentive 

payment shall be restored and shall be payable within thirty (30) days following the cure 

date. 

 

VI. INDEMNIFICATION AND LIMITATIONS   

 

MCDG will indemnify and hold harmless the Town and its Town Council, and employees 

and agents (the “Indemnified Parties”) for damages imposed upon them by a court of final 

determination based on any claims of third parties arising out of any act or omission of 

MCDG in the performance required of it by this Agreement, provided, however, that such 

indemnification (i) is not contrary to law and (ii) shall not apply to third party claims arising 

out of or relating to a negligent act or omission of the Town. The Town agrees that none 

of the foregoing shall be construed to release Town from the obligations it has undertaken 

elsewhere in this Agreement, in connection with the Town Incentives or otherwise. Except 

as otherwise set forth, each Indemnified Party and MCDG agree to pay their own costs 

incurred in such connection, including all costs incurred in connection with the preparation 

of this Agreement.  

 

MCDG SHALL NOT BE LIABLE UNDER ANY CIRCUMSTANCES FOR ANY 

CLAIMS ARISING OUT OF ANY ACT OR OMISSION OF MCDG IN THE 

PERFORMANCE REQUIRED OF IT BY THIS AGREEMENT FOR SPECIAL 

INDIRECT, INCIDENTAL OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES, INCLUDING LOST 

REVENUES AND PROFITS, EVEN IF IT HAS BEEN ADVISED OF THE 

POSSIBILITY OF THOSE DAMAGES.  This provision also applies to the indemnity set 

forth in the above paragraph.   

 

- Page 184 -



Page 8 of 17 
CHAR2\2622500v6 

3680535v2.EFD.32724.G53965 

VII. DISCLAIMER OF WARRANTIES   

MCDG acknowledges that the Town has not designed the Facility or the 

Improvement(s), that the Town has not supplied any plans or specifications with respect 

thereto and that the Town: (a) is not a manufacturer of, or dealer in, any of the component 

parts of the Facility or Improvement(s), (b) has not made any recommendation, given any 

advice nor taken any other action with respect to (i) the choice of any supplier, vendor or 

designer of, or any other contractor with respect to the Facility or Improvement(s) or any 

property or rights relating thereto, or (ii) any action taken or to be taken with respect to the 

Facility or Improvement(s) or any component part thereof or any property or rights relating 

thereto at any stage of the construction, (c) has not at any time had physical possession 

of the Facility or Improvement(s) or any component part, and (d) has not made any 

warranty or other representation, express or implied, that the Facility or Improvement(s) 

or any component part or any property or rights relating thereto (i) will not result in or 

cause injury or damage to persons or property, (ii) has been or will be properly designed, 

or will accomplish the results which MCDG intended, or (iii) is safe in any manner or 

respect. 

The Town makes no express or implied warranty or representation of any kind whatsoever 

with respect to the Facility or Improvement(s) or any component part, including but not 

limited to any warranty or representation with respect to the merchantability or the fitness 

or suitability for any particular purpose, and further including the design or condition, the 

safety, workmanship, quality, or capacity; compliance with the requirements of any law, 

rule, specification or contract pertaining thereto; any latent defect; the ability of the 

Facility or Improvement(s) to perform any function; or any other characteristic of the 

Facility or Improvement(s); it being agreed that as between the Town and MCDG, 

MCDG is  to bear all risks relating to the Facility or Improvement(s), its completion or 

the transactions contemplated hereby and MCDG waives the benefits of any and all 

implied warranties and representation of the Town. 

The provisions of this Section VII shall survive the termination of this Agreement. 

 

VIII. TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT   

Unless terminated earlier as provided in section IV.F, this Agreement shall terminate at the 

end of the tenth year after the Town has made the last of the Town Incentive payments to 

MCDG, or upon payment of the Maximum Town Incentive payments if sooner, as required 

by this Agreement.  After such termination, this Agreement will be null and void, and the 

parties to this Agreement will have no further obligations from one to the other thereafter, 

except as specifically noted in this Agreement.  Provided, however, in no event will any 

payment be made by the Town to MCDG after December 31, 2038. 

 

IX. ASSIGNMENTS  

 

MCDG shall not assign this Agreement or any portion thereof without the written consent 

- Page 185 -



Page 9 of 17 
CHAR2\2622500v6 

3680535v2.EFD.32724.G53965 

of the Town, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned, or delayed, 

nor shall MCDG assign any Town Incentive payments due or to become due to it under 

this Agreement without the written consent of the Town, which consent shall not be 

unreasonably withheld, conditioned, or delayed; provided, however, MCDG shall be 

permitted to (i) assign this Agreement or any portion thereof, or any funds due or to become 

due to it hereunder, to any direct or indirect wholly-owned subsidiary or other related party 

of MCDG, and (ii) any Tax Incentive payments actually received by MCDG to any other 

party..  

 

X. REPRESENTATIONS  

 

MCDG represents as of the date of this Agreement as follows: 

 

A. MCDG (i) is a limited liability company duly organized and validly existing under 

the laws of its state of incorporation; (ii) is duly qualified to transact business and 

is in good standing in North Carolina; (iii) is not in violation of any provision of its 

organizational documents; (iv) has full corporate power to own its properties and 

conduct its business; (v) has full power and authority to enter into this Agreement 

and to enter into and carry out the transactions contemplated by this Agreement; 

(vi) by proper action has duly authorized the execution and delivery of this 

Agreement; and (vii) is not in default under any provision of this Agreement. 

 

B. The execution and delivery of this Agreement neither conflicts with, nor will result 

in, a breach or default under its organizational documents; nor, to the best of its 

knowledge, will its execution and delivery conflict with, or result in, a breach or 

default under the terms, conditions, or provisions of any statute, order, rule, 

regulation, agreement, or instrument to which each such company is a party or by 

which it is bound; nor will its execution and delivery result in the imposition of any 

lien on its property. 

 

C. MCDG has duly authorized, executed, and delivered this Agreement, and to 

MCDG’s knowledge, this Agreement constitutes its legal, valid, and binding 

obligations, enforceable in accordance with its terms. 

 

The Town represents as of the date of this Agreement as follows: 

 

A. At the time of execution of this Agreement, the Town (i) has full power and 

authority to enter into this Agreement and to enter into and carry out the 

transactions contemplated by this Agreement; (ii) by proper action has duly 

authorized the execution and delivery of this Agreement; and (iii) is not in default 

under any provisions of this Agreement. 

 

B. The Town has duly authorized, executed, and delivered this Agreement, and this 

Agreement constitutes the Town’s legal, valid, and binding obligation, enforceable 

in accordance with its terms. 

 

- Page 186 -



Page 10 of 17 
CHAR2\2622500v6 

3680535v2.EFD.32724.G53965 

C. To the Town’s knowledge, there is no litigation or proceeding pending or 

threatened against the Town or affecting it which would adversely affect the 

validity of this Agreement. 

 

D. To the best of the Town’s knowledge at the time of execution of this Agreement, 

the Town is not in default under any provision of State law which would affect its 

existence or its powers. 

 

E. To the best of the Town’s knowledge at the time of execution of this Agreement, 

no official of the Town has any interest (financial, employment, or other) in MCDG 

or the transactions contemplated by this Agreement. 

 

F. With respect to this Agreement, Town has complied fully with all requirements of 

N.C. Gen. Stat. §158-7.1, to the Town’s ability and knowledge. 

 

NO PROVISION OF THIS AGREEMENT SHALL BE CONSTRUED OR 

INTERPRETED AS CREATING A PLEDGE OF THE FAITH AND CREDIT OF THE TOWN 

WITHIN THE MEANING OF ANY CONSTITUTIONAL DEBT LIMITATION. NO 

PROVISION OF THIS AGREEMENT SHALL BE CONSTRUED OR 

INTERPRETED AS DELEGATING GOVERNMENTAL POWERS NOR AS A DONATION 

OR A LENDING OF THE CREDIT OF THE TOWN WITHIN THE MEANING OF THE STATE 

CONSTITUTION. THIS AGREEMENT SHALL NOT DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY OR 

CONTINGENTLY OBLIGATE THE TOWN TO MAKE ANY PAYMENTS BEYOND THOSE 

APPROPRIATED IN THE SOLE DISCRETION OF THE TOWN FOR ANY FISCAL 

YEAR IN WHICH THIS AGREEMENT SHALL BE IN EFFECT. NO PROVISION OF THIS 

AGREEMENT SHALL BE CONSTRUED TO PLEDGE OR TO CREATE A LIEN ON ANY 

CLASS OR SOURCE OF THE TOWN’S MONEYS, NOR SHALL ANY PROVISION OF THIS 

AGREEMENT RESTRICT TO ANY EXTENT PROHIBITED BY LAW, ANY ACTION OR 

RIGHT OF ACTION ON THE PART OF ANY FUTURE TOWN GOVERNING BODY. 

TO THE EXTENT OF ANY CONFLICT BETWEEN THIS ARTICLE AND ANY OTHER 

PROVISION OF THIS AGREEMENT, THIS ARTICLE TAKES PRIORITY. 

 

XI. MISCELLANEOUS   

 

A. Definitions.  All terms with initial capitals used in this Agreement and not 

otherwise defined will have the meanings ascribed to those terms in Webster’s 

Third New International Dictionary. 

 

B. Governing Law.  The parties intend that the law of the State of North Carolina 

will govern this Agreement. 

 

C. Notices. 

(1) Any communication required or permitted by this Agreement must be in 

writing except as expressly provided otherwise in this Agreement. 

 

- Page 187 -



Page 11 of 17 
CHAR2\2622500v6 

3680535v2.EFD.32724.G53965 

(2) Any communication under this Agreement shall be sufficiently given and 

deemed given when delivered by hand or after being deposited in the 

mail by first-class certified mail, postage prepaid, and addressed as 

follows: 

 

 

(i) If to MCDG:  Mills Chatham Development Group, LLC 

       Attn: Mr. Hager Rand, Manager 

       3214 Hillsborough Road 

       Durham, NC  27705 

       Telephone: 919-383-2058 

       Email: Hagerr@durhamcoke.com    

 

  With a copy to:   Manning, Fulton & Skinner, P.A. 

       Attn: Eugene F. Dauchert, Jr. 

       280 S. Mangum Street, Suite 130 

       Durham, NC  27701 

       Telephone: 919-510-9286 

       Email: dauchert@manningfulton.com  

 

(ii) If to the TOWN:  Town of Apex 

Attn: Town Manager 

PO Box 250  

Apex, NC 27502  

  

           With copy to:   Town of Apex 

 Attn: Town Attorney 

 PO Box 250  

 Apex, NC 27513 

                       

 

Any addressee may designate additional or different addresses for 

communications by notice given under this Section to each other. 

 

D. Non-Business Days.  If the date for making any payment or performing any 

act or exercising any right is not a business day, such payment must be made 

or act performed or right exercised on or before the next business day. 

 

E. Entire Agreement: Amendments. This Agreement, including Exhibits, which 

are incorporated by reference, constitutes the entire contract between the parties. 

This Agreement may not be changed except in writing signed by both parties. 

 

F. Binding Effect.  This Agreement is binding upon, inures to the benefit of and is 

enforceable by the parties and their respective successors and assigns. There are no 

other agreements or other conditions precedent to the binding nature of the 

- Page 188 -

mailto:Hagerr@durhamcoke.com
mailto:dauchert@manningfulton.com


Page 12 of 17 
CHAR2\2622500v6 

3680535v2.EFD.32724.G53965 

respective obligations of the Town, other than the performance by MCDG  of its 

obligations under this Agreement. 

 

G. Time. TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE of this Agreement and each and of each and 

every provision hereof. 

 

H. Liability of Officers and Agents.  No officer, agent, or employee of the Town or 

MCDG shall be subject to any personal liability or accountability by reason of the 

execution of this Agreement or any other documents related to the transactions 

contemplated hereby. Such officers, agents, or employees shall be deemed to 

execute such documents in their official capacities only, and not in their individual 

capacities. This Section shall not relieve any such officer, agent, or employee from 

the performance of any official duty provided by law. 

 

I. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, 

including separate counterparts. Each shall be an original, but all of them together 

constitute the same instrument. 

 

J. Provide W-9.  MCDG shall provide a completed W-9 form to the Town upon 

execution of this Agreement. 

 

K. Dissolution of MCDG.  If the legal entity of either MCDG is dissolved or 

suspended and MCDG does not notify the Town of such dissolution within thirty 

(30) business days and/or the entity status is not reinstated within sixty (60) 

business days, this Agreement, at the sole option of the Town, shall be declared 

null and void or MCDG may be allowed to execute a new Agreement showing the 

correct legal entity of MCDG. 

 

L. Notice of Potential Disclosure of Confidential Information. MCDG acknowledges 

that it has been informed by the Town that the Town is required by North Carolina 

law to disclose “Public Records” as the term is defined by N.C. Gen. Stat. §132-

1, upon request. All information disclosed to the Town by MCDG which is subject 

to that definition and whose disclosure is not otherwise protected by law will be 

released by the Town upon request as provided by N.C. Gen. Stat. §132-6. The 

Town may withhold from disclosure confidential records as defined by N.C. 

Gen. Stat. §132-1.2. MCDG acknowledges that it has read and is familiar with 

the Town's obligations of public disclosure of documents and the definitions of 

confidential documents as contained in Chapter 132 of the North Carolina General 

Statutes. In order to prevent the disclosure of the confidentiality of information 

identified by MCDG as a trade secret or as “confidential” pursuant to N.C. Gen. 

Stat.  §132.1.2 the Town shall, if it receives a request for disclosure of such 

information, notify MCDG of such request so that MCDG may defend any claims 

or disputes arising from efforts of others to cause such trade secrets to be disclosed 

as a public record. The parties agree that this Section will survive the termination 

of the Agreement. 

 

- Page 189 -



Page 13 of 17 
CHAR2\2622500v6 

3680535v2.EFD.32724.G53965 

M. Force Majeure.  Any delay in the performance of any of the duties or obligations 

of either party (the “Delayed Party”) shall not be considered a breach of this 

Agreement and the time required for performance shall be extended for a period 

equal to the period of such delay, provided that such delay arises out of or is caused 

by, directly or indirectly, (i) forces beyond the Delayed Party’s control, including, 

without limitation, strikes, work stoppages, lockouts, job actions, boycotts, 

accidents, acts of war or terrorism, insurrections, civil or military disturbances, 

riots, nuclear or natural catastrophes, earthquakes, fire, flood, pandemics, 

epidemics, public health emergency, state of declared emergency, loss or 

malfunctions of utilities, communications or computer (software and hardware) 

services (ii) with regard to MCDG, the inability to obtain the governmental permits 

or approvals (including zoning) necessary for the acquisition of the land or 

undertaking and operating the facility after a good faith effort to obtain same has 

been made; (iii) with regard to MCDG, shortages of materials or energy; (iv) 

changes in laws; or (v) other causes beyond the control of and arising without the 

fault or negligence of the Delayed Party (each of them a “Force Majeure Event”).  

The Delayed Party shall give prompt notice to the other party of such cause, and 

shall take whatever reasonable steps are necessary to relieve the effect of such cause 

as promptly as possible.  No such event shall excuse the payment of any sums due 

and payable hereunder on the due date except any payment due upon the occurrence 

of any act or event for which delayed performance is excused as provided above. 

 

N. Severability.  If any court of competent jurisdiction holds any provision of this 

Agreement invalid or unenforceable, then (a) such holding shall not invalidate or 

render unenforceable any other provision of this Agreement, unless such provision 

is contingent on the invalidated provision; and (b) the remaining terms hereof shall, 

in such event, constitute the parties’ entire agreement. 

 

O. Audit Right.  The Town reserves the right to require a certified audit or may perform 

the audit through the use of its staff pertaining to MCDG’s compliance with any 

provision in this Agreement during normal business hours and upon reasonable 

prior notice.   

 

 

 

 

[Signature Pages to Follow] 

- Page 190 -



Page 14 of 17 
CHAR2\2622500v6 

3680535v2.EFD.32724.G53965 

IN WITNESS, the parties have caused this Agreement to be executed in their corporate 

names by their duly authorized officers, all as of the date first above written. 

 

 

[SEAL] 

 

 

ATTEST: 

By:       

Allen Coleman, CMC, NCCCC 

Town Clerk 

 

TOWN OF APEX 

NORTH CAROLINA 

 

 

By:  __________________________________ 

         Jacques Gilbert  

         Mayor  

         Town of Apex  

          

 

 

TOWN OF APEX 

 

This instrument has been preaudited in the manner required by the Local Government Budget 

and Fiscal Control Act. 

 

________________________________ 

___________________, Finance Director 

Town of Apex, North Carolina 

Date: ________________________ 

 

 

 

 

[Signature Pages Continue] 

  

- Page 191 -



Page 15 of 17 
CHAR2\2622500v6 

3680535v2.EFD.32724.G53965 

 

 

 

 

 

MILLS CHATHAM DEVELOPMENT 

GROUP, LLC, a North Carolina limited 

liability company 

 

 

By: ___________________________________ 

                M. Hager Rand, Manager 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

    [End Signature Pages] 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

  

 

- Page 192 -



Page 16 of 17 
CHAR2\2622500v6 

3680535v2.EFD.32724.G53965 

Exhibit A 

 

Property Description or Map 

 

  

[SITE PLAN] 

 

 

 

 

- Page 193 -



Page 17 of 17 
CHAR2\2622500v6 

3680535v2.EFD.32724.G53965 

Exhibit B 

Tax Parcels 

2021 Baseline Tax Parcel No.(s): 0060523, 0071694,0073702, 0017900* 

 

2021 Baseline Tax Information  

 
*Parcel numbers prior to change of ownership and recordation of recombination / subdivision plat; 

Parcel 0017900 has been subdivided into two separate tax parcels and assigned Tax Parcel No.(s) 

0017900 and 95398. 

 

 

Parcel No.: 0060523 0071694 0073702 
0017900 and 

95398 Total 

Real 

Property 

Assessed 

Value:  

$8,869 $288,863 $332,840 $159,507 $790,079 

Chatham 

County 

Taxes Paid  

$69.56 $2,357.91 $2,620.56 $1,232.99 $6,281.01 

Town of 

Apex 

Taxes Paid 

$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Total 

Taxes 

Paid 

$69.56  $2,357.91 $2,620.56 $1,232.99 $6,281.01 

- Page 194 -



 | Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 for consideration by the Apex Town Council 

 

 Item Type: PUBLIC HEARING 

 Meeting Date: July 26, 2022 

Item Details 

Presenter(s): Amanda Bunce, Current Planning Manager 

Department(s): Planning and Community Development 

Requested Motion 

Public Hearing and possible motion to approve Rezoning Application #22CZ11 1522 Salem Church Road. 

The applicant, Joshua Blackley, seeks to rezone approximately 1.22 acres from Residential Agricultural (RA) 

to High Density Single Family-Conditional Zoning (HDSF-CZ). The proposed rezoning is located at 1522 

Salem Church Road. 

Approval Recommended? 

The Planning and Community Development Department recommends approval.  

 

The Planning Board held a public hearing on July 26, 2022 and by a vote of 6-1 recommended approval with 

the conditions offered by the applicant. 

Item Details 

The property to be rezoned is identified as PIN 0743815090. 

 

Attachments 

 Staff Report 
 Vicinity Map  
 Application 

 

- Page 195 -



STAFF REPORT 
Rezoning #22CZ11 1522 Salem Church Rd 

July 26, 2022 Town Council Meeting 
 

 

Page 1 of 4  Prepared by: Amanda Bunce, Current Planning Manager 

All property owners, tenants, and neighborhood associations within 300 feet of this rezoning have been 
notified per UDO Sec. 2.2.11 Public Notification. 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 
Location: 1522 Salem Church Road 
Applicant/Owners: Joshua Blackley / Philip and Michele Blackley 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: 
Acreage: ±1.22 
PIN: 0743815090 
Current Zoning: Residential Agricultural (RA)  
Proposed Zoning: High Density Single-Family Residential-Conditional Zoning (HDSF-CZ) 
Current 2045 Land Use Map: Medium Density Residential 
If rezoned as proposed, the 2045 Land Use Map will change to: Medium/High Density Residential  
Town Limits: ETJ 
 
Adjacent Zoning & Land Uses:  

                     Zoning Land Use 

North:  
Medium Density Residential-Conditional 

Zoning (MD-CZ #15CZ15) 

Salem Church Rd; Single-family Residential 

(Westhigh subdivision) 

South: Residential Agricultural (RA) Single-family Residential 

East:  
Planned Unit Development-Conditional Zoning 

(PUD-CZ #15CZ13) 
Townhomes (Salem Pointe subdivision) 

West: Residential Agricultural (RA) Single-family Residential 

 
Existing Conditions: 
The subject property is ±1.22 acres and is located on the south side of Salem Church Rd. east of Salem Pointe 

townhomes. There is a single-family home on the property. 

 
Neighborhood Meeting: 
The applicant conducted a neighborhood meeting on April 7, 2022. The neighborhood meeting report is 
attached. 
 
WCPSS Coordination: 
A Letter of Impact from Wake County Public School System (WCPSS) was received for this rezoning and is 
included in the staff report packet. WCPSS indicates that schools at the high school grade level within the 
current assignment area for the proposed rezoning/development are anticipated to have insufficient 
capacity for future students; transportation to schools outside of the current assignment area should be 
anticipated. School expansion or construction within the next five years may address concerns at the high 
school grade level.  
 
2045 LAND USE MAP: 
The 2045 Land Use Map identifies the subject property as Medium Density Residential which supports up to 
seven (7) units per acre. The proposed rezoning to High Density Single-Family Residential-Conditional Zoning 

- Page 196 -



STAFF REPORT 
Rezoning #22CZ11 1522 Salem Church Rd 

July 26, 2022 Town Council Meeting 
 

 

Page 2 of 4  Prepared by: Amanda Bunce, Current Planning Manager 

(HDSF-CZ) is not consistent with that land use classification as it permits up to eight (8) units per acre. If the 
property is rezoned as proposed, the 2045 LUM will automatically be amended to the Medium/High Density 
Residential classification per NCGS 160D-605(a). The Salem Pointe townhomes development to the east is 
zoned PUD-CZ with a maximum density of six (6) units per acre.  
 

PROPOSED ZONING CONDITIONS: 
 

Limitation of Uses: 
The Rezoned Lands may be used for, and only for, the uses listed immediately below. The permitted uses are 
subject to the limitations and regulations stated in the UDO and any additional limitations or regulations 
stated below. For convenience, some relevant sections of the UDO may be referenced; such references do 
not imply that other sections of the UDO do not apply.  
 
Permitted Uses and Limitations:  

1. Townhouse 

2. Accessory Apartment 

 

 

Conditions: 
1. At least 1 pet waste station shall be installed. 

2. Where possible, the main roof areas shall be oriented north and south. 

3. Protrusions on south facing roofs shall be minimized or grouped to the extent possible. 

4. A mix of brick, wood, stone, fiber cement and/or wood composite materials shall be used. 

5. Vinyl siding is not permitted; however, vinyl windows, decorative elements and trim are permitted. 

6. House entrances for units with front-facing single-car garages shall have a prominent covered 

porch/stoop area leading to the front door. 

7. The garage shall not protrude more than 1 foot out from the front façade and front porch. 

8. Garage doors shall have windows, decorative details or carriage-style adornments on them. 

9. The roof shall be pitched at 5:12 or greater. 

10. The roofline cannot be a single mass; it must be broken up horizontally and vertically between every 

unit.  

EAB RECOMMENDATIONS: 

The Apex Environmental Advisory Board (EAB) held a pre-application meeting for this rezoning on February 17, 
2022. The zoning conditions suggested by the EAB are listed below along with the applicant’s response to each 
condition. 

EAB Suggested Condition Applicant’s 
Response  

Increase design storm pre- and post-attenuation requirement to include the 25-year 
storm. 

Not added 

Proposing to install at least 1 pet waste station in the future development. Added 

Include solar conduit in building design.  Not added 

If possible, install a minimum of a 3-kilowatt solar PV system (about 10 panels) to the 
rooftops of two homes. 

Not added 

Where possible, orient the major roof toward the south. Added 

Minimize roof protrusions on roofs facing toward a southern direction or group the 
protrusions to the extent possible. 

Added 

- Page 197 -



STAFF REPORT 
Rezoning #22CZ11 1522 Salem Church Rd 

July 26, 2022 Town Council Meeting 
 

 

Page 3 of 4  Prepared by: Amanda Bunce, Current Planning Manager 

EAB Suggested Condition Applicant’s 
Response  

Include International Dark Sky Association compliance standards. 
o Outdoor lighting shall be shielded in a way that focuses lighting to the ground. 
o Lighting that minimizes the emission of blue light to reduce glare shall be used. 
o Lighting with a color temperature of 3000K or less shall be used for outside 

installations in nonresidential or multifamily areas. 

Not added 

 
PLANNING STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning staff recommends approval of Rezoning #22CZ11 with the conditions as offered by the applicant.  
 
PLANNING BOARD RECOMMENDATION:  
The Planning Board held a public hearing on July 11, 2022 and by a vote of 6-1 recommended approval with 
conditions as proposed by the applicant.   
 
ANALYSIS STATEMENT OF THE REASONABLENESS OF THE PROPOSED REZONING: 
This Statement will address consistency with the Town’s comprehensive and other applicable plans, 
reasonableness, and effect on public interest: 

 
The 2045 Land Use Map (LUM) designates the subject property as Medium Density Residential which 
supports up to seven (7) units per acre. The proposed zoning district is not consistent with that land use 
classification as it permits up to eight (8) units per acre. If the properties are rezoned to HDSF-CZ as 
proposed, the 2045 LUM will automatically be amended to Medium/High Density Residential per NCGS 
160D-605(a).   
 
The proposed rezoning is reasonable and in the public interest because it will allow for development that 
is consistent in density and architectural design with the subdivision to the east. Approval of the rezoning 
will also allow for the New Derby Lane street stub to be extended and serve the proposed development. 
 

CONDITIONAL ZONING STANDARDS: 
The Planning Board shall find the HDSF-CZ designation demonstrates compliance with the following standards. 
2.3.3.F: 

 

Legislative Considerations  
The applicant shall propose site-specific standards and conditions that take into account the following 
considerations, which are considerations that are relevant to the legislative determination of whether or 
not the proposed conditional zoning district rezoning request is in the public interest. These considerations 
do not exclude the legislative consideration of any other factor that is relevant to the public interest.  

 

1)  Consistency with 2045 Land Use Map. The proposed Conditional Zoning District use’s 
appropriateness for its proposed location and consistency with the purposes, goals, objectives, and 
policies of the 2045 Land Use Map.  

 

2)  Compatibility. The proposed Conditional Zoning District use’s appropriateness for its proposed 
location and compatibility with the character of surrounding land uses.  

 

- Page 198 -



STAFF REPORT 
Rezoning #22CZ11 1522 Salem Church Rd 

July 26, 2022 Town Council Meeting 
 

 

Page 4 of 4  Prepared by: Amanda Bunce, Current Planning Manager 

3)  Zoning district supplemental standards. The proposed Conditional Zoning District use’s compliance 
with Sec 4.4 Supplemental Standards, if applicable.  

 

4)  Design minimizes adverse impact. The design of the proposed Conditional Zoning District use’s 
minimization of adverse effects, including visual impact of the proposed use on adjacent lands; and 
avoidance of significant adverse impacts on surrounding lands regarding trash, traffic, service 
delivery, parking and loading, odors, noise, glare, and vibration and not create a nuisance. 

 

5)  Design minimizes environmental impact. The proposed Conditional Zoning District use’s 
minimization of environmental impacts and protection from significant deterioration of water and 
air resources, wildlife habitat, scenic resources, and other natural resources. 

 

6)  Impact on public facilities. The proposed Conditional Zoning District use’s avoidance of having 
adverse impacts on public facilities and services, including roads, potable water and wastewater 
facilities, parks, schools, police, fire and EMS facilities. 

 

7)  Health, safety, and welfare. The proposed Conditional Zoning District use’s effect on the health, 
safety, or welfare of the residents of the Town or its ETJ. 

 

8)  Detrimental to adjacent properties. Whether the proposed Conditional Zoning District use is 
substantially detrimental to adjacent properties. 

 

9)  Not constitute nuisance or hazard. Whether the proposed Conditional Zoning District use 
constitutes a nuisance or hazard due to traffic impact or noise, or because of the number of persons 
who will be using the Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use. 

 

10)  Other relevant standards of this Ordinance. Whether the proposed Conditional Zoning District use 
complies with all standards imposed on it by all other applicable provisions of this Ordinance for 
use, layout, and general development characteristics. 

- Page 199 -



- Page 200 -



PETITION TO AMEND THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP   

This document is a public record under the North Carolina Public Records Act and may be published on the Town’s website or disclosed to 
third parties. 
Application #:  Submittal Date:  

  Fee Paid:  
 

 Last Updated: July 1, 2021 

Project Information 

Project Name:  

Address(es):  

PIN(s):  

  Acreage:  

Current Zoning:  Proposed Zoning:  

Current 2045 LUM Classification(s):  

Is the proposed rezoning consistent with the 2045 LUM Classification(s)? Yes No 

 

If any portion of the project is shown as mixed use (3 or more stripes on the 2045 Land Use Map) provide the following: 

Area classified as mixed use: Acreage:  

Area proposed as non-residential development: Acreage:  

Percent of mixed use area proposed as non-residential: Percent:  
   

Applicant Information 

Name:  

Address:  

City:  State:  Zip:  

Phone:  E-mail:  
  

Owner Information 

Name:  

Address:  

City:  State:  Zip:  

Phone:  E-mail:  
  

Agent Information 

Name:  

Address:  

City:  State:  Zip:  

Phone:  E-mail:  

Other contacts:  

  

  

  

3 of 11 Rezoning Application

919-868-3871 philipblackley1418@gmail.com

5-2-22

1522 Salem Church Road
1522 Salem Church Road, Apex, NC 27523

0743815090
1.22

RA HDSF-CZ (8 units/acre)
Medium Density Residential (7 units/acre)

N/A
N/A
N/A

Joshua Blackley
1522 Salem Church Road
Apex NC 27523
919-337-7827 joshua.g.blackley@gmail.com

Philip and Michele Blackley
1522 Salem Church Road
Apex NC 27523

Joshua Blackley

✔

22CZ11

- Page 201 -

abunce
Typewritten Text
$1,000

abunce
Typewritten Text



PETITION INFORMATION   

Application #:  Submittal Date:  

 

 Last Updated: July 1, 2021 

An application has been duly filed requesting that the property described in this application be rezoned from 
                       to                        .  It is understood and acknowledged that if the property is rezoned as requested, the property 
described in this request will be perpetually bound to the use(s) authorized and subject to such conditions as imposed, unless 
subsequently changed or amended as provided for in the Unified Development Ordinance (UDO). It is further understood 
and acknowledged that final plans for any specific development to be made pursuant to any such Conditional Zoning shall 
be submitted for site or subdivision plan approval, as required by the UDO. Use additional pages as needed.  

PROPOSED USES: 

The Rezoned Lands may be used for, and only for, the uses listed immediately below. The permitted uses are subject to 
the limitations and regulations stated in the UDO and any additional limitations or regulations stated below. For 
convenience, some relevant sections of the UDO may be referenced; such references do not imply that other sections of 
the UDO do not apply. 

1   21  

2   22  

3   23  

4   24  

5   25  

6   26  

7   27  

8   28  

9   29  

10   30  

11   31  

12   32  

13   33  

14   34  

15   35  

16   36  

17   37  

18   38  

19   39  

20   40  

4 of 11 Rezoning Application

RA HDSF-CZ

1. Townhouse
2. Accessory Apartment
 

22CZ11

- Page 202 -



PETITION INFORMATION   

Application #:  Submittal Date:  

 

 Last Updated: July 1, 2021 

PROPOSED CONDITIONS: 

The applicant hereby requests that the Town Council of the Town of Apex, pursuant to the Unified Development 
Ordinance, approve the Conditional Zoning for the above listed use(s) subject to the following condition(s). Use additional 
pages as needed. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

LEGISLATIVE CONSIDERATIONS - CONDITIONAL ZONING 

The applicant shall propose site-specific standards and conditions that take into account the following considerations, 
which are considerations that are relevant to the legislative determination of whether or not the proposed conditional 
zoning district rezoning request is in the public interest.  These considerations do not exclude the legislative consideration 
of any other factor that is relevant to the public interest. Use additional pages as needed. 

1)  Consistency with 2045 Land Use Map.  The proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use’s appropriateness for its 
proposed location and consistency with the purposes, goals, objectives, and policies of the 2045 Land Use Map. 

 

 

 

 

 

2)  Compatibility.  The proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use’s appropriateness for its proposed location and 
compatibility with the character of surrounding land uses. 

 

 

 

 

5 of 11 Rezoning Application

22CZ11

- At least 1 pet waste station shall be installed
- Where possible, the main roof areas shall be oriented north and south.
- Protrusions on south facing roofs shall be minimized or grouped to the extent possible

Architectural zoning conditions:
- A mix of brick, wood, stone, fiber cement and/or wood composite materials shall be used

- Vinyl siding is not permitted; however, vinyl windows, decorative elements and trim are permitted

- House entrances for units with front-facing single-car garages shall have a prominent covered porch/stoop area leading to the front door

- The garage shall not protrude more than 1 foot out from the front façade and front porch.

- Garage doors shall have windows, decorative details or carriage-style adornments on them.

- The roof shall be pitched at 5:12 or greater.
- The roofline cannot be a single mass; it must be broken up horizontally and vertically between every unit.

The proposed zoning is not consistent with the 2045 Land Use Map (LUM).  The 2045 

LUM plans for Medium Density Residential (7 units/acre), this application is requesting 

HDSF-CZ (8 units/acre).  The neighboring development (Salem Pointe) is a PUD and therefore 

has a higher density.  HDSF-CZ will allow the new homes to better match existing homes. 

Proposed zoning conditions listed above are aimed to aesthetically match existing homes

in Salem Pointe on New Derby Lane.  Allowing a zoning of HDSF-CZ would allow for 

a more compatible addition to the exisiting neighborhood. 

- Page 203 -



PETITION INFORMATION   

Application #:  Submittal Date:  

 

 Last Updated: July 1, 2021 

  
 

3)  Zoning district supplemental standards.  The proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use’s compliance with Sec 4.4 
Supplemental Standards, if applicable. 

 

 

 

 

 

4)  Design minimizes adverse impact.  The design of the proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use’s minimization of 
adverse effects, including visual impact of the proposed use on adjacent lands; and avoidance of significant adverse 
impacts on surrounding lands regarding trash, traffic, service delivery, parking and loading, odors, noise, glare, and 
vibration and not create a nuisance. 

 

 

 

 

 

5)  Design minimizes environmental impact.  The proposed Conditional Zoning District use’s minimization of environmental 
impacts and protection from significant deterioration of water and air resources, wildlife habitat, scenic resources, and 
other natural resources. 

 

 

 

 

 

6)  Impact on public facilities.  The proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use’s avoidance of having adverse impacts on 
public facilities and services, including roads, potable water and wastewater facilities, parks, schools, police, fire and EMS 
facilities. 

 

 

 

 

 

7)  Health, safety, and welfare.  The proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use’s effect on the health, safety, or welfare 
of the residents of the Town or its ETJ. 
 

 

 

6 of 11 Rezoning Application

22CZ11

The proposed re-zoning/development will comply as applicable to Sec 4.4 Supplemental

Standards. 

The proposed development minimizes adverse effects on adjacent lands.  The 

proposed development would adjoin an exisiting development. 

The proposed development will minimize environmental impact.  Minimal impacts

are expected, extra attention will be focused on the nearby pond during construction. 

No impact is expected to public facilities.  

No impact is expected to health, safety and welfare. 

- Page 204 -



PETITION INFORMATION   

Application #:  Submittal Date:  

 

 Last Updated: July 1, 2021 

8)  Detrimental to adjacent properties.  Whether the proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use is substantially 
detrimental to adjacent properties. 

 

 

 

 

 

9)  Not constitute nuisance or hazard.  Whether the proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use constitutes a nuisance 
or hazard due to traffic impact or noise, or because of the number of persons who will be using the Conditional Zoning 
(CZ) District use. 

 

 

 

 

 

10)  Other relevant standards of this Ordinance.  Whether the proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use complies with 
all standards imposed on it by all other applicable provisions of this Ordinance for use, layout, and general development 
characteristics. 

 

 

 

 

 

7 of 11 Rezoning Application

22CZ11

Proposed future development is not expected to be detrimental to adjacent properties.

A neighborhood meeting was completed on April 7th, 2022.  Comments and concerns 

were normal and nothing detrimental was brought forward, these can be found

later in application. 

Minimal to no impact is expected regarding traffic impact or noise.  A trip generation

 letter is included in this application and the addition of 9 units or less would not

require a Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA).

Upon re-zoning, approval of the site plan would be subject to applicable UDO requirements. 

- Page 205 -



22CZ11

- Page 206 -



22CZ11

- Page 207 -



AFFIDAVIT OF OWNERSHIP: EXHIBIT A – LEGAL DESCRIPTION   

Application #:  22CZ11  Submittal Date:  

 

Last Updated: August 30, 2019 

Insert legal description below. 

 

 

10 of 11 Rezoning Application

From Exhibit "A" of Deed:
 
BEGINNING at a nail in the center line of S.R. 1614 (Salem Church Road), it being a 
corner of the grantors herein, runs thence with the center line of S.R. 1614 (Salem Church 
Road), South 88 degrees 40 minutes 31 seconds East 211.37 feet; thence South 06 
degrees 45 minutes 04 seconds East 229.63 feet to a stake, a new corner for Don S. 
Sutton; thence North 84 degrees 46 minutes West 276.20 feet to a stake, another new 
corner for said Sutton; thence North 09 degrees 59 minutes 50 seconds East 211.02 feet 
to the point and place of BEGINNING, containing 1.218 acres and being designated as 
Tract A on map entitled "Property of Ray T. Williams, et al" dated April 9, 1973 by Smith 
and Smith, surveyors. 

- Page 208 -



4/15/22, 12:02 PM Account Summary - 0099973

https://services.wakegov.com/realestate/Account.asp?id=0099973&stype=owner&owner=Blackley%25%2CPhilip%25&spg=1&cd=01&loc=1522++SA… 1/1

Home Wake County Real Estate Data iMaps
Account Summary Tax Bills

Real Estate ID 0099973 PIN #  0743815090
  
Location Address Property Description
1522 SALEM CHURCH RDSALEM CHURCH RD

Pin/Parcel History  Search Results  New Search 
Account | Buildings | Land | Deeds | Notes | Sales | Photos | Tax Bill | Map

Account
Search

Property Owner
BLACKLEY, DONNA MICHELE SUTTON
BLACKLEY, PHILIP LAMAR
(Use the Deeds link to view any additional owners)

Owner's Mailing Address
256 MARILYN CIR
CARY NC 27513-5212

Property Location Address
1522 SALEM CHURCH RD
APEX NC 27523-7563
 

Administrative Data
Old Map # 570-00000-0089
Map/Scale 0743 20
VCS 20AP900
City
Fire District 23
Township WHITE OAK
Land Class R-<10-HS
ETJ AP
Spec Dist(s)
Zoning RA
History ID 1
History ID 2
Acreage 1.22
Permit Date
Permit #

Transfer Information
 
Deed Date 7/29/2015
Book & Page 16101  1240
Revenue Stamps  
Pkg Sale Date 11/6/1998
Pkg Sale Price $30,000
Land Sale Date
Land Sale Price
  
Improvement Summary
 
Total Units 1
Recycle Units 1
Apt/SC Sqft
Heated Area 1,299

Assessed Value
 
Land Value Assessed $146,500
Bldg. Value Assessed $26,367
  
  
Tax Relief
  
Land Use Value
Use Value Deferment
Historic Deferment
Total Deferred Value

 
 

Use/Hist/Tax Relief
Assessed

 

Total Value Assessed* $172,867

*Wake County assessed building and land values reflect the market value as of January 1, 2020, which is the date of the last
county-wide revaluation. Any inflation, deflation or other economic changes occurring after this date does not affect the
assessed value of the property and cannot be lawfully considered when reviewing the value for adjustment.

The January 1, 2020 values will remain in effect until the next county-wide revaluation. Until that time, any real estate
accounts created or new construction built is assessed according to the 2020 Schedule of Values.

For questions regarding the information displayed on this site, please contact the Department of Tax Administration
at Taxhelp@wakegov.com or call 919-856-5400.

- Page 209 -

http://www.wakegov.com/
http://www.wakegov.com/tax/
https://maps.raleighnc.gov/imaps/
http://services.wakegov.com/ptax/main/billing
https://services.wakegov.com/realestate/pinhistory/default.aspx?reid=0099973
https://services.wakegov.com/realestate/DoSearch.asp?id=0099973&stype=owner&owner=Blackley%25%2CPhilip%25&spg=1&cd=01&loc=1522++SALEM+CHURCH+RD&des=SALEM+CHURCH+RD&pin=0743815090
https://services.wakegov.com/realestate/search.asp?id=0099973&stype=owner&owner=Blackley%25%2CPhilip%25&spg=1&cd=01&loc=1522++SALEM+CHURCH+RD&des=SALEM+CHURCH+RD&pin=0743815090
https://services.wakegov.com/realestate/Building.asp?id=0099973&stype=owner&owner=Blackley%25%2CPhilip%25&spg=1&cd=01&loc=1522++SALEM+CHURCH+RD&des=SALEM+CHURCH+RD&pin=0743815090
https://services.wakegov.com/realestate/Land.asp?id=0099973&stype=owner&owner=Blackley%25%2CPhilip%25&spg=1&cd=01&loc=1522++SALEM+CHURCH+RD&des=SALEM+CHURCH+RD&pin=0743815090
https://services.wakegov.com/realestate/Deeds.asp?id=0099973&stype=owner&owner=Blackley%25%2CPhilip%25&spg=1&cd=01&loc=1522++SALEM+CHURCH+RD&des=SALEM+CHURCH+RD&pin=0743815090
https://services.wakegov.com/realestate/Notes.asp?id=0099973&stype=owner&owner=Blackley%25%2CPhilip%25&spg=1&cd=01&loc=1522++SALEM+CHURCH+RD&des=SALEM+CHURCH+RD&pin=0743815090
https://services.wakegov.com/realestate/ImpSales.asp?id=0099973&stype=owner&owner=Blackley%25%2CPhilip%25&spg=1&cd=01&loc=1522++SALEM+CHURCH+RD&des=SALEM+CHURCH+RD&pin=0743815090
https://services.wakegov.com/realestate/Photo.asp?id=0099973&stype=owner&owner=Blackley%25%2CPhilip%25&spg=1&cd=01&loc=1522++SALEM+CHURCH+RD&des=SALEM+CHURCH+RD&pin=0743815090
http://services.wakegov.com/ptax/main/billing/acctsummary.aspx?search=re&yrs=2&prev=re&id=0099973
https://maps.raleighnc.gov/imaps/?pin=0743815090
mailto:Taxhelp@wakegov.com


- Page 210 -



- Page 211 -



- Page 212 -



- Page 213 -



Wake County Residential Development Notification 

Revised 08/10/2018 

Developer Company Information 
Company Name 
Company Phone Number 
Developer Representative Name 
Developer Representative Phone Number 
Developer Representative Email 

New Residential Subdivision  Information 
Date of Application for Subdivision 
City, Town or Wake County Jurisdiction 
Name of Subdivision 
Address of Subdivision (if unknown enter nearest cross streets) 
REID(s) 
PIN(s) 

Projected Dates Information 
Subdivision Completion Date 
Subdivision Projected First Occupancy Date 

Lot by Lot Development Information 

Unit Type Total # of 
Units 

Se
ni

or
 L

iv
in

g 

St
ud

io
 

1 
Be

dr
oo

m
 

2 
Be

dr
oo

m
 

3 
Be

dr
oo

m
 

4 
Be

dr
oo

m
 

Square Foot  
Range Price Range Anticipated Completion Units & Dates 

Min Max Low High Year # Units Year # Units Year # Units 
Single Family 

Townhomes 

Condos 
Apartments 

Other 

Town of Apex staff will 
enter this information  
into the online WCPSS 
form.

Please complete each 
section of this form and 
submit with your 
application.

Please send any questions 
about this form to:
studentassignment-gis-
group@wcpss.net

X

22CZ11

Not determined at this time, only re-zoning requested
Not determined at this time, only re-zoning requested
Not determined at this time, only re-zoning requested
Not determined at this time, only re-zoning requested
Not determined at this time, only re-zoning requested

Not determined at this time, only re-zoning requested
Apex, NC
Not determined at this time, only re-zoning requested
1522 Salem Church Road

0743815090

01 July 2024
01 August 2024

9 1200 3000 300,000 750,000 2024 9

- Page 214 -



SITE ADDRESS PIN NUM OWNER Mailing Address
846 NEW DERBY LN 0743819023 AGGARWAL, KAPISH KUMAR 846 NEW DERBY LN APEX NC 27523-6409  
855 SALEM POINTE PL 0743808641 ALB TRINITY LLC 855 SALEM POINTE PL APEX NC 27523-6416  
850 NEW DERBY LN 0743818082 ARYAL, SANAT SHARMA, SHRISTI 850 NEW DERBY LN APEX NC 27523-6409  
856 SALEM POINTE PL 0743808727 ARYAL, YOUB ARYAL, PADMA PANDEY 856 SALEM POINTE PL APEX NC 27523-6416  
1522 SALEM CHURCH RD 0743815090 BLACKLEY, DONNA MICHELE SUTTON BLACKLEY, PHILIP LAMAR 256 MARILYN CIR CARY NC 27513-5212  
854 SALEM POINTE PL 0743808746 BYRD, KRISTOPHER LEON BYRD, ALISHA MARLENE 854 SALEM POINTE PL APEX NC 27523-6416  
1013 TAHOE GLEN PL 0743815358 CANNADAY, ROBERT BRUCE CANNADAY, SARAH TUYEN 1013 TAHOE GLEN PL CARY NC 27513-5811  
842 NEW DERBY LN 0743819073 CASSAS, CHRISTY M 842 NEW DERBY LN APEX NC 27523-6409  
838 SALEM POINTE PL 0743900736 COHEN, ANNA 1602 SHEPHERDS GLADE DR APEX NC 27523-6949  
1505 FAIR WEATHER CT 0743801745 COLEMAN, WILLIAM B COLEMAN, MONICA H 1505 FAIR WEATHER CT APEX NC 27523-5987  
852 NEW DERBY LN 0743818052 CULOTTA, OLIVIA M 852 NEW DERBY LN APEX NC 27523-6409  
853 SALEM POINTE PL 0743808671 DAIGLE, MELINDA B 853 SALEM POINTE PL APEX NC 27523-6416  
1509 SALEM CHURCH RD 0743813303 ELLIOTT, DAVID JOSHUA ELLIOTT, KIMBERLY ANDRA 1509 SALEM CHURCH RD APEX NC 27523-7564  
844 NEW DERBY LN 0743819053 FINDIK, KASIM FINDIK, GAMZE 844 NEW DERBY LN APEX NC 27523-6409  
0 SALEM CHURCH RD 0743814248 GARBETT, ASHLEY W WAPLES, ASHLEY LYNN 1521 SALEM CHURCH RD APEX NC 27523-7564  
0 TAHOE GLEN PL 0743817208 GLEN AT WESTHIGH OWNERS ASSOCIATION INC CHARLESTON MANAGEMENT 812 SALEM WOODS DR RALEIGH NC 27615-3346
851 SALEM POINTE PL 0743808691 GU, LONG 851 SALEM POINTE PL APEX NC 27523-6416  
855 NEW DERBY LN 0743808838 HARTMAN, JOANN M 855 NEW DERBY LN APEX NC 27523-6409  
1512 SALEM CHURCH RD 0743805704 HESTER, EDWARD L III HESTER, PATSY P 1512 SALEM CHURCH RD APEX NC 27523-7563  
853 NEW DERBY LN 0743808858 HU, JACK WEIYU 853 NEW DERBY LN APEX NC 27523-6409  
841 NEW DERBY LN 0743809898 HUANG, CHARLES SHOU SHEN 841 NEW DERBY LN APEX NC 27523-6409  
845 NEW DERBY LN 0743809848 HUDSON, TAYLER M HUDSON, MEGAN NICOLE 845 NEW DERBY LN APEX NC 27523-6409  
844 SALEM POINTE PL 0743809766 IMMANI, SATYA SRINIVAS IMMANI, SANGEETHA 844 SALEM POINTE PL APEX NC 27523-6416  
847 SALEM POINTE PL 0743809632 JUNG, CLINTON NATHANIEL JUNG, PATRICIA SUE 847 SALEM POINTE PL APEX NC 27523-6416  
837 NEW DERBY LN 0743900838 KONAKALLA, AYYAPPA SRAVANTHI CHAKKA, NAGA RATHNA SUBHA 837 NEW DERBY LN APEX NC 27523-6409  
846 SALEM POINTE PL 0743809746 LANGKAMP, SCOTT MICHAEL LANGKAMP, CARMELA MARIA 846 SALEM POINTE PL APEX NC 27523-6416  
858 SALEM POINTE PL 0743807796 LIN, SHIH-CHUN 858 SALEM POINTE PL APEX NC 27523-6416  
1503 FAIR WEATHER CT 0743800709 MALLOY, JOHN F MALLOY, KAREN 1503 FAIR WEATHER CT APEX NC 27523-5987  
1009 TAHOE GLEN PL 0743815350 MUDIGONDA, SARATH CHANDRA KARRA, SRIVALLI 1009 TAHOE GLEN PL CARY NC 27513-5811  
843 NEW DERBY LN 0743809878 NEUPANE, PADAM NEUPANE, BISHNU 843 NEW DERBY LN APEX NC 27523-6409  
842 SALEM POINTE PL 0743809796 PANDEY, PRABHAKAR MISHRA, PREETI 842 SALEM POINTE PL APEX NC 27523-6416  
840 NEW DERBY LN 0743910003 PANIGRAHI, SANGRAM KESHARI MISHRA, PRACHI 840 NEW DERBY LN APEX NC 27523-6409  
851 NEW DERBY LN 0743808888 RASH, FAITH G 851 NEW DERBY LN APEX NC 27523-6409  
852 SALEM POINTE PL 0743808776 REN, TIANTIAN 2508 SIDEWINDER CT APEX NC 27523-8503  
836 NEW DERBY LN 0743910043 SAINI, VINOD KUMAR SAINI, ALKA 836 NEW DERBY LN APEX NC 27523-6409  
858 NEW DERBY LN 0743817064 SALEM POINTE OWNERS ASSOCIATION INC 1100 PERIMETER PARK DR STE 112 MORRISVILLE NC 27560-9119  
1604 SALEM CHURCH RD 0743809469 SALEM POINTE OWNERS ASSOCIATION INC REALMANAGE PO BOX 803555 DALLAS TX 75380-3555
0 NEW DERBY LN 0743819029 SALEM POINTE OWNERS ASSOCIATION INC 8480 HONEYCUTT RD STE 200 RALEIGH NC 27615-2261  
854 NEW DERBY LN 0743818032 SCRUGGS, ASHLYN LUELLA TRUSTEE THE ASHLYN LUELLA SCRUGGS REVOCABLE TRUST 854 NEW DERBY LN APEX NC 27523-6409  
1005 TAHOE GLEN PL 0743815262 SHADFORTH, IAN PAUL YAU, JEAN CHRISTINE 1005 TAHOE GLEN PL CARY NC 27513-5811  
857 NEW DERBY LN 0743808807 SHOEMAKER, ABIGAIL 857 NEW DERBY LN APEX NC 27523-6409  
856 NEW DERBY LN 0743818002 STOVER, REX ALAN 856 NEW DERBY LN APEX NC 27523-6409  
1505 SALEM CHURCH RD 0743811314 TEW, DONALD R TEW, DEBRA P 1505 SALEM CHURCH RD APEX NC 27523-7564  
1529 SALEM CHURCH RD 0743818238 WARWICK, JOHN W 1535 SALEM CHURCH RD APEX NC 27523-7564  
847 NEW DERBY LN 0743809828 ZHANG, ZHIQIANG WANG, SHUO 847 NEW DERBY LN APEX NC 27523-6409  

APEX TOWN OF PO BOX 250 APEX NC 27502-0250
Current Tenant 1522 Salem Church RD APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 1529 Salem Church RD APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 1531 Salem Church RD APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 838 Salem Pointe PL APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 852 Salem Pointe PL APEX NC 27523

The attachments on the following pages were mailed 
to the above addresses on March 22, 2022. 

- Page 215 -



NOTICE OF NEIGHBORHOOD MEETING 
or disclosed to third parties. 

Page 4 of 10 Neighborhood Meeting Instruction Packet & Affidavit  Last Updated: December 21, 2021  

 

Date 

Dear Neighbor: 
You are invited to a neighborhood meeting to review and discuss the development proposal at 

  

Address(es)  PIN(s) 

in accordance with the Town of Apex Neighborhood Meeting procedures. This meeting is intended to be a way 
for the applicant to discuss the project and review the proposed plans with adjacent neighbors and 
neighborhood organizations before the submittal of an application to the Town. This provides neighbors an 
opportunity to raise questions and discuss any concerns about the impacts of the project before it is officially 
submitted. If you are unable to attend, please refer to the Project Contact Information page for ways to contact 
the applicant. Notified neighbors may request that the applicant provide updates and send plans via email or 
mail. Once an application has been submitted to the Town, it may be tracked using the Interactive 
Development Map or the Apex Development Report located on the Town of Apex website at 
http://www.apexnc.org/180/Planning-Community-Development.  

A Neighborhood Meeting is required because this project includes (check all that apply): 

Application Type Approving Authority 

Rezoning (including Planned Unit Development) Town Council 

Major Site Plan 
Technical Review 
Committee (staff) 

Special Use Permit 
Board of Adjustment 

(QJPH*) 

Residential Master Subdivision Plan (excludes exempt subdivisions) 
Technical Review 
Committee (staff) 

*Quasi-Judicial Public Hearing: The Board of Adjustment cannot discuss the project prior to the public hearing.

The following is a description of the proposal (also see attached map(s) and/or plan sheet(s)):

 

 

Estimated submittal date:  

MEETING INFORMATION: 

Property Owner(s) name(s):  

Applicant(s):   

Contact information (email/phone):  

Meeting Address:   

Date/Time of meeting**:   

Welcome:  Project Presentation:  Question & Answer:  
**Meetings shall occur between 5:00 p.m.-9:00 p.m. on a Monday through Thursday (excluding Town recognized 
holidays). If you have questions about the general process for this application, please contact the Planning and Community 
Development Department at 919-249-3426. You may also find information about the Apex Planning Department and on-
going planning efforts at http://www.apexnc.org/180/Planning-Community-Development. 

Ó¿®½¸ îî²¼ô îðîî

ïëîî Í¿´»³ Ý¸«®½¸ Î±¿¼ ðéìíèïëðçð

ì

É» ¿®» ®»¯«»¬·²¹ ¬± Î»óÆ±²» ïëîî Í¿´»³ Ý¸«®½¸ º®±³ Îß ¬± Ó»¼·«³ Ü»²·¬§ øèóïð «²·¬÷ º±® ¬¸» °±·¾·´·¬§ ±º º«¬«®» ¼»ª»´±°³»²¬ò

Ú«¬«®» ¼»ª»´±°³»²¬ ©±«´¼ ¾» ¿ ¬±©²¸±³» ½±³³«²·¬§ ·³·´¿® ¬± ¬¸» ¿¼¶¿½»²¬ ½±³³«²·¬§ ±² Ò»© Ü»®¾§ Ô¿²»ò

ðï Ö«²» îðîî

Ð¸·´·° Ôò Þ´¿½µ´»§
Ð¸·´·° Ôò Þ´¿½µ´»§ ¿²¼ Ö±¸«¿ Ùò Þ´¿½µ´»§

¶±¸«¿ò¹ò¾´¿½µ´»§à¹³¿·´ò½±³ øçïç÷ ííéóéèîé

Æ±±³ Ó»»¬·²¹å Í»» ¿¬¬¿½¸³»²¬ º±® ¼·¿´ó·² ¿²¼ ´·²µ

Ì¸«®¼¿§ô ß°®·´ é¬¸ô îðîî ë°³ ó é°³

ë°³ ëïë°³ ëìë°³

This attachment was mailed on March 22, 
2022 to the addresses provided by the Town 
of Apex. 

- Page 216 -



PROJECT CONTACT INFORMATION

or disclosed to third parties.

Page 5 of 10 Neighborhood Meeting Instruction Packet & Affidavit Last Updated: December 28, 2021  

Development Contacts: 

Project Name:  Zoning:  

Location:  

Property PIN(s):  Acreage/Square Feet:  

Property Owner:  

Address:  

City:  State:  Zip:  

Phone:  Email:  

Developer: 

Address: 

City: State: Zip: 

Phone: Fax: Email: 

Engineer:  

Address:  

City:  State:  Zip:  

Phone:  Fax: Email:  

Builder (if known):  

Address:  

City:  State: Zip: 

Phone:  Fax: Email: 

Please note that Town staff will not have complete information about a proposed development until the 
application is submitted for review. If you have a question about Town development standards and how 
they relate to the proposed development, please contact the appropriate staff person listed below. 

Town of Apex Department Contacts 

Planning and Community Development Department Main Number 
(Provide development name or location to be routed to correct planner) (919) 249-3426

Parks, Recreation & Cultural Resources Department 
Angela Reincke, Parks and Greenways Planner (919) 249-7468

Public Works - Transportation 
Russell Dalton, Traffic Engineering Manager (919) 249-3358

Water Resources Department 
Jessica Bolin, Environmental Engineering Manager (Stormwater, Sedimentation & 

Erosion Control) 
James Gregg, Utility Engineering Manager (Water & Sewer) 

(919) 249-3537

(919) 249-3324

Electric Utilities Division 
Rodney Smith, Electric Technical Services Manager (919) 249-3342

ïëîî Í¿´»³ Ý¸«®½¸ Î±¿¼

ïëîî Í¿´»³ Ý¸«®½¸ Î±¿¼

Îß

ðéìíèïëðçð ïòîî

Ð¸·´·° Ôò Þ´¿½µ´»§

 Owner

Ö±¸«¿ Ùò Þ´¿½µ´»§

Ë²µ²±©² ¿¬ ¬¸· ¬·³»

ïëîî Í¿´»³ Ý¸«®½¸ Î±¿¼

ß°»¨ ÒÝ îéëîí

çïçóèêèóíèéï °¸·´·°¾´¿½µ´»§ïìïèà¹³¿·´ò½±³

ïëîî Í¿´»³ Ý¸«®½¸ Î±¿¼

ß°»¨ ÒÝ îéëîí

çïçóííéóéèîé ¶±¸«¿ò¹ò¾´¿½µ´»§à¹³¿·´ò½±³

This attachment was mailed on March 22, 
2022 to the addresses provided by the Town 
of Apex. 

- Page 217 -



Page 6 of 10 Neighborhood Meeting Instruction Packet & Affidavit  Last Updated: December 21, 2021  

Providing Input to Town Council:  
Each Town Council meeting agenda includes a Public Forum time when anyone is permitted to speak for 
three (3) minutes on any topic with the exception of items listed as Public Hearings for that meeting. The 
Town Council meets on the 2nd and 4th Tuesdays of each month at 6:00 p.m. (except for holidays, see schedule 
of meetings at http://www.apexnc.org/838/Agendas-Minutes). You may also contact Town Council by e-mail 
at AllCouncil@apexnc.org. 

Private Agreements and Easement Negotiation:   

The Town of Apex cannot enforce private agreements between developers and neighbors and is not a party 
to the easement and right-of-way negotiation that occurs between developers and neighboring property 
owners for easements or rights-of-way that are necessary to build the project.  

It is recommended that all private agreements be made in writing and that if a property owner feels it 
necessary, they should obtain private legal counsel in order to protect their interests in both private 
agreements and during easement negotiations. The only conditions that the Town of Apex can enforce are 
those conditions that are made a part of the conditional zoning of the property by agreement of the 
developer and the Town.  

As an example, if a developer offers to build a fence for a neighbor to mitigate some impact, the Town can 
only enforce the construction of the fence if the fence becomes a condition of the rezoning. This would occur 
by the developer offering the condition as part of their conditional zoning application package or at the Town 
Council public hearing on the conditional zoning and the Town accepting it as a condition. Private agreements 
regarding a fence being constructed will not be enforced by the Town. 

To request that any agreement with a developer is made a part of the conditional zoning at the time of 
approval, you may ask at the Town Council public hearing if the agreement is included in the conditions. If it 
is not, you may request that the Town Council not approve the rezoning without the agreement being 
included in the conditions (note that it is up to Town Council whether to approve or deny the rezoning but 

conditions can be viewed any time after a rezoning is submitted on the Interactive Development Map at: 
http://apexnc.maps.arcgis.com/apps/OnePane/basicviewer/index.html?appid=fa9ba2017b784030b15ef4d
a27d9e795 

Documentation:   

Neighbors to a requested new development and/or rezoning are strongly encouraged to fully document (such 
as through dated photographs) the condition of their property before any work is initiated for the new 
development. Stormwater controls installed on developed property are not designed to and will likely not 
remove 100% of the soil particles transported by stormwater runoff. As a result, creeks and ponds could 
become cloudy for a period of time after rain events. 

This attachment was mailed on March 22, 
2022 to the addresses provided by the Town 
of Apex. 

- Page 218 -



COMMON CONSTRUCTION ISSUES & WHO TO CALL 
 

or disclosed to third parties. 

Page 7 of 10 Neighborhood Meeting Instruction Packet & Affidavit  Last Updated: December 21, 2021  

Noise & Hours of Construction: Non-Emergency Police 919-362-8661 
Noise from tree removal, grading, excavating, paving, and building structures is a routine part of the 
construction process. The Town generally limits construction hours from 7:00 a.m. to 8:30 p.m. so that there 
are quiet times even during the construction process. Note that construction outside of these hours is 
allowed with special permission from the Town when it makes more sense to have the construction occur at 
night, often to avoid traffic issues. In addition, the Town limits hours of blasting rock to Monday through 
Friday from 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. Report violations of construction hours and other noise complaints to the 
Non-Emergency Police phone number at 919-362-8661. 
Construction Traffic: James Misciagno 919-372-7470 
Construction truck traffic will be heavy throughout the development process, including but not limited to 
removal of trees from site, loads of dirt coming in and/or out of the site, construction materials such as brick 
and wood brought to the site, asphalt and concrete trucks come in to pave, etc. The Town requires a 
construction entrance that is graveled to try to prevent as much dirt from leaving the site as possible. If dirt 
does get into the road, the Town can require they clean the street .  
Road Damage & Traffic Control: Water Resources  Infrastructure Inspections 919-362-8166 
There can be issues with roadway damage, roadway improvements, and traffic control. Potholes, rutting, 
inadequate lanes/signing/striping, poor traffic control, blocked sidewalks/paths are all common issues that should 
be reported to Water Resources  Infrastructure Inspections at 919-249-3427. The Town will get NCDOT involved 
if needed. 

Parking Violations: Non-Emergency Police 919-362-8661 

property. Note that parking in the right-of-way is allowed, but Town regulations prohibit parking within 15 feet of 
driveways so as not to block sight triangles. Trespassing and parking complaints should be reported to the Non-
Emergency Police phone number at 919-362-8661. 
Dirt in the Road: James Misciagno 919-372-7470 
Sediment (dirt) and mud gets into the existing roads due to rain events and/or vehicle traffic. These incidents 
should be reported to James Misciagno. He will coordinate the cleaning of the roadways with the developer. 

Dirt on Properties or in Streams: James Misciagno 919-372-7470 
 Danny Smith Danny.Smith@ncdenr.gov 
Sediment (dirt) can leave the site and get onto adjacent properties or into streams and stream buffers; it is typically 
transported off-site by rain events. These incidents should be reported to James Misciagno at 919-372-7470 so 
that he can coordinate the appropriate repairs with the developer. Impacts to the streams and stream buffers 
should also be reported to Danny Smith (danny.smith@ncdenr.gov) with the State. 

Dust: James Misciagno 919-372-7470 
During dry weather dust often becomes a problem blowing into existing neighborhoods or roadways. These 
incidents should be reported to James Misciagno at 919-372-7470 so that he can coordinate the use of water 
trucks onsite with the grading contractor to help control the dust. 

Trash: James Misciagno 919-372-7470 
Excessive garbage and construction debris can blow around on a site or even off of the site. These incidents should 
be reported to James Misciagno at 919-372-7470. He will coordinate the cleanup and trash collection with the 
developer/home builder. 

Temporary Sediment Basins: James Misciagno 919-372-7470 
Temporary sediment basins during construction (prior to the conversion to the final stormwater pond) are often 
quite unattractive. Concerns should be reported to James Misciagno at 919-372-7470 so that he can coordinate 
the cleaning and/or mowing of the slopes and bottom of the pond with the developer. 

Stormwater Control Measures: Jessica Bolin 919-249-3537 
Post-construction concerns related to Stormwater Control Measures (typically a stormwater pond) such as 
conversion and long-term maintenance should be reported to Jessica Bolin at 919-249-3537.  

Electric Utility Installation: Rodney Smith 919-249-3342 
Concerns with electric utility installation can be addressed by the Apex Electric Utilities Department. Contact 
Rodney Smith at 919-249-3342. 

This attachment was mailed on March 22, 
2022 to the addresses provided by the Town 
of Apex. 

- Page 219 -



Join Zoom Meeting
https://us05web.zoom.us/j/87110182084?pwd=aXY5YUxtVkpUUmhYMVJKZHlpWitPUT09

Meeting ID: 871 1018 2084
Passcode: 613735
One tap mobile
+16465588656,,87110182084#,,,,*613735# US (New York)
+13017158592,,87110182084#,,,,*613735# US (Washington DC)

Dial by your location
        +1 646 558 8656 US (New York)
        +1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC)
        +1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago)
        +1 669 900 9128 US (San Jose)
        +1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma)
        +1 346 248 7799 US (Houston)
Meeting ID: 871 1018 2084
Passcode: 613735
Find your local number: https://us05web.zoom.us/u/ld4smydDNF

ZOOM MEETING INSTRUCTIONS

This attachment was mailed on March 
22, 2022 to the addresses provided by 
the Town of Apex. 

- Page 220 -



Land Proposed for Re‐Zoning

This attachment was mailed on March 
22, 2022 to the addresses provided by 
the Town of Apex. 

- Page 221 -



Excerpt from 2045 
Land Use Map

This attachment was mailed on March 
22, 2022 to the addresses provided by 
the Town of Apex. 

- Page 222 -



Conceptual Design – Possible Layout with 8 Townhomes

This attachment was mailed on March 
22, 2022 to the addresses provided by 
the Town of Apex. 

- Page 223 -



SUMMARY OF DISCUSSION FROM THE NEIGHBORHOOD MEETING 
This document is a public record under the North Carolina Public Records Act and may be published on the Town’s website  
or disclosed to third parties. 

Page 9 of 10 Neighborhood Meeting Instruction Packet & Affidavit  Last Updated: December 21, 2021  

 

Property Owner(s) name(s): _____________________________________________________ 

Applicant(s):  ______________________________________________________________ 

Contact information (email/phone):   _______________________________________________ 

Meeting Address:  ___________________________________________________________ 

Date of meeting:  __________________________ Time of meeting:  ____________________________ 
 

Please summarize the questions/comments and your responses from the Neighborhood Meeting or 
emails/phone calls received in the spaces below (attach additional sheets, if necessary). Please state if/how the 
project has been modified in response to any concerns. The response should not be “Noted” or “No Response”. 
There has to be documentation of what consideration the neighbor’s concern was given and justification for why 
no change was deemed warranted. 
 

Question/Concern #1: 

_________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________ 
  

Applicant’s Response: 

_______________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________ 

 

Question/Concern #2: 

_________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________ 
  

Applicant’s Response: 

_______________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________ 

 

Question/Concern #3: 

_________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Applicant’s Response: 

_______________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________ 

 

Question/Concern #4: 

_________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________ 
  

Applicant’s Response: 

_______________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________ 
_______________________________________________________________________

Questions/Concerns noted by neighbors and applicants responses are summarized 
on the next page.  This summary was emailed to participants the following day and 
no additional comments were received.  None of the concerns discussed warrant any 
change to the re-zoning plans/application.  

919-337-7827; joshua.g.blackley@gmail.com

Philip and Michele Blackley
Joshua Blackley

Zoom Call, Call-in information provided in mail
April 7th, 2022 5pm - 7pm  

- Page 224 -



QUESTION/CONCERN APPLICANT RESPONSE
What will happen to the tree line adjacent to Salem Pointe? There will be a 15 foot buffer required on that property line.  If the trees are not on the property of 1522 Salem Church 

Road then they will remain in place.
What will be the cost of new townehomes? The cost will depend on the approved site plan but the intent is for the future development to match existing homes so 

the cost should be comparable to Salem Pointe
What is the plan for storm water retention?  A storm water 
retention pond on the property would be a safety concern.

The intent is to tie-in to the existing storm water retention pond that is currently servicing Salem Pointe.  If that is not 
possible, exact location of pond would be decided during the site plan

Would the future development join the exisiting HOA at Salem 
Pointe?

This will be determined at a later time but it would make sense for that to happen. 

What will be the design of the future homes? The intent is for the future development to match existing homes at Salem Pointe so the design of the homes will be 
similar to existing homes. 

Would future residents of the homes use the Playground at 
Salem Pointe?

This would depend on HOA approval. 

Will only adding a small amount of units look odd?  Why are 
they not doing one large development?

The site plan will be approved by the town and the intent would be for the development to be aesthetically pleasing.  The 
owner only owns 1522 Salem Church Road so this is the only part of the area that is under their control at this time. 

Will the construction traffic use New Derby Lane during 
contruction?

It is likely that they would access the property directly from Salem Church Road during site civil work (grading) but during 
vertical construction, yes, they would likely need to use New Derby Lane for access.

What about debris/dirt during contruction. "COMMON CONSTRUCTION ISSUES & WHO TO CALL" was provided in the handout.  For this issue the contact is 
James Misciagno at 919-372-7470

Parking is already a challenge in the neighborhood, this will 
add to the problem.

This concern is noted.  There is a required amount of guest parking per unit which will be discussed during the site plan. 

There is a concern that the increased traffic will be a safety 
concern.

A traffic impact analysis will be conducted.  Minimal traffic impact is anticipiated as the amound of units added would be 
9 or less. 

There is a preference for the entrance to be off Salem Church 
Road instead of New Derby Lane.

This concern is noted.  The entrance will likely be from New Derby Lane based but will be finalized during the site plan.  

Will there be enough turnaround space for waste and 
emergency trucks?

This question is noted and will be discussed during the site plan.

It is preferred that the homes have 2 car garages to mitigate 
parking issues.

This concern is noted and will be discussed during the site plan. 

It is preferred that there are fences around the new 
development for privacy.

This concern is noted and will be discussed during the site plan. There are buffer requirements that will be followed as 
per the UDO. 

- Page 225 -



17:01:51 From  Christy Cassas  to  Everyone:
 
17:03:12 From  Faith  to  Everyone:
 
17:03:27 From  JH  to  Everyone:
 weiyuhu@hotmail.com
17:40:11 From  patsy hester  to  Everyone:
 1512 Salem Church Road
17:40:56 From  patsy hester  to  Everyone:
 How will resients access the townhouses?
17:41:20 From  patsy hester  to  Everyone:
 What about traffic an off street parking?
17:42:48 From  Joshua Blackley  to  Everyone:
 Access is planned to be from existing road at New Derby Lane
17:45:10 From  patsy hester  to  Everyone:
 hat kin of boundary will be provided? Will there be fencing erected? That 
would infringe on our property since it is so close to this
17:45:58 From  patsy hester  to  Everyone:
 There is no fence beyon the roag area ‐ it is basically open!!!
17:46:33 From  patsy hester  to  Everyone:
 sorry about the typing.  But this seems to be tight for 8 townhouses.
17:46:59 From  patsy hester  to  Everyone:
 Yees, our side since we live here.
17:47:43 From  Joshua Blackley  to  Everyone:
 30 foot buffer off salem church road, 15 foot buffer required between the 
townhomes, 20 foot buffer required of adjoining single family property
17:48:43 From  patsy hester  to  Everyone:
 We already have a problem with traffic coming fast aroun the curve that is 
dangerous.  More housing is going to affect it even more.
17:49:36 From  patsy hester  to  Everyone:
 No more entrances!!
17:49:37 From  Joshua Blackley  to  Everyone:
 A traffic analysis will be completed to account for new traffic
17:56:40 From  patsy hester  to  Everyone:
 Request builder/developer erect fences to provide privacy and protection 
for us.
17:57:40 From  Joann  to  Everyone:
 Joann Hartman  
17:57:47 From  patsy hester  to  Everyone:
 please add me to email list phester@yahoo.com so we do not have to enter a 
long zoom address!!
17:58:45 From  patsy hester  to  Everyone:
 Does a 2 car garage require more room?
17:59:30 From  patsy hester  to  Everyone:
 is this being done by the owners?
18:01:02 From  Christy Cassas  to  Everyone:
 Appreciate your presentation, today. Thank you.  Need to head out.
18:01:42 From  patsy hester  to  Everyone:
 2021 N Salwm St is being rezoned for 6 acres to buld townhomes.
18:03:35 From  patsy hester  to  Everyone:

The following (2) pages are a transcript of the Zoom Chat during the neighborhood 
meeting.  

- Page 226 -



 where is the music?  We are tight behind and do not hear it/
18:05:13 From  patsy hester  to  Everyone:
 Behind us on the right .
18:05:35 From  patsy hester  to  Everyone:
 actually to the right of our neighbor's
18:06:45 From  patsy hester  to  Everyone:
 The ones next door do not have a 20 ft buffer ‐ the fence is right on top 
of our field fencing.
18:07:02 From  patsy hester  to  Everyone:
 It would be better if there were fewer townhouses.
18:07:36 From  patsy hester  to  Everyone:
 builders do not always follow protocol
18:09:20 From  patsy hester  to  Everyone:
 I though your grandparents owned the land
18:10:02 From  patsy hester  to  Everyone:
 OK, so Don & Mandy sold to your dad.
18:10:51 From  patsy hester  to  Everyone:
 The HOA for this one should be much lower since there is less space
18:11:53 From  patsy hester  to  Everyone:
 Bye
18:12:38 From  Joshua Blackley  to  Everyone:
 Rezoning done by owners
18:12:55 From  Joshua Blackley  to  Everyone:
 Site plan will be done by future developer/builder

- Page 227 -



NEIGHBORHOOD MEETING SIGN-IN SHEET 
This document is a public record under the North Carolina Public Records Act and may be published on the Town’s website or disclosed to third parties. 

Page 8 of 10 Neighborhood Meeting Instruction Packet & Affidavit  Last Updated: December 21, 2021  

 

Meeting Address:   _______________________________________________________________ 

Date of meeting:  ______________________________ Time of meeting:  ____________________________ 

Property Owner(s) name(s):  _________________________________________________________ 

Applicant(s):  ___________________________________________________________________ 
 

Please print your name below, state your address and/or affiliation with a neighborhood group, and provide your phone number and email address. 
Providing your name below does not represent support or opposition to the project; it is for documentation purposes only. For virtual meetings, applicants 
must include all known participants and request the information below. 
 

 NAME/ORGANIZATION ADDRESS PHONE # EMAIL 
SEND PLANS 
& UPDATES 

1.    

2.      

3.      

4.      

5.      

6.      

7.      

8.      

9.      

10.      

11.      

12.      

13.      

14.      

Use additional sheets, if necessary. 

Philip Blackley, Owner

Christy Cassas 842 New Derby Lane

Faith Rash 851 New Derby Lane

Jack Hu 853 New Derby Lane

Joann Hartman 855 New Derby Lane

Patsy Hester 1512 Salem Church Road

Philip and Michele Blackley
Joshua Blackley

Zoom Call, Call-in information provided in mail
April 7th, 2022 5pm - 7pm  

- Page 228 -



- Page 229 -



Joshua Blackley
1522 Salem Church Road
Apex, NC 27523

April 15th, 2022 

Town of Apex 
Planning and Community Development 
P.O. Box 250 
Apex, NC 27502 

Subject: Trip Generation Study 
1522 Salem Church Road 

This letter provides trip generation information for the proposed Re-Zoning and therefore possible future 
development at 1522 Salem Church Road located in Apex, NC.  The purpose of this study is to illustrate the trip 
generation estimates with the addition of nine or fewer townhomes to the existing neighborhood.  The existing 
development (Salem Pointe) consists of 70 townhomes.  The proposed Re-Zoning would allow for the addition of no 
more than nine additional townhomes.  Access to the new homes will be provided through existing connection at New 
Derby Lane.  During the Pre-Application meeting with the Town of Apex (Town) it was stated that a Traffic Impact 
Analysis will not be required for the site, provided the site will not generate more trips than 1,000 daily trips or 100 
trips during either the AM or PM peak hour.  Trip Generation was completed according to the rates and methodology 
outlined in the ITE Trip Generation Manual, 10th Edition.   

The below table shows a summary of the trip generation estimate. 

Location ITE Code Size Daily 
Traffic 

AM Peak 
Hour 

PM Peak 
Hour 

Existing 
Townhomes 

220 70 Units 513 33 39

Proposed 
Development 

220 9 Units 66 5 5

TOTAL 79 Units 579 38 44 

ITE Trip Generation Manual #220 – Multifamily Housing (Low-Rise) – containing one or two floors. 
ITE 220 = 7.32 Daily Trips per Dwelling Unit 
ITE 220 = .46 AM Peak Hour Trips per Dwelling Unit 
ITE 220 = .56 PM Peak Hour Trips per Dwelling Unit 

It is estimated that the addition of the (9) units to the existing development would add 66 vehicle trips per day and 
an additional 5 trips for both the AM and PM peak hours.  It is our understanding that with the totals in the above 
table that a Traffic Impact Analysis can be waived, with the low total number of trips expected to be generated a
full traffic study does not appear necessary.  

If you should have any questions or concerns please contact me at 919-337-7827. 

Sincerely, 

Joshua Blackley 
Civil Engineer 

- Page 230 -



PLANNING BOARD REPORT TO TOWN COUNCIL
Rezoning Case: 

Planning Board Meeting Date:

Page 1 Planning Board Report to Town Council

Report Requirements:
Per NCGS §160D-604(b), all proposed amendments to the zoning ordinance or zoning map shall be submitted to the 
Planning Board for review and comment. If no written report is received from the Planning Board within 30 days of referral 
of the amendment to the Planning Board, the Town Council may act on the amendment without the Planning Board report. 
The Town Council is not bound by the recommendations, if any, of the Planning Board.

Per NCGS §160D-604(d), the Planning Board shall advise and comment on whether the proposed action is consistent with 
all applicable officially adopted plans, and provide a written recommendation to the Town Council that addresses plan 
consistency and other matters as deemed appropriate by the Planning Board, but a comment by the Planning Board that a 
proposed amendment is inconsistent with the officially adopted plans shall not preclude consideration or approval of the 
proposed amendment by the Town Council.

PROJECT DESCRIPTION:
Acreage:

PIN(s):

Current Zoning:

Proposed Zoning: 

Current 2045 Land Use Map:

If rezoned as proposed, the 2045 Land Use Map Designation will change to:

Town Limits:

Applicable Officially Adopted Plans:
The Board must state whether the project is consistent or inconsistent with the following officially adopted plans, 
if applicable. Applicable plans have a check mark next to them. 

2045 Land Use Map
Consistent Inconsistent Reason:

Apex Transportation Plan
Consistent Inconsistent Reason:

Parks, Recreation, Open Space, and Greenways Plan
Consistent Inconsistent Reason:

Date:

604(b), all proposed amendments to the zoning ordinance or zoning map shall be submitted to the 

July 11, 2022

#22CZ11 1522 Salem Church Rd

±1.22
0743815090

Residential Argricultrural (RA)

High Density Single-Family Residential-Conditional Zoning (HDSF-CZ)

Medium Density Residential

ETJ

Medium/High Density Residential

If rezoned, the 2045 Land Use

Map will automatically be amended to Medium/High Density Residential

- Page 231 -



PLANNING BOARD REPORT TO TOWN COUNCIL
Rezoning Case: 

Planning Board Meeting Date:

Page 2 Planning Board Report to Town Council

Legislative Considerations:
The applicant shall propose site-specific standards and conditions that take into account the following 
considerations, which are considerations that are relevant to the legislative determination of whether or not the 
proposed conditional zoning district rezoning request is in the public interest.  These considerations do not 
exclude the legislative consideration of any other factor that is relevant to the public interest.

1. Consistency with 2045 Land Use Plan. appropriateness 
for its proposed location and consistency with the purposes, goals, objectives, and policies of the 2045 Land 
Use Plan.

Consistent Inconsistent Reason:

2. Compatibility. The proposed Conditional 
location and compatibility with the character of surrounding land uses.

Consistent Inconsistent Reason:

3. Zoning district supplemental standards. The proposed Conditional Zoning 
with Sec. 4.4 Supplemental Standards, if applicable.

Consistent Inconsistent Reason:

4. Design minimizes adverse impact. The design of the proposed Conditional 
minimization of adverse effects, including visual impact of the proposed use on adjacent lands; and 
avoidance of significant adverse impacts on surrounding lands regarding trash, traffic, service delivery, 
parking and loading, odors, noise, glare, and vibration and not create a nuisance.

Consistent Inconsistent Reason:

5. Design minimizes environmental impact. minimization of 
environmental impacts and protection from significant deterioration of water and air resources, wildlife 
habitat, scenic resources, and other natural resources.

Consistent Inconsistent Reason:

If rezoned, the 2045 Land Use

Map will automatically be amended to Medium/High Density Residential.

July 11, 2022

#22CZ11 1522 Salem Church Rd

- Page 232 -



PLANNING BOARD REPORT TO TOWN COUNCIL
Rezoning Case: 

Planning Board Meeting Date:

Page 3 Planning Board Report to Town Council

6. Impact on public facilities.
impacts on public facilities and services, including roads, potable water and wastewater facilities, parks, 
schools, police, fire and EMS facilities.

Consistent Inconsistent Reason:

7. Health, safety, and welfare. effect on the health, 
safety, or welfare of the residents of the Town or its ETJ.

Consistent Inconsistent Reason:

8. Detrimental to adjacent properties.  Whether the proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use is 
substantially detrimental to adjacent properties.

Consistent Inconsistent Reason:

9. Not constitute nuisance or hazard. Whether the proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use constitutes 
a nuisance or hazard due to traffic impact or noise, or because of the number of persons who will be using 
the Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use.

Consistent Inconsistent Reason:

10. Other relevant standards of this Ordinance. Whether the proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use 
complies with all standards imposed on it by all other applicable provisions of this Ordinance for use, 
layout, and general development characteristics.

Consistent Inconsistent Reason:

July 11, 2022

#22CZ11 1522 Salem Church Rd

- Page 233 -



PLANNING BOARD REPORT TO TOWN COUNCIL
Rezoning Case: 

Planning Board Meeting Date:

Page 4 Planning Board Report to Town Council

Planning Board Recommendation:

Motion:

Introduced by Planning Board member:

Seconded by Planning Board member:

Approval: the project is consistent with all applicable officially adopted plans and the applicable legislative 
considerations listed above.

Approval with conditions: the project is not consistent with all applicable officially adopted plans and/or the 
applicable legislative considerations as noted above, so the following conditions are recommended to be 
included in the project in order to make it fully consistent:

Denial: the project is not consistent with all applicable officially adopted plans and/or the applicable 
legislative considerations as noted above.

With ____ Planning 

Reasons for dissenting votes:

This report reflects the recommendation of the Planning Board, this the day of 2022.

Attest:

Reg  Skinner, Planning Board Chair Dianne Khin, Director of Planning and 
Community Development

To recommend approval as presented

Ryan Akers
Steve Rhodes

July 11, 2022

#22CZ11 1522 Salem Church Rd

Conditions as presented.

6

1

Tina Sherman - Inconsistent with the 2045 Land Use Map.

11th July

- Page 234 -



- Page 235 -



- Page 236 -



TOWN OF APEX 
POST OFFICE BOX 250 
APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 27502 
PHONE 919-249-3426 

 

Published Dates: June 27-July 11, 2022 

PUBLIC NOTIFICATION 
OF PUBLIC HEARINGS 

CONDITIONAL ZONING #22CZ11 
1522 Salem Church Road 

  

Pursuant to the provisions of North Carolina General Statutes §160D-602 and to the Town of Apex Unified Development 

Ordinance (UDO) Section 2.2.11, notice is hereby given of public hearings before the Planning Board of the Town of Apex. The 
purpose of these hearings is to consider the following: 
 

Owner/Applicant: Philip & Michele Blackley 
Authorized Agent: Joshua Blackley 
Property Address: 1522 Salem Church Road  
Acreage: ±1.22 acres  
Property Identification Number (PIN): 0743815090 
Current 2045 Land Use Map Designation: Medium Density Residential 
If rezoned as proposed, the 2045 Land Use Map Designation will change to: Medium/High Density Residential 
Existing Zoning of Property: Residential Agricultural (RA) 
Proposed Zoning of Property: High Density Single Family-Conditional Zoning (HDSF-CZ) 
 
Public Hearing Location:  Apex Town Hall  
                                              Council Chamber, 2nd Floor 
                                              73 Hunter Street, Apex, North Carolina  
 

Planning Board Public Hearing Date and Time:  July 11, 2022   4:30 PM 
You may attend the meeting in person or view the meeting through the Town’s YouTube livestream at: 
https://www.youtube.com/c/townofapexgov. Please visit www.apexnc.org on the day of the meeting to confirm 
whether the meeting will be held in-person or remotely. 
 

If you are unable to attend, you may provide a written statement by email to public.hearing@apexnc.org, or 
submit it to the clerk of the Planning Board, Jeri Pederson (73 Hunter Street or USPS mail - P.O. Box 250, Apex, 
NC 27502), at least two business days prior to the Planning Board vote. You must provide your name and address 
for the record. The written statements will be delivered to the Planning Board prior to their vote. Please include 
the Public Hearing name in the subject line. 
 

In the event that the Planning Board meeting is held remotely or with at least one member attending virtually, 
written comments may be submitted up to 24 hours prior to the scheduled time of the meeting per NCGS §166A-
19.24 according to the methods specified above. Virtual meetings may be viewed via the Town’s YouTube 
livestream at https://www.youtube.com/c/townofapexgov. 
 
A separate notice of the Town Council public hearing on this project will be mailed and posted in order to 

comply with State public notice requirements. 
 

Vicinity Map:  

 
Property owners, tenants, and neighborhood associations within 300 feet of the proposed conditional zoning have been sent 
this notice via first class mail. All interested parties may submit comments with respect to the application by the means specified 
above. In addition to the above map, the location of the property may be viewed online at https://maps.raleighnc.gov/imaps. 
The 2045 Land Use Map may be viewed online at www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/478. You may call 919-249-3426, 
Department of Planning and Community Development, with questions or for further information. To view the petition and 
related documents on-line: https://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/39390/22CZ11. 
 

Dianne F. Khin, AICP 
Director of Planning and Community Development 

- Page 237 -

https://www.youtube.com/c/townofapexgov
http://www.apexnc.org/
mailto:public.hearing@apexnc.org
https://www.youtube.com/c/townofapexgov
https://maps.raleighnc.gov/imaps
https://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/478/2045-Land-Use-Map-PDF
https://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/39390/22CZ11?bidId


TOWN OF APEX 
PO BOX 250 
APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 27502 
TELÉFONO 919-249-3426 

 

Fechas de publicación: 27 de junio- 11 de julio de 2022 

NOTIFICACIÓN PÚBLICA DE AUDIENCIAS PÚBLICAS 
ORDENAMIENTO TERRITORIAL CONDICIONAL #22CZ11 

1522 Salem Church Road 

 

De conformidad con las disposiciones de los Estatutos Generales de Carolina del Norte §160D-602 y con la Sección 2.2.11 
de la Ordenanza de Desarrollo Unificado (UDO) del ayuntamiento de Apex, por la presente se notifican las audiencias 
públicas ante la Junta de Planificación de Apex. El propósito de estas audiencias es considerar lo siguiente: 
 

Solicitante: Philip & Michele Blackley 
Agente autorizado: Joshua Blackley 
Dirección de la propiedad: 1522 Salem Church Road 
Superficie: ±1.22 acres 
Números de identificación de la propiedad: 0743815090 
Designación actual en el Mapa de Uso Territorial para 2045: Medium Density Residential 
Si se aprueba el cambio de zonificación como se propone, el Mapa de Uso Territorial para el 2045 cambiará a: 
Medium/High Density Residential 
Ordenamiento territorial existente de la propiedad: Residential Agricultural (RA) 
Ordenamiento territorial propuesto para la propiedad: High Density Single Family-Conditional Zoning (HDSF-CZ) 
 

Lugar de la audiencia pública:  Ayuntamiento de Apex  
                                               Cámara del Consejo, 2º piso 
                                               73 Hunter Street, Apex, Carolina del Norte 

 

Fecha y hora de la audiencia pública de la Junta de Planificación: 11 de julio de 2022 4:30 P.M. 
Puede asistir a la reunión de manera presencial o seguir la transmisión en directo por YouTube a través del siguiente 
enlace: https://www.youtube.com/c/townofapexgov. Por favor visite www.apexnc.org el día de la reunión para 
confirmar si la reunión se llevará a cabo de manera presencial o remotamente.   
 

Si no puede asistir, puede enviar una declaración escrita por correo electrónico a public.hearing@apexnc.org, o 
presentarla a la secretaría de la Junta de Planificación, Jeri Pederson (73 Hunter Street o por correo USPS a P.O. Box 
250, Apex, NC 27502), al menos dos días hábiles antes de la votación de la Junta de Planificación. Debe proporcionar 
su nombre y dirección para que conste en el registro. Las declaraciones escritas se entregarán a la Junta de 
Planificación antes de la votación. No olvide incluir el nombre de la audiencia pública en el asunto. 
 

En caso de que la reunión de la Junta de Planificación se lleve a cabo remotamente o que por lo menos uno de los 
miembros asista virtualmente, se permite presentar comentarios por escrito hasta 24 horas antes de la hora 
programada de la reunión según los estatutos de Carolina del Norte NCGS §166A-19.24 siguiendo los métodos 
especificados anteriormente. Las reuniones virtuales se pueden seguir en la transmisión en directo por YouTube a 
través del siguiente enlace: https://www.youtube.com/c/townofapexgov.  
 

De conformidad con los requisitos estatales de notificaciones públicas, se enviará por correo y se publicará 
por separado una notificación de la audiencia pública del Consejo Municipal sobre este proyecto. 

 

Mapa de las inmediaciones:  

 
Los propietarios, inquilinos y asociaciones de vecinos en un radio de 300 pies del Ordenamiento Territorial Condicional 
propuesto han recibido esta notificación por correo postal de primera clase. Todas las partes interesadas pueden presentar 
comentarios sobre la solicitud a través de los medios especificados anteriormente. La ubicación de la propiedad también 
puede verse aquí: https://maps.raleighnc.gov/imaps. Puede ver el Mapa de Uso Territorial para 2045 aquí: 
www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/478. Si tiene preguntas o desea obtener más información, puede comunicarse con 
el Departamento de Planificación y Desarrollo Comunitario al 919-249-3426. Puede ver la solicitud y otros documentos 
relacionados aquí: https://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/39390/22CZ11. 

 

Dianne F. Khin, AICP 
Directora de Planificación y Desarrollo Comunitario 

- Page 238 -

https://www.youtube.com/c/townofapexgov
http://www.apexnc.org/
mailto:public.hearing@apexnc.org
https://www.youtube.com/c/townofapexgov
https://maps.raleighnc.gov/imaps
https://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/478/2045-Land-Use-Map-PDF
https://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/39390/22CZ11?bidId


- Page 239 -



 

TOWN OF APEX 
POST OFFICE BOX 250 
APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 27502 
PHONE 919-249-3426 

PUBLIC NOTIFICATION 
OF PUBLIC HEARINGS 

CONDITIONAL ZONING #22CZ11 
1522 Salem Church Road 

 

Published Dates: July 1-26, 2022 

Pursuant to the provisions of North Carolina General Statutes §160D-602 and to the Town of Apex Unified Development 

Ordinance (UDO) Section 2.2.11, notice is hereby given of public hearings before the Town Council of the Town of Apex. The 
purpose of these hearings is to consider the following: 
 

Owner/Applicant: Philip & Michele Blackley 
Authorized Agent: Joshua Blackley 
Property Address: 1522 Salem Church Road  
Acreage: ±1.22 acres  
Property Identification Number (PIN): 0743815090 
Current 2045 Land Use Map Designation: Medium Density Residential 
If rezoned as proposed, the 2045 Land Use Map Designation will change to: Medium/High Density Residential 
Existing Zoning of Property: Residential Agricultural (RA) 
Proposed Zoning of Property: High Density Single Family-Conditional Zoning (HDSF-CZ) 
 

Public Hearing Location:  Apex Town Hall  
                                       Council Chamber, 2nd Floor 
                                       73 Hunter Street, Apex, North Carolina  

 

Comments received prior to the Planning Board public hearing will not be provided to the Town Council.  
Separate comments for the Town Council public hearing must be provided by the deadline specified below. 

 

Town Council Public Hearing Date and Time:  July 26, 2022    6:00 PM  
You may attend the meeting in person or view the meeting through the Town’s YouTube livestream at: 
https://www.youtube.com/c/townofapexgov. Please visit www.apexnc.org on the day of the meeting to confirm 
whether the meeting will be held in-person or remotely. 
 

If you are unable to attend, you may provide a written statement by email to public.hearing@apexnc.org, or 
submit it to the office of the Town Clerk, (73 Hunter Street or USPS mail - P.O. Box 250, Apex, NC 27502), at least 
two business days prior to the Town Council vote. You must provide your name and address for the record. The 
written statements will be delivered to the Town Council members prior to their vote. Please include the Public 
Hearing name in the subject line. 
 

In the event that the Town Council meeting is held remotely or with at least one member attending virtually, 
written comments may be submitted up to 24 hours prior to the scheduled time of the meeting per NCGS §166A-
19.24 according to the methods specified above. Virtual meetings may be viewed via the Town’s YouTube 
livestream at https://www.youtube.com/c/townofapexgov. 

 

Vicinity Map:  

 
Property owners, tenants, and neighborhood associations within 300 feet of the proposed conditional zoning have been sent 
this notice via first class mail. All interested parties may submit comments with respect to the application by the means specified 
above. In addition to the above map, the location of the property may be viewed online at https://maps.raleighnc.gov/imaps. 
The 2045 Land Use Map may be viewed online at www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/478. You may call 919-249-3426, 
Department of Planning and Community Development, with questions or for further information. To view the petition and 
related documents on-line: https://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/39390/22CZ11. 

 

Dianne F. Khin, AICP 
Director of Planning and Community Development 

- Page 240 -

https://www.youtube.com/c/townofapexgov
http://www.apexnc.org/
mailto:public.hearing@apexnc.org
https://www.youtube.com/c/townofapexgov
https://maps.raleighnc.gov/imaps
https://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/478/2045-Land-Use-Map-PDF
https://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/39390/22CZ11?bidId


TOWN OF APEX 
PO BOX 250 
APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 27502 
TELÉFONO 919-249-3426 

 

Fechas de publicación: 1 - 26 de julio de 2022 

NOTIFICACIÓN PÚBLICA DE AUDIENCIAS PÚBLICAS 
ORDENAMIENTO TERRITORIAL CONDICIONAL #22CZ11 

1522 Salem Church Road 

 

De conformidad con las disposiciones de los Estatutos Generales de Carolina del Norte §160D-602 y con la Sección 2.2.11 de la 
Ordenanza de Desarrollo Unificado (UDO) del ayuntamiento de Apex, por la presente se notifican las audiencias públicas ante 
el Consejo Municipal del Ayuntamiento de Apex. El propósito de estas audiencias es considerar lo siguiente: 
 

Solicitante: Philip & Michele Blackley 
Agente autorizado: Joshua Blackley 
Dirección de la propiedad: 1522 Salem Church Road 
Superficie: ±1.22 acres 
Números de identificación de la propiedad: 0743815090 
Designación actual en el Mapa de Uso Territorial para 2045: Medium Density Residential 
Si se aprueba el cambio de zonificación como se propone, el Mapa de Uso Territorial para el 2045 cambiará a: 
Medium/High Density Residential 
Ordenamiento territorial existente de la propiedad: Residential Agricultural (RA) 
Ordenamiento territorial propuesto para la propiedad: High Density Single Family-Conditional Zoning (HDSF-CZ) 
 
 

Lugar de la audiencia pública: Ayuntamiento de Apex 
                                              Cámara del Consejo, 2º piso 
                                              73 Hunter Street, Apex, Carolina del Norte 

 

Los comentarios recibidos antes de la audiencia pública de la Junta de Planificación no se proporcionarán al 
Consejo Municipal. Los comentarios para la audiencia pública del Consejo Municipal deben presentarse por 

separado en el plazo especificado a continuación. 
 

Fecha y hora de la audiencia pública del Consejo Municipal: 26 de julio, 2022   6:00 P.M.  
Puede asistir a la reunión de manera presencial o seguir la transmisión en directo por YouTube a través del siguiente 
enlace: https://www.youtube.com/c/townofapexgov. Por favor visite  www.apexnc.org el día de la reunión para 
confirmar si la reunión se llevará a cabo de manera presencial o remotamente.   
 

Si no puede asistir, puede enviar una declaración escrita por correo electrónico a public.hearing@apexnc.org, o 
presentarla a la oficina del Secretario Municipal (73 Hunter Street o por correo USPS a P.O. Box 250, Apex, NC 27502), 
al menos dos días hábiles antes de la votación del Consejo Municipal. Debe proporcionar su nombre y dirección para 
que conste en el registro. Las declaraciones escritas se entregarán al Consejo Municipal antes de la votación. No olvide 
incluir el nombre de la audiencia pública en el asunto. 
 

En caso de que la reunión del Consejo Municipal se lleve a cabo remotamente o que por lo menos uno de los miembros 
asista virtualmente, se permite presentar comentarios por escrito hasta 24 horas antes de la hora programada de la 
reunión según los estatutos de Carolina del Norte NCGS §166A-19.24 siguiendo los métodos especificados 
anteriormente. Las reuniones virtuales se pueden seguir en la transmisión en directo por YouTube a través del siguiente 
enlace: https://www.youtube.com/c/townofapexgov.  
 

Mapa de las inmediaciones:  

 

 
Los propietarios, inquilinos y asociaciones de vecinos en un radio de 300 pies del Ordenamiento Territorial Condicional 
propuesto han recibido esta notificación por correo postal de primera clase. Todas las partes interesadas pueden presentar 
comentarios sobre la solicitud a través de los medios especificados anteriormente. La ubicación de la propiedad también puede 
verse aquí: https://maps.raleighnc.gov/imaps. Puede ver el Mapa de Uso Territorial para 2045 aquí: 
www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/478. Si tiene preguntas o desea obtener más información, puede comunicarse con el 
Departamento de Planificación y Desarrollo Comunitario al 919-249-3426. Puede ver la solicitud y otros documentos 
relacionados aquí: https://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/39390/22CZ11. 
 

Dianne F. Khin, AICP 
Directora de Planificación y Desarrollo Comunitario 

- Page 241 -

https://www.youtube.com/c/townofapexgov
http://www.apexnc.org/
mailto:public.hearing@apexnc.org
https://www.youtube.com/c/townofapexgov
https://maps.raleighnc.gov/imaps
https://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/478/2045-Land-Use-Map-PDF
https://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/39390/22CZ11?bidId


- Page 242 -



- Page 243 -



- Page 244 -



- Page 245 -



 
 
 
 
 

 

www.wcpss.net 

Student Assignment  

5625 Dillard Drive   

Cary, NC, 27518 

Email: studentassignment@wcpss.net 

tel: (919) 431-7333 

fax: (919) 694-7753 

 

June 24, 2022 

Dianne Khin, AICP 
Director, Department of Planning and Community Development 
Town of Apex 
Dianne.Khin@apexnc.org 
 
Dear Dianne, 

The Wake County Public School System (WCPSS) Office of School Assignment received information 

about a proposed rezoning/development within the Town of Apex planning area. We are providing this 

letter to share information about WCPSS’s capacity related to the proposal. The following information 

about the proposed rezoning/development was provided through the Wake County Residential 

Development Notification database: 

• Date of application: May 1, 2022 

• Name of development: 22CZ11 1522 Salem Church Rd 

• Address of rezoning: 1522 Salem Church Rd 

• Total number of proposed residential units: 9 

• Type(s) of residential units proposed: Townhomes 

Based on the information received at the time of application, the Office of School Assignment is 

providing the following assessment of possible impacts to the Wake County Public School System: 

☐ Schools at all grade levels within the current assignment area for the proposed 

rezoning/development are anticipated to have sufficient capacity for future students. 

☒ Schools at the following grade levels within the current assignment area for the proposed 

rezoning/development are anticipated to have insufficient capacity for future students; 

transportation to schools outside of the current assignment area should be anticipated: 

☐ Elementary ☐ Middle ☒ High 

The following mitigation of capacity concerns due to school construction or expansion is anticipated:  

☐ Not applicable – existing school capacity is anticipated to be sufficient. 

☐ School expansion or construction within the next five years is not anticipated to address concerns. 

☒ School expansion or construction within the next five years may address concerns at these grade 

levels:  

☐ Elementary ☐ Middle ☒ High 

Thank you for sharing this information with the Town of Apex Planning Board and Town Council as they 

consider the proposed rezoning/development. 

Sincerely, 

Susan W. Pullium 

- Page 246 -



 | Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 for consideration by the Apex Town Council 

 

 Item Type: PUBLIC HEARING 

 Meeting Date: July 26, 2022 

Item Details 

Presenter(s): Sarah Van Every, Senior Planner 

Department(s): Planning and Community Development 

Requested Motion 

Public Hearing and possible motion to approve Rezoning Application #22CZ05 Morris Tract PUD. The 

applicant, Brendie Vega, WithersRavenel, seeks to rezone approximately 17.09 acres from Rural Residential 

(RR) to Planned Unit Development-Conditional Zoning (PUD-CZ). 

Approval Recommended? 

The Planning and Community Development Department recommends approval.  

 

The Planning Board held a public hearing on July 11, 2022 and, by a vote of 7-0, recommended approval 

with the conditions offered by the applicant.  

Item Details 

The properties to be rezoned are identified as PINs 0732295017, 0732289587, 0732382530, & 07323827. 

 

Attachments 

 Staff Report  

 Vicinity Map 
 Application 

 

- Page 247 -



STAFF REPORT 
Rezoning #22CZ05 Morris Tract PUD  
July 26, 2022 Town Council Meeting 
 

 

Page 1 of 13  Prepared by: Sarah Van Every, Senior Planner 

All property owners, tenants, and neighborhood associations within 300 feet of this rezoning have been 
notified per UDO Sec. 2.2.11 Public Notification. 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 
Location:    0, 7208, & 7208-B, and 7304 Morris Acres Road 
Applicant/Agent:    Brendie Vega, WithersRavenel 
Owners:    Edith S. Morris, NCDOT Turnpike Authority 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: 
Acreage:    ±17.09 acres 
PINs:   0732295017, 0732289587, 0732382530, & 07323827 
Current Zoning:    Rural Residential (RR) 
Proposed Zoning:    Planned Unit Development-Conditional Zoning (PUD-CZ) 
2045 Land Use Map: Medium Density Residential 
Town Limits:  0732382709 & 0732295017 are in the ETJ; 0732289587 & 0732382530 

 are in Town limits 
 
Adjacent Zoning & Land Uses: 

 Zoning Land Use 

North:  Rural Residential (RR); Medium Density-
Conditional Use (MD-CU #94CU01) Single-family residential; Vacant 

South: Planned Unit Development-Conditional 
Zoning (PUD-CZ #15CZ22) 

Morris Acres Rd; Multi-family (Flats at 540); 
Single-family residential (540 Townes) 

East:  
Medium Density-Conditional Use  

(MD-CU #94CU01); Conservation Buffer 
(CB) 

Single-family residential  
(Walden Creek); Vacant 

West: Rural Residential (RR) Morris Acres Road; Vacant 
 

 
EXISTING CONDITIONS: 
The subject properties are located on the north side of Morris Acres Road, just east of NC 540. There are 
two dwellings and several existing structures on the properties related to the previously rural setting of 
these properties.  
 
NEIGHBORHOOD MEETING: 
The applicant conducted a neighborhood meeting on January 26, 2022. The neighborhood meeting report 
is attached. 
 
WCPSS Coordination: 
A Letter of Impact from Wake County Public School System (WCPSS) was received for this rezoning and is 
included in the staff report packet. WCPSS indicates that elementary, middle, and high schools within the 
current assignment area for this rezoning/development are anticipated to have sufficient capacity for 
future students. 
 
2045 LAND USE MAP: 
The 2045 Land Use Map designates the subject properties as Medium Density Residential. The proposed 

- Page 248 -



STAFF REPORT 
Rezoning #22CZ05 Morris Tract PUD  
July 26, 2022 Town Council Meeting 
 

 

Page 2 of 13  Prepared by: Sarah Van Every, Senior Planner 

rezoning to Planned Unit Development-Conditional Zoning (PUD-CZ) is consistent with that Land Use Map 
designation. The proposed rezoning includes a mix of single-family attached (townhouse) and single-
family detached residential uses with a maximum of 6.44 dwelling units per acre. 
 
A portion of this site is identified within the Transit Oriented Development (TOD) Context Area with 
Advance Apex. The location is appropriate for higher density uses like townhomes due to the proximity to 
NC 540 Hwy, the adjacent Flats at 540 multi-family development, and the 540 Townes development, as 
well as proximity to a future transit corridor. TOD development typically dictates transit-supportive 
densities, which is a minimum of seven (7) units per acre for a circulator bus service and a minimum 15 
units per acre for fixed route bus service. The Morris Tract PUD proposes a maximum density of 6.44 units 
per acre, contributing to an overall density that supports future transit. 
 
PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT PLAN: 
The applicant is proposing a Planned Unit Development Plan with uses and development standards as 
follows: 
 

Permitted Uses: 
The development will include office, retail and residential uses. The Rezoned Lands may be used for, and 
only for, the uses listed below. The permitted uses are subject to the limitation and regulations stated in 
the UDO and any additional limitation or regulations stated below. For convenience, some relevant 
sections of the UDO may be referenced; such references do not imply that other sections of the UDO do 
not apply.  
 
• Accessory apartment 
• Townhouse  
• Single family  
• Recreation Facility, private 
• Park, active 
• Park, passive 
• Utility, minor 
 
Proposed Design Controls: 
 

Density 
The PUD Plan proposes an overall maximum residential density of 6.44 dwelling units per acre.  The 
overall residential development shall not exceed 110 dwelling units. The minimum lot size for single-
family detached homes is 6,000 sq ft and the minimum lot width for townhomes is 22 ft. 

 
Height 
The maximum building height shall be: 

Single-family detached: 50’  
Townhouses:  50’ 

 
Setbacks 

 Proposed Minimum Setbacks 
Front (from façade) 5’ 

- Page 249 -



STAFF REPORT 
Rezoning #22CZ05 Morris Tract PUD  
July 26, 2022 Town Council Meeting 
 

 

Page 3 of 13  Prepared by: Sarah Van Every, Senior Planner 

 Proposed Minimum Setbacks 
Single-family, 
detached 

 

Front (from garage to back 
of sidewalk) 

20’ 

Side 5’ 
Corner side 8’  
Rear 10’ 

   
Townhouse – 
front loaded 

Front (from façade) 10’ 
Front (from garage to back 
of sidewalk) 

20’ 

Side 5’ 
Corner side 10’  
Rear 10’ 
Building to building 10’ 
  

Townhouse – 
alley loaded 

Front (from façade) 10’ 
Side 5’ 
Corner side 10’ 
Rear 5’ 
Building to building 10’ 

   

 
Buffers 
The following buffers are proposed by this PUD.  
 

Perimeter Buffers: UDO Required Proposed 
Northern Boundary  20’ Type B 20’ Type B 
Eastern Boundary 20’ Type B  20’ Type A 
Morris Acres Road  
(units facing the street) 

30’ Type E Undisturbed; 
50’ Type A/B Disturbed* 

30’ Type E Undisturbed; 
50’ Type A/B Disturbed 

Morris Acres Road 
(units oriented away 
from the street) 

30’ Type B Undisturbed; 
50’ Type A/B Disturbed* 

30’ Type B Undisturbed; 
50’ Type A/B Disturbed 

*Disturbed portion of 50’ Thoroughfare Buffer shall be planted to a Type A buffer standard; undisturbed 
portion of 50’ Thoroughfare Buffer shall be supplemented to a Type B buffer standard. 

 
Built Upon Area 
The proposed maximum built upon area is 70%.  

 
 

Resource Conservation Area 
This PUD shall be subject to, and meet the requirements of Section 8.1.2 of the UDO, Resource 
Conservation Area and Section 2.3.4 Planned Development Districts. The site shall dedicate a 
minimum of 20% of the overall site area upon site plan submittal.  
 
 
Parking  
Parking for the development shall meet the requirements of UDO Section 8.3. 

- Page 250 -



STAFF REPORT 
Rezoning #22CZ05 Morris Tract PUD  
July 26, 2022 Town Council Meeting 
 

 

Page 4 of 13  Prepared by: Sarah Van Every, Senior Planner 

ZONING CONDITIONS 
The following conditions shall also apply: 
 

1. Alleys for units facing Morris Acres Road will accommodate water and sewer utilities within the 
Town’s existing alley cross section subject to staff review and approval at the time of subdivision 
and construction plans.  Public utility easements may be granted on private property to 
accommodate appurtenances and maintenance. 

2. Homeowner Association covenants shall not restrict the construction of accessory dwelling units. 
3. No homes will be platted within 50 feet of the eastern property line. 

 
Architectural Standards 
The proposed development offers the following architectural controls to ensure a consistency of character 
throughout the development, while allowing for enough variety to create interest and avoid monotony. 
Changes to the exterior materials, roof, windows, doors, process, trim, etc. are allowable with 
administrative approval at the staff level. Further details shall be provided at the time of development 
plan submittal. The following conditions shall apply: 
 
A. Residential Development 

Single Family Detached: 
1. Vinyl siding is not permitted; however, vinyl windows, decorative elements, and trim are 

permitted. 
2. The roof shall be pitched at 5:12 or greater for 75% of the building designs. 
3. A varied color palette shall be utilized throughout the development to include a minimum of three 

color families for siding and shall include varied trim, shutter, and accent colors complementing 
the siding color. 

4. House entrances for units with front-facing single-car garages shall have a prominent covered 
porch/stoop area leading to the front door.  

5. The rear and side elevations of the units that can be seen from the right-of-way shall have trim 
around the windows. 

6. Garage doors must have windows, decorative details or carriage-style adornments on them. 
7. The visible side of a townhouse on a corner lot facing the public street shall contain at least two 

decorative elements such as, but not limited to, the following elements: 
• Windows 
• Bay window 
• Recessed window 
• Decorative window 
• Trim around the windows 
• Wrap around porch or side porch 
• Two or more building materials 
• Decorative brick/stone  
• Decorative trim 

• Decorative shake 
• Decorative air vents on gable 
• Decorative gable 
• Decorative cornice 
• Column 
• Portico 
• Balcony 
• Dormer 

 
Single Family Attached (Townhouses): 
1. Vinyl siding is not permitted; however, vinyl windows, decorative elements and trim are 

permitted. 
2. The roofline cannot be a single mass; it must be broken up horizontally and vertically between 

every unit. 

- Page 251 -



STAFF REPORT 
Rezoning #22CZ05 Morris Tract PUD  
July 26, 2022 Town Council Meeting 
 

 

Page 5 of 13  Prepared by: Sarah Van Every, Senior Planner 

3. Garage doors must have windows, decorative details or carriage-style adornments on them. 
4. The rear and side elevations of the units that can be seen from the right-of-way shall have trim 

around the windows. 
5. House entrances for units with front-facing single-car garages shall have a prominent covered 

porch/stoop area leading to the front door. 
6. A varied color palette shall be utilized on homes throughout the subdivision to include a minimum 

of three (3) color families for siding and shall include varied trim, shutter, and accent colors 
complementing the siding color. 

7. The visible side of a townhouse on a corner lot facing the public street shall contain at least 2 
decorative elements such as, but not limited to, the following elements: 

• Windows 
• Bay window 
• Recessed window 
• Decorative window 
• Trim around the windows 
• Wrap around porch or side porch 
• Two or more building materials 
• Decorative brick/stone  
• Decorative trim 

• Decorative shake 
• Decorative air vents on gable 
• Decorative gable 
• Decorative cornice 
• Column 
• Portico 
• Balcony 
• Dormer 

 
 
PUBLIC FACILITIES:  
The project’s construction will consist of the extension of public facilities to serve the site. All public 
facilities and infrastructure shall comply with the Town of Apex Sewer and Water Master Plans and the 
Town of Apex Standards and Specifications.  
 
Sewer is available at an outfall at the tributary of the Reedy Branch outfall that runs through a Town of 
Apex owned parcel.  A capacity study shall be provided at Construction Drawing submittal.  
 
Extension of water shall be provided to the proposed development with access to a 12” water line in 
Morris Acres Road.  

 
STORMWATER MANAGEMENT: 
This PUD shall meet all stormwater management requirements for quality and quantity treatment in 
accordance with Section 6.1.7 of the UDO.  
 

1. This project is located within the Beaver Creek basin and will be required to attenuate the 1-, 
10-, 25-, and 100-year storms. 

2. To the extent practicable the stormwater discharge from the onsite SCM(s) will be routed to 
discharge stormwater from the SCM(s) via a pipe underneath Morris Acres Road (i.e. to the 
downstream side) subject to Town of Apex and NCDOT approvals. 

3. The former pond on the east side of the property was previously breached and the outflow was 
diverted away from properties with PINs 0732387613, 0732387723, and 0732387823 via an 
open channel.  The proposed project will either pipe or maintain an open channel that continues 
to direct the natural flow to a point downstream of these properties, subject to Town of Apex,  
NCDWR, and USACE approvals. 

 

- Page 252 -



STAFF REPORT 
Rezoning #22CZ05 Morris Tract PUD  
July 26, 2022 Town Council Meeting 
 

 

Page 6 of 13  Prepared by: Sarah Van Every, Senior Planner 

AFFORDABLE HOUSING: 
Of the one hundred (100) permitted townhouse dwellings, at least two (2) residential restricted median-
income affordable housing townhouse ownership units (Affordable Housing Units) shall be constructed 
on-site and sold at a mutually agreeable maximum affordable housing median-income ownership initial 
sales price (includes unit price and lot price) that is calculated based upon the one- hundred percent 
(100%) of the Raleigh, NC Metropolitan Statistical Area (MSA) Area Median Income (AMI) as most 
recently published by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD).  
 
The Affordable Housing Units shall be occupied by low or median-income households earning no more 
than one hundred percent (100%) of the Raleigh, NC MSA AMI, adjusted for family size as most recently 
published by HUD. A restrictive covenant (i.e., resale deed restriction) with a minimum affordability 
period of ten (10) years shall be recorded against each Affordable Housing Unit concurrently at the close 
of escrow upon the sale of each Affordable Housing Units to memorialize the affordable housing terms 
and conditions.  
 
The two (2) Affordable Housing Unit lots shall be identified on the Master Subdivision Final Plat, which 
may be amended from time to time. A restrictive covenant (i.e. affordable housing agreement) between 
the Town and Applicant shall be recorded against the two (2) Affordable Housing Unit lots prior to the 
issuance of a building permit for such lots to memorialize the affordable housing terms and conditions 
of the approved zoning condition.  
 
Final Affordable Housing Unit floor plan selection which includes the unit size and bedroom size will be 
at the discretion of the developer. Developer will be responsible for performing marketing, applicant 
screening and selection process and management of the Affordable Housing Units during the 
affordability period with oversight and support provided by Town staff. 
 
APEX TRANSPORTATION PLAN/ACCESS and CIRCULATION:  
The proposed PUD is consistent with the Apex Transportation Plan. The proposed PUD includes two (2) 
points of access onto Morris Acres Road, an existing 3-lane Thoroughfare on the Thoroughfare and 
Collector Street Plan. This project shall provide minimum frontage widening based on ½ of a 3-lane 
thoroughfare section with side path and public right-of-way dedication based on an eighty foot (80’) right-
of-way along Morris Acres Road. The site will promote connectivity to undeveloped property with street 
stubs to the north.    
 
A 10-foot Side Path shall be provided along the frontage of Morris Acres Road, in accordance with the 
Transportation Plan & UDO. Sidewalks at least five (5) feet in width shall be provided on both sides of all 
internal streets, including cul-de-sac(s).  For alley-loaded townhouses that front Morris Acres Road, a 
minimum five-foot (5’) sidewalk connection between the townhouse units and the 10-foot Side Path along 
Morris Acres Road shall be provided. These connections will perpendicularly cross the 30-foot 
Thoroughfare Buffer along Morris Acres Road. 
 
The nearest transit stop for the local GoApex Route 1 is anticipated to be located at the Beaver Creek 
Commons shopping center. Regional Transit can be accessed along NC 55 Hwy. The subject site is located 
within the Transit Oriented Development Context Area. 
Refer to the concept plan of the PUD plan for proposed access points, stub streets, and planned vehicular 
connectivity. All access and circulation is conceptual and shall be finalized at the time of Master 
Subdivision Plan or Minor Site Plan review and approval. 

- Page 253 -



STAFF REPORT 
Rezoning #22CZ05 Morris Tract PUD  
July 26, 2022 Town Council Meeting 
 

 

Page 7 of 13  Prepared by: Sarah Van Every, Senior Planner 

Roadway improvements, subject to modification and final approval by the Town of Apex and NCDOT, are 
part of the site plan and construction plan approval process.  A traffic study has been performed as part 
of this PUD rezoning consistent with the Town’s standards for the same. Based upon the traffic study, no 
off-site improvements are recommended for this development.  
 
ENVIROMENTAL ADVISORY BOARD: 
The Apex Environmental Advisory Board (EAB) held a pre-application meeting for this rezoning on 
December 15, 2021. The zoning conditions suggested by the EAB are listed below along with the 
applicant’s response to each condition. 
 

EAB Suggested Condition Applicant’s 
Response 

Increase design storm for retention basins in flood-prone areas.  Increase 
design storm pre- and post-attenuation requirement to the 100-year storm. 

Added 

Install signage near environmental sensitive areas in order to: 
• Reduce pet waste near SCM drainage areas; and  
• Eliminate fertilizer near SCM drainage areas.  

Added  

Increase biodiversity: 
• Plant pollinator-friendly flora  
• Plant native flora  

Added  

Provide diverse and abundant pollinator and bird food sources (e.g. nectar, 
pollen, and betties from blooming plants) that bloom in succession from spring 
to fall. 

Added  

Include landscaping that requires less irrigation and chemical use and plant 
warm season grasses for drought-resistance. 

Added  

Increase the number of native hardwood species planted to 3, preferably 4 Added (3 species) 
Install pet waste stations in neighborhoods Added 
Include solar conduit in building design for all buildings Added  
Install a solar PV system of minimum 4 kilowatts on 20% of the pre-buyer 
constricted homes (spec homes). 

Not added  

Post ‘solar options’ sign at the entry to this development during construction. 
The constructions should also be energy star rated.  

Not added 

Increase width of vegetated buffer along the east side of the property from 20’ 
to at least 60’ Type A. 

Not added 

Existing trees greater than 18” in diameter that are removed by site 
development shall be replaced by planting a 1.5” caliper native tree from the 
Town of Apex Design and Development Manual either on–site or at an 
alternative location approved by Town Planning Staff, above and beyond 
standard UDO requirements.  

Not added 

 
The applicant shall provide the following EAB Conditions: 

1. Post development peak runoff shall not exceed pre-development peak runoff for the 24-hour, 1-
year, 10-year, and 100-year storm events in accordance with the Unified Development Ordinance. 
Treatment for the first 1-inch of runoff will be provided such that the removal of 85% Total 
Suspended Solids is achieved. 

- Page 254 -



STAFF REPORT 
Rezoning #22CZ05 Morris Tract PUD  
July 26, 2022 Town Council Meeting 
 

 

Page 8 of 13  Prepared by: Sarah Van Every, Senior Planner 

2. The project shall install at least one (1) pet waste disposal reminder sign per SCM.  The sign(s) 
shall be installed in locations that are publicly accessible, such as adjacent to, but outside of public 
property and/or public easement(s), amenity centers, sidewalks, greenways, or side paths. 

3. The project shall install at least one (1) sign per SCM about not using fertilizer near an SCM 
drainage area. The sign(s) shall be installed in locations that are publicly accessible, such as 
adjacent to, but outside of public property and/or public easement(s), amenity centers, sidewalks, 
greenways, or side paths. 

4. The project shall select and install tree, shrub, and perennial species with special attention to 
providing diverse and abundant pollinator and bird food sources, including plants that bloom in 
succession from spring to fall. 

5. The project shall ensure that at least 75% of the landscaping shall be native species. Landscaping 
shall be coordinated with and approved by the Planning Department at site or subdivision review.  

6. The project shall plant warm season grasses in order to minimize the need for irrigation and 
chemical use. 

7. A minimum of three (3) native hardwood tree species shall be used for the landscaping on site. 
8. The project shall install at least one (1) pet waste station at each play lawn. 

 
PARKS, RECREATION, AND CULTURAL RESOURCES ADVISORY COMMISSION:  
The Parks, Recreation, and Cultural Resources Advisory Commission reviewed the Morris Tract PUD 
project at their March 30, 2022 meeting. The Commission made a unanimous recommendation for a fee-
in-lieu of dedication.  The recommendation is based on 2022 rates and proposed maximum lot count 
provided:  
 
Single-family detached Units:    $3,753.89 x 10 = $37,538.90 
Single-family attached Units:    $2,528.25 x 100 - $252,525 
Total residential fee in lieu per current unit count: $290,063.90  
 

Staff note: The fee-in-lieu rate is based on the date of PUD approval, not on the date of the Commission’s 
recommendation.  
 
PLANNING BOARD RECOMMENDATION:  
The Planning Board held a public hearing on July 11, 2022 and unanimously voted to recommend 
approval with conditions offered by the applicant.  
 
PLANNING STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning staff recommends approval of Rezoning #22CZ05 Morris Tract PUD with the conditions offered 
by the applicant. 
 
ANALYSIS STATEMENT OF THE REASONABLENESS OF THE PROPOSED REZONING: 
This Statement will address consistency with the Town’s comprehensive and other applicable plans, 
reasonableness, and effect on public interest: 
 

The 2045 Land Use Map designates the site as Medium Density Residential. The proposed PUD is 
consistent with that land use classification. The proposed rezoning includes a mix of residential uses 
that will provide for transition in density from the surrounding residential uses.   
 
The proposed rezoning is reasonable and in the public interest because it provides an adequate 
transition in the height and density from the existing multi-family and townhome uses to the south 

- Page 255 -



STAFF REPORT 
Rezoning #22CZ05 Morris Tract PUD  
July 26, 2022 Town Council Meeting 
 

 

Page 9 of 13  Prepared by: Sarah Van Every, Senior Planner 

and the existing single-family residential development to the east. The proposed rezoning allows for 
a maximum of 6.44 dwelling units per acre, which contributes to an overall density that supports 
future transit within the Transit Oriented Development (TOD) Context Area, as adopted with Advance 
Apex. 

 
PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT AND CONDITIONAL ZONING STANDARDS: 
Standards  
In return for greater flexibility in site design requirements, Planned Development (PD) Districts are 
expected to deliver exceptional quality community designs that preserve critical environmental resources; 
provide high quality community amenities; incorporate creative design in the layout of buildings, Resource 
Conservation Area and circulation; ensure compatibility with surrounding land uses and neighborhood 
character; provide high quality architecture; and provide greater efficiency in the layout and provision of 
roads, utilities, and other infrastructure. The Planned Development (PD) Districts shall not be used as a 
means of circumventing the Town’s adopted land development regulations for routine developments.  
 
1) Planned Unit Development (PUD-CZ) District  

In approving a Planned Development (PD) Zoning District designation for a PUD-CZ, the Town 
Council shall find the PUD-CZ district designation and PD Plan for PUD-CZ demonstrates compliance 
with the following standards:  

 
(a) Development parameters  

(i)  The uses proposed to be developed in the PD Plan for PUD-CZ are those uses permitted 
in Sec. 4.2.2 Use Table.  

 
(ii)  The uses proposed in the PD Plan for PUD-CZ can be entirely residential, entirely non-

residential, or a mix of residential and non-residential uses, provided a minimum 
percentage of non-residential land area is included in certain mixed use areas as 
specified on the 2045 Land Use Map. The location of uses proposed by the PUD-CZ must 
be shown in the PD Plan with a maximum density for each type of residential use and a 
maximum square footage for each type of non-residential use.  

 
(iii)  The dimensional standards in Sec. 5.1.3 Table of Intensity and Dimensional Standards, 

Planned Development Districts may be varied in the PD Plan for PUD-CZ. The PUD-CZ 
shall demonstrate compliance with all other dimensional standards of the UDO, North 
Carolina Building Code, and North Carolina Fire Code.  

 
(iv)  The development proposed in the PD Plan for PUD-CZ encourages cluster and compact 

development to the greatest extent possible that is interrelated and linked by 
pedestrian ways, bikeways and other transportation systems. At a minimum, the PD 
Plan must show sidewalk improvements as required by the Apex Transportation Plan 
and the Town of Apex Standard Specifications and Standard Details, and greenway 
improvements as required by the Town of Apex Parks, Recreation, Greenways, and 
Open Space Plan and the Apex Transportation Plan. In addition, sidewalks shall be 
provided on both sides of all streets for single-family detached homes.  

 
(v)  The design of development in the PD Plan for PUD-CZ results in land use patterns that 

promote and expand opportunities for walkability, connectivity, public transportation, 
and an efficient compact network of streets. Cul-de-sacs shall be avoided unless the 

- Page 256 -



STAFF REPORT 
Rezoning #22CZ05 Morris Tract PUD  
July 26, 2022 Town Council Meeting 
 

 

Page 10 of 13  Prepared by: Sarah Van Every, Senior Planner 

design of the subdivision and the existing or proposed street system in the surrounding 
area indicate that a through street is not essential in the location of the proposed cul-
de-sac, or where sensitive environmental areas such as streams, floodplains, and 
wetlands would be substantially disturbed by making road connections.  

 
(vi)  The development proposed in the PD Plan for PUD-CZ is compatible with the character 

of surrounding land uses and maintains and enhances the value of surrounding 
properties.  

 
(vii)  The development proposed in the PD Plan for PUD-CZ has architectural and design 

standards that are exceptional and provide higher quality than routine developments. 
All residential uses proposed in a PD Plan for PUD-CZ shall provide architectural 
elevations representative of the residential structures to be built to ensure the 
Standards of this Section are met.  

 
b)  Off-street parking and loading. The PD Plan for PUD-CZ shall demonstrate compliance with 

the standards of Sec. 8.3 Off-Street Parking and Loading, except that variations from these 
standards may be permitted if a comprehensive parking and loading plan for the PUD-CZ is 
submitted as part of the PD Plan that is determined to be suitable for the PUD-CZ, and 
generally consistent with the intent and purpose of the off-street parking and loading 
standards.  

 
c)  RCA. The PD Plan for PUD-CZ shall demonstrate compliance with Sec. 8.1.2 Resource 

Conservation Area, except that the percentage of RCA required under Sec. 8.1.2 may be 
reduced by the Town Council by no more than ten percent (10%) provided that the PD Plan 
for PUD-CZ includes one or more of the following: 
 
(i)  A non-residential component; or  
 
(ii)  An overall density of 7 residential units per acre or more; or 
 
(iii) Environmental measures including but not limited to the following: 

(b) The installation of a solar photovoltaic (PV) system on a certain number or 
percentage of single-family or townhouse lots or on a certain number or percentage 
of multifamily, mixed-use, or nonresidential buildings. All required solar installation 
shall be completed or under construction prior to 90% of the building permits being 
issued for the approved number of lots or buildings. For single-family or townhouse 
installations, the lots on which these homes are located shall be identified on the 
Master Subdivision Plat, which may be amended;  
 

(c) The installation of a geothermal system for a certain number or percentage of units 
within the development; or  

 
(c) Energy efficiency standards that exceed minimum Building Code requirements (i.e. 

SEER rating for HVAC). 
 

- Page 257 -



STAFF REPORT 
Rezoning #22CZ05 Morris Tract PUD  
July 26, 2022 Town Council Meeting 
 

 

Page 11 of 13  Prepared by: Sarah Van Every, Senior Planner 

d)  Landscaping. The PD Plan for PUD-CZ shall demonstrate compliance with the standards of 
Sec. 8.2 Landscaping, Buffering and Screening, except that variations from these standards 
may be permitted where it is demonstrated that the proposed landscaping sufficiently buffers 
uses from each other, ensures compatibility with land uses on surrounding properties, creates 
attractive streetscapes and parking areas and is consistent with the character of the area. In 
no case shall a buffer be less than one half of the width required by Sec. 8.2 or 10 feet in 
width, whichever is greater.  

 
e) Signs. Signage in the PD Plan for PUD-CZ shall demonstrate compliance with Sec. 8.7 Signs, 

except that the standards can be varied if a master signage plan is submitted for review and 
approval concurrent with the PD plan and is determined by the Town Council to be suitable 
for the PUD-CZ and generally consistent with the intent and purpose of the sign standards of 
the UDO. The master signage plan shall have design standards that are exceptional and 
provide for higher quality signs than those in routine developments and shall comply with 
Sec. 8.7.2 Prohibited Signs. 

 
f)  Public facilities. The improvements standards and guarantees applicable to the public facilities 

that will serve the site shall comply with Article 7: Subdivision and Article 14: Parks, 
Recreation, Greenways, and Open Space.  

 
(i)  The PD Plan for PUD-CZ demonstrates a safe and adequate on-site transportation 

circulation system. The on-site transportation circulation system shall be integrated 
with the off-site transportation circulation system of the Town. The PD Plan for PUD-CZ 
shall be consistent with the Apex Transportation Plan and the Town of Apex Standard 
Specifications and Standard Details and show required right-of-way widths and road 
sections. A Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA) shall be required per Sec. 13.19.  

 
(ii)  The PD Plan for PUD-CZ demonstrates a safe and adequate on-site system of potable 

water and wastewater lines that can accommodate the proposed development, and are 
efficiently integrated into off-site potable water and wastewater public improvement 
plans. The PD Plan shall include a proposed water and wastewater plan.  

 
(iii)  Adequate off-site facilities for potable water supply, sewage disposal, solid waste 

disposal, electrical supply, fire protection and roads shall be planned and programmed 
for the development proposed in the PD Plan for PUD-CZ, and the development is 
conveniently located in relation to schools and police protection services.  

 
(iv)  The PD Plan shall demonstrate compliance with the parks and recreation requirements 

of Sec. Article 14: Parks, Recreation, Greenways, and Open Space and Sec. 7.3.1 
Privately-owned Play Lawns if there is a residential component in the PUD-CZ.  

 
g)  Natural resource and environmental protection. The PD Plan for PUD-CZ demonstrates 

compliance with the current regulatory standards of this Ordinance related to natural 
resource and environmental protection in Sec. 6.1 Watershed Protection Overlay District, Sec. 
6.2 Flood Damage Prevention Overlay District, and Sec. 8.1 Resource Conservation.  

 

- Page 258 -



STAFF REPORT 
Rezoning #22CZ05 Morris Tract PUD  
July 26, 2022 Town Council Meeting 
 

 

Page 12 of 13  Prepared by: Sarah Van Every, Senior Planner 

h)  Storm water management. The PD Plan shall demonstrate that the post-development rate of 
on-site storm water discharge from the entire site shall not exceed pre-development levels in 
accordance with Sec. 6.1.7 of the UDO.  

 
i)  Phasing. The PD Plan for PUD-CZ shall include a phasing plan for the development. If 

development of the PUD-CZ is proposed to occur in more than one phase, then guarantees 
shall be provided that project improvements and amenities that are necessary and desirable 
for residents of the project, or that are of benefit to the Town, are constructed with the first 
phase of the project, or, if this is not possible, then as early in the project as is technically 
feasible.  

 
j)  Consistency with 2045 Land Use Map. The PD Plan for PUD-CZ demonstrates consistency with 

the goals and policies established in the Town’s 2045 Land Use Map.  
 
k)  Complies with the UDO. The PD Plan for PUD-CZ demonstrates compliance with all other 

relevant portions of the UDO.  
 

Legislative Considerations  
The Town Council shall find the PUD-CZ designation demonstrates compliance with the following 
standards. Sec. 2.3.3.F: 
 
The applicant shall propose site-specific standards and conditions that take into account the following 
considerations, which are considerations that are relevant to the legislative determination of whether or 
not the proposed conditional zoning district rezoning request is in the public interest. These 
considerations do not exclude the legislative consideration of any other factor that is relevant to the public 
interest.  

 
1)  Consistency with 2045 Land Use Map. The proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use’s 

appropriateness for its proposed location and consistency with the purposes, goals, objectives, and 
policies of the 2045 Land Use Map.  

 
2)  Compatibility. The proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use’s appropriateness for its proposed 

location and compatibility with the character of surrounding land uses.  
 
3)  Zoning district supplemental standards. The proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use’s 

compliance with Sec. 4.4 Supplemental Standards, if applicable.  
 
4)  Design minimizes adverse impact. The design of the proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use’s 

minimization of adverse effects, including visual impact of the proposed use on adjacent lands; and 
avoidance of significant adverse impacts on surrounding lands regarding trash, traffic, service 
delivery, parking and loading, odors, noise, glare, and vibration and not create a nuisance.  

 
5)  Design minimizes environmental impact. The proposed Conditional Zoning District use’s 

minimization of environmental impacts and protection from significant deterioration of water and 
air resources, wildlife habitat, scenic resources, and other natural resources.  

 

- Page 259 -



STAFF REPORT 
Rezoning #22CZ05 Morris Tract PUD  
July 26, 2022 Town Council Meeting 
 

 

Page 13 of 13  Prepared by: Sarah Van Every, Senior Planner 

6)  Impact on public facilities. The proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use’s avoidance of having 
adverse impacts on public facilities and services, including roads, potable water and wastewater 
facilities, parks, schools, police, fire and EMS facilities.  

 
7)  Health, safety, and welfare. The proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use’s effect on the 

health, safety, or welfare of the residents of the Town or its ETJ.  
 
8)  Detrimental to adjacent properties. Whether the proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use is 

substantially detrimental to adjacent properties.  
  
9)  Not constitute nuisance or hazard. Whether the proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use 

constitutes a nuisance or hazard due to traffic impact or noise, or because of the number of 
persons who will be using the Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use.  

 
10)  Other relevant standards of this Ordinance. Whether the proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District 

use complies with all standards imposed on it by all other applicable provisions of this Ordinance 
for use, layout, and general development characteristics. 

- Page 260 -



1

Sarah Van Every

From: Serge Grebenschikov
Sent: Friday, April 22, 2022 2:40 PM
To: Overcash, Lyle; Russell Dalton
Cc: Randy King (randy.king@pultegroup.com); Rosamond, Morgan
Subject: RE: Morris Acres Site

Lyle, 
 
Thank you for sending this over.  I have no issues with the trip generation of this development, and I concur with the 
recommendations that nothing else is needed from a traffic impact analysis standpoint for this development. 
 
Kind regards 
 
 
Serge Grebenschikov, PE 
Traffic Engineer  
Public Works & Transportation – Traffic 
PO Box 250 
Apex, NC 27502 
P: (919) 372-7448 
E: Serge.Grebenschikov@apexnc.org 
 
 
 

From: Overcash, Lyle <Lyle.Overcash@kimley-horn.com>  
Sent: Friday, March 11, 2022 9:00 AM 
To: Russell Dalton <Russell.Dalton@apexnc.org>; Serge Grebenschikov <Serge.Grebenschikov@apexnc.org> 
Cc: Randy King (randy.king@pultegroup.com) <randy.king@pultegroup.com>; Rosamond, Morgan 
<Morgan.Rosamond@kimley-horn.com> 
Subject: RE: Morris Acres Site 
 
 

Notice: This message is from an external sender. 
Do not click links or open attachments unless you trust the sender, and can verify the content is safe. 

 
Hey Russell, even though a full TIA wasn’t required, it was easier just to format the report that way.  So, please find 
attached the Morris Acres TIA for your review and comment. 
Thanks, 
Lyle 
 

Lyle Overcash, PE  
Kimley-Horn | 421 Fayetteville Street, Suite 600, Raleigh NC 27601 
Direct: 919.678.4131 | Mobile: 919.906.4511 

 

From: Russell Dalton <Russell.Dalton@apexnc.org>  
Sent: Friday, February 25, 2022 8:12 AM 
To: Overcash, Lyle <Lyle.Overcash@kimley-horn.com>; Serge Grebenschikov <Serge.Grebenschikov@apexnc.org> 

- Page 261 -



2

Cc: Randy King (randy.king@pultegroup.com) <randy.king@pultegroup.com>; Rosamond, Morgan 
<Morgan.Rosamond@kimley-horn.com> 
Subject: RE: Morris Acres Site 
 
Thanks Lyle!  Based on this a TIA is not required but a traffic assessment letter for the access points would be helpful to 
address any questions from residents and to satisfy any questions from NCDOT. 
 
Russell H. Dalton, PE 
Traffic Engineering Manager 
Public Works & Transportation 
Town of Apex 
www.apexnc.org 
919-249-3358 
 

From: Overcash, Lyle [mailto:Lyle.Overcash@kimley-horn.com]  
Sent: Thursday, February 24, 2022 5:57 PM 
To: Russell Dalton <Russell.Dalton@apexnc.org>; Serge Grebenschikov <Serge.Grebenschikov@apexnc.org> 
Cc: Randy King (randy.king@pultegroup.com) <randy.king@pultegroup.com>; Rosamond, Morgan 
<Morgan.Rosamond@kimley-horn.com> 
Subject: RE: Morris Acres Site 
 
 

Notice: This message is from an external sender. 
Do not click links or open attachments unless you trust the sender, and can verify the content is safe. 

 
Russell, 
Randy asked me to send over the max trip generation for the site to show that we don’t trigger an official TIA.  Land use 
totals most likely will be less than this, but we wanted to be conservative when we were assessing the site access points. 
Thanks, 
Lyle 
 

Lyle Overcash, PE  
Kimley-Horn | 421 Fayetteville Street, Suite 600, Raleigh NC 27601 
Direct: 919.678.4131 | Mobile: 919.906.4511 

 

From: Russell Dalton <Russell.Dalton@apexnc.org>  
Sent: Thursday, February 3, 2022 10:53 AM 
To: Overcash, Lyle <Lyle.Overcash@kimley-horn.com>; Serge Grebenschikov <Serge.Grebenschikov@apexnc.org> 
Subject: RE: Morris Acres Site 
 
OK thanks!  That is fine with us, just the trip generation and evaluating the site access if it falls below the TIA threshold. 
 
Russell H. Dalton, PE 
Traffic Engineering Manager 
Public Works & Transportation 
Town of Apex 
www.apexnc.org 
919-249-3358 
 

- Page 262 -



3

From: Overcash, Lyle [mailto:Lyle.Overcash@kimley-horn.com]  
Sent: Wednesday, February 02, 2022 12:25 PM 
To: Russell Dalton <Russell.Dalton@apexnc.org>; Serge Grebenschikov <Serge.Grebenschikov@apexnc.org> 
Subject: RE: Morris Acres Site 
 
 

Notice: This message is from an external sender. 
Do not click links or open attachments unless you trust the sender, and can verify the content is safe. 

 
Yes, the client informed me yesterday of the additional units.  Since it doesn’t meet Town or NCDOT TIA requirements, 
we’ll probably just do a traffic assessment for the client just in case there’s questions about traffic going forward. 
 

Lyle Overcash, PE  
Kimley-Horn | 421 Fayetteville Street, Suite 600, Raleigh NC 27601 
Direct: 919.678.4131 | Mobile: 919.906.4511 

 

From: Russell Dalton <Russell.Dalton@apexnc.org>  
Sent: Wednesday, February 2, 2022 11:22 AM 
To: Overcash, Lyle <Lyle.Overcash@kimley-horn.com>; Serge Grebenschikov <Serge.Grebenschikov@apexnc.org> 
Subject: RE: Morris Acres Site 
 
I also wanted to point out that their PUD submittal I’m looking at now proposes 110 maximum dwelling units so it’s 
usually a good idea that the tripgen/analysis match the PUD text in terms of units.  Thanks! 
 
Russell H. Dalton, PE 
Traffic Engineering Manager 
Public Works & Transportation 
Town of Apex 
www.apexnc.org 
919-249-3358 
 

From: Russell Dalton  
Sent: Tuesday, February 01, 2022 8:24 AM 
To: Overcash, Lyle <Lyle.Overcash@kimley-horn.com>; Serge Grebenschikov <Serge.Grebenschikov@apexnc.org> 
Subject: RE: Morris Acres Site 
 
Lyle, 
 
Not sure if you’ve run the tripgen yet but does that exceed 1000 daily or 100 peak hour?  If not we may just need a trip 
generation memo for the new proposal. 
 
Thank you. 
 
Russell H. Dalton, PE 
Traffic Engineering Manager 
Public Works & Transportation 
Town of Apex 
www.apexnc.org 
919-249-3358 
 

- Page 263 -



4

From: Overcash, Lyle [mailto:Lyle.Overcash@kimley-horn.com]  
Sent: Monday, January 31, 2022 5:22 PM 
To: Russell Dalton <Russell.Dalton@apexnc.org>; Serge Grebenschikov <Serge.Grebenschikov@apexnc.org> 
Subject: Morris Acres Site 
 
 

Notice: This message is from an external sender. 
Do not click links or open attachments unless you trust the sender, and can verify the content is safe. 

 
Russell/Serge, 
Pulte has asked me to prepare an analysis for the Morris Acres site, formerly The Wayforth at Apex site.  They’re 
planning on 86 townhomes and 9 single family units.  We were planning on updating the former 2019 TIA (attached) to 
reflect the new unit counts and redo the traffic counts, would that be sufficient?  Last study looked at these 
intersections: 

 Morris Acres Road at Jenks Road 
 Morris Acres Road at Reedybrook Crossing/Site Driveway 
 Morris Acres Road at Creekside Landing 
 Morris Acres Road at US 64 WB 
 Morris Acres Road at Site Driveways 

We’ll probably collect new counts as well, since the last ones were 2018 
Thanks, 
Lyle 
 
Lyle Overcash, PE 
Kimley-Horn | 421 Fayetteville Street, Suite 600, Raleigh NC 27601 
Direct: 919.678.4131 | Mobile: 919.906.4511 
Connect with us: Twitter | LinkedIn | Facebook | Instagram | Kimley-Horn.com 
 
Celebrating 14 years as one of FORTUNE’s 100 Best Companies to Work For 
 

- Page 264 -



- Page 265 -



PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION
This document is a public record under the North Carolina 
third parties.

Application #: Submittal Date: 
Fee Paid $ Check # 

Last Updated: July 1, 2021 

PETITION TO AMEND THE OFFICIAL ZONING DISTRICT MAP 

Project Name: Morris Tract PUD

Address(es): 

PIN(s) 

Acreage:  

Current Zoning:  Proposed Zoning:  

Current 2045 LUM Designation:  

Is the proposed rezoning consistent with the 2045 LUM Classification(s)?     Yes         No      

If any portion of the project is shown as mixed use (3 or more stripes on the 2045 Land Use Map) provide the following: 

Area classified as mixed use: Acreage:  

Area proposed as non-residential development: Acreage:  

Percent of mixed use area proposed as non-residential: Percent:  

Applicant Information 

Name:  

Address:  

City:  State:  Zip:  

Phone:  E-mail:  

Owner Information 

Name:  

Address:  

City:  State:  Zip:  

Phone: E-mail:

Agent Information 

Name:  

Address:  

City:  State:  Zip:  

Phone:  E-mail:  

Other contacts:  

3 of 20 Planned Unit Develoment-Conditional Zoning Application
- Page 266 -



PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION
This document is a public record under the North Carolina 
third parties.

Application #: Submittal Date: 
Fee Paid $ Check # 

Last Updated: July 1, 2021 

PETITION TO AMEND THE OFFICIAL ZONING DISTRICT MAP 

Project Name: Morris Tract PUD

Address(es): 

PIN(s) 0732295017,

Acreage:  

Current Zoning:  Proposed Zoning:  

Current 2045 LUM Designation:  

Is the proposed rezoning consistent with the 2045 LUM Classification(s)?     Yes         No      

If any portion of the project is shown as mixed use (3 or more stripes on the 2045 Land Use Map) provide the following: 

Area classified as mixed use: Acreage:  

Area proposed as non-residential development: Acreage:  

Percent of mixed use area proposed as non-residential: Percent:  

Applicant Information 

Name:  

Address:  

City:  State:  Zip:  

Phone:  E-mail:  

Owner Information 

Name:  

Address:  

City:  State:  Zip:  

Phone: E-mail:

Agent Information 

Name:  

Address:  

City:  State:  Zip:  

Phone:  E-mail:  

Other contacts:  

3 of 20 Planned Unit Develoment-Conditional Zoning Application
- Page 267 -



PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION

Application #: Submittal Date: 

Last Updated: July 1, 2021 

PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT STANDARDS: 

In return for greater flexibility in site design requirements, Planned Development (PD) Districts are expected to deliver 
exceptional quality community designs that preserve critical environmental resources; provide high quality community 
amenities; incorporate creative design in the layout of buildings, Resource Conservation Area and circulation; ensure 
compatibility with surrounding land uses and neighborhood character; provide high quality architecture; and provide 
greater efficiency in the layout and provision of roads, utilities, and other infrastructure. The Planned Development (PD) 

developments. The PD text and plan should demonstrate how the standards of Sec. 2.3.4.F are met be the proposed 
rezoning. 

LEGISLATIVE CONSIDERATIONS - CONDITIONAL ZONING 

The applicant shall propose site-specific standards and conditions that take into account the following considerations, 
which are considerations that are relevant to the legislative determination of whether or not the proposed conditional 
zoning district rezoning request is in the public interest.  These considerations do not exclude the legislative consideration 
of any other factor that is relevant to the public interest. Use additional pages as needed. 

1) Consistency with 2045 Land Use Map.  
proposed location and consistency with the purposes, goals, objectives, and policies of the 2045 Land Use Map.

2) Compatibility.  
compatibility with the character of surrounding land uses.

Supplemental Standards, if applicable.

4 of 20 Planned Unit Develoment-Conditional Zoning Application

The proposed uses for Morris Tract PUD are limited to single-family homes and townhouses which

are primary uses in the Medium Density Residential future land classification. There is an existing

single-family neighborhood to the northeast; however, the southwest has a high-density residential/

commercial services/ office employment future land classification. The PUD would soften the

transition between the existing single-family neighborhood and future development.

The proposal is consistent with the 2045 Land Use Map. Planned Unit Development is an

allowable zoning district in the Medium Density Residential land use map classification and the 

proposed conditions maintain the density within the 3-7 dwelling units per acre range.

There are no supplemental standards listed for single-family detached homes and attached

townhouse units.

- Page 268 -



PETITION PROCESS INFORMATION 

Last Updated: July 1, 2021 

4) Design minimizes adverse impact.  
adverse effects, including visual impact of the proposed use on adjacent lands; and avoidance of significant adverse
impacts on surrounding lands regarding trash, traffic, service delivery, parking and loading, odors, noise, glare, and
vibration and not create a nuisance.

5) Design minimizes environmental impact.  
environmental impacts and protection from significant deterioration of water and air resources, wildlife habitat, scenic
resources, and other natural resources.

6) Impact on public facilities.  
on public facilities and services, including roads, potable water and wastewater facilities, parks, schools, police, fire and
EMS facilities.

7) Health, safety, and welfare.  
welfare of the residents of the Town or its ETJ.

8) Detrimental to adjacent properties.  Whether the proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use is substantially
detrimental to adjacent properties.

5 of 20 Planned Unit Develoment-Conditional Zoning Application

The development will minimize adverse impact. It will have landscaped buffers on all sides which

will ameliorate any disturbance to neighbors and visually screen the development. Limiting the

permitted uses to single-family dwellings and townhouse units will significantly reduce any impacts

to surrounding property. SCMs will be sized to the 100-year storm event.

The development minimizes environmental impact. The design avoids disturbing wetlands and

streams, and the much of the remainder of the site is currently cleared. SCMs will be sized to the 

100 year storm event, and the applicant will work with the neighbors to understand their

experience with stormwater and their concerns.

The site will have minimal impact on public facilities. Based on conversations with the Town of

Apex staff, it is the applicant's understanding that a development of this nature will neither

overwhelm public facilities nor detract from service availability. Further evaluation of public facilities

will be required at the Construction Drawing Stage.

The development will not be detrimental to adjacent properties. Like the proposed neighborhood,

the adjacent properties contain residential uses. In addition, appropriate perimeter buffers will be

installed to alleviate any disturbance to existing properties. The new development will be

carefully designed to blend with adjacent properties and engineered to deter nuisances.- Page 269 -



PETITION PROCESS INFORMATION 

Last Updated: July 1, 2021 

9) Not constitute nuisance or hazard.  Whether the proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use constitutes a nuisance
or hazard due to traffic impact or noise, or because of the number of persons who will be using the Conditional Zoning
(CZ) District use.

10) Other relevant standards of this Ordinance.  Whether the proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use complies
with all standards imposed on it by all other applicable provisions of this Ordinance for use, layout, and general
development characteristics.

6 of 20 Planned Unit Develoment-Conditional Zoning Application

Single-family dwellings and townhouses are generally regarded as low-intensity uses. They

produce fewer impacts than other land uses. In addition, the numerous points of ingress and

egress provided will provide for connectivity and disperse traffic. Stubs are provided to the north 

for future connectivity.

The proposed district, associated uses, layout, and general development characteristics comply

with the applicable requirements of the Unified Development Ordinance.

- Page 270 -



- Page 271 -



- Page 272 -



- Page 273 -



- Page 274 -



AGENT AUTHORIZATION FORM

Application #: Submittal Date: 

Last Updated: July 14, 2021 

is the owner* of the property for which the attached 

application is being submitted: 

Rezoning: For Conditional Zoning and Planned Development rezoning applications, this
authorization includes express consent to zoning conditions that are agreed to by the 
Agent which will apply if the application is approved. 

Site Plan

Subdivision

Variance

Other:

The property address is: 

The agent for this project is: 

I am the owner of the property and will be acting as my own agent

Agent Name: 

Address: 

Telephone Number: 

E-Mail Address:

Signature(s) of Owner(s)* 

Type or print name Date 

Type or print name Date 

Attach additional sheets if there are additional owners. 

*Owner of record as shown on the latest equalized assessment rolls of Wake County. An option to purchase does not
constitute ownership. If ownership has been recently transferred, a copy of the deed must accompany this authorization.

Pursuant to Article 40 of Chapter 66 of the North Carolina General Statutes (the Uniform Electronic Transactions Act) this 
application and all documents related hereto containing an electronic or digitized signature are legally binding in the same 
manner as are hard copy documents executed by hand signature. The parties hereby consent to use electronic or digitized 

d to be bound by the application and any 
related documents. If electronic signatures are used the application shall be delivered in an electronic record capable of 
retention by the recipient at the time of receipt. 

Page 10 of 18 Planned Unit Development - Conditional Zoning Application
- Page 275 -



AFFIDAVIT OF OWNERSHIP: EXHIBIT A LEGAL DESCRIPTION

Application #: Submittal Date: 

Last Updated: August 30, 2019 

Insert legal description below. 

19 of 20 Planned Unit Develoment-Conditional Zoning Application
- Page 276 -



Legal description for Tract Edith Morris  

Beginning at an Existing Axle located at the Southwest corner of a tract of land owned by Wilma Lee 
Morris, PIN No. 0732298556, Recorded at Book of Maps 2001, Page 291, Wake County Registry. Said 
Existing Axle having North Carolina Geodetic Coordinates (NAD 83; 2011) N: 729,123.48
2,032,670.88 Thence, South 88°52'12" East a distance of 904.77' to an Existing Iron Pipe; Thence North 
89°57'34" East a distance of 36.59' to an Existing Iron Rebar; Thence North 89°44'31" East a distance of 
62.17' to an Existing Iron Pipe; Thence South 02°27'02" West a distance of 119.42' to an Existing Iron 
Rebar; Thence South 02°22'53" West a distance of 111.43' to an Existing Iron Rebar; Thence South 
02°18'02" West a distance of 92.88' to an Existing Iron Rebar; Thence South 02°21'36" West a distance 
of 208.96' to an Existing Iron Rebar; Thence South 02°22'28" West a distance of 428.91' to a New Iron 
Pipe located on the Northern Right of Way of Morris Acres Road; Thence continuing along said Right of 
Way, North 62°20'05" West a distance of 374.12' to a Point; Thence leaving said Right of Way, North 
11°17'51" East a distance of 318.24' to a Point; Thence North 83°39'21" West a distance of 217.02' to a 
Point; Thence North 05°16'39" East a distance of 54.78' to a Point; Thence North 88°49'51" West a 
distance of 125.97' to a Point; Thence South 02°21'09" West a distance of 48.00' to a Point; Thence 
North 89°50'51" West a distance of 48.48' to a Point; Thence North 62°23'51" West a distance of 165.92' 
to a Point; Thence South 27°36'09" West a distance of 122.99' to a Point; Thence with a curve to the 
right having a radius of 783.00', an arc length of 399.10', a chord bearing of North 37°42'52" West, and 
distance of 394.79', to a New Iron Pipe; Thence North 02°05'21" East a distance of 182.00' to an Existing 
Iron Rebar; Thence South 88°46'47" East a distance of 131.45' to an Existing Axle, Being the Point and 
Place of Beginning, and having an area of 14.129 Acres (615,464 Square Feet), More or Less. 

 

Beginning at a Point located on the Northern Right of Way of Morris Acres Road, said Point also being 
the Southeast corner of a tract of land owned by Edith Morris, PIN No. 0732289587, Recorded at Deed 
Book 2450, Page 555, Wake County Registry. Said Point having North Carolina Geodetic Coordinates 
(NAD 83; 2011) N: 728,411.08 3,127.17 , Thence North 05°16'39" East a distance of 244.89' to a 
Point; Thence South 83°39'21" East a distance of 217.02' to a Point; Thence South 11°17'51" West a 
distance of 318.24' to a Point; Thence North 62°20'05" West a distance of 198.57' to a Point, Being the 
Point and Place of Beginning, and having an area of 1.306 Acres (56,885 Square Feet), More or Less. 

 

Beginning at a Point located on the Northern Right of Way of Morris Acres Road, said Point also being 
the Southeast corner of a tract of land owned by Edith Morris, PIN No. 0732289587, Recorded at Deed 
Book 2450, Page 555, Wake County Registry. Said Point having North Carolina Geodetic Coordinates 

an Existing NCDOT Right of Way Disc; Thence North 26°40'56" East a distance of 20.62' to an Existing 
NCDOT Right of Way Disc; Thence North 62°34'09" West a distance of 156.03' to a Point; Thence with a 
curve to the right having a radius of 783.00', an arc length of 137.84', a chord bearing of North 57°21'34" 
West, and distance of 137.66', to a Point; Thence North 27°36'09" East a distance of 122.99' to a Point; 
Thence South 62°23'51" East a distance of 165.92' to a Point; Thence South 89°50'51" East a distance of 
48.48' to a Point; Thence North 02°21'09" East a distance of 48.00' to a Point; Thence South 88°49'51" 

- Page 277 -



East a distance of 125.97' to a Point; Thence South 05°16'39" West a distance of 54.78' to a Point; 
Thence South 05°16'39" West a distance of 244.89' to a Point, Being the Point and Place of Beginning, 
and having an area of 1.520 Acres (66,198 Square Feet), More or Less. 

Legal description for PIN No. 0732295017  NCDOT Parcel 

Beginning at an Existing Iron Rebar, said Rebar being located N 88°46'47" West a distance of 131.45' 
from an existing Axle located at the Southwest corner of a tract of land owned by Wilma Lee Morris, PIN 
No. 0732298556, Recorded at Book of Maps 2001, Page 291, Wake County Registry. Said Existing Axle 

 
Thence South 02°05'21" West a distance of 182.00' to a New Iron Pipe; 
Thence with a curve to the right having a radius of 783.00', an arc length of 190.70', a chord bearing of 
North 16°13'03" West, and distance of 190.22', to an Existing Iron Pipe; 
Thence South 89°15'20" East a distance of 59.77' to an Existing Iron Rebar, being the point and place of 
Beginning, and having an area of 0.142 Acres (6,173 SF), More or Less. 

- Page 278 -



- Page 279 -



- Page 280 -



SITE ADDRESS PIN NUM OWNER MAILING ADDRESS 1 MAILING ADDRESS 2 MAILING ADDRESS 3
800 TUNISIAN DR 0732380119 540 TOWNES HOA, INC 1225 CRESCENT GRN STE 250 CARY NC 27518-8119
2516 WALDEN WOODS DR 0732398073 ADDEN, NICOLE 2516 WALDEN WOODS DR APEX NC 27523-6245
7120 MORRIS ACRES RD 0732387152 ALPS LP 1143 EXECUTIVE CIR STE B CARY NC 27511-4571
0 WALDEN WOODS DR 0732397559 APEX TOWN OF PO BOX 250 APEX NC 27502-0250
9001 REEDYBROOK CRSG 0732286392 BEAVER CREEK CROSSING LLC TODD COPELAND 168 BUSINESS PARK DR STE 200 VIRGINIA BEACH VA 23462-6532
2505 FLINTS POND CIR 0732389017 BECKER, GARY A BECKER, BARBARA J 2505 FLINTS POND CIR APEX NC 27523-4813
2412 WALDEN CREEK DR 0732480456 CARNER, CHRISTOPHER DAVID CARNER, BRIDGET MARIE 2412 WALDEN CREEK DR APEX NC 27523-4844
2521 WALDEN WOODS DR 0732396202 CAUTHEN, JOHNSON JR CAUTHEN, DEBORAH 2521 WALDEN WOODS DR APEX NC 27523-6245
829 TUNISIAN DR 0732382191 CHEN, WANLING 829 TUNISIAN DR APEX NC 27523-7537
2507 FLINTS POND CIR 0732388153 CHENEY, BRADEN D MACKEY, HEATHER ANN 2507 FLINTS POND CIR APEX NC 27523-4813
2100 PEAKSIDE DR 0732382024 CHO, EUNA K CHO, REX H 2100 PEAKSIDE DR APEX NC 27523-7540
0 QUEEN CITY CRES 0732377766 CITISIDE AT BEAVER CREEK CROSSING HOA INC CHARLESTON MGMT PO BOX 97243 RALEIGH NC 27624-7243
803 TUNISIAN DR 0732380249 DIAZ, CYNTHIA I COLON CADENA, ARGYL I RAMIREZ 803 TUNISIAN DR APEX NC 27523-7537
814 TUNISIAN DR 0732381102 DUSUNG ENTERPRISE INC 5603 HIGHCROFT DR CARY NC 27519-8830
2517 WALDEN WOODS DR 0732397014 FALKANGER, JEFFREY J FALKANGER, KERRY C 2517 WALDEN WOODS DR APEX NC 27523-6245
805 TUNISIAN DR 0732380268 GAYLES, ANTHONY DARON 805 TUNISIAN DR APEX NC 27523-7537
7305 JENKS RD 0732393853 GREEN ACRES OF APEX LLC 7328 JENKS RD APEX NC 27523-7811
2503 WALDEN WOODS DR 0732389588 GROSSER, DONALD B JR GROSSER, CYNTHIA S 2503 WALDEN WOODS DR APEX NC 27523-6245
815 TUNISIAN DR 0732381272 GUPTA, SAURABH MITTAL, SONAL 815 TUNISIAN DR APEX NC 27523-7537
2519 WALDEN WOODS DR 0732396197 HARPER, PAUL MARK HARPER, RENAE KEY 2519 WALDEN WOODS DR APEX NC 27523-6245
818 TUNISIAN DR 0732381049 HONG, GIN JONG DAVIS 102 BRASS RING CT CARY NC 27513-3616
801 TUNISIAN DR 0732380310 HOUSTON, MICHAEL J HOUSTON, KRISTIN A 231 CANDIA LN CARY NC 27519-8810
2502 WALDEN WOODS DR 0732480708 ISAACS, DANIEL J 2502 WALDEN WOODS DR APEX NC 27523-6245
2524 WALDEN WOODS DR 0732397472 KAPLAN, PETER KAPLAN, ERIN B 2524 WALDEN WOODS DR APEX NC 27523-6245
2505 WALDEN WOODS DR 0732389603 KOESTER, JOHN D KOESTER, JOHANNA P 2505 WALDEN WOODS DR APEX NC 27523-6245
841 TUNISIAN DR 0732383044 LAO, TERENCE LAO, CATHERINE 1301 MAGNOLIA BEND LOOP CARY NC 27519-0121
8008 REEDYBROOK CRSG 0732289185 LAXMANA, RAJINEESH KUMAR VUMMIDISINGH LAXMANA, SREE HARSHITHA VUMMIDISINGH 100 COLUMBUS DR APT 1611 JERSEY CITY NJ 07302-5557
812 TUNISIAN DR 0732380174 LIN, SEN 812 TUNISIAN DR APEX NC 27523-7537
819 TUNISIAN DR 0732382119 LIU, XINGJUN XING, JUN 112 WYNSTONE CT COLMAR PA 18915-3104
817 TUNISIAN DR 0732381281 LUO, JING OUYANG, WEN 817 TUNISIAN DR APEX NC 27523-7537
845 TUNISIAN DR 0732373978 MADHVANI, VIRAT K MADHVANI, KAJAL V 317 MILLICENT WAY MORRISVILLE NC 27560-7299
853 TUNISIAN DR 0732374900 MAGNOLIA PROPERTY MANAGEMENT LLC 203 SAGERVIEW WAY DURHAM NC 27713-6191
813 TUNISIAN DR 0732381244 MIDOLO, ANDREA 813 TUNISIAN DR APEX NC 27523-7537
2104 PEAKSIDE DR 0732381071 MISTRY, DHANSUKH MISTRY, SHILA D 2104 PEAKSIDE DR APEX NC 27523-7540
7208 MORRIS ACRES RD 0732289587 MORRIS, EDITH S 7208 MORRIS ACRES RD APEX NC 27523-5822
0 JENKS RD 0732298556 MORRIS, WILMA LEE 7328 JENKS RD APEX NC 27523-7811
2526 WALDEN WOODS DR 0732396483 MULCAHY, JOHN M MULCAHY, MICHELE A 2526 WALDEN WOODS DR APEX NC 27523-6245
7304 MORRIS ACRES RD 0732295017 NC DEPT OF TRANSPORTATION TURNPIKE AUTHORITY TRANSPORTATION SECTION 1505 MAIL SERVICE CTR RALEIGH NC 27699-1505
0 MORRIS ACRES RD 0732284334 NC DOT TRNPK AUTHORITY MARTIN T MCCRACKEN 1505 MAIL SERVICE CTR RALEIGH NC 27699-1500
2509 WALDEN WOODS DR 0732387613 PARKER, DAVID PARKER, ROBYN 2509 WALDEN WOODS DR APEX NC 27523-6245
2522 WALDEN WOODS DR 0732398344 PETERSON, DAVID R PETERSON, GAIL C 2522 WALDEN WOODS DR APEX NC 27523-6245
843 TUNISIAN DR 0732383061 PULIJALA, DHEERAJ KUMAR PULIJALA, CHAITANYA 843 TUNISIAN DR APEX NC 27523-7537
2528 WALDEN WOODS DR 0732396402 PYNE, CRAIG A GALIEN, KIMBERLY L 2528 WALDEN WOODS DR APEX NC 27523-6245
809 TUNISIAN DR 0732381216 RAJARAM, NARAYAN K UTHAMARAJAN, ARTHI 2774 WILLOW ROCK LN APEX NC 27523-8515
823 TUNISIAN DR 0732382147 RAMSEY, FRANCES B 823 TUNISIAN DR APEX NC 27523-7537
2506 FLINTS POND CIR 0732388289 SAFIAN, DAVID SAFIAN, MICHELLE 2506 FLINTS POND CIR APEX NC 27523-4813
8006 REEDYBROOK CRSG 0732289182 SARTORI, JEANETTE 8006 REEDYBROOK XING APEX NC 27523-7542
2508 FLINTS POND CIR 0732387292 SIMMONS, RYAN KENNETH SIMMONS, KRYSTAL MARIE 2508 FLINTS POND CIR APEX NC 27523-4813
2102 PEAKSIDE DR 0732381092 SINGH, ISHA 2102 PEAKSIDE DR APEX NC 27523-7540
2504 FLINTS POND CIR 0732389347 SIT, ANITA YIN CHING LEUNG 2504 FLINTS POND CIR APEX NC 27523-4813
825 TUNISIAN DR 0732382164 SMITH, DERMOT J SMITH, JENNIFER R 825 TUNISIAN DR APEX NC 27523-7537
2515 WALDEN WOODS DR 0732387923 STEVENS, GREGORY W STEVENS, YOKO FUSE 2515 WALDEN WOODS DR APEX NC 27523-6245
847 TUNISIAN DR 0732373986 V & V PROPERTY GROUP LLC 317 MILLICENT WAY MORRISVILLE NC 27560-7299
816 TUNISIAN DR 0732381121 VACCA, STACY ELLEN 816 TUNISIAN DR APEX NC 27523-7537
2511 WALDEN WOODS DR 0732387723 VOJTICEK, BRANDON M VOJTICEK, LEIGH ANN 2511 WALDEN WOODS DR APEX NC 27523-6245
2513 WALDEN WOODS DR 0732387823 WEISS, GEOFFREY L 2513 WALDEN WOODS DR APEX NC 27523-6245
807 TUNISIAN DR 0732380287 WEST, DONALD EUGENE II 807 TUNISIAN DR APEX NC 27523-7537
2518 WALDEN WOODS DR 0732398164 WILLIAMS, STACEY D WILLIAMS, JOHN C 2518 WALDEN WOODS DR APEX NC 27523-6245
2520 WALDEN WOODS DR 0732398254 WOODIE, KEITH AUSTIN, HOLLY 2520 WALDEN WOODS DR APEX NC 27523-6245
831 TUNISIAN DR 0732383018 WRIGHT, STEVEN C 831 TUNISIAN DR APEX NC 27523-7537
849 TUNISIAN DR 0732373993 ZENG, XIAOMING ZHOU, FAN 128 VALLEY VIEW DR CHAPEL HILL NC 27516-6260
827 TUNISIAN DR 0732382173 ZHANG, DONG 2134 CRIGAN BLUFF DR CARY NC 27513-8356

RS FINCHER & COMPANY, LLC PO BOX 1117 APEX NC 27502
Current Tenant 7409 Jenks RD APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 7208B Morris Acres RD APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 3101 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 3103 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 3105 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 3107 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 3109 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 3111 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 3113 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 3115 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 3117 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 3119 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 3121 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 3201 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 3203 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 3205 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 3207 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 3209 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 3211 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 3213 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 3215 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 3217 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 3219 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 3221 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 3301 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 3303 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 3305 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 3307 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 3309 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 3311 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 3313 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 3315 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 3317 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 3319 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 3321 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 3401 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523

20220201 Morris Acres PUD Notification List

20220201 Morris Acres PUD Notification List

- Page 281 -



Current Tenant 3403 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 3405 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 3407 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 3409 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 3411 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 3413 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 3415 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 3417 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 3419 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 3421 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6101 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6103 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6105 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6107 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6109 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6111 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6113 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6115 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6117 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6119 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6121 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6123 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6125 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6127 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6129 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6131 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6133 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6135 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6137 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6139 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6141 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6143 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6145 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6147 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6149 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6151 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6153 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6155 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6157 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6159 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6201 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6203 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6205 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6207 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6209 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6211 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6213 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6215 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6217 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6219 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6221 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6223 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6225 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6227 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6229 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6231 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6233 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6235 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6237 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6239 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6241 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6243 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6245 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6247 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6249 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6251 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6253 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6255 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6257 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6259 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6301 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6303 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6305 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6307 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6309 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6311 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6313 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6315 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6317 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6319 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6321 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6323 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6325 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6327 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6329 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6331 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6333 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6335 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6337 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6339 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6341 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6343 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6345 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6347 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6349 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6351 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6353 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6355 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6357 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6359 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6401 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6403 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6405 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523

20220201 Morris Acres PUD Notification List

- Page 282 -



Current Tenant 6407 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6409 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6411 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6413 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6415 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6417 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6419 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6421 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6423 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6425 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6427 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6429 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6431 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6433 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6435 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6437 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6439 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6441 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6443 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6445 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6447 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6449 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6451 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6453 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6455 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6457 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 6459 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 8008 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 9101 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 9103 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 9105 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 9107 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 9109 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 9111 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 9113 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 9115 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 9117 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 9119 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 9121 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 9123 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 9201 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 9203 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 9205 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 9207 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 9209 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 9211 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 9213 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 9215 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 9217 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 9219 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 9221 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 9223 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 9301 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 9303 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 9305 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 9307 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 9309 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 9311 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 9313 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 9315 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 9317 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 9319 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 9321 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 9323 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 9401 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 9403 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 9405 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 9407 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 9409 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 9411 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 9413 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 9415 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 9417 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 9419 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 9421 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 9423 Reedybrook XING APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 801 Tunisian DR APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 809 Tunisian DR APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 814 Tunisian DR APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 818 Tunisian DR APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 819 Tunisian DR APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 827 Tunisian DR APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 841 Tunisian DR APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 845 Tunisian DR APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 847 Tunisian DR APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 849 Tunisian DR APEX NC 27523
Current Tenant 853 Tunisian DR APEX NC 27523

20220201 Morris Acres PUD Notification List

- Page 283 -



115 MacKenan Drive | Cary, NC 27511 
t: 919.469.3340 | f: 919.467.6008 | www.withersravenel.com | License No. F-1479 

Asheville | Cary | Charlotte | Greensboro | Lumberton | Pittsboro | Raleigh | Southern Pines | Wilmington 

January 12, 2022 

RE: Morris Tract PUD 

Dear Resident or Property Owner: 

Please find enclosed an invitation for a neighborhood meeting for the proposed rezoning of 
17.09 acres at 7304 and 7208 Morris Acres Rd. (Wake County PINs 0732295017, 0732382709, 
0732289587, and 0732382530) from Rural Residential (RR) to Planned Unit Development  
Conditional Zoning (PUD-CZ). The proposal would limit the permitted uses to single-family 
detached residential dwellings and townhouses. 

The meeting will take place virtually on Wednesday, January 26th, 2022 from 6 pm to 8 pm on 
WebEx. You can join by computer, smartphone, tablet, or other internet-enabled device by using 
the meeting link. 

Register in advance at https://bit.ly/3EYyb2r. You can also access the registration page using the 
camera on your smartphone to scan the code below. 

There are several ways to access the virtual meeting. To join by phone, use +1-415-655-0001 
US Toll, access code: 2421 385 3483. You can also use the event link, https://bit.ly/3eTO53G, 
or use the camera on your smartphone to scan the code below. 

Future meetings will include a Planning Board meeting and a legislative hearing before Town 
Council. If you are unable to attend the meeting, would like to talk outside of the meeting, or 
have any other questions or concerns, please email bvega@withersravenel.com or call 919-535-
5212. If you have questions for the Town, the Planner on the rezoning case is Liz Loftin: 
Liz.Loftin@apexnc.org or 919-249-3439. 

Sincerely, 
WithersRavenel 

Brendie Vega, ACIP, CNU-A 
Director of Planning  

- Page 284 -



PROJECT CONTACT INFORMATION
or disclosed to third parties.

Page 5 of 10 Neighborhood Meeting Instruction Packet & Affidavit  Last Updated: June 21, 2021  

Development Contacts:  

Project Name:  Zoning:  

Location:  

Property PIN(s):  Acreage/Square Feet:  

Property Owner:  

Address:  

City:  State:  Zip:  

Phone: Email: 

Address:  

City:  State:  Zip:  

Phone: Fax: Email: 

Engineer:  

Address:  

City:  State:  Zip:  

Phone:  Fax: Email:  

Builder (if known): 

Address:  

City:  State: Zip: 

Phone: Fax: Email: 

Please note that Town staff will not have complete information about a proposed development until the 
application is submitted for review. If you have a question about Town development standards and how 
they relate to the proposed development, please contact the appropriate staff person listed below. 

Town of Apex Department Contacts 
Planning and Community Development Department Main Number 

(Provide development name or location to be routed to correct planner) (919) 249-3426
Parks, Recreation & Cultural Resources Department 

Angela Reincke, Parks and Greenways Planner  (919) 249-7468
Public Works - Transportation 

Russell Dalton, Senior Transportation Engineer (919) 249-3358
Water Resources Department 

Jessica Bolin, Environmental Engineering Manager (Stormwater, Sedimentation & 
Erosion Control) 

James Gregg, Utility Engineering Manager (Water & Sewer) 

(919) 249-3537

(919) 249-3324
Electric Utilities Division 

Rodney Smith, Electric Technical Services Manager (919) 249-3342

Morris Tract PUD Rural Residential (RR)

7304 and 7208 Morris Acres Rd.

 0732295017, 0732382709, 
0732289587, and 0732382530

17.09 acres

Property Owner: North Carolina Department of Transportation Turnpike Authority
Transportation Section, 1505 Mail Service Center

Raleigh NC 27699-1505

7208 Morris Acres Rd.

Apex NC 27523-5822

WithersRavenel

115 MacKenan Dr.

Cary NC 27511

(919) 469-3340 bvega@withersravenel.com

Edith Morris

- Page 285 -



Page 6 of 10 Neighborhood Meeting Instruction Packet & Affidavit  Last Updated: June 21, 2021  

Providing Input to Town Council:  
Each Town Council meeting agenda includes a Public Forum time when anyone is permitted to speak for 
three (3) minutes on any topic with the exception of items listed as Public Hearings for that meeting. The 
Town Council meets on the 2nd and 4th Tuesdays of each month at 6:00 p.m. (except for holidays, see schedule 
of meetings at http://www.apexnc.org/838/Agendas-Minutes). You may also contact Town Council by e-mail 
at AllCouncil@apexnc.org. 

Private Agreements and Easement Negotiation: 
The Town of Apex cannot enforce private agreements between developers and neighbors and is not a party 
to the easement and right-of-way negotiation that occurs between developers and neighboring property 
owners for easements or rights-of-way that are necessary to build the project.  

It is recommended that all private agreements be made in writing and that if a property owner feels it 
necessary, they should obtain private legal counsel in order to protect their interests in both private 
agreements and during easement negotiations. The only conditions that the Town of Apex can enforce are 
those conditions that are made a part of the conditional zoning of the property by agreement of the 
developer and the Town.  

As an example, if a developer offers to build a fence for a neighbor to mitigate some impact, the Town can 
only enforce the construction of the fence if the fence becomes a condition of the rezoning. This would occur 
by the developer offering the condition as part of their conditional zoning application package or at the Town 
Council public hearing on the conditional zoning and the Town accepting it as a condition. Private agreements 
regarding a fence being constructed will not be enforced by the Town. 

To request that any agreement with a developer is made a part of the conditional zoning at the time of 
approval, you may ask at the Town Council public hearing if the agreement is included in the conditions. If it 
is not, you may request that the Town Council not approve the rezoning without the agreement being 
included in the conditions (note that it is up to Town Council whether to approve or deny the rezoning but 

conditions can be viewed any time after a rezoning is submitted on the Interactive Development Map at: 
http://apexnc.maps.arcgis.com/apps/OnePane/basicviewer/index.html?appid=fa9ba2017b784030b15ef4d
a27d9e795 

Documentation: 
Neighbors to a requested new development and/or rezoning are strongly encouraged to fully document (such 
as through dated photographs) the condition of their property before any work is initiated for the new 
development. Stormwater controls installed on developed property are not designed to and will likely not 
remove 100% of the soil particles transported by stormwater runoff. As a result, creeks and ponds could 
become cloudy for a period of time after rain events. 

- Page 286 -



COMMON CONSTRUCTION ISSUES & WHO TO CALL
or disclosed to third parties.

Page 7 of 10 Neighborhood Meeting Instruction Packet & Affidavit  Last Updated: June 21, 2021  

Noise & Hours of Construction: Non-Emergency Police 919-362-8661
Noise from tree removal, grading, excavating, paving, and building structures is a routine part of the 
construction process. The Town generally limits construction hours from 7:00 a.m. to 8:30 p.m. so that there 
are quiet times even during the construction process. Note that construction outside of these hours is 
allowed with special permission from the Town when it makes more sense to have the construction occur at 
night, often to avoid traffic issues. In addition, the Town limits hours of blasting rock to Monday through 
Friday from 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. Report violations of construction hours and other noise complaints to the 
Non-Emergency Police phone number at 919-362-8661. 
Construction Traffic: James Misciagno 919-372-7470
Construction truck traffic will be heavy throughout the development process, including but not limited to 
removal of trees from site, loads of dirt coming in and/or out of the site, construction materials such as brick 
and wood brought to the site, asphalt and concrete trucks come in to pave, etc. The Town requires a 
construction entrance that is graveled to try to prevent as much dirt from leaving the site as possible. If dirt 
does get into the road, the Town can require they clean the street .  
Road Damage & Traffic Control: Water Resources  Infrastructure Inspections 919-362-8166
There can be issues with roadway damage, roadway improvements, and traffic control. Potholes, rutting, 
inadequate lanes/signing/striping, poor traffic control, blocked sidewalks/paths are all common issues that should 
be reported to Water Resources  Infrastructure Inspections at 919-249-3427. The Town will get NCDOT involved 
if needed. 
Parking Violations: Non-Emergency Police 919-362-8661

property. Note that parking in the right-of-way is allowed, but Town regulations prohibit parking within 15 feet of 
driveways so as not to block sight triangles. Trespassing and parking complaints should be reported to the Non-
Emergency Police phone number at 919-362-8661. 
Dirt in the Road: James Misciagno 919-372-7470
Sediment (dirt) and mud gets into the existing roads due to rain events and/or vehicle traffic. These incidents 
should be reported to James Misciagno. He will coordinate the cleaning of the roadways with the developer. 
Dirt on Properties or in Streams: James Misciagno 919-372-7470

Danny Smith Danny.Smith@ncdenr.gov 
Sediment (dirt) can leave the site and get onto adjacent properties or into streams and stream buffers; it is typically 
transported off-site by rain events. These incidents should be reported to James Misciagno at 919-372-7470 so 
that he can coordinate the appropriate repairs with the developer. Impacts to the streams and stream buffers 
should also be reported to Danny Smith (danny.smith@ncdenr.gov) with the State. 
Dust: James Misciagno 919-372-7470
During dry weather dust often becomes a problem blowing into existing neighborhoods or roadways. These 
incidents should be reported to James Misciagno at 919-372-7470 so that he can coordinate the use of water 
trucks onsite with the grading contractor to help control the dust. 
Trash: James Misciagno 919-372-7470
Excessive garbage and construction debris can blow around on a site or even off of the site. These incidents should 
be reported to James Misciagno at 919-372-7470. He will coordinate the cleanup and trash collection with the 
developer/home builder. 
Temporary Sediment Basins: James Misciagno 919-372-7470
Temporary sediment basins during construction (prior to the conversion to the final stormwater pond) are often 
quite unattractive. Concerns should be reported to James Misciagno at 919-372-7470 so that he can coordinate 
the cleaning and/or mowing of the slopes and bottom of the pond with the developer. 
Stormwater Control Measures: Jessica Bolin 919-249-3537
Post-construction concerns related to Stormwater Control Measures (typically a stormwater pond) such as 
conversion and long-term maintenance should be reported to Jessica Bolin at 919-249-3537.  
Electric Utility Installation: Rodney Smith 919-249-3342
Concerns with electric utility installation can be addressed by the Apex Electric Utilities Department. Contact 
Rodney Smith at 919-249-3342. 

- Page 287 -



    

    

 L 0 D S V   P D N H V   H Y H U \   H I I R U W   W R   S U R G X F H   D Q G   S X E O L V K
 W K H   P R V W   F X U U H Q W   D Q G   D F F X U D W H   L Q I R U P D W L R Q   S R V V L E O H  
 + R Z H Y H U     W K H   P D S V   D U H   S U R G X F H G   I R U   L Q I R U P D W L R Q   S X U S R V H V  
 D Q G   D U H     V X U Y H \ V     1 R   Z D U U D Q W L H V     H [ S U H V V H G   R U   L P S O L H G
   D U H   S U R Y L G H G   I R U   W K H   G D W D   W K H U H L Q     L W V   X V H   R U   L W V   L Q W H U S U H W D W L R Q  

 0 R U U L V   7 U D F W   3 8 '

        

- Page 288 -



    

    

 5       :

 3 &   & 8

 0 )   & 8

 3 &   & 8

 0 '   & 8

 0 '   & 8  0 )   & 8

 6 )   & 8

 3 &   & 8

 3 8 '   & 8

 3 8 '   & 8  3 8 '   & =

 3 8 '   & =

 7 )   & =

 0 '   & =

 3 8 '   & =

 L 0 D S V   P D N H V   H Y H U \   H I I R U W   W R   S U R G X F H   D Q G   S X E O L V K
 W K H   P R V W   F X U U H Q W   D Q G   D F F X U D W H   L Q I R U P D W L R Q   S R V V L E O H  
 + R Z H Y H U     W K H   P D S V   D U H   S U R G X F H G   I R U   L Q I R U P D W L R Q   S X U S R V H V  
 D Q G   D U H     V X U Y H \ V     1 R   Z D U U D Q W L H V     H [ S U H V V H G   R U   L P S O L H G
   D U H   S U R Y L G H G   I R U   W K H   G D W D   W K H U H L Q     L W V   X V H   R U   L W V   L Q W H U S U H W D W L R Q  

 0 R U U L V   7 U D F W   3 8 '

        

 & %   & R Q V H U Y D W L R Q   % X I I H U

 + ' 0 )   & R Q G L W L R Q D O   8 V H

 + ' 6 )   & R Q G L W L R Q D O   8 V H

 0 '   0 H G L X P   ' H Q V L W \   5 H V L G H Q W L D O

 0 '   & R Q G L W L R Q D O   8 V H

 0 '   & R Q G L W L R Q D O   = R Q L Q J

 / ,   / L J K W   , Q G X V W U L D O

- Page 289 -



TOWNHOMES

SINGLE FAMILY DETACHED

SCM

STREAM BUFFER/ PONDS

PERIMETER BUFFER 

WETLAND

OPEN SPACE

LEGEND

ACCESS POINTS

ROAD CROSSING

MORRIS TRACT PUD
Cary, NC 

Project Number: 210742
2022.01.07

137 S Wilmington Street | Suite 200 | Raleigh, NC 27601
t. 919.469.3340 | license #: F-1479| withersravenel.com

1 inch = 50 feet

100’50’0’

TOWNHOMES

ROAD CROSSING

20’ TYPE ‘B’ BUFFER

20
’ T

Y
PE

 ‘B
’ B

U
FF

ER

30’ TYPE ‘D’ STREETFRONT BUFFER

30’ TYPE ‘D’ STREETFRONT BUFFER

SINGLE FAMILY 
DETACHED

SCM

SCM

R
E

E
D

Y
 B

R
O

O
K

 C
R

O
SS

IN
G

MORRIS ACRES ROAD

- Page 290 -



NEIGHBORHOOD MEETING SIGN-IN SHEET 
 website or disclosed to third parties. 

Page 8 of 10 Neighborhood Meeting Instruction Packet & Affidavit  Last Updated: December 21, 2021  

 
Meeting Address:   _______________________________________________________________ 

Date of meeting:  ______________________________ Time of meeting:  ____________________________ 

Property Owner(s) name(s):  _________________________________________________________ 

Applicant(s):  ___________________________________________________________________ 
 

Please print your name below, state your address and/or affiliation with a neighborhood group, and provide your phone number and email address. 
Providing your name below does not represent support or opposition to the project; it is for documentation purposes only. For virtual meetings, applicants 
must include all known participants and request the information below. 

 NAME/ORGANIZATION ADDRESS PHONE # EMAIL 
SEND PLANS 
& UPDATES 

1.     

2.     

3.     

4.     

5.     

6.     

7.     

8.     

9.     

10.     

11.     

12.     

13.     

14.     

Use additional sheets, if necessary. 
- Page 291 -



 20220126 Morris Acres PUD Neighborhood Meeting Attendance List

Name Email Address When Registered Address 1 Address 2 City State ZIP Phone
Gail Peterson 1/26/2022 18:11 2522 Walden Woods Drive Apex Nc 27523
Donald Grosser 1/26/2022 18:03 2503 Walden Woods Drive Apex North Carolina 27523
Ryan Simmons 1/26/2022 17:58 2508 Flints Pond Cir Apex NC 27523
Randy King 1/26/2022 17:48
PAUL HARPER 1/24/2022 19:54 2519 Walden Woods Dr Apex NC 27523
Keith Woodie 1/21/2022 11:16 2520 Walden Woods Dr Apex NC 27523
David Parker 1/21/2022 10:01 2509 Walden Woods Dr Apex NC 27523
Brandon Vojticek 1/18/2022 8:53 2511 Walden Woods Dr Apex NC 27523
braden cheney 1/16/2022 8:31 2507 Flints Pond Circle Apex NC 27523
Deborah Cauthen 1/14/2022 13:12 2521 Walden Woods Drive Apex NC 27523
Caroline Richardson 1/6/2022 9:03 137 S Wilmington St. Suite 200 Raleigh NC 27601
Ed Tang 1/6/2022 9:03 137 S Wilmington St. Suite 200 Raleigh NC 27601
Brian Lussier 1/6/2022 9:03 137 S Wilmington St. Suite 200 Raleigh NC 27601
Brendy Vega 1/6/2022 9:03 137 S Wilmington St. Suite 200 Raleigh NC 27601

- Page 292 -



SUMMARY OF DISCUSSION FROM THE NEIGHBORHOOD MEETING 
or disclosed to third parties. 

Page 9 of 10 Neighborhood Meeting Instruction Packet & Affidavit  Last Updated: December 21, 2021  

Property Owner(s) name(s): _____________________________________________________ 

Applicant(s):  ______________________________________________________________ 

Contact information (email/phone):   _______________________________________________ 

Meeting Address:  ___________________________________________________________ 

Date of meeting:  __________________________ Time of meeting:  ____________________________ 
 
Please summarize the questions/comments and your responses from the Neighborhood Meeting or 
emails/phone calls received in the spaces below (attach additional sheets, if necessary). Please state if/how the 
project has been modified in response to any concerns. 

no change was deemed warranted. 
 

Question/Concern #1: 
_________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________ 
  

 Response: 
_______________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________ 

 
Question/Concern #2: 
_________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________ 
  

 Response: 
_______________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________ 

 
Question/Concern #3: 
_________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 Response: 
_______________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________ 

 
Question/Concern #4: 
_________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________ 
  

 Response: 
_______________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________ 
_______________________________________________________________________

- Page 293 -



MORRIS TRACT 
PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 

Apex, North Carolina 

June 22, 2022 

- Page 294 -



2 
 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

I. Vicinity Map ............................................................................................................................................... 3 

II. Project Information ................................................................................................................................... 4 

III. Purpose Statement .................................................................................................................................. 5 

IV. Permitted Uses ........................................................................................................................................ 6 

V. Proposed Conditions ................................................................................................................................. 6 

VI. Design Controls ........................................................................................................................................ 7 

VII. Architectural Controls ............................................................................................................................. 8 

VIII. Signage ................................................................................................................................................... 9 

IX. Parking and Loading ................................................................................................................................. 9 

X. Environmental Advisory Board Recommendations .................................................................................. 9 

XI. Natural Resource and Environmental Data ........................................................................................... 10 

XII. Stormwater Management .................................................................................................................... 10 

XIII. Parks, Recreation, and Cultural Advisory Commission ........................................................................ 11 

XIV. Public Facilities Requirements ............................................................................................................. 11 

XV. Phasing .................................................................................................................................................. 12 

XVI. Affordable Housing .............................................................................................................................. 12 

XVII. Elevations ............................................................................................................................................ 13 

XVIII. Consistency with Advance Apex ........................................................................................................ 13 

XIX. Consistency with the UDO ................................................................................................................... 13 

XX. Compliance with Comprehensive Transportation Plan and Bicycle and Pedestrian System Plan ....... 13 

XXI. Conformity with Town of Apex Adopted Plans and Policies ............................................................... 13 

 

  

- Page 295 -



3 

I. VICINITY MAP 

  

- Page 296 -



4 

II. PROJECT INFORMATION 

Project Morris Tract PUD 

PINs 0732295017, 0732382709, 0732289587, and 0732382530 

Preparer Information WithersRavenel  
115 MacKenan Drive 
Cary, NC 27511 
 
Brendie Vega, AICP, CNU-A 
Ed Tang, PE 
P: 919.469.3340 
F: 919.467.6008 
bvega@withersravenel.com 
etang@withersravenel.com 

Traffic Consultant Kimley-Horn 

Current Zoning Designation  Rural Residential (RR) 

Proposed Zoning Designation Planned Unit Development (PUD-CZ) 

Current 2045 Land Use Map Designation Medium Density Residential 

Area of Tracts 17.09 acres 

  

- Page 297 -



5 

III. PURPOSE STATEMENT 

A. Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) Sections 2.3.4.F.1. 
♦ The PD Plan encourages cluster and compact development to the greatest extent 

possible.  The PD plan will be interrelated and linked internally and externally by 
pedestrian ways, bikeways, and other transportation systems.   

♦ Sidewalks at least five (5) feet in width are provided on all streets throughout the 
subdivision, as well as sidewalk at least five (feet) in width that will be installed on the 
frontage of Morris Acres Road. 

♦ Cul-de-sac(s) will be avoided where environmental features do not constrain the site, 
and instead will provide connections to existing street(s) and stub(s) to future roads. 

♦ The development is compatible with the character of the site, where a change to 
existing land use patterns in the area has increased the surrounding densities and 
introduced nonresidential uses. 

♦ The site is within one-half mile of retail, dining, financial institutions, and personal 
services. Future residents will be able to easily access many necessities and 
entertainment while minimizing vehicle trips traveled and trip length. 

♦ The PD Plan proposes architectural standards that are exceptional and provide high-
quality design while incorporating energy saving features. 

B. Conditional Zoning Standards - UDO Sections 2.3.3.F.1-10 
♦ The PUD Plan is consistent with the 2045 Land Use Map, which has identified this area 

as Medium Density Residential which allows for single-family homes, duplexes, and 
townhouses. 

♦ The proposed plan is consistent with the changing character of the neighborhood. The 
Town’s adopted 2045 plans, are demonstrative of the changes that have occurred and 
are proposed for this area. 

♦ The Zoning district supplemental standards do not apply to the uses that have been 
listed in the List of Uses. 

♦ Adverse impacts will be minimal since there are currently residences in this location that 
are served by private services. Annexation into the Town will provide the new 
subdivision with trash, public water and sewer, and Town of Apex public safety services. 

♦ While not yet designed, the subdivision will incorporate recommendations made by the 
Environmental Advisory Board to minimize environmental impacts.   

♦ The proposed Conditional Zoning District uses will meet the UDO’s requirements for 
public improvement.  A fee-in-lieu will be provided to the Town of Apex for parks and 
recreation, while other public services will benefit from the tax base provided by the 
increased tax value of the current properties. 

♦ The proposed District will meet or exceed the Town’s requirements which are meant to 
protect the health, safety, and welfare of the Town and ETJ residents. 

♦ There will be no substantial detriment to the adjacent properties.  The addition of 
residential at a slightly higher density than what is existing will not be a substantial 
detriment to adjacent properties. 

- Page 298 -



6 

♦ The use will not constitute a nuisance or hazard as residential uses are inherently 
intended for the use, enjoyment, and safety of residents in their homes. 

♦ The proposed Conditional Zoning district use will meet or exceed the applicable 
provisions of the Ordinance except where noted in this document and as permitted by 
the Conditional Zoning process.  

IV. PERMITTED USES 

The Rezoned Lands may be used for, and only for, the uses listed immediately below. The permitted 
uses are subject to the limitations and regulations stated in the UDO and any additional limitations 
or regulations stated below. For convenience, some relevant sections of the UDO may be 
referenced; such references do not imply that other sections of the UDO do not apply. 

A. Residential 
♦ Single-family  
♦ Townhouse, attached 
♦ Recreation facility, private 
♦ Accessory apartment 
♦ Utility, Minor 
♦ Park, Active 
♦ Park, Passive 

V. PROPOSED CONDITIONS 

1. Alleys for units facing Morris Acres Road will accommodate water and sewer utilities within the 
Town’s existing alley cross section subject to staff review and approval at the time of subdivision 
and construction plans.  Public utility easements may be granted on private property to 
accommodate appurtenances and maintenance. 

2. Homeowner Association covenants shall not restrict the construction of accessory dwelling 
units. 

3. No homes will be platted within 50 feet of the eastern property line. 

- Page 299 -



7 

VI. DESIGN CONTROLS 

A. Intensity and Density 
Maximum Density 6.44 Dwelling Units/Acre 

Maximum Dwelling Units 110 (10 single-family dwelling units and 100 townhomes) 

Maximum Building Height 50 ft 

Setbacks, Single-family Detached Front: 
5 ft from façade 
20 ft from garage 
to back of sidewalk 

Side: 5 ft Rear: 10 ft 

Corner Side: 8 ft 

Setbacks, Townhouses, Front-loaded Front: 
10 ft from façade 
20 ft from garage 
to back of sidewalk 

Side: 5 ft 
Corner Side: 10 ft 

Rear: 10 ft 

Building to Building: 
10 ft 

Setbacks, Townhouses, Alley-loaded Front: 
10 ft from façade 

Side: 5 ft 
Corner Side: 10 ft 

Rear: 5 ft 

Building to Building:  
10 ft 

Minimum Lot Size, Single-family 
Detached  

6,000 square feet 

Minimum lot width, Townhouses 22 feet 

Maximum Built Upon Area Permitted 
(PUD-CZ) 

70% 

Proposed Built Upon Area 70% 

B. Perimeter Buffers  
North 20-foot Type B 

East 20-foot Type A 

Morris Acres Rd. 
(Units facing the street) 

30-foot Type E Undisturbed 
50-foot Type A/B Disturbed 

Morris Acres Rd. 
(Units oriented away from the street) 

30-foot Type B Undisturbed 
50-foot Type A/B Disturbed 
 

- Page 300 -



8 

VII. ARCHITECTURAL CONTROLS 

A. Single-family Detached 
1. Vinyl siding is not permitted; however, vinyl windows, decorative elements, and trim are 

permitted. 
2. The roof shall be pitched at 5:12 or greater for 75% of the building designs. 
3. A varied color palette shall be utilized on homes throughout the subdivision to include a 

minimum of three color families for siding and shall include varied trim, shutter, and accent 
colors complementing the siding color. 

4. House entrances for units with front-facing single-car garages shall have a prominent covered 
porch/stoop area leading to the front door. 

5. The rear and side elevations of the units that can be seen from the right-of-way shall have trim 
around the windows. 

6. Garage doors must have windows, decorative details, or carriage-style adornments on them. 
7. The visible side of a single-family detached dwelling unit on a corner lot facing the public street 

shall contain at least two decorative elements such as, but not limited to, the following:

♦ Windows 
♦ Bay window 
♦ Recessed window 
♦ Decorative window 
♦ Trim around the windows 
♦ Wrap-around porch or side porch 
♦ Two or more building materials 
♦ Decorative brick/stone 
♦ Decorative trim 

♦ Decorative shake 
♦ Decorative air vents on gables 
♦ Decorative gable 
♦ Decorative cornice 
♦ Column 
♦ Portico 
♦ Balcony 
♦ Dormer

 
B. Townhouses 

1. Vinyl siding is not permitted; however, vinyl windows, decorative elements, and trim are 
permitted. 

2. The roofline cannot be a single mass. It must be broken up horizontally and vertically between 
every unit. 

3. Garage doors must have windows, decorative details, or carriage-style adornments on them. 
4. The rear and side elevations of the units that can be seen from the right-of-way shall have trim 

around the windows. 
5. House entrances for units with front-facing single-car garages shall have a prominent covered 

porch/stoop area leading to the front door.   
6. A varied color palette shall be utilized on homes throughout the subdivision to include a 

minimum of three color families for siding and shall include varied trim, shutter, and accent 
colors complementing the siding color. 

7. The visible side of a townhouse on a corner lot facing the public street shall contain at least two 
decorative elements such as, but not limited to, the following: 

 

- Page 301 -



9 
 

 

♦ Windows 
♦ Bay window 
♦ Recessed window 
♦ Decorative window 
♦ Trim around the windows 
♦ Wrap-around porch or side porch 
♦ Two or more building materials 
♦ Decorative brick/stone 
♦ Decorative trim 

♦ Decorative shake 
♦ Decorative air vents on gables 
♦ Decorative gable 
♦ Decorative cornice 
♦ Column 
♦ Portico 
♦ Balcony 
♦ Dormer 

VIII. SIGNAGE 

All signage in the Morris Tract PUD will comply with the requirements in Section 8.7 of the Town of 
Apex UDO. 

IX. PARKING AND LOADING 

The parking requirements of the Town of Apex UDO Section 8.3 will be met. 

X. ENVIRONMENTAL ADVISORY BOARD (EAB) 
RECOMMENDATIONS 

The Morris Tract PUD was heard at the EAB on December 16, 2021. The applicant has agreed to the 
following. 

1. Post development peak runoff shall not exceed pre-development peak runoff for the 24-
hour, 1-year, 10-year, and 100-year storm events in accordance with the Unified 
Development Ordinance. Treatment for the first 1-inch of runoff will be provided such that 
the removal of 85% Total Suspended Solids is achieved. 

2. The project shall install at least one (1) pet waste disposal reminder sign per Stormwater 
Control Measure (SCM).  The sign(s) shall be installed in locations that are publicly 
accessible, such as adjacent to, but outside of public property and/or public easement(s), 
amenity centers, sidewalks, greenways, or side paths. 

3. The project shall install at least one (1) sign per SCM about not using fertilizer near an SCM 
drainage area. The sign(s) shall be installed in locations that are publicly accessible, such as 
adjacent to, but outside of public property and/or public easement(s), amenity centers, 
sidewalks, greenways, or side paths. 

4. The project shall ensure that at least 75% of the landscaping shall be native species. 
Landscaping shall be coordinated with and approved by the Planning Department at site or 
subdivision review.  

- Page 302 -



10 

5. The project shall select and install tree, shrub, and perennial species with special attention 
to providing diverse and abundant pollinator and bird foot sources, including plants that 
bloom in succession from spring to fall. 

6. The project shall plant warm season grasses in order to minimize the need for irrigation and 
chemical use. 

7. A minimum of three (3) native hardwood tree species shall be used for the landscaping on 
site. 

8. The project shall install at least one (1) pet waste station at each play lawn. 
9. All homes shall be pre-configured with conduit for a solar energy system. 

XI. NATURAL RESOURCE AND ENVIRONMENTAL DATA 

A. Watershed 
The properties in the PD Plan are located in the Primary Watershed Overlay District and the Beaver 
Creek Basin. 

B. FEMA Floodplain 
No regulatory FEMA mapped floodplain exists on site. 

C. Resource Conservation Area 
The site is subject to the Resource Conservation Area (RCA) requirements outlined in the Town of 
Apex UDO in Section 8.1.  This project shall dedicate a minimum 20% of RCA for the overall site area 
upon site plan submittal. 

According to the North Carolina Historic Preservation Office’s records, the subject site does not 
contain historic structures.  

XII. STORMWATER MANAGEMENT 

1. This project is located within the Beaver Creek basin and will be required to attenuate the 1-, 
10-, 25-, and 100-year storms. 

2. To the extent practicable the stormwater discharge from the onsite SCM(s) will be routed to 
discharge stormwater from the SCM(s) via a pipe underneath Morris Acres Road (i.e. to the 
downstream side) subject to Town of Apex and NCDOT approvals. 

3. The former pond on the east side of the property was previously breached and the outflow was 
diverted away from properties with PINs 0732387613, 0732387723, and 0732387823 via an 
open channel.  The proposed project will either pipe or maintain an open channel that continues 
to direct the natural flow to a point downstream of these properties, subject to Town of Apex,  
NCDWR, and USACE approvals. 

- Page 303 -



11 

XIII.  PARKS, RECREATION, & CULTURAL RESOURCES 
(PRCR) ADVISORY COMMISSION 

The PRCR Advisory Commission unanimously recommended a fee-in-lieu of dedication for the 
Morris Tract PUD at their March 30, 2022 meeting.  The rate of the fee is set at the time of Town 
Council approval of the rezoning and is based on a maximum of 110 single family attached and 
detached units and runs with the life of the project.  If approved in 2022, the rate would be 
$3,753.89 for Single Family Detached and $2,528.25 for Single Family Attached units. 

XIV. PUBLIC FACILITIES REQUIREMENTS 

A. Sanitary Sewer Service 
Sewer is available at an outfall at the tributary of the Reedy Branch outfall that runs through a Town 
of Apex owned parcel. 

A capacity study shall be provided at Construction Drawing submittal. 

B. Water Service 
Extension of water shall be provided to the proposed development with access to 12” water line in 
Morris Acres Road.  

C. Gas and Electric Service  
Electric services will be extended to the site. 

D. Roadways  
The site shall require an internal public roadway network and privately maintained parking spaces. 
The transportation system shall be consistent with the Town of Apex Comprehensive Transportation 
Plan and Bicycle and Pedestrian System Plan and the Town of Apex Standard Specifications and 
Standard Details. 

The Transportation plan designates Morris Acres Road as an 80-foot minimum right-of-way with a 
minimum 10-foot Side Path.  

E. Transit 
The nearest transit stop for the local GoApex Route 1 is anticipated to be located at the Beaver 
Creek Commons shopping center. Regional Transit can be accessed along NC 55 Hwy.  The subject 
site is located within the Transit Oriented Development Context Area. 

F. Pedestrian Facilities  
A 10-foot Side Path shall be provided along the frontage of Morris Acres Road, in accordance with 
the Transportation Plan & UDO. 

- Page 304 -



12 

Sidewalks at least five (5) feet in width shall be provided on both sides of all internal streets, 
including cul-de-sac(s). 

For alley-loaded townhouses that front Morris Acres Road, a minimum five-foot (5’) sidewalk 
connection between the townhouse units and the 10-foot Side Path along Morris Acres Road shall 
be provided. These connections will perpendicularly cross the 30-foot Thoroughfare Buffer along 
Morris Acres Road. 

XV. PHASING 

The site is anticipated to be developed in two (2) phases. 

XVI. AFFORDABLE HOUSING 

Of the one hundred (100) permitted townhouse dwellings, at least two (2) residential restricted 
median-income affordable housing townhouse ownership units (Affordable Housing Units) shall be 
constructed on-site and sold at a mutually agreeable maximum affordable housing median-income 
ownership initial sales price (includes unit price and lot price) that is calculated based upon the one-
hundred percent (100%) of the Raleigh, NC Metropolitan Statistical Area (MSA) Area Median Income 
(AMI) as most recently published by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 
(HUD).  

♦ The Affordable Housing Units shall be occupied by low or median-income households 
earning no more than one hundred percent (100%) of the Raleigh, NC MSA AMI, adjusted 
for family size as most recently published by HUD. 

♦ A restrictive covenant (i.e., resale deed restriction) with a minimum affordability period of 
ten (10) years shall be recorded against each Affordable Housing Unit concurrently at the 
close of escrow upon the sale of each Affordable Housing Units to memorialize the 
affordable housing terms and conditions. 

♦ The two (2) Affordable Housing Unit lots shall be identified on the Master Subdivision Final 
Plat, which may be amended from time to time.  

♦ A restrictive covenant (i.e. affordable housing agreement) between the Town and Applicant 
shall be recorded against the two (2) Affordable Housing Unit lots prior to the issuance of a 
building permit for such lots to memorialize the affordable housing terms and conditions of 
the approved zoning condition. 

♦ Final Affordable Housing Unit floor plan selection which includes the unit size and bedroom 
size will be at the discretion of the developer.  

♦ The Developer will be responsible for performing marketing, applicant screening and 
selection process, and management of the Affordable Housing Units during the affordability 
period with oversight and support provided by Town staff. 

- Page 305 -



13 

XVII. ELEVATIONS 

Elevations will comply with the Architectural and Design Controls for the Morris Tract PUD. 
Elevations submitted with this PD Plan are representative of what may be provided. 

XVIII. CONSISTENCY WITH ADVANCE APEX 

The Plan is consistent with the Advance Apex Plan and Land Use Map.  

The Apex 2045 Land Use Map identifies the subject parcels as Medium Density Residential. Medium 
Density Residential lands are characterized by single-family homes, duplexes, quadplexes, and 
townhomes with densities no less than three (3) and no more than seven (7) dwelling units per acre. 
Medium Density Residential provides a transition from the more urbanized areas of Apex to low-
density neighborhoods. 

The proposed density of 6.44 dwelling units per acre and proposed uses meet the Medium Density 
Residential standards. In addition, once established, the proposed development will soften the 
transition between large rural lands and residential neighborhoods and commercial areas. 

XIX. CONSISTENCY WITH THE UDO 

The proposed development is consistent with all applicable requirements of the Town of Apex UDO. 

XX. COMPLIANCE WITH COMPREHENSIVE 
TRANSPORTATION PLAN AND BICYCLE AND 
PEDESTRIAN SYSTEM PLAN 

The proposed development complies with the applicable requirements of the Town of Apex 
Comprehensive Transportation Plan and Bicycle and Pedestrian System Plan. 

XXI. CONFORMITY WITH TOWN OF APEX ADOPTED 
PLANS AND POLICIES 

In addition to being consistent with the Town’s Advance Apex Comprehensive Plan, Unified 
Development Ordinance, and the Comprehensive Transportation Plan and Bicycle and Pedestrian 
System Plan, the proposed development is designed to conform with the following plans and their 
subsequent maps: 

• Parks, Recreation, Greenways, and Open Space Master Plan 
o The development is designed with 10’ path adjoining Morris Acres Road as detailed 

in the Master Plan map. 
• Collection System Facility Plan (Master Sewer Plan) 

- Page 306 -



14 

o The development is proximate to adequate water and sewer infrastructure within 
the Beaver Creek outfall (see Section XIV). 

• NC 540/Western Wake Freeway Plan 
o The development is identified as “Medium Density Residential” which is consistent 

with the proposed use of the site. 

- Page 307 -



RE
ED

YB
RO

OK
 C

RS
G

NC
-5

40

MORRIS ACRES

WALDEN

DR

RD

W
OODS

VICINITY MAP

INDEX OF SHEETS

PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT

MORRIS TRACT

DEVELOPER

ATTN: RANDY KING, PE

TOWN OF APEX, WAKE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
1ST SUBMITTAL: FEBRUARY 1, 2022

PL
A

N
N

ED
 U

N
IT

 D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T
FO

R:
 M

O
RR

IS
 T

RA
CT

W
R 

PR
O

JE
CT

 N
O

.: 
02

21
07

42
.1

0

PULTE GROUP
1225 CRESCENT GREEN DRIVE

CARY, NC 27518
EMFHMDDQR [ PK@MMDQR [ STQUDXNQR

PREPARED BY:

WithersRavenel
115 MacKenan Drive | Cary, NC 27511 | t: 919.469.3340 | license #: F-1479 | www.withersravenel.com

SITE DATA

2045 LAND USE PLAN DESIGNATION

AREA OF TRACTS IN PROPOSED PUD

TOWNHOUSE (FRONT-LOADED) SETBACKS

WATERSHED

HISTORIC STRUCTURES

COMMUNITY AMENITIES

CURRENT

PROPOSED

MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL

NO CHANGE

CURRENT

PROPOSED

RURAL RESIDENTIAL (RR)

PUD-CZ

FRONT

0732-29-5017

0732-38-2709

0.14 AC.

14.12 AC .

PROPERTY LOCATED WITHIN THE PRIMARY WATERSHED PROTECTION OVERLAY DISTRICT.

NONE

PERMANENT FEATURES MAY INCLUDE, BUT NOT LIMITED TO:  FIRE PIT WITH SEATING,
BENCHES ALONG PEDESTRIAN PATHWAYS, LAWN GAME SPACES, PEDESTRIAN PLAZAS WITH
PLANTERS.  COMMUNITY AMENITIES SHALL MEET THE REQUIREMENTS OF UDO SECTION 8.4

TOTAL = 

ZONING

PLANNER: BRENDIE VEGA, AICP
BVEGA@WITHERSRAVENEL.COM

CIVIL ENGINEER: ED TANG, PE
ETANG@WITHERSRAVENEL.COM

RESIDENTIAL DENSITY MAXIMUM 6.44 DU/ACRE

REQUESTED SEWER CAPACITY

SITE BUFFERS NORTH

EAST

SOUTH (MORRIS ACRES RD)

20' TYPE B BUFFER

20' TYPE A BUFFER

UNITS FACING THE STREET: 30' TYPE E BUFFER
UNITS ORIENTED AWAY FROM THE STREET: 30' TYPE B BUFFER

5 FT*, 20 FT** REAR 10 FT SIDE 8 FT

NOTE: THE PRCR ADVISORY COMMISSION UNANIMOUSLY RECOMMENDED A FEE-IN-LIEU OF DEDICATION FOR THE MORRIS TRACT PUD AT THEIR
MARCH 30, 2022 MEETING. THE RATE OF THE FEE IS SET AT THE TIME OF TOWN COUNCIL APPROVAL OF THE REZONING, IS BASED ON A MAXIMUM
OF 110 SINGLE FAMILY ATTACHED AND DETACHED UNITS AND RUNS WITH THE LIFE OF THE PROJECT. IF APPROVED IN 2022, THE RATE WOULD BE
$3,753.89 FOR SINGLE FAMILY DETACHED AND $2,528.25 FOR SINGLE FAMILY ATTACHED UNITS.

120 GPD * 3 BEDROOMS * 110 UNITS = 39,600 GPD

0 COVER

1 EXISTING CONDITIONS

2 CONCEPTUAL PUD & PHASING PLAN

3 CONCEPTUAL UTILITY PLAN

4 CONCEPTUAL STORMWATER PLAN

A1  ARCHITECTURAL ELEVATIONS

A2 ARCHITECTURAL ELEVATIONS

0732-28-9587 1.52 AC.

0732-38-2530 1.31 AC.

BUILDING HEIGHT MAXIMUM 42 FT

**19' FROM GARAGE TO LOT LINE AND 20' FROM GARAGE TO BACK OF SIDEWALK

SINGLE FAMILY BUILDING SETBACKS 5 FT CORNER

17.09  AC.

REQUIRED RCA 20%  PER UDO SECTION 8.1.2.C.4

SITE MAP
1"=150'

SITE

/2ND SUBMITTAL: MARCH 11, 2022

TOWNHOUSE (ALLEY-LOADED) SETBACKS

FRONT REAR SIDE

FRONT REAR SIDE

10 FT*, 20 FT** 10 FT 5 FT

10 FT* 5 FT 5 FT

*FROM FAÇADE

10 FT BUILDING TO BUILDING

10 FT BUILDING TO BUILDING

3RD SUBMITTAL: APRIL 8, 2022
4TH SUBMITTAL: MAY 13, 2022

LAND OWNERS:
NCDOT EDITH MORRIS
1505 MAIL SERVICE CENTER 7208 MORRIS ACRES RD
RALEIGH, NC 27699 APEX, NC 27523
ATTN: BRIAN ROGERS

PARKING REQUIREMENTS SINGLE FAMILY DETACHED:  2 SPACES PER UNIT
TOWNHOMES:  2 SPACES PER UNIT PLUS 0.25 FOR GUEST PARKING

PARKING PROVIDED SINGLE FAMILY DETACHED:  2 SPACES PER UNIT X 10 UNITS = 20 SPACES
TOWNHOMES:  2 SPACES PER UNIT PLUS 0.25 FOR GUEST PARKING X 100 UNITS = 225 SPACES

MAX. BUILT UPON AREA 70% IMPERVIOUS

110 UNITS (10 SINGLE FAMILY DWELLING AND 100 TOWNHOMES)

5TH SUBMITTAL: MAY 27, 2022

PROPOSED UNITS MAXIMUM

REZONING CASE #22CZ05

TOWNHOUSE  SETBACKS CORNER SIDE (BOTH FRONT AND ALLEY LOAD) 10 FT

MIN . LOT SIZE (SINGLE FAMILY) 6,000 SF 

MIN . LOT WIDTH (TOWNHOMES) 22 FT

PLANNING BOARD SUBMITTAL:  JUNE 30, 2022

- Page 308 -



- Page 309 -



TOWNHOMES

SINGLE FAMILY DETACHED

SCM

STREAM BUFFER/ PONDS

PERIMETER BUFFER 

WETLAND

OPEN SPACE

LEGEND

ACCESS POINTS

ROAD CROSSING

10’ SIDEPATH

MORRIS TRACT PUD
Cary, NC 

Project Number: 210742
2022.04.26

137 S Wilmington Street | Suite 200 | Raleigh, NC 27601
t. 919.469.3340 | license #: F-1479| withersravenel.com

1 inch = 50 feet

100’50’0’

TOWNHOMES

ROAD CROSSING

20’ TYPE ‘B’ BUFFER

20
’ T

Y
P

E 
‘A

’ B
U

FF
ER

30’ TYPE ‘B’ STREETFRONT BUFFER

30’ TYPE ‘E’ STREETFRONT BUFFER

SINGLE FAMILY 
DETACHED

SCM

SCM

R
E

E
D

Y
 B

R
O

O
K

 C
R

O
SS

IN
G

MORRIS ACRES ROAD

- Page 310 -



- Page 311 -



- Page 312 -



- Page 313 -



- Page 314 -



- Page 315 -



- Page 316 -



- Page 317 -



- Page 318 -



- Page 319 -



- Page 320 -



- Page 321 -



- Page 322 -



- Page 323 -



- Page 324 -



- Page 325 -



- Page 326 -



KIMLEY-HORN AND ASSOCIATES, INC
NC License #F-0102

kimley-horn.com 421 Fayetteville Street, Suite #600, Raleigh, NC 27601 919-677-2000

MEMORANDUM

To: Russell Dalton, P.E.
Serge Grebenschikov, P.E.
Town of Apex

From: Lyle Overcash, P.E.
Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc.

Date:      April 12, 2022

Subject: Morris Acres Development  Apex, NC

Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. has performed a Trip Generation Memorandum for the Morris 
Acres Development, a proposed residential project located on the east side of Morris Acres Road 

between Jenks Road and Walden Creek Drive in Apex, North Carolina. The property is currently 
occupied by a few single-family homes and as currently envisioned will consist of a maximum
110 townhomes and 10 single-family homes. Refer to the attached concept plan. The build-out of 
the project is anticipated in the year 2025.

Access to the Morris Acres Development is proposed via two driveways on Morris Acres Road. 
The North Site Driveway will have one egress lane and one ingress lane and is proposed to be 
located approximately 1,025 feet south of the intersection of Jenks Road at Morris Acres Road. 

The Site Driveway will also have one egress lane and one ingress lane and is proposed to be
located approximately 750 feet south of the North Site Driveway and connect to Reedybrook 
Crossing. Refer to the attached figure for more details on the site driveways.

As shown in Table 1, the proposed development has the potential to generate 902 new trips
during a typical weekday with 66 new trips during the AM peak hour and 79 new trips during the 
PM peak hour.

Table 1
ITE Traffic Generation (Vehicles)

Land 
Use 

Code
Land Use Intensity

Daily
AM Peak 

Hour
PM Peak 

Hour
In Out In Out In Out

210 Single-Family Detached Housing 10 d.u. 61 61 2 7 7 4

220 Multifamily Housing (Low-Rise) 110 d.u. 390 390 14 43 43 25

Total Net New External Trips 120 d.u. 451 451 16 50 50 29

- Page 327 -



Page 2 
 

  
kimley-horn.com 421 Fayetteville Street, Suite #600, Raleigh, NC 27601 919-677-2000 

 

The Town of Apex s trip generation threshold of 1,000 vehicles per day and 100 vehicles per 
hour for a Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA). Therefore, this proposed development is below the 

Town of Apex s TIA threshold and no formal TIA is required by either the Town or NCDOT. 
 
Morris Acres Road consists of a three-lane cross section with a center two-way left-turn lane. 
Therefore, no roadway improvements are recommended to be performed to accommodate 

projected site traffic volumes.  
 

The build-out roadway laneage is shown on the attached figure. 
 
Should you have any questions or comments, please do not hesitate to contact me at (919) 678-

4131 or lyle.overcash@kimley-horn.com.  

Attachments:  Conceptual Site Plan, Build-Out Roadway Laneage 

 
 

 
 
 

- Page 328 -



20’ TYPE ‘B’ BUFFER

SINGLE FAMILY
DETACHED

SCM

TOWNHOMES

ROAD CROSSING

LEGEND

SCM
TOWNHOMES

SINGLE FAMILY DETACHED

SCM

STREAM BUFFER/ PONDS

PERIMETER BUFFER

WETLAND

OPEN SPACE

ACCESS POINTS

ROAD CROSSING

10’ SIDEWALK

0’ 50’

1 inch = 50 feet

100’

MORRIS TRACT PUD
137 S Wilmington Street | Suite 200 | Raleigh, NC 27601
t. 919.469.3340 | license #: F-1479| withersravenel.com

Cary, NC
Project Number: 210742

2022.02.25

2
0

’T
Y

P
E

‘ A
’ B

U
F

F
E

R

30’ TYPE ‘B’ STREETFRONT BUFFER

MORRIS ACRES ROAD

30’ TYPE ‘E’ STREETFRONT BUFFER

R
EE

D
B

Y
R

O
O

C
K

R
S

S
I

O
N

G

1

- Page 329 -



- Page 330 -



 Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. 2022

Prepared for:

Pulte Homes

Morris Acres Development
Apex, NC

 Traffic Impact Analysis

- Page 331 -



 

 
 
 

Traffic Impact Analysis 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Morris Acres Development 
Apex, NC 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

Prepared for: 

Pulte Homes 

 Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. 2022

- Page 332 -



 

 

Traffic Impact Analysis 

for 

Morris Acres Development 

Apex, North Carolina 

 

 

 

 

Prepared for: 

Pulte Homes

Cary, NC 

 

 

 

 

Prepared by: 

Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. 

NC License #F-0102 

421 Fayetteville Street, Suite 600 

Raleigh, NC 27601 

(919) 677-2000

 

 

 

 

March 2022

019867003 
 
 
 
 

 
 

- Page 333 -



 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 
This document, together with the concepts and designs presented herein, as an instrument of service, is intended only for 

the specific purpose and client for which it was prepared.  Reuse of and improper reliance on this document without written 

authorization and adaptation by Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. shall be without liability to Kimley-Horn and 

Associates, Inc. 

- Page 334 -



Morris Acres Development  Apex, NC 
 

ES-1 

  

Executive Summary 
 

Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. has performed a Traffic Impact Analysis for the Morris Acres 
Development, a proposed residential project located on the east side of Morris Acres Road 

between Jenks Road and Walden Creek Drive in Apex, North Carolina. The property is currently 
occupied by a few single-family homes and as currently envisioned will consist of a maximum 
110 townhomes and 10 single-family homes. The development is proposed to be accessed via two 
driveways on Morris Acres Road, and build-out of the project is anticipated in the year 2025. 
 

This report presents trip generation, distribution, traffic analyses, and recommendations for 

transportation improvements required to meet anticipated traffic demands in conjunction with the 
development. The traffic conditions studied include the existing (2022) traffic condition as well 
as the projected (2025) background and build-out traffic conditions.  
 

As shown in Table ES-1, the proposed development has the potential to generate 902 new trips 
during a typical weekday with 66 new trips during the AM peak hour and 79 new trips during the 

PM peak hour.  
 
 

Table ES-1
ITE Traffic Generation (Vehicles) 

Land 
Use 

Code 
Land Use Intensity

Daily 
AM Peak 

Hour
PM Peak 

Hour 
In Out In Out In Out 

210 
Single-Family 

Detached Housing 
10 d.u. 61 61 2 7 7 4 

220 
Multifamily Housing 

(Low-Rise) 
110 d.u. 390 390 14 43 43 25 

Total Net New External Trips 120 d.u. 451 451 16 50 50 29 

 
Capacity analyses were performed using Synchro Version 11 software. Table ES-2 summarizes 
the operation of the study intersections for the AM and PM peak hour traffic conditions.  
 

Table ES-2
Level-of-Service Summary 

Condition 
AM Peak Hour 

LOS (Delay) 
PM Peak Hour 
LOS (Delay) 

Jenks Road at Morris Acres Road (Unsignalized) 

Existing (2022) Traffic 
NB  B (11.8) 
WBL  A (7.9) 

NB  B (14.2) 
WBL  A (8.1) 

Background (2025) Traffic  
NB  B (12.3) 
WBL  A (8.0) 

NB  C (15.5) 
WBL  A (8.2) 

Build-out (2025) Traffic  
NB  B (12.4) 
WBL  A (8.0) 

NB  C (16.2) 
WBL  A (8.3) 

 
 
 
 

- Page 335 -



Morris Acres Development  Apex, NC 
 

ES-2 

  

 
 
 

Table ES-2 (cont.) 
Level-of-Service Summary 

Condition 
AM Peak Hour 

LOS (Delay) 
PM Peak Hour 
LOS (Delay) 

Morris Acres Road at Reedybrook Crossing/Site Driveway (Unsignalized) 

Existing (2022) Traffic 
EB  A (9.4) 

NBL  A (7.4) 
EB  B (10.0) 
NBL  A (7.6) 

Background (2025) Traffic  
EB  A (9.5) 

NBL  A (7.4) 
EB  B (10.1) 
NBL  A (7.6) 

Build-out (2025) Traffic  

EB  B (10.3) 
WB  B (10.3) 
NBL  A (7.4) 
SBL  A (7.6) 

EB  B (11.6) 
WB  B (11.8) 
NBL  A (7.6) 
SBL  A (7.9) 

Morris Acres Road at Walden Creek Drive (Unsignalized) 

Existing (2022) Traffic  
WB  A (10.2) 
SBL  A (7.7) 

WB  B (11.3) 
SBL  A (7.9) 

Background (2025) Traffic  
WB  B (10.4) 
SBL  A (7.8) 

WB  B (11.6) 
SBL  A (8.0) 

Build-out (2025) Traffic  
WB  B (10.6) 
SBL  A (7.8) 

WB  B (11.9) 
SBL  A (8.1) 

Morris Acres Road at North Site Driveway (Unsignalized) 

Build-out (2025) Traffic 
WB  A (9.7) 
SBL  A (7.7) 

WB  B (10.4) 
SBL  A (7.8) 

 
Analyses indicate that all of the study intersections are expected to operate at an acceptable LOS 
at project build-out with only minor increases in delays and queues associated with the addition 

of site traffic.  
 
No roadway improvements are recommended to be performed to accommodate projected site 
traffic volumes.  
 

The build-out roadway laneage is shown on Figure ES-1. 
 
 

- Page 336 -



- Page 337 -



Morris Acres Development  Apex, NC 
 

i 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
Page No. 

1.0 INTRODUCTION ........................................................................................................ 1 

2.0 INVENTORY ............................................................................................................... 2 

2.1 STUDY AREA ....................................................................................................... 2 
2.2 EXISTING CONDITIONS ........................................................................................ 2 

3.0 TRAFFIC GENERATION........................................................................................... 6 

4.0 SITE TRAFFIC DISTRIBUTION............................................................................... 7 

5.0 PROJECTED TRAFFIC VOLUMES ......................................................................... 9 

5.1 EXISTING TRAFFIC .............................................................................................. 9 
5.2 HISTORIC GROWTH TRAFFIC................................................................................ 9 
5.3 APPROVED DEVELOPMENT TRAFFIC .................................................................... 9 
5.4 SITE TRAFFIC .................................................................................................... 10 
5.5 BUILD-OUT TRAFFIC ......................................................................................... 10 

6.0  CAPACITY ANALYSIS ............................................................................................ 15 

6.1 JENKS ROAD AT MORRIS ACRES ROAD ................................................................ 17 
6.2 MORRIS ACRES ROAD AT REEDYBROOK CROSSING/SOUTH SITE DRIVEWAY ........... 18 
6.3 MORRIS ACRES ROAD AT CREEKSIDE LANDING DRIVE ......................................... 19 
6.4 MORRIS ACRES ROAD AT NORTH SITE DRIVEWAY ................................................ 20 

7.0  RECOMMENDATIONS ............................................................................................ 21 

 
Appendices 

 

A. TRIP GENERATION 
B. TRAFFIC COUNT DATA  
C. INTERSECTION SPREADSHEETS 
D. SYNCHRO & SIMTRAFFIC OUTPUT: EXISTING (2022) 
E. SYNCHRO & SIMTRAFFIC OUTPUT: BACKGROUND (2025) 
F. SYNCHRO & SIMTRAFFIC OUTPUT: BUILD-OUT (2025) 
 

 

- Page 338 -



Morris Acres Development  Apex, NC 
 

ii 

LIST OF TABLES 
 

Table No. Title                 Page No. 
Table 3.0 ITE Traffic Generation (Vehicles).......................................................................... 6 

Table 6.0-A Level-of-Service Control Delay Thresholds ......................................................... 15 

Table 6.0-B Level-of-Service Summary................................................................................... 16 

Table 6.1 Level-of-Service: Jenks Road at Morris Acres Road ............................................ 17 

Table 6.2 Level-of-Service: Morris Acres Road at Reedybrook Crossing/ 

 Site Driveway........................................................................................................ 18 

Table 6.3 Level-of-Service: Morris Acres Road at Creekside Landing Drive ...................... 19 

Table 6.4 Level-of-Service: Morris Acres Road at North Site Driveway ............................. 20 

 
 

LIST OF FIGURES 
 

Figure No. Title                   Page No. 
Figure 1  Site Location................................................................................................. 3 

Figure 2  Conceptual Site Plan ..................................................................................... 4 

Figure 3  Existing Roadway Laneage ........................................................................... 5 

Figure 4  Site Traffic Distribution and Percent Assignment .......................................... 8 

Figure 5  Existing and Projected (2025) Background AM Peak Hour Traffic Volumes 11 

Figure 6  Existing and Projected (2025) Background PM Peak Hour Traffic Volumes 12 

Figure 7  Projected (2025) Build-out AM Peak Hour Traffic Volumes ....................... 13 

Figure 8  Projected (2025) Build-out PM Peak Hour Traffic Volumes ........................ 14 

Figure 9  Build Roadway Laneage ............................................................................. 22 

- Page 339 -



Morris Acres Development  Apex, NC 
 

1 

  

1.0 Introduction 
 

Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. has performed a Traffic Impact Analysis for the Morris Acres 
Development, a proposed residential project located on the east side of Morris Acres Road 
between Jenks Road and Walden Creek Drive in Apex, North Carolina. The property is currently 
occupied by a few single-family homes and as currently envisioned will consist of a maximum 

110 townhomes and 10 single-family homes. The development is proposed to be accessed via two 
driveways on Morris Acres Road, and build-out of the project is anticipated in the year 2025. 
 

This report presents trip generation, distribution, traffic analyses, and recommendations for 
transportation improvements required to meet anticipated traffic demands in conjunction with the 
development. The traffic conditions studied include the existing (2022) traffic condition as well 

as the projected (2025) background and build-out traffic conditions.  
 
Town of Apex transportation staff were consulted regarding the elements to be covered in this 
analysis. 

 
  

- Page 340 -



Morris Acres Development  Apex, NC 
 

2 

  

2.0 Inventory 
 

2.1 Study Area 
 

The study area for this development in includes the following intersections: 
 

 Jenks Road at Morris Acres Road

 Morris Acres Road at Reedybrook Crossing/Site Driveway 
 Morris Acres Road at Walden Creek Drive
 Morris Acres Road at North Site Driveway

 

Figure 1 shows the site location.  The conceptual site plan is shown on Figure 2. 
 
2.2 Existing Conditions 
 

The Morris Acres Development is proposed to be located generally east of Morris Acres Road 
between Jenks Road and Walden Creek Drive in Apex, North Carolina. Roadways in the study 
area include Jenks Road, Walden Creek Drive, and Morris Acres Road (formerly Green Level 

Church Road). The existing roadway laneage is shown in Figure 3.  
 
Jenks Road is a 2-lane undivided roadway with a posted speed limit of 45 miles per hour (mph) in 
the vicinity of Morris Acres Road. The estimated 2022 annual average daily traffic (AADT) 

volume from is approximately 3,100 vehicles per day (vpd) east of Morris Acres Road. Jenks 
Road is designated to be a 3-lane thoroughfare section per the Town of Apex Thoroughfare and 
Collector Street Plan. 
 

Walden Creek Drive is a 2-lane undivided roadway with a posted speed limit of 25 mph. The 
estimated 2022 ADT volume is approximately 1,100 vpd. Walden Creek Drive is designated to be 
a minor collector on the Town of Apex Thoroughfare and Collector Street Plan. 
 

Morris Acres Road (formerly Green Level Church Road) is a 3-lane undivided roadway with a 
center two-way left-turn lane (TWLTL) in the vicinity of the site with a posted speed limit of 45 
mph. The estimated 2022 AADT volume from NCDOT is approximately 3,700 vpd south of 
Jenks Road. Morris Acres Road has already been widened to the designated 3-lane thoroughfare 

per the Town of Apex Thoroughfare and Collector Street Plan. 
 

 

- Page 341 -



- Page 342 -



20’ TYPE ‘B’ BUFFER

SINGLE FAMILY
DETACHED

SCM

TOWNHOMES

ROAD CROSSING

LEGEND

SCM
TOWNHOMES

SINGLE FAMILY DETACHED

SCM

STREAM BUFFER/ PONDS

PERIMETER BUFFER

WETLAND

OPEN SPACE

ACCESS POINTS

ROAD CROSSING

10’ SIDEWALK

0’ 50’

1 inch = 50 feet

100’

MORRIS TRACT PUD
137 S Wilmington Street | Suite 200 | Raleigh, NC 27601
t. 919.469.3340 | license #: F-1479| withersravenel.com

Cary, NC
Project Number: 210742

2022.02.25

2
0

’T
Y

P
E

‘ A
’ B

U
F

F
E

R

30’ TYPE ‘B’ STREETFRONT BUFFER

MORRIS ACRES ROAD

30’ TYPE ‘E’ STREETFRONT BUFFER

R
EE

D
B

Y
R

O
O

C
K

R
S

S
I

O
N

G

- Page 343 -



- Page 344 -



Morris Acres Development  Apex, NC 
 

6 

  

3.0 Traffic Generation 
 

The traffic generation potential of the proposed development was determined using the traffic 
generation rates published in Trip Generation (Institute of Transportation Engineers, Eleventh 

Edition, 2021).  As currently envisioned the development will consist of a maximum 110 
townhomes and 10 single-family homes. Table 3.0 summarizes the estimated traffic generation 
for the proposed development.   
 

Table 3.0
ITE Traffic Generation (Vehicles) 

Land 
Use 

Code 
Land Use Intensity

Daily 
AM Peak 

Hour
PM Peak 

Hour 
In Out In Out In Out 

210 
Single-Family 

Detached Housing 
10 d.u. 61 61 2 7 7 4 

220 
Multifamily Housing 

(Low-Rise) 
110 d.u. 390 390 14 43 43 25 

Total Net New External Trips 120 d.u. 451 451 16 50 50 29 

 
Table 3.0 shows the proposed development has the potential to generate 902 new trips during a 

typical weekday with 66 new trips during the AM peak hour and 79 new trips during the PM peak 
hour.  
 
Detailed trip generation calculations are included in the Appendix of this report. 

- Page 345 -



Morris Acres Development  Apex, NC 
 

7 

  

4.0 Site Traffic Distribution 
 

The projected site-generated trips were assigned to the surrounding roadway network. The 
directional distribution and assignment for this development were based on a review of 
surrounding land uses and traffic patterns in the study area. As the nearby intersection of Morris 
Acres Road at US 64 Westbound is limited to right-in/right-out access, separate inbound and 

outbound distributions were developed for the site to account for anticipated travel paths. 
 
The inbound site traffic distribution used for the site was: 
 

 60% from the south on Morris Acres Road
 20% from the east on Jenks Road 
 20% from the west on Jenks Road 

 

The outbound site traffic distribution used for the site was: 
 

 40% to the east on Jenks Road 
 40% to the south on Morris Acres Road 

 20% to the west on Jenks Road 
 
The site traffic distribution and percent assignment for site are shown on Figure 4.  
 

- Page 346 -



- Page 347 -



Morris Acres Development  Apex, NC 
 

9 

  

5.0 Projected Traffic Volumes
 

5.1 Existing Traffic 
 
AM peak hour (7:00 to 9:00 AM) and PM peak hour (4:00 to 6:00 PM) turning movement counts 
were performed at the following intersections:

 

 Jenks Road at Morris Acres Road           February 10, 2022 

 Morris Acres Road at Reedybrook Crossing          February 10, 2022 

 Morris Acres Road at Walden Creek Drive    February 10, 2022 

       
The existing AM and PM peak hour traffic volumes are shown on Figures 5 and 6, and the traffic 
count data are included in the Appendix. 

5.2 Traffic Growth 
 
Background traffic growth is the increase in traffic due to usage increases and non-specific 

growth throughout the area.  An annual growth rate of 3% was applied to the existing volumes up 
to the year 2025. Background growth calculations are detailed on intersection spreadsheets in the 
Appendix of this report. 
 

 
Background traffic volumes consisting of existing and historic growth are shown on Figures 5 
and 6 for the AM and PM peak hours, respectively. 
 

- Page 348 -



Morris Acres Development  Apex, NC 
 

10

  

5.3 Site Traffic 
 
The projected site traffic was generated and assigned to the adjacent roadway network according 
to the distribution discussed previously in Section 4.0. The site traffic volumes for the AM and 
PM peak hours are shown in Figures 7 and 8, respectively. 

 
5.4 Build-Out Traffic 
 
To obtain the projected (2025) build-out traffic volumes, the projected site traffic were added to 

the projected (2025) background traffic. Traffic volume calculations are detailed in intersection 
spreadsheets in the Appendix of this report.  Figures 7 and 8 show the projected (2025) AM and 
PM peak hour build-out traffic volumes, respectively. 

- Page 349 -



- Page 350 -



- Page 351 -



- Page 352 -



- Page 353 -



Morris Acres Development  Apex, NC 
 

15

  

6.0  Capacity Analysis 
 

Capacity analyses (see Appendix) were performed for the AM and PM peak hours for the existing 

traffic condition and the projected (2025) background and build-out traffic conditions using 
Synchro Version 11 software to determine the operating characteristics of the adjacent road 
network and the impacts of the proposed project.  
 

Capacity is defined as the maximum number of vehicles that can pass over a particular road 
segment or through a particular intersection within a set time duration.  Capacity is combined 
with Level-of-Service (LOS) to describe the operating characteristics of a road segment or 

intersection.  LOS is a qualitative measure that describes operational conditions and motorist 
perceptions within a traffic stream.  The Highway Capacity Manual defines six levels of service, 
LOS A through LOS F, with A representing the shortest average delays and F representing the 
longest average delays.  LOS D is the typically accepted standard for signalized intersections in 

urbanized areas.  For signalized intersections, LOS is defined for the overall intersection 
operation.   
 

For unsignalized intersections, only the movements that must yield right-of-way experience 
control delay.  Therefore, LOS criteria for the overall intersection is not reported by Synchro 
Version 11 or computable using methodology published in the Highway Capacity Manual.  It is 
typical for stop sign controlled side streets and driveways intersecting major streets to experience 

long delays during peak hours, while the majority of the traffic moving through the intersection 
on the major street experiences little or no delay.  Table 6.0-A lists the LOS control delay 
thresholds published in the Highway Capacity Manual for signalized and unsignalized 
intersections. 
 
 

Table 6.0-A 
Level-of-Service Control Delay Thresholds 

Level-of-
Service 

Signalized Intersections  
Control Delay Per Vehicle 

[sec/veh] 

Unsignalized Intersections  Average 
Control Delay [sec/veh] & Qualitative 

Operational Description 
A   

Short Delays B > 10  20 > 10  15 

C > 20  35 > 15  25 

D > 35  55 > 25  35 
Moderate Delays 

E > 55  80 > 35  50 

F > 80 > 50 Long Delays 

 

Existing peak hour factors (PHF) were used at all existing intersections for all conditions except 
at new intersections, where a PHF of 0.90 was used. 

- Page 354 -



Morris Acres Development  Apex, NC 
 

16

  

Capacity analyses were performed for the existing (2022) traffic condition and the projected 

(2025) background and build-out traffic conditions for the following intersections: 

 Jenks Road at Morris Acres Road
 Morris Acres Road at Reedybrook Crossing/Site Driveway 
 Morris Acres Road at Creekside Landing Drive

 Morris Acres Road at North Site Driveway
 

Table 6.0-B summarizes the LOS and delay (seconds per vehicle) for all of the study intersections 
for the existing (2022) traffic condition and the projected (2025) background and build-out traffic 

conditions.  All capacity analyses are included in the Appendix and are briefly summarized in the 
following sub-sections. 

Table 6.0-B 
Level-of-Service Summary 

Condition 
AM Peak Hour 

LOS (Delay) 
PM Peak Hour 
LOS (Delay) 

Jenks Road at Morris Acres Road (Unsignalized) 

Existing (2022) Traffic 
NB  B (11.8) 
WBL  A (7.9) 

NB  B (14.2) 
WBL  A (8.1) 

Background (2025) Traffic  
NB  B (12.3) 
WBL  A (8.0) 

NB  C (15.5) 
WBL  A (8.2) 

Build-out (2025) Traffic  
NB  B (12.4) 
WBL  A (8.0) 

NB  C (16.2) 
WBL  A (8.3) 

Morris Acres Road at Reedybrook Crossing/Site Driveway (Unsignalized) 

Existing (2022) Traffic 
EB  A (9.4) 

NBL  A (7.4) 
EB  B (10.0) 
NBL  A (7.6) 

Background (2025) Traffic  
EB  A (9.5) 

NBL  A (7.4) 
EB  B (10.1) 
NBL  A (7.6) 

Build-out (2025) Traffic  

EB  B (10.3) 
WB  B (10.3) 
NBL  A (7.4) 
SBL  A (7.6) 

EB  B (11.6) 
WB  B (11.8) 
NBL  A (7.6) 
SBL  A (7.9) 

Morris Acres Road at Walden Creek Drive (Unsignalized) 

Existing (2022) Traffic  
WB  A (10.2) 
SBL  A (7.7) 

WB  B (11.3) 
SBL  A (7.9) 

Background (2022) Traffic  
WB  B (10.4) 
SBL  A (7.8) 

WB  B (11.6) 
SBL  A (8.0) 

Build-out (2025) Traffic  
WB  B (10.6) 
SBL  A (7.8) 

WB  B (11.9) 
SBL  A (8.1) 

Morris Acres Road at North Site Driveway (Unsignalized) 

Build-out (2025) Traffic 
WB  A (9.7) 
SBL  A (7.7) 

WB  B (10.4) 
SBL  A (7.8) 

 

 

- Page 355 -



Morris Acres Development  Apex, NC 
 

17

  

6.1 Jenks Road at Morris Acres Road 
 
Analyses indicate that the unsignalized intersection of Jenks Road at Morris Acres Road currently 
operates with short delays on the minor street approach (Morris Acres Road) in both the AM and 
PM peak hours. The intersection is expected to continue to operate with short delays and queues 

in the year 2025 with or without the proposed project in place, and no roadway improvements are 
recommended to accommodate projected site traffic.
 
Table 6.1 summarizes the operation of the intersection of Jenks Road at Morris Acres Road for 

the existing (2022) and projected (2025) background and build-out traffic conditions. 
 

Table 6.1 
Level-of-Service 

Jenks Road at Morris Acres Road (Unsignalized) 

Condition 
AM Peak Hour  

LOS (Delay) 
PM Peak Hour  
LOS (Delay) 

Existing (2022) Traffic 
NB  B (11.8) 
WBL  A (7.9) 

NB  B (14.2) 
WBL  A (8.1) 

Background (2025) Traffic  
NB  B (12.3) 
WBL  A (8.0) 

NB  C (15.5) 
WBL  A (8.2) 

Build-out (2025) Traffic  
NB  B (12.4) 
WBL  A (8.0) 

NB  C (16.2) 
WBL  A (8.3) 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

- Page 356 -



Morris Acres Development  Apex, NC 
 

18

  

6.2 Morris Acres Road at Reedybrook Crossing/Site Driveway  
 
Analyses indicate that the intersection of Morris Acres Road at Reedybrook Crossing currently 
operates with short delays on the minor street approach (Reedybrook Crossing) in both the AM 
and PM peak hours, and the intersection is expected to continue to operate with short delays in 

the background traffic condition.  
 
The Morris Acres Development proposes to construct a site driveway aligning with Reedybrook 
Crossing, providing one ingress lane and one egress lane. Analyses indicate that at project build-

out both minor street approaches (Reedybrook Crossing and the Site Driveway) are expected to 
operate with short delays and queues. No roadway improvements are recommended to be 
performed as part of this development 
 

Table 6.2 summarizes the operation of the intersection of Morris Acres Road at Reedybrook 
Crossing/Site Driveway for the existing (2022) and projected (2025) background and build-out 
traffic conditions. 
 

Table 6.2 
Level-of-Service 

Morris Acres Road at Reedybrook Crossing/Site Driveway (Unsignalized) 

Condition 
AM Peak Hour  

LOS (Delay) 
PM Peak Hour  
LOS (Delay) 

Existing (2022) Traffic 
EB  A (9.4) 

NBL  A (7.4) 
EB  B (10.0) 
NBL  A (7.6) 

Background (2025) Traffic  
EB  A (9.5) 

NBL  A (7.4) 
EB  B (10.1) 
NBL  A (7.6) 

Build-out (2025) Traffic  

EB  B (10.3) 
WB  B (10.3) 
NBL  A (7.4) 
SBL  A (7.6) 

EB  B (11.6) 
WB  B (11.8) 
NBL  A (7.6) 
SBL  A (7.9) 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

- Page 357 -



Morris Acres Development  Apex, NC 
 

19

  

6.3 Morris Acres Road at Walden Creek Drive  
 
Analyses indicate that the unsignalized intersection of Morris Acres Road at Walden Creek Drive 
currently operates with short delays on the minor street approach (Walden Creek Drive) in both 
the AM and PM peak hours, and the intersection is expected to continue to operate with short 

delays in the background traffic condition. No roadway improvements are recommended to be 
performed at this intersection to accommodate projected site traffic volumes.  
 
Table 6.3 summarizes the operation of the intersection of Morris Acres Road at Walden Creek 

Drive for the existing (2022) and projected (2025) background and build-out traffic conditions. 
 

Table 6.3
Level-of-Service 

Morris Acres Road at Walden Creek Drive (Unsignalized) 

Condition 
AM Peak Hour  
LOS (Delay) 

PM Peak Hour  
LOS (Delay) 

Existing (2022) Traffic  
WB  A (10.2) 
SBL  A (7.7) 

WB  B (11.3) 
SBL  A (7.9) 

Background (2025) Traffic  
WB  B (10.4) 
SBL  A (7.8) 

WB  B (11.6) 
SBL  A (8.0) 

Build-out (2025) Traffic  
WB  B (10.6) 
SBL  A (7.8) 

WB  B (11.9) 
SBL  A (8.1) 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

- Page 358 -



Morris Acres Development  Apex, NC 
 

20

  

6.4 Morris Acres Road at North Site Driveway 
 
A full-movement site driveway is proposed to be constructed on Morris Acres Road 
approximately 750 feet north of Reedybrook Crossing. Analyses indicate that the intersection is 
expected to operate with short delays and queues on the minor street approach (North Site 

Driveway) at project build-out. No roadway improvements are recommended to be performed as 
part of this development 
 
Table 6.4 summarizes the operation of the intersection of Morris Acres Road at North Site 

Driveway for the projected (2025) build-out traffic condition. 
 

Table 6.4 
Level-of-Service 

Morris Acres Road at North Site Driveway (Unsignalized) 

Condition 
AM Peak Hour  

LOS (Delay) 
PM Peak Hour  
LOS (Delay) 

Build-out (2025) Traffic 
WB  A (9.7) 
SBL  A (7.7) 

WB  B (10.4) 
SBL  A (7.8) 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 

- Page 359 -



Morris Acres Development  Apex, NC 
 

21

  

7.0  Recommendations 
 

Analyses indicate that all of the study intersections are expected to operate at an acceptable LOS 
at project build-out with only minor increases in delays and queues associated with the addition 
of site traffic.  
 

No roadway improvements are recommended to be performed to accommodate projected site 
traffic volumes.  
 
The build-out roadway laneage is shown on Figure 9.

- Page 360 -



- Page 361 -



 

 

Appendix 

 

- Page 362 -



 

 

Appendix A: 

Trip Generation 

- Page 363 -



- Page 364 -



 

 

Appendix B: 

Traffic Count Data 

 

- Page 365 -



- Page 366 -



- Page 367 -



- Page 368 -



- Page 369 -



- Page 370 -



- Page 371 -



 

 

Appendix C: 

Intersection Spreadsheets 

 

- Page 372 -



- Page 373 -



- Page 374 -



- Page 375 -



- Page 376 -



 

 

Appendix D: 

Synchro & SimTraffic Output: 

Existing (2022) 

- Page 377 -



Morris Acres Development Existing (2022) AM
1: Morris Acres Road & Jenks Road 03/07/2022

K:\RAL_TPTO\_Traffic\019867003 Morris Acres Pulte - Apex\T4 - Analysis\Synchro\Existing (2022).syn
Kimley-Horn Synchro 11 Report

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 3.7

Movement EBT EBR WBL WBT NBL NBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 217 37 23 124 122 37
Future Vol, veh/h 217 37 23 124 122 37
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Free Free Free Free Stop Stop
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length - - 100 - 150 0
Veh in Median Storage, # 0 - - 0 0 -
Grade, % 0 - - 0 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 90 90 90 90 90 90
Heavy Vehicles, % 3 8 4 5 2 2
Mvmt Flow 241 41 26 138 136 41

Major/Minor Major1 Major2 Minor1
Conflicting Flow All 0 0 282 0 452 262
          Stage 1 - - - - 262 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 190 -
Critical Hdwy - - 4.14 - 6.42 6.22
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 - - - - 5.42 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 - - - - 5.42 -
Follow-up Hdwy - - 2.236 - 3.518 3.318
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver - - 1269 - 565 777
          Stage 1 - - - - 782 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 842 -
Platoon blocked, % - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver - - 1269 - 554 777
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver - - - - 619 -
          Stage 1 - - - - 782 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 825 -

Approach EB WB NB
HCM Control Delay, s 0 1.2 11.8
HCM LOS B

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBLn1 NBLn2 EBT EBR WBL WBT
Capacity (veh/h) 619 777 - - 1269 -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.219 0.053 - - 0.02 -
HCM Control Delay (s) 12.4 9.9 - - 7.9 -
HCM Lane LOS B A - - A -
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0.8 0.2 - - 0.1 -

- Page 378 -



Morris Acres Development Existing (2022) AM
2: Morris Acres Road & Reedybrook Crossing 03/07/2022

K:\RAL_TPTO\_Traffic\019867003 Morris Acres Pulte - Apex\T4 - Analysis\Synchro\Existing (2022).syn
Kimley-Horn Synchro 11 Report

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 0.8

Movement EBL EBR NBL NBT SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 9 7 7 147 60 5
Future Vol, veh/h 9 7 7 147 60 5
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length 0 - 100 - - -
Veh in Median Storage, # 0 - - 0 0 -
Grade, % 0 - - 0 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 89 89 89 89 89 89
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 7 2
Mvmt Flow 10 8 8 165 67 6

Major/Minor Minor2 Major1 Major2
Conflicting Flow All 251 70 73 0 - 0
          Stage 1 70 - - - - -
          Stage 2 181 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 6.42 6.22 4.12 - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 5.42 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 5.42 - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.518 3.318 2.218 - - -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 738 993 1527 - - -
          Stage 1 953 - - - - -
          Stage 2 850 - - - - -
Platoon blocked, % - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver 734 993 1527 - - -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver 739 - - - - -
          Stage 1 948 - - - - -
          Stage 2 850 - - - - -

Approach EB NB SB
HCM Control Delay, s 9.4 0.3 0
HCM LOS A

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBL NBT EBLn1 SBT SBR
Capacity (veh/h) 1527 - 832 - -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.005 - 0.022 - -
HCM Control Delay (s) 7.4 - 9.4 - -
HCM Lane LOS A - A - -
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0 - 0.1 - -

- Page 379 -



Morris Acres Development Existing (2022) AM
3: Morris Acres Road & Walden Creek Drive 03/07/2022

K:\RAL_TPTO\_Traffic\019867003 Morris Acres Pulte - Apex\T4 - Analysis\Synchro\Existing (2022).syn
Kimley-Horn Synchro 11 Report

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 1.7

Movement WBL WBR NBT NBR SBL SBT
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 35 5 145 26 10 68
Future Vol, veh/h 35 5 145 26 10 68
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length 0 - - - 50 -
Veh in Median Storage, # 0 - 0 - - 0
Grade, % 0 - 0 - - 0
Peak Hour Factor 87 87 87 87 87 87
Heavy Vehicles, % 3 2 2 15 10 4
Mvmt Flow 40 6 167 30 11 78

Major/Minor Minor1 Major1 Major2
Conflicting Flow All 282 182 0 0 197 0
          Stage 1 182 - - - - -
          Stage 2 100 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 6.43 6.22 - - 4.2 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 5.43 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 5.43 - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.527 3.318 - - 2.29 -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 706 861 - - 1329 -
          Stage 1 847 - - - - -
          Stage 2 921 - - - - -
Platoon blocked, % - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver 700 861 - - 1329 -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver 718 - - - - -
          Stage 1 847 - - - - -
          Stage 2 914 - - - - -

Approach WB NB SB
HCM Control Delay, s 10.2 0 1
HCM LOS B

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBT NBRWBLn1 SBL SBT
Capacity (veh/h) - - 733 1329 -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio - - 0.063 0.009 -
HCM Control Delay (s) - - 10.2 7.7 -
HCM Lane LOS - - B A -
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) - - 0.2 0 -

- Page 380 -



Morris Acres Development Existing (2022) PM
1: Morris Acres Road & Jenks Road 03/07/2022

K:\RAL_TPTO\_Traffic\019867003 Morris Acres Pulte - Apex\T4 - Analysis\Synchro\Existing (2022).syn
Kimley-Horn Synchro 11 Report

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 4.4

Movement EBT EBR WBL WBT NBL NBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 216 82 61 241 146 74
Future Vol, veh/h 216 82 61 241 146 74
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Free Free Free Free Stop Stop
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length - - 100 - 150 0
Veh in Median Storage, # 0 - - 0 0 -
Grade, % 0 - - 0 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 88 88 88 88 88 88
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 245 93 69 274 166 84

Major/Minor Major1 Major2 Minor1
Conflicting Flow All 0 0 338 0 704 292
          Stage 1 - - - - 292 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 412 -
Critical Hdwy - - 4.12 - 6.42 6.22
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 - - - - 5.42 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 - - - - 5.42 -
Follow-up Hdwy - - 2.218 - 3.518 3.318
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver - - 1221 - 403 747
          Stage 1 - - - - 758 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 669 -
Platoon blocked, % - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver - - 1221 - 380 747
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver - - - - 485 -
          Stage 1 - - - - 758 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 631 -

Approach EB WB NB
HCM Control Delay, s 0 1.6 14.2
HCM LOS B

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBLn1 NBLn2 EBT EBR WBL WBT
Capacity (veh/h) 485 747 - - 1221 -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.342 0.113 - - 0.057 -
HCM Control Delay (s) 16.2 10.4 - - 8.1 -
HCM Lane LOS C B - - A -
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 1.5 0.4 - - 0.2 -

- Page 381 -



Morris Acres Development Existing (2022) PM
2: Morris Acres Road & Reedybrook Crossing 03/07/2022

K:\RAL_TPTO\_Traffic\019867003 Morris Acres Pulte - Apex\T4 - Analysis\Synchro\Existing (2022).syn
Kimley-Horn Synchro 11 Report

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 1

Movement EBL EBR NBL NBT SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 12 14 19 206 125 14
Future Vol, veh/h 12 14 19 206 125 14
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length 0 - 100 - - -
Veh in Median Storage, # 0 - - 0 0 -
Grade, % 0 - - 0 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 89 89 89 89 89 89
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 13 16 21 231 140 16

Major/Minor Minor2 Major1 Major2
Conflicting Flow All 421 148 156 0 - 0
          Stage 1 148 - - - - -
          Stage 2 273 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 6.42 6.22 4.12 - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 5.42 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 5.42 - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.518 3.318 2.218 - - -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 589 899 1424 - - -
          Stage 1 880 - - - - -
          Stage 2 773 - - - - -
Platoon blocked, % - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver 580 899 1424 - - -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver 635 - - - - -
          Stage 1 867 - - - - -
          Stage 2 773 - - - - -

Approach EB NB SB
HCM Control Delay, s 10 0.6 0
HCM LOS B

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBL NBT EBLn1 SBT SBR
Capacity (veh/h) 1424 - 754 - -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.015 - 0.039 - -
HCM Control Delay (s) 7.6 - 10 - -
HCM Lane LOS A - B - -
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0 - 0.1 - -

- Page 382 -



Morris Acres Development Existing (2022) PM
3: Morris Acres Road & Walden Creek Drive 03/07/2022

K:\RAL_TPTO\_Traffic\019867003 Morris Acres Pulte - Apex\T4 - Analysis\Synchro\Existing (2022).syn
Kimley-Horn Synchro 11 Report

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 1.2

Movement WBL WBR NBT NBR SBL SBT
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 41 5 222 57 6 134
Future Vol, veh/h 41 5 222 57 6 134
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length 0 - - - 50 -
Veh in Median Storage, # 0 - 0 - - 0
Grade, % 0 - 0 - - 0
Peak Hour Factor 89 89 89 89 89 89
Heavy Vehicles, % 10 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 46 6 249 64 7 151

Major/Minor Minor1 Major1 Major2
Conflicting Flow All 446 281 0 0 313 0
          Stage 1 281 - - - - -
          Stage 2 165 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 6.5 6.22 - - 4.12 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 5.5 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 5.5 - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.59 3.318 - - 2.218 -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 555 758 - - 1247 -
          Stage 1 749 - - - - -
          Stage 2 845 - - - - -
Platoon blocked, % - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver 552 758 - - 1247 -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver 611 - - - - -
          Stage 1 749 - - - - -
          Stage 2 840 - - - - -

Approach WB NB SB
HCM Control Delay, s 11.3 0 0.3
HCM LOS B

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBT NBRWBLn1 SBL SBT
Capacity (veh/h) - - 624 1247 -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio - - 0.083 0.005 -
HCM Control Delay (s) - - 11.3 7.9 -
HCM Lane LOS - - B A -
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) - - 0.3 0 -

- Page 383 -



- Page 384 -



- Page 385 -



 

 

Appendix E: 

Synchro & SimTraffic Output: 

Background (2025) 

- Page 386 -



Morris Acres Development Background (2025) AM
1: Morris Acres Road & Jenks Road 03/07/2022

K:\RAL_TPTO\_Traffic\019867003 Morris Acres Pulte - Apex\T4 - Analysis\Synchro\Background (2025).syn
Kimley-Horn Synchro 11 Report

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 3.8

Movement EBT EBR WBL WBT NBL NBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 237 40 25 135 133 40
Future Vol, veh/h 237 40 25 135 133 40
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Free Free Free Free Stop Stop
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length - - 100 - 150 0
Veh in Median Storage, # 0 - - 0 0 -
Grade, % 0 - - 0 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 90 90 90 90 90 90
Heavy Vehicles, % 3 8 4 5 2 2
Mvmt Flow 263 44 28 150 148 44

Major/Minor Major1 Major2 Minor1
Conflicting Flow All 0 0 307 0 491 285
          Stage 1 - - - - 285 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 206 -
Critical Hdwy - - 4.14 - 6.42 6.22
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 - - - - 5.42 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 - - - - 5.42 -
Follow-up Hdwy - - 2.236 - 3.518 3.318
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver - - 1242 - 537 754
          Stage 1 - - - - 763 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 829 -
Platoon blocked, % - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver - - 1242 - 525 754
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver - - - - 598 -
          Stage 1 - - - - 763 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 810 -

Approach EB WB NB
HCM Control Delay, s 0 1.2 12.3
HCM LOS B

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBLn1 NBLn2 EBT EBR WBL WBT
Capacity (veh/h) 598 754 - - 1242 -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.247 0.059 - - 0.022 -
HCM Control Delay (s) 13 10.1 - - 8 -
HCM Lane LOS B B - - A -
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 1 0.2 - - 0.1 -

- Page 387 -



Morris Acres Development Background (2025) AM
2: Morris Acres Road & Reedybrook Crossing 03/07/2022

K:\RAL_TPTO\_Traffic\019867003 Morris Acres Pulte - Apex\T4 - Analysis\Synchro\Background (2025).syn
Kimley-Horn Synchro 11 Report

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 0.8

Movement EBL EBR NBL NBT SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 9 7 7 161 66 5
Future Vol, veh/h 9 7 7 161 66 5
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length 0 - 100 - - -
Veh in Median Storage, # 0 - - 0 0 -
Grade, % 0 - - 0 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 89 89 89 89 89 89
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 7 2
Mvmt Flow 10 8 8 181 74 6

Major/Minor Minor2 Major1 Major2
Conflicting Flow All 274 77 80 0 - 0
          Stage 1 77 - - - - -
          Stage 2 197 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 6.42 6.22 4.12 - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 5.42 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 5.42 - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.518 3.318 2.218 - - -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 716 984 1518 - - -
          Stage 1 946 - - - - -
          Stage 2 836 - - - - -
Platoon blocked, % - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver 712 984 1518 - - -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver 723 - - - - -
          Stage 1 941 - - - - -
          Stage 2 836 - - - - -

Approach EB NB SB
HCM Control Delay, s 9.5 0.3 0
HCM LOS A

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBL NBT EBLn1 SBT SBR
Capacity (veh/h) 1518 - 818 - -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.005 - 0.022 - -
HCM Control Delay (s) 7.4 - 9.5 - -
HCM Lane LOS A - A - -
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0 - 0.1 - -

- Page 388 -



Morris Acres Development Background (2025) AM
3: Morris Acres Road & Walden Creek Drive 03/07/2022

K:\RAL_TPTO\_Traffic\019867003 Morris Acres Pulte - Apex\T4 - Analysis\Synchro\Background (2025).syn
Kimley-Horn Synchro 11 Report

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 1.7

Movement WBL WBR NBT NBR SBL SBT
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 38 5 158 28 11 74
Future Vol, veh/h 38 5 158 28 11 74
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length 0 - - - 50 -
Veh in Median Storage, # 0 - 0 - - 0
Grade, % 0 - 0 - - 0
Peak Hour Factor 87 87 87 87 87 87
Heavy Vehicles, % 3 2 2 15 10 4
Mvmt Flow 44 6 182 32 13 85

Major/Minor Minor1 Major1 Major2
Conflicting Flow All 309 198 0 0 214 0
          Stage 1 198 - - - - -
          Stage 2 111 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 6.43 6.22 - - 4.2 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 5.43 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 5.43 - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.527 3.318 - - 2.29 -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 681 843 - - 1310 -
          Stage 1 833 - - - - -
          Stage 2 911 - - - - -
Platoon blocked, % - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver 674 843 - - 1310 -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver 701 - - - - -
          Stage 1 833 - - - - -
          Stage 2 902 - - - - -

Approach WB NB SB
HCM Control Delay, s 10.4 0 1
HCM LOS B

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBT NBRWBLn1 SBL SBT
Capacity (veh/h) - - 715 1310 -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio - - 0.069 0.01 -
HCM Control Delay (s) - - 10.4 7.8 -
HCM Lane LOS - - B A -
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) - - 0.2 0 -

- Page 389 -



Morris Acres Development Background (2025) PM
1: Morris Acres Road & Jenks Road 03/07/2022

K:\RAL_TPTO\_Traffic\019867003 Morris Acres Pulte - Apex\T4 - Analysis\Synchro\Background (2025).syn
Kimley-Horn Synchro 11 Report

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 4.8

Movement EBT EBR WBL WBT NBL NBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 236 90 67 263 160 81
Future Vol, veh/h 236 90 67 263 160 81
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Free Free Free Free Stop Stop
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length - - 100 - 150 0
Veh in Median Storage, # 0 - - 0 0 -
Grade, % 0 - - 0 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 88 88 88 88 88 88
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 268 102 76 299 182 92

Major/Minor Major1 Major2 Minor1
Conflicting Flow All 0 0 370 0 770 319
          Stage 1 - - - - 319 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 451 -
Critical Hdwy - - 4.12 - 6.42 6.22
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 - - - - 5.42 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 - - - - 5.42 -
Follow-up Hdwy - - 2.218 - 3.518 3.318
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver - - 1189 - 369 722
          Stage 1 - - - - 737 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 642 -
Platoon blocked, % - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver - - 1189 - 345 722
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver - - - - 456 -
          Stage 1 - - - - 737 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 601 -

Approach EB WB NB
HCM Control Delay, s 0 1.7 15.5
HCM LOS C

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBLn1 NBLn2 EBT EBR WBL WBT
Capacity (veh/h) 456 722 - - 1189 -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.399 0.127 - - 0.064 -
HCM Control Delay (s) 18 10.7 - - 8.2 -
HCM Lane LOS C B - - A -
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 1.9 0.4 - - 0.2 -

- Page 390 -



Morris Acres Development Background (2025) PM
2: Morris Acres Road & Reedybrook Crossing 03/07/2022

K:\RAL_TPTO\_Traffic\019867003 Morris Acres Pulte - Apex\T4 - Analysis\Synchro\Background (2025).syn
Kimley-Horn Synchro 11 Report

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 1

Movement EBL EBR NBL NBT SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 12 14 19 225 137 14
Future Vol, veh/h 12 14 19 225 137 14
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length 0 - 100 - - -
Veh in Median Storage, # 0 - - 0 0 -
Grade, % 0 - - 0 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 89 89 89 89 89 89
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 13 16 21 253 154 16

Major/Minor Minor2 Major1 Major2
Conflicting Flow All 457 162 170 0 - 0
          Stage 1 162 - - - - -
          Stage 2 295 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 6.42 6.22 4.12 - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 5.42 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 5.42 - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.518 3.318 2.218 - - -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 562 883 1407 - - -
          Stage 1 867 - - - - -
          Stage 2 755 - - - - -
Platoon blocked, % - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver 554 883 1407 - - -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver 616 - - - - -
          Stage 1 854 - - - - -
          Stage 2 755 - - - - -

Approach EB NB SB
HCM Control Delay, s 10.1 0.6 0
HCM LOS B

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBL NBT EBLn1 SBT SBR
Capacity (veh/h) 1407 - 736 - -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.015 - 0.04 - -
HCM Control Delay (s) 7.6 - 10.1 - -
HCM Lane LOS A - B - -
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0 - 0.1 - -

- Page 391 -



Morris Acres Development Background (2025) PM
3: Morris Acres Road & Walden Creek Drive 03/07/2022

K:\RAL_TPTO\_Traffic\019867003 Morris Acres Pulte - Apex\T4 - Analysis\Synchro\Background (2025).syn
Kimley-Horn Synchro 11 Report

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 1.3

Movement WBL WBR NBT NBR SBL SBT
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 45 5 243 62 7 146
Future Vol, veh/h 45 5 243 62 7 146
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length 0 - - - 50 -
Veh in Median Storage, # 0 - 0 - - 0
Grade, % 0 - 0 - - 0
Peak Hour Factor 89 89 89 89 89 89
Heavy Vehicles, % 10 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 51 6 273 70 8 164

Major/Minor Minor1 Major1 Major2
Conflicting Flow All 488 308 0 0 343 0
          Stage 1 308 - - - - -
          Stage 2 180 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 6.5 6.22 - - 4.12 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 5.5 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 5.5 - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.59 3.318 - - 2.218 -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 525 732 - - 1216 -
          Stage 1 728 - - - - -
          Stage 2 832 - - - - -
Platoon blocked, % - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver 521 732 - - 1216 -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver 588 - - - - -
          Stage 1 728 - - - - -
          Stage 2 826 - - - - -

Approach WB NB SB
HCM Control Delay, s 11.6 0 0.4
HCM LOS B

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBT NBRWBLn1 SBL SBT
Capacity (veh/h) - - 600 1216 -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio - - 0.094 0.006 -
HCM Control Delay (s) - - 11.6 8 -
HCM Lane LOS - - B A -
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) - - 0.3 0 -

- Page 392 -



- Page 393 -



- Page 394 -



 

 

Appendix F: 

Synchro & SimTraffic Output: 

Build-Out (2025) 

 

- Page 395 -



Morris Acres Development Build-out (2025) AM
1: Morris Acres Road & Jenks Road 03/07/2022

K:\RAL_TPTO\_Traffic\019867003 Morris Acres Pulte - Apex\T4 - Analysis\Synchro\Build (2025).syn
Kimley-Horn Synchro 11 Report

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 4.2

Movement EBT EBR WBL WBT NBL NBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 237 43 28 135 143 60
Future Vol, veh/h 237 43 28 135 143 60
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Free Free Free Free Stop Stop
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length - - 100 - 150 0
Veh in Median Storage, # 0 - - 0 0 -
Grade, % 0 - - 0 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 90 90 90 90 90 90
Heavy Vehicles, % 3 8 4 5 2 2
Mvmt Flow 263 48 31 150 159 67

Major/Minor Major1 Major2 Minor1
Conflicting Flow All 0 0 311 0 499 287
          Stage 1 - - - - 287 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 212 -
Critical Hdwy - - 4.14 - 6.42 6.22
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 - - - - 5.42 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 - - - - 5.42 -
Follow-up Hdwy - - 2.236 - 3.518 3.318
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver - - 1238 - 531 752
          Stage 1 - - - - 762 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 823 -
Platoon blocked, % - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver - - 1238 - 518 752
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver - - - - 593 -
          Stage 1 - - - - 762 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 802 -

Approach EB WB NB
HCM Control Delay, s 0 1.4 12.4
HCM LOS B

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBLn1 NBLn2 EBT EBR WBL WBT
Capacity (veh/h) 593 752 - - 1238 -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.268 0.089 - - 0.025 -
HCM Control Delay (s) 13.3 10.3 - - 8 -
HCM Lane LOS B B - - A -
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 1.1 0.3 - - 0.1 -

- Page 396 -



Morris Acres Development Build-out (2025) AM
2: Morris Acres Road & Reedybrook Crossing/Site Driveway 03/07/2022

K:\RAL_TPTO\_Traffic\019867003 Morris Acres Pulte - Apex\T4 - Analysis\Synchro\Build (2025).syn
Kimley-Horn Synchro 11 Report

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 2.3

Movement EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 9 4 7 17 4 23 7 162 9 5 69 5
Future Vol, veh/h 9 4 7 17 4 23 7 162 9 5 69 5
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Free Free Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - - None - - None - - None - - None
Storage Length - - - - - - 100 - - 100 - -
Veh in Median Storage, # - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Grade, % - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 89 89 89 89 89 89 89 89 89 89 89 89
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 7 2
Mvmt Flow 10 4 8 19 4 26 8 182 10 6 78 6

Major/Minor Minor2 Minor1 Major1 Major2
Conflicting Flow All 311 301 81 302 299 187 84 0 0 192 0 0
          Stage 1 93 93 - 203 203 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 218 208 - 99 96 - - - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 7.12 6.52 6.22 7.12 6.52 6.22 4.12 - - 4.12 - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 6.12 5.52 - 6.12 5.52 - - - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 6.12 5.52 - 6.12 5.52 - - - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.518 4.018 3.318 3.518 4.018 3.318 2.218 - - 2.218 - -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 642 612 979 650 613 855 1513 - - 1381 - -
          Stage 1 914 818 - 799 733 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 784 730 - 907 815 - - - - - - -
Platoon blocked, % - - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver 614 606 979 636 607 855 1513 - - 1381 - -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver 614 606 - 636 607 - - - - - - -
          Stage 1 909 815 - 795 729 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 752 726 - 891 812 - - - - - - -

Approach EB WB NB SB
HCM Control Delay, s 10.3 10.3 0.3 0.5
HCM LOS B B

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBL NBT NBR EBLn1WBLn1 SBL SBT SBR
Capacity (veh/h) 1513 - - 704 731 1381 - -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.005 - - 0.032 0.068 0.004 - -
HCM Control Delay (s) 7.4 - - 10.3 10.3 7.6 - -
HCM Lane LOS A - - B B A - -
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0 - - 0.1 0.2 0 - -

- Page 397 -



Morris Acres Development Build-out (2025) AM
3: Morris Acres Road & Walden Creek Drive 03/07/2022

K:\RAL_TPTO\_Traffic\019867003 Morris Acres Pulte - Apex\T4 - Analysis\Synchro\Build (2025).syn
Kimley-Horn Synchro 11 Report

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 1.6

Movement WBL WBR NBT NBR SBL SBT
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 38 5 168 28 11 94
Future Vol, veh/h 38 5 168 28 11 94
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length 0 - - - 50 -
Veh in Median Storage, # 0 - 0 - - 0
Grade, % 0 - 0 - - 0
Peak Hour Factor 87 87 87 87 87 87
Heavy Vehicles, % 3 2 2 15 10 4
Mvmt Flow 44 6 193 32 13 108

Major/Minor Minor1 Major1 Major2
Conflicting Flow All 343 209 0 0 225 0
          Stage 1 209 - - - - -
          Stage 2 134 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 6.43 6.22 - - 4.2 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 5.43 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 5.43 - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.527 3.318 - - 2.29 -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 651 831 - - 1298 -
          Stage 1 824 - - - - -
          Stage 2 890 - - - - -
Platoon blocked, % - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver 644 831 - - 1298 -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver 681 - - - - -
          Stage 1 824 - - - - -
          Stage 2 881 - - - - -

Approach WB NB SB
HCM Control Delay, s 10.6 0 0.8
HCM LOS B

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBT NBRWBLn1 SBL SBT
Capacity (veh/h) - - 696 1298 -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio - - 0.071 0.01 -
HCM Control Delay (s) - - 10.6 7.8 -
HCM Lane LOS - - B A -
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) - - 0.2 0 -

- Page 398 -



Morris Acres Development Build-out (2025) AM
4: Morris Acres Road & North Site Driveway 03/07/2022

K:\RAL_TPTO\_Traffic\019867003 Morris Acres Pulte - Apex\T4 - Analysis\Synchro\Build (2025).syn
Kimley-Horn Synchro 11 Report

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 0.5

Movement WBL WBR NBT NBR SBL SBT
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 4 7 197 4 4 71
Future Vol, veh/h 4 7 197 4 4 71
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length 0 - - - 100 -
Veh in Median Storage, # 0 - 0 - - 0
Grade, % 0 - 0 - - 0
Peak Hour Factor 90 90 90 90 90 90
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 4 8 219 4 4 79

Major/Minor Minor1 Major1 Major2
Conflicting Flow All 308 221 0 0 223 0
          Stage 1 221 - - - - -
          Stage 2 87 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 6.42 6.22 - - 4.12 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 5.42 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 5.42 - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.518 3.318 - - 2.218 -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 684 819 - - 1346 -
          Stage 1 816 - - - - -
          Stage 2 936 - - - - -
Platoon blocked, % - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver 682 819 - - 1346 -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver 702 - - - - -
          Stage 1 816 - - - - -
          Stage 2 933 - - - - -

Approach WB NB SB
HCM Control Delay, s 9.7 0 0.4
HCM LOS A

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBT NBRWBLn1 SBL SBT
Capacity (veh/h) - - 772 1346 -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio - - 0.016 0.003 -
HCM Control Delay (s) - - 9.7 7.7 -
HCM Lane LOS - - A A -
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) - - 0 0 -

- Page 399 -



Morris Acres Development Build-out (2025) PM
1: Morris Acres Road & Jenks Road 03/07/2022

K:\RAL_TPTO\_Traffic\019867003 Morris Acres Pulte - Apex\T4 - Analysis\Synchro\Build (2025).syn
Kimley-Horn Synchro 11 Report

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 5.2

Movement EBT EBR WBL WBT NBL NBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 236 100 77 263 166 93
Future Vol, veh/h 236 100 77 263 166 93
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Free Free Free Free Stop Stop
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length - - 100 - 150 0
Veh in Median Storage, # 0 - - 0 0 -
Grade, % 0 - - 0 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 88 88 88 88 88 88
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 268 114 88 299 189 106

Major/Minor Major1 Major2 Minor1
Conflicting Flow All 0 0 382 0 800 325
          Stage 1 - - - - 325 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 475 -
Critical Hdwy - - 4.12 - 6.42 6.22
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 - - - - 5.42 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 - - - - 5.42 -
Follow-up Hdwy - - 2.218 - 3.518 3.318
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver - - 1176 - 354 716
          Stage 1 - - - - 732 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 626 -
Platoon blocked, % - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver - - 1176 - 327 716
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver - - - - 440 -
          Stage 1 - - - - 732 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 579 -

Approach EB WB NB
HCM Control Delay, s 0 1.9 16.2
HCM LOS C

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBLn1 NBLn2 EBT EBR WBL WBT
Capacity (veh/h) 440 716 - - 1176 -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.429 0.148 - - 0.074 -
HCM Control Delay (s) 19.2 10.9 - - 8.3 -
HCM Lane LOS C B - - A -
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 2.1 0.5 - - 0.2 -

- Page 400 -



Morris Acres Development Build-out (2025) PM
2: Morris Acres Road & Reedybrook Crossing/Site Driveway 03/07/2022

K:\RAL_TPTO\_Traffic\019867003 Morris Acres Pulte - Apex\T4 - Analysis\Synchro\Build (2025).syn
Kimley-Horn Synchro 11 Report

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 1.8

Movement EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 12 4 14 10 4 13 19 228 27 15 138 14
Future Vol, veh/h 12 4 14 10 4 13 19 228 27 15 138 14
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Free Free Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - - None - - None - - None - - None
Storage Length - - - - - - 100 - - 100 - -
Veh in Median Storage, # - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Grade, % - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 89 89 89 89 89 89 89 89 89 89 89 89
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 13 4 16 11 4 15 21 256 30 17 155 16

Major/Minor Minor2 Minor1 Major1 Major2
Conflicting Flow All 520 525 163 520 518 271 171 0 0 286 0 0
          Stage 1 197 197 - 313 313 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 323 328 - 207 205 - - - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 7.12 6.52 6.22 7.12 6.52 6.22 4.12 - - 4.12 - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 6.12 5.52 - 6.12 5.52 - - - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 6.12 5.52 - 6.12 5.52 - - - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.518 4.018 3.318 3.518 4.018 3.318 2.218 - - 2.218 - -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 467 458 882 467 462 768 1406 - - 1276 - -
          Stage 1 805 738 - 698 657 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 689 647 - 795 732 - - - - - - -
Platoon blocked, % - - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver 445 445 882 446 449 768 1406 - - 1276 - -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver 445 445 - 446 449 - - - - - - -
          Stage 1 793 728 - 688 647 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 661 637 - 766 722 - - - - - - -

Approach EB WB NB SB
HCM Control Delay, s 11.6 11.8 0.5 0.7
HCM LOS B B

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBL NBT NBR EBLn1WBLn1 SBL SBT SBR
Capacity (veh/h) 1406 - - 579 560 1276 - -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.015 - - 0.058 0.054 0.013 - -
HCM Control Delay (s) 7.6 - - 11.6 11.8 7.9 - -
HCM Lane LOS A - - B B A - -
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0 - - 0.2 0.2 0 - -

- Page 401 -



Morris Acres Development Build-out (2025) PM
3: Morris Acres Road & Walden Creek Drive 03/07/2022

K:\RAL_TPTO\_Traffic\019867003 Morris Acres Pulte - Apex\T4 - Analysis\Synchro\Build (2025).syn
Kimley-Horn Synchro 11 Report

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 1.2

Movement WBL WBR NBT NBR SBL SBT
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 45 5 273 62 7 157
Future Vol, veh/h 45 5 273 62 7 157
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length 0 - - - 50 -
Veh in Median Storage, # 0 - 0 - - 0
Grade, % 0 - 0 - - 0
Peak Hour Factor 89 89 89 89 89 89
Heavy Vehicles, % 10 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 51 6 307 70 8 176

Major/Minor Minor1 Major1 Major2
Conflicting Flow All 534 342 0 0 377 0
          Stage 1 342 - - - - -
          Stage 2 192 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 6.5 6.22 - - 4.12 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 5.5 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 5.5 - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.59 3.318 - - 2.218 -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 493 701 - - 1181 -
          Stage 1 702 - - - - -
          Stage 2 822 - - - - -
Platoon blocked, % - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver 490 701 - - 1181 -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver 565 - - - - -
          Stage 1 702 - - - - -
          Stage 2 816 - - - - -

Approach WB NB SB
HCM Control Delay, s 11.9 0 0.3
HCM LOS B

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBT NBRWBLn1 SBL SBT
Capacity (veh/h) - - 576 1181 -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio - - 0.098 0.007 -
HCM Control Delay (s) - - 11.9 8.1 -
HCM Lane LOS - - B A -
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) - - 0.3 0 -

- Page 402 -



Morris Acres Development Build-out (2025) PM
4: Morris Acres Road & North Site Driveway 03/07/2022

K:\RAL_TPTO\_Traffic\019867003 Morris Acres Pulte - Apex\T4 - Analysis\Synchro\Build (2025).syn
Kimley-Horn Synchro 11 Report

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 0.3

Movement WBL WBR NBT NBR SBL SBT
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 4 5 253 4 5 171
Future Vol, veh/h 4 5 253 4 5 171
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length 0 - - - 100 -
Veh in Median Storage, # 0 - 0 - - 0
Grade, % 0 - 0 - - 0
Peak Hour Factor 90 90 90 90 90 90
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 4 6 281 4 6 190

Major/Minor Minor1 Major1 Major2
Conflicting Flow All 485 283 0 0 285 0
          Stage 1 283 - - - - -
          Stage 2 202 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 6.42 6.22 - - 4.12 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 5.42 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 5.42 - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.518 3.318 - - 2.218 -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 541 756 - - 1277 -
          Stage 1 765 - - - - -
          Stage 2 832 - - - - -
Platoon blocked, % - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver 538 756 - - 1277 -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver 607 - - - - -
          Stage 1 765 - - - - -
          Stage 2 828 - - - - -

Approach WB NB SB
HCM Control Delay, s 10.4 0 0.2
HCM LOS B

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBT NBRWBLn1 SBL SBT
Capacity (veh/h) - - 682 1277 -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio - - 0.015 0.004 -
HCM Control Delay (s) - - 10.4 7.8 -
HCM Lane LOS - - B A -
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) - - 0 0 -

- Page 403 -



- Page 404 -



- Page 405 -



- Page 406 -



- Page 407 -



Certificate Of Completion

Envelope Id: BA30FE832F74459B80011F564E73205D Status: Completed

Subject: Please DocuSign: Morris Acres TIA 3-8-22.pdf

Source Envelope: 

Document Pages: 77 Signatures: 1 Envelope Originator: 

Certificate Pages: 1 Initials: 0 Lyle Overcash

AutoNav: Disabled

EnvelopeId Stamping: Disabled

Time Zone: (UTC-05:00) Eastern Time (US & Canada)

401 Fayetteville St.

Suite 600

Raleigh, NC  27601

Lyle.Overcash@kimley-horn.com

IP Address: 134.238.172.6

Record Tracking

Status: Original

             3/8/2022 2:38:45 PM

Holder: Lyle Overcash

             Lyle.Overcash@kimley-horn.com

Location: DocuSign

Signer Events Signature Timestamp

Lyle Overcash

Lyle.Overcash@kimley-horn.com

Kimley-Horn

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None) Signature Adoption: Pre-selected Style

Using IP Address: 134.238.172.6

Sent: 3/8/2022 2:39:16 PM

Viewed: 3/8/2022 2:39:26 PM 

Signed: 3/8/2022 2:39:57 PM

Freeform Signing

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Not Offered via DocuSign

In Person Signer Events Signature Timestamp

Editor Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Agent Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Intermediary Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Certified Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Carbon Copy Events Status Timestamp

Witness Events Signature Timestamp

Notary Events Signature Timestamp

Envelope Summary Events Status Timestamps

Envelope Sent Hashed/Encrypted 3/8/2022 2:39:16 PM

Certified Delivered Security Checked 3/8/2022 2:39:26 PM

Signing Complete Security Checked 3/8/2022 2:39:57 PM

Completed Security Checked 3/8/2022 2:39:57 PM

Payment Events Status Timestamps

- Page 408 -



PLANNING BOARD REPORT TO TOWN COUNCIL 
Rezoning Case: 

Planning Board Meeting Date: 

Page 1 Planning Board Report to Town Council 

Report Requirements:  
Per NCGS §160D-604(b), all proposed amendments to the zoning ordinance or zoning map shall be submitted to the 
Planning Board for review and comment. If no written report is received from the Planning Board within 30 days of 
referral of the amendment to the Planning Board, the Town Council may act on the amendment without the Planning 
Board report. The Town Council is not bound by the recommendations, if any, of the Planning Board. 
 
Per NCGS §160D-604(d), the Planning Board shall advise and comment on whether the proposed action is consistent 
with all applicable officially adopted plans, and provide a written recommendation to the Town Council that 
addresses plan consistency and other matters as deemed appropriate by the Planning Board, but a comment by the 
Planning Board that a proposed amendment is inconsistent with the officially adopted plans shall not preclude 
consideration or approval of the proposed amendment by the Town Council. 
 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION:  
Acreage:  

PIN(s): 
 

 

Current Zoning: 
 

 

Proposed Zoning:  
 

 

2045 Land Use Map: 
 

 

Town Limits:  
 

Applicable Officially Adopted Plans: 
 

The Board must state whether the project is consistent or inconsistent with the following officially adopted plans, 
if applicable. Applicable plans have a check mark next to them.  

 2045 Land Use Map 
 Consistent  Inconsistent Reason:  

 
 
 
 
 

 Apex Transportation Plan 
 Consistent  Inconsistent Reason:  

 
 
 
 
 
 

 Parks, Recreation, Open Space, and Greenways Plan 
 Consistent  Inconsistent Reason:  

 
 
 
 
 

22CZ05 Morris Tract PUD

July 11, 2022

±17.09 acres
0732295017, 0732289587, 0732382530, & 07323827

Rural Residential (RR)

Planned Unit Development-Conditional Zoning (PUD-CZ)

Medium Density Residential

0732382709 & 0732295017 are in the ETJ; 0732289587 & 0732382530  are in Town limits

- Page 409 -



PLANNING BOARD REPORT TO TOWN COUNCIL 
Rezoning Case: 

Planning Board Meeting Date: 

Page 2 Planning Board Report to Town Council 

Legislative Considerations: 
The applicant shall propose site-specific standards and conditions that take into account the following 
considerations, which are considerations that are relevant to the legislative determination of whether or not the 
proposed conditional zoning district rezoning request is in the public interest.  These considerations do not 
exclude the legislative consideration of any other factor that is relevant to the public interest. 
 
1. Consistency with 2045 Land Use Plan. The proposed Conditional 

for its proposed location and consistency with the purposes, goals, objectives, and policies of the 2045 Land 
Use Plan. 

 Consistent  Inconsistent Reason:  
  
 
 
 
 
2. Compatibility. 

location and compatibility with the character of surrounding land uses. 
 Consistent  Inconsistent Reason:  

 
 
 
 
 
3. Zoning district supplemental standards. The 

with Sec. 4.4 Supplemental Standards, if applicable. 
 Consistent  Inconsistent Reason:  

 
 
 
 
 
4. Design minimizes adverse impact. The design of 

minimization of adverse effects, including visual impact of the proposed use on adjacent lands; and 
avoidance of significant adverse impacts on surrounding lands regarding trash, traffic, service delivery, 
parking and loading, odors, noise, glare, and vibration and not create a nuisance. 

 Consistent  Inconsistent Reason:  
 
 
 
 
 
5. Design minimizes environmental impact. The proposed Conditional Zoning 

environmental impacts and protection from significant deterioration of water and air resources, wildlife 
habitat, scenic resources, and other natural resources. 

 Consistent  Inconsistent Reason:  
 
 
 
 
  

22CZ05 Morris Tract PUD

July 11, 2022

- Page 410 -



PLANNING BOARD REPORT TO TOWN COUNCIL 
Rezoning Case: 

Planning Board Meeting Date: 

Page 3 Planning Board Report to Town Council 

 
6. Impact on public facilities. 

impacts on public facilities and services, including roads, potable water and wastewater facilities, parks, 
schools, police, fire and EMS facilities. 

 Consistent  Inconsistent Reason:  
 
 
 
 
 
7. Health, safety, and welfare. effect on the health, safety, 

or welfare of the residents of the Town or its ETJ. 
 Consistent  Inconsistent Reason:  

 
 
 
 
 
8. Detrimental to adjacent properties.  Whether the proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use is 

substantially detrimental to adjacent properties. 
 Consistent  Inconsistent Reason:  

 
 
 
 
 
9. Not constitute nuisance or hazard.  Whether the proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use constitutes 

a nuisance or hazard due to traffic impact or noise, or because of the number of persons who will be using 
the Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use. 

 Consistent  Inconsistent Reason:  
 
 
 
 
 
10. Other relevant standards of this Ordinance.  Whether the proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use 

complies with all standards imposed on it by all other applicable provisions of this Ordinance for use, 
layout, and general development characteristics. 

 Consistent  Inconsistent Reason:  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

July 11, 2022

22CZ05 Morris Tract PUD

- Page 411 -



PLANNING BOARD REPORT TO TOWN COUNCIL 
Rezoning Case: 

Planning Board Meeting Date: 

Page 4 Planning Board Report to Town Council 

Planning Board Recommendation: 
Motion:  

  

Introduced by Planning Board member:  

Seconded by Planning Board member:  

  
 Approval: the project is consistent with all applicable officially adopted plans and the applicable legislative 

considerations listed above. 
 

 Approval with conditions: the project is not consistent with all applicable officially adopted plans and/or 
the applicable legislative considerations as noted above, so the following conditions are recommended to 
be included in the project in order to make it fully consistent: 

 

 
 

 

 

 

  
 Denial: the project is not consistent with all applicable officially adopted plans and/or the applicable 

legislative considerations as noted above. 
  
  

 With ____ Planning  
 

 
  

Reasons for dissenting votes: 
  

  

  

  

  

  
This report reflects the recommendation of the Planning Board, this the  day of  2022. 
  
Attest:  
 
 

 

   
Re  Skinner, Planning Board Chair  Dianne Khin, Director of Planning and 

Community Development 

To recommend approval as presented.

Tina Sherman
Keith Braswell

As presented.

7

0

11th July

July 11, 2022

22CZ05 Morris Tract PUD

- Page 412 -



TOWN OF APEX
POST OFFICE BOX 250
APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 27502 
PHONE 919-249-3426 

PUBLIC NOTIFICATION
OF PUBLIC HEARINGS

CONDITIONAL ZONING #22CZ05 
MORRIS TRACT PUD 

Published Dates: June 24 – July 11, 2022

Pursuant to the provisions of North Carolina General Statutes §160D-602 and to the Town of Apex Unified Development 
Ordinance (UDO) Section 2.2.11, notice is hereby given of public hearings before the Planning Board of the Town of Apex. The 
purpose of these hearings is to consider the following: 

Applicant/Authorized Agent: Brendie Vega, WithersRavenel 
Property Addresses: 0, 7208, 7208-B, & 7304 Morris Acres Road 
Acreage: ±17.09 acres   
Property Identification Numbers (PINs): 0732295017, 0732382709, 0732289587, & 0732382530  
2045 Land Use Map Designation: Medium Density Residential 
Existing Zoning of Properties: Rural Residential (RR) 
Proposed Zoning of Properties: Planned Unit Development-Conditional Zoning (PUD-CZ) 
 
Public Hearing Location:  Apex Town Hall  
                                              Council Chamber, 2nd Floor
                                              73 Hunter Street, Apex, North Carolina  

Planning Board Public Hearing Date and Time: July 11, 2022 4:30 PM
You may attend the meeting in person or view the meeting through the Town’s YouTube livestream at: 
https://www.youtube.com/c/townofapexgov. Please visit https://www.apexnc.org/ on the day of the meeting to 
confirm whether the meeting will be held in-person or remotely.

If you are unable to attend, you may provide a written statement by email to public.hearing@apexnc.org, or 
submit it to the clerk of the Planning Board, Jeri Pederson (73 Hunter Street or USPS mail - P.O. Box 250, Apex, 
NC 27502), at least two business days prior to the Planning Board vote. You must provide your name and address 
for the record. The written statements will be delivered to the Planning Board prior to their vote. Please include 
the Public Hearing name in the subject line. 

In the event that the Planning Board meeting is held remotely or with at least one member attending virtually, 
written comments may be submitted up to 24 hours prior to the scheduled time of the meeting per NCGS §166A-
19.24 according to the methods specified above. Virtual meetings may be viewed via the Town’s YouTube 
livestream at https://www.youtube.com/c/townofapexgov.

A separate notice of the Town Council public hearing on this project will be mailed and posted in order to comply 
with State public notice requirements. 
 
Vicinity Map:

Property owners, tenants, and neighborhood associations within 300 feet of the proposed conditional zoning have been sent 
this notice via first class mail. All interested parties may submit comments with respect to the application by the means 
specified above. In addition to the above map, the location of the property may be viewed online at 
https://maps.raleighnc.gov/imaps. The 2045 Land Use Map may be viewed online at 
www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/478. You may call 919-249-3426, Department of Planning and Community 
Development, with questions or for further information. To view the petition and related documents on-line: 
https://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/38187.

Dianne F. Khin, AICP
Director of Planning and Community Development

- Page 413 -



TOWN OF APEX
PO BOX 250 
APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 27502 
TELÉFONO 919-249-3426 

NOTIFICACIÓN PÚBLICA DE AUDIENCIAS PÚBLICAS
ORDENAMIENTO TERRITORIAL CONDICIONAL #22CZ05
MORRIS TRACT PUD (Desarrollo de Unidad Planificada) 

 

Fechas de publicación: 24 de junio - 11 de julio de 2022

De conformidad con las disposiciones de los Estatutos Generales de Carolina del Norte §160D-602 y con la Sección 2.2.11 
de la Ordenanza de Desarrollo Unificado (UDO) del ayuntamiento de Apex, por la presente se notifican las audiencias 
públicas ante la Junta de Planificación de Apex. El propósito de estas audiencias es considerar lo siguiente: 

Solicitante/Agente autorizado: Brendie Vega, WithersRavenel 
Dirección de las propiedades: 0, 7208, 7208-B, & 7304 Morris Acres Road 
Superficie: ±17.09 acres  
Números de identificación de las propiedades: 0732295017, 0732382709, 0732289587, & 0732382530 
Designación actual en el Mapa de Uso Territorial para 2045: Medium Density Residential 
Ordenamiento territorial existente de las propiedades: Rural Residential (RR)  
Ordenamiento territorial propuesto para las propiedades: Planned Unit Development-Conditional Zoning 
(PUD-CZ) 
 

Lugar de la audiencia pública:  Ayuntamiento de Apex  
                                               Cámara del Consejo, 2º piso 
                                               73 Hunter Street, Apex, Carolina del Norte 

 
Fecha y hora de la audiencia pública de la Junta de Planificación: 11 de julio de 2022 4:30 P.M.

Puede asistir a la reunión de manera presencial o seguir la transmisión en directo por YouTube a través del siguiente 
enlace: https://www.youtube.com/c/townofapexgov. Por favor visite  https://www.apexnc.org/ el día de la reunión 
para confirmar si la reunión se llevará a cabo de manera presencial o remotamente.   

Si no puede asistir, puede enviar una declaración escrita por correo electrónico a public.hearing@apexnc.org, o 
presentarla a la secretaría de la Junta de Planificación, Jeri Pederson (73 Hunter Street o por correo USPS a P.O. Box 
250, Apex, NC 27502), al menos dos días hábiles antes de la votación de la Junta de Planificación. Debe proporcionar 
su nombre y dirección para que conste en el registro. Las declaraciones escritas se entregarán a la Junta de 
Planificación antes de la votación. No olvide incluir el nombre de la audiencia pública en el asunto. 
 

En caso de que la reunión de la Junta de Planificación se lleve a cabo remotamente o que por lo menos uno de los 
miembros asista virtualmente, se permite presentar comentarios por escrito hasta 24 horas antes de la hora 
programada de la reunión según los estatutos de Carolina del Norte NCGS §166A-19.24 siguiendo los métodos 
especificados anteriormente. Las reuniones virtuales se pueden seguir en la transmisión en directo por YouTube a 
través del siguiente enlace: https://www.youtube.com/c/townofapexgov.

De conformidad con los requisitos estatales de notificaciones públicas, se enviará por correo y se publicará 
por separado una notificación de la audiencia pública del Consejo Municipal sobre este proyecto. 

Mapa de las inmediaciones:

 
Los propietarios, inquilinos y asociaciones de vecinos en un radio de 300 pies del Ordenamiento Territorial Condicional 
propuesto han recibido esta notificación por correo postal de primera clase. Todas las partes interesadas pueden presentar 
comentarios sobre la solicitud a través de los medios especificados anteriormente. La ubicación de la propiedad también 
puede verse aquí: https://maps.raleighnc.gov/imaps. Puede ver el Mapa de Uso Territorial para 2045 aquí: 
www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/478. Si tiene preguntas o desea obtener más información, puede comunicarse con 
el Departamento de Planificación y Desarrollo Comunitario al 919-249-3426. Puede ver la solicitud y otros documentos 
relacionados aquí: https://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/38187.

Dianne F. Khin, AICP
Directora de Planificación y Desarrollo Comunitario 

- Page 414 -



 

TOWN OF APEX 
POST OFFICE BOX 250 
APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 27502 
PHONE 919-249-3426 

PUBLIC NOTIFICATION 
OF PUBLIC HEARINGS 

CONDITIONAL ZONING #22CZ05 
MORRIS TRACT PUD (PLANNED UNIT 

DEVELOPMENT) 
 

Published Dates: July 1 - 26, 2022 

 

Pursuant to the provisions of North Carolina General Statutes §160D-602 and to the Town of Apex Unified Development 
Ordinance (UDO) Section 2.2.11, notice is hereby given of public hearings before the Town Council of the Town of Apex. The 
purpose of these hearings is to consider the following: 
 
Applicant/Authorized Agent: Brendie Vega, WithersRavenel 
Property Addresses: 0, 7208, 7208-B, & 7304 Morris Acres Road 
Acreage: ±17.09 acres   
Property Identification Numbers (PINs): 0732295017, 0732382709, 0732289587, & 0732382530 
Current 2045 Land Use Map Designation: Medium Density Residential 
Existing Zoning of Properties:  Rural Residential (RR) 
Proposed Zoning of Properties: Planned Unit Development-Conditional Zoning (PUD-CZ) 
 

Public Hearing Location:  Apex Town Hall  
                                       Council Chamber, 2nd Floor 
                                       73 Hunter Street, Apex, North Carolina  

 

Comments received prior to the Planning Board public hearing will not be provided to the Town Council.  
Separate comments for the Town Council public hearing must be provided by the deadline specified below. 

 
Town Council Public Hearing Date and Time:  July 26, 2022    6:00 PM  

You may attend the meeting in person or view the meeting through the Town’s YouTube livestream at: 
https://www.youtube.com/c/townofapexgov. Please visit www.apexnc.org on the day of the meeting to confirm 
whether the meeting will be held in-person or remotely. 
 
If you are unable to attend, you may provide a written statement by email to public.hearing@apexnc.org, or 
submit it to the Office of the Town Clerk (73 Hunter Street or USPS mail - P.O. Box 250, Apex, NC 27502), at least 
two business days prior to the Town Council vote. You must provide your name and address for the record. The 
written statements will be delivered to the Town Council members prior to their vote. Please include the Public 
Hearing name in the subject line. 
 
In the event that the Town Council meeting is held remotely or with at least one member attending virtually, 
written comments may be submitted up to 24 hours prior to the scheduled time of the meeting per NCGS §166A-
19.24 according to the methods specified above. Virtual meetings may be viewed via the Town’s YouTube 
livestream at https://www.youtube.com/c/townofapexgov. 

 
Vicinity Map:  

 
Property owners, tenants, and neighborhood associations within 300 feet of the proposed conditional zoning have been sent 
this notice via first class mail. All interested parties may submit comments with respect to the application by the means specified 
above. In addition to the above map, the location of the property may be viewed online at https://maps.raleighnc.gov/imaps. 
The 2045 Land Use Map may be viewed online at www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/478. You may call 919-249-3426, 
Department of Planning and Community Development, with questions or for further information. To view the petition and 
related documents on-line: https://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/38187.  

 
Dianne F. Khin, AICP 
Director of Planning and Community Development 

- Page 415 -

https://www.youtube.com/c/townofapexgov
http://www.apexnc.org/
mailto:public.hearing@apexnc.org
https://www.youtube.com/c/townofapexgov
https://maps.raleighnc.gov/imaps
https://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/478/2045-Land-Use-Map-PDF
https://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/38187/22CZ05?bidId=


TOWN OF APEX 
PO BOX 250 
APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 27502 
TELÉFONO 919-249-3426 

 

Fechas de publicación: 1 de julio - 26 de julio de 2022 

NOTIFICACIÓN PÚBLICA DE AUDIENCIAS PÚBLICAS 
ORDENAMIENTO TERRITORIAL CONDICIONAL #22CZ05 

MORRIS TRACT PUD (Desarrollo de Unidad Planificada) 
 

 

De conformidad con las disposiciones de los Estatutos Generales de Carolina del Norte §160D-602 y con la Sección 2.2.11 de la 
Ordenanza de Desarrollo Unificado (UDO) del ayuntamiento de Apex, por la presente se notifican las audiencias públicas ante 
el Consejo Municipal del Ayuntamiento de Apex. El propósito de estas audiencias es considerar lo siguiente: 
 
Solicitante/Agente autorizado: Brendie Vega, WithersRavenel 
Dirección de las propiedades: 0, 7208, 7208-B, & 7304 Morris Acres Road 
Superficie: ±17.09 acres  
Números de identificación de las propiedades: 0732295017, 0732382709, 0732289587, & 0732382530 
Designación actual en el Mapa de Uso Territorial para 2045: Medium Density Residential 
Ordenamiento territorial existente de las propiedades: Rural Residential (RR)  
Ordenamiento territorial propuesto para las propiedades: Planned Unit Development-Conditional Zoning (PUD-CZ) 
 
Lugar de la audiencia pública: Ayuntamiento de Apex 

                                              Cámara del Consejo, 2º piso 
                                              73 Hunter Street, Apex, Carolina del Norte 

 
Los comentarios recibidos antes de la audiencia pública de la Junta de Planificación no se proporcionarán al 
Consejo Municipal. Los comentarios para la audiencia pública del Consejo Municipal deben presentarse por 

separado en el plazo especificado a continuación. 
 

Fecha y hora de la audiencia pública del Consejo Municipal: 26 de julio de 2022   6:00 P.M.  
Puede asistir a la reunión de manera presencial o seguir la transmisión en directo por YouTube a través del siguiente 
enlace: https://www.youtube.com/c/townofapexgov. Por favor visite  www.apexnc.org el día de la reunión para 
confirmar si la reunión se llevará a cabo de manera presencial o remotamente.   
 

Si no puede asistir, puede enviar una declaración escrita por correo electrónico a public.hearing@apexnc.org, o 
presentarla a la oficina del Secretario Municipal (73 Hunter Street o por correo USPS a P.O. Box 250, Apex, NC 27502), 
al menos dos días hábiles antes de la votación del Consejo Municipal. Debe proporcionar su nombre y dirección para 
que conste en el registro. Las declaraciones escritas se entregarán al Consejo Municipal antes de la votación. No olvide 
incluir el nombre de la audiencia pública en el asunto. 
 

En caso de que la reunión del Consejo Municipal se lleve a cabo remotamente o que por lo menos uno de los miembros 
asista virtualmente, se permite presentar comentarios por escrito hasta 24 horas antes de la hora programada de la 
reunión según los estatutos de Carolina del Norte NCGS §166A-19.24 siguiendo los métodos especificados 
anteriormente. Las reuniones virtuales se pueden seguir en la transmisión en directo por YouTube a través del siguiente 
enlace: https://www.youtube.com/c/townofapexgov.  
 

Mapa de las inmediaciones:  

 
Los propietarios, inquilinos y asociaciones de vecinos en un radio de 300 pies del Ordenamiento Territorial Condicional 
propuesto han recibido esta notificación por correo postal de primera clase. Todas las partes interesadas pueden presentar 
comentarios sobre la solicitud a través de los medios especificados anteriormente. La ubicación de la propiedad también puede 
verse aquí: https://maps.raleighnc.gov/imaps. Puede ver el Mapa de Uso Territorial para 2045 aquí: 
www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/478. Si tiene preguntas o desea obtener más información, puede comunicarse con el 
Departamento de Planificación y Desarrollo Comunitario al 919-249-3426. Puede ver la solicitud y otros documentos 
relacionados aquí: https://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/38187. 

 

Dianne F. Khin, AICP 
Directora de Planificación y Desarrollo Comunitario 

- Page 416 -

https://www.youtube.com/c/townofapexgov
http://www.apexnc.org/
mailto:public.hearing@apexnc.org
https://www.youtube.com/c/townofapexgov
https://maps.raleighnc.gov/imaps
https://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/478/2045-Land-Use-Map-PDF
https://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/38187/22CZ05?bidId=


- Page 417 -



- Page 418 -



- Page 419 -



- Page 420 -



- Page 421 -



- Page 422 -



- Page 423 -



 

www.wcpss.net

Student Assignment
5625 Dillard Drive
Cary, NC, 27518
Email: studentassignment@wcpss.net

tel: (919) 431-7333
fax: (919) 694-7753

April 13, 2022 

Dianne Khin, AICP 
Director, Department of Planning and Community Development 
Town of Apex 
Dianne.Khin@apexnc.org 

Dear Dianne, 

The Wake County Public School System (WCPSS) Office of School Assignment received information 
about a proposed rezoning/development within the Town of Apex planning area. We are providing this 
letter to share information about capacity related to the proposal. The following information 
about the proposed rezoning/development was provided through the Wake County Residential 
Development Notification database: 

Date of application: February 1, 2022 
Name of development: 22CZ05 Morris Tract PUD 
Address of rezoning: 0, 7304, & 7208 Morris Acres Rd 
Total number of proposed residential units: 110 
Type(s) of residential units proposed: 100 Townhomes, 10 Single-family detached 

Based on the information received at the time of application, the Office of School Assignment is 
providing the following assessment of possible impacts to the Wake County Public School System: 

 Schools at all grade levels within the current assignment area for the proposed 
rezoning/development are anticipated to have sufficient capacity for future students. 

 Schools at the following grade levels within the current assignment area for the proposed 
rezoning/development are anticipated to have insufficient capacity for future students; 
transportation to schools outside of the current assignment area should be anticipated: 

 Elementary  Middle  High 

The following mitigation of capacity concerns due to school construction or expansion is anticipated:  

 Not applicable  existing school capacity is anticipated to be sufficient. 

 School expansion or construction within the next five years is not anticipated to address concerns. 

 School expansion or construction within the next five years may address concerns at these grade 
levels:  

 Elementary  Middle  High 

Thank you for sharing this information with the Town of Apex Planning Board and Town Council as they 
consider the proposed rezoning/development. 

Sincerely, 

- Page 424 -



 | Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 for consideration by the Apex Town Council 

 

 Item Type: PUBLIC HEARING 

 Meeting Date: July 26, 2022 

Item Details 

Presenter(s): Lauren Staudenmaier, Planner II 

Department(s): Planning and Community Development 

Requested Motion 

Public Hearing and possible motion to approve Rezoning Application #22CZ06 Yellowbridge PUD. The 

applicant, Matthew Carpenter for Lennar Carolinas, seeks to rezone approximately 48.24 acres from Rural 

Residential (RR) to Planned Unit Development-Conditional Zoning (PUD-CZ). The proposed rezoning is 

located at 2813 & 2817 US 64 Highway West. 

Approval Recommended? 

The Planning and Community Development Department recommends approval. 

 

The Planning Board held a public hearing on July 11, 2022 and by a vote of 4-3 recommended approval of 

the rezoning with the following additional condition offered by the applicant: “6’ opaque privacy fence shall 

be installed by developer along inside of the buffer along southern property line.”  

Item Details 

The properties to be rezoned are identified as PINs 0722743789 & 0722752304. 
 

Attachments 

 Staff Report 
 Vicinity Map 

 Application 
 

 

- Page 425 -



STAFF REPORT 
Rezoning #22CZ06 Yellowbridge PUD  
July 26, 2022 Town Council Meeting 
 

 

Page 1 of 14  Prepared by: Lauren Staudenmaier, Planner II 

All property owners, tenants, and neighborhood associations within 300 feet of this rezoning have been 
notified per UDO Sec. 2.2.11 Public Notification. 
 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 
Location:  2813 & 2817 US 64 Highway West 
Applicant/Agent:  Matthew Carpenter, Parker Poe/ Tucker Ennis, Lennar Carolinas, LLC. ,  
Owner:  Yellowbridge Capital, LLC. 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: 
Acreage:    ±48.24 acres 
PINs:   0722743789 & 0722752304 
Current Zoning:    Rural Residential (RR) 
Proposed Zoning:    Planned Unit Development-Conditional Zoning (PUD-CZ) 
Current 2045 Land Use Map:      Medium Density Residential 
If rezoned as proposed, the 2045 Land Use Map Designation will change to: Medium Density 
Residential and Commercial Services 
Town Limits: ETJ 
 
Adjacent Zoning & Land Uses: 

 Zoning Land Use 

North:  
Wake County Highway District (HD); 

Planned Unit Development-Conditional 
Zoning (PUD-CZ #18CZ31) 

Commercial; US 64 Highway West; Single-
family Residential (Westford subdivision)  

South: 
Planned Unit Development-Conditional 

Use (PUD-CU #04CU15) 
Single-family Residential (Stratford at 

Abbington subdivision) 

East:  
Rural Residential (RR); Medium Density 

Residential (MD) 
Vacant; Single-family Residential 

(Abbington subdivision)  

West: Rural Residential (RR) Vacant  
 

 
EXISTING CONDITIONS: 
The properties are situated on the south side of US 64 Highway West, adjacent to Chanticlair Drive. The 
properties are north of Stratford at Abbington, west of Abbington, and east of Sweetwater subdivisions. 
The property located on 2817 US 64 Highway West is vacant with existing vegetation and a stream that 
bisects the property from west to east; and the property located on 2813 US 64 Highway West contains 
residential structures.  
 
NEIGHBORHOOD MEETING: 
The applicant conducted two neighborhood meetings on February 23, 2022 and June 8, 2022. The 
neighborhood meeting reports are attached. 
 
WCPSS Coordination: 
A Letter of Impact from Wake County Public School System (WCPSS) was received for this rezoning and is 
included in the staff report packet. WCPSS indicates that elementary and high schools within the current 
assignment area for this rezoning/development are anticipated to have insufficient capacity for future 
students; transportation to schools outside of the current assignment area should be anticipated. School 

- Page 426 -



STAFF REPORT 
Rezoning #22CZ06 Yellowbridge PUD  
July 26, 2022 Town Council Meeting 
 

 

Page 2 of 14  Prepared by: Lauren Staudenmaier, Planner II 

expansion or construction within the next five years may address concerns at the elementary and high 
school grade level.  
 
2045 LAND USE MAP: 
The 2045 Land Use Map designates the subject properties as Medium Density Residential. The residential 
portion of the proposed rezoning to Planned Unit Development-Conditional Zoning (PUD-CZ) is consistent 
with that Land Use Map designation. The proposed rezoning also includes commercial uses in an area 
adjacent to US 64 Highway West. If the properties are rezoned as proposed, the 2045 Land Use Map will 
automatically be amended to Medium Density Residential and Commercial Services per NCGS 160D-
605(a).  
 

PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT PLAN: 
The applicant is proposing a Planned Unit Development Plan with uses and development standards as 
follows: 
 

Permitted Uses: 
The development will include office, retail and residential uses. The Rezoned Lands may be used for, and 
only for, the uses listed below. The permitted uses are subject to the limitation and regulations stated in 
the UDO and any additional limitation or regulations stated below. For convenience, some relevant 
sections of the UDO may be referenced; such references do not imply that other sections of the UDO do 
not apply.  
 

Residential Uses 

• Single-family 

• Townhouse 

• Accessory apartment*  

 
 
 
 

*Homeowners Association covenants shall not restrict the construction of accessory dwelling units. 
 

Recreational Uses 

• Park, active 

• Greenway 

• Park, passive 

• Recreation facility, private 

• Utility, minor 

 

Non-Residential  

• Restaurant, general • Grocery, general 

• Restaurant, drive-through • Grocery, specialty 

• Medical or dental office or clinic • Health/fitness center or spa 

• Medical or dental laboratory • Kennel 

• Office, business or professional • Newsstand or gift shop 

• Publishing office • Personal service 

• Artisan Studio • Pharmacy 

• Barber and beauty shop • Printing and copying service 

• Book store • Real estate sales 

• Convenience store • Repair services, limited 

• Dry cleaners and laundry service • Retail sales, general 

• Farmer’s market • Studio for art 

• Financial institution  • Tailor shop 

- Page 427 -



STAFF REPORT 
Rezoning #22CZ06 Yellowbridge PUD  
July 26, 2022 Town Council Meeting 
 

 

Page 3 of 14  Prepared by: Lauren Staudenmaier, Planner II 

• Floral shop • Upholstery shop 

• Gas and fuel, retail • Pet services 

• Greenhouse or nursery, retail • Day care facility 

• Utility, minor • Veterinary clinic or hospital 
 

Proposed Design Controls: 
 

Residential: 
         Proposed Land Area: 44.93 acres 

Maximum Number of units: 160 units 
Maximum Density: 3.6 units per acre   
Maximum Building Height: 45 feet, 3 stories 
Maximum Built-Upon Area: 70% 
Front Loaded Townhouse Minimum Lot Width: 18’ 
Rear Loaded Townhouse Minimum Lot Width: 18’ 
Single-family Minimum Lot Width: 50’*  
Single-family Minimum Lot Size: 6,000 sf 
*Single-family detached homes adjacent to the Property’s southernmost property line adjacent to the 
Abbington neighborhood from the northwestern corner of PIN 0722645333 to the northeastern corner of 
PIN 0722748868 shall have a minimum lot width of 60 feet.  
 

Non-Residential: 
Proposed Land Area: 3.5 acres 
Maximum Building Square Feet: 25,000 sf 
Maximum Building Height: 50’ 
Maximum Built-Upon Area: 70% 

 
Setbacks 

 Proposed Minimum Setbacks 

Front Loaded 
Townhouse  

Front 10’ 

Side 0’ (5’ for end units) 

Rear 5’ 

Corner Side 8’ 

Minimum Building Separation 10’ 

Minimum Buffer/RCA 10’ for buildings; 5’ for parking areas 
   

Rear Loaded  Front 5’ 

Townhouse Side 0’ (5’ for end units) 

 Rear 5’ 

 Corner 8’ 

 Minimum Building Separation 10’ 
   

Single-Family  Front 20’ 

Detached Side 6’ 

 Rear 15’ 

 Corner 8’ 

 Minimum Buffer/RCA  10’ for buildings; 5’ for parking areas 
   

- Page 428 -



STAFF REPORT 
Rezoning #22CZ06 Yellowbridge PUD  
July 26, 2022 Town Council Meeting 
 

 

Page 4 of 14  Prepared by: Lauren Staudenmaier, Planner II 

 Proposed Minimum Setbacks 

Non-Residential Front (US-64) 10’ 

Side 10’ 

Rear 10’ 

Corner Side 10’ 

From Buffer/RCA 10’ for buildings; 5’ for parking areas 

 
Proposed RCA & Buffers 
The proposed Yellowbridge PUD is located west of the Highway 540 Corridor and is required to provide a 
minimum 30% of RCA for the residential district and 25% RCA for the commercial district.   

 
Residential and Non-Residential Buffers: 

Perimeter Buffers: UDO Required Proposed 

Along the Property’s shared 
property line with PIN 0722762014 

20' Type A 30’ Type A 

Along the Property’s US-64 
Highway West frontage east of PIN 
0722762014 

100’ Type A/50’ Type A (UDO 
Section 8.2.6.B.5.f.ii.c) 

50’ Type A* 

Along the Property’s US-64 
Highway West frontage west of PIN 
0722762014 

100’ Type A  100’ Type E 

Along the Property’s westernmost 
boundary 

20’ Type B (Land Use Class 2 or 3); 
10’ Type B (Land Use Class 1) 

20’ Type B 

Along the north and south side of 
Chanticlair Drive west of the Single-
family Detached homes to the 
north of Chanticlair Drive 

10’ Type A (Land Use Class 2 or 3); 
10’ Type D (Alley-loaded homes 

facing a major collector) 

10’ Type D 

Along the north side of Chanticlair 
Drive adjacent to the Single-family 
Detached homes north of 
Chanticlair Drive 

Within residential developments, 
no street front buffer is required 
on minor collectors or residential 

streets 

10’ Type D 

Along the Property’s easternmost 
boundary adjacent to PIN 
0722850629 

10’ Type B (Land Use Class 2 or 3); 
20’ Type A (Land Use Class 4 or 5) 

10’ Type B 

Along the gas easement 20’ Type B 10’ Type A along both sides 
of gas easement (20’ total) 

Along the Property’s southern 
property line from the northwest 
corner of PIN 0722645333 to the 
northeast corner of PIN 
0722741431** 

20’ Type B (Land Use Class 2 or 3) 50’ Type A** with a 
minimum of 6 ft. tall 

opaque privacy fence along 
the north edge of the 

buffer 

Along the Property’s southern 
property line from the northeast 
corner of PIN 0722741431 to the 
northwest corner of PIN 
0722748868*** 

20’ Type B (Land Use Class 2 or 3) 50’ Type A*** with a 
minimum of 6 ft. tall 

opaque privacy fence along 
the north edge of the 

buffer 
 

- Page 429 -



STAFF REPORT 
Rezoning #22CZ06 Yellowbridge PUD  
July 26, 2022 Town Council Meeting 
 

 

Page 5 of 14  Prepared by: Lauren Staudenmaier, Planner II 

* The Development shall meet requirements (i) through (iii) in UDO Section 8.2.6(B)(5)(f)(ii)(c) to reduce the buffer 
width along US-64 Highway West to 50 feet.  
** This portion of the perimeter buffer shall remain undisturbed and supplemented with Type A buffer plantings.   
*** This portion of the perimeter buffer shall be cleared, graded, include a minimum 3-foot berm, and be 
replanted to a Type A buffer standard.  
 
ZONING CONDITIONS 
The following conditions shall also apply: 

1. Homeowners Association covenants shall not restrict the construction of accessory dwelling units.  
2. All heavy duty construction traffic shall enter and exit the site via US-64 Highway West.  Heavy 

duty construction traffic shall not use Chanticlair Drive, Rothwood Way, or Lyndenbury Drive.  “No 
Construction Traffic” signage shall be posted along Chanticlair Drive and Rothwood Way.   

3. All dwelling units shall be pre-configured with conduit for a solar energy system. 
4. The project shall install at least one (1) sign per SCM discouraging the use of fertilizer and to reduce 

pet waste near SCM drainage areas.  The sign(s) shall be installed in locations that are publicly 
accessible, such as adjacent to, but outside of public property and/or public easement(s), amenity 
centers, sidewalks, greenways, or side paths. 

5. The project shall install a minimum of two (2) pet waste stations. 
6. The project shall plant drought resistant warm season grasses throughout the development to 

minimize irrigation and chemical use. 
7. Stormwater control devices shall be designed and constructed so that post development peak 

runoff does not exceed pre-development peak runoff conditions for the 24-hour, 1 year, 10 year, 
and 25 year storm events. 

8. Landscaping shall include at least four (4) native hardwood tree species throughout the 
Development. 

9. No clearing or land disturbance shall be permitted within the riparian buffer, except the minimum 
necessary to install required road and utility infrastructure and SCM outlets.  The SCM water 
storage and treatment shall not be permitted within the riparian buffer.  Sewer infrastructure shall 
be designed to minimize impacts to riparian buffers.  

10. Any outdoor lighting installed in the commercial area and on private amenities, signs, landscaping, 
walls, or fences shall be full cutoff LED fixtures with a maximum color temperature of 3000k. This 
condition shall not apply to lighting on single-family homes, townhouses, accessory buildings, or 
street lighting.  

11. At least 75% of plants shall be native species.  Landscaping will be coordinated with and approved 
by the Planning Department at site or subdivision review.  

12. The Development shall include a minimum of two (2) residential restricted affordable housing 
townhouse or detached single-family median-income ownership units (the “Affordable Units”). The 
Affordable Units shall be constructed on-site and sold (includes unit price and lot price) at a 
mutually agreeable maximum affordable housing median-income ownership initial sales price (the 
“Initial Sales Price”). The Affordable Units shall be occupied by low or median-income households 
earning no more than one-hundred percent (100%) of the Raleigh NC Metropolitan Statistical Area 
(MSA), Area Median Income (AMI), adjusted for family size as most recently published by HUD (the 
“Income Limit"). For purposes of calculating the Initial Sales Price for the Affordable Units, 
affordable shall mean a reasonable down payment and monthly housing costs expected during the 
first calendar year of occupancy, including utilities or utility allowances, mortgage loan principal 
and interest, mortgage insurance, property taxes, homeowner’s insurance, homeowner’s 
association dues, if any, and all other property assessments, dues and fees assessed as a condition 
of property ownership, which does not exceed thirty percent (30%) times (x’s) one-hundred percent 

- Page 430 -



STAFF REPORT 
Rezoning #22CZ06 Yellowbridge PUD  
July 26, 2022 Town Council Meeting 
 

 

Page 6 of 14  Prepared by: Lauren Staudenmaier, Planner II 

(100%) times (x’s) the annual median-income limit (100% AMI Category), based on a family size that 
is equal to the actual number of bedrooms as the Affordable Units, applicable to the Raleigh, NC 
MSA as most recently published by the HUD. A restrictive covenant (i.e. resale deed restriction) 
with a minimum affordability period of fifteen (15) years (the “Affordability Period”) shall be 
recorded in the Wake County Registry against each of the Affordable Units concurrently at the close 
of escrow upon the sale of the Affordable Units. A restrictive covenant (i.e. affordable housing 
agreement) between the Town and applicant shall be recorded in the Wake County Registry against 
each of the lots for the Affordable Units prior to the issuance of a building permit for such lots to 
memorialize the affordable housing terms and conditions of the approved zoning condition. The 
Affordable Units may be townhouses or single-family detached houses, at the discretion of the 
developer, and shall be designated on the Master Subdivision Final Plat, which may be amended 
from time to time. Final Affordable Housing Unit floor plan selection which includes the unit size 
and bedroom size will be at the discretion of the developer. The Affordable Units may be provided 
in multiple phases or in one single phase. Developer will work with the Town to identify qualifying 
buyers for the first sale of the Affordable Units (the “First Sale”).  Following the First Sale of the 
Affordable Units, Developer shall not be responsible for managing the Affordable Units or 
performing marketing, applicant screening, and selection related to future sales of the Affordable 
Units. Town staff will assist with the administrative duties of the Affordable Units during the 
Affordable Period.  
 

Architectural Standards 
The proposed development offers the following architectural controls to ensure a consistency of character 
throughout the development, while allowing for enough variety to create interest and avoid monotony. 
Changes to the exterior materials, roof, windows, doors, process, trim, etc. are allowable with 
administrative approval at the staff level. Further details shall be provided at the time of development plan 
submittal. The following conditions shall apply: 
 
RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT DESIGN GUIDELINES  
 

Single-Family Detached: 
1. Vinyl siding is not permitted; however, vinyl windows, decorative elements and trim are permitted.  
2. The roof shall be pitched at 5:12 or greater for 75% of the building designs. 
3. Eaves shall project at least 12 inches from the wall of the structure. 
4. Garage doors shall have windows, decorative details or carriage-style adornments on them. 
5. The garage shall not protrude more than 1 foot out from the front façade and front porch. 
6. Garages on the front façade of a home that faces the street shall not exceed 30% of the total 

width of the house and garage together. 
7. The visible side of a home on a corner lot facing the public street shall contain at least 3 

decorative elements such as, but not limited to, the following elements:  

• Windows 

• Bay window  

• Recessed window 

• Decorative window 

• Trim around the windows 

• Wrap around porch or side porch 

• Two or more building materials 

• Decorative brick/stone 

• Decorative trim 

• Decorative shake 

• Decorative air vents on gable 

• Decorative gable 

• Decorative cornice 

• Column 

• Portico 

• Balcony 

• Dormer 

- Page 431 -



STAFF REPORT 
Rezoning #22CZ06 Yellowbridge PUD  

July 26, 2022 Town Council Meeting 
 

 

Page 7 of 14  Prepared by: Lauren Staudenmaier, Planner II 

8. A varied color palette shall be utilized on homes throughout the subdivision to include a minimum 
of three color families for siding and shall include varied trim, shutter, and accent colors 
complementing the siding color. 

9. House entrances for units with front-facing single-car garages shall have a prominent covered 
porch/stoop area leading to the front door. 

10. The rear and side elevations of the units that can be seen from the right-of-way shall have trim 
around the windows. 

11. Front porches shall be a minimum of 5 feet deep. 
12. No more than 25% of lots may be accessed with J-driveways. There shall be no more than 3 such 

homes in a row on any single block. Any lots eligible for a J-driveway home shall be identified on 
the Final Plat.  

 
Townhouses (front and alley loaded): 

1. Vinyl siding is not permitted; however, vinyl windows, decorative elements and trim are 
permitted.  

2. The roofline cannot be a single mass; it must be broken up horizontally and vertically between 
every unit. 

3. Garage doors must have windows, decorative details or carriage-style adornments on them. 
4. House entrances for units with front-facing single-car garages shall have a covered porch/stoop 

area leading to the front door.   
5. The garage cannot protrude more than 1 foot out from the front façade or front porch.   
6. The visible side of a townhome on a corner lot facing the public street shall contain at least 3 

decorative elements such as, but not limited to, the following elements:  

• Windows • Decorative shake 

• Bay window  • Decorative air vents on gable 

• Recessed window • Decorative gable 

• Decorative window • Decorative cornice 

• Trim around the windows • Column 

• Wrap around porch or side porch • Portico 

• Two or more building materials • Balcony 

• Decorative brick/stone • Dormer 

• Decorative trim  

7. Building facades shall have horizontal relief achieved by staggering the units. 
8. A varied color palette shall be utilized on homes throughout the subdivision to include a minimum 

of three color families for siding and shall include varied trim, shutter, and accent colors 
complementing the siding color. 

9. The rear and side elevations of the units with right-of-way frontage shall have trim around the 
windows. 
 

COMMERCIAL DISTRICT DESIGN GUIDELINES 
1. Architectural treatments such as varying roof forms, façade articulation, breaks in roof, walls with 

texture materials and ornamental details shall be incorporated to add visual interest.  
2. Large expanses of blank walls greater than 25 feet in length or height shall be broken up with 

windows or other architectural features to reduce visual impacts.  
3. Roof features may include flat roofs with parapet, hip roofs or awnings with metal or canvas 

material. 

- Page 432 -



STAFF REPORT 
Rezoning #22CZ06 Yellowbridge PUD  

July 26, 2022 Town Council Meeting 
 

 

Page 8 of 14  Prepared by: Lauren Staudenmaier, Planner II 

COMMERCIAL DISTRICT MATERIALS 
Non-residential exteriors shall incorporate variation in materials.  The front façade and other facades 
located along a public right-of-way may include:  

1. Brick and/or stone masonry 
2. Decorative concrete block (integral color or textured) 
3. Stone accents 
4. Aluminum storefronts with anodized or pre-finished colors 
5. EIFS cornices, and parapet trim 
6. EIFS or synthetic stucco shall not be used in the first four feet above grade and shall be limited to 

only 25% of each building façade 
7. Precast concrete  
8. Soffit and fascia materials to be considered include EIFS with crown trim elements 
9. Cementitious siding 

 
Rear elevations of non-residential buildings facing opaque landscape buffers or not visible from vehicular 
use areas or public rights-of-way may incorporate decorative concrete masonry, metal coping, or EIFS 
trim.  

NATURAL RESOURCE AND ENVIRONMENTAL DATA 
The Property is within the Beaver Creek Basin, Jordan Lake Watershed, and Primary Watershed Protection 
Overlay District as shown on the Town of Apex Watershed Protection Overlay Map 2019.  The project site 
does not sit within a designated current or future 100-year floodplain as shown on the Town of Apex 
Watershed & FEMA Map dated April 2015. FIRM Panel 3720072200J dated May 2, 2006 does not include 
a floodplain within the property boundary. 
 
PARKING  
Parking for the development shall meet the requirements of UDO Section 8.3. 
 
PUBLIC FACILITIES:  
The proposed PUD shall be designed to comply with the Town’s Sewer and Water Master Plan and 
Standards and Specifications. The development will be served water and sewer by the Town of Apex.  
 
STORMWATER MANAGEMENT: 
The PUD stormwater control devices shall be designed and constructed to exceed UDO standards so that 
the post development peak runoff does not exceed pre-development peak runoff conditions for the 24-
hour, 1 year, 10 year, and 25 year storm events. The development shall meet all stormwater 
management requirements for quality and quantity treatment in accordance with UDO Section 6.1. 
 
APEX TRANSPORTATION PLAN/ACCESS and CIRCULATION:  
The proposed PUD is consistent with the Apex Transportation Plan and Bicycle Pedestrian System Plan.  
 

• All proposed driveway access and improvements on state-maintained roadways are subject to both 
Apex and NCDOT review and approval.  

• A maximum of one (1) access point shall be proposed on US 64, to be constructed as a left-in/right-
in/right-out public street access at the existing median break with a stop-controlled northbound 
approach with one lane of ingress and one lane of egress and an exclusive eastbound right turn lane 
with a minimum 100 feet of storage and appropriate deceleration length and taper on US Hwy 64.  

- Page 433 -



STAFF REPORT 
Rezoning #22CZ06 Yellowbridge PUD  

July 26, 2022 Town Council Meeting 
 

 

Page 9 of 14  Prepared by: Lauren Staudenmaier, Planner II 

Improve the median break and construct physical separation between turn lanes to accommodate 
trucks and prevent both improper left turns and vehicular turning-movement conflicts.  

• Construct an exclusive eastbound U-turn median break on US Hwy 64, approximately halfway 
between the site access at the existing median break and Kellyridge Drive including a U-turn lane with 
a minimum of 100 feet of storage and appropriate deceleration length and taper.  If the eastbound U-
turn lane is removed from the existing median break location to the west, extend the storage to 150 
feet at this location.  

• Consistent with the Transportation Plan Thoroughfare and Collector Street Map, Chanticlair Drive 
shall be extended westward as a Major Collector Street with a minimum 60-foot right-of-way, 
consistent with Town Standards.  

• No residential driveways shall be permitted on existing or future Major Collector Street(s).  

• Rothwood Way shall be extended north and stubbed to the southernmost property line of PIN 
0722850629.  Homes located on Rothwood Way shall take driveway access from Rothwood Way.  

• The extension of Chanticlair Drive shall be constructed concurrently with the project but shall remain 
closed to traffic between Yellowbridge and Abbington subdivisions until such time that the 50th CO is 
approved for Yellowbridge.  The form of closure shall be noted on the subdivision plan and subject to 
Town staff approval.  

• Potential Access Points shown on the Conceptual Site Plan and Conceptual Utility Plan (C100) are 
not shown in exact locations but show required connections. Connections may only be removed 
from the subdivision connectivity requirements of the PUD if the developer shows to the satisfaction 
of the Planning Director, in consultation with the Technical Review Committee (TRC), that the 
construction of the connection would be impractical based on environmental conditions found in 
the field at the time of Master Subdivision Plan approval. 

ENVIRONMENTAL ADVISORY BOARD: 
The Apex Environmental Advisory Board (EAB) held a pre-application meeting for this rezoning on 
February 17, 2022. The zoning conditions suggested by the EAB are listed below along with the 
applicant’s response to each condition. 
 

EAB Suggested Condition Applicant’s Response 

Solar conduit shall be included in building designs. Added 

Pet waste stations shall be installed. Added 

Include landscaping that requires less irrigation and chemical use. 
             o Plant warm season grasses for drought-resistance. 

Added 

Increase the number of native hardwood species planted to 3. Added 

Increase design storm pre- and post-attenuation requirement to include the 
25-year storm. 

Added 

Install solar PV systems to 50 homes with a minimum 4 kilowatts DC power 
rating (approximately 12 panels). 

Not added 

Install signage near environmental sensitive areas in order to: 
            o Reduce pet waste near SCM drainage areas. 
            o Eliminate fertilizer near SCM drainage areas. 

Added 

Increase biodiversity.  
     o Plant pollinator-friendly flora.  
     o Plant native flora (Refer to the Apex Design & Development Manual  
         for approved native species). 

Not added 

- Page 434 -



STAFF REPORT 
Rezoning #22CZ06 Yellowbridge PUD  

July 26, 2022 Town Council Meeting 
 

 

Page 10 of 14  Prepared by: Lauren Staudenmaier, Planner II 

EAB Suggested Condition Applicant’s Response 

Implement green infrastructure. 
            o Provide diverse and abundant pollinator and bird food sources (e.g.  
                nectar, pollen, and berries from blooming plants) that bloom in  
                succession from spring to fall.  
            o Plant warm season grasses to reduce irrigation. 

Added 

Add information signage or other marking at the boundary of lots when they 
are adjacent to a wooded or natural condition resource conservation area 
(RCA) indicating that the area beyond the sign is RCA and is not to be 
disturbed. 

Not added 

Apply for green building certifications, such as LEED, Energy Star, BREEAM, 
Green Globes, NGBS Green, or Green Guard. 

Not added 

Include International Dark Sky Association compliance standards.  
             o Outdoor lighting shall be shielded in a way that focuses lighting to  
                 the ground.  
             o Lighting that minimizes the emission of blue light to reduce glare  
                 shall be used.  
             o Lighting with a color temperature of 3000K or less shall be used for  
                outside installations in non-residential use cases. 

Added 

Add a zoning condition which minimizes tree clearing, installation of an SCM, 
or infrastructure in any zone of the riparian buffer, except as necessary for 
the installation of Town of Apex utilities. 

Added 

Add a zoning condition that indicates that species native to the eastern US 
shall be used to meet the landscaping requirements for Section 8.2 of the 
UDO up to 75-80%. 

Added 

 
PARKS, RECREATION, AND CULTURAL RESOURCES ADVISORY COMMISSION:  
The Parks, Recreation, and Cultural Resources Advisory Commission reviewed the Yellowbridge PUD 
project at their April 27, 2022 meeting. The Commission made a recommendation for a fee-in-lieu of 
dedication for a maximum of 50 single-family detached units and 110 single-family attached units. The 
recommendation is based on the current 2022 fee rate of single-family detached units for $3,753.89 and 
single-family attached units for $2,528.25. The total residential fee in lieu per current unit count is 
$465,802. 
 
PLANNING BOARD RECOMMENDATION:  
The Planning Board held a Public Hearing on July 11, 2022 and by a vote of 4-3 recommended approval 
of the rezoning with the following additional condition offered by the applicant: “6’ opaque privacy fence 
shall be installed by developer along inside of the buffer along southern property line.” The reason for 
the dissenting vote was due to: 

1. No clear community entry and exist design from Us 64. Only existing driveway to be used as 
construction access which may not hold weight of construction trucks and equipment. Using this 
driveway goes over the stream as construction access will affect the environment with all 
construction debris. 

2. Scale and proportion of lot widths and sizes of homes are not gradual. There needs to be a 
transition from Sweetwater community to the west lots are tighter, to Abbington and Stratford 
community wider lots; bigger homes. 

3. Insufficient space in elementary and high schools. 

- Page 435 -



STAFF REPORT 
Rezoning #22CZ06 Yellowbridge PUD  

July 26, 2022 Town Council Meeting 
 

 

Page 11 of 14  Prepared by: Lauren Staudenmaier, Planner II 

4. Chanticlair Road connection may become “beltway” with traffic holdup from construction trucks 
in and out on US 64 Highway. 

One Planning Board member agreed with #1-#3. Another Planning Board member agreed with #1-#4; 
also, the developer should continue to work with neighbors as was done for Morris Tract, but neighbors 
need to come up with a more cohesive ask. 
 
PLANNING STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning staff recommends approval of Rezoning #22CZ06 Yellowbridge PUD as proposed by the 
applicant.  
 
ANALYSIS STATEMENT OF THE REASONABLENESS OF THE PROPOSED REZONING: 
This Statement will address consistency with the Town’s comprehensive and other applicable plans, 
reasonableness, and effect on public interest: 
 

The 2045 Land Use Map designates the subject properties as Medium Density Residential. The 
residential portion of the proposed rezoning to Planned Unit Development-Conditional Zoning (PUD-
CZ) is consistent with that Land Use Map designation. The proposed rezoning also includes a 
commercial uses in an area adjacent to US 64 Highway West. If the properties are rezoned as 
proposed, the 2045 Land Use Map will automatically be amended to Medium Density Residential and 
Commercial Services per NCGS 160D-605(a).  
 

Approval of the proposed rezoning is reasonable and in the public interest because it will provide a 
transition between higher and lower residential densities, while providing commercial development 
along US 64 Highway. The proposed rezoning also provides additional environmental conditions and 
a minimum of two affordable housing units. 

 
PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT AND CONDITIONAL ZONING STANDARDS: 
Standards  
 

In return for greater flexibility in site design requirements, Planned Development (PD) Districts are 
expected to deliver exceptional quality community designs that preserve critical environmental resources; 
provide high quality community amenities; incorporate creative design in the layout of buildings, Resource 
Conservation Area and circulation; ensure compatibility with surrounding land uses and neighborhood 
character; provide high quality architecture; and provide greater efficiency in the layout and provision of 
roads, utilities, and other infrastructure. The Planned Development (PD) Districts shall not be used as a 
means of circumventing the Town’s adopted land development regulations for routine developments.  
 

1. Planned Unit Development (PUD-CZ) District  
In approving a Planned Development (PD) Zoning District designation for a PUD-CZ, the Town 
Council shall find the PUD-CZ district designation and PD Plan for PUD-CZ demonstrates compliance 
with the following standards:  
a) Development parameters  

(i) The uses proposed to be developed in the PD Plan for PUD-CZ are those uses permitted 
in Sec. 4.2.2 Use Table.  

(ii) The uses proposed in the PD Plan for PUD-CZ can be entirely residential, entirely non-
residential, or a mix of residential and non-residential uses, provided a minimum 
percentage of non-residential land area is included in certain mixed use areas as specified 

- Page 436 -



STAFF REPORT 
Rezoning #22CZ06 Yellowbridge PUD  

July 26, 2022 Town Council Meeting 
 

 

Page 12 of 14  Prepared by: Lauren Staudenmaier, Planner II 

on the 2045 Land Use Map. The location of uses proposed by the PUD-CZ must be shown 
in the PD Plan with a maximum density for each type of residential use and a maximum 
square footage for each type of non-residential use.  

(iii) The dimensional standards in Sec. 5.1.3 Table of Intensity and Dimensional Standards, 
Planned Development Districts may be varied in the PD Plan for PUD-CZ. The PUD-CZ shall 
demonstrate compliance with all other dimensional standards of the UDO, North Carolina 
Building Code, and North Carolina Fire Code.  

(iv) The development proposed in the PD Plan for PUD-CZ encourages cluster and compact 
development to the greatest extent possible that is interrelated and linked by pedestrian 
ways, bikeways and other transportation systems. At a minimum, the PD Plan must show 
sidewalk improvements as required by the Apex Transportation Plan and the Town of 
Apex Standard Specifications and Standard Details, and greenway improvements as 
required by the Town of Apex Parks, Recreation, Greenways, and Open Space Plan and 
the Apex Transportation Plan. In addition, sidewalks shall be provided on both sides of all 
streets for single-family detached homes.  

(v) The design of development in the PD Plan for PUD-CZ results in land use patterns that 
promote and expand opportunities for walkability, connectivity, public transportation, 
and an efficient compact network of streets. Cul-de-sacs shall be avoided unless the 
design of the subdivision and the existing or proposed street system in the surrounding 
area indicate that a through street is not essential in the location of the proposed cul-de-
sac, or where sensitive environmental areas such as streams, floodplains, and wetlands 
would be substantially disturbed by making road connections.  

(vi) The development proposed in the PD Plan for PUD-CZ is compatible with the character of 
surrounding land uses and maintains and enhances the value of surrounding properties.  

(vii) The development proposed in the PD Plan for PUD-CZ has architectural and design 
standards that are exceptional and provide higher quality than routine developments. All 
residential uses proposed in a PD Plan for PUD-CZ shall provide architectural elevations 
representative of the residential structures to be built to ensure the Standards of this 
Section are met.  

b) Off-street parking and loading. The PD Plan for PUD-CZ shall demonstrate compliance with the 
standards of Sec. 8.3 Off-Street Parking and Loading, except that variations from these 
standards may be permitted if a comprehensive parking and loading plan for the PUD-CZ is 
submitted as part of the PD Plan that is determined to be suitable for the PUD-CZ, and generally 
consistent with the intent and purpose of the off-street parking and loading standards.  

c) RCA. The PD Plan for PUD-CZ shall demonstrate compliance with Sec. 8.1.2 Resource 
Conservation Area, except that the percentage of RCA required under Sec. 8.1.2 may be reduced 
by the Town Council by no more than 10% provided that the PD Plan for PUD-CZ includes one 
or more of the following:  
(i) A non-residential component;  
(ii) An overall density of 7 residential units per acre or more; or  
(iii) Environmental measures including but not limited to the following:  

a. The installation of a solar photovoltaic (PV) system on a certain number or percentage 
of single-family or townhouse lots or on a certain number or percentage of 
multifamily, mixed-use, or nonresidential buildings. All required solar installation 
shall be completed or under construction prior to 90% of the building permits being 
issued for the approved number of lots or buildings. For single-family or townhouse 

- Page 437 -



STAFF REPORT 
Rezoning #22CZ06 Yellowbridge PUD  

July 26, 2022 Town Council Meeting 
 

 

Page 13 of 14  Prepared by: Lauren Staudenmaier, Planner II 

installations, the lots on which these homes are located shall be identified on the 
Master Subdivision Plat, which may be amended;  

b. The installation of a geothermal system for a certain number or percentage of units 
within the development; or  

c. Energy efficiency standards that exceed minimum Building Code requirements (i.e. 
SEER rating for HVAC). 

d) Landscaping. The PD Plan for PUD-CZ shall demonstrate compliance with the standards of Sec. 
8.2 Landscaping, Buffering and Screening, except that variations from these standards may be 
permitted where it is demonstrated that the proposed landscaping sufficiently buffers uses 
from each other, ensures compatibility with land uses on surrounding properties, creates 
attractive streetscapes and parking areas and is consistent with the character of the area. In no 
case shall a buffer be less than one half of the width required by Sec. 8.2 or 10 feet in width, 
whichever is greater.  

e) Signs. Signage in the PD Plan for PUD-CZ shall demonstrate compliance with Sec. 8.7 Signs, 
except that the standards can be varied if a master signage plan is submitted for review and 
approval concurrent with the PD plan and is determined by the Town Council to be suitable for 
the PUD-CZ and generally consistent with the intent and purpose of the sign standards of the 
UDO. The master signage plan shall have design standards that are exceptional and provide for 
higher quality signs than those in routine developments and shall comply with Sec. 8.7.2 
Prohibited Signs. 

f) Public facilities. The improvements standards and guarantees applicable to the public facilities 
that will serve the site shall comply with Article 7: Subdivision and Article 14: Parks, Recreation, 
Greenways, and Open Space.  
(i) The PD Plan for PUD-CZ demonstrates a safe and adequate on-site transportation 

circulation system. The on-site transportation circulation system shall be integrated with 
the off-site transportation circulation system of the Town. The PD Plan for PUD-CZ shall 
be consistent with the Apex Transportation Plan and the Town of Apex Standard 
Specifications and Standard Details and show required right-of-way widths and road 
sections. A Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA) shall be required per Sec. 13.19.  

(ii) The PD Plan for PUD-CZ demonstrates a safe and adequate on-site system of potable 
water and wastewater lines that can accommodate the proposed development, and are 
efficiently integrated into off-site potable water and wastewater public improvement 
plans. The PD Plan shall include a proposed water and wastewater plan.  

(iii) Adequate off-site facilities for potable water supply, sewage disposal, solid waste 
disposal, electrical supply, fire protection and roads shall be planned and programmed 
for the development proposed in the PD Plan for PUD-CZ, and the development is 
conveniently located in relation to schools and police protection services.  

(iv) The PD Plan shall demonstrate compliance with the parks and recreation requirements of 
Sec. Article 14: Parks, Recreation, Greenways, and Open Space and Sec. 7.3.1 Privately-
owned Play Lawns if there is a residential component in the PUD-CZ.  

g) Natural resource and environmental protection. The PD Plan for PUD-CZ demonstrates 
compliance with the current regulatory standards of this Ordinance related to natural resource 
and environmental protection in Sec. 6.1 Watershed Protection Overlay District, Sec. 6.2 Flood 
Damage Prevention Overlay District, and Sec. 8.1 Resource Conservation.  

h) Storm water management. The PD Plan shall demonstrate that the post-development rate of 
on-site storm water discharge from the entire site shall not exceed pre-development levels in 
accordance with Sec. 6.1.7 of the UDO.  

- Page 438 -



STAFF REPORT 
Rezoning #22CZ06 Yellowbridge PUD  

July 26, 2022 Town Council Meeting 
 

 

Page 14 of 14  Prepared by: Lauren Staudenmaier, Planner II 

i) Phasing. The PD Plan for PUD-CZ shall include a phasing plan for the development. If 
development of the PUD-CZ is proposed to occur in more than one phase, then guarantees shall 
be provided that project improvements and amenities that are necessary and desirable for 
residents of the project, or that are of benefit to the Town, are constructed with the first phase 
of the project, or, if this is not possible, then as early in the project as is technically feasible.  

j) Consistency with 2045 Land Use Map. The PD Plan for PUD-CZ demonstrates consistency with 
the goals and policies established in the Town’s 2045 Land Use.  

k) Complies with the UDO. The PD Plan for PUD-CZ demonstrates compliance with all other 
relevant portions of the UDO. 

CONDITIONAL ZONING STANDARDS: 
The Town Council shall find the PUD-CZ designation demonstrates compliance with the following standards. 
2.3.3.F: 
 

Legislative Considerations 
The applicant shall propose site-specific standards and conditions that take into account the following 
considerations, which are considerations that are relevant to the legislative determination of whether or 
not the proposed conditional zoning district rezoning request is in the public interest. These 
considerations do not exclude the legislative consideration of any other factor that is relevant to the public 
interest.             

1) Consistency with 2045 Land Use Map. The proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use’s 
appropriateness for its proposed location and consistency with the purposes, goals, objectives, and 
policies of the 2045 Land Use Map.  

2) Compatibility. The proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use’s appropriateness for its proposed 
location and compatibility with the character of surrounding land uses.  

3) Zoning district supplemental standards. The proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use’s 
compliance with Sec 4.4 Supplemental Standards, if applicable.  

4) Design minimizes adverse impact. The design of the proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use’s 
minimization of adverse effects, including visual impact of the proposed use on adjacent lands; and 
avoidance of significant adverse impacts on surrounding lands regarding trash, traffic, service 
delivery, parking and loading, odors, noise, glare, and vibration and not create a nuisance. 

5) Design minimizes environmental impact. The proposed Conditional Zoning District use’s 
minimization of environmental impacts and protection from significant deterioration of water and 
air resources, wildlife habitat, scenic resources, and other natural resources. 

6) Impact on public facilities. The proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use’s avoidance of having 
adverse impacts on public facilities and services, including roads, potable water and wastewater 
facilities, parks, schools, police, fire and EMS facilities. 

7) Health, safety, and welfare. The proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use’s effect on the health, 
safety, or welfare of the residents of the Town or its ETJ. 

8) Detrimental to adjacent properties. Whether the proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use is 
substantially detrimental to adjacent properties. 

9) Not constitute nuisance or hazard. Whether the proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use 
constitutes a nuisance or hazard due to traffic impact or noise, or because of the number of persons 
who will be using the Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use. 

10) Other relevant standards of this Ordinance. Whether the proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District 
use complies with all standards imposed on it by all other applicable provisions of this Ordinance 
for use, layout, and general development characteristics. 

- Page 439 -



- Page 440 -



- Page 441 -



- Page 442 -



- Page 443 -



- Page 444 -



- Page 445 -



- Page 446 -



- Page 447 -



- Page 448 -



- Page 449 -



- Page 450 -



- Page 451 -



- Page 452 -



 

PPAB 6871438v1 

February 7, 2022 

 

Re: Notice of Virtual Neighborhood Meeting 

              

Neighboring Property Owners:  

 

 You are invited to attend a neighborhood meeting on February 23, 2022 from 6–8pm. 

The purpose of the meeting is to discuss an upcoming application to rezone two parcels of land 

located at 2813 US 64 Hwy W (PIN 0722743789) and 2817 US 64 Hwy W (PIN 0722752304) 

(collectively, the “Property”).  The Property is currently zoned Rural Residential (RR), and is 

proposed to be rezoned to Planned Unit Development-Conditional Zoning (PUD-CZ). 

 

 The applicant is proposing a rezoning to Planned Unit Development Conditional Zoning 

(PUD-CZ) for the development of single-family detached homes and townhomes. During the 

meeting, the applicant will describe the nature of this rezoning request and field any questions 

from the public. Enclosed are: (1) a vicinity map outlining the location of the subject parcel; (2) a 

zoning map of the subject area; (3) a preliminary concept plan of the Planned Unit Development; 

(4) a project contact information sheet; and (5) a common construction issues & who to call 

information sheet.  

 

The meeting will be held virtually. You can participate online via Zoom or by telephone. 

To participate in the Zoom online meeting:  

 

Visit:       https://zoom.us./join 

Enter the following meeting ID:  889 8258 3077 

Enter the following password:  057493 

 

To participate by telephone:  

 

 Dial:       1 929 205 6099 

Enter the following meeting ID:  889 8258 3077 # 

Enter the Participant ID:   # 

Enter the Meeting password:   057493 # 

 

 

If you have any questions about this rezoning, please contact me at (919) 835-4032 or via 

email at matthewcarpenter@parkerpoe.com.   

 

Thank you, 

 

Matthew Carpenter 

- Page 453 -

mailto:matthewcarpenter@parkerpoe.com


- Page 454 -



- Page 455 -



- Page 456 -



- Page 457 -



- Page 458 -



- Page 459 -



- Page 460 -



NOTICE OF ELECTRONIC NEIGHBORHOOD MEETING
 

or disclosed to third parties. 

Page 3 of 9 Instruction Packet & Affidavit of Electronic Neighborhood Meetings Last Updated: March 25, 2020  

 
Date 

Dear Neighbor: 
You are invited to an electronic neighborhood meeting to review and discuss the development proposal at  

   
Address(es)  PIN(s) 

in accordance with the Town of Apex Electronic Neighborhood Meeting procedures. This meeting is intended 
to be a way for the applicant to discuss the project and review the proposed plans with adjacent neighbors 
and neighborhood organizations before the submittal of an application to the Town. This provides neighbors 
an opportunity to raise questions and discuss any concerns about the impacts of the project before it is 
officially submitted. If you are unable to attend, you may contact the applicant before or after the meeting is 
held. Once an application has been submitted to the Town, it may be tracked using the Interactive 
Development Map or the Apex Development Report located on the Town of Apex website at 
www.apexnc.org. If at all feasible given emergency declarations, limits on in-person gatherings, and social 
distancing, an additional in-person Neighborhood Meeting may be scheduled and held prior to a public 
hearing or staff decision on the application. 

 

An Electronic Neighborhood Meeting is required because this project includes (check all that apply): 
Application Type Approving Authority 

 Rezoning (including Planned Unit Development) Town Council 
 Major Site Plan Town Council (QJPH*) 
 Special Use Permit Town Council (QJPH*) 
 Residential Master Subdivision Plan (excludes exempt subdivisions) Technical Review 

Committee (staff) 
*Quasi-Judicial Public Hearing: The Town Council cannot discuss the project prior to the public hearing. 

The following is a description of the proposal (also see attached map(s) and/or plan sheet(s)):  
 
 
 

Estimated submittal date:  

MEETING INFORMATION:  
Property Owner(s) name(s):  

Applicant(s):    

Contact information (email/phone):     

Electronic Meeting invitation/call in 
info:    

Date of meeting**:    

Time of meeting**:    

MEETING AGENDA TIMES: 
Welcome:  _____________    Project Presentation:  _____________    Question & Answer:  _____________ 

**Meetings shall occur between 5:00 p.m.-9:00 p.m. on a Monday through Thursday (excluding Town recognized 
holidays). If you have questions about the general process for this application, please contact the Planning Department 
at 919-249-3426. You may also find information about the Apex Planning Department and on-going planning efforts at 
http://www.apexnc.org/180/Planning. 

- Page 461 -



 

PPAB 7512486v1 

May 25, 2022 
 
Re: Notice of Second Virtual Neighborhood Meeting 
              
Neighboring Property Owners:  
 
You are invited to attend a second neighborhood meeting on June 8, 2022 from 6 8pm to discuss 
the rezoning of two parcels of land located at 2813 US 64 Hwy W (PIN 0722743789) and 2817 
US 64 Hwy W (PIN 0722752304) (collectively,  The Property is currently zoned 
Rural Residential (RR), and is proposed to be rezoned to Planned Unit Development-Conditional 
Zoning (PUD-CZ).  The requested rezoning is to facilitate the development of a mixed-use 
project featuring single-family detached homes, townhomes, and commercial uses fronting US-
64.  
 
You may have attended the first neighborhood meeting for this case on February 23.  Since the 
first meeting, we have filed the rezoning application and have made several changes to the plans.  
During the June 8 meeting, we will describe the nature of the rezoning request, provide updates 
since the first neighborhood meeting, and answer any questions.  Enclosed are: (1) a vicinity map 
outlining the location of the subject parcel; (2) a zoning map of the subject area; (3) a revised 
preliminary concept plan of the Planned Unit Development; (4) a project contact information 
sheet; and (5) a common construction issues & who to call information sheet.  
 
The meeting will be held virtually. You can participate online via Zoom or by telephone. To 
participate in the Zoom online meeting:  
 

Visit:       https://zoom.us./join 
Enter the following meeting ID:  891 3054 5916 
Enter the following password:  810545 

 
To participate by telephone:  
 
 Dial:       1 929 205 6099 

Enter the following meeting ID:  891 3054 5916 # 
Enter the Participant ID:   # 
Enter the Meeting password:   810545 # 
 

 
If you have any questions about this rezoning, please contact me at (919) 835-4032 or via email 
at matthewcarpenter@parkerpoe.com.   
 

Thank you, 
 

Matthew Carpenter 

- Page 462 -



- Page 463 -



- Page 464 -



- Page 465 -



PROJECT CONTACT INFORMATION
 

or disclosed to third parties. 

Page 4 of 9 Instruction Packet & Affidavit of Electronic Neighborhood Meetings Last Updated: March 25, 2020  

Development Contacts:  

Project Name:  Zoning:  

Location:  

Property PIN(s):  Acreage/Square Feet:  
 

Property Owner:  

Address:  

City:  State:  Zip:  

Phone:  Email:  

Developer:  

Address:  

City:  State:  Zip:  

Phone:  Fax:  Email:  

Engineer:  

Address:  

City:  State:  Zip:  

Phone:  Fax:  Email:  

Builder (if known):  

Address:  

City:  State:  Zip:  

Phone:  Fax:  Email:  

Please note that Town staff will not have complete information about a proposed development until the 
application is submitted for review. If you have a question about Town development standards and how 
they relate to the proposed development, please contact the appropriate staff person listed below. 

Town of Apex Department Contacts 
Planning Department Main Number 

(Provide development name or location to be routed to correct planner) 
 
(919) 249-3426 

Parks, Recreation & Cultural Resources Department 
Angela Reincke, Parks Planner  

 
(919) 249-7468 

Public Works - Transportation 
Russell Dalton, Senior Transportation Engineer 

 
(919) 249-3358 

Water Resources Department  
Jessica Bolin, Senior Engineer (Stormwater, Sedimentation & Erosion Control) 
Stan Fortier, Senior Engineer (Stormwater, Sedimentation & Erosion Control) 
James Gregg, Utility Engineer (Water & Sewer) 

 
(919) 249-3537 
(919) 249-1166 
(919) 249-3324 

Electric Utilities Division 
Rodney Smith, Electric Technical Services Manager 

 
(919) 249-3342 

- Page 466 -



EL
EC

TR
O

N
IC

 N
EI

G
H

BO
RH

O
O

D
 M

EE
TI

N
G

AT
TE

N
D

AN
CE

 S
H

EE
T

Th
is 

do
cu

m
en

t i
s a

 p
ub

lic
 

Pa
ge

 7
 o

f 9
 

In
st

ru
ct

io
n 

Pa
ck

et
 &

 A
ffi

da
vi

t o
f E

le
ct

ro
ni

c 
N

ei
gh

bo
rh

oo
d 

M
ee

tin
gs

 
La

st
 U

pd
at

ed
: M

ar
ch

 2
5,

 2
02

0 
 

 M
ee

tin
g 

Fo
rm

at
:  

 _
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

 

D
at

e 
of

 m
ee

tin
g:

  _
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
_ 

Ti
m

e 
of

 m
ee

tin
g:

  _
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
_ 

Pr
op

er
ty

 O
w

ne
r(

s)
 n

am
e(

s)
:  

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

_ 
Ap

pl
ic

an
t(

s)
:  

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
_ 

 Pl
ea

se
 li

st
 E

le
ct

ro
ni

c 
N

ei
gh

bo
rh

oo
d 

M
ee

tin
g 

At
te

nd
ee

s 
w

ho
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

th
ei

r n
am

e 
an

d/
or

 c
on

ta
ct

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

ei
th

er
 d

ur
in

g 
th

e 
m

ee
tin

g 
or

 v
ia

 p
ho

ne
/e

m
ai

l 
be

fo
re

 o
r a

ft
er

 th
e 

m
ee

tin
g.

 
 

 
N

AM
E/

O
RG

AN
IZ

AT
IO

N
 

AD
D

RE
SS

 
PH

O
N

E 
# 

EM
AI

L 
SE

N
D

 P
LA

N
S 

&
 U

PD
A

TE
S 

1.
 

 
 

 
 

 

2.
 

 
 

 
 

 

3.
 

 
 

 
 

 

4.
 

 
 

 
 

 

5.
 

 
 

 
 

 

6.
 

 
 

 
 

 

7.
 

 
 

 
 

 

8.
 

 
 

 
 

 

9.
 

 
 

 
 

 

10
. 

 
 

 
 

 

11
. 

 
 

 
 

 

12
. 

 
 

 
 

 

13
. 

 
 

 
 

 

14
. 

 
 

 
 

 

U
se

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 s

he
et

s,
 if

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
. 

- Page 467 -



Yellowbridge PUD
Neighborhood Meeting Sign-In Sheet

June 8, 2022

David Risk
Gerald Hornick
Bill Zerman
Kathy Coutros
Jen Curtis-Maury
Thomas Ainsley
Jay Vora
Steve Ritchie
Ed Knight
Alex Richbourg
Kari Hughes
Brant Gifford
Chip Allen
Jonathan Lamb
Polly Petrino
Cheryl Russell
Tommy Russell
Jim Logsdon
Brett Fleshman
Suzanne Bailey
Kari Hughes
M Bond
Rebecca Waite
Kate Macdonell
Scott Patrick
Paige Polito
Julie Robertson
Janarthan Kirupananthan
Penny Grieci
Sharon Hershkowitz
Joe Logan
Emily Dilday
Conne Bridenbaugh
Mary Kay Fast
Chris Sawyer
Conor Brockett
Heather Galeotti
Jonathan Polito
Veronika Schmidtke

*Contact information was received but has been redacted for filing

- Page 468 -



Page 8 of 9 Instruction Packet & Affidavit of Electronic Neighborhood Meetings Last Updated: March 25, 2020  

SUMMARY OF DISCUSSION FROM THE ELECTRONIC 
NEIGHBORHOOD MEETING 
This document is 
or disclosed to third parties. 

Property Owner(s) name(s): _____________________________________________________
Applicant(s):  ______________________________________________________________
Contact information (email/phone):   _______________________________________________
Meeting Format:  ____________________________________________________________
Date of meeting:  __________________________ Time of meeting:  ______________________

Please summarize the questions/comments and your response from the Electronic Neighborhood Meeting in the 
spaces below (attach additional sheets, if necessary). Please state if/how the project has been modified in response 
to any concerns. 

 

Question/Concern #1: 

 Response: 

Question/Concern #2: 

 Response: 

Question/Concern #3: 

 Response: 

Question/Concern #4: 

 Response: 

- Page 469 -



- Page 470 -



- Page 471 -



YELLOWBRIDGE NEIGHBORHOOD MEETING 
June 8, 2022 

Chat Box Questions/Comments 
 

Contact information: Jeff Roach with Peak Engineering & Design (jroach@peakengineering.com) 

From Penny Grieci to Everyone 06:13 PM 

Do you have a drawing with the specific types of homes? 

From polly petrino to Everyone 06:15 PM 

when will you begin draining the ponds? can you notify us a few days in advance? 

From Jay Vora to Everyone 06:15 PM 

Do the red stars still represent "play areas" or open spaces? 

From Chip Allen to Everyone 06:15 PM 

What is the percentage of homes per usage acreage as much of the land is not buildable resulting in large 
number of homes in small space? 

From Jen Curtis-Maury to Everyone 06:15 PM 

Any what precautions do you take to prevent our adjacent lots from flooding during the draining and then 
potential natural refilling? 

From Jim Logsdon to Everyone 06:15 PM 

What s the game plan for the 4 homes on Chanticlair now 

From Scott Fast to Everyone 06:16 PM 

Now it appears the location closest to US 64 is now proposed as commercial - probably a good idea - but 
will you limit the TYPE of business (gas station yes/no, 24 hour stop & rob, medical only, etc.)? 

From Brant Gifford to Everyone 06:16 PM 

Does Lennar plan to develop the Commercial property themselves, or partner? Do you have example of 
Commercial development? 

From polly petrino to Everyone 06:16 PM 

how long will road construction take; what is that timeframe likely to be? 

From David Risk to Everyone 06:16 PM 

Matthew we saw a plan that takes out single family homes and replaces with townhomes behind the 4 
homes closest to our neighborhood.  Why that possible change?  the orangish area on the east of the 
street to 64 

From Thomas Ainsley to Everyone 06:16 PM 

- Page 472 -



Can you please go into additional detail about the location, and quantity, and percentage of the overall 
project, of proposed townhomes within the development, understanding that your plans may not be 
final? 

From Cheryl & Tommy Russell to Everyone 06:17 PM 

the area in yellow off chanticlair, I'm assuming it's the 4 homes in plan.  Please consider removing those 
as they don't fit and appear to be part of abbingtion.  I know we've asked for them to be removed - any 
updates on those? 

From Julie Robertson to Everyone 06:17 PM 

Is there anything that can be done for the wildlife that life in the pond to relocate them to a new location? 

From Chip Allen to Everyone 06:19 PM 

Where will the pond water go? Will it be sucked up into and in your experience are snakes going into 
impacted adjacent land like our homes and pools an issue? 

From PPAB Land Use to Everyone 06:20 PM 

All meeting participants please enter your name, physical address, email address, and phone numbers in 
the chat. 

From Jim Logsdon to Everyone 06:20 PM 

If you turn the houses sideways will the 2 that back to the pipeline assume the pipeline for their 
backyards? 

From Julie Robertson to Everyone 06:20 PM 

Will the ponds be left open for a period of time to know if it is wetlands or not?  How long is that period? 

From Cheryl & Tommy Russell to Everyone 06:20 PM 

to clarify our concern The concern about the 4 homes is not about the way the face, it was about having 
those 4 homes there.   They appear to be in abbington. 

From Jim Logsdon to Everyone 06:21 PM 

And if that's the case I won't get any 50 ft buffer, their backyard will touch my fence 

From Julie Robertson to Everyone 06:21 PM 

Julie Robertson  

2611 Bryant Pond Lane 

Julia.h.robertson@gmail.com 

614-668-2540 

From polly petrino to Everyone 06:22 PM 

12 months of our houses shaking from road construction 

- Page 473 -



From Brant Gifford to Everyone 06:22 PM 

custom builder for the 4 houses to better align to homes in Abbington? 

From Cheryl & Tommy Russell to Everyone 06:23 PM 

Cheryl and Tommy Russell 323 Chanticlair Drive, tomcher9@gmail.com, czrussell66@gmail.com 919-523-
9221, 919-270-3303 

From Scott Fast to Everyone 06:23 PM 

ASK - Please, for the commercial, please consider professional / light 'commercial' use, not a gas station, 
not another bar / outdoor seating restaurant, there is just no need for that in Apex nor behind our 
community. 

From Chip Allen to Everyone 06:23 PM 

Eleni & Chip Allen, 2617 Bryant Pond Lane. chipandeleni22@gmail.com 919-656-1260 and 919-247-8757 

From Julie Robertson to Everyone 06:23 PM 

Is there anything we can do to limit the construction on the weekends and have certain hours during the 
week so that we can still enjoy our yards? 

From polly petrino to Everyone 06:24 PM 

Polly & Ray Petrino, 2623 Bryant Pond Ln, ppetrino40@gmail.com, 201-344-4866 

From Chip Allen to Everyone 06:24 PM 

Will your neighborhood have a fence that runs along the Abbington side? 

From Penny Grieci to Everyone 06:24 PM 

If you are going to put townhomes to the east of the street then can you move the park area to next to 
the 4 homes on Chanticlair? 

From Janarthan Kirupananthan to Everyone 06:24 PM 

Janarthan Kirupananthan 2537 Bryant Pond Ln jkirupananthan@gmail.com 917.769.7592 

From Jay Vora to Everyone 06:24 PM 

Jay Vora - 1100 Rothwood Way; jayvora87@gmail.com; 636-443-3230 

From Emily Dilday to Everyone 06:24 PM 

Mark and Emily Dilday 1167 Rothwood Way, edilday@nc.rr.com, 919-303-6388 

From Scott Fast to Everyone 06:25 PM 

Inquiry - Have you approached purchasing the land that is directly NORTH of the YELLOW single family 
homes nearest Abbington?  the land with the pond DUE EAST of the three ponds you show in BLUE.  Is 
Lennar interested in buying that land and developing??? 

- Page 474 -



Scott Fast, 100 Timberlea Court, Apex, NC 27502, 919-924-8687 

From Mary Kay Fast to Everyone 06:25 PM 

Mary Kay Fast, 100 Timberlea Court, Apex, NC 27502, 919-924-7989 

From Scott Patrick to Everyone 06:26 PM 

Scott Patrick 202 Lyndenbury Drive 

From Jen Curtis-Maury to Everyone 06:28 PM 

what about the snakes part of Chips question.  He asked about your experience with snakes invading our 
backyards after ponds are drained I think. 

From Kate Macdonell to Everyone 06:28 PM 

Can you talk about the buffer between the 4 houses and Chanticlair Drive? 

From Janarthan Kirupananthan to Everyone 06:28 PM 

Can the proposed location of the 4 homes be turned into another open/play space since Lennar has 
rejected removal of the houses. 

From Jonathan Lamb to Everyone 06:28 PM 

I agree with removing the 4 houses at the intersection of Rothwood and Chanticlair.  I did not understand 
the reason given to keep those as part of the plan.  Eric Lamb 404 Chanticlair Dr.  919-880-7169. 

From Rebecca Waite to Everyone 06:28 PM 

Agree with the concerns regarding the wildlife being displaced as well as the four homes along Chanticlair 
Dr. Having them turned will still look awkward, but having them there makes them look like they are in 
Abbington. 
Rebecca Waite 
Duncroft Ct. rebecca.a.waite@gmail.com 

From Chip Allen to Everyone 06:30 PM 

Please define the growing season as that was not answered and is very important for us to know. How 
does Lennar define this for your planning purposes for this project? 

From Scott Fast to Everyone 06:31 PM 

Thank you. 

From Emily Dilday to Everyone 06:32 PM 

We also agree with the concerns that the 4 homes on Chanticlair/Rothwood, regardless of which way they 
are facing, will look out of place. 

From Scott Patrick to Everyone 06:32 PM 

LeNelle & Scott Patrick, 202 Lyndenbury Dr. Apex, NC 27502 (919) 593-3361 (919) 593-3378 

- Page 475 -



From Steve Ritchie to Everyone 06:32 PM 

Steve & Christa Ritchie     1101 Rothwood Way   steve.ritchie1165@gmail.com   919 523 4061 

From Chip Allen to Everyone 06:33 PM 

Why will Lennar not widen the lots adjacent to Abbington? 

From Suzanne Bailey to Everyone 06:33 PM 

Suzanne & Jim Bailey 2605 Bryant Pond Lane sbailey5@nc.rr.com 

From Steve Ritchie to Everyone 06:34 PM 

After the extension of Rothwood Way, what will be the size of those 4 lots relative to the other Abbington 
homes on Rothwood Way? 

From Paige Polito to Everyone 06:34 PM 

On Goliath Ln the builder Exeter took just several lots to build on; most of the lots on that street were 
developed by Loyd Builders. It seems that a custom builder may consider building just a few homes on a 
street so this may be something Lennar could at least consider for Chanticlair. 

From Jen Curtis-Maury to Everyone 06:34 PM 

Jen Curtis-Maury 2666 Timken Forest Drive. I would like to officially request on the record again to remove 
the 4 Chanticlair homes and to further widen the lots adjacent to Abbington (beyond 60 ft., our lots are 
about 90 ft.).  Also, I would like to be updated on any plan changes. 

From Kari Hughes to Everyone 06:35 PM 

Rob and Kari Hughes, 101 Duncroft Court, Apex, NC 27502, 919-924-2727,  karihughes77@gmail.com 

From Kate Macdonell to Everyone 06:35 PM 

Abbington lots are about 90 feet wide. Your plan shows the south lots as 60 feet wide. Can you please 
widen those single family detached lots? 

From Scott Patrick to Everyone 06:36 PM 

LeNelle & Scott Patrick, 202 Lyndenbury Dr. Apex, NC 27502 (919) 593-3361 (919) 593-3378. 
spatrick3@hotmail.com, LeNelle.patrick@gmail.com 

From Cheryl & Tommy Russell to Everyone 06:40 PM 

Are there any proposed play / open areas in your plan?   If so - can you consider putting the 4 homes there 
and make the 4 home proposal a play area.  It would blend the two neighborhoods together vs. 4 homes 
in that area. 

From Jim Logsdon to Everyone 06:40 PM 

How large will those 4 lots be off Chanticlair now that you're turning them sideways and you have to 
extend Rothwood way and they will have a 20ft plus 50 ft pipeline easement 

- Page 476 -



From Chip Allen to Everyone 06:41 PM 

Chip and Eleni Allen 2617 Bryant Pond Ln. We are officially requesting on the record again to remove the 
4 Chanticlair homes and to further widen the lots adjacent to Abbington (beyond 60 ft., our lots are about 
90 ft.). We also express extreme concern about the ponds being drained as it will result in land erosion 
and wildlife destruction. The density of your proposed neighborhood is outrageous for the amount of 
usable land. The homes are not comparable to those in Abbington. Please ensure the commercial space 
is conducive to its residential location with no bars or late night openings and no large delivery trucks that 
will make loud noises. Also Chanticlair must be finished to meet up with Sweetwater. Very concerned 
about traffic going to schools and shops running on Bryant Pond. Please update us on all plan changes. 

From Julie Robertson to Everyone 06:41 PM 

I would like to go on record and voice my concerns about the 4 Chanticlair homes and I think they still 
need to be removed and that space used as green space.  And I would like wider lots for those houses that 
are backing up to Abbington.  I have concerns about the number of townhomes that are being added as 
part of the plan.  I feel like we are not able to negotiate because of the price of land being purchased is so 
high and the buildable land is so poor.  You have 80 ft lot plans why can we not go up to that lot size to 
help match the Abbington homes.  I am also concerned about what these smaller lots and homes that will 
now back up to my home, the draining and clear cutting of the land behind my house will cause my home 
values to go down. 

From Kate Macdonell to Everyone 06:42 PM 

Since this is being recorded and submitted, I want to go on record saying I agree with removing the 4 
houses on Chanticlair and widening the southern lots. 

From Jen Curtis-Maury to Everyone 06:42 PM 

The lots were 60 feet on your first submission.  Less housing units means fewer neighbors bordering each 
yard.  That is the exact point of widening the lots and is what we are asking for. 

From Paige Polito to Everyone 06:44 PM 

I am going on record concurring with other residents to agree with removing the 4 houses on Chanticlair 
and widening the southern lots. 

From Chip Allen to Everyone 06:44 PM 

 

From Jen Curtis-Maury to Everyone 06:45 PM 

Please read Cheryl 

From Kate Macdonell to Everyone 06:45 PM 

Can you explain what a type E buffer looks like? Landscape easement 

From Jay Vora to Everyone 06:45 PM 

- Page 477 -



 As the homeowner right on the corner of Rothwood and Chanticlair, the 4 houses on chanticlair will 
probably impact my home more than most. I might be the only one in the neighborhood, but I think the 
turned lots will actually blend in well with Abbington and is a good decision. Even though they technically 
aren't in our neighborhood, I think continuity matters to the look and feel of our neighborhood. 

From Cheryl & Tommy Russell to Everyone 06:46 PM 

We would like to go on record and request the 4 homes are removed from Chanticlair Abbington 
connection and widening the lots directly behind Abbington. 

From Scott Fast to Everyone 06:46 PM 

On the Apex town interactive development map, the filing for Yellowbridge on 03/31 was noted as "non-
residential" - is that the 'proposed use' or 'the current status' ???? 

From Suzanne Bailey to Everyone 06:46 PM 

I would like to officially request on the record to remove the 4 Chanticlair homes and to further widen the 
lots adjacent to Abbington (beyond 60 ft., our lots are about 90 ft.). 

From Janarthan Kirupananthan to Everyone 06:47 PM 

Is there a dust mitigation plan during the many months of construction? 

From Scott Fast to Everyone 06:48 PM 

Okay, thank you. 

From Kate Macdonell to Everyone 06:50 PM 

The additional 5 ft landscape easement is within private property lines, right? So it's 10 feet, you can not 
count the 5 feet on someone's property. Just want to clarify that. 

From Chip Allen to Everyone 06:51 PM 

Because the ponds are being drained in June ish the spring growing season will be omitted. How is this 
being factored in? Decision by the army corps needs to take this into account. 

From Bill Zerman to Everyone 06:52 PM 

Can you describe what the traffic flow pattern  from yellowbridg to 64  

From Kate Macdonell to Everyone 06:52 PM 

Can you tell us how you summarize this meeting for the Town Council? Do they see this chat or do you 
write it up for them? 

From Julie Robertson to Everyone 06:53 PM 

How will we receive further updates? 

From Chip Allen to Everyone 06:53 PM 

Please repeat the timelines are that was reviewed very quickly 

- Page 478 -



From Jen Curtis-Maury to Everyone 06:54 PM 

 

From Cheryl & Tommy Russell to Everyone 06:54 PM 

We have a difficult time leaving our neighborhood onto 64 now - what have the traffic studies shown? 

From polly petrino to Everyone 06:55 PM 

I agree with Julie Robertson's comments above,  The density will cause home values to decline from their 
current status.  Quality of life during construction is also being glossed over here.  There will be significant 
noise pollution and we have already had to contend with Sweetwater for several years.  In addition, this 
is just adding to our general infrastructure issues, particularly our enrollment capped schools in this area.  
There needs to be more proactive collaboration from builders on this point. 

From Chip Allen to Everyone 06:55 PM 

Please submit entire chat as the official transcript as we were not able to ask verbal questions 

From Penny Grieci to Everyone 06:56 PM 

Will you provide us with a copy of your notes that you submit to the town? 

From Scott Fast to Everyone 07:00 PM 

Can you share documented commentary or guidelines or mandates from the town of Apex, county of 
Wake, or state of NC about your submittals?  Written communications, as to land use, density, US 64 
access, changes and charges Lennar will incur for ANY changes to town roads (access, signage), county 
roads or state highway access?  I would appreciate to read what they may be communicating, if open to 
the public...?? 

https://experience.arcgis.com/experience/41bf89a7c97d43a2934b0e823c8bfa45 

https://www.apexnc.org/Search?searchPhrase=interactive 

easier link... :) 

The proposed 'unit' or dwelling capacity is what now?  How many Detached, how many attached, I guess 
no villas or condos now?  Then min of 2.3 to 3.2 persons per HH, that means how many total persons? 

From Rebecca Waite to Everyone 07:01 PM 

I am also concerned about the traffic. It is already very difficult to turn left (and even right at times) out 
of the Kellyridge entrance. 

From Scott Patrick to Everyone 07:01 PM 

I reiterate severely limiting what type of commercial development goes on Rt 64. Believe we could quickly 
come up with a quick list of absolute non-starters with a gas station being at the top of this list for me. 

From Scott Fast to Everyone 07:01 PM 

 

- Page 479 -



From Cheryl & Tommy Russell to Everyone 07:02 PM 

Agreed, I couldn't turn right 

From Scott Fast to Everyone 07:03 PM 

The planner is whom?  Loren? please write in chat :)  Thx 

From polly petrino to Everyone 07:04 PM 

Lauren Staudenmaier lauren.staudenmaier@apexnc.org 

From Kate Macdonell to Everyone 07:04 PM 

Do you anticipate staff asking you to make further changes to the plan? 

From Scott Fast to Everyone 07:04 PM 

Max = 160 units, SFD, townhomes, rough count 120 +/- 
buses... 

From Scott Patrick to Everyone 07:06 PM 

40 detached is a very small number and I would consider this an absolute floor. should be higher than 
40/120. when is this finalized and committed? 

From Julie Robertson to Everyone 07:07 PM 

Since you are adding in the commercial why does the count have to stay at 160? 

From Scott Patrick to Everyone 07:08 PM 

did the mix of attached / detached change then? 

From Scott Fast to Everyone 07:10 PM 

I recall we discussed stop signs on Chanticlair, whether at Rothwood or within Yellowbridge, it will be a 
mix  

From Chip Allen to Everyone 07:11 PM 

Thank you for your time. 

From Scott Fast to Everyone 07:11 PM 

we will have a 3-way at Rothwood and then a 3-way inside Yellowbridge...Please show map again to 
 

From Kate Macdonell to Everyone 07:11 PM 

Will there be neighborhood signage delineating Abbington from Yellowbridge where the neighborhoods 
transition? 

From Scott Fast to Everyone 07:12 PM 

- Page 480 -



Yes!  just west of Rothwood.  yes. 

From Cheryl & Tommy Russell to Everyone 07:14 PM 

What are the red stars on this map? 

From Jim Logsdon to Everyone 07:14 PM 

Those 4 lots are going to be postage stamp size now that Rothwood will be extending and they will still 
have a 20ft and 50ft pipeline easement....I call BS 

From Cheryl & Tommy Russell to Everyone 07:14 PM 

ok, I had asked earlier - could the 4 homes be moved to one of those? 

From Jim Logsdon to Everyone 07:14 PM 

Sorry, bad message 

From Julie Robertson to Everyone 07:15 PM 

What about the land you need that Abbington owns? 

From Kate Macdonell to Everyone 07:15 PM 

A red star where those 4 houses on Chanticalire are right now would be great! :-) 

From Chip Allen to Everyone 07:18 PM 

Requires 2/3 vote for Abbignton to sell that land 

From Jonathan Polito to Everyone 07:18 PM 

How is this proposal helping Apex or the neighboring properties in Abbington? It will NOT increase or help 
the values of the homes in Abbington and as we've seen recently with the Wake County tax increase vote 
DEVELOPMENT DOES NOT PAY FOR ITSELF! But rather taxes existing residents more.  

From Scott Fast to Everyone 07:19 PM 

Have to be honest...I am getting an itchy feeling that you MAY know more about the Matthew's intentions 
and status of action, not saying you DO, but if you do, can you please share?  I live directly to the right of 
the pond on their property and don't want to look at a bank, gas station, townhomes or condos... If not 
you, can I speak to someone in Apex as to their intentions?  Thank you. 

From Chip Allen to Everyone 07:19 PM 

Again entering into chat since not read. The sell of the Abbington land to Lennar requires a 2/3 vote from 
Abbington residents. 

From Scott Fast to Everyone 07:20 PM 

I have a doctor on speed dial and a cocktail... all good. 

From Brant Gifford to Everyone 07:21 PM 

- Page 481 -



Speaking of Chanticlair, we had heard the extension to Sweetwater through the Atkinson property was 
looked at, and not accepted to be extended at this time. Does Lennar or Jeff have any indication from the 
town how they propose to complete this collector, or a timeline for completion? 

From Julie Robertson to Everyone 07:21 PM 

When does that negotiation on the land needed happen?  Does it happen when the zoning request goes 
in or when the subdivision plan is put together. 

From Scott Fast to Everyone 07:21 PM 

Joe Matthews... he owns that land above/north of the '4 yellow homes'. Towards US 64.  FYI. 

https://www.apexnc.org/Search?searchPhrase=interactive 

From Kate Macdonell to Everyone 07:21 PM 

Just FYI to all thinking about future development around us, buffers and lot sizes/widths matter and set 
precedents for the future. 

From Jen Curtis-Maury to Everyone 07:24 PM 

You said what the HOA Covenants say right now?  What does that mean? 

From Kate Macdonell to Everyone 07:26 PM 

We definitely appreciate the 50ft buffer. Can you also widen the southern lots? So that precedent can be 
set when the next 2 parcels sell? 

From Chip Allen to Everyone 07:26 PM 

Goliath Lane are custom homes comparable to Abbington home. This should be noted for the record. 

From Jen Curtis-Maury to Everyone 07:27 PM 

Agree with Kate and Chip's comments 

From Conne Bridenbaugh to Everyone 07:28 PM 

Agree with removal of the four homes at the intersection of Rothwood and Chanticlair and widen the lots 
adjacent to Abbington. The developers of Sweetwater made it work with Abbington. Lennar can as well. 
Turning them is not the desired solution. David and Conne Bridenbaugh. 503 Lyndenbury Dr. 

- Page 482 -



 

1 

 

 

 

YELLOWBRIDGE  

Planned Unit Development 

Apex, North Carolina 

 

Submittal Dates 
First Submittal: March 1, 2022 
Second Submittal:  April 8, 2022 
Third Submittal:  May 13, 2022 
Fourth Submittal:  June 10, 2022 
Fifth Submittal:  June 28, 2022 
 
Developer 
Lennar Corporation 
Raleigh Division 
1100 Perimeter Park Drive, Suite 112 
Morrisville, NC 27560 
 
Civil Engineer 
Peak Engineering & Design 
1125 Apex Peakway 
Apex, NC 27502 
 
Land Use Attorneys 
Parker Poe Adams & Bernstein LLP 
301 Fayetteville Street, Suite 1400 
Raleigh, NC 27602 
 

 
 

     

- Page 483 -



 

2 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

VICINITY MAP............................................................................................................ 3 

PROJECT DATA .......................................................................................................... 4 

PURPOSE STATEMENT .............................................................................................. 5 

PERMITTED USES ...................................................................................................... 8 

AFFORDABLE HOUSING ........................................................................................... 10 

DESIGN CONTROLS ................................................................................................. 11 

ARCHITECTURAL STANDARDS ................................................................................. 14 

PARKING AND LOADING ......................................................................................... 20 

SIGNAGE ................................................................................................................. 20 

CONSTRUCTION TRAFFIC  ....................................................................................... 20 

NATURAL RESOURCES AND ENVIRONMENTAL DATA  ............................................. 20 

STORMWATER MANAGEMENT ............................................................................... 21 

PARKS AND RECREATION ........................................................................................ 22 

PUBLIC FACILITIES ................................................................................................... 22 

PHASING ................................................................................................................. 23 

CONSISTENCY WITH LAND USE PLAN ...................................................................... 24 

COMPLIANCE WITH UDO ........................................................................................ 24  

- Page 484 -



 

3 

 

VICINITY MAP 
 

  

- Page 485 -



 

4 

 

PROJECT DATA 
 
Name of Project: Yellowbridge PUD 
 
Property Owner: Yellowbridge Capital, LLC 
 113 Mill Point Road 
 Kitty Hawk, NC 27949 
 
Developer: Lennar Corporation 
 Raleigh Division 
 1100 Perimeter Park Drive, Suite 112 
 Morrisville, NC 27560 
 
Prepared by: Parker Poe Adams & Bernstein LLP 
 301 Fayetteville Street, Suite 1400 
 Raleigh, NC 27601 
 
 Peak Engineering & Design 
 1125 Apex Peakway 
 Apex, NC 27502 
 
Current Zoning: Rural Residential (RR) 
 
Proposed Zoning: Planned Unit Development Conditional Zoning (PUD-CZ) 
 
Current 2045 Land Use Map Medium Density Residential  
Designation: 
 
Proposed 2045 Land Use Map Residential Area: Medium Density Residential 
 Commercial Area: Commercial Services 
Designation   
 
Site Address: 2817 US 64 Highway W Apex NC 27523 
 2813 US 64 Highway W Apex NC 27523 
 
Property Identification Number: 0722752304  
 0722743789 (the “Property”) 
 
Total Acreage: 48.43 acres 
 
Area Designated as Mixed Use on LUM None 
 
Area Proposed as Non- Residential: 3.5 acres 
  

- Page 486 -



 

5 

 

 

PURPOSE STATEMENT 
 
This document and the accompanying exhibits submitted herewith (collectively, the “PUD”) are 
provided pursuant to the Town of Apex Unified Development Ordinance ( “UDO”) Planned Unit 
Development provisions.  This PUD addresses the development of approximately 48.43 acres along 
US 64 Highway W, less than one mile from the 540/US-64 interchange.  The Property is 
undeveloped and within the Town’s Extra Territorial Planning jurisdiction.  Yellowbridge PUD will 
be a mixed-use community with two districts, the Residential District and the Commercial District.   
 
Yellowbridge PUD will feature a mix of single-family detached homes, alley loaded townhouses, 
front loaded townhouses, and commercial uses with walking paths and open space (the 
“Development”).  The mix of housing types will serve residents with varying budgets, backgrounds, 
and family needs.  The community will be conveniently located to existing amenities and have easy 
access to highways.  The neighborhood style commercial uses fronting US-64 Highway West will 
create a transition in development intensity from the highway south through the Development.  
The PUD is intended to create flexibility in design and land uses to deliver a high quality residential 
development that fits the context of existing development in the area.  The Residential District is 
consistent with the Property’s Medium Density Land Use Map (“LUM”) designation; and generally, 
with the Apex Comprehensive Plan’s (“Peak Plan”) goal of accommodating a mix of housing types 
to serve the Town’s growing and increasingly diverse population.  Although the LUM does not 
specifically designate the Property for commercial uses, the portion of the Property fronting US-
64 Highway West is appropriate for the neighborhood serving commercial uses permitted by this 
PUD.  The Commercial District is located directly across US-64 Highway West from the Westford 
PUD which permits a variety of residential, office, and commercial uses along the road.  
Additionally, the Commercial District is located adjacent to the Local Bar and is separated from the 
Residential District by a stream and wetlands that will act as a natural buffer between future 
commercial uses and residential neighborhoods to the south.   
 
CONSISTENCY WITH PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS  

(i) The uses proposed to be developed in the PD plan for PUD-CZ are those uses permitted in 
Sec. 4.2.2 Use Table 

 
RESPONSE:  The uses permitted within The Yellowbridge PUD are permitted within this designation 
in UDO Section 4.2.2 Use Table.  
 
(ii) The uses proposed in the PD Plan for PUD-CZ can be entirely residential, entirely non-

residential, or a mix of residential and non-residential uses, provided a minimum 
percentage of non-residential land area is included in certain mixed use areas as specified 
on the 2045 Land Use Map.  The location of uses proposed by the PUD-CZ must be shown 
in the PD Plan with a maximum density for each type of residential use and a maximum 
square footage for each type of non-residential use.  

 

- Page 487 -



 

6 

 

RESPONSE:  The Yellowbridge PUD is a mixed use community with a mix of housing types and 
commercial uses outlined in this PUD.  
 
(iii) The dimensional standards in Sec. 5.1.3 Table of Intensity and Dimensional Standards, 

Planned Development Districts may be varied in the PD Plan for PUD-CZ.  The PUD-CZ 
shall demonstrate compliance with all other dimensional standards of the UDO, North 
Carolina Building Code, and North Carolina Fire Code.  

 
RESPONSE:  This PUD specifies intensity and dimensional standards for the project.  The PUD’s 
standards are consistent with the UDO’s vision for Planned Unit Developments – to provide site 
specific, high-quality neighborhoods that preserve natural features and exhibit compatibility with, 
and connectivity to, surrounding land uses.  Except as specifically stated in this PUD, Yellowbridge 
will comply with all other requirements of the UDO and will comply with all applicable 
requirements of the North Carolina Building Code and the North Carolina Fire Code.  
 
(iv) The development proposed in the PD Plan for PUD-CZ encourages cluster and compact 

development to the greatest extent possible that is interrelated and linked by pedestrian 
ways, bikeways and other transportation systems.  At a minimum, the PD Plan must show 
sidewalk improvements as required by the Advance Apex: The 2045 Transportation Plan 
and the Town of Apex Standard Specifications and Standard Details, and greenway 
improvements as required by the Town of Apex Parks, Recreation, Greenways, and Open 
Space Plan and the Advance Apex: The 2045 Transportation Plan.  In addition, sidewalks 
shall be provided on both sides of all streets for single-family detached homes.  

 
RESPONSE:  Yellowbridge PUD will feature sidewalks throughout.  Sidewalks will connect the 
project and the adjacent Abbington neighborhood, improving pedestrian connectivity.  The PUD 
also commits to significant right of way dedication and roadway improvements called for by the 
Transportation Plan. 
 
(v) The design of development in the PD Plan for PUD-CZ results in land use patterns that 

promote and expand opportunities for walkability, connectivity, public transportation, 
and an efficient compact network of streets.  Cul-de-sacs shall be avoided unless the 
design of the subdivision and the existing or proposed street system in the surrounding 
area indicate that a through street is not essential in the location of the proposed cul-de-
sac, or where sensitive environmental areas such as streams, floodplains, and wetlands 
would be substantially disturbed by making road connections.  

 
RESPONSE:  The proposed street layout has been designed to enhance pedestrian and vehicular 
connectivity while protecting sensitive environmental features and being mindful of existing 
residential development.  The development will facilitate the vision of the Transportation Plan by 
extending the existing Chanticlair Drive stub street across the site to the west.  Additionally, the 
project will extend a public street to the north to US-64 Highway West which will increase 
connectivity and provide Abbington residents an additional route to US-64 Highway West.    
 

- Page 488 -



 

7 

 

(vi) The development proposed in the PD Plan for PUD-CZ is compatible with the character of 
surrounding land uses and maintains and enhances the value of surrounding properties.  

 
RESPONSE:  The proposed development is compatible with the character of the existing and 
planned uses in the surrounding area.  This area of the Town’s ETJ is at the intersection between 
growing sections of northwest Apex and historically rural, western Wake County.  Adjacent 
properties are largely residential subdivisions with some commercial uses nearby. Nearby 
residential developments include the Villages at Westford Apartments, the Townes at Westford, 
the Stratford at Abbington, the Abbington Community, and the Sweetwater Community and Town 
Center. The Villages at Westford Apartments are directly across US 64 Highway West and consist 
of 296 apartments with a clubhouse and pool that were constructed in 2019 as part of the 
Westford PUD.  The Stratford at Abbington and the Abbington Community are both single-family 
detached subdivisions. The Sweetwater Community and Town Center is a residential and 
commercial site with townhomes, single family homes and various commercial uses.  
 
Yellowbridge PUD will provide a mix of housing types and neighborhood serving commercial uses 
that offer a transition between US 64 Highway West and the lower intensity Abbington community 
to the south.  Density will transition from more dense townhomes to larger lot single-family 
detached homes as the site moves north to south.  Additionally, this PUD contains buffer 
commitments and design standards that will ensure compatibility with neighboring uses.  
 
(vii) The development proposed in the PD Plan for PUD-CZ has architectural and design 

standards that are exceptional and provide higher quality than routine developments.  
All residential uses proposed in a PD Plan for PUD-CZ shall provide architectural 
elevations representative of the residential structures to be built to ensure the Standards 
of this Section are met.  

 
RESPONSE:  Yellowbridge PUD will feature high quality and thoughtful design.  Architectural 
standards, design controls, and conceptual elevations are included in this PUD.  

CONSISTENCY WITH CONDITIONAL ZONING STANDARDS  

Yellowbridge PUD is consistent with the conditional zoning standards set forth in UDO Section 
2.3.3.F.1-10.  Please see the accompanying PUD-CZ Application for the statements of consistency 
addressing each standard.    

- Page 489 -



 

8 

 

PERMITTED USES 
 
The Property may be used for the uses listed below. The permitted uses are subject to the 
limitations and regulations stated in the UDO and any additional limitations or regulations stated 
below. For convenience, some relevant sections of the UDO may be referenced; such references 
do not imply that other sections of the UDO do not apply.  Homeowners Association covenants 
shall not restrict the construction of accessory dwelling units.  
 
RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT 
 
The following uses shall be permitted in the Residential District: 
 

Residential  

Single-family Permitted 

Townhouse Permitted 

Accessory apartment* Permitted 

Recreational Uses  

Park, active Permitted 

Greenway Permitted 

Park, passive Permitted 

Recreation facility, private Permitted 

Utility, minor Permitted 

 
* Homeowners Association covenants shall not restrict the construction of accessory dwelling 
units.  
 
COMMERCIAL DISTRICT 
 
The following uses shall be permitted in the Commercial District: 
 

Restaurant, general Permitted 

Restaurant, drive-through Permitted 

Medical or dental office or 
clinic 

Permitted 

Medical or dental laboratory Permitted 

Office, business or 
professional 

Permitted 

Publishing office Permitted 

Artisan Studio Permitted 

Barber and beauty shop Permitted 

Book store Permitted 

Convenience store Permitted 

Dry cleaners and laundry 
service 

Permitted 

- Page 490 -



 

9 

 

Farmer’s market Permitted 

Financial institution  Permitted 

Floral shop Permitted 

Gas and fuel, retail Permitted 

Greenhouse or nursery, retail Permitted 

Grocery, general Permitted 

Grocery, specialty Permitted 

Health/fitness center or spa Permitted 

Kennel Permitted 

Newsstand or gift shop Permitted 

Personal service Permitted 

Pharmacy Permitted 

Printing and copying service Permitted 

Real estate sales Permitted 

Repair services, limited Permitted 

Retail sales, general Permitted 

Studio for art Permitted 

Tailor shop Permitted 

Upholstery shop Permitted 

Pet services Permitted 

Day care facility Permitted 

Veterinary clinic or hospital Permitted 

Utility, minor Permitted 

 
 
 
 

  

- Page 491 -



 

10 

 

AFFORDABLE HOUSING 
 
The Development shall include a minimum of two (2) residential restricted affordable housing 
townhouse or detached single-family median-income ownership units (the “Affordable Units”).  
The Affordable Units shall be constructed on-site and sold (includes unit price and lot price) at a 
mutually agreeable maximum affordable housing median-income ownership initial sales price (the 
“Initial Sales Price”).  The Affordable Units shall be occupied by low or median-income households 
earning no more than one-hundred percent (100%) of the Raleigh NC Metropolitan Statistical Area 
(MSA), Area Median Income (AMI), adjusted for family size as most recently published by HUD (the 
“Income Limit")(.  For purposes of calculating the Initial Sales Price for the Affordable Units, 
affordable shall mean a reasonable down payment and monthly housing costs expected during the 
first calendar year of occupancy, including utilities or utility allowances, mortgage loan principal 
and interest, mortgage insurance, property taxes, homeowner’s insurance, homeowner’s 
association dues, if any, and all other property assessments, dues and fees assessed as a condition 
of property ownership, which does not exceed thirty percent (30%) times (x’s) one-hundred 
percent (100%) times (x’s) the annual median-income limit (100% AMI Category), based on a family 
size that is equal to the actual number of bedrooms as the Affordable Units, applicable to the 
Raleigh, NC MSA as most recently published by the HUD. A restrictive covenant (i.e. resale deed 
restriction) with a minimum affordability period of fifteen (15) years (the “Affordability Period”) 
shall be recorded in the Wake County Registry against each of the Affordable Units concurrently 
at the close of escrow upon the sale of the Affordable Units.  A restrictive covenant (i.e. affordable 
housing agreement) between the Town and applicant shall be recorded in the Wake County 
Registry against each of the lots for the Affordable Units prior to the issuance of a building permit 
for such lots to memorialize the affordable housing terms and conditions of the approved zoning 
condition. The Affordable Units may be townhouses or single-family detached houses, at the 
discretion of the developer, and shall be designated on the Master Subdivision Final Plat, which 
may be amended from time to time.  Final Affordable Housing Unit floor plan selection which 
includes the unit size and bedroom size will be at the discretion of the developer. The Affordable 
Units may be provided in multiple phases or in one single phase. Developer will work with the 
Town to identify qualifying buyers for the first sale of the Affordable Units (the “First Sale”).  
Following the First Sale of the Affordable Units, Developer shall not be responsible for managing 
the Affordable Units or performing marketing, applicant screening, and selection related to future 
sales of the Affordable Units. Town staff will assist with the administrative duties of the Affordable 
Units during the Affordable Period.  

- Page 492 -



 

11 

 

 
DESIGN CONTROLS 
 
Development shall comply with the following minimum design controls.   
 
UNIVERSAL DESIGN CONTROLS 
 

Total Project Area 48.43 acres 

Maximum Built-Upon Area 70% of gross site acreage 

 
RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT DESIGN CONTROLS 
 

Maximum Residential Density 160 units 

Maximum Residential Density 3.6 units/acre 

Proposed Land Area 44.93 acres 

Front Loaded Townhouses   

     Minimum Lot Size None 

     Minimum Lot Width 18 ft. 

     Minimum Setbacks  

          Front  10 ft.  

          Side  0 ft. (5 ft. for end units) 

          Rear  5 ft. 

          Corner Side  8 ft.  

     Maximum Building Height 3 stories; 45 ft. 

     Minimum Building Separation 10 ft. 

     Minimum Buffer/RCA Setbacks 10 ft. for buildings 
5 ft. for parking areas 

Rear Loaded Townhouses  

     Minimum Lot Size None 

     Minimum Lot Width 18 ft. 

     Minimum Setbacks  

          Front 5 ft. 

          Side 0 ft. (5 ft. for end units) 

          Rear 5 ft. 

          Corner Side 8 ft. 

     Maximum Building Height 3 stories; 45 ft. 

     Minimum Building Separation 10 ft. 

Single-Family Detached  

     Minimum Lot Size 6,000 square feet 

     Minimum Lot Width* 50 ft. 

     Minimum Setbacks  

          Front  20 ft. 

          Side  6 ft. 

- Page 493 -



 

12 

 

          Rear 15 ft.  

          Corner Side  8 ft.  

     Maximum Building Height 3 stories; 45 ft. 

     Minimum Buffer/RCA Setbacks 10 ft. for buildings 
5 feet for parking areas 

Minimum Resource Conservation 
Area 

30% of gross site acreage 

 
*Single-family detached homes adjacent to the Property’s southernmost property line adjacent 
to the Abbington neighborhood from the northwestern corner of PIN 0722645333 to the 
northeastern corner of PIN 0722748868 shall have a minimum lot width of 60 feet.  

COMMERCIAL DISTRICT DESIGN CONTROLS 

Proposed Land Area 3.5 acres 

Maximum Building Square Footage 25,000 SF 

Minimum Setbacks  

          Front (US-64) 10 ft.  

          Side  10 ft. 

          Rear  10 ft. 

          Corner Side  10 ft.  

Maximum Building Height 50 ft. 

Minimum Buffer/RCA Setbacks 10 ft. for buildings  
5 ft. for parking areas 

Minimum Resource Conservation Area 25% of gross site acreage 

 

 

 

 

 

LANDSCAPING, BUFFERING, AND SCREENING 

Perimeter buffers shall be built and planted to the following lot width and planting standards: 

Along the Property’s shared property line with 
PIN 0722762014 

30 ft. Type A 

Along the Property’s US-64 Highway West 
frontage east of PIN 0722762014 

50 ft. Type A* 

Along the Property’s US-64 Highway West 
frontage west of PIN 0722762014 

100 ft. Type E 

- Page 494 -



 

13 

 

Along the Property’s westernmost boundary  20 ft. Type B 

Along the north and south side of Chanticlair 
Drive west of the Single Family Detached 
homes to the north of Chanticlair Drive 

10 ft. Type D 

Along the north side of Chanticlair Drive 
adjacent to the Single Family Detached homes 
north of Chanticlair Drive 

10 ft. Type D 

Along the Property’s easternmost boundary 
adjacent to PIN 0722850629 

10 ft. Type B 

Along the gas easement 10 ft. Type A 

Along the Property’s southern property line 
from the northwest corner of PIN 0722645333 
to the northeast corner of PIN 0722741431** 

50 ft. Type A** with a minimum 6 ft. tall 
opaque privacy fence along the north edge of 

the buffer 

Along the Property’s southern property line 
from the northeast corner of PIN 0722741431 
to the northwest corner of PIN 
0722748868*** 

50 ft. Type A*** with a minimum 6 ft. tall 
opaque privacy fence along the north edge of 

the buffer 

 

* The Development shall meet requirements (i) through (iii) in UDO Section 8.2.6(B)(5)(f)(ii)(c) to 
reduce the buffer width along US-64 Highway West to 50 feet.  

** This portion of the perimeter buffer shall remain undisturbed and supplemented with Type A 
buffer plantings.   

*** This portion of the perimeter buffer shall be cleared, graded, include a minimum 3-foot 
berm, and be replanted to a Type A buffer standard.  

  

- Page 495 -



 

14 

 

ARCHITECTURAL STANDARDS 
 
Yellowbridge PUD offers the following architectural controls to ensure a consistency of character 
throughout the development, while allowing for enough variety to create interest and avoid 
monotony. Elevations included are conceptual examples.  Final elevations must comply with these 
architectural standards but may vary from the conceptual elevations.  Further details may be 
provided at the time of Residential Master Subdivision Plan submittal.  
 
RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT DESIGN GUIDELINES  
 
Single-Family Detached: 

1. Vinyl siding is not permitted; however, vinyl windows, decorative elements and trim are 
permitted.  

2. The roof shall be pitched at 5:12 or greater for 75% of the building designs. 
3. Eaves shall project at least 12 inches from the wall of the structure. 
4. Garage doors shall have windows, decorative details or carriage-style adornments on 

them. 
5. The garage shall not protrude more than 1 foot out from the front façade and front 

porch. 
6. Garages on the front façade of a home that faces the street shall not exceed 30% of the 

total width of the house and garage together. 
7. The visible side of a home on a corner lot facing the public street shall contain at least 3 

decorative elements such as, but not limited to, the following elements:  

• Windows 

• Bay window  

• Recessed window 

• Decorative window 

• Trim around the windows 

• Wrap around porch or side porch 

• Two or more building materials 

• Decorative brick/stone 

• Decorative trim 

• Decorative shake 

• Decorative air vents on gable 

• Decorative gable 

• Decorative cornice 

• Column 

• Portico 

• Balcony 

• Dormer 

8. A varied color palette shall be utilized on homes throughout the subdivision to include a 
minimum of three color families for siding and shall include varied trim, shutter, and 
accent colors complementing the siding color. 

9. House entrances for units with front-facing single-car garages shall have a prominent 
covered porch/stoop area leading to the front door. 

10. The rear and side elevations of the units that can be seen from the right-of-way shall 
have trim around the windows. 

11. Front porches shall be a minimum of 5 feet deep. 
12. No more than 25% of lots may be accessed with J-driveways. There shall be no more than 

3 such homes in a row on any single block. Any lots eligible for a J-driveway home shall be 
identified on the Final Plat.  

- Page 496 -



YELLOWBRIDGE PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 

15 

 

 
Townhouses (front and alley loaded): 

1. Vinyl siding is not permitted; however, vinyl windows, decorative elements and trim are 
permitted.  

2. The roofline cannot be a single mass; it must be broken up horizontally and vertically 
between every unit. 

3. Garage doors must have windows, decorative details or carriage-style adornments on 
them. 

4. House entrances for units with front-facing single-car garages shall have a covered 
porch/stoop area leading to the front door.   

5. The garage cannot protrude more than 1 foot out from the front façade or front porch.   
6. The visible side of a townhome on a corner lot facing the public street shall contain at 

least 3 decorative elements such as, but not limited to, the following elements:  

• Windows 

• Bay window  

• Recessed window 

• Decorative window 

• Trim around the windows 

• Wrap around porch or side porch 

• Two or more building materials 

• Decorative brick/stone 

• Decorative trim 

• Decorative shake 

• Decorative air vents on gable 

• Decorative gable 

• Decorative cornice 

• Column 

• Portico 

• Balcony 

• Dormer 
7. Building facades shall have horizontal relief achieved by staggering the units. 
8. A varied color palette shall be utilized on homes throughout the subdivision to include a 

minimum of three color families for siding and shall include varied trim, shutter, and 
accent colors complementing the siding color. 

9. The rear and side elevations of the units with right-of-way frontage shall have trim 
around the windows. 

 

- Page 497 -



YELLOWBRIDGE PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 

16 

 

 

CONCEPTUAL RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT BUILDING ELEVATIONS 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

- Page 498 -



YELLOWBRIDGE PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 

17 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

- Page 499 -



YELLOWBRIDGE PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 

18 

 

COMMERCIAL DISTRICT DESIGN GUIDELINES 
 
1. Architectural treatments such as varying roof forms, façade articulation, breaks in roof, 

walls with texture materials and ornamental details shall be incorporated to add visual 
interest.  

2. Large expanses of blank walls greater than 25 feet in length or height shall be broken up 
with windows or other architectural features to reduce visual impacts.  

3. Roof features may include flat roofs with parapet, hip roofs or awnings with metal or 
canvas material. 

COMMERCIAL DISTRICT MATERIALS 

Non-residential exteriors shall incorporate variation in materials.  The front façade and other 
facades located along a public right-of-way may include:  

1. Brick and/or stone masonry 

2. Decorative concrete block (integral color or textured) 

3. Stone accents 

4. Aluminum storefronts with anodized or pre-finished colors 

5. EIFS cornices, and parapet trim 

6. EIFS or synthetic stucco shall not be used in the first four feet above grade and shall be 
limited to only 25% of each building façade 

7. Precast concrete  

8. Soffit and fascia materials to be considered include EIFS with crown trim elements 

9. Cementitious siding 

Rear elevations of non-residential buildings facing opaque landscape buffers or not visible from 
vehicular use areas or public rights-of-way may incorporate decorative concrete masonry, 
metal coping, or EIFS trim.  

 

 

 

 

- Page 500 -



YELLOWBRIDGE PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 

19 

 

REPRESENTATIVE COMMERCIAL DISTRICT BUILDING ELEVATIONS 

 

 

- Page 501 -



YELLOWBRIDGE PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 

20 

 

PARKING AND LOADING 

Parking shall comply with minimum parking standards set forth in UDO Section 8.3. 
 

SIGNAGE 
 
Signage shall comply with UDO Section 8.7. 
 
In addition, the project shall install at least one (1) sign per SCM discouraging the use of 
fertilizer and to reduce pet waster near SCM drainage areas.  The sign(s) shall be installed in 
locations that are publicly accessible, such as adjacent to, but outside of public property and/or 
public easement(s), amenity centers, sidewalks, greenways, or side paths.  
 

CONSTRUCTION TRAFFIC 
 
All heavy duty construction traffic shall enter and exit the site via US-64 Highway West.  Heavy 
duty construction traffic shall not use Chanticlair Drive, Rothwood Way, or Lyndenbury Drive.  
“No Construction Traffic” signage shall be posted along Chanticlair Drive and Rothwood Way.   
 

NATURAL RESOURCES AND ENVIRONMENTAL DATA 
 
RIVER BASINS AND WATERSHED PROTECTION OVERLAY DISTRICTS 

The Property is within the Beaver Creek Basin, Jordan Lake Watershed, and Primary Watershed 
Protection Overlay District as shown on the Town of Apex Watershed Protection Overlay Map 
2019.  This PUD will comply with all built upon area, vegetated conveyances, structural SCMs and 
riparian stream buffer requirements of UDO Section 6.1.8. 

Resource Conservation Areas (RCA) 

The Development will meet or exceed the minimum Resource Conservation Area (“RCA”) 
requirements in UDO Section 8.1.2 and 2.3.4.  The Property is located west of 540 and is therefore 
required to preserve a minimum of 30% RCA for the Residential District and 25% RCA for the 
Commercial District.  Designated RCA areas will be consistent with UDO Section 8.1.2(B).  
Preserved streams, wetlands, and associated riparian buffers provide the primary RCAs 
throughout the Property.  Additional RCAs may include stormwater management areas, multi-
use paths, and perimeter buffers.  

Floodplain 

The project site does not sit within a designated current or future 100-year floodplain as shown 
on the Town of Apex Watershed & FEMA Map dated April 2015. FIRM Panel 3720072200J dated 
May 2, 2006 does not include a floodplain within the property boundary. 
 
Historic Structures 

- Page 502 -



YELLOWBRIDGE PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 

21 

 

 
There are no known historic structures present on the Property.   
 
Environmental Commitments Summary 
 
The following environmental conditions shall apply to the Development:  
 

• All dwelling units shall be pre-configured with conduit for a solar energy system. 

• The project shall install at least one (1) sign per SCM discouraging the use of fertilizer and to 
reduce pet waste near SCM drainage areas.  The sign(s) shall be installed in locations that are 
publicly accessible, such as adjacent to, but outside of public property and/or public 
easement(s), amenity centers, sidewalks, greenways, or side paths. 

• The project shall install a minimum of two (2) pet waste stations. 

• The project shall plant drought resistant warm season grasses throughout the development 
to minimize irrigation and chemical use. 

• Stormwater control devices shall be designed and constructed so that post development peak 
runoff does not exceed pre-development peak runoff conditions for the 24-hour, 1 year, 10 
year,  and 25 year storm events. 

• Landscaping shall include at least four (4) native hardwood tree species throughout the 
Development. 

• No clearing or land disturbance shall be permitted within the riparian buffer, except the 
minimum necessary to install required road and utility infrastructure and SCM outlets.  The 
SCM water storage and treatment shall not be permitted within the riparian buffer.  Sewer 
infrastructure shall be designed to minimize impacts to riparian buffers.  

• Any outdoor lighting installed in the commercial area and on private amenities, signs, 
landscaping, walls, or fences shall be full cutoff LED fixtures with a maximum color 
temperature of 3000k.  This condition shall not apply to lighting on single-family homes, 
townhouses, accessory buildings, or street lighting.  

• At least 75% of plants shall be native species.  Landscaping will be coordinated with and 
approved by the Planning Department at site or subdivision review.  

 

STORMWATER MANAGEMENT 
 
Stormwater control devices shall be designed and constructed  to exceed UDO standards so that 
post development peak runoff does not exceed pre-development peak runoff conditions for the 
24-hour, 1 year, 10 year,  and 25 year storm events.  Otherwise, the Development shall meet all 
stormwater management requirements for quality and quantity treatment in accordance with 
Section 6.1 of the UDO.   
 

- Page 503 -



YELLOWBRIDGE PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 

22 

 

Acceptable stormwater structures shall include detention ponds, constructed wetlands, bio-
retention areas, or other approved devices consistent with the NC DEQ Stormwater Design 
Manual and the Town of Apex UDO. 
 

PARKS AND RECREATION 
 
This project was reviewed by the Parks, Recreation, and Cultural Resources Advisory Commission 
on April 27, 2022 and a fee-in-lieu of dedication was recommended.  
 
Single-family detached Units:    $ 3,753.89 x 50 = $ 187,694.50 
Single-family attached Units:    $ 2,528.25 x 110 =  $ 278,107.50 
Total residential fee in lieu per current unit count:     $ 465,802 
 
The final unit count and total fee-in-lieu will be calculated at Master Subdivision Plan and 
Construction Document review.  
 

PUBLIC FACILITIES 
 
The proposed PUD shall meet all Public Facilities requirements as set forth in UDO Section 
2.3.4(F)(1)(f) and be designed to comply with the Town’s Sewer and Water Master Plan and 
Standards and Specifications. Road and utility infrastructure shall be as follows: 
 
GENERAL ROADWAY INFRASTRUCTURE 
 
Except as set forth herein, all proposed roadway infrastructure and right-of-way dedications will 
be consistent with the Town of Apex Comprehensive Transportation Plan and Bicycle and 
Pedestrian System Plan in effect as of the submission date of this rezoning.  
 
TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENTS 
 
The following conditions regarding transportation improvements apply and shall be phased 
consistent with the Traffic Impact Analysis that has been performed for this rezoning, which is on 
file with the Town of Apex. 
 

• All proposed driveway access and improvements on state-maintained roadways are 
subject to both Apex and NCDOT review and approval.  

• A maximum of one (1) access point shall be proposed on US 64, to be constructed as a 
left-in/right-in/right-out public street access at the existing median break with a stop-
controlled northbound approach with one lane of ingress and one lane of egress and an 
exclusive eastbound right turn lane with a minimum 100 feet of storage and appropriate 
deceleration length and taper on US Hwy 64.  Improve the median break and construct 
physical separation between turn lanes to accommodate trucks and prevent both 
improper left turns and vehicular turning-movement conflicts.  

- Page 504 -



YELLOWBRIDGE PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 

23 

 

• Construct an exclusive eastbound U-turn median break on US Hwy 64, approximately 
halfway between the site access at the existing median break and Kellyridge Drive 
including a U-turn lane with a minimum of 100 feet of storage and appropriate 
deceleration length and taper.  If the eastbound U-turn lane is removed from the 
existing median break location to the west, extend the storage to 150 feet at this 
location.  

• Consistent with the Transportation Plan Thoroughfare and Collector Street Map, 
Chanticlair Drive shall be extended westward as a Major Collector Street with a 
minimum 60-foot right-of-way, consistent with Town Standards.  

• No residential driveways shall be permitted on existing or future Major Collector 
Street(s).  

• Rothwood Way shall be extended north and stubbed to the southernmost property line 
of PIN 0722850629.  Homes located on Rothwood Way shall take driveway access from 
Rothwood Way.  

• The extension of Chanticlair Drive shall be constructed concurrently with the project but 
shall remain closed to traffic between Yellowbridge and Abbington subdivisions until 
such time that the 50th CO is approved for Yellowbridge.  The form of closure shall be 
noted on the subdivision plan and subject to Town staff approval.  

• Potential Access Points shown on the Conceptual Site Plan and Conceptual Utility Plan 
(C100) are not shown in exact locations but show required connections.  Connections 
may only be removed from the subdivision connectivity requirements of the PUD if the 
developer shows to the satisfaction of the Planning Director, in consultation with the 
Technical Review Committee (TRC), that the construction of the connection would be 
impractical based on environmental conditions found in the field at the time of Master 
Subdivision Plan approval.  

 

PEDESTRIAN AND BICYCLE IMPROVEMENTS 
 
Per UDO requirements, sidewalks shall be provided along both sides of all streets.  
 
WATER AND SANITARY SEWER 
 
All lots within the Development will be served by Town of Apex water and sanitary sewer. The 
utility design will be finalized at the time of Master Subdivision Plan or Site Plan approval and be 
based on available facilities adjacent to the site at that time. The design will meet the current 
Town of Apex master plans for water and sewer.  A conceptual utility plan is included in the PUD 
Concept Plan for reference.  
 

- Page 505 -



YELLOWBRIDGE PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 

24 

 

OTHER UTILITIES 
 
Electricity will be provided by Apex Electric. Phone, cable, and gas will be provided by the 
Developer and shall meet Town of Apex standards as outlined in the UDO.   
 

PHASING 
 
The Development will be completed in phases.  Final locations of phases will be determined at 
the time of Master Subdivision Review and Approval.   
 

CONSISTENCY WITH LAND USE PLAN 
 
The proposed Development is generally consistent with Advance Apex 2045: The Apex 
Comprehensive Plan, adopted in February 2019.  The Land Use Map designates the Property as 
Medium Density Residential which allows a PUD zoning district and contemplates the housing 
types and densities proposed in the Residential District.  This PUD updates the LUM designation 
of the Commercial District to Commercial Services.  Although the LUM does not specifically 
designate the Property for commercial uses, the portion of the Property fronting US-64 Highway 
West is appropriate for the neighborhood serving commercial uses permitted by this PUD.  The 
Commercial District is located directly across US-64 Highway West from the Westford PUD which 
permits a variety of residential, office, and commercial uses along the road.  Additionally, the 
Commercial District is located adjacent to the Local Bar and is separated from the Residential 
District by a stream and wetlands that will act as a natural buffer between future commercial 
uses and residential neighborhoods to the south.   
 
 

COMPLIANCE WITH UDO 
 
The development standards adopted for this PUD are in compliance with those set forth in the 
current version of the Town’s Unified Development Ordinance (UDO). This PUD shall be the 
primary governing document for the development of Yellowbridge.  All standards and regulations 
in this PUD shall control over general standards of the UDO.  Provided, however, that if a specific 
regulation is not addressed in this PUD, UDO regulations shall control.  

  

- Page 506 -



YELLOWBRIDGE PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 

25 

 

EXHIBIT A 
Legal Description 

The Property 
 

PIN# 0722752304 & 0722743789 

All that certain real property situated in White Oak Township, Wake County, North Carolina, 

described as follows: 

Beginning at a set iron rod on the northern right of way line of Chanticlair Drive, said iron rod 

marking the southwestern corner of Lot 74 as said lot is shown and so designated on that certain 

subdivision plat entitled “Windsor at Abbington – Phase 1, Section A, Map 2, Lots 24-27 & 65-

74” recorded in Book of Maps 1998, Page 203, Wake County Registry; thence along the 

northern right of way line of Chanticlair Drive, South 89°37'45" West 280.73 feet to a set iron 

rod; thence South 00°22'15" East 30.04 feet to a set iron rod at the centerline of the western 

terminus of Chanticlair Drive and the northeastern corner of the 0.08 acre Reserved Area 

depicted on that certain subdivision plat entitled “Stratford at Abbington, Phase 1: Lots 1-31, 65-

75, Owner: Highway 64, LLC” recorded in Book of Maps 2006, Pages 2638 to 2640, Wake 

County Registry; thence along the northern and western boundary of said Reserved Area and 

continuing along the northwestern boundary of said Stratford at Abbington subdivision the 

following nine courses: (1) South 89°37'45" West 118.01 feet to a set iron rod; (2) South 

05°29'21" West 40.93 feet to a set iron rod; (3) South 01°54'29" East 98.00 feet to a set iron rod; 

(4) South 11°29'28" East 62.80 feet to a set iron rod; (5) South 22°27'50" West 118.06 feet to a 

found iron pipe; (6) South 70°08'38" West 118.71 feet to a found iron pipe; (7) South 77°30'46" 

West 65.05 feet to a found iron pipe; (8) South 73°46'05" West 40.75 feet to a found iron pipe; 

and (9) South 73°28'08" West 311.49 feet to a found iron pipe at an angle point in the northern 

boundary of Lot 64 as said lot is shown and so designated on that certain subdivision plat entitled 

“Stratford at Abbington, Phase 2: Lots 32-64, Owner: Highway 64, LLC” recorded in Book of 

Maps 2008, Pages 33 and 34, Wake County Registry; thence along the northern boundary of said 

Stratford at Abbington Phase 2 subdivision South 82°16'49" West 758.57 feet to a found iron 

pipe with cap at the northwestern corner of Lot 56 of said Stratford at Abbington Phase 2 

subdivision, said point also being on the eastern boundary of Lot 2 as said lot is shown and so 

designated on that certain plat entitled “Recombination Survey for Cecil V. Campfield and Wife 

Sharon K. Campfield” recorded in Book of Maps 1995, Page 334, Wake County Registry; thence 

along the eastern boundary of said Campfield plat the following two courses: (1) North 

03°08'59" East 417.75 feet to a found bent iron pipe; and (2) North 03°12'21" East 406.54 feet to 

a found iron pipe with cap at the southeastern corner of Lot ‘A’ as said lot is shown and so 

designated on that certain plat entitled “Recombination for Joel V. Perry” recorded in Book of 

Maps 1985, Page 522, Wake County Registry; thence along the eastern boundary of said Perry 

plat North 03°11'42" East 841.95 feet to a found iron rod with cap on the southern right of way 

line of U.S. Highway 64; thence along said southern right of way line North 82°54'26" East 

331.57 feet to a set iron rod at the northwestern corner of the parcel depicted on that certain plat 

entitled “Boundary Survey, Property of Calvin Mills, Prepared for David and Sharon Raymer” 

recorded in Book of Maps 2004, Page 698, Wake County Registry; thence along the western, 

southern and eastern boundary of said Mills plat the following three courses: (1) South 07°08'43" 

East 189.52 feet to a found iron pipe; (2) North 82°51'17" East 420.02 feet to a found iron pipe; 

and (3) North 07°08'43" West 189.14 feet to a set iron rod on the southern right of way line of 

- Page 507 -



YELLOWBRIDGE PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 

26 

 

U.S. Highway 64; thence along said southern right of way line the following two courses: (1) 

North 82°54'26" East 265.68 feet to a set iron rod; and (2) North 82°53'08" East 305.02 feet to a 

set iron rod at the northwestern corner of Area “B” as shown and so designated on that certain 

plat entitled “Property of Blakely-Braswell Land Company, LLC” recorded in Book of Maps 

1996, Page 634, Wake County Registry; thence along the western boundary of said Area “B”, 

South 11°47'52" West 42.58 feet to a found iron pipe with cap at the northwestern corner of 

Tract ‘A’ as said lot is shown and so designated on that certain plat entitled “Property of Calvin 

E. Mills, Alta Belle P. Mills, Ted Mills & Randy Mills By William R. Hoke & Paul Stam, Jr., 

Co-trustees” recorded in Book of Maps 1984, Page 404, Wake County Registry; thence along the 

western and southern boundaries of said Mills plat the following five courses: (1) South 

07°43'26" West 146.44 feet to a found iron pipe with cap; (2) South 03°03'23" East 318.20 feet 

to a found iron pipe with cap; (3) South 05°04'48" West 519.04 feet to a found iron pipe with 

cap; (4) South 15°45'44" West 60.82 feet to a found iron pipe with broken cap; and (5) South 

89°57'43" East 359.26 feet to a found iron pipe with cap on the western boundary of Lot 73 of 

the previously mentioned Windsor at Abbington subdivision plat recorded in Book of Maps 

1998, Page 203, Wake County Registry; thence along the western boundary of said Windsor at 

Abbington subdivision South 02°25'07" East 148.61 feet to the point of beginning. 

Containing 48.2331 acres, more or less, and being all of Lot “B” as said lot is shown and so 

designated on that certain plat entitled “Subdivision, Property of Gaither Bryant Garner, Jr. and 

Gerald L. Hornick” recorded in Book of Maps 1984, Page 1516, Wake County Registry, 

TOGETHER WITH all of Tract 1 as said tract is shown and so designated on that certain plat 

entitled “Division for Gerald L. Hornick, et ux and G. Bryant Garner, et ux” recorded in Book of 

Maps 2003, Page 474, Wake County Registry, LESS AND EXCEPT the area dedicated as public 

right of way for Chanticlair Drive as recorded in Deed Book 11778, Page 1490, Wake County 

Registry. 

 
 
 

- Page 508 -



YELLOWBRIDGE PUD
<REZONING>

As Noted

© 2022 Peak Engineering & Design. All Rights Reserved

1
1
2
5
 
A

p
e
x
 
P

e
a
k
w

a
y
 
|
 
A

p
e
x
,
 
N

C
 
2
7
5
0
2

p
h
:
 
9
1
9
.
4
3
9
.
0
1
0
0

w
w

w
.
P

e
a
k
E

n
g
i
n
e
e
r
i
n
g
.
c
o
m

(PUD PLAN)

NC License #P-0673

210701

Y
EL

LO
W

BR
ID

G
E 

PU
D

28
13

/2
81

7 
U

S 
64

 H
W

Y
 W

E
ST

W
H

IT
E

 O
A

K
 T

O
W

N
SH

IP
A

PE
X

, N
O

R
T

H
 C

A
R

O
L

IN
A

 2
75

02

SEAL

JEFFREY  A . ROA CH

24427

E NG I N E E R

N

O

R

T

H

 

C
AR

O

L

I

N

A

P

R

O

F

E

S
S

I

O

N

A

L

PRELIMINARY

NOT FOR

CONSTRUCTION

MARCH 1, 2022

JR JR JR JR

AERIAL MAP NO SCALE N

2817 US 64 HWY W
APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 27502

PROJECT NUMBER: 210701
DATE March 1, 2022

VICINITY MAP NO SCALE N

FS

COVER
SHEET

JR

C000

RIPARIAN BUFFERS AND WETLANDS:
RIPARIAN BUFFERS AND WETLANDS LOCATED ON SITE BY
S&EC TO BE CONFIRMED BY THE US ARMY CORPS OF
ENGINEERS AND TOWN OF APEX.

INDEX OF DRAWINGS:
C000 COVER SHEET

C002 EXISTING CONDITIONS

C100 CONCEPTUAL SITE PLAN/CONCEPTUAL UTILITY PLAN

REZONING CASE # 22CZ06
(SUBMITTED ON 3/1/2022)

SITE INFORMATION:
Property Owner Property Address PIN    REID Acreage Deed Book/Plat Book & Page

YELLOWBRIDGE CAPITAL, LLC 2817 US 64 HWY W 0722-75-2304 0133648 43.90 acres DB 013508 PG 01177
113 MILL POINT RD BM 2003 Pg474
KITTY HAWK NC 27949-4082

YELLOWBRIDGE CAPITAL, LLC 2813 US 64 HWY W 0722-74-3789 0138551 4.34 acres DB 013508 PG 01181
113 MILL POINT RD BM 2003 Pg474
KITTY HAWK NC 27949-4082

Total Deeded Acreage: 48.43 acres

Township: White Oak

Flood Zone Information: Firm Panel 3720072200J dated May 2, 2006
does not show the presence of flood zones on the property

Watershed Information: Primary Watershed Protection Overlay District, Beaver Creek Basin, Cape Fear River Basin

Historical: Per the NC SHPO, no historical structures are located within the project boundary

Annexation: Annexation required for utility services

Existing Zoning: RR - Rural Residential
Proposed Zoning: Planned Unit Development - Conditional Zoning (PUD-CZ)
2045 Land Use Map: Medium Density Residential

Existing Use: Single Family Residential and vacant property
Proposed Uses: Residential

Single-family Townhouse Accessory apartment
Park, active Park, passive Greenway
Recreation facility, private Utility, minor

* Homeowners Association covenants shall not restrict the construction of accessory dwelling units
Commercial

Restaurant, general Restaurant, drive-through
Office, business or professional Publishing office
Book store Convenience store

Medical or dental office or clinic Medical or dental laboratory 
Artisan Studio Barber and beauty shop 

Dry cleaners and laundry service Farmer's market Financial institution Floral shop
Gas and fuel, retail Greenhouse or nursery, retail Grocery, general Grocery, specialty
Health/fitness center or spa Kennel Newsstand or gift shop Personal service
Pharmacy Printing and copying service Real estate sales Repair services, limited
Retail sales, general Studio for art Tailor shop Upholstery shop
Pet services Day care facility Veterinary clinic or hospital Utility, minor

* Refer to PD Text for a list of uses and other zoning standards

Maximum Number of Lots: 160 dwelling units
Proposed Project Density: 3.56 dwelling units/acre (< 6.0 units/acre for Medium Density Residential districts)

Lots: Min Lot SizeMin Lot Width Max Building Height
Single-family detached 6,000 SF 50 feet 45 feet / 3 stories
Single-family attached (townhouse)  N/A 18 feet 45 feet / 3 stories

Parking Requirements:
Single Family Detached: 2 spaces/dwelling unit required
Single Family Attached: 2 spaces/dwelling unit + 0.25 guest spaces/dwelling unit
Single Family parking provided by driveway and garage (min 2 spaces/lot)

Building Setbacks (minimum setbacks unless otherwise noted):
Residential: Single-family Townhouse (front loaded) Townhouse (rear loaded)
Front: 20 feet 10 feet 5 feet
Rear: 15 feet 5 feet 5 feet
Side: 6 feet 0 feet (5' for end units) 0 feet (5' for end units)
Side (Corner Lot): 8 feet 8 feet 8 feet
Min. Building Separation 10 feet 10 feet

Commercial:
Non Residential Square Footage: 25,000 SF
Maximum Building Height: 50 feet
Setbacks:
Front: (US Hwy 64) 10 feet
Rear: 10 feet
Side: 10 feet
From Buffer/RCA: 10' for Buildings/5' for Parking Areas
Parking: Per UDO Section 8.3

Maximum Build Upon Area: 33.90 acres, 70%
RCA Required: 15.20 acres

14.53 aces + 0.68 acres (30% overall + 5% Mass Grading for single-family detached)
RCA to be Provided: 15.20 acres minimum
Grading: Site to be "Mass Graded"
% of total lots to be graded prior to first plat: 50% (limited by Apex UDO to a maximum acreage for mass grading)

maximum of 20 acres of clearing for single-family detached section
% of the pre-development drainage areas that
have been preserved within their natural basins: 90%

OWNER
YELLOWBRIDGE CAPITOL, LLC
113 MILL POND ROAD
KITTY HAWK, NC 27949-4082
Contact: TOM COLHOUN
COLHOUN REAL ESTATE
P: (919) 267-6928

ENGINEER/LAND PLANNER
PEAK ENGINEERING & DESIGN, PLLC
JEFF ROACH, P.E.
5448 APEX PEAKWAY #368
APEX, NC 27502
P: (919) 439-0100
www.PeakEngineering.com

ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTANT
SOIL & ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTANTS, PA
STEVEN BALL, RF, PWS
8412 FALLS OF NEUSE ROAD, SUITE 104
RALEIGH, NC 27615
P: (919) 846-5900
www.SandEC.com

APPLICANT
LENNAR CORPORATION - RALEIGH DIVISION
STEPHEN DORN
1100 PERIMETER DRIVE SUITE 112
MORRISVILLE, NC 27560
P: (919) 224-9922
www.lennar.com

SURVEYOR
JMT (JOHNSON, MIRMIRAN & THOMPSON, INC.)
MIKE ZMUDA
1130 SITUS COURT SUITE 200
RALEIGH, NC 27606
P: (804) 267-1258
www.jmt.com

TRAFFIC ENGINEER
RAMEY KEMP & ASSOCIATES, INC.
RYNAL STEPHENSON, P.E.
5805 FARINGDON PLACE, SUITE 100
RALEIGH, NC 27609
P: (919) 872-5115
www.RameyKemp.com

SITE

SITE

- Page 509 -

AutoCAD SHX Text
project:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
No.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISION

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
title:

AutoCAD SHX Text
proj #:

AutoCAD SHX Text
date:

AutoCAD SHX Text
dwg by:

AutoCAD SHX Text
chkd by:

AutoCAD SHX Text
scale:

AutoCAD SHX Text
sheet:

AutoCAD SHX Text
seal:

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
APRIL 8, 2022

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWN OF APEX - 1ST ZONING COMMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAY 13, 2022

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWN OF APEX - 2ND ZONING COMMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
JUNE 10, 2022

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWN OF APEX - 3RD ZONING COMMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
JUNE 22, 2022

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWN OF APEX - 4TH ZONING COMMENTS



EDGE OF PVMT

O

H

EI
P

EI
P

IP
S

EI
P

IPS

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

48
" 

PL
AC

TI
C 

PI
PE

IPF

IPF

PKF

W

W

W

W

EX
IS

T.
 M

H
 "

S"
TO

P:
 2

93
.2

5
O

U
T:

 2
83

.7
5

EX
IS

T.
 M

H
 "

T"
TO

P:
 2

92
.0

6
O

U
T:

 2
74

.9
3

EX
IS

T.
 M

H
 "

U
"

TO
P:

 2
85

.15
O

U
T:

 2
62

.6
5

EX
IS

T.
 M

H
 "

V"
TO

P:
 2

77
.6

2
O

U
T:

 2
59

.6
7

EX
. S

EW
ER

 S
TU

B

EX
. S

EW
ER

 S
TU

B

PIN: 0722641860
RID: 0120752
Map: 0722 04
Owner: ANS TRUST THE
KATHIE L RUSSELL TRUSTEE
727 W HARGETT ST STE 109
RALEIGH NC 27603-1669
DB/Pg: 015463/01253
Ac: 17.49
Zoned: RR
Desc: LO1&2 CECIL & SHARON
CAMPFIELD BM1995 -00334
Site: 3001 US 64 HWY W
Township: White Oak
Land Class: Acres Greater Than
10 With House

48
" 

PL
AC

TI
C 

PI
PE

PIN: 0722653872
RID: 0126306
Map: 0722 02
Owner: ANS TRUST THE
KATHIE L RUSSELL TRUSTEE
727 W HARGETT ST STE 109
RALEIGH NC 27603-1669
DB/Pg: 015463/01250
Ac: 1.84
Zoned: RR
Desc: TRA PT CECIL & SHARON
CAMPFIELD 83-278
Site: 2933 US 64 HWY W
Township: White Oak
Land Class: Vacant

PIN: 0722652622
RID: 0168100
Map: 0722 02
Owner: ANS TRUST THE
KATHIE L RUSSELL TRUSTEE
727 W HARGETT ST STE 109
RALEIGH NC 27603-1669
DB/Pg: 015463/01250
Ac: 5.53
Zoned: RR
Desc: PT LT A PROP JOEL V
PERRY BM1985 -00522
Site: 0 US 64 HWY W
Township: White Oak
Land Class: Vacant

IN
TE

RM
IT

TE
N

T 
ST

RE
AM

 B
U

FF
ER

JO
RD

AN
 L

AK
E 

50
' W

ID
E

40
' S

EW
ER

 E
AS

EM
EN

T 
(S

CA
LE

D)

PIN: 0722762014
RID: 0047387
Map: 0722 02
Owner: ANS TRUST THE
KATHIE L RUSSELL TRUSTEE
727 W HARGETT ST STE 109
RALEIGH NC 27603-1669
DB/Pg: 015463/01246
Ac: 1.83
Zoned: RR
Desc: PROP OF CALVIN MILLS
BM2004 -698 CAMPFIELD 83-278
Site: 2901 US 64 HWY W
Township: White Oak
Land Class: Com

PIN: 0722850629
RID: 0047388
Map: 0722 02
Owner: MATTHEWS, JOSEPH T
MATTHEWS, PHILOMINA
204 CASTLE GARDEN ST
CARY NC 27513-1678
DB/Pg: 010544/00566
Ac: 7.2
Zoned: RR
Desc: TRA PROP CALVIN MILLS
ETAL BM1984 -404
Site: 2809 US 64 HWY W
Township: White Oak
Land Class: Com

PIN: 0722752304
RID: 0133648

YELLOWBRIDGE CAPITAL LLC
113 MILL POINT RD

KITTY HAWK NC 27949-4082
DB/Pg: 013508/01177

Ac: 43.90
Zoned: RR

BM2003 -00474
Site: 2817 US 64 HWY W
Township: White Oak

Land Class: Vacant

PIN: 0722743789
RID: 0138551

YELLOWBRIDGE CAPITAL LLC
113 MILL POINT RD

KITTY HAWK NC 27949-4082
DB/Pg: 013508/01181

Ac: 4.34
Zoned: RR

BM1984 -1516
Site: 2813 US 64 HWY W
Township: White Oak

Land Class:  RHS

Chanticlair Dr
(60' R/W - 35' B-B)

Bryant Pond Ln

(50' R/W - 27' B-B)

Ro
th

w
oo

d
 W

ay
(6

0'
 R

/W
 - 

35
' B

-B
)

Timkin Forest Dr
(50' R/W - 27' B-B)

PERENNIAL STREAM 'A'

PE
RE

N
N

IA
L 

ST
RE

AM
 'B

'

WETLANDS 'W2'

W
ET

LA
N

DS
 'W

3'

WETLANDS 'W4'

W
ET

LA
N

D
S 

'W
5'

PERENNIAL STREAM 'A'

IN
TE

RM
IT

TE
N

T 
ST

RE
AM

 'C
'

LINEAR W
ETLANDS 'LW

1'

LI
N

EA
R 

W
ET

LA
N

D
S 

'L
W

2'

WETLANDS
'W1'

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W

W

W

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

WV

W
V

EXIST. MH "3970"

TOP: 332.87

OUT: 322.82

E
X

I
S

T
 
8
"
 
P

V
C

 
@

 
1
.
0
%

EX 10" DIWL

EX 10" DIWL

E
X

 
1

2
"
 
D

I
W

L

EX 10" CAP W/

2" BLOW-OFF

EX 10"X12" REDUCER

E

X

 

1

5

"

 

R

C

P

E
X

 
1

5
"
 
R

C
P

EX FH

EX CB

EX CB

E
X

 
C

B

EX 10" CAP W/

2" BLOW-OFF

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

22 cedar

18 cedar

18 cedar

19 cedar

29 white oak

18 poplar

18 water oak

30 poplar

30 poplar
18 poplar

18 poplar

21 poplar

19 poplar

18 poplar

31 poplar

23 poplar22 poplar

21 poplar double stem

25 poplar

26 poplar

20 elm

18 white oak23 gum

22 red oak

19 red oak

25 red oak

19 water oak

30 red oak

40.5 white oak

18 gum

21 white oak

27 white oak

22 poplar

23 gum

22 poplar
24 poplar

20 white oak

25 red oak

22 poplar

18 red oak

28 gum40.5 post oak

21 gum double stem

22 gum

20 water oak

18 water oak21 water oak
24 water oak 21 gum

23 gum

23 gum

20 maple

22 elm

23 white oak
18 maple

19 red oak

21 poplar

32 white oak double stem

23 white oak

22 white oak

22 white oak

24 poplar
18 poplar

22 poplar

19 maple

28 gum

20 gum

19 maple

30 gum18 maple

22 gum 24 maple

18 poplar

22 gum double stem

23 gum

23 gum

19 gum
18 poplar

21 white oak
21 white oak
19 red oak

21 gum

23 white oak

26 white oak

20 gum

27 white oak

24 hickory

21 white oak

19 poplar

20 poplar

20 white oak

23 maple
18 gum

20 poplar19 poplar double stem

30 poplar

22 poplar

29 poplar

25 poplar

28 poplar

18 maple

18 poplar

27 poplar

33 poplar

20 poplar
29 poplar

18 poplar

19 gum
20 poplar18 poplar

34 willow oak

24 gum

18 poplar
19 poplar

20 poplar 18 gum
21 poplar

19 poplar

21 poplar

19 poplar

18 poplar

22 red oak

20 poplar 20 poplar22 poplar

20 poplar

29 poplar

25 gum
21 gum

21 willow oak

24 gum

26 gum

33 white oak double stem

23 gum

30 red oak

19 poplar

21 poplar

22 poplar19 gum

18 white oak

24 poplar

20 poplar

29 poplar

28 gum

23 gum23 gum
26 maple

20 gum

18 gum

21 gum

23 poplar
23 poplar

19 gum

23 poplar
18 gum

23 gum

19 poplar double stem

20 laurel oak

22 poplar

26 poplar

29 poplar

21 water oak

20 poplar

21 poplar

25 red oak
23 gum

20 poplar

21 poplar20 poplar

19 laurel oak

18 gum

20 poplar

18 water oak

21 poplar

21 water oak

27 willow oak

20 elm

25 red oak

21 maple

22 red oak

19 poplar

20 white oak

22 red oak

19 poplar

19 poplar

28 poplar

18 red oak

28 poplar
22 poplar

19 gum

21 gum

18 poplar

26 white oak

20 poplar

27 willow oak

18 poplar

20 maple

18 willow oak
26 red oak

19 willow oak

21 willow oak

18 poplar

19 maple

24 maple

26 poplar

26 poplar

21 poplar

18 gum 22 poplar

21 poplar double stem

22 poplar

22 poplar20 maple

19 gum

25 poplar

20 poplar

22 poplar

24 poplar

19 poplar

21 maple

27 red oak

18 gum

18 gum

22 poplar

22 poplar

18 poplar

18 gum

18 gum

18 maple

24 white oak

19 gum

22 poplar

19 maple

19 gum

27 live oak

18 river birch

27 poplar

18 cedar

18 cedar

26 white oak

22 white oak

32 gum

24 poplar

22 gum

20 poplar

21 poplar
20 poplar

21 poplar

19 gum
18 gum

26 white oak
24 white oak

19 gum

23 maple

23 poplar19 gum
19 poplar

18 poplar
23 poplar

20 hickory

22 white oak

26 white oak

26 poplar
21 poplar

23 poplar

23 gum

23 white oak

25 white oak
25 red oak

21 red oak

21 poplar

18 red oak

18 hickory

21 hickory

20 poplar

26 poplar

19 poplar

23 poplar

24 white oak

18 hickory

20 white oak

19 poplar

26 poplar

25 poplar

22 poplar

21 maple

18 poplar

24 poplar27 poplar

20 gum

21 white oak

19 white oak

23 white oak

20 elm

22 red oak

19 poplar

22 poplar

18 gum

19 gum

31 white oak
18 maple

20 poplar

18 gum

19 poplar
19 poplar

20 poplar

21 gum 22 gum

22 live oak

19 white oak

18 maple

22 white oak

25 white oak
21 white oak

19 gum

32 white oak

22 poplar

20 poplar
21 gum

19 gum

23 white oak

25 poplar

23 water oak

30 maple

20 gum

34 white oak

27 white oak

29 white oak

18 maple

18 red oak18 red oak

19 poplar

23 poplar

19 poplar

19 gum
23 poplar

23 poplar

25 poplar

19 white oak18 white oak

18 poplar

20 white oak

18 poplar

25 poplar

20 white oak

21 white oak

23 poplar

23 poplar

35.5 poplar

30 poplar

26 gum

22 poplar

21 maple

26 white oak

27 willow oak

24 poplar

20 white oak

22 gum

23 gum22 maple

21 poplar

19 gum

27 water oak

22 poplar

26 gum

18 hickory

23 poplar

18 gum

22 poplar

21 gum

27 red oak

26 white oak

23 gum

19 gum

18 willow oak

21 gum

20 white oak

18 gum

20 poplar

20 white oak

24 maple

27 poplar

20 poplar

18 gum

24 elm

25 white oak

19 white oak

19 white oak

23 poplar

21 poplar

29 poplar

23 gum

18 elm

21 gum

23 gum
18 gum

26 white oak

22 gum
21 poplar

22 water oak

24 red oak

21 gum

26 gum

32 white oak

26 white oak

18 poplar

19 poplar

23 poplar

22 white oak

18 poplar 18 gum

19 poplar

24 poplar

19 gum19 poplar

21 poplar

23 poplar

18 gum

25 gum

19 poplar

27 hickory

20 poplar

20 poplar

23 poplar

18 poplar

18 poplar

21 poplar

21 red oak

19 poplar

20 poplar
26 poplar

20 poplar

18 poplar

30 poplar

20 willow oak
29 poplar

24 poplar

20 willow oak
20 poplar

25 poplar

23 poplar

18 poplar
24 poplar

26 poplar
34 poplar

21 white oak

18 poplar

19 poplar

24 poplar

24 poplar

35 white oak

31 poplar

19 white oak
28 poplar

18 poplar23 poplar

18 gum
18 water oak

19 poplar

22 poplar20 poplar

22 poplar

23 willow oak

18 poplar

19 white oak

20 gum

19 gum

23 water oak

20 gum

18 poplar

21 white oak18 poplar

23 maple

20 poplar

23 poplar

22 water oak

27 white oak

35 white oak

22 white oak

18 water oak

18 gum

18 poplar

19 white oak19 gum

18 gum

19 poplar
22 maple

24 white oak

18 poplar

35 willow oak

18 poplar

26 poplar

20 gum

18 gum

19 willow oak

18 willow oak

21 poplar

21 gum

19 cedar
19 cedar

20 cedar

19 gum

19 gum

20 gum

18 gum

19 gum

27 gum

22 poplar

23 white oak

19 poplar

23 poplar18 gum
21 poplar

22 red oak

18 poplar

22 poplar

20 gum

21 willow oak18 willow oak

24 willow oak

29 willow oak

19 white oak

20 poplar

21 white oak

20 poplar

21 white oak 18 gum 18 gum

22 gum 18 hickory
21 white oak

21 poplar

18 gum

29 gum

25 gum

18 gum

28 gum

20 gum

18 willow oak

22 willow oak

18 white oak

27 white oak

18 white oak

24 poplar

22 poplar

21 red oak 18 hickory
21 white oak

25 poplar

18 poplar

34.5 white oak

33.9 white oak

19 white oak

19 white oak

24 poplar

19 poplar

18 poplar

18 poplar
20 poplar

26 white oak

28 poplar

20 poplar

19 poplar

20 white oak

18 poplar

21 gum

26 poplar

18 poplar

19 poplar

25 poplar

20 poplar

19 gum

19 poplar 19 live oak
S89° 44' 01.9"W

61.62'

S89° 44' 01.9"W

219.57'

S
0
0
°
 
2
5
'
 
0
6
.
0
"
E

3
0
.
4
0
'

S89° 36' 25.4"W

117.51'

S

2

2

°

 

2

8

'
 

4

8

"

W

S

7

0

°

 

0

5

'
 

2

7

"

W

S

7

3

°

 
3

0

'
 
3

2

"

W

S

8
2
°
 
1
7
' 
4
6
.
3
"
W

1
1
4
.
7
0
'

S

8
2
°
 
1
7
' 
4
5
.
9
"
W

8
9
.
4
5
'

N
0
3
°
 
1
5
'
 
5
6
"
E

 
 
5
4
1
0
.
7
6
'

N

8
2
°
 
5
5
' 
2
3
"
E

 
 
5
4
1
0
.
7
6
'

S
0
7
°
 
0
7
'
 
4
6
"
E

 
 
5
4
1
0
.
7
6
'

N

8
2
°
 
5
2
' 
1
4
"
E

 
 
5
4
1
0
.
7
6
'

N

0
7
°
 
0
7
'
 
4
6
"
W

 
 
5
4
1
0
.
7
6
'

N

8
2
°
 
5
5
' 
2
3
"
E

 
 
5
4
1
0
.
7
6
'

N

8
2
°
 
5
4
' 
0
5
"
E

 
 
5
4
1
0
.
7
6
'

S
8
3
°
 3

4
' 
4
4
.6

"
W

3
9
9
.9

1
'

N
0
6
°
 
2
6
'
 
2
0
.
0
"
W

4
7
2
.
2
6
'

N
8
3
°
 3

4
' 
2
8
.9

"
E

3
9
9
.9

7
'

S
0
6
°
 
2
5
'
 
5
2
.
0
"
E

4
7
2
.
2
9
'

PIN: 0722752304
RID: 0133648

YELLOWBRIDGE CAPITAL LLC
113 MILL POINT RD

KITTY HAWK NC 27949-4082
DB/Pg: 013508/01177

Ac: 43.90
Zoned: RR

BM2003 -00474
Site: 2817 US 64 HWY W
Township: White Oak

Land Class: Vacant

0

SCALE: 1" =

50 100 200

100' N

SCALE:

EXISTING CONDITIONS
1"=100'C002

1

EXISTING CONDITIONS NOTES:
1. BOUNDARY SURVEY FROM WAKE COUNTY GIS DATA

2. TOPOGRAPHIC INFORMATION FROM WAKE COUNTY GIS DATA

3. NO SLOPES EQUAL TO OR GREATER THAN 3:1 FOUND ON THE SITE.

4. NO HISTORIC INVENTORY SITES OR NATURAL INVENTORY AREAS LOCATED ON OR
WITHIN 100' OF THIS PROPERTY.

5. NO GREENWAY OR TRAILS ARE LOCATED ON THIS SITE. GREENWAY OR TRAILS
MAYBE PLANNED FOR THIS SITE AS PER THE GREENWAY MASTER PLAN.

6. TREE SURVEY INFORMATION PROVIDED BY S&EC, INC.

7. 100 YR FLOOD PLAIN IS LOCATED ON OR WITHIN 100' OF THIS PROPERTY

8. PRIMARY WATERSHED PROTECTION OVERLAY DISTRICT, BEAVER CREEK BASIN,
CAPE FEAR RIVER BASIN.

LEGEND (EXISTING CONDITIONS)

EXISTING TREE LINE

EXISTING STREAM BUFFER

EXISTING WETLANDS

STEEP SLOPE AREA (GREATER THAN 3:1)

EXISTING FLOODPLAIN BOUNDARY

EXISTING 100 YR FLOODPLAIN

EXISTING PERENNIAL STREAM

EXISTING INTERMITTENT STREAM

zone 1
zone 2

EXISTING 100YR FLOODWAY BOUNDRARYFW

EXISTING FLOOD FRINGEFWG

TREE PROTECTION FENCE
TPF

C

R

Z

C

R

Z

CRITICAL ROOT ZONE

FS

EXISTING
CONDITIONS

JR

C002

YELLOWBRIDGE POND
TO BE REMOVED

SEE POND DRAINING
PERMIT APPLICATION FOR

DESIGN

REQUIRED PLAN NOTES:

1) NO SITE DEVELOPMENT ACTIVITY INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, TESTING, CLEARING, INSTALLATION OF
S&E MEASURES, OR GRADING SHALL OCCUR UNTIL REQUIRED TREE PROTECTION FENCING HAS BEEN
INSTALLED AND INSPECTED. A TREE PROTECTION FENCING INSTALLATION PERMIT MAY BE OBTAINED AT THE
PLANNING DEPARTMENT OR ONLINE AT HTTP://WWW.APEXNC.ORG/215/APPLICATIONS-SCHEDULES.

2) TREE PROTECTION FENCING MUST BE PLACED:

a. ONE FOOT AWAY FROM ANY SAVED TREE FOR EACH INCH OF DIAMETER AT BREAST HEIGHT,

b. ALONG THE OUTSIDE LINE OF THE 100-YEAR FLOODPLAIN AND THE OUTSIDE EDGE OF ANY RIPARIAN
BUFFER, AND

c. AT LEAST 10 FEET AWAY FROM ANY OTHER DESIGNATED RCA SUCH AS, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, HISTORIC
BUILDINGS AND STRUCTURES, WETLANDS, AND PONDS.

3) ADDITIONAL TREE PROTECTION FENCING MAY BE REQUIRED IN OTHER LOCATIONS CLOSE TO
CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITY WHERE IT IS DEEMED NECESSARY BY THE ZONING ENFORCEMENT OFFICER; SUCH
AREAS MAY INCLUDE, BUT ARE NOT LIMITED TO, COMMON PROPERTY LINES OR NEAR PUBLIC AREAS
(SIDEWALKS, ETC.).

As Noted

© 2022 Peak Engineering & Design. All Rights Reserved

1
1
2
5
 
A

p
e
x
 
P

e
a
k
w

a
y
 
|
 
A

p
e
x
,
 
N

C
 
2
7
5
0
2

p
h
:
 
9
1
9
.
4
3
9
.
0
1
0
0

w
w

w
.
P

e
a
k
E

n
g
i
n
e
e
r
i
n
g
.
c
o
m

(PUD PLAN)

NC License #P-0673

210701

Y
EL

LO
W

BR
ID

G
E 

PU
D

28
13

/2
81

7 
U

S 
64

 H
W

Y
 W

E
ST

W
H

IT
E

 O
A

K
 T

O
W

N
SH

IP
A

PE
X

, N
O

R
T

H
 C

A
R

O
L

IN
A

 2
75

02

SEAL

JEFFREY  A . ROA CH

24427

E NG I N E E R

N

O

R

T

H

 

C
AR

O

L

I

N

A

P

R

O

F

E

S
S

I

O

N

A

L

PRELIMINARY

NOT FOR

CONSTRUCTION

MARCH 1, 2022

JR JR JR JR

ANS TRUST POND
TO BE REMOVED

SEE POND DRAINING
PERMIT APPLICATION FOR

DESIGN

- Page 510 -

AutoCAD SHX Text
    STATE HWY PROJECT# 8.T520904

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
12FT EX LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text
12FT EX LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.3FT EX SHOUDER

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
VAULT

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
RETAINING WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
OVERHEAD UTILITY

AutoCAD SHX Text
VANCLAYBON DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
294.46'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 82°55'10" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
218.47'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 00°50'14" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
417.16'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 82°52'35" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
298.80'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 03°10'22" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 82°32'30" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
363.70'

AutoCAD SHX Text
296.10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 07°08'06" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
949.95'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 03°10'22" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
EIP

AutoCAD SHX Text
N=   

AutoCAD SHX Text
E= 2,026,041.52'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTROL CORNER

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.C. GRID COORDINATES

AutoCAD SHX Text
BASED ON NAD-83/2011 

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMBINATION FACTOR = 0.99988369

AutoCAD SHX Text
725,991.22'

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMMERCIAL BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
B.M. 2000, PG. 924

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIN 0722.02-55-8853

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.643 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.971 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
B.M. 2000, PG. 924

AutoCAD SHX Text
B.M. 2000, PG. 924

AutoCAD SHX Text
D.B. 14366, PG. 2121

AutoCAD SHX Text
D.B. 14366, PG. 2114

AutoCAD SHX Text
40' UTILITY & PIPELINE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWN OF CARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
D.B. 14544

AutoCAD SHX Text
IPF

AutoCAD SHX Text
IPF

AutoCAD SHX Text
IPF

AutoCAD SHX Text
 280 

AutoCAD SHX Text
16" GUM

AutoCAD SHX Text
11" GUM

AutoCAD SHX Text
22" GUM

AutoCAD SHX Text
13" GUM

AutoCAD SHX Text
13" GUM

AutoCAD SHX Text
15" TWIN OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
10" OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
7" OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
18" OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
11" OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
18" TWIN OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
11" OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
15" OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
17" OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
11" OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
7" OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
7" OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
7" OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
20" OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
14" OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
15" OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
14" OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
16" OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
11" GUM

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
 320 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWN OF CARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
 325 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 325 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 275 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 275 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 275 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 280 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 280 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 285 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 280 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 280 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 285 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 285 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 285 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 285 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 285 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 290 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 290 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 290 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 290 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 290 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 290 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 295 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 295 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 295 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 295 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 295 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 295 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 295 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 295 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 295 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 295 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 300 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 300 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 300 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 300 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 300 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 300 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 300 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 300 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 300 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 300 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 300 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 305 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 305 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 305 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 305 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 305 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 305 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 305 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 305 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 305 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 305 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 305 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 310 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 310 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 310 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 310 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 310 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 310 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 310 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 310 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 310 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 310 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 310 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 310 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 310 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 310 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 310 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 315 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 315 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 315 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 315 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 315 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 315 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 315 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 315 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 315 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 320 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 320 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 320 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 320 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 320 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 320 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 320 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 325 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 325 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PG. 1426

AutoCAD SHX Text
40' UTILITY & PIPELINE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
12FT EX TURN LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text
12FT EX LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text
12FT EX LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.3FT EX SHOUDER

AutoCAD SHX Text
12FT EX LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text
12FT EX LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.3FT EX SHOUDER

AutoCAD SHX Text
12FT EX TURN LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEPTIC FIELD

AutoCAD SHX Text
WELL

AutoCAD SHX Text
project:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
No.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISION

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
title:

AutoCAD SHX Text
proj #:

AutoCAD SHX Text
date:

AutoCAD SHX Text
dwg by:

AutoCAD SHX Text
chkd by:

AutoCAD SHX Text
scale:

AutoCAD SHX Text
sheet:

AutoCAD SHX Text
seal:

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
APRIL 8, 2022

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWN OF APEX - 1ST ZONING COMMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAY 13, 2022

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWN OF APEX - 2ND ZONING COMMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
JUNE 10, 2022

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWN OF APEX - 3RD ZONING COMMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
JUNE 22, 2022

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWN OF APEX - 4TH ZONING COMMENTS



EI
P

IP
S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

IPF

IPF

W

EX
IS

T.
 M

H
 "

S"
TO

P:
 2

93
.2

5
O

U
T:

 2
83

.7
5

EX
IS

T.
 M

H
 "

T"
TO

P:
 2

92
.0

6
O

U
T:

 2
74

.9
3

EX
IS

T.
 M

H
 "

U
"

TO
P:

 2
85

.15
O

U
T:

 2
62

.6
5

EX
IS

T.
 M

H
 "

V"
TO

P:
 2

77
.6

2
O

U
T:

 2
59

.6
7

EX
. S

EW
ER

 S
TU

B

EX
. S

EW
ER

 S
TU

B

PIN: 0722641860
RID: 0120752
Map: 0722 04
Owner: ANS TRUST THE
KATHIE L RUSSELL TRUSTEE
727 W HARGETT ST STE 109
RALEIGH NC 27603-1669
DB/Pg: 015463/01253
Ac: 17.49
Zoned: RR
Desc: LO1&2 CECIL & SHARON
CAMPFIELD BM1995 -00334
Site: 3001 US 64 HWY W
Township: White Oak
Land Class: Acres Greater Than
10 With House

48
" 

PL
AC

TI
C 

PI
PE

PIN: 0722653872
RID: 0126306
Map: 0722 02
Owner: ANS TRUST THE
KATHIE L RUSSELL TRUSTEE
727 W HARGETT ST STE 109
RALEIGH NC 27603-1669
DB/Pg: 015463/01250
Ac: 1.84
Zoned: RR
Desc: TRA PT CECIL & SHARON
CAMPFIELD 83-278
Site: 2933 US 64 HWY W
Township: White Oak
Land Class: Vacant

PIN: 0722652622
RID: 0168100
Map: 0722 02
Owner: ANS TRUST THE
KATHIE L RUSSELL TRUSTEE
727 W HARGETT ST STE 109
RALEIGH NC 27603-1669
DB/Pg: 015463/01250
Ac: 5.53
Zoned: RR
Desc: PT LT A PROP JOEL V
PERRY BM1985 -00522
Site: 0 US 64 HWY W
Township: White Oak
Land Class: Vacant

IN
TE

RM
IT

TE
N

T 
ST

RE
AM

 B
U

FF
ER

JO
RD

AN
 L

AK
E 

50
' W

ID
E

PIN: 0722762014
RID: 0047387
Map: 0722 02
Owner: ANS TRUST THE
KATHIE L RUSSELL TRUSTEE
727 W HARGETT ST STE 109
RALEIGH NC 27603-1669
DB/Pg: 015463/01246
Ac: 1.83
Zoned: RR
Desc: PROP OF CALVIN MILLS
BM2004 -698 CAMPFIELD 83-278
Site: 2901 US 64 HWY W
Township: White Oak
Land Class: Com

PIN: 0722850629
RID: 0047388
Map: 0722 02
Owner: MATTHEWS, JOSEPH T
MATTHEWS, PHILOMINA
204 CASTLE GARDEN ST
CARY NC 27513-1678
DB/Pg: 010544/00566
Ac: 7.2
Zoned: RR
Desc: TRA PROP CALVIN MILLS
ETAL BM1984 -404
Site: 2809 US 64 HWY W
Township: White Oak
Land Class: Com

PIN: 0722752304
RID: 0133648

YELLOWBRIDGE CAPITAL LLC
113 MILL POINT RD

KITTY HAWK NC 27949-4082
DB/Pg: 013508/01177

Ac: 43.90
Zoned: RR

BM2003 -00474
Site: 2817 US 64 HWY W
Township: White Oak

Land Class: Vacant

Chanticlair Dr
(60' R/W - 35' B-B)

Bryant Pond Ln

(50' R/W - 27' B-B)

Ro
th

w
oo

d
 W

ay
(6

0'
 R

/W
 - 

35
' B

-B
)

Timkin Forest Dr
(50' R/W - 27' B-B)

F
W

F
W

F
W

PERENNIAL STREAM 'A'

PE
RE

N
N

IA
L 

ST
RE

AM
 'B

'

WETLANDS 'W2'

W
ET

LA
N

DS
 'W

3'

WETLANDS 'W4'

PERENNIAL STREAM 'A'

LI
N

EA
R 

W
ET

LA
N

D
S 

'L
W

2'

W
W

W
W

W W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W

W

W

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

WV

W
V

EXIST. MH "3970"

TOP: 332.87

OUT: 322.82

E
X

I
S

T
 
8
"
 
P

V
C

 
@

 
1
.
0
%

EX 10" DIWL

EX 10" DIWL

E
X

 
1

2
"
 
D

I
W

L

EX 10" CAP W/

2" BLOW-OFF

EX 10"X12" REDUCER

E

X

 

1

5

"

 

R

C

P

E
X

 
1
5
"
 
R

C
P

EX FH

EX CB

EX CB

E
X

 
C

B

EX 10" CAP W/

2" BLOW-OFF

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

PIN: 0722752304
RID: 0133648

YELLOWBRIDGE CAPITAL LLC
113 MILL POINT RD

KITTY HAWK NC 27949-4082
DB/Pg: 013508/01177

Ac: 43.90
Zoned: RR

BM2003 -00474
Site: 2817 US 64 HWY W
Township: White Oak

Land Class: Vacant

10' BUFFER (TYPE 'B')

30' BUFFER (TYPE 'A')

50' BUFFER (TYPE 'A')

SUPPLEMENTAL BUFFER

100' BUFFER (TYPE 'E')

(UNDISTURBED)

50' BUFFER (TYPE 'A')

10
' B

UF
FE

R 
(T

YP
E 

'B
')

50' BUFFER (TYPE 'A')

20
' B

UF
FE

R 
(T

YP
E 

'B
')

G
A

S 
EA

SE
M

EN
T

(O
PE

N
 S

PA
C

E)

20
' B

UF
FE

R 
(T

YP
E 

'B
')

UN
D

IS
TU

RB
ED

CHANTICLAIR DR.
(60' PUBLIC R/W)

MAJOR COLLECTOR

EXISTING CHANTICLAIR DR.
ABBINGTON

20
' B

UF
FE

R 
(T

YP
E 

'B
')

ROADWAY STUB
TO ADJACENT
PROPERTY

SITE ACCESS TO US 64 SHALL BE
COORDINATED WITH NCDOT AND THE
TOWN OF APEX FOR FINAL GEOMETRY.

GRAVITY SEWER EXTENSION
FROM EXISTING TOWN OF
CARY OUTFALL

ROADWAY STUBS TO BE COORDINATED
WITH THE TOWN OF APEX DURING MASTER

SUBDIVISION PLAN DESIGN AND REVIEW.

EASEMENT FOR FUTURE
CONNECTION BY OTHERS

50' BUFFER (TYPE 'A
')

50' BUFFER (TYPE 'A')

10' BUFFER (TYPE 'D')

10' BUFFER (TYPE 'D')

10' BUFFER (TYPE 'D') 10' BUFFER (TYPE 'D')

10' BUFFER (TYPE 'D')

10' BUFFER (TYPE 'D')

10
' B

UF
FE

R 
(T

YP
E 

'B
')

50' BUFFER (TYPE 'A')

SUPPLEMENTAL BUFFER

20' TOTAL
TYPE 'A' BUFFER

As Noted

© 2022 Peak Engineering & Design. All Rights Reserved

1
1
2
5
 
A

p
e
x
 
P

e
a
k
w

a
y
 
|
 
A

p
e
x
,
 
N

C
 
2
7
5
0
2

p
h
:
 
9
1
9
.
4
3
9
.
0
1
0
0

w
w

w
.
P

e
a
k
E

n
g
i
n
e
e
r
i
n
g
.
c
o
m

(PUD PLAN)

NC License #P-0673

210701

Y
EL

LO
W

BR
ID

G
E 

PU
D

28
13

/2
81

7 
U

S 
64

 H
W

Y
 W

E
ST

W
H

IT
E

 O
A

K
 T

O
W

N
SH

IP
A

PE
X

, N
O

R
T

H
 C

A
R

O
L

IN
A

 2
75

02

SEAL

JEFFREY  A . ROA CH

24427

E NG I N E E R

N

O

R

T

H

 

C
AR

O

L

I

N

A

P

R

O

F

E

S
S

I

O

N

A

L

PRELIMINARY

NOT FOR

CONSTRUCTION

MARCH 1, 2022

JR JR JR JR

0

SCALE: 1" =

50 100 200

100'

SCALE:

CONCEPTUAL UTILITY PLAN
1"=100'C100

1

N

FS

CONCEPTUAL
SITE PLAN/

CONCEPTUAL
UTILITY PLAN

JR

C100

POTENTIAL ACCESS
POINTS

PROJECT
PERIMETER
BOUNDARY

PLAN SHEETS ARE INTENDED
FOR ILLUSTRATIVE USE ONLY

COMMERCIAL
DEVELOPMENT

BUFFERS/
RCA SINGLE FAMILY -

DETACHED

SINGLE FAMILY
DETACHED

PERIMETER BUFFER AND RCA AS SHOWN

ADJACENT TO ABBINGTON SHALL BE CLEARED

AND GRADING; A 3' BERM INSTALLED; A 6'

WOOD SCREEN FENCE ADDED ALONG THE

INTERIOR OF THE BUFFER; AND THE AREA

REPLANTED TO TYPE 'A' BUFFER STANDARDS.

SINGLE FAMILY
ATTACHED OR DETACHED

COMMERCIAL

SINGLE FAMILY
DETACHED

SCM

SCM

SCM

SINGLE FAMILY-
ATTACHED
(TOWNHOUSE)

PROPOSED WATER
CONNECTIONS

CONCEPTUAL SITE PLAN/

CONCEPTUAL
PLAYLAWN /
OPEN SPACE

SITE AND UTILITY NOTES:
1. DEVELOPMENT ACCESS AND STUB STREET LOCATIONS SHALL BE FINALIZED AT MASTER

SUBDIVISION PLAN DESIGN AND APPROVAL.

2. FINAL RESOURCE CONSERVATION AREA (RCA), OPEN SPACE, AND PLAY LAWN LOCATIONS
SHALL BE COORDINATED WITH STAFF AND BUILDER DURING MASTER SUBDIVISION PLAN DESIGN
AND APPROVAL.

3. ALL ZONING PLAN SHEETS ARE PROVIDED FOR ILLUSTRATIVE PURPOSES ONLY. FINAL DESIGN
COMPONENTS ARE DETERMINED AT MASTER SUBDIVISION PLAN.

4. REFER TO PD TEXT DOCUMENTS FOR A LIST OF ALLOWABLE USES, ZONING CONDITIONS, AND
OTHER DESIGN STANDARDS FOR THE DEVELOPMENT.

5. ENVIRONMENTAL FEATURES ARE SUBJECT TO FINAL REVIEW CONCURRENCE WITH VARIOUS
REGULATING AGENCIES.

6. PUBLIC PEDESTRIAN AND VEHICULAR ACCESS IS SHOWN FOR CONCEPTUAL PURPOSES AND ARE
SUBJECT TO REVISIONS DURING THE MASTER SUBDIVISION PLAN DESIGN AND APPROVAL.

7. ALL SITE ELEMENTS ARE REQUIRED TO MEET OR EXCEED TOWN OF APEX, NCDOT, OR OTHER
REVIEW AUTHORITY STANDARD DESIGN SPECIFICATIONS.

8. PROJECT WILL COMPLY WITH ADOPTED TOWN MASTER PLANS INCLUDING TRANSPORTATION,
WATER, SEWER, AND GREENWAYS.

9. THE PROJECT IS REQUESTING FULL TOWN SERVICES, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO WATER,
SEWER AND ELECTRICITY.

10. THE PROJECT WILL NOT UTILIZE PRIVATE SEWAGE DISPOSAL.

PERIMETER BUFFER AND RCA AS SHOWN

ADJACENT TO ABBINGTON SHALL REMAIN

UNDISTURBED AND SUPPLEMENTED TO

TYPE 'A' BUFFER STANDARDS WITH A FENCE

*
*

*

*

*

PROPOSED
SEWER CONNECTIONS

POTENTIAL ACCESS POINTS:
Potential Access Points shown on the Conceptual Site Plan / Conceptual Utility Plan (C100)
are not shown in exact locations but show required connections. Connections can only be
removed from the subdivision connectivity requirements of the PUD if the developer shows
to the satisfaction of the Planning Director, in consultation with the Technical Review
Committee (TRC), that the construction of the connection would be impractical based on
environmental conditions found in the field at the time of Master Subdivision Plan approval.

- Page 511 -

AutoCAD SHX Text
298.80'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 03°10'22" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
949.95'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 03°10'22" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
EIP

AutoCAD SHX Text
N=   

AutoCAD SHX Text
E= 2,026,041.52'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTROL CORNER

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.C. GRID COORDINATES

AutoCAD SHX Text
BASED ON NAD-83/2011 

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMBINATION FACTOR = 0.99988369

AutoCAD SHX Text
725,991.22'

AutoCAD SHX Text
B.M. 2000, PG. 924

AutoCAD SHX Text
B.M. 2000, PG. 924

AutoCAD SHX Text
D.B. 14366, PG. 2121

AutoCAD SHX Text
D.B. 14366, PG. 2114

AutoCAD SHX Text
40' UTILITY & PIPELINE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWN OF CARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
IPF

AutoCAD SHX Text
17" OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
11" OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
7" OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
7" OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
7" OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
20" OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWN OF CARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
40' UTILITY & PIPELINE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
12FT EX TURN LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text
12FT EX LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text
12FT EX LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.3FT EX SHOUDER

AutoCAD SHX Text
12FT EX LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text
12FT EX LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.3FT EX SHOUDER

AutoCAD SHX Text
12FT EX TURN LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEPTIC FIELD

AutoCAD SHX Text
WELL

AutoCAD SHX Text
project:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
No.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISION

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
title:

AutoCAD SHX Text
proj #:

AutoCAD SHX Text
date:

AutoCAD SHX Text
dwg by:

AutoCAD SHX Text
chkd by:

AutoCAD SHX Text
scale:

AutoCAD SHX Text
sheet:

AutoCAD SHX Text
seal:

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
APRIL 8, 2022

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWN OF APEX - 1ST ZONING COMMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAY 13, 2022

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWN OF APEX - 2ND ZONING COMMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
JUNE 10, 2022

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWN OF APEX - 3RD ZONING COMMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
JUNE 22, 2022

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWN OF APEX - 4TH ZONING COMMENTS



rameykemp.com

Transportation 
Consulting
that moves us 
forward. 

Moving forward.

Yellow Bridge Residential
Traffic Impact Analysis
Apex, North Carolina

- Page 512 -



 

 

 

 

 

TRAFFIC IMPACT 
ANALYSIS 

 
 

FOR 
 

 

YELLOW BRIDGE RESIDENTIAL 
 

 
LOCATED 

 
IN 

 

APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
 

 

 

 
Prepared For: 

Lennar Corporation – Raleigh Division 
1100 Perimeter Park Drive, Suite 112 

Morrisville, NC 27560 

 

 
Prepared By: 

Ramey Kemp & Associates, Inc. 
5808 Faringdon Place, Suite 100 

Raleigh, NC 27609 
License #C-0910  

 

 
FEBRUARY 2022 

 

 
RKA Project No. 22004 

Prepared By: TF 

Reviewed By: NB 

2/28/22 

- Page 513 -



 

 

TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 

YELLOW BRIDGE 

APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 

1.  Development Overview  

A Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA) was conducted for the proposed Yellow Bridge Residential 

development in accordance with the Town of Apex (Town) Unified Development Ordinance 

(UDO) and North Carolina Department of Transportation (NCDOT) capacity analysis guidelines. 

The proposed development is to be located south of US 64 and west of the Abbington subdivision 

in Apex, North Carolina. The proposed development is expected to consist of 59 single-family 

homes, 83 townhomes, and 25,000 square feet (sq. ft.) of retail space to be built out in 2026. Site 

access is proposed via one (1) left-over driveway along US 64 at the existing median break, and 

one (1) internal connection to Chanticlair Drive.  

 

2.  Existing Traffic Conditions 

The study area for the TIA was determined through coordination with the Town and NCDOT 

and consists of the following existing intersections:  

• US 64 and Median Break 

 
Existing peak hour traffic volumes were determined based on a combination of previously 

collected traffic counts at the intersection of US 64 and Jenks Road / Richardson Road, and new 

turning movement counts conducted at the existing median break. Previously conducted traffic 

counts at the intersection of US 64 and Jenks Road / Richardson Road were collected in October 

2021 during typical weekday AM (7:00 AM – 9:00 AM) and PM (4:00 PM – 6:00 PM) peak periods, 

while schools were in session for in person learning. These previously conducted counts were 

utilized to determine through volume traffic at the median break. Turning movement volumes at 

the median break were determined based on traffic counts conducted at the existing median 

break, in January 2022, during a typical weekday AM (7:00 AM – 9:00 AM) and PM (4:00 PM – 

6:00 PM) peak periods, while schools were in session for in person learning. Weekday AM and 

PM traffic volumes were balanced between study intersections, where appropriate. 

- Page 514 -



Yellow Bridge Residential – Apex, NC | E-2 

 

 

  

3.  Site Trip Generation 

The proposed development is assumed to consist of a maximum of 59 single-family homes, 83 

townhomes, and 25,000 square feet (sq. ft.) of retail space.  Average weekday daily, AM peak 

hour, and PM peak hour trips for the proposed development were estimated using methodology 

contained within the ITE Trip Generation Manual, 10th Edition.  Table E-1 provides a summary of 

the trip generation potential for the site.  

 
Table E-1: Site Trip Generation  

Land Use 

(ITE Code) 
Intensity 

Daily 

Traffic 
(vpd) 

Weekday 
AM Peak 

Hour Trips 
(vph) 

Weekday 
PM Peak 

Hour Trips 
(vph) 

Enter Exit Enter Exit 

Single-Family Homes 
(210) 

59 DU 640 12 35 38 23 

Multi-Family Homes (Low-Rise) 
(220) 

83 DU 588 9 31 31 19 

Shopping Center 
(820) 

25 KSF 944 15 9 45 50 

Total Trips 2,172 36 75 114 92 

Internal Capture 
(2% AM & 1% PM)* 

0 -2 -11 -12 

Total External Trips 36 73 103 80 

Pass-By Trips: Shopping Center 
(34% PM) 

- - -14 -14 

Total Primary Trips 36 73 89 66 

*Utilizing methodology contained in the NCHRP Report 684.  

 
4.  Future Traffic Conditions 

Through coordination with the Town and NCDOT, it was determined that an annual growth rate 

of 3% would be used to generate 2026 projected weekday AM and PM peak hour traffic volumes. 

The following adjacent developments were identified to be considered under future conditions: 

• Westford Residential (currently 75% built-out) 

• Legacy PUD (US 64 Residential) 

• Sweetwater Development  

 

- Page 515 -



Yellow Bridge Residential – Apex, NC | E-3 

 

 

  

The study analyzes traffic conditions during the weekday AM and PM peak hours for the 

following scenarios: 

• 2022 Existing Traffic Conditions 

• 2026 No-Build Traffic Conditions 

• 2026 Build Traffic Conditions 

 

5.  Capacity Analysis Summary 

The analysis considered weekday AM and PM peak hour traffic for 2018 existing, 2022 no-build, 

and 2022 build conditions. Refer to Section 7 of the TIA for the capacity analysis summary 

performed at each study intersection. 

 

6.  Recommendations 

Based on the findings of this study, specific geometric and traffic control improvements have 

been identified at study intersections. The improvements are summarized below and are 

illustrated in Figure E-1.  

 

Recommended Improvements by Developer 

US 64 and Median Break / Site Access 

• Construct the northbound approach (Site Access) with one ingress and one egress 

lane striped as an exclusive right-turn lane. 

• Provide stop-control for the northbound approach (Site Access). The proposed 

intersection will be configured as a left-over. 

• Construct an exclusive eastbound (US 64) right-turn lane with a minimum of 100 

feet of storage and appropriate decel and taper.  

• Restripe the existing westbound (US 64) u-turn lane to provide for a westbound 

left-turn movement.  

 

US 64 and Eastern U-Turn Location 

• Construct an exclusive eastbound (US 64) u-turn lane with a minimum of 100 feet 

of storage and appropriate decel and taper to be located east of the existing 

median break and proposed site driveway location.  

- Page 516 -



Yellow Bridge Residential
Apex, NC

Scale: Not to Scale

E-4

Figure E-1

 Recommended Lane 
Configurations

SITE

Si
te

 
A

cc
es

s
64

325' 100'

100'

325'

LEGEND

Signalized Intersection

Unsignalized Intersection

Existing Lane

X' Storage (In Feet)

Improvement by Developer

Chanticlair 
Drive

*

*Note: Roadway included for 
informational purposes only

- Page 517 -



Yellow Bridge Residential – Apex, NC | i 

 

 

 TABLE OF CONTENTS 

1. INTRODUCTION .................................................................................. 1 

1.1. Site Location and Study Area ....................................................... 1 

1.2. Proposed Land Use and Site Access .............................................. 2 

1.3. Adjacent Land Uses .................................................................... 2 

1.4. Existing Roadways ..................................................................... 2 

2. 2022 EXISTING PEAK HOUR CONDITIONS .......................................... 6 

2.1. 2022 Existing Peak Hour Traffic Volumes ...................................... 6 

2.2. Analysis of 2022 Existing Peak Hour Traffic Conditions .................... 6 

3. 2026 NO-BUILD PEAK HOUR CONDITIONS ......................................... 8 

3.1. Ambient Traffic Growth ............................................................... 8 

3.2. Adjacent Development Traffic ...................................................... 8 

3.3. Future Roadway Improvements ................................................... 9 

3.4. 2026 No-Build Peak Hour Traffic Volumes ................................... 10 

3.5. Analysis of 2026 No-Build Peak Hour Traffic Conditions ................. 10 

4. SITE TRIP GENERATION AND DISTRIBUTION ................................... 14 

4.1. Trip Generation ........................................................................ 14 

4.2. Site Trip Distribution and Assignment ......................................... 15 

5. 2026 BUILD TRAFFIC CONDITIONS .................................................. 24 

5.1. 2026 Build Peak Hour Traffic Volumes ........................................ 24 

5.2. Analysis of 2026 Build Peak Hour Traffic Conditions ...................... 24 

6. TRAFFIC ANALYSIS PROCEDURE ....................................................... 26 

6.1. Adjustments to Analysis Guidelines ............................................ 27 

7. CAPACITY ANALYSIS ........................................................................ 28 

7.1. US 64 and Median Break / Site Access ........................................ 28 

7.2. US 64 and Future Eastern U-Turn Location .................................. 30 

8. CONCLUSIONS .................................................................................. 31 

9. RECOMMENDATIONS ......................................................................... 33 

 

  

- Page 518 -



Yellow Bridge Residential – Apex, NC | ii 

 

 

LIST OF FIGURES 

Figure 1 – Site Location Map ............................................................... 3 

Figure 2 – Preliminary Site Plan ........................................................... 4 

Figure 3 – Existing Lane Configurations ................................................ 5 

Figure 4 – 2022 Existing Peak Hour Traffic............................................ 7 

Figure 5 – 2026 Projected Peak Hour Traffic ........................................ 11 

Figure 6 – Adjacent Development Trips ............................................... 12 

Figure 7 – 2026 No-Build Peak Hour Traffic.......................................... 13 

Figure 8A – Residential Site Trip Distribution ....................................... 17 

Figure 8B – Commercial Site Trip Distribution ...................................... 18 

Figure 9A – Residential Site Trip Assignment ....................................... 19 

Figure 9B – Commercial Site Trip Assignment ...................................... 20 

Figure 10 – Pass-By Site Trip Distribution ............................................ 21 

Figure 11 – Pass-by Site Trip Assignment ............................................ 22 

Figure 12 – Total Site Trip Assignment ................................................ 23 

Figure 13 – 2026 Build Peak Hour Traffic ............................................. 25 

Figure 14 – Recommended Lane Configurations ................................... 34 

 

LIST OF TABLES 

Table 1: Existing Roadway Inventory .................................................... 2 

Table 2: Adjacent Development Information .......................................... 9 

Table 3: Trip Generation Summary ..................................................... 14 

Table 4: Highway Capacity Manual – Levels-of-Service and Delay ........... 26 

Table 5: Analysis Summary of US 64 and Median Break / Site Access ..... 28 

Table 6: Analysis Summary of US 64 and Future Eastern U-Turn Location 30 

 

- Page 519 -



Yellow Bridge Residential – Apex, NC | iii 

 

 

TECHNICAL APPENDIX 

Appendix A:  Scoping Documentation 

Appendix B: Traffic Counts 

Appendix C: Adjacent Development Information 

Appendix D:  Capacity Calculations – US 64 & Median Break 

Appendix E: Capacity Calculations – US 64 & Future Eastern U-Turn 

Location 

Appendix F:  SimTraffic Queueing & Performance Results 

Appendix G:  ITRE 95th Percentile Queue Length Calculations 

Appendix H:  Turn Lane Warrants 

Appendix I:  Trip Generation Comparison 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

- Page 520 -



 

 

TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 

YELLOW BRIDGE RESIDENTIAL 

APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 

 

1. INTRODUCTION 

The contents of this report present the findings of the Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA) 

conducted for the proposed Yellow Bridge Residential development located south of US 64 

and west of the Abbington subdivision in Apex, North Carolina. The purpose of this study 

is to determine the potential impacts to the surrounding transportation system created by 

traffic generated by the proposed development, as well as recommend improvements to 

mitigate the impacts.  

 

The proposed development, anticipated to be completed in 2026, is assumed to consist of 

the following uses: 

• 59 single-family homes 

• 83 townhomes 

• 25,000 square feet (sq. ft.) retail space 

 

The study analyzes traffic conditions during the weekday AM and PM peak hours for the 

following scenarios: 

• 2022 Existing Traffic Conditions 

• 2026 No-Build Traffic Conditions 

• 2026 Build Traffic Conditions 

 

1.1. Site Location and Study Area 

The proposed development is located south of US 64 and west of the Abbington subdivision 

in Apex, North Carolina. Refer to Figure 1 for the site location map. 

 

The study area for the TIA was determined through coordination with the North Carolina 

Department of Transportation (NCDOT) and the Town of Apex (Town) and consists of the 

following existing intersections: 

- Page 521 -



Yellow Bridge Residential – Apex, NC | 2 

 

 

• US 64 and Median Break 

 

Refer to Appendix A for the approved scoping documentation.  

 

1.2. Proposed Land Use and Site Access 

The site is located south of US 64 and west of the Abbington subdivision. The proposed 

development, anticipated to be completed in 2026, is assumed to consist of the following 

uses: 

• 59 single-family homes 

• 83 townhomes 

• 25,000 square feet (sq. ft.) retail space 

 

Site access is proposed via one (1) left-over driveway along US 64 at the existing median 

break, and one (1) internal connection to Chanticlair Drive. Refer to Figure 2 for a copy of 

the preliminary site plan. 

 

1.3. Adjacent Land Uses 

The proposed development is located in an area consisting primarily of commercial and 

residential development.  

 

1.4. Existing Roadways 

Existing lane configurations (number of traffic lanes on each intersection approach), lane 

widths, storage capacities, and other intersection and roadway information within the study 

area are shown in Figure 3. Table 1 provides a summary of this information, as well. 

 

Table 1: Existing Roadway Inventory 

Road Name 
Route 

Number 

Typical 
Cross 

Section 

Speed Limit 
Maintained 

By 
2019 AADT 

(vpd) 

US 64 
4-lane 

divided 
55 mph NCDOT 27,000 

- Page 522 -



Yellow Bridge Residential
Apex, NC

Scale: Not to Scale

N

LEGEND

Proposed Site Location
Study Intersection
Study Area

Site Location Map

PROPOSED
SITE

Figure 1

64

3

- Page 523 -



- Page 524 -



Yellow Bridge Residential
Apex, NC

Scale: Not to Scale

N

64

2022 Existing
Lane Configurations

Figure 3

Unsignalized Intersection

Existing Lane

X' Storage (In Feet)
SPEED
LIMIT
XX

Posted Speed Limit

LEGEND

325'

325'

SPEED
LIMIT

 55

5

- Page 525 -



Yellow Bridge Residential – Apex, NC | 6 

 

 

2. 2022 EXISTING PEAK HOUR CONDITIONS 

2.1. 2022 Existing Peak Hour Traffic Volumes 

Existing peak hour traffic volumes were determined based on a combination of previously 

collected traffic counts at the intersection of US 64 and Jenks Road / Richardson Road, and 

new turning movement counts conducted at the existing median break. Previously 

conducted traffic counts at the intersection of US 64 and Jenks Road / Richardson Road 

were collected in October 2021 during typical weekday AM (7:00 AM – 9:00 AM) and PM 

(4:00 PM – 6:00 PM) peak periods, while schools were in session for in person learning. 

These previously conducted counts were utilized to determine through volume traffic at the 

median break. Turning movement volumes at the median break were determined based on 

traffic counts conducted at the existing median break, in January 2022, during a typical 

weekday AM (7:00 AM – 9:00 AM) and PM (4:00 PM – 6:00 PM) peak periods, while schools 

were in session for in person learning. Weekday AM and PM traffic volumes were balanced 

between study intersections, where appropriate. Refer to Figure 4 for 2022 existing weekday 

AM and PM peak hour traffic volumes. A copy of the count data is located in Appendix B of 

this report.  

 

2.2. Analysis of 2022 Existing Peak Hour Traffic Conditions 

The 2022 existing weekday AM and PM peak hour traffic volumes were analyzed to 

determine the current levels of service at the study intersections under existing roadway 

conditions. The results of the analysis are presented in Section 7 of this report. 

- Page 526 -



Yellow Bridge Residential
Apex, NC

Scale: Not to Scale

N

64

1277/1622
2/3

8/16
1650/1596

2022 Existing
Peak Hour Traffic

Figure 4

Unsignalized Intersection

Weekday AM / PM Peak 
Hour Traffic

X / Y

LEGEND

7

- Page 527 -



Yellow Bridge Residential – Apex, NC | 8 

 

 

3. 2026 NO-BUILD PEAK HOUR CONDITIONS 

In order to account for growth of traffic and subsequent traffic conditions at a future year, 

no-build traffic projections are needed. No-build traffic is the component of traffic due to the 

growth of the community and surrounding area that is anticipated to occur regardless of 

whether or not the proposed development is constructed. No-build traffic is comprised of 

existing traffic growth within the study area and additional traffic created as a result of 

adjacent approved developments. 

 

3.1. Ambient Traffic Growth 

Through coordination with the Town and NCDOT, it was determined that an annual 

growth rate of 3% would be used to generate 2026 projected weekday AM and PM peak 

hour traffic volumes. Refer to Figure 5 for 2026 projected peak hour traffic. 

 

3.2. Adjacent Development Traffic 

Through coordination with the Town and NCDOT, the following adjacent developments 

were identified to be included as an approved adjacent development in this study: 

• Westford Residential (currently 75% built-out) 

• Legacy PUD (US 64 Residential) 

• Sweetwater Development - Commercial 

 

Table 2, on the following page, provides a summary of the adjacent developments.  

 

- Page 528 -



Yellow Bridge Residential – Apex, NC | 9 

 

 

Table 2: Adjacent Development Information 

Development 
Name 

Location 
Build-Out 

Year 
Land Use / Intensity 

TIA 
Performed 

Westford 
Residential 

North of US 64 and 
east of Jenks Road 

2019* 
90 single-family homes 

300 apartments 
225 townhomes 

December 
2016 by 

Kimley-Horn 

Legacy PUD 
(US 64 

Residential) 

South of US 64, 
west of the former 
Tee-to-Green site 

2026 

75 single-family homes 
400 apartments 

11,000 sq. ft. Day Care 
3,500 sq. ft. FF Restaurant 

July 2021 by 
Kimley-Horn 

(Phase 2 TIA 
Addendum) 

Sweetwater 
Development 

South of the US 64 
and Jenks Road / 
Richardson Road 

intersection 

2019** 

375 single-family homes 
60 condominiums 

50,000 sq. ft. office space 
200,000 sq. ft. retail space 

7,000 sq. ft. HTSD 
1,490 sq. ft. FF w/ DT 
4-lane Drive-In Bank 

December 
2014 by RKA 

*Assumed currently 75% built-out.  
**Residential portion is assumed fully built-out. 
 

Based on coordination with the Town and NCDOT, it was assumed that the Westford 

Residential development is currently approximately 75% built-out at the time of scoping 

and therefore a portion of development site traffic is captured in the existing traffic counts. 

Similarly, it was assumed that the residential portion of the Sweetwater development was 

constructed at the time of data collection and therefore the associated trips were not 

considered in the calculation of adjacent development traffic. 

 

It should be noted that the adjacent developments were approved, during scoping, by the 

Town and NCDOT. Adjacent development trips are shown in Figure 6. Adjacent 

development information can be found in Appendix C. 

 

3.3. Future Roadway Improvements 

Based on coordination with the NCDOT and the Town, it was determined there were no 

future roadway improvements to consider with this study. 

 

- Page 529 -



Yellow Bridge Residential – Apex, NC | 10 

 

 

3.4. 2026 No-Build Peak Hour Traffic Volumes 

The 2026 no-build traffic volumes were determined by projecting the 2022 existing peak 

hour traffic to the year 2026, and adding the adjacent development trips. Refer to Figure 7 

for an illustration of the 2026 no-build peak hour traffic volumes at the study intersections. 

 

3.5. Analysis of 2026 No-Build Peak Hour Traffic Conditions 

The 2026 no-build AM and PM peak hour traffic volumes at the study intersections were 

analyzed with future geometric roadway conditions and traffic control. The analysis results 

are presented in Section 7 of this report. 

- Page 530 -



Yellow Bridge Residential
Apex, NC

Scale: Not to Scale

N

64

2026 Projected 
Peak Hour Traffic

Figure 5

1480/1880
2/3

9/19
1913/1850

Unsignalized Intersection

Weekday AM / PM Peak 
Hour Traffic

X / Y

LEGEND

11

- Page 531 -



Yellow Bridge Residential
Apex, NC

Scale: Not to Scale

N

64

 Peak Hour Adjacent 
Development Trips 

Figure 6

327/343
0/0

0/0
318/408

Unsignalized Intersection

Weekday AM / PM Peak Hour 
Adjacent Development Trips

X / Y

LEGEND

12

- Page 532 -



Yellow Bridge Residential
Apex, NC

Scale: Not to Scale

N

64

 2026 No-Build 
Peak Hour Traffic

Figure 7

1807/2223
2/3

9/19
2231/2258

Unsignalized Intersection

Weekday AM / PM Peak 
Hour Traffic

X / Y

LEGEND

13

- Page 533 -



Yellow Bridge Residential – Apex, NC | 14 

 

 

4. SITE TRIP GENERATION AND DISTRIBUTION 

4.1. Trip Generation 

The proposed development is assumed to consist of 59 single-family homes, 86 townhomes, 

and 25,000 sq. ft. of retail space. Average weekday daily, AM peak hour, and PM peak hour 

trips for the proposed development were estimated using methodology contained within 

the ITE Trip Generation Manual, 10th Edition. Table 3 provides a summary of the trip 

generation potential for the site. It should be noted that several trip generation scenarios 

were considered and that the most conservative scenario was considered in the analysis. 

Refer to Appendix I for a summary of the proposed densities considered and a comparison 

of the expected trip generations.  

 

Table 3: Trip Generation Summary 

Land Use 

(ITE Code) 
Intensity 

Daily 
Traffic 
(vpd) 

Weekday 
AM Peak 

Hour Trips 
(vph) 

Weekday 
PM Peak 

Hour Trips 
(vph) 

Enter Exit Enter Exit 

Single-Family Homes 
(210) 

59 DU 640 12 35 38 23 

Multi-Family Homes (Low-Rise) 
(220) 

83 DU 588 9 31 31 19 

Shopping Center 
(820) 

25 KSF 944 15 9 45 50 

Total Trips 2,172 36 75 114 92 

Internal Capture 
(2% AM & 1% PM)* 

0 -2 -11 -12 

Total External Trips 36 73 103 80 

Pass-By Trips: Shopping Center 
(34% PM) 

- - -14 -14 

Total Primary Trips 36 73 89 66 

*Utilizing methodology contained in the NCHRP Report 684.  

 

It is estimated that the proposed development will generate approximately 2,172 total site 

trips on the roadway network during a typical 24-hour weekday period. Of the daily traffic 

volume, it is anticipated that 111 trips (36 entering and 75 exiting) will occur during the 

- Page 534 -



Yellow Bridge Residential – Apex, NC | 15 

 

 

weekday AM peak hour and 206 trips (114 entering and 92 exiting) will occur during the 

weekday PM peak hour.  

 

Internal capture of trips between the residential and retail uses was considered in this study. 

Internal capture is the consideration for trips that will be made within the site between 

different land uses, so the vehicle technically never leaves the internal site but can still be 

considered as a trip to that specific land use. Internal capture typically only considers trips 

between residential, office, and retail/restaurant land uses. Based on NCHRP Report 684 

methodology, a weekday AM peak hour internal capture of 2% and a weekday PM peak 

hour internal capture rate of 11% was applied to the total trips. The internal capture 

reductions are expected to account for approximately 2 trips (0 entering and 2 exiting) 

during the weekday AM peak hour and 23 trips (11 entering and 12 exiting) during the 

weekday PM peak hour.  

 

Pass-by trips were also taken into consideration in this study. Pass-by trips are made by the 

traffic already using the adjacent roadway, entering the site as an intermediate stop on their 

way to another destination. Pass-by percentages are applied to site trips after adjustments 

for internal capture. Pass-by trips are expected to account for approximately 28 trips (14 

entering and 14 exiting) during the weekday PM peak hour. It should be noted that the 

pass-by trips were balanced, as it is likely that these trips would enter and exit in the same 

hour.  

 

The total primary site trips are the calculated site trips after the reduction for internal 

capture and pass-by trips. Primary site trips are expected to generate approximately 109 

trips (33 entering and 73 exiting) during the weekday AM peak hour and 155 trips (89 

entering and 66 exiting) during the weekday PM peak hour.  

 

4.2. Site Trip Distribution and Assignment 

Trip distribution percentages used in assigning site traffic for this development were 

estimated based on a combination of existing traffic patterns, population centers adjacent to 

the study area, and engineering judgment.  

- Page 535 -



Yellow Bridge Residential – Apex, NC | 16 

 

 

 

It is estimated that the residential site trips will be regionally distributed as follows: 

• 75% to/from the east via US 64 

• 20% to/from the west via US 64 

• 5% to/from the east via Chanticlair Drive 

 

It is estimated that the commercial site trips will be regionally distributed as follows: 

• 65% to/from the east via US 64 

• 30% to/from the west via US 64 

• 5% to/from the east via Chanticlair Drive 

 

The residential site trip distribution is shown in Figure 8A, the commercial site trip 

distribution is shown in Figure 8B. Refer to Figure 9A and Figure 9B for the residential and 

commercial site trip assignment, respectively.   

 

The pass-by site trips were distributed based on existing traffic patterns with consideration 

given to the proposed driveway access and site layout. Refer to Figure 10 for the pass-by site 

trip distribution. Pass-by site trips are shown in Figure 11.  

 

The total site trips were determined by adding the primary site trips and the pass-by site 

trips. Refer to Figure 12 for the total peak hour site trips at the study intersections. 

- Page 536 -



Yellow Bridge Residential
Apex, NC

Scale: Not to Scale

SITE
Chanticlair 

Drive

*

*Note: Roadway included for 
informational purposes only

Si
te

 
A

cc
es

s

N

64

 Residential Site Trip 
Distribution

XX%

Entering Trip Distribution

Exiting Trip Distribution

Regional Trip Distribution

Unsignalized Intersection

X%

(Y%)

LEGEND

Figure 8A

(9
5%

)

20% 

(20%)
75% 75% 

20% 75%

5%

(20%)
(75%)

5% 

(5%) 

Left-Over Intersection

17

- Page 537 -



Yellow Bridge Residential
Apex, NC

Scale: Not to Scale

SITE
Chanticlair 

Drive

*

*Note: Roadway included for 
informational purposes only

Si
te

 
A

cc
es

s

N

64

 Commercial Site Trip 
Distribution

XX%

Entering Trip Distribution

Exiting Trip Distribution

Regional Trip Distribution

Unsignalized Intersection

X%

(Y%)

LEGEND

Figure 8B

(9
5%

)

30% 

(30%)
65% 65% 

30% 65%

5%

(30%)
(65%)

5% 

(5%) 

Left-Over Intersection

18

- Page 538 -



Yellow Bridge Residential
Apex, NC

Scale: Not to Scale

SITE
Chanticlair 

Drive

*

*Note: Roadway included for 
informational purposes only

Si
te

 
A

cc
es

s

N

64

 Residential Site Trip 
Assignment

Figure 9A

61
/

334/13

13/7
16/47 16/47 

13/7
48/26

1/3

3/2 

19

Unsignalized Intersection

Weekday AM / PM Peak 
Hour Site Trips

X / Y

LEGEND

Left-Over Intersection

- Page 539 -



Yellow Bridge Residential
Apex, NC

Scale: Not to Scale

SITE
Chanticlair 

Drive

*

*Note: Roadway included for 
informational purposes only

Si
te

 
A

cc
es

s

N

64

 Commercial Site Trip 
Assignment

Figure 9B

9/
295/8

3/9
9/17 9/17

3/9
6/20

1/1

0/2 

20

Unsignalized Intersection

Weekday AM / PM Peak 
Hour Site Trips

X / Y

LEGEND

Left-Over Intersection

- Page 540 -



Yellow Bridge Residential
Apex, NC

Scale: Not to Scale

SITE
Chanticlair 

Drive

*

*Note: Roadway included for 
informational purposes only

Si
te

 
A

cc
es

s

N

64

 Pass-By Site
Trip Distribution 

Figure 10

Unsignalized Intersection

Weekday PM Pass-By 
Trip Distribution

X%

LEGEND

21

10
0%-50%

50%

-50% 50%
50% 

50%

Left-Over Intersection

- Page 541 -



Yellow Bridge Residential
Apex, NC

Scale: Not to Scale

SITE
Chanticlair 

Drive

*

*Note: Roadway included for 
informational purposes only

Si
te

 
A

cc
es

s

N

64

Figure 11

 Pass-By Site
Trip Assignment 

Unsignalized Intersection

Weekday PM Peak 
Hour Pass-By Trips

X 

LEGEND

14-7
7

7 

7

Left-Over Intersection

22

- Page 542 -



Yellow Bridge Residential
Apex, NC

Scale: Not to Scale

SITE
Chanticlair 

Drive

*

*Note: Roadway included for 
informational purposes only

Si
te

 
A

cc
es

s

N

64

 Total Site Trip 
Assignment

Figure 12

70
/

760/-7
9/28

16/16
25/71 25/64

16/23
54/46

2/4

3/4

Unsignalized Intersection

Weekday AM / PM Peak 
Hour Site Trips

X / Y

LEGEND

Left-Over Intersection

23

- Page 543 -



Yellow Bridge Residential – Apex, NC | 24 

 

 

5. 2026 BUILD TRAFFIC CONDITIONS 

5.1. 2026 Build Peak Hour Traffic Volumes 

To estimate traffic conditions with the site fully built-out, the total site trips were added to 

the 2026 no-build traffic volumes to determine the 2026 build traffic volumes. Refer to 

Figure 13 for an illustration of the 2026 build peak hour traffic volumes with the proposed 

site fully developed. 

 

5.2. Analysis of 2026 Build Peak Hour Traffic Conditions 

Study intersections were analyzed with the 2026 build traffic volumes using the same 

methodology previously discussed for existing and no-build traffic conditions. Intersections 

were analyzed with improvements necessary to accommodate future traffic volumes. The 

results of the capacity analysis for each intersection are presented in Section 7 of this report. 

- Page 544 -



Yellow Bridge Residential
Apex, NC

Scale: Not to Scale

SITE
Chanticlair 

Drive

*

*Note: Roadway included for 
informational purposes only

Si
te

 
A

cc
es

s

N

64

Figure 13

 2026 Build  
Peak Hour Traffic

Unsignalized Intersection

LEGEND

Left-Over Intersection

25

Weekday AM / PM Peak 
Hour Traffic

X / Y

70
/

76

9/19
2231/2251

9/28

1823/2239
25/71
2/3 1834/2290

16/23
2287/2307

- Page 545 -



Yellow Bridge Residential – Apex, NC | 26 

 

 

6. TRAFFIC ANALYSIS PROCEDURE 

Study intersections were analyzed using the methodology outlined in the Highway Capacity 

Manual (HCM), 6th Edition published by the Transportation Research Board. Capacity and 

level of service are the design criteria for this traffic study. A computer software package, 

Synchro (Version 10.3), was used to complete the analyses for most of the study area 

intersections. Please note that the unsignalized capacity analysis does not provide an overall 

level of service for an intersection; only delay for an approach with a conflicting movement.  

 

The HCM defines capacity as “the maximum hourly rate at which persons or vehicles can 

reasonably be expected to traverse a point or uniform section of a lane or roadway during a 

given time period under prevailing roadway, traffic, and control conditions.” Level of 

service (LOS) is a term used to represent different driving conditions, and is defined as a 

“qualitative measure describing operational conditions within a traffic stream, and their 

perception by motorists and/or passengers.” Level of service varies from Level “A” 

representing free flow, to Level “F” where breakdown conditions are evident. Refer to Table 

4 for HCM levels of service and related average control delay per vehicle for both signalized 

and unsignalized intersections. Control delay as defined by the HCM includes “initial 

deceleration delay, queue move-up time, stopped delay, and final acceleration delay”. An 

average control delay of 50 seconds at a signalized intersection results in LOS “D” operation 

at the intersection. 

 

Table 4: Highway Capacity Manual – Levels-of-Service and Delay 

UNSIGNALIZED INTERSECTION SIGNALIZED INTERSECTION 

LEVEL 

OF 

SERVICE 

AVERAGE CONTROL 

DELAY PER 

VEHICLE 

(SECONDS) 

LEVEL OF 

SERVICE 

AVERAGE CONTROL 

DELAY PER 

VEHICLE 

(SECONDS) 
A 
B 
C 
D 
E 
F 

0-10 
10-15 
15-25 
25-35 
35-50 
>50 

A 
B 
C 
D 
E 
F 

0-10 
10-20 
20-35 
35-55 
55-80 
>80 

 

- Page 546 -



Yellow Bridge Residential – Apex, NC | 27 

 

 

6.1. Adjustments to Analysis Guidelines 

Capacity analysis at all study intersections was completed according to the NCDOT 

Congestion Management Guidelines. 

- Page 547 -



Yellow Bridge Residential – Apex, NC | 28 

 

 

7. CAPACITY ANALYSIS 

7.1. US 64 and Median Break / Site Access 

The existing unsignalized median break along US 64 was analyzed under 2022 existing, 2026 

no-build, and 2026 build traffic conditions with the lane configurations and traffic control 

shown in Table 5. Refer to Table 5 for a summary of the analysis results. Refer to Appendix 

D for the Synchro capacity analysis reports. Copies of the SimTraffic Queueing and 

Performance Reports can be found in Appendix F. 

 

Table 5: Analysis Summary of US 64 and Median Break / Site Access 

ANALYSIS 

SCENARIO 

A 

P 

P 

R 

O 

A 

C 

H 

LANE 

CONFIGURATIONS 

WEEKDAY AM 

PEAK HOUR 

LEVEL OF SERVICE 

WEEKDAY PM 

PEAK HOUR 

LEVEL OF SERVICE 

Approach 
Overall 

(seconds) 
Approach 

Overall 

(seconds) 

2022 Existing  
EB* 

WB** 
1 UT, 2 TH 
1 UT, 2 TH 

C1 

C1 
N/A 

C1 

C1 
N/A 

2026 No-Build  
EB* 

WB** 
1 UT, 2 TH 
1 UT, 2 TH 

C1 

D1 
N/A 

D1 

D1 
N/A 

2026 Build  
EB* 

WB** 
NB 

1 UT, 2 TH, 1 RT 
1 UT-LT, 2 TH 

1 RT 

C1 

F1 

E2 
N/A 

D1 

F1 

E2 
N/A 

*Synchro analyzed the EBU as NBL movements due to the nature of the median break and synchro limitations. 
**Synchro analyzed the WBU as SBL movements due to the nature of the median break and synchro limitations. 
Improvements to lane configurations by the developer shown in bold.  
1. Level of service for major-street u-turn/left-turn movement.  
2. Level of service for minor-street approach.  

 
Capacity analysis of 2022 existing and 2026 no-build traffic conditions indicates that the 

major-street u-turn movements are expected to operate at LOS D or better during both the 

weekday AM and PM peak hours.  

 

Upon buildout of the proposed development, the site driveway is proposed to connect as 

the 3rd leg at the existing median break. Under 2026 build traffic conditions the westbound 

major-street left-turn/u-turn movement is expected to operate at LOS F during both the 

weekday AM and PM peak hours. The eastbound u-turn movement is expected to operate 

at LOS D or better during the weekday AM and PM peak hours. The minor-street approach 

is expected to operate at LOS E during both the weekday AM and PM peak hours. These 

- Page 548 -



Yellow Bridge Residential – Apex, NC | 29 

 

 

levels of service are not uncommon for stop-controlled minor-street approaches (and major-

street left-turn/u-turn movements) with heavy mainline traffic volumes. According to 

SimTraffic Performance Reports which report delays for each movement based on 

simulation modeling of the entire study network, the minor-street approach is expected to 

experience delays of less than 35 seconds during the weekday AM and PM peak hours 

under 2026 build traffic conditions.  

 

Due to the poor levels-of-service expected at this intersection, a traffic signal was considered 

under 2026 build traffic conditions to achieve acceptable levels-of-service. Weekday AM and 

PM peak hour traffic volumes were utilized in evaluating the potential need for 

signalization based on the guidelines contained within the Guidelines for Signalization of 

Intersections with Two or Three Approaches Final Report, published by the Institute for 

Transportation Research and Education (ITRE). Based on a review of the expected queue 

lengths at this intersection it is reported that the minor-street approach is expected to exceed 

capacity during both the weekday AM and PM peak hours. However, due to the primarily 

residential nature of the site and the expected acceptable operation of the westbound left-

turn movement into the site, a traffic signal is not recommended due to the additional delay 

that installation of a signal would add on the mainline corridor (US 64). Refer to Appendix 

G for the ITRE 95th percentile queue length calculations.  

 

A right-turn lane was considered based on the NCDOT Policy on Street and Driveway Access 

to North Carolina Highways (Driveway Manual) and an exclusive right-turn lane with 100 feet 

of storage is recommended on the eastbound approach (US 64). The existing storage for the 

westbound left-turn lane is expected to provide sufficient storage upon buildout of the 

development based on the NCDOT Driveway Manual and SimTraffic simulations under 

2026 build traffic conditions. Refer to Appendix H for a copy of the turn-lane warrants.  

 

 

 

 

 

- Page 549 -



Yellow Bridge Residential – Apex, NC | 30 

 

 

7.2. US 64 and Future Eastern U-Turn Location 

The proposed eastern u-turn location along US 64 was analyzed under 2026 build traffic 

conditions with the lane configurations and traffic control shown in Table 6. Refer to Table 6 

for a summary of the analysis results. Refer to Appendix E for the Synchro capacity analysis 

reports. Copies of the SimTraffic Queueing and Performance Reports can be found in 

Appendix F. 

 
Table 6: Analysis Summary of US 64 and Future Eastern U-Turn Location  

ANALYSIS 

SCENARIO 

A 

P 

P 

R 

O 

A 

C 

H 

LANE 

CONFIGURATIONS 

WEEKDAY AM 

PEAK HOUR 

LEVEL OF SERVICE 

WEEKDAY PM 

PEAK HOUR 

LEVEL OF SERVICE 

Approach 
Overall 

(seconds) 
Approach 

Overall 

(seconds) 

2026 Build  
EB* 
WB 

1 UT, 2 TH 
2 TH 

C1 
-- N/A 

D1 
-- 

N/A 

*Synchro analyzed the EBU as NBL movements due to the nature of the median break and synchro limitations. 
Improvements to lane configurations by the developer shown in bold.  
1. Level of service for major-street u-turn movement. 

 

Upon buildout of the proposed development, a new u-turn location is expected to be 

constructed to facilitate site traffic exiting the development heading westbound on US 64. 

Capacity analysis of 2026 build traffic conditions indicates that the major-street u-turn 

movement is expected to operate at LOS D or better during the weekday AM and PM peak 

hours.  

 

The eastbound u-turn movement was modeled with a combined storage of 200 feet in 

synchro due to limitations with superstreet modeling. Based on a review of SimTraffic 

simulations under 2026 build traffic conditions, queues for this movement are not expected 

to exceed 76 feet (approximately 3 vehicles) during the weekday AM and PM peak hours. 

Therefore, an eastbound (US 64) u-turn lane with 100 feet of storage is recommended at this 

location.  

 

 

- Page 550 -



Yellow Bridge Residential – Apex, NC | 31 

 

 

8. CONCLUSIONS 

This Traffic Impact Analysis was conducted to determine the potential traffic impacts of the 

proposed Yellow Bridge Residential development, located south of US 64 and west of the 

Abbington subdivision in Apex, North Carolina. The proposed development, anticipated to 

be completed in 2026, is expected to consist of 59 single-family homes, 83 townhomes, and 

25,000 sq. ft. of retail space. Site access to the proposed development is expected to be 

provided via one (1) left-over driveway along US 64 at the existing median break, and one 

(1) internal connection to Chanticlair Drive.  

 

The study analyzes traffic conditions during the weekday AM and PM peak hours for the 

following scenarios: 

• 2022 Existing Traffic Conditions 

• 2026 No-Build Traffic Conditions 

• 2026 Build Traffic Conditions 

 

Trip Generation 

It is estimated that the proposed development will generate approximately 109 primary 

trips (33 entering and 73 exiting) during the weekday AM peak hour and 155 primary trips 

(89 entering and 66 exiting) during the weekday PM peak hour. 

 

Adjustments to Analysis Guidelines 

Capacity analysis at all study intersections was completed according to NCDOT Congestion 

Management Guidelines.  Refer to section 6.1 of this report for a detailed description of any 

adjustments to these guidelines made throughout the analysis. 

 

Intersection Capacity Analysis Summary 

All the study area intersections (including the proposed site driveways) are expected to 

operate at acceptable levels-of-service under existing and future year conditions with the 

exception of the intersections listed below.  A summary of the study area intersections that 

are expected to need improvements are as follows: 

 

- Page 551 -



Yellow Bridge Residential – Apex, NC | 32 

 

 

US 64 and Median Break / Site Access 1 

Under 2026 build traffic conditions the westbound major-street left-turn/u-turn movement 

is expected to operate at LOS F during both the weekday AM and PM peak hours. The 

minor-street approach is expected to operate at LOS E during both the weekday AM and 

PM peak hours. These levels of service are not uncommon for stop-controlled minor-street 

approaches (and major-street left-turn/u-turn movements) with heavy mainline traffic 

volumes. According to SimTraffic Performance Reports which report delays for each 

movement based on simulation modeling of the entire study network, the minor-street 

approach is expected to experience delays of less than 35 seconds during the weekday AM 

and PM peak hours under 2026 build traffic conditions.  

 

Due to the poor levels-of-service expected at this intersection, a traffic signal was considered 

under 2026 build traffic conditions to achieve acceptable levels-of-service. Weekday AM and 

PM peak hour traffic volumes were utilized in evaluating the potential need for 

signalization based on the guidelines contained within the Guidelines for Signalization of 

Intersections with Two or Three Approaches Final Report, published by ITRE. Based on a review 

of the expected queue lengths at this intersection it is reported that the minor-street 

approach is expected to exceed capacity during both the weekday AM and PM peak hours. 

However, due to the primarily residential nature of the site and the expected acceptable 

operation of the westbound left-turn movement, a traffic signal is not recommended due to 

the additional delay that installation of a signal would add on the mainline corridor (US 64). 

 

A right-turn lane was considered based on the NCDOT Policy on Street and Driveway Access 

to North Carolina Highways (Driveway Manual) and an exclusive right-turn lane with 100 feet 

of storage is recommended on the eastbound approach (US 64). The existing storage for the 

westbound left-turn lane is expected to provide sufficient storage upon buildout of the 

development based on the NCDOT Driveway Manual and SimTraffic simulations under 

2026 build traffic conditions.  

  

- Page 552 -



Yellow Bridge Residential – Apex, NC | 33 

 

 

9. RECOMMENDATIONS 

Based on the findings of this study, specific geometric improvements have been identified 

and are recommended to accommodate future traffic conditions. See a more detailed 

description of the recommended improvements below. Refer to Figure 14 for an illustration 

of the recommended lane configuration for the proposed development. 

 

Recommended Improvements by Developer 

US 64 and Median Break / Site Access 

• Construct the northbound approach (Site Access) with one ingress and one 

egress lane striped as an exclusive right-turn lane. 

• Provide stop-control for the northbound approach (Site Access). The proposed 

intersection will be configured as a left-over. 

• Construct an exclusive eastbound (US 64) right-turn lane with a minimum of 100 

feet of storage and appropriate decel and taper.  

• Restripe the existing westbound (US 64) u-turn lane to provide for a westbound 

left-turn movement.  

 

US 64 and Eastern U-Turn Location 

• Construct an exclusive eastbound (US 64) u-turn lane with a minimum of 100 

feet of storage and appropriate decel and taper to be located east of the existing 

median break and proposed site driveway location.  

 

- Page 553 -



Yellow Bridge Residential
Apex, NC

Scale: Not to Scale

34

Figure 14

 Recommended Lane 
Configurations

SITE

Si
te

 
A

cc
es

s
64

325' 100'

100'

325'

LEGEND

Signalized Intersection

Unsignalized Intersection

Existing Lane

X' Storage (In Feet)

Improvement by Developer

Chanticlair 
Drive

*

*Note: Roadway included for 
informational purposes only

- Page 554 -



- Page 555 -



 

TECHNICAL APPENDIX 

- Page 556 -



 

 

APPENDIX A 

 

SCOPING DOCUMENTATION 

- Page 557 -



 

 

 

 

 
 

January 12, 2022 
 

 
Russell Dalton, PE 
Town of Apex 
73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 
P: 919-249-3358 
E: russell.dalton@apexnc.org 
[Sent via Email] 
 
Reference: Yellow Bridge Residential 
 Apex, North Carolina 
 
Subject: Memorandum of Understanding for TIA Report  
 
 
Dear Mr. Dalton: 
 
The following is a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) outlining the proposed scope of work and 
assumptions related to the Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA) for the proposed Yellow Bridge Residential 
development in Apex, North Carolina. The proposed development is located south of US 64 and west 
of the Abbington subdivision. The development is expected to consist of 59 single-family homes, 83 
townhomes, and 25,000 square feet (sq. ft.) of retail space. This MOU reflects the assumptions 
outlined during initial coordination between Ramey Kemp Associates (RKA), the Town of Apex 
(Town), and the North Carolina Department of Transportation (NCDOT). Refer to the attached site 
location map. Site access to the proposed development is expected to be provided via one (1) left-over 
driveway along US 64 at the existing median break, and one (1) internal connection to Chanticlair 
Drive.  
 
The proposed development, anticipated to be completed in 2026, is expected to consist of the 
following land uses: 

• 59 single-family homes 

• 83 townhomes 

• 25,000 sq. ft. retail space 
 
Study Area 
 
Based on a coordination with NCDOT and Town staff, the study area is proposed to consist of the 
following intersections: 

• US 64 and Median Break (unsignalized) 

• US 64 and Future Eastern U-Turn Location  
 

- Page 558 -

mailto:russell.dalton@apexnc.org


 

 

 MOU – Yellow Bridge Residential |   Page 2 of 4 
 

 

  

Existing Traffic Volumes 
 
Existing peak hour traffic volumes will be determined based on a combination of previously 
conducted traffic counts at the intersection US 64 and Jenks Road / Richardson Road, and new 
turning movement counts conducted at the existing median break. Previously conducted traffic 
counts at the intersection of US 64 and Jenks Road / Richardson Road were collected in October 2022 
during typical weekday AM (7:00 AM – 9:00 AM) and PM (4:00 – 6:00 PM) peak periods, while 
schools were in session for in person learning. These previously conducted counts will be utilized to 
determine through volume traffic at the existing median break. Turning movement volumes will be 
determined based on traffic counts conducted at the existing median break, in January 2022 during a 
typical weekday AM (7:00 AM – 9:00 AM) and PM (4:00 – 6:00 PM) peak periods, while schools are in 
session for in person learning.  
 
Background Traffic Volumes 
 
Based on coordination with NCDOT and the Town, background traffic volumes will be determined 
by projecting 2022 existing traffic volumes to the year 2026 using a 3% annual growth rate. 
Additionally, it was determined that the following adjacent developments are to be included in this 
study: 

• Westford (currently 75% build-out) 

• Legacy PUD (US 64 Residential) 
 
Future Roadway Improvements 
 
Based on coordination with the Town and NCDOT, it was determined that there were no future 
roadway improvements to consider with this study.   
 
Trip Generation 
 
Average weekday daily, AM peak hour, and PM peak hour trips for the proposed development were 
estimated using methodology contained within the ITE Trip Generation Manual, 10th Edition. Refer to 
Table 1, on the following page, for a summary of the proposed site trip generation for full buildout of 
the proposed development. 
 

- Page 559 -



 

 

 MOU – Yellow Bridge Residential |   Page 3 of 4 
 

 

  

Table 1: Trip Generation Summary 

Land Use 
(ITE Code) 

Intensity 
Daily 

Traffic 
(vpd) 

Weekday 
AM Peak Hour Trips 

(vph) 

Weekday 
PM Peak Hour Trips 

(vph) 

Enter Exit Total Enter Exit Total 
Single-Family Home 

(210) 
59 DU 640 12 35 47 38 23 61 

Multi-Family Home (Low-Rise) 
(220) 

95 DU 588 9 31 40 31 19 50 

Shopping Center 
(820) 

25 KSF 944 15 9 24 45 50 95 

Total Trips 2,172 36 75 111 114 92 206 

Internal Capture (2% AM, 11 %PM) 0 -2 -2 -11 -12 -23 

Total External Trips 36 73 109 103 80 183 

Pass-By Trips (Shopping Center: 34% PM): - - - -14 -14 -28 

Total Primary Trips 33 73 109 89 66 155 

 
It is estimated that the proposed development will generate approximately 2,172 site trips on the 
roadway network during a typical 24-hour weekday period. Of the daily traffic volume, it is 
anticipated that 109 primary trips (33 entering and 73 exiting) will occur during the weekday AM 
peak hour and 155 primary trips (89 entering and 66 exiting) will occur during the weekday PM peak 
hour. 
 
Trip Distribution and Assignment 
 
Site trips are distributed based on the locations of existing traffic patterns, population centers 
adjacent to the study area, and engineering judgment.  A summary of the overall distributions is 
below. 
 
Residential: 

• 75% to/from the east via US 64 

• 20 % to/from the west via US 64 

• 5% to/from the east via Chanticlair Drive 

 
Commercial: 

• 65% to/from the east via US 64 

• 30 % to/from the west via US 64 

• 5% to/from the east via Chanticlair Drive 

 
Refer to the attached site trip distribution figures. 

- Page 560 -



 

 

 MOU – Yellow Bridge Residential |   Page 4 of 4 
 

 

  

Analysis Scenarios 
 
All capacity analyses will be performed utilizing Synchro (Version 10.3).  All study intersections will 
be analyzed during the weekday AM and PM peak hours under the following proposed traffic 
scenarios: 

• 2022 Existing Traffic Conditions 

• 2026 No-Build Traffic Conditions   

• 2026 Build Traffic Conditions  
 
Report 
 
The TIA report will be prepared based on the Town and NCDOT requirements. 
 
If you find this memorandum of understanding acceptable, please let me know so that we may 
include it in the TIA report.  If you have any questions or concerns, please do not hesitate to contact 
me. 
 
Sincerely, 
Ramey Kemp Associates,  
 
 
 
 
 
Nate Bouquin P.E., PTOE 
Traffic Engineering Project Manager 
 
Attachments:  Site Location Map 
   Site Plan 

Proposed Site Trip Distribution Figures 
NCHRP Internal Capture Reports 

 
 

 

- Page 561 -



Yellow Bridge Residential
Apex, NC

Scale: Not to Scale

N

LEGEND

Proposed Site Location
Study Intersection
Study Area

Site Location Map

2

PROPOSED
SITE

Figure 1

64

- Page 562 -



- Page 563 -



Yellow Bridge Residential
Apex, NC

Scale: Not to Scale

SITE
Chanticlair 

Drive

Si
te

 
A

cc
es

s

N

64

17

 Proposed Residential 
Site Trip Distribution

XX%

Entering Trip Distribution

Exiting Trip Distribution

Regional Trip Distribution

Unsignalized Intersection

X%

(Y%)

LEGEND

Figure 8A

(9
5%

)

20% 

(20%)
75% 75% 

20% 75%

5%

(20%)
(75%)

5% 

(5%) 

Left-Over Intersection

- Page 564 -



Yellow Bridge Residential
Apex, NC

Scale: Not to Scale

SITE
Chanticlair 

Drive

Si
te

 
A

cc
es

s

N

64

17

 Proposed Commercial 
Site Trip Distribution

XX%

Entering Trip Distribution

Exiting Trip Distribution

Regional Trip Distribution

Unsignalized Intersection

X%

(Y%)

LEGEND

Figure 8A

(9
5%

)

30% 

(30%)
65% 65% 

30% 65%

5%

(30%)
(65%)

5% 

(5%) 

Left-Over Intersection

- Page 565 -



Project Name: Organization:

Project Location: Performed By:

Scenario Description: Date:

Analysis Year: Checked By:

Analysis Period: Date:

ITE LUCs1 Quantity Units Total Entering Exiting

Office

Retail 820 25                  KSF 15 9

Restaurant

Cinema/Entertainment

Residential 210, 220 59, 83 DU 21 66

Hotel

All Other Land Uses2

0 36 75

Veh. Occ.4 % Transit % Non-Motorized Veh. Occ.4 % Transit % Non-Motorized

Office 1.10 0% 0% 1.10 0% 0%

Retail 1.10 0% 0% 1.10 0% 0%

Restaurant 1.10 0% 0% 1.10 0% 0%

Cinema/Entertainment 1.10 0% 0% 1.10 0% 0%

Residential 1.10 0% 0% 1.10 0% 0%

Hotel 1.10 0% 0% 1.10 0% 0%

All Other Land Uses2 1.10 0% 0% 1.10 0% 0%

Office Retail Restaurant Residential Hotel

Office

Retail

Restaurant

Cinema/Entertainment

Residential

Hotel

Office Retail Restaurant Residential Hotel

Office 0 0 0 0

Retail 0 0 0 0

Restaurant 0 0 0 0

Cinema/Entertainment 0 0 0 0 0

Residential 0 1 0 0

Hotel 0 0 0 0

Total Entering Exiting Land Use Entering Trips Exiting Trips

All Person-Trips 123 40 83 Office N/A N/A

Internal Capture Percentage 2% 3% 1% Retail 6% 0%

Restaurant N/A N/A

External Vehicle-Trips5 110 36 74 Cinema/Entertainment N/A N/A

External Transit-Trips6 0 0 0 Residential 0% 1%

External Non-Motorized Trips6 0 0 0 Hotel N/A N/A

Apex, NC

AM Street Peak Hour

RKA

TF

2026

1/12/2022Full-Build

Estimation Tool Developed by the Texas A&M Transportation Institute - Version 2013.1

Table 5-A: Computations Summary Table 6-A: Internal Trip Capture Percentages by Land Use

2Total estimate for all other land uses at mixed-use development site is not subject to internal trip capture computations in this estimator.

5Vehicle-trips computed using the mode split and vehicle occupancy values provided in Table 2-A.

1Land Use Codes (LUCs) from Trip Generation Manual , published by the Institute of Transportation Engineers.

6Person-Trips
*Indicates computation that has been rounded to the nearest whole number.

3Enter trips assuming no transit or non-motorized trips (as assumed in ITE Trip Generation Manual ).
4Enter vehicle occupancy assumed in Table 1-A vehicle trips.  If vehicle occupancy changes for proposed mixed-use project, manual adjustments must be made 
to Tables 5-A, 9-A (O and D).  Enter transit, non-motorized percentages that will result with proposed mixed-use project complete.

Table 2-A: Mode Split and Vehicle Occupancy Estimates

Table 4-A: Internal Person-Trip Origin-Destination Matrix*

Destination (To)
Origin (From)

Origin (From)
Destination (To)

Cinema/Entertainment

Land Use
Entering Trips Exiting Trips

Table 3-A: Average Land Use Interchange Distances (Feet Walking Distance)

NCHRP 684 Internal Trip Capture Estimation Tool

Table 1-A: Base Vehicle-Trip Generation Estimates (Single-Use Site Estimate)

0

0

Cinema/Entertainment

Development Data (For Information Only )

0

0

0

Estimated Vehicle-Trips3

Land Use

Yellow Bridge Residential

- Page 566 -



Project Name:

Analysis Period:

Veh. Occ. Vehicle-Trips Person-Trips* Veh. Occ. Vehicle-Trips Person-Trips*

Office 1.10 0 0 1.10 0 0

Retail 1.10 15 17 1.10 9 10

Restaurant 1.10 0 0 1.10 0 0

Cinema/Entertainment 1.10 0 0 1.10 0 0

Residential 1.10 21 23 1.10 66 73

Hotel 1.10 0 0 1.10 0 0

Office Retail Restaurant Residential Hotel

Office 0 0 0 0

Retail 3 1 1 0

Restaurant 0 0 0 0

Cinema/Entertainment 0 0 0 0 0

Residential 1 1 15 0

Hotel 0 0 0 0

Office Retail Restaurant Residential Hotel

Office 5 0 0 0

Retail 0 0 0 0

Restaurant 0 1 1 0

Cinema/Entertainment 0 0 0 0 0

Residential 0 3 0 0

Hotel 0 1 0 0

Internal External Total Vehicles1 Transit2 Non-Motorized2

Office 0 0 0 0 0 0

Retail 1 16 17 15 0 0

Restaurant 0 0 0 0 0 0

Cinema/Entertainment 0 0 0 0 0 0

Residential 0 23 23 21 0 0

Hotel 0 0 0 0 0 0

All Other Land Uses3 0 0 0 0 0 0

Internal External Total Vehicles1 Transit2 Non-Motorized2

Office 0 0 0 0 0 0

Retail 0 10 10 9 0 0

Restaurant 0 0 0 0 0 0

Cinema/Entertainment 0 0 0 0 0 0

Residential 1 72 73 65 0 0

Hotel 0 0 0 0 0 0

All Other Land Uses3 0 0 0 0 0 0

Land Use
Table 7-A (D): Entering Trips

2Person-Trips

Person-Trip Estimates

Yellow Bridge Residential

AM Street Peak Hour

Table 9-A (D): Internal and External Trips Summary (Entering Trips)

Table 8-A (O): Internal Person-Trip Origin-Destination Matrix (Computed at Origin)

Origin (From)
Destination (To)

Cinema/Entertainment

Table 7-A: Conversion of Vehicle-Trip Ends to Person-Trip Ends

Table 7-A (O): Exiting Trips

0

0

0

Table 8-A (D): Internal Person-Trip Origin-Destination Matrix (Computed at Destination)

Origin (From)

Origin Land Use
Person-Trip Estimates External Trips by Mode*

External Trips by Mode*

1Vehicle-trips computed using the mode split and vehicle occupancy values provided in Table 2-A

0

*Indicates computation that has been rounded to the nearest whole number.

0

0

0

0

0

Destination (To)

Cinema/Entertainment

0

3Total estimate for all other land uses at mixed-use development site is not subject to internal trip capture computations in this estimator

Destination Land Use

Table 9-A (O): Internal and External Trips Summary (Exiting Trips)

- Page 567 -



Project Name: Organization:

Project Location: Performed By:

Scenario Description: Date:

Analysis Year: Checked By:

Analysis Period: Date:

ITE LUCs1 Quantity Units Total Entering Exiting

Office

Retail 820 25                  KSF 45 50

Restaurant

Cinema/Entertainment

Residential 210, 220 59, 83 DU 69 42

Hotel

All Other Land Uses2

0 114 92

Veh. Occ.4 % Transit % Non-Motorized Veh. Occ.4 % Transit % Non-Motorized

Office 1.10 0% 0% 1.10 0% 0%

Retail 1.10 0% 0% 1.10 0% 0%

Restaurant 1.10 0% 0% 1.10 0% 0%

Cinema/Entertainment 1.10 0% 0% 1.10 0% 0%

Residential 1.10 0% 0% 1.10 0% 0%

Hotel 1.10 0% 0% 1.10 0% 0%

All Other Land Uses2 1.10 0% 0% 1.10 0% 0%

Office Retail Restaurant Residential Hotel

Office

Retail 2500

Restaurant

Cinema/Entertainment

Residential

Hotel

Office Retail Restaurant Residential Hotel

Office 0 0 0 0

Retail 0 0 7 0

Restaurant 0 0 0 0

Cinema/Entertainment 0 0 0 0 0

Residential 0 5 0 0

Hotel 0 0 0 0

Total Entering Exiting Land Use Entering Trips Exiting Trips

All Person-Trips 227 126 101 Office N/A N/A

Internal Capture Percentage 11% 10% 12% Retail 10% 13%

Restaurant N/A N/A

External Vehicle-Trips5 185 104 81 Cinema/Entertainment N/A N/A

External Transit-Trips6 0 0 0 Residential 9% 11%

External Non-Motorized Trips6 0 0 0 Hotel N/A N/A

1Land Use Codes (LUCs) from Trip Generation Manual , published by the Institute of Transportation Engineers.
2Total estimate for all other land uses at mixed-use development site is not subject to internal trip capture computations in this estimator.
3Enter trips assuming no transit or non-motorized trips (as assumed in ITE Trip Generation Manual ).

5Vehicle-trips computed using the mode split and vehicle occupancy values provided in Table 2-P.

Table 5-P: Computations Summary Table 6-P: Internal Trip Capture Percentages by Land Use

4Enter vehicle occupancy assumed in Table 1-P vehicle trips.  If vehicle occupancy changes for proposed mixed-use project, manual adjustments must be 

6Person-Trips

0

0

0

0

Table 4-P: Internal Person-Trip Origin-Destination Matrix*

Origin (From)
Destination (To)

Cinema/Entertainment

0

Table 3-P: Average Land Use Interchange Distances (Feet Walking Distance)

Origin (From)
Destination (To)

Cinema/Entertainment

NCHRP 684 Internal Trip Capture Estimation Tool

Yellow Bridge Residential RKA

Apex, NC TF

*Indicates computation that has been rounded to the nearest whole number.

Estimation Tool Developed by the Texas A&M Transportation Institute - Version 2013.1

Full-Build 1/12/2022

2026

PM Street Peak Hour

Table 1-P: Base Vehicle-Trip Generation Estimates (Single-Use Site Estimate)

Land Use
Development Data (For Information Only ) Estimated Vehicle-Trips3

Table 2-P: Mode Split and Vehicle Occupancy Estimates

Land Use
Entering Trips Exiting Trips

- Page 568 -



Project Name:

Analysis Period:

Veh. Occ. Vehicle-Trips Person-Trips* Veh. Occ. Vehicle-Trips Person-Trips*

Office 1.10 0 0 1.10 0 0

Retail 1.10 45 50 1.10 50 55

Restaurant 1.10 0 0 1.10 0 0

Cinema/Entertainment 1.10 0 0 1.10 0 0

Residential 1.10 69 76 1.10 42 46

Hotel 1.10 0 0 1.10 0 0

Office Retail Restaurant Residential Hotel

Office 0 0 0 0

Retail 1 16 7 3

Restaurant 0 0 0 0

Cinema/Entertainment 0 0 0 0 0

Residential 2 19 10 1

Hotel 0 0 0 0

Office Retail Restaurant Residential Hotel

Office 4 0 3 0

Retail 0 0 35 0

Restaurant 0 25 12 0

Cinema/Entertainment 0 2 0 3 0

Residential 0 5 0 0

Hotel 0 1 0 0

Internal External Total Vehicles1 Transit2 Non-Motorized2

Office 0 0 0 0 0 0

Retail 5 45 50 41 0 0

Restaurant 0 0 0 0 0 0

Cinema/Entertainment 0 0 0 0 0 0

Residential 7 69 76 63 0 0

Hotel 0 0 0 0 0 0

All Other Land Uses3 0 0 0 0 0 0

Internal External Total Vehicles1 Transit2 Non-Motorized2

Office 0 0 0 0 0 0

Retail 7 48 55 44 0 0

Restaurant 0 0 0 0 0 0

Cinema/Entertainment 0 0 0 0 0 0

Residential 5 41 46 37 0 0

Hotel 0 0 0 0 0 0

All Other Land Uses3 0 0 0 0 0 0

0

0

0

0

0

3Total estimate for all other land uses at mixed-use development site is not subject to internal trip capture computations in this estimator

Table 9-P (O): Internal and External Trips Summary (Exiting Trips)

Origin Land Use
Person-Trip Estimates External Trips by Mode*

Person-Trip Estimates External Trips by Mode*

0

Table 8-P (D): Internal Person-Trip Origin-Destination Matrix (Computed at Destination)

Origin (From)

2Person-Trips

0

0

Table 9-P (D): Internal and External Trips Summary (Entering Trips)

Destination Land Use

*Indicates computation that has been rounded to the nearest whole number.

Yellow Bridge Residential

PM Street Peak Hour

Table 7-P: Conversion of Vehicle-Trip Ends to Person-Trip Ends

Land Use
Table 7-P (D): Entering Trips Table 7-P (O): Exiting Trips

Table 8-P (O): Internal Person-Trip Origin-Destination Matrix (Computed at Origin)

Origin (From)
Destination (To)

Destination (To)

Cinema/Entertainment

Cinema/Entertainment

0

2

1Vehicle-trips computed using the mode split and vehicle occupancy values provided in Table 2-P

- Page 569 -



1

Tucker Fulle

From: Fenner, Edwin F <effenner@ncdot.gov>
Sent: Tuesday, January 18, 2022 5:45 PM
To: Nate Bouquin; Serge Grebenschikov; Russell Dalton; Brennan, Sean P
Cc: Tucker Fulle; Bunting, Clarence B; Walker, Braden M; Ishak, Doumit Y
Subject: RE: [External] Yellow Bridge Apex - TIA Scope 
Attachments: MOU - Yellow Bridge Residential 01.12.22.pdf

Follow Up Flag: Flag for follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

Nate, 
 
The attached MOU looks good to the District. 
 
Edwin Fenner, PE 
Assistant District Engineer 
Division 5/District 1 
Department of Transportation 
  
919-733-3213    office 
919-715-5778    fax 
effenner@ncdot.gov 
 
4009 District Drive  (Physical Address) 
Raleigh, NC 27607 
 
1575 Mail Service Center (Mailing Address) 
Raleigh, NC 27699-1575 
 

From: Nate Bouquin <nbouquin@rameykemp.com>  
Sent: Thursday, January 13, 2022 12:06 AM 
To: Serge Grebenschikov <Serge.Grebenschikov@apexnc.org>; Russell Dalton <Russell.Dalton@apexnc.org>; Brennan, 
Sean P <spbrennan@ncdot.gov>; Fenner, Edwin F <effenner@ncdot.gov> 
Cc: Tucker Fulle <tfulle@rameykemp.com>; Bunting, Clarence B <cbunting@ncdot.gov>; Walker, Braden M 
<bmwalker1@ncdot.gov>; Ishak, Doumit Y <dishak@ncdot.gov> 
Subject: [External] Yellow Bridge Apex - TIA Scope  
 
CAUTION: External email. Do not click links or open attachments unless you verify. Send all suspicious email as an attachment to 
Report Spam. 

 
All –  
 
Attached is the MOU for the Yellow Bridge development in Apex. This MOU is based off of the scoping meetings we had 
with NCDOT and the Town back in late December.  
 
One small note with this – you will notice the trip generation includes retail. The developer is considering non-residential 
at the northernmost section of the site, along US 64. This hasn’t been solidified yet, but we wanted to go ahead and 
include it in the TIA as it would be more conservative versus assuming all residential.  
 

- Page 570 -



2

Please let us know your thoughts on this MOU.  
 
Thanks!  
 
Nate Bouquin, PE, PTOE 
Traffic Engineering Project Manager 
D 919 987 1301   |   M 919 961 4065  

  
 
 
 

 
Email correspondence to and from this sender is subject to the N.C. Public Records Law and may be disclosed to third parties. 

- Page 571 -



1

Tucker Fulle

From: Nate Bouquin
Sent: Thursday, January 13, 2022 10:37 AM
To: Serge Grebenschikov
Cc: Tucker Fulle
Subject: RE: Yellow Bridge Apex - TIA Scope 
Attachments: Sweetwater TIA.pdf

Follow Up Flag: Flag for follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

Thanks serge, we will make sure and include these changes.  
 

— 
Nate Bouquin, PE, PTOE 
Traffic Engineering Project Manager 
D 919 987 1301  |  M 919 961 4065   
rameykemp.com 

 

From: Serge Grebenschikov <Serge.Grebenschikov@apexnc.org>  
Sent: Thursday, January 13, 2022 10:01 AM 
To: Nate Bouquin <nbouquin@rameykemp.com> 
Subject: RE: Yellow Bridge Apex - TIA Scope  
 
Hi Nate, 
 
Looking over the MOU I realized that I did not ask you to include Sweetwater Commercial.  I think it would be prudent to 
do so as they are contributing around 200 vph on US 64, and the commercial phases are in construction 
today.  Apologies for that.  I have attached the Sweetwater TIA for reference. 
 
Please see my markups in the screenshot below for Background Development Traffic. These are the only comments that 
I have. 

 
 
Thanks 
 
Serge Grebenschikov, PE 
Traffic Engineer  
Public Works & Transportation – Traffic 
73 Hunter Street, 3rd Fl 
PO Box 250 

- Page 572 -



2

Apex, NC 27502 
P: (919) 372-7448 
E: Serge.Grebenschikov@apexnc.org 
 
 
 
 
 

From: Nate Bouquin <nbouquin@rameykemp.com>  
Sent: Thursday, January 13, 2022 12:06 AM 
To: Serge Grebenschikov <Serge.Grebenschikov@apexnc.org>; Russell Dalton <Russell.Dalton@apexnc.org>; Brennan, 
Sean P <spbrennan@ncdot.gov>; Fenner, Edwin F <effenner@ncdot.gov> 
Cc: Tucker Fulle <tfulle@rameykemp.com>; Bunting, Clarence B <cbunting@ncdot.gov>; Walker, Braden M 
<bmwalker1@ncdot.gov>; Ishak, Doumit Y <dishak@ncdot.gov> 
Subject: Yellow Bridge Apex - TIA Scope  
 
 

Notice: This message is from an external sender. 
Do not click links or open attachments unless you trust the sender, and can verify the content is safe. 

 
All –  
 
Attached is the MOU for the Yellow Bridge development in Apex. This MOU is based off of the scoping meetings we had 
with NCDOT and the Town back in late December.  
 
One small note with this – you will notice the trip generation includes retail. The developer is considering non-residential 
at the northernmost section of the site, along US 64. This hasn’t been solidified yet, but we wanted to go ahead and 
include it in the TIA as it would be more conservative versus assuming all residential.  
 
Please let us know your thoughts on this MOU.  
 
Thanks!  
 
Nate Bouquin, PE, PTOE 
Traffic Engineering Project Manager 
D 919 987 1301   |   M 919 961 4065  

  
 
 

- Page 573 -



 

 

APPENDIX B 

 

TRAFFIC COUNTS 

- Page 574 -



File Name : Apex(US 64 and Jenks)AM Peak
Site Code : 
Start Date : 10/28/2021
Page No : 1

Groups Printed- Cars + - Trucks
Jenks Road
Southbound

US 64
Westbound

Richardson Road
Northbound

US 64
Eastbound

Start Time Right Thru Left UTrn App. Total Right Thru Left UTrn App. Total Right Thru Left UTrn App. Total Right Thru Left UTrn App. Total Int. Total

07:00 AM 19 0 0 0 19 19 225 33 0 277 74 0 0 0 74 4 253 15 0 272 642
07:15 AM 29 0 0 0 29 21 218 30 0 269 98 0 0 0 98 6 307 26 0 339 735
07:30 AM 22 0 0 0 22 14 253 36 1 304 106 0 0 0 106 6 341 21 0 368 800
07:45 AM 24 0 0 0 24 21 239 46 0 306 84 0 0 0 84 8 289 26 0 323 737

Total 94 0 0 0 94 75 935 145 1 1156 362 0 0 0 362 24 1190 88 0 1302 2914

08:00 AM 27 0 0 0 27 26 290 53 0 369 80 0 0 0 80 11 304 18 0 333 809
08:15 AM 33 0 0 0 33 12 238 47 2 299 71 0 0 0 71 16 276 26 0 318 721
08:30 AM 30 0 0 0 30 18 246 49 0 313 96 0 0 0 96 8 285 20 0 313 752
08:45 AM 29 0 0 0 29 18 267 45 0 330 90 0 0 0 90 7 263 16 0 286 735

Total 119 0 0 0 119 74 1041 194 2 1311 337 0 0 0 337 42 1128 80 0 1250 3017

Grand Total 213 0 0 0 213 149 1976 339 3 2467 699 0 0 0 699 66 2318 168 0 2552 5931
Apprch % 100 0 0 0  6 80.1 13.7 0.1  100 0 0 0  2.6 90.8 6.6 0   

Total % 3.6 0 0 0 3.6 2.5 33.3 5.7 0.1 41.6 11.8 0 0 0 11.8 1.1 39.1 2.8 0 43
Cars + 211 0 0 0 211 137 1890 328 3 2358 697 0 0 0 697 66 2225 164 0 2455 5721

% Cars + 99.1 0 0 0 99.1 91.9 95.6 96.8 100 95.6 99.7 0 0 0 99.7 100 96 97.6 0 96.2 96.5
Trucks 2 0 0 0 2 12 86 11 0 109 2 0 0 0 2 0 93 4 0 97 210

% Trucks 0.9 0 0 0 0.9 8.1 4.4 3.2 0 4.4 0.3 0 0 0 0.3 0 4 2.4 0 3.8 3.5

- Page 575 -



File Name : Apex(US 64 and Jenks)AM Peak
Site Code : 
Start Date : 10/28/2021
Page No : 2

Jenks Road
Southbound

US 64
Westbound

Richardson Road
Northbound

US 64
Eastbound

Start Time Right Thru Left UTrn App. Total Right Thru Left UTrn App. Total Right Thru Left UTrn App. Total Right Thru Left UTrn App. Total Int. Total

Peak Hour Analysis From 07:00 AM to 08:45 AM - Peak 1 of 1
Peak Hour for Entire Intersection Begins at 07:15 AM

07:15 AM 29 0 0 0 29 21 218 30 0 269 98 0 0 0 98 6 307 26 0 339 735
07:30 AM 22 0 0 0 22 14 253 36 1 304 106 0 0 0 106 6 341 21 0 368 800
07:45 AM 24 0 0 0 24 21 239 46 0 306 84 0 0 0 84 8 289 26 0 323 737
08:00 AM 27 0 0 0 27 26 290 53 0 369 80 0 0 0 80 11 304 18 0 333 809

Total Volume 102 0 0 0 102 82 1000 165 1 1248 368 0 0 0 368 31 1241 91 0 1363 3081
% App. Total 100 0 0 0  6.6 80.1 13.2 0.1  100 0 0 0  2.3 91 6.7 0   

PHF .879 .000 .000 .000 .879 .788 .862 .778 .250 .846 .868 .000 .000 .000 .868 .705 .910 .875 .000 .926 .952

   Jenks Road   

 U
S

 6
4
  U

S
 6

4
 

   Richardson Road   

Right
102 

Thru
0 

Left
0 

UTrn
0 

InOut Total
173 102 275 

O
ut

0 

In
0 

Total0 

R
ig

h
t

8
2
 

T
h
ru

1
0
0
0
 

L
e
ft

1
6
5
 

U
T

rn1
 

O
u
t

T
o
ta

l
In

1
6
0
9
 

1
2
4
8
 

2
8
5
7
 

O
ut

1 

In
0 

T ot
al

1 

UTrn
0 

Left
0 

Thru
0 

Right
368 

Out TotalIn
196 368 564 

O
ut

0 

In0 

Total

0 

U
T

rn
0
 

L
e
ft9
1
 

T
h
ru

1
2
4
1
 

R
ig

h
t

3
1
 

T
o
ta

l
O

u
t

In
1
1
0
2
 

1
3
6
3
 

2
4
6
5
 

O
ut

0 

In
0 

T ot
al

0 

Peak Hour Begins at 07:15 AM
 
Cars +
Trucks

Peak Hour Data

North

- Page 576 -



File Name : Apex(US 64 and Jenks)PM Peak
Site Code : 
Start Date : 10/28/2021
Page No : 1

Groups Printed- Cars + - Trucks
Jenks Road
Southbound

US 64
Westbound

Richardson Road
Northbound

US 64
Eastbound

Start Time Right Thru Left UTrn App. Total Right Thru Left UTrn App. Total Right Thru Left UTrn App. Total Right Thru Left UTrn App. Total Int. Total

04:00 PM 35 0 0 0 35 12 302 56 0 370 50 0 0 0 50 6 237 18 0 261 716
04:15 PM 36 0 0 0 36 18 341 50 0 409 64 0 0 0 64 12 312 17 0 341 850
04:30 PM 35 0 0 0 35 14 318 62 0 394 75 0 0 0 75 11 292 19 0 322 826
04:45 PM 41 0 0 0 41 19 295 63 2 379 69 0 0 0 69 17 355 16 0 388 877

Total 147 0 0 0 147 63 1256 231 2 1552 258 0 0 0 258 46 1196 70 0 1312 3269

05:00 PM 40 0 0 0 40 19 315 58 1 393 90 0 0 0 90 4 316 17 0 337 860
05:15 PM 36 0 0 0 36 18 346 61 0 425 66 0 0 0 66 11 299 24 0 334 861
05:30 PM 25 0 0 0 25 20 293 61 2 376 57 0 0 0 57 12 271 15 0 298 756
05:45 PM 36 0 0 0 36 13 287 55 0 355 61 0 0 0 61 5 281 15 0 301 753

Total 137 0 0 0 137 70 1241 235 3 1549 274 0 0 0 274 32 1167 71 0 1270 3230

Grand Total 284 0 0 0 284 133 2497 466 5 3101 532 0 0 0 532 78 2363 141 0 2582 6499
Apprch % 100 0 0 0  4.3 80.5 15 0.2  100 0 0 0  3 91.5 5.5 0   

Total % 4.4 0 0 0 4.4 2 38.4 7.2 0.1 47.7 8.2 0 0 0 8.2 1.2 36.4 2.2 0 39.7
Cars + 282 0 0 0 282 132 2456 465 5 3058 529 0 0 0 529 78 2309 141 0 2528 6397

% Cars + 99.3 0 0 0 99.3 99.2 98.4 99.8 100 98.6 99.4 0 0 0 99.4 100 97.7 100 0 97.9 98.4
Trucks 2 0 0 0 2 1 41 1 0 43 3 0 0 0 3 0 54 0 0 54 102

% Trucks 0.7 0 0 0 0.7 0.8 1.6 0.2 0 1.4 0.6 0 0 0 0.6 0 2.3 0 0 2.1 1.6

- Page 577 -



File Name : Apex(US 64 and Jenks)PM Peak
Site Code : 
Start Date : 10/28/2021
Page No : 2

Jenks Road
Southbound

US 64
Westbound

Richardson Road
Northbound

US 64
Eastbound

Start Time Right Thru Left UTrn App. Total Right Thru Left UTrn App. Total Right Thru Left UTrn App. Total Right Thru Left UTrn App. Total Int. Total

Peak Hour Analysis From 04:00 PM to 05:45 PM - Peak 1 of 1
Peak Hour for Entire Intersection Begins at 04:30 PM

04:30 PM 35 0 0 0 35 14 318 62 0 394 75 0 0 0 75 11 292 19 0 322 826
04:45 PM 41 0 0 0 41 19 295 63 2 379 69 0 0 0 69 17 355 16 0 388 877
05:00 PM 40 0 0 0 40 19 315 58 1 393 90 0 0 0 90 4 316 17 0 337 860
05:15 PM 36 0 0 0 36 18 346 61 0 425 66 0 0 0 66 11 299 24 0 334 861

Total Volume 152 0 0 0 152 70 1274 244 3 1591 300 0 0 0 300 43 1262 76 0 1381 3424
% App. Total 100 0 0 0  4.4 80.1 15.3 0.2  100 0 0 0  3.1 91.4 5.5 0   

PHF .927 .000 .000 .000 .927 .921 .921 .968 .375 .936 .833 .000 .000 .000 .833 .632 .889 .792 .000 .890 .976

   Jenks Road   

 U
S

 6
4
  U

S
 6

4
 

   Richardson Road   

Right
152 

Thru
0 

Left
0 

UTrn
0 

InOut Total
146 152 298 

O
ut

0 

In
0 

Total0 

R
ig

h
t

7
0
 

T
h
ru

1
2
7
4
 

L
e
ft

2
4
4
 

U
T

rn3
 

O
u
t

T
o
ta

l
In

1
5
6
2
 

1
5
9
1
 

3
1
5
3
 

O
ut

3 

In
0 

T ot
al

3 

UTrn
0 

Left
0 

Thru
0 

Right
300 

Out TotalIn
287 300 587 

O
ut

0 

In0 

Total

0 

U
T

rn
0
 

L
e
ft7
6
 

T
h
ru

1
2
6
2
 

R
ig

h
t

4
3
 

T
o
ta

l
O

u
t

In
1
4
2
6
 

1
3
8
1
 

2
8
0
7
 

O
ut

0 

In
0 

T ot
al

0 

Peak Hour Begins at 04:30 PM
 
Cars +
Trucks

Peak Hour Data

North

- Page 578 -



File Name : US 64 and U-Turn Location
Site Code : 00000001
Start Date : 1/11/2022
Page No : 1

Groups Printed- Cars - TRKS - Semis

From North
US 64

From East From South
US 64

From West
Start Time Right Thru Left Peds App. Total Right Thru Left U-Turns App. Total Right Thru Left Peds App. Total Right Thru Left U-Turns App. Total Int. Total

07:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 1
07:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
07:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 5 5 5
07:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 1

Total 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 7 7 8

08:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 2 3
08:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 1
08:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4 4 4
08:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 1

Total 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 8 8 9

*** BREAK ***

04:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 3
04:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 1
04:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 5 5 6
04:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4 4 5

Total 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 11 11 15

05:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 2 2
05:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 5 5 6
05:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 3 3
05:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 3 5

Total 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 13 13 16

Grand Total 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 9 9 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 39 39 48
Apprch % 0 0 0 0  0 0 0 100  0 0 0 0  0 0 0 100   

Total % 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 18.8 18.8 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 81.2 81.2
Cars 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 9 9 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 34 34 43

% Cars 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 100 100 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 87.2 87.2 89.6
TRKS 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 5 5 5

% TRKS 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 12.8 12.8 10.4
Semis 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

% Semis 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

5808 Faringdon Place
Suite 100

Raleigh, NC 27609
PH: 919-872-5115

- Page 579 -



File Name : US 64 and U-Turn Location
Site Code : 00000001
Start Date : 1/11/2022
Page No : 2

From North
US 64

From East From South
US 64

From West
Start Time Right Thru Left Peds App. Total Right Thru Left U-Turns App. Total Right Thru Left Peds App. Total Right Thru Left U-Turns App. Total Int. Total

Peak Hour Analysis From 07:00 AM to 11:45 AM - Peak 1 of 1
Peak Hour for Entire Intersection Begins at 07:15 AM

07:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
07:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 5 5 5
07:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 1
08:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 2 3

Total Volume 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 8 8 10
% App. Total 0 0 0 0  0 0 0 100  0 0 0 0  0 0 0 100   

PHF .000 .000 .000 .000 .000 .000 .000 .000 .500 .500 .000 .000 .000 .000 .000 .000 .000 .000 .400 .400 .500
Cars 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4 4 6

% Cars 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 100 100 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 50.0 50.0 60.0
TRKS 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4 4 4

% TRKS 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 50.0 50.0 40.0
Semis 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

% Semis 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

5808 Faringdon Place
Suite 100

Raleigh, NC 27609
PH: 919-872-5115

- Page 580 -



File Name : US 64 and U-Turn Location
Site Code : 00000001
Start Date : 1/11/2022
Page No : 3

  

 U
S

 6
4

  U
S

 6
4

 

  

Right

0 
0 
0 
0 

Thru

0 
0 
0 
0 

Left

0 
0 
0 
0 

Peds

0 
0 
0 
0 

InOut Total
0 0 0 
0 0 0 
0 0 0 
0 0 0 

R
ig

h
t 0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

T
h

ru 0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

L
e

ft 0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 U

-T
u

rn
s

2
 

0
 

0
 

2
 

O
u

t
T

o
ta

l
In

0
 

2
 

2
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

2
 

2
 

Left
0 
0 
0 
0 

Thru
0 
0 
0 
0 

Right
0 
0 
0 
0 

Peds
0 
0 
0 
0 

Out TotalIn

0 0 0 
0 0 0 
0 0 0 
0 0 0 

L
e

ft

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

T
h

ru

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

R
ig

h
t0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

U
-T

u
rn

s

4
 

4
 

0
 

8
 

T
o

ta
l

O
u

t
In

0
 

4
 

4
 

0
 

4
 

4
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

8
 

8
 

Peak Hour Begins at 07:15 AM
 
Cars
TRKS
Semis

Peak Hour Data

North

5808 Faringdon Place
Suite 100

Raleigh, NC 27609
PH: 919-872-5115

- Page 581 -



File Name : US 64 and U-Turn Location
Site Code : 00000001
Start Date : 1/11/2022
Page No : 4

From North
US 64

From East From South
US 64

From West
Start Time Right Thru Left Peds App. Total Right Thru Left U-Turns App. Total Right Thru Left Peds App. Total Right Thru Left U-Turns App. Total Int. Total

Peak Hour Analysis From 12:00 PM to 05:45 PM - Peak 1 of 1
Peak Hour for Entire Intersection Begins at 04:30 PM

04:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 5 5 6
04:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4 4 5
05:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 2 2
05:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 5 5 6

Total Volume 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 16 16 19
% App. Total 0 0 0 0  0 0 0 100  0 0 0 0  0 0 0 100   

PHF .000 .000 .000 .000 .000 .000 .000 .000 .750 .750 .000 .000 .000 .000 .000 .000 .000 .000 .800 .800 .792
Cars 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 15 15 18

% Cars 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 100 100 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 93.8 93.8 94.7
TRKS 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 1

% TRKS 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 6.3 6.3 5.3
Semis 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

% Semis 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

  

 U
S

 6
4

  U
S

 6
4

 

  

Right

0 
0 
0 
0 

Thru

0 
0 
0 
0 

Left

0 
0 
0 
0 

Peds

0 
0 
0 
0 

InOut Total
0 0 0 
0 0 0 
0 0 0 
0 0 0 

R
ig

h
t 0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

T
h

ru 0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

L
e

ft 0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 U

-T
u

rn
s

3
 

0
 

0
 

3
 

O
u

t
T

o
ta

l
In

0
 

3
 

3
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

3
 

3
 

Left
0 
0 
0 
0 

Thru
0 
0 
0 
0 

Right
0 
0 
0 
0 

Peds
0 
0 
0 
0 

Out TotalIn

0 0 0 
0 0 0 
0 0 0 
0 0 0 

L
e

ft

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

T
h

ru

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

R
ig

h
t0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

U
-T

u
rn

s

1
5

 
1

 
0

 
1

6
 

T
o

ta
l

O
u

t
In

0
 

1
5

 
1

5
 

0
 

1
 

1
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

1
6

 
1

6
 

Peak Hour Begins at 04:30 PM
 
Cars
TRKS
Semis

Peak Hour Data

North

5808 Faringdon Place
Suite 100

Raleigh, NC 27609
PH: 919-872-5115

- Page 582 -



 

 

APPENDIX C 

 

ADJACENT DEVELOPMENT 

INFORMATION 

- Page 583 -



Traffic Impact Analysis

for

Westford

Apex, North Carolina

Prepared for:

The Halle Companies

Apex, North Carolina

Prepared by:

Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc.

NC License #F-0102

421 Fayetteville Street Suite 600

Raleigh, NC 27601

(919) 677-2000

December 2016

018995001

- Page 584 -



- Page 585 -



- Page 586 -



- Page 587 -



- Page 588 -



- Page 589 -



- Page 590 -



Westford – Apex, NC

34

7.0  Recommendations

The following roadway improvements are committed to be performed by other developments in
the area:

US 64 at Jenks Road:

Convert existing intersection to a superstreet configuration with left turn crossovers and
downstream U-Turns (by Sweetwater Phase 1)

Monitor  crossovers  for  MUTCD  traffic  signal  warrants  and  install  a  traffic  signal  if

warrants are met (by Sweetwater Phase 1)

Construct a single westbound left-turn lane with 300 feet of storage and a single right-

turn lane with 100 feet of storage on US 64 (by Sweetwater Phase 1)

Construct a single eastbound left-turn lane with 300 feet of storage and a single right-turn

lane with 50 feet of storage on US 64 (by Sweetwater Phase 1)

Extend the westbound left-turn lane on US 64 to provide 500 feet of storage (by Smith
Farm prior to platting 300 units)

Extend the eastbound right-turn lane on US 64 to provide 100 feet of storage (by Smith
Farm prior to platting of 360 units)

Construct an additional northbound right-turn lane on Richardson Road with 300 feet of

storage (by Smith Farm prior to platting 360 units)

US 64 at West U-turn:

Construct a single lane U-turn with 250 feet of storage (by Sweetwater Phase 1)

Monitor for MUTCD traffic signal warrants and install a traffic signal if warrants are met

(by Sweetwater Phase 1)

US 64 at East U-turn:

Construct a single lane U-turn with 250 feet of storage on US 64 (by Sweetwater Phase 1)

Monitor for MUTCD traffic signal warrants and install a traffic signal if warrants are met

(by Sweetwater Phase 1)

Extend eastbound U-turn lane on US 64 to provide 400 feet of storage (by Smith Farm
Phase 1)

Green Level Church Road at Jenks Road:

Monitor this intersection for MUTCD traffic signal warrants and install a traffic signal if

warrants are met (by The Preserve at White Oak Creek)

- Page 591 -



Westford – Apex, NC

35

The following roadway improvements are recommended to be performed to accommodate

projected Westford site traffic based on the analysis presented herein:

US 64 at Jenks Road:

If  not  already  done  by  others,  monitor  this  intersection  for  MUTCD  traffic  signal

warrants for the eastbound left-turn, the westbound through and right-turn, and the
southbound right-turn movements and install a traffic signal if warrants are met

US 64 at West U-Turn:

If  not  already  done  by  others,  monitor  this  intersection  for  MUTCD  traffic  signal

warrants and install a traffic signal if warrants are met

Jenks Road at Green Level Church Road:

If  not  already  done  by  others,  monitor  this  intersection  for  MUTCD  traffic  signal

warrants and install a traffic signal if warrants are met

Jenks Road at Wimberly Road / Street B:

Construct an exclusive westbound left-turn lane with a minimum of 50 feet of storage on
Jenks Road

Construct an exclusive eastbound left-turn lane with a minimum of 50 feet of storage on

Jenks Road

US 64 at Street A:

Construct an exclusive westbound right-turn lane with a minimum of 75 feet of storage
on US 64

Jenks Road at Street A:

Construct an exclusive westbound left-turn lane with a minimum of 50 feet of storage on
Jenks Road

Provide separate left- and right-turn lanes on the northbound approach of Street A

Jenks Road at Street C:

Construct an exclusive westbound left-turn lane with a minimum of 50 feet of storage on

Jenks Road

Analysis indicates that with the committed and recommended improvements in place, all of the
study intersections are expected to operate at an acceptable level of service.  The recommended
lane geometry is shown on Figure 9.

- Page 592 -



- Page 593 -



- Page 594 -



- Page 595 -



- Page 596 -



- Page 597 -



- Page 598 -



- Page 599 -



- Page 600 -



- Page 601 -



- Page 602 -



- Page 603 -



- Page 604 -



- Page 605 -



- Page 606 -



- Page 607 -



- Page 608 -



- Page 609 -



 

 

APPENDIX D 

 

CAPACITY ANALYSIS CALCULATIONS 

US 64 

& 

MEDIAN BREAK 

- Page 610 -



HCM 6th TWSC 2022 Existing
5: US 64 EB & Median Break Timing Plan: AM Peak Hour

Yellow Bridge Residential - Apex, NC Synchro 10 Report
RKA Page 1

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 0

Movement EBL EBT WBT WBR SBL SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 0 1650 0 0 4 0
Future Vol, veh/h 0 1650 0 0 4 0
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Free Free Stop Stop Stop Stop
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length - - - - 0 -
Veh in Median Storage, # - 0 16983 - 0 -
Grade, % - 0 0 - 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 90 90 90 90 90 90
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 0 1833 0 0 4 0
 

Major/Minor Major1 Minor2
Conflicting Flow All - 0 917 -
          Stage 1 - - 0 -
          Stage 2 - - 917 -
Critical Hdwy - - 6.84 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 - - 5.84 -
Follow-up Hdwy - - 3.52 -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 0 - 271 0
          Stage 1 0 - - 0
          Stage 2 0 - 350 0
Platoon blocked, % -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver - - 271 -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver - - 271 -
          Stage 1 - - - -
          Stage 2 - - 350 -
 

Approach EB SB
HCM Control Delay, s 0 18.5
HCM LOS C
 

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt EBT SBLn1
Capacity (veh/h) - 271
HCM Lane V/C Ratio - 0.016
HCM Control Delay (s) - 18.5
HCM Lane LOS - C
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) - 0.1

- Page 611 -



HCM 6th TWSC 2026 No-Build
5: US 64 EB & Median Break Timing Plan: AM Peak Hour

Yellow Bridge Residential - Apex, NC Synchro 10 Report
RKA Page 1

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 0

Movement EBL EBT WBT WBR SBL SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 0 2231 0 0 4 0
Future Vol, veh/h 0 2231 0 0 4 0
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Free Free Stop Stop Stop Stop
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length - - - - 0 -
Veh in Median Storage, # - 0 16983 - 0 -
Grade, % - 0 0 - 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 90 90 90 90 90 90
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 0 2479 0 0 4 0
 

Major/Minor Major1 Minor2
Conflicting Flow All - 0 1240 -
          Stage 1 - - 0 -
          Stage 2 - - 1240 -
Critical Hdwy - - 6.84 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 - - 5.84 -
Follow-up Hdwy - - 3.52 -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 0 - 167 0
          Stage 1 0 - - 0
          Stage 2 0 - 236 0
Platoon blocked, % -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver - - 167 -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver - - 167 -
          Stage 1 - - - -
          Stage 2 - - 236 -
 

Approach EB SB
HCM Control Delay, s 0 27.1
HCM LOS D
 

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt EBT SBLn1
Capacity (veh/h) - 167
HCM Lane V/C Ratio - 0.027
HCM Control Delay (s) - 27.1
HCM Lane LOS - D
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) - 0.1

- Page 612 -



HCM 6th TWSC 2026 Build
5: Site Access/Median Break & US 64 EB Timing Plan: AM Peak Hour

Yellow Bridge Residential - Apex, NC Synchro 10 Report
RKA Page 1

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 5.6

Movement EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 0 2231 9 0 0 0 0 0 70 4 25 0
Future Vol, veh/h 0 2231 9 0 0 0 0 0 70 4 25 0
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Free Free Free Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop
RT Channelized - - None - - None - - None - - None
Storage Length - - 0 - - - - - 0 - - -
Veh in Median Storage, # - 0 - - 16983 - - 0 - - 0 -
Grade, % - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 0 2479 10 0 0 0 0 0 78 4 28 0
 

Major/Minor Major1 Minor1 Minor2
Conflicting Flow All - 0 0 - - 1240 1240 2489 -
          Stage 1 - - - - - - 0 0 -
          Stage 2 - - - - - - 1240 2489 -
Critical Hdwy - - - - - 6.94 7.54 6.54 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 - - - - - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 - - - - - - 6.54 5.54 -
Follow-up Hdwy - - - - - 3.32 3.52 4.02 -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 0 - - 0 0 167 131 29 0
          Stage 1 0 - - 0 0 - - - 0
          Stage 2 0 - - 0 0 - 186 58 0
Platoon blocked, % - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver - - - - - 167 70 29 -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver - - - - - - 70 29 -
          Stage 1 - - - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 - - - - - - 99 58 -
 

Approach EB NB SB
HCM Control Delay, s 0 44.1 $ 344.8
HCM LOS E F
 

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBLn1 EBT EBR SBLn1
Capacity (veh/h) 167 - - 32
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.466 - - 1.007
HCM Control Delay (s) 44.1 - -$ 344.8
HCM Lane LOS E - - F
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 2.2 - - 3.5

Notes
~: Volume exceeds capacity       $: Delay exceeds 300s      +: Computation Not Defined      *: All major volume in platoon

- Page 613 -



HCM 6th TWSC 2022 Existing
5: US 64 EB & Median Break Timing Plan: PM Peak Hour

Yellow Bridge Residential - Apex, NC Synchro 10 Report
RKA Page 1

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 0

Movement EBL EBT WBT WBR SBL SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 0 1596 0 0 4 0
Future Vol, veh/h 0 1596 0 0 4 0
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Free Free Stop Stop Stop Stop
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length - - - - 0 -
Veh in Median Storage, # - 0 16983 - 0 -
Grade, % - 0 0 - 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 90 90 90 90 90 90
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 0 1773 0 0 4 0
 

Major/Minor Major1 Minor2
Conflicting Flow All - 0 887 -
          Stage 1 - - 0 -
          Stage 2 - - 887 -
Critical Hdwy - - 6.84 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 - - 5.84 -
Follow-up Hdwy - - 3.52 -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 0 - 284 0
          Stage 1 0 - - 0
          Stage 2 0 - 363 0
Platoon blocked, % -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver - - 284 -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver - - 284 -
          Stage 1 - - - -
          Stage 2 - - 363 -
 

Approach EB SB
HCM Control Delay, s 0 17.9
HCM LOS C
 

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt EBT SBLn1
Capacity (veh/h) - 284
HCM Lane V/C Ratio - 0.016
HCM Control Delay (s) - 17.9
HCM Lane LOS - C
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) - 0

- Page 614 -



HCM 6th TWSC 2026 No-Build
5: US 64 EB & Median Break Timing Plan: PM Peak Hour

Yellow Bridge Residential - Apex, NC Synchro 10 Report
RKA Page 1

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 0

Movement EBL EBT WBT WBR SBL SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 0 2258 0 0 4 0
Future Vol, veh/h 0 2258 0 0 4 0
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Free Free Stop Stop Stop Stop
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length - - - - 0 -
Veh in Median Storage, # - 0 16983 - 0 -
Grade, % - 0 0 - 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 90 90 90 90 90 90
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 0 2509 0 0 4 0
 

Major/Minor Major1 Minor2
Conflicting Flow All - 0 1255 -
          Stage 1 - - 0 -
          Stage 2 - - 1255 -
Critical Hdwy - - 6.84 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 - - 5.84 -
Follow-up Hdwy - - 3.52 -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 0 - 164 0
          Stage 1 0 - - 0
          Stage 2 0 - 232 0
Platoon blocked, % -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver - - 164 -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver - - 164 -
          Stage 1 - - - -
          Stage 2 - - 232 -
 

Approach EB SB
HCM Control Delay, s 0 27.6
HCM LOS D
 

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt EBT SBLn1
Capacity (veh/h) - 164
HCM Lane V/C Ratio - 0.027
HCM Control Delay (s) - 27.6
HCM Lane LOS - D
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) - 0.1

- Page 615 -



HCM 6th TWSC 2026 Build
5: Site Access/Median Break & US 64 EB Timing Plan: PM Peak Hour

Yellow Bridge Residential - Apex, NC Synchro 10 Report
RKA Page 1

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 38.1

Movement EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 0 2251 28 0 0 0 0 0 76 4 71 0
Future Vol, veh/h 0 2251 28 0 0 0 0 0 76 4 71 0
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Free Free Free Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop
RT Channelized - - None - - None - - None - - None
Storage Length - - 0 - - - - - 0 - - -
Veh in Median Storage, # - 0 - - 16983 - - 0 - - 0 -
Grade, % - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 0 2501 31 0 0 0 0 0 84 4 79 0
 

Major/Minor Major1 Minor1 Minor2
Conflicting Flow All - 0 0 - - 1251 1251 2532 -
          Stage 1 - - - - - - 0 0 -
          Stage 2 - - - - - - 1251 2532 -
Critical Hdwy - - - - - 6.94 7.54 6.54 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 - - - - - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 - - - - - - 6.54 5.54 -
Follow-up Hdwy - - - - - 3.32 3.52 4.02 -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 0 - - 0 0 164 129 ~ 27 0
          Stage 1 0 - - 0 0 - - - 0
          Stage 2 0 - - 0 0 - 183 ~ 55 0
Platoon blocked, % - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver - - - - - 164 63 ~ 27 -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver - - - - - - 63 ~ 27 -
          Stage 1 - - - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 - - - - - - 89 ~ 55 -
 

Approach EB NB SB
HCM Control Delay, s 0 48.2 $ 1186.4
HCM LOS E F
 

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBLn1 EBT EBR SBLn1
Capacity (veh/h) 164 - - 28
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.515 - - 2.976
HCM Control Delay (s) 48.2 - -$ 1186.4
HCM Lane LOS E - - F
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 2.5 - - 10

Notes
~: Volume exceeds capacity       $: Delay exceeds 300s      +: Computation Not Defined      *: All major volume in platoon

- Page 616 -



HCM 6th TWSC 2022 Existing
7: Median Break & US 64 WB Timing Plan: AM Peak Hour

Yellow Bridge Residential - Apex, NC Synchro 10 Report
RKA Page 1

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 0.1

Movement EBT EBR WBL WBT NBL NBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 0 0 0 1277 8 0
Future Vol, veh/h 0 0 0 1277 8 0
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Free Free Stop Stop
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length - - - - 0 -
Veh in Median Storage, # 0 - - 0 0 -
Grade, % 0 - - 0 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 90 90 90 90 90 90
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 0 0 0 1419 9 0
 

Major/Minor Major2 Minor1
Conflicting Flow All - - 710 -
          Stage 1 - - 0 -
          Stage 2 - - 710 -
Critical Hdwy - - 6.84 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 - - 5.84 -
Follow-up Hdwy - - 3.52 -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 0 - 368 0
          Stage 1 0 - - 0
          Stage 2 0 - 448 0
Platoon blocked, % -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver - - 368 -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver - - 368 -
          Stage 1 - - - -
          Stage 2 - - 448 -
 

Approach WB NB
HCM Control Delay, s 0 15
HCM LOS C
 

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBLn1 WBT
Capacity (veh/h) 368 -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.024 -
HCM Control Delay (s) 15 -
HCM Lane LOS C -
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0.1 -

- Page 617 -



HCM 6th TWSC 2026 No-Build
7: Median Break & US 64 WB Timing Plan: AM Peak Hour

Yellow Bridge Residential - Apex, NC Synchro 10 Report
RKA Page 1

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 0.1

Movement EBT EBR WBL WBT NBL NBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 0 0 0 1807 9 0
Future Vol, veh/h 0 0 0 1807 9 0
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Free Free Stop Stop
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length - - - - 0 -
Veh in Median Storage, # 0 - - 0 0 -
Grade, % 0 - - 0 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 90 90 90 90 90 90
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 0 0 0 2008 10 0
 

Major/Minor Major2 Minor1
Conflicting Flow All - - 1004 -
          Stage 1 - - 0 -
          Stage 2 - - 1004 -
Critical Hdwy - - 6.84 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 - - 5.84 -
Follow-up Hdwy - - 3.52 -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 0 - 238 0
          Stage 1 0 - - 0
          Stage 2 0 - 315 0
Platoon blocked, % -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver - - 238 -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver - - 238 -
          Stage 1 - - - -
          Stage 2 - - 315 -
 

Approach WB NB
HCM Control Delay, s 0 20.8
HCM LOS C
 

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBLn1 WBT
Capacity (veh/h) 238 -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.042 -
HCM Control Delay (s) 20.8 -
HCM Lane LOS C -
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0.1 -

- Page 618 -



HCM 6th TWSC 2026 Build
7: Median Break & US 64 WB Timing Plan: AM Peak Hour

Yellow Bridge Residential - Apex, NC Synchro 10 Report
RKA Page 1

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 0.1

Movement EBT EBR WBL WBT NBL NBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 0 0 0 1823 9 0
Future Vol, veh/h 0 0 0 1823 9 0
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Free Free Stop Stop
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length - - - - 0 -
Veh in Median Storage, # 0 - - 0 0 -
Grade, % 0 - - 0 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 90 90 90 90 90 90
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 0 0 0 2026 10 0
 

Major/Minor Major2 Minor1
Conflicting Flow All - - 1013 -
          Stage 1 - - 0 -
          Stage 2 - - 1013 -
Critical Hdwy - - 6.84 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 - - 5.84 -
Follow-up Hdwy - - 3.52 -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 0 - 235 0
          Stage 1 0 - - 0
          Stage 2 0 - 312 0
Platoon blocked, % -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver - - 235 -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver - - 235 -
          Stage 1 - - - -
          Stage 2 - - 312 -
 

Approach WB NB
HCM Control Delay, s 0 21
HCM LOS C
 

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBLn1 WBT
Capacity (veh/h) 235 -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.043 -
HCM Control Delay (s) 21 -
HCM Lane LOS C -
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0.1 -

- Page 619 -



HCM 6th TWSC 2022 Existing
7: Median Break & US 64 WB Timing Plan: PM Peak Hour

Yellow Bridge Residential - Apex, NC Synchro 10 Report
RKA Page 1

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 0.2

Movement EBT EBR WBL WBT NBL NBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 0 0 0 1622 16 0
Future Vol, veh/h 0 0 0 1622 16 0
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Free Free Stop Stop
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length - - - - 0 -
Veh in Median Storage, # 0 - - 0 0 -
Grade, % 0 - - 0 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 90 90 90 90 90 90
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 0 0 0 1802 18 0
 

Major/Minor Major2 Minor1
Conflicting Flow All - - 901 -
          Stage 1 - - 0 -
          Stage 2 - - 901 -
Critical Hdwy - - 6.84 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 - - 5.84 -
Follow-up Hdwy - - 3.52 -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 0 - 278 0
          Stage 1 0 - - 0
          Stage 2 0 - 357 0
Platoon blocked, % -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver - - 278 -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver - - 278 -
          Stage 1 - - - -
          Stage 2 - - 357 -
 

Approach WB NB
HCM Control Delay, s 0 18.8
HCM LOS C
 

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBLn1 WBT
Capacity (veh/h) 278 -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.064 -
HCM Control Delay (s) 18.8 -
HCM Lane LOS C -
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0.2 -

- Page 620 -



HCM 6th TWSC 2026 No-Build
7: Median Break & US 64 WB Timing Plan: PM Peak Hour

Yellow Bridge Residential - Apex, NC Synchro 10 Report
RKA Page 1

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 0.2

Movement EBT EBR WBL WBT NBL NBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 0 0 0 2223 19 0
Future Vol, veh/h 0 0 0 2223 19 0
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Free Free Stop Stop
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length - - - - 0 -
Veh in Median Storage, # 0 - - 0 0 -
Grade, % 0 - - 0 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 90 90 90 90 90 90
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 0 0 0 2470 21 0
 

Major/Minor Major2 Minor1
Conflicting Flow All - - 1235 -
          Stage 1 - - 0 -
          Stage 2 - - 1235 -
Critical Hdwy - - 6.84 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 - - 5.84 -
Follow-up Hdwy - - 3.52 -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 0 - 169 0
          Stage 1 0 - - 0
          Stage 2 0 - 238 0
Platoon blocked, % -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver - - 169 -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver - - 169 -
          Stage 1 - - - -
          Stage 2 - - 238 -
 

Approach WB NB
HCM Control Delay, s 0 29.3
HCM LOS D
 

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBLn1 WBT
Capacity (veh/h) 169 -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.125 -
HCM Control Delay (s) 29.3 -
HCM Lane LOS D -
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0.4 -

- Page 621 -



HCM 6th TWSC 2026 Build
7: Median Break & US 64 WB Timing Plan: PM Peak Hour

Yellow Bridge Residential - Apex, NC Synchro 10 Report
RKA Page 1

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 0.3

Movement EBT EBR WBL WBT NBL NBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 0 0 0 2239 19 0
Future Vol, veh/h 0 0 0 2239 19 0
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Free Free Stop Stop
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length - - - - 0 -
Veh in Median Storage, # 0 - - 0 0 -
Grade, % 0 - - 0 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 90 90 90 90 90 90
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 0 0 0 2488 21 0
 

Major/Minor Major2 Minor1
Conflicting Flow All - - 1244 -
          Stage 1 - - 0 -
          Stage 2 - - 1244 -
Critical Hdwy - - 6.84 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 - - 5.84 -
Follow-up Hdwy - - 3.52 -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 0 - 166 0
          Stage 1 0 - - 0
          Stage 2 0 - 235 0
Platoon blocked, % -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver - - 166 -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver - - 166 -
          Stage 1 - - - -
          Stage 2 - - 235 -
 

Approach WB NB
HCM Control Delay, s 0 29.8
HCM LOS D
 

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBLn1 WBT
Capacity (veh/h) 166 -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.127 -
HCM Control Delay (s) 29.8 -
HCM Lane LOS D -
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0.4 -

- Page 622 -



 

 

APPENDIX E 

 

CAPACITY ANALYSIS CALCULATIONS 

US 64 

& 

FUTURE EASTERN U-TURN LOCATION 

- Page 623 -



HCM 6th TWSC 2026 Build
9: Eastern U-Turn Location & US 64 WB Timing Plan: AM Peak Hour

Yellow Bridge Residential - Apex, NC Synchro 10 Report
RKA Page 1

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 0.2

Movement EBT EBR WBL WBT NBL NBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 0 0 0 1834 16 0
Future Vol, veh/h 0 0 0 1834 16 0
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Free Free Stop Stop
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length - - - - 0 -
Veh in Median Storage, # 0 - - 0 0 -
Grade, % 0 - - 0 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 90 90 90 90 90 90
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 0 0 0 2038 18 0
 

Major/Minor Major2 Minor1
Conflicting Flow All - - 1019 -
          Stage 1 - - 0 -
          Stage 2 - - 1019 -
Critical Hdwy - - 6.84 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 - - 5.84 -
Follow-up Hdwy - - 3.52 -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 0 - 233 0
          Stage 1 0 - - 0
          Stage 2 0 - 309 0
Platoon blocked, % -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver - - 233 -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver - - 233 -
          Stage 1 - - - -
          Stage 2 - - 309 -
 

Approach WB NB
HCM Control Delay, s 0 21.7
HCM LOS C
 

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBLn1 WBT
Capacity (veh/h) 233 -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.076 -
HCM Control Delay (s) 21.7 -
HCM Lane LOS C -
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0.2 -

- Page 624 -



HCM 6th TWSC 2026 Build
9: Eastern U-Turn Location & US 64 WB Timing Plan: PM Peak Hour

Yellow Bridge Residential - Apex, NC Synchro 10 Report
RKA Page 1

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 0.3

Movement EBT EBR WBL WBT NBL NBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 0 0 0 2290 23 0
Future Vol, veh/h 0 0 0 2290 23 0
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Free Free Stop Stop
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length - - - - 0 -
Veh in Median Storage, # 0 - - 0 0 -
Grade, % 0 - - 0 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 90 90 90 90 90 90
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 0 0 0 2544 26 0
 

Major/Minor Major2 Minor1
Conflicting Flow All - - 1272 -
          Stage 1 - - 0 -
          Stage 2 - - 1272 -
Critical Hdwy - - 6.84 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 - - 5.84 -
Follow-up Hdwy - - 3.52 -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 0 - 159 0
          Stage 1 0 - - 0
          Stage 2 0 - 227 0
Platoon blocked, % -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver - - 159 -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver - - 159 -
          Stage 1 - - - -
          Stage 2 - - 227 -
 

Approach WB NB
HCM Control Delay, s 0 31.9
HCM LOS D
 

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBLn1 WBT
Capacity (veh/h) 159 -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.161 -
HCM Control Delay (s) 31.9 -
HCM Lane LOS D -
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0.6 -

- Page 625 -



 

 

APPENDIX F 

 

SIMTRAFFIC QUEUEING & 

PERFORMANCE RESULTS 

- Page 626 -



SimTraffic Performance Report 2022 Existing
Yellow Bridge Residential - Apex, NC AM Peak Hour

Yellow Bridge Residential - Apex, NC SimTraffic Report
RKA Page 1

4: US 64 EB & Median Break Performance by movement 

Movement EBL EBT All
Denied Del/Veh (s) 1.6 0.3 0.3
Total Del/Veh (s) 2.6 0.8 0.8

5: US 64 EB & Median Break Performance by movement 

Movement EBT SBL All
Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total Del/Veh (s) 0.1 18.4 0.1

6: Median Break & US 64 WB Performance by movement 

Movement WBL WBT All
Denied Del/Veh (s) 2.7 0.2 0.2
Total Del/Veh (s) 2.4 1.1 1.1

7: Median Break & US 64 WB Performance by movement 

Movement WBT NBL All
Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total Del/Veh (s) 0.1 9.6 0.1

Total Network Performance 

Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.3
Total Del/Veh (s) 2.3

- Page 627 -



Queuing and Blocking Report 2022 Existing
Yellow Bridge Residential - Apex, NC AM Peak Hour

Yellow Bridge Residential - Apex, NC SimTraffic Report
RKA Page 2

Intersection: 4: US 64 EB & Median Break

Movement
Directions Served
Maximum Queue (ft)
Average Queue (ft)
95th Queue (ft)
Link Distance (ft)
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 5: US 64 EB & Median Break

Movement SB
Directions Served L
Maximum Queue (ft) 28
Average Queue (ft) 4
95th Queue (ft) 21
Link Distance (ft) 59
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 6: Median Break & US 64 WB

Movement
Directions Served
Maximum Queue (ft)
Average Queue (ft)
95th Queue (ft)
Link Distance (ft)
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

- Page 628 -



Queuing and Blocking Report 2022 Existing
Yellow Bridge Residential - Apex, NC AM Peak Hour

Yellow Bridge Residential - Apex, NC SimTraffic Report
RKA Page 3

Intersection: 7: Median Break & US 64 WB

Movement NB
Directions Served L
Maximum Queue (ft) 28
Average Queue (ft) 6
95th Queue (ft) 24
Link Distance (ft) 59
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Network Summary
Network wide Queuing Penalty: 0

- Page 629 -



SimTraffic Performance Report 2026 No-Build
Yellow Bridge Residential - Apex, NC AM Peak Hour

Yellow Bridge Residential - Apex, NC SimTraffic Report
RKA Page 1

4: US 64 EB & Median Break Performance by movement 

Movement EBL EBT All
Denied Del/Veh (s) 1.8 0.6 0.6
Total Del/Veh (s) 2.9 1.2 1.2

5: US 64 EB & Median Break Performance by movement 

Movement EBT SBL All
Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total Del/Veh (s) 0.1 30.2 0.2

6: Median Break & US 64 WB Performance by movement 

Movement WBL WBT All
Denied Del/Veh (s) 2.1 0.4 0.4
Total Del/Veh (s) 3.2 1.5 1.5

7: Median Break & US 64 WB Performance by movement 

Movement WBT NBL All
Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total Del/Veh (s) 0.1 22.4 0.2

Total Network Performance 

Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.5
Total Del/Veh (s) 3.2

- Page 630 -



Queuing and Blocking Report 2026 No-Build
Yellow Bridge Residential - Apex, NC AM Peak Hour

Yellow Bridge Residential - Apex, NC SimTraffic Report
RKA Page 2

Intersection: 4: US 64 EB & Median Break

Movement
Directions Served
Maximum Queue (ft)
Average Queue (ft)
95th Queue (ft)
Link Distance (ft)
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 5: US 64 EB & Median Break

Movement SB
Directions Served L
Maximum Queue (ft) 28
Average Queue (ft) 5
95th Queue (ft) 21
Link Distance (ft) 59
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 6: Median Break & US 64 WB

Movement
Directions Served
Maximum Queue (ft)
Average Queue (ft)
95th Queue (ft)
Link Distance (ft)
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

- Page 631 -



Queuing and Blocking Report 2026 No-Build
Yellow Bridge Residential - Apex, NC AM Peak Hour

Yellow Bridge Residential - Apex, NC SimTraffic Report
RKA Page 3

Intersection: 7: Median Break & US 64 WB

Movement NB
Directions Served L
Maximum Queue (ft) 43
Average Queue (ft) 8
95th Queue (ft) 31
Link Distance (ft) 59
Upstream Blk Time (%) 0
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Network Summary
Network wide Queuing Penalty: 0

- Page 632 -



SimTraffic Performance Report 2026 Build
Yellow Bridge Residential - Apex, NC AM Peak Hour

Yellow Bridge Residential - Apex, NC SimTraffic Report
RKA Page 1

4: US 64 EB & Median Break Performance by movement 

Movement EBL EBT All
Denied Del/Veh (s) 1.9 0.6 0.6
Total Del/Veh (s) 3.2 1.7 1.7

5: Site Access/Median Break & US 64 EB Performance by movement 

Movement EBT EBR NBR SBL SBT All
Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.0 1.6 0.0
Total Del/Veh (s) 0.2 0.0 28.5 59.0 43.3 1.7

6: Median Break & US 64 WB Performance by movement 

Movement WBL WBT All
Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total Del/Veh (s) 4.3 1.1 1.1

7: Median Break & US 64 WB Performance by movement 

Movement WBT NBL All
Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total Del/Veh (s) 0.1 21.6 0.2

8: US 64 EB & Eastern U-Turn Location Performance by movement 

Movement EBL EBT All
Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total Del/Veh (s) 3.9 1.6 1.6

9: Eastern U-Turn Location & US 64 WB Performance by movement 

Movement WBT NBL All
Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.3 0.0 0.3
Total Del/Veh (s) 1.1 20.0 1.2

Total Network Performance 

Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.5
Total Del/Veh (s) 5.2

- Page 633 -



Queuing and Blocking Report 2026 Build
Yellow Bridge Residential - Apex, NC AM Peak Hour

Yellow Bridge Residential - Apex, NC SimTraffic Report
RKA Page 2

Intersection: 4: US 64 EB & Median Break

Movement
Directions Served
Maximum Queue (ft)
Average Queue (ft)
95th Queue (ft)
Link Distance (ft)
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 5: Site Access/Median Break & US 64 EB

Movement EB EB NB SB
Directions Served T T R LT
Maximum Queue (ft) 4 4 92 80
Average Queue (ft) 0 0 36 26
95th Queue (ft) 3 3 71 64
Link Distance (ft) 66 66 1062 60
Upstream Blk Time (%) 2
Queuing Penalty (veh) 1
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 6: Median Break & US 64 WB

Movement WB
Directions Served L
Maximum Queue (ft) 6
Average Queue (ft) 0
95th Queue (ft) 4
Link Distance (ft)
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft) 225
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

- Page 634 -



Queuing and Blocking Report 2026 Build
Yellow Bridge Residential - Apex, NC AM Peak Hour

Yellow Bridge Residential - Apex, NC SimTraffic Report
RKA Page 3

Intersection: 7: Median Break & US 64 WB

Movement NB
Directions Served L
Maximum Queue (ft) 38
Average Queue (ft) 7
95th Queue (ft) 28
Link Distance (ft) 59
Upstream Blk Time (%) 0
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 8: US 64 EB & Eastern U-Turn Location

Movement
Directions Served
Maximum Queue (ft)
Average Queue (ft)
95th Queue (ft)
Link Distance (ft)
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 9: Eastern U-Turn Location & US 64 WB

Movement NB
Directions Served L
Maximum Queue (ft) 48
Average Queue (ft) 13
95th Queue (ft) 38
Link Distance (ft) 60
Upstream Blk Time (%) 0
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Network Summary
Network wide Queuing Penalty: 1

- Page 635 -



SimTraffic Performance Report 2022 Existing
Yellow Bridge Residential - Apex, NC PM Peak Hour

Yellow Bridge Residential - Apex, NC SimTraffic Report
RKA Page 1

4: US 64 EB & Median Break Performance by movement 

Movement EBL EBT All
Denied Del/Veh (s) 2.1 0.3 0.3
Total Del/Veh (s) 2.7 0.8 0.9

5: US 64 EB & Median Break Performance by movement 

Movement EBT SBL All
Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total Del/Veh (s) 0.1 12.0 0.1

6: Median Break & US 64 WB Performance by movement 

Movement WBL WBT All
Denied Del/Veh (s) 1.7 0.3 0.3
Total Del/Veh (s) 2.7 1.3 1.3

7: Median Break & US 64 WB Performance by movement 

Movement WBT NBL All
Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total Del/Veh (s) 0.1 17.4 0.3

Total Network Performance 

Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.3
Total Del/Veh (s) 2.5

- Page 636 -



Queuing and Blocking Report 2022 Existing
Yellow Bridge Residential - Apex, NC PM Peak Hour

Yellow Bridge Residential - Apex, NC SimTraffic Report
RKA Page 2

Intersection: 4: US 64 EB & Median Break

Movement
Directions Served
Maximum Queue (ft)
Average Queue (ft)
95th Queue (ft)
Link Distance (ft)
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 5: US 64 EB & Median Break

Movement SB
Directions Served L
Maximum Queue (ft) 28
Average Queue (ft) 4
95th Queue (ft) 20
Link Distance (ft) 59
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 6: Median Break & US 64 WB

Movement
Directions Served
Maximum Queue (ft)
Average Queue (ft)
95th Queue (ft)
Link Distance (ft)
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

- Page 637 -



Queuing and Blocking Report 2022 Existing
Yellow Bridge Residential - Apex, NC PM Peak Hour

Yellow Bridge Residential - Apex, NC SimTraffic Report
RKA Page 3

Intersection: 7: Median Break & US 64 WB

Movement NB
Directions Served L
Maximum Queue (ft) 50
Average Queue (ft) 14
95th Queue (ft) 39
Link Distance (ft) 59
Upstream Blk Time (%) 0
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Network Summary
Network wide Queuing Penalty: 0

- Page 638 -



SimTraffic Performance Report 2026 No-Build
Yellow Bridge Residential - Apex, NC PM Peak Hour

Yellow Bridge Residential - Apex, NC SimTraffic Report
RKA Page 1

4: US 64 EB & Median Break Performance by movement 

Movement EBL EBT All
Denied Del/Veh (s) 1.7 0.6 0.6
Total Del/Veh (s) 3.3 1.2 1.3

5: US 64 EB & Median Break Performance by movement 

Movement EBT SBL All
Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total Del/Veh (s) 0.1 35.2 0.2

6: Median Break & US 64 WB Performance by movement 

Movement WBL WBT All
Denied Del/Veh (s) 1.6 0.5 0.5
Total Del/Veh (s) 4.1 1.9 1.9

7: Median Break & US 64 WB Performance by movement 

Movement WBT NBL All
Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total Del/Veh (s) 0.1 40.4 0.5

Total Network Performance 

Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.6
Total Del/Veh (s) 3.6

- Page 639 -



Queuing and Blocking Report 2026 No-Build
Yellow Bridge Residential - Apex, NC PM Peak Hour

Yellow Bridge Residential - Apex, NC SimTraffic Report
RKA Page 2

Intersection: 4: US 64 EB & Median Break

Movement
Directions Served
Maximum Queue (ft)
Average Queue (ft)
95th Queue (ft)
Link Distance (ft)
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 5: US 64 EB & Median Break

Movement SB
Directions Served L
Maximum Queue (ft) 32
Average Queue (ft) 5
95th Queue (ft) 21
Link Distance (ft) 59
Upstream Blk Time (%) 0
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 6: Median Break & US 64 WB

Movement
Directions Served
Maximum Queue (ft)
Average Queue (ft)
95th Queue (ft)
Link Distance (ft)
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

- Page 640 -



Queuing and Blocking Report 2026 No-Build
Yellow Bridge Residential - Apex, NC PM Peak Hour

Yellow Bridge Residential - Apex, NC SimTraffic Report
RKA Page 3

Intersection: 7: Median Break & US 64 WB

Movement NB
Directions Served L
Maximum Queue (ft) 64
Average Queue (ft) 17
95th Queue (ft) 47
Link Distance (ft) 59
Upstream Blk Time (%) 1
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Network Summary
Network wide Queuing Penalty: 0

- Page 641 -



SimTraffic Performance Report 2026 Build
Yellow Bridge Residential - Apex, NC PM Peak Hour

Yellow Bridge Residential - Apex, NC SimTraffic Report
RKA Page 1

4: US 64 EB & Median Break Performance by movement 

Movement EBL EBT All
Denied Del/Veh (s) 1.8 0.6 0.6
Total Del/Veh (s) 3.6 2.0 2.1

5: Site Access/Median Break & US 64 EB Performance by movement 

Movement EBT EBR NBR SBL SBT All
Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.0 0.5 0.0
Total Del/Veh (s) 0.3 0.0 35.1 83.4 85.4 4.0

6: Median Break & US 64 WB Performance by movement 

Movement WBL WBT All
Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total Del/Veh (s) 22.6 1.6 2.2

7: Median Break & US 64 WB Performance by movement 

Movement WBT NBL All
Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total Del/Veh (s) 0.2 35.9 0.4

8: US 64 EB & Eastern U-Turn Location Performance by movement 

Movement EBL EBT All
Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total Del/Veh (s) 4.2 1.7 1.7

9: Eastern U-Turn Location & US 64 WB Performance by movement 

Movement WBT NBL All
Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.6 0.0 0.6
Total Del/Veh (s) 1.6 59.8 2.2

Total Network Performance 

Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.6
Total Del/Veh (s) 7.6

- Page 642 -



Queuing and Blocking Report 2026 Build
Yellow Bridge Residential - Apex, NC PM Peak Hour

Yellow Bridge Residential - Apex, NC SimTraffic Report
RKA Page 2

Intersection: 4: US 64 EB & Median Break

Movement
Directions Served
Maximum Queue (ft)
Average Queue (ft)
95th Queue (ft)
Link Distance (ft)
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 5: Site Access/Median Break & US 64 EB

Movement EB NB SB
Directions Served R R LT
Maximum Queue (ft) 17 111 113
Average Queue (ft) 1 45 66
95th Queue (ft) 7 91 118
Link Distance (ft) 66 1062 60
Upstream Blk Time (%) 30
Queuing Penalty (veh) 22
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 6: Median Break & US 64 WB

Movement WB WB
Directions Served L T
Maximum Queue (ft) 77 44
Average Queue (ft) 15 3
95th Queue (ft) 80 43
Link Distance (ft) 990
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft) 225
Storage Blk Time (%) 0
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0

- Page 643 -



Queuing and Blocking Report 2026 Build
Yellow Bridge Residential - Apex, NC PM Peak Hour

Yellow Bridge Residential - Apex, NC SimTraffic Report
RKA Page 3

Intersection: 7: Median Break & US 64 WB

Movement NB
Directions Served L
Maximum Queue (ft) 59
Average Queue (ft) 16
95th Queue (ft) 43
Link Distance (ft) 59
Upstream Blk Time (%) 1
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 8: US 64 EB & Eastern U-Turn Location

Movement
Directions Served
Maximum Queue (ft)
Average Queue (ft)
95th Queue (ft)
Link Distance (ft)
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 9: Eastern U-Turn Location & US 64 WB

Movement NB
Directions Served L
Maximum Queue (ft) 76
Average Queue (ft) 24
95th Queue (ft) 57
Link Distance (ft) 60
Upstream Blk Time (%) 3
Queuing Penalty (veh) 1
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Network Summary
Network wide Queuing Penalty: 23

- Page 644 -



 

 

APPENDIX G 

 

ITRE 95th PERCENTILE QUEUE LENGTH 

CALCULATIONS 

- Page 645 -



t =
CVAF = 1.00000E+00

Conflicting = 2,240
ACV = 2,240

Turn Vol = 70

t =
CVAF = 1

Conflicting = 2,279
ACV = 2,279

Turn Vol = 76

Northbound Right-Turn Movement AM Peak Hour

PM Peak Hour

- Page 646 -



t =
CVAF = 1

Conflicting = 2240
ACV = 2,240

Turn Vol = 27

t =
CVAF = 1

Conflicting = 2279
ACV = 2,279

Turn Vol = 74

Westbound Left-Turn Movement AM Peak Hour

PM Peak Hour

- Page 647 -



 

 

APPENDIX H 

 

TURN LANE WARRANTS 

- Page 648 -



INTERSECTION: US 64 & Median Break

SCENARIO Movement Turn Lane
Turning Volume 

(VR/VL)

Approach / 

Opposing Volume 

(VA/VO)

Symbol

AM Build WBR Right 9 1125

PM Build EBR Right 28 1154

YELLOW BRIDGE RESIDENTIAL

TURN LANE STORAGE WARRANTS
NOTE: Approach volumes
halved due to the 4-lane
divided nature of US 64

- Page 649 -



 

 

APPENDIX I 

 

TRIP GENERATION COMPARISON 

 

- Page 650 -



Table 1: Trip Generation Summary – Scenario 1 

Land Use 
(ITE Code) 

Intensity 

Daily 

Traffic 
(vpd) 

Weekday 
AM Peak 

Hour Trips 

(vph) 

Weekday 
PM Peak 

Hour Trips 

(vph) 

Enter Exit Enter Exit 

Single-Family Homes 
(210) 

53 DU 580 11 32 35 20 

Multi-Family Homes (Low-Rise) 
(220) 

103 DU 741 11 38 38 23 

Total Trips 1,321 22 70 73 43 

 

Table 2: Trip Generation Summary – Scenario 2 

Land Use 
(ITE Code) 

Intensity 

Daily 

Traffic 
(vpd) 

Weekday 
AM Peak 

Hour Trips 

(vph) 

Weekday 
PM Peak 

Hour Trips 

(vph) 

Enter Exit Enter Exit 

Single-Family Homes 
(210) 

44 DU 489 9 27 29 17 

Multi-Family Homes (Low-Rise) 
(220) 

107 DU 768 12 39 39 23 

Shopping Center 
(820) 

25 KSF 944 15 9 45 50 

Total Trips 2,201 36 75 113 90 

 

Table 3: Trip Generation Summary – Scenario 3 

Land Use 
(ITE Code) 

Intensity 

Daily 

Traffic 
(vpd) 

Weekday 
AM Peak 

Hour Trips 
(vph) 

Weekday 
PM Peak 

Hour Trips 
(vph) 

Enter Exit Enter Exit 

Single-Family Homes 
(210) 

59 DU 640 12 35 38 23 

Multi-Family Homes (Low-Rise) 
(220) 

83 DU 587 9 31 31 19 

Shopping Center 
(820) 

25 KSF 944 15 9 45 50 

Total Trips 2,171 36 75 114 92 

 

 

- Page 651 -



Table 4: Trip Generation Summary Comparison 

Scenario 

Daily 

Traffic 
(vpd) 

Weekday 
AM Peak 

Hour Trips 

(vph) 

Weekday 
PM Peak 

Hour Trips 

(vph) 

Enter Exit Enter Exit 

Scenario 3 [Analyzed in the TIA] 2,171 36 75 114 92 

Scenario 1 Difference (+/-) 
[Scenario 1 – Scenario 3] 

-850 -14 -5 -41 -49 

Scenario 2 Difference (+/-) 
[Scenario 2 – Scenario 3] 

+30 0 0 -1 -2 

 

- Page 652 -



- Page 653 -



- Page 654 -



- Page 655 -



- Page 656 -



- Page 657 -



 TOWN OF APEX 
POST OFFICE BOX 250 
APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 27502 
PHONE 919-249-3426 

 

PUBLIC NOTIFICATION 
OF PUBLIC HEARINGS 

CONDITIONAL ZONING #22CZ06 
Yellowbridge PUD 

 

Published Dates: June 24 – July 11, 2022 

Pursuant to the provisions of North Carolina General Statutes §160D-602 and to the Town of Apex Unified Development 
Ordinance (UDO) Section 2.2.11, notice is hereby given of public hearings before the Planning Board of the Town of Apex. The 
purpose of these hearings is to consider the following: 

Applicant: Lennar Carolinas, LLC./Matthew Carpenter, Parker Poe 
Authorized Agent: Tucker Ennis, Lennar Carolinas, LLC.  
Property Addresses: 2813 & 2817 US 64 Highway  
Acreage: ±48.24 acres  
Property Identification Numbers (PINs): 0722743789 & 0722752304 
Current 2045 Land Use Map Designation: Medium Density Residential 

If rezoned as proposed, the 2045 Land Use Map Designation will change to: Medium Density Residential & 
Commercial Services 
Existing Zoning of Properties: Rural Residential (RR)  
Proposed Zoning of Properties: Planned Unit Development-Conditional Zoning (PUD-CZ) 
 

Public Hearing Location:  Apex Town Hall  
                                              Council Chamber, 2nd Floor 
                                              73 Hunter Street, Apex, North Carolina  

Planning Board Public Hearing Date and Time:  July 11, 2022   4:30 PM 
You may attend the meeting in person or view the meeting through the Town’s YouTube livestream at: 
https://www.youtube.com/c/townofapexgov. Please visit www.apexnc.org on the day of the meeting to confirm 
whether the meeting will be held in-person or remotely. 

If you are unable to attend, you may provide a written statement by email to public.hearing@apexnc.org, or submit it 
to the clerk of the Planning Board, Jeri Pederson (73 Hunter Street or USPS mail - P.O. Box 250, Apex, NC 27502), at 
least two business days prior to the Planning Board vote. You must provide your name and address for the record. The 
written statements will be delivered to the Planning Board prior to their vote. Please include the Public Hearing name 
in the subject line. 

In the event that the Planning Board meeting is held remotely or with at least one member attending virtually, written 
comments may be submitted up to 24 hours prior to the scheduled time of the meeting per NCGS §166A-19.24 
according to the methods specified above. Virtual meetings may be viewed via the Town’s YouTube livestream at 
https://www.youtube.com/c/townofapexgov. 

A separate notice of the Town Council public hearing on this project will be mailed and posted in order to comply with 
State public notice requirements. 

Vicinity Map:  

 
Property owners, tenants, and neighborhood associations within 300 feet of the proposed conditional zoning have been sent 
this notice via first class mail. All interested parties may submit comments with respect to the application by the means specified 
above. In addition to the above map, the location of the property may be viewed online at https://maps.raleighnc.gov/imaps. 
The 2045 Land Use Map may be viewed online at www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/478. You may call 919-249-3426, 
Department of Planning and Community Development, with questions or for further information. To view the petition and 
related documents on-line: https://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/38520/22CZ06. 

Dianne F. Khin, AICP 
Director of Planning and Community Development 

- Page 658 -

https://www.youtube.com/c/townofapexgov
http://www.apexnc.org/
mailto:public.hearing@apexnc.org
https://www.youtube.com/c/townofapexgov
https://maps.raleighnc.gov/imaps
https://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/478/2045-Land-Use-Map-PDF
https://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/38520/22CZ06?bidId=


- Page 659 -



TOWN OF APEX 
PO BOX 250 
APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 27502 
TELÉFONO 919-249-3426 

 

Fechas de publicación: 1 de julio - 26 de julio de 2022 

NOTIFICACIÓN PÚBLICA DE AUDIENCIAS PÚBLICAS 
ORDENAMIENTO TERRITORIAL CONDICIONAL #22CZ06 

Yellowbridge PUD (Desarrollo de Unidad Planificada) 

 

De conformidad con las disposiciones de los Estatutos Generales de Carolina del Norte §160D-602 y con la Sección 2.2.11 
de la Ordenanza de Desarrollo Unificado (UDO) del ayuntamiento de Apex, por la presente se notifican las audiencias 
públicas ante el Consejo Municipal del Ayuntamiento de Apex. El propósito de estas audiencias es considerar lo siguiente: 
 

Solicitante: Lennar Carolinas, LLC./Matthew Carpenter, Parker Poe 
Agente autorizado: Tucker Ennis, Lennar Carolinas, LLC. 
Dirección de las propiedades: 2813 & 2817 US 64 Highway 
Superficie: ±48.24 acres 
Números de identificación de las propiedades: 0722743789 & 0722752304 
Designación actual en el Mapa de Uso Territorial para 2045: Medium Density Residential 
Si se aprueba el cambio de zonificación como se propone, el Mapa de Uso Territorial para el 2045 cambiará a: 
Medium Density Residential & Commercial Services 
Ordenamiento territorial existente de las propiedades: Residencial Rural (RR)  
Ordenamiento territorial propuesto para las propiedades: Desarrollo de Unidad Planificada-Ordenamiento 
Territorial Condicional (PUD-CZ) 
 

Lugar de la audiencia pública:  Ayuntamiento de Apex 
                                              Cámara del Consejo, 2º piso 
                                              73 Hunter Street, Apex, Carolina del Norte 

 

Los comentarios recibidos antes de la audiencia pública de la Junta de Planificación no se proporcionarán al 
Consejo Municipal. Los comentarios para la audiencia pública del Consejo Municipal deben presentarse por 

separado en el plazo especificado a continuación. 
 

Fecha y hora de la audiencia pública del Consejo Municipal: 26 de julio de 2022 6:00 P.M.  
Puede asistir a la reunión de manera presencial o seguir la transmisión en directo por YouTube a través del 
siguiente enlace: https://www.youtube.com/c/townofapexgov.  
 

Si no puede asistir, puede enviar una declaración escrita por correo electrónico a public.hearing@apexnc.org, o 
presentarla a la oficina del Secretario Municipal (73 Hunter Street o por correo USPS a P.O. Box 250, Apex, NC 
27502), al menos dos días hábiles antes de la votación del Consejo Municipal. Debe proporcionar su nombre y 
dirección para que conste en el registro. Las declaraciones escritas se entregarán al Consejo Municipal antes de la 
votación. No olvide incluir el nombre de la audiencia pública en el asunto. 
 

En caso de que la reunión del Consejo Municipal se lleve a cabo remotamente o que por lo menos uno de los 
miembros asista virtualmente, se permite presentar comentarios por escrito hasta 24 horas antes de la hora 
programada de la reunión según los estatutos de Carolina del Norte NCGS §166A-19.24 siguiendo los métodos 
especificados anteriormente. Las reuniones virtuales se pueden seguir en la transmisión en directo por YouTube 
a través del siguiente enlace: https://www.youtube.com/c/townofapexgov.  

 

Mapa de las inmediaciones: 

 
Los propietarios, inquilinos y asociaciones de vecinos en un radio de 300 pies del Ordenamiento Territorial Condicional 
propuesto han recibido esta notificación por correo postal de primera clase. Todas las partes interesadas pueden presentar 
comentarios sobre la solicitud a través de los medios especificados anteriormente. La ubicación de la propiedad también 
puede verse aquí: https://maps.raleighnc.gov/imaps. Puede ver el Mapa de Uso Territorial para 2045 aquí: 
www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/478. Si tiene preguntas o desea obtener más información, puede comunicarse con 
el Departamento de Planificación y Desarrollo Comunitario al 919-249-3426. Puede ver la solicitud y otros documentos 
relacionados aquí: https://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/38520/22CZ06. 

Dianne F. Khin, AICP 
Directora de Planificación y Desarrollo Comunitario 

- Page 660 -

https://www.youtube.com/c/townofapexgov
mailto:public.hearing@apexnc.org
https://www.youtube.com/c/townofapexgov
https://maps.raleighnc.gov/imaps
https://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/478/2045-Land-Use-Map-PDF
https://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/38520/22CZ06?bidId=


- Page 661 -



- Page 662 -



 

TOWN OF APEX 
POST OFFICE BOX 250 
APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 27502 
PHONE 919-249-3426 

PUBLIC NOTIFICATION 
OF PUBLIC HEARINGS 

CONDITIONAL ZONING #22CZ06 
Yellowbridge PUD 

 

Published Dates: July 1 – July 26, 2022 

Pursuant to the provisions of North Carolina General Statutes §160D-602 and to the Town of Apex Unified Development 

Ordinance (UDO) Section 2.2.11, notice is hereby given of public hearings before the Town Council of the Town of Apex. The 
purpose of these hearings is to consider the following: 

Applicant: Lennar Carolinas, LLC/Matthew Carpenter, Parker Poe 
Authorized Agent: Tucker Ennis, Lennar Carolinas, LLC  
Property Addresses: 2813 & 2817 US 64 Highway  
Acreage: ±48.24 acres  
Property Identification Numbers (PINs): 0722743789 & 0722752304 
Current 2045 Land Use Map Designation: Medium Density Residential 
If rezoned as proposed, the 2045 Land Use Map Designation will change to: Medium Density Residential & 
Commercial Services 
Existing Zoning of Properties: Rural Residential (RR)  
Proposed Zoning of Properties: Planned Unit Development-Conditional Zoning (PUD-CZ) 
 
Public Hearing Location:  Apex Town Hall  

                                       Council Chamber, 2nd Floor 
                                       73 Hunter Street, Apex, North Carolina  

Comments received prior to the Planning Board public hearing will not be provided to the Town Council.  
Separate comments for the Town Council public hearing must be provided by the deadline specified below. 

Town Council Public Hearing Date and Time:  July 26, 2022    6:00 PM  
You may attend the meeting in person or view the meeting through the Town’s YouTube livestream at: 
https://www.youtube.com/c/townofapexgov. Please visit www.apexnc.org on the day of the meeting to confirm 
whether the meeting will be held in-person or remotely. 

If you are unable to attend, you may provide a written statement by email to public.hearing@apexnc.org, or submit 
it to the Office of the Town Clerk (73 Hunter Street or USPS mail - P.O. Box 250, Apex, NC 27502), at least two business 
days prior to the Town Council vote. You must provide your name and address for the record. The written statements 
will be delivered to the Town Council members prior to their vote. Please include the Public Hearing name in the 
subject line. 

In the event that the Town Council meeting is held remotely or with at least one member attending virtually, written 
comments may be submitted up to 24 hours prior to the scheduled time of the meeting per NCGS §166A-19.24 
according to the methods specified above. Virtual meetings may be viewed via the Town’s YouTube livestream at 
https://www.youtube.com/c/townofapexgov. 

Vicinity Map:  

 
Property owners, tenants, and neighborhood associations within 300 feet of the proposed conditional zoning have been sent 
this notice via first class mail. All interested parties may submit comments with respect to the application by the means specified 
above. In addition to the above map, the location of the property may be viewed online at https://maps.raleighnc.gov/imaps. 
The 2045 Land Use Map may be viewed online at www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/478. You may call 919-249-3426, 
Department of Planning and Community Development, with questions or for further information. To view the petition and 
related documents on-line: https://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/38520/22CZ06. 

Dianne F. Khin, AICP 
Director of Planning and Community Development 

- Page 663 -

https://www.youtube.com/c/townofapexgov
http://www.apexnc.org/
mailto:public.hearing@apexnc.org
https://www.youtube.com/c/townofapexgov
https://maps.raleighnc.gov/imaps
https://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/478/2045-Land-Use-Map-PDF
https://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/38520/22CZ06?bidId=


- Page 664 -



TOWN OF APEX 
PO BOX 250 
APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 27502 
TELÉFONO 919-249-3426 

 

Fechas de publicación: 1 de julio - 26 de julio de 2022 

NOTIFICACIÓN PÚBLICA DE AUDIENCIAS PÚBLICAS 
ORDENAMIENTO TERRITORIAL CONDICIONAL #22CZ06 

Yellowbridge PUD (Desarrollo de Unidad Planificada) 

 

De conformidad con las disposiciones de los Estatutos Generales de Carolina del Norte §160D-602 y con la Sección 2.2.11 
de la Ordenanza de Desarrollo Unificado (UDO) del ayuntamiento de Apex, por la presente se notifican las audiencias 
públicas ante el Consejo Municipal del Ayuntamiento de Apex. El propósito de estas audiencias es considerar lo siguiente: 
 

Solicitante: Lennar Carolinas, LLC./Matthew Carpenter, Parker Poe 
Agente autorizado: Tucker Ennis, Lennar Carolinas, LLC. 
Dirección de las propiedades: 2813 & 2817 US 64 Highway 
Superficie: ±48.24 acres 
Números de identificación de las propiedades: 0722743789 & 0722752304 
Designación actual en el Mapa de Uso Territorial para 2045: Medium Density Residential 
Si se aprueba el cambio de zonificación como se propone, el Mapa de Uso Territorial para el 2045 cambiará a: 
Medium Density Residential & Commercial Services 
Ordenamiento territorial existente de las propiedades: Residencial Rural (RR)  
Ordenamiento territorial propuesto para las propiedades: Desarrollo de Unidad Planificada-Ordenamiento 
Territorial Condicional (PUD-CZ) 
 

Lugar de la audiencia pública:  Ayuntamiento de Apex 
                                              Cámara del Consejo, 2º piso 
                                              73 Hunter Street, Apex, Carolina del Norte 

 

Los comentarios recibidos antes de la audiencia pública de la Junta de Planificación no se proporcionarán al 
Consejo Municipal. Los comentarios para la audiencia pública del Consejo Municipal deben presentarse por 

separado en el plazo especificado a continuación. 
 

Fecha y hora de la audiencia pública del Consejo Municipal: 26 de julio de 2022 6:00 P.M.  
Puede asistir a la reunión de manera presencial o seguir la transmisión en directo por YouTube a través del 
siguiente enlace: https://www.youtube.com/c/townofapexgov.  
 

Si no puede asistir, puede enviar una declaración escrita por correo electrónico a public.hearing@apexnc.org, o 
presentarla a la oficina del Secretario Municipal (73 Hunter Street o por correo USPS a P.O. Box 250, Apex, NC 
27502), al menos dos días hábiles antes de la votación del Consejo Municipal. Debe proporcionar su nombre y 
dirección para que conste en el registro. Las declaraciones escritas se entregarán al Consejo Municipal antes de la 
votación. No olvide incluir el nombre de la audiencia pública en el asunto. 
 

En caso de que la reunión del Consejo Municipal se lleve a cabo remotamente o que por lo menos uno de los 
miembros asista virtualmente, se permite presentar comentarios por escrito hasta 24 horas antes de la hora 
programada de la reunión según los estatutos de Carolina del Norte NCGS §166A-19.24 siguiendo los métodos 
especificados anteriormente. Las reuniones virtuales se pueden seguir en la transmisión en directo por YouTube 
a través del siguiente enlace: https://www.youtube.com/c/townofapexgov.  

 

Mapa de las inmediaciones: 

 
Los propietarios, inquilinos y asociaciones de vecinos en un radio de 300 pies del Ordenamiento Territorial Condicional 
propuesto han recibido esta notificación por correo postal de primera clase. Todas las partes interesadas pueden presentar 
comentarios sobre la solicitud a través de los medios especificados anteriormente. La ubicación de la propiedad también 
puede verse aquí: https://maps.raleighnc.gov/imaps. Puede ver el Mapa de Uso Territorial para 2045 aquí: 
www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/478. Si tiene preguntas o desea obtener más información, puede comunicarse con 
el Departamento de Planificación y Desarrollo Comunitario al 919-249-3426. Puede ver la solicitud y otros documentos 
relacionados aquí: https://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/38520/22CZ06. 

Dianne F. Khin, AICP 
Directora de Planificación y Desarrollo Comunitario 

- Page 665 -

https://www.youtube.com/c/townofapexgov
mailto:public.hearing@apexnc.org
https://www.youtube.com/c/townofapexgov
https://maps.raleighnc.gov/imaps
https://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/478/2045-Land-Use-Map-PDF
https://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/38520/22CZ06?bidId=


- Page 666 -



- Page 667 -



- Page 668 -



 
 
 
 
 

 

www.wcpss.net 

Student Assignment  

5625 Dillard Drive   

Cary, NC, 27518 

Email: studentassignment@wcpss.net 

 

tel: (919) 431-7333 

fax: (919) 694-7753 

 

April 13, 2022 

Dianne Khin, AICP 
Director, Department of Planning and Community Development 
Town of Apex 
Dianne.Khin@apexnc.org 
 
Dear Dianne, 

The Wake County Public School System (WCPSS) Office of School Assignment received information 

about a proposed rezoning/development within the Town of Apex planning area. We are providing this 

letter to share information about WCPSS’s capacity related to the proposal. The following information 

about the proposed rezoning/development was provided through the Wake County Residential 

Development Notification database: 

• Date of application: March 1, 2022 

• Name of development: 22CZ06 Yellowbridge PUD 

• Address of rezoning: 2813 & 2817 US 64 Hwy W 

• Total number of proposed residential units: 170 

• Type(s) of residential units proposed: 130 Townhomes, 40 Single-family detached 

Based on the information received at the time of application, the Office of School Assignment is 

providing the following assessment of possible impacts to the Wake County Public School System: 

☐ Schools at all grade levels within the current assignment area for the proposed 

rezoning/development are anticipated to have sufficient capacity for future students. 

☐ Schools at the following grade levels within the current assignment area for the proposed 

rezoning/development are anticipated to have insufficient capacity for future students; 

transportation to schools outside of the current assignment area should be anticipated: 

☐ Elementary ☐ Middle ☐ High 

The following mitigation of capacity concerns due to school construction or expansion is anticipated:  

☐ Not applicable – existing school capacity is anticipated to be sufficient. 

☐ School expansion or construction within the next five years is not anticipated to address concerns. 

☐ School expansion or construction within the next five years may address concerns at these grade 

levels:  

☐ Elementary ☐ Middle ☐ High 

Thank you for sharing this information with the Town of Apex Planning Board and Town Council as they 

consider the proposed rezoning/development. 

 

Sincerely, 

- Page 669 -



 | Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 for consideration by the Apex Town Council 

 

 Item Type: PUBLIC HEARING 

 Meeting Date: July 26, 2022 

Item Details 

Presenter(s): Shannon Cox, Long Range Planning Manager 

Department(s): Planning and Community Development 

Requested Motion 

Public hearing and possible motion regarding amendments to the Transportation Plan for Chapel Ridge 

Road. 

 

Approval Recommended? 

Planning staff recommend adoption of the proposed amendments. 

The Planning Board considered the proposed amendments at their July 11, 2022 meeting and 

recommended approval in a vote of 4 in favor and 2 against. 

 

Item Details 

The amendments to the Transportation Plan include: (1) Adding a future Minor Collector street extending 

from existing Chapel Ridge Road to Beaver Creek Commons Drive to the Thoroughfare and Collector 

Street Plan map and removing the Minor Collector street designation from Ackerman Hill Drive, (2) Adding 

a future local route designation along the extended Chapel Ridge Road to the Transit Plan map, and (3) 

adding a future side path designation to a portion of Chapel Ridge Road on the Bicycle and Pedestrian 

System Plan map.      

 

Attachments 

 Staff report 

 

- Page 670 -



STAFF REPORT 
Transportation Plan Amendments 

July 26, 2022 Town Council Meeting  
 

 

Page 1 of 4   Prepared by: Shannon Cox, Long Range Planning Manager 

The Thoroughfare and Collector Street Plan map, Transit Plan map, and Bicycle and Pedestrian System Plan map 
collectively represent a network of current and future facilities that provide guidance on what is likely to be 
suitable for long term growth, connectivity, recreation, and multimodal travel. The Transportation Plan does 
not require a schedule for implementation nor does it set aside funding for improvements. The purpose of the 
public hearing is to consider proposed amendments to the Transportation Plan in the vicinity of Chapel Ridge 
Road in order to make a decision. The proposed amendments are associated with rezoning case 22CZ07 Chapel 
Ridge Apartments Planned Unit Development (PUD). 
 
The proposed amendment to the Thoroughfare and Collector Street Plan map would show a future Minor 
Collector street extending from Chapel Ridge Road to Beaver Creek Commons Drive (see Figure 1). The 
amendment would also remove the Minor Collector street designation shown along Ackerman Hill Drive. 
 

Figure 1. Proposed amendment to the Thoroughfare and Collector Street Plan map 

 

  

- Page 671 -



Page 2 of 4   Prepared by: Shannon Cox, Long Range Planning Manager 
 

The proposed amendment to the Bicycle and Pedestrian System Plan map would add future side path along the 

east side of Chapel Ridge Road from the northern boundary of the approved 21CZ32 Chapel Ridge Towns PUD 

(across from Clark Farm Road) to Beaver Creek Commons Drive (see Figure 2). 

 

Figure 2. Proposed amendment to the Bicycle and Pedestrian System Plan map 

 

  

- Page 672 -



Page 3 of 4   Prepared by: Shannon Cox, Long Range Planning Manager 
 

The proposed amendment to the Transit System Plan map would show a future local route extending along 

Chapel Ridge Road to Beaver Creek Commons Drive (see Figure 3). In the future, it is anticipated that GoApex 

Route 1 would use this route instead of turning around on private property within Olive Chapel Professional 

Park. 

 

Figure 3. Proposed amendment to the Transit System Plan map 

 

The proposed amendments are requested by Planning staff and are consistent with the proposed 22CZ07 

Chapel Ridge Apartments PUD. These changes would improve connectivity of the roadway, bicycle and 

pedestrian, and transit network in this growing area. Connectivity shortens travel time and reduces impacts to 

thoroughfares and intersections. In addition, it would provide a route for GoApex Route 1 using public facilities 

and permanent public easements. The agreement to use Olive Chapel Professional Park will expire in five years. 

Programmed Projects: 

No municipal or state projects are programmed to complete the facilities addressed by these amendments. If 

approved, 22CZ07 Chapel Ridge Apartments PUD would construct a roadway connection with side path and a 

bus stop from Chapel Ridge Road to Beaver Creek Commons Drive. A portion of the connection would remain 

private with a public access and maintenance easement. 

Staff Recommendation: 

Planning staff recommend supporting the proposed amendments. Staff from Public Works and Transportation; 

Fire; Police; and Parks, Recreation, and Cultural Resources are also supportive of the proposed amendment.    

- Page 673 -



Page 4 of 4   Prepared by: Shannon Cox, Long Range Planning Manager 
 

Transit Advisory Committee Recommendation: 

The Town of Apex Transit Advisory Committee considered the proposed amendment to the Transit Plan Map at 

their July 13, 2022 meeting and unanimously recommended approval. 

Planning Board Recommendation: 

The Planning Board considered the amendments at their July 11, 2022 meeting and recommended approval in 

a vote of four in favor and two opposed. 

- Page 674 -



 | Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 for consideration by the Apex Town Council 

 

 Item Type: PUBLIC HEARING 

 Meeting Date: July 26, 2022 

Item Details 

Presenter(s): Shelly Mayo, Planner II 

Department(s): Planning and Community Development 

Requested Motion 

Public Hearing and possible motion to approve Rezoning Application #22CZ07 Chapel Ridge North PUD. 

The applicant, Matthew Carpenter for High Street District Development, Inc., seeks to rezone approximately 

20.62 acres from Rural Residential (RR) to Planned Unit Development-Conditional Zoning (PUD-CZ). The 

proposed rezoning is located at 1200, 1204, 1205, 1209, 1220, 1225 Chapel Ridge Rd and 1512 Clark Farm 

Rd. 

Approval Recommended? 

The Planning and Community Development Department recommends approval. 

 

The Planning Board held a Public Hearing on July 11, 2022 and, by a vote of 4 to 2, recommended 

approval of the rezoning with the conditions offered by the applicant.  

Item Details 

The properties to be rezoned are identified as PINs 0732340602, 0732347912, 0732343920, 0732354594, 

0732352538, 0732249869, & 0732256180. 

Attachments 

 Staff Report 
 Vicinity Map 

 Application 

 

- Page 675 -



STAFF REPORT 
Rezoning #22CZ07 Chapel Ridge North PUD  

July 26, 2022 Town Council Meeting 
 

 

Page 1 of 12  Prepared by: Shelly Mayo, Planner II 

 

All property owners, tenants, and neighborhood associations within 300 feet of this rezoning have been notified 
per UDO Sec. 2.2.11 Public Notification. 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:  
Location:  1200, 1204, 1205, 1209, 1220, 1225 Chapel Ridge Rd and 1512 Clark Farm Rd 

Applicant:   High Street District Development, Inc. 

Authorized Agent: Joshua Dix 

Owners: Su Yueh Kao and Chi-Chang Ho; Michael P. and Catherine A. Mohan; Douglas 
and Carrie Cox; Ronald L. and Katherine L. Stringari; Larry L. and Kathi E. 
Carlson; Tigh M. and Dianne Cundieff; David D. and Ethel V. Sherry 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: 
Acreage: +/- 20.62 acres 
PINs: 0732340602, 0732347912, 0732343920, 0732354594, 0732352538, 

0732249869, & 0732256180 
Current Zoning: Rural Residential (RR) 
Proposed Zoning:  Planned Unit Development–Conditional Zoning (PUD-CZ) 
Current 2045 Land Use Map:   Medium Density Residential 
If rezoned as proposed, the 
2045 Land Use Map 
Designation will change to: 

High Density Residential 

Town Limits: Inside the ETJ  

ADJACENT ZONING & LAND USES: 
                     Zoning Land Use 

North: 
Planned Unit Development-Conditional Zoning  

(PUD-CZ #06CU17) 
Shopping Center 

(Beaver Creek Crossings) 

South: Rural Residential (RR) 
Single-family Residential  

(Chapel Ridge Estates Subdivision) 

East: 
Rural Residential (RR); 

Planned Unit Development-Conditional Zoning  
(PUD-CZ #15CZ04) 

Single-family Residential  
(Chapel Ridge Estates Subdivision); 

Townhomes (Hempstead Subdivision) 

West: 
Rural Residential (RR); 

Planned Commercial-Conditional Zoning  
(PC-CZ #94CU20) 

Jordan Lutheran Church; 
Vacant 

 

EXISTING CONDITIONS: 

The site consists of seven (7) parcels totaling +/- 20.62 acres. The Chapel Ridge North PUD is in the northcentral 
region of Apex, north of Olive Chapel Road, south of Beaver Creek Commons Drive, and east of NC 540 Hwy. 
Beaver Creek Crossings shopping center is north of the site and the Chapel Ridge Estates subdivision is south of 
the site. The future home of Jordan Lutheran Church abuts the site to the west. The subject properties contain 
single-family homes with large areas of woods, yards, streams, and a pond.  

NEIGHBORHOOD MEETING: 

The applicant conducted a neighborhood meeting on February 16, 2022. The meeting report is attached to the 
staff report.  

WCPSS COORDINATION: 

A Letter of Impact from Wake County Public School System (WCPSS) was received for this rezoning and is included 

- Page 676 -



STAFF REPORT 
Rezoning #22CZ07 Chapel Ridge North PUD  

July 26, 2022 Town Council Meeting 
 

 

Page 2 of 12  Prepared by: Shelly Mayo, Planner II 

 

in the staff report packet. WCPSS indicates that elementary and high schools within the current assignment area 
for this rezoning/development are anticipated to have insufficient capacity for future students; transportation to 
schools outside of the current assignment area should be anticipated. School expansion or construction within 
the next five years may address concerns at both the elementary and high school levels.  

2045 LAND USE MAP: 

The 2045 Land Use Map (LUM) designates the site as Medium Density Residential. The Medium Density 
Residential designation supports up to 7 dwelling units per acre and does not support apartments. Chapel Ridge 
North PUD proposes 370 dwelling units on 20.62 acres, or approximately 17.94 dwelling units per acre. If the 
properties are rezoned as proposed, the 2045 LUM will automatically be amended to High Density Residential 
per NCGS 160D-605(a). 

While the site is located with the Suburban Context Area, it is immediately adjacent to a Transit-Oriented 
Development (TOD) Context Area as adopted with Advance Apex. TOD development typically dictates transit-
supportive densities, which is a minimum of seven (7) units per acre for a circulator bus service and a minimum 
15 units per acre for fixed route bus service. 

PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT PLAN: 

The applicant is proposing a Planned Unit Development with uses and development standards as follows: 

Proposed Uses: 
The Rezoned Lands may be used for, and only for, the uses listed immediately below. The permitted uses are 
subject to the limitations and regulations stated in the UDO and any additional limitations or regulations stated 
below. For convenience, some relevant sections of the UDO may be referenced; such references do not imply 
that other sections of the UDO do not apply. 

• Multi-family or apartment 
• Condominium 
• Utility, minor 
• Greenway 

• Park, active 
• Park, passive 
• Recreation facility, private 

Conditions: 
1. No dumpster shall be located within 50 feet of the northern property line of Lot 12, Chapel Ridge 

Subdivision, as shown in Book of Maps 1986, Page 1627, Wake County Registry. 

2. The project shall use full cutoff LED fixtures that have a maximum color temperature of 3500K for all 
exterior lighting, including, but not limited to, parking lot and building mounted fixtures.  

3. The project shall be designed to meet the requirements for one of the following green building 
certifications: LEED, Energy Star, BREEAM, Green Globes, NGBS Green, or GreenGuard. Prior to the 
issuance of building permits, the developer shall hire a third-party consultant to evaluate the project and 
ensure the design conforms with green building certification requirements. Prior to the issuance of a 
certificate of occupancy for a building, the developer shall demonstrate to the Town that that building 
has been certified as a green building by providing a copy of the green building certification.  

4. The project shall install at least three (3) pet waste stations across the development locations that are 
publicly accessible, such as adjacent to amenity centers, sidewalks, greenways, or side paths.  

5. Affordable Housing: A minimum of three and a half percent (3.5%) of the total residential units (as shown 
on the first site plan submittal) shall be designated as restricted low-income affordable housing rental 
units (the “Affordable Units”) for a minimum affordability period of ten (10) years starting from the date 
of issuance of the first residential Certificate of Occupancy (the “Affordable Restriction Period”). The 

- Page 677 -



STAFF REPORT 
Rezoning #22CZ07 Chapel Ridge North PUD  

July 26, 2022 Town Council Meeting 
 

 

Page 3 of 12  Prepared by: Shelly Mayo, Planner II 

 

Affordable Units shall be occupied by low-income households earning no more than sixty percent (60%) 
of the Raleigh, NC Metropolitan Statistical Area (MSA) Area Median Income (AMI), adjusted for family 
size, as most recently published by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD).  The 
Affordable Units shall be one-bedroom units and rented to low-income households during the Affordable 
Restriction Period at maximum rent limits per bedroom size, no greater than sixty percent (60%) of the 
Raleigh, NC MSA AMI as most recently published by the HUD and stipulated by the most recently 
published North Carolina Housing Finance Agency (NCHFA) Low-Income Housing Tax Credit (LIHTC) 
Multifamily Tax Subsidy Program (MTSP) income and rent limits for the Wake County Metropolitan Area. 
If the Affordable Units calculation results in a fraction between 0.00 and 0.49, the number of Affordable 
Units shall be rounded down to the nearest whole number. If the Affordable Units calculation results in 
a fraction between 0.50 and 0.99, the number of Affordable Units shall be rounded up to the nearest 
whole number. Prior to issuance of the first residential Certificate of Occupancy, a restrictive covenant 
between the Town and property owner shall be executed and recorded in the Wake County Registry to 
memorialize the affordable housing terms and conditions. During the Affordable Restriction Period, the 
property owner shall be responsible for performing all property management and administration duties 
to ensure compliance with this affordable housing condition and shall submit annual compliance reports 
to the Town verifying compliance with this affordable housing condition. Following expiration of the 
Affordable Restriction Period, this affordable housing condition shall expire, and the property owner shall 
be relieved of all obligations set forth in this affordable housing condition, and the Affordable Units may 
freely be marketed and leased at market-rate rents. 

Architectural Conditions: 

The proposed development offers the following architectural controls to ensure consistency of character 
throughout the development. Conceptual elevation examples are included in Section 19 of this PUD. Elevations 
included are limited examples of multiple style options being considered. Changes to the exterior materials, roof, 
windows, doors, process, trim, etc. are allowable with administrative approval at the staff level. Further details 
shall be provided at the time of Major Site Plan submittal. In an effort to reflect the unique nature of the existing 
neighborhood, the architectural style of the buildings shall be classic southern traditional architecture.  

Additional features used as focal points or key terminus points shall be located within or around the development 
(i.e. a patio seating area, water feature, pedestrian plaza with benches, planters, public art, decorative bicycle 
parking, or focal feature) in order to meet the Community Amenities requirement of the UDO. Other features not 
mentioned may be considered with administrative staff approval.  

1. Vinyl siding is not permitted; however, vinyl windows, decorative elements and trim are permitted.  

2. Rear and side elevations of units that have right-of-way frontage shall have trim around the windows.  

3. A minimum of four of the following decorative features shall be used on each building:  

 Decorative shake  

 Board and batten 

 Decorative porch railing/posts  

 Shutters 

 Decorative/functional air vents on roof 
or foundation 

 Recessed windows 

 Decorative windows 

 Decorative brick/stone 

 Decorative gables 

 Decorative cornices 

 Tin/metal roof  
4. Garage doors must have windows, decorative details, or carriage-style adornments on them.  

5. Siding materials shall be varied in type and/or color on 30% of each façade on each building.  

6. Windows must vary in size and/or type.  

- Page 678 -



STAFF REPORT 
Rezoning #22CZ07 Chapel Ridge North PUD  

July 26, 2022 Town Council Meeting 
 

 

Page 4 of 12  Prepared by: Shelly Mayo, Planner II 

 

7. Windows that are not recessed must be trimmed.  

8. Solar conduit shall be provided on all buildings to accommodate the future installation of solar panels. 

Materials:  
Proposed Residential Materials and Styles Proposed materials and styles will be of a similar palette to provide 
consistency of character along with visual interest. Exterior materials that may be incorporated into any of the 
building products include:  

 Cementitious lap, board and batten, and/or shake and shingle siding 

 Stone or synthetic stone  

 Brick  
Additional building materials may be included with administrative staff approval. Substitute materials shall be 
allowed by staff as long as they are determined by the Director of Planning and Development to be substantially 
similar. 

Proposed Design Controls: 
 

Maximum Residential Units: 370 apartments 

Maximum Building Height: 55 ft & 5 stories* 

Maximum Built-Upon Area: 70% 

*Building facades facing PINs 073243658, 0732340602, and 0732348711 
shall be limited to a maximum of four stories. 

Building Setbacks: 
Multi-Family/ 

Apartments/Condominiums 

Front: 10 Ft 

Side: 20 Ft 

Rear: 20 Ft 

Corner: 20 Ft 

Alley: 5 Ft 

From Buffers/RCA:  

For buildings: 10 Ft 

 
PARKING: 

Parking calculations and dimensions for this PUD will comply with UDO Section 8.3 (Off-Street Parking and 
Loading) of the Town of Apex’s Unified Development Ordinance, unless otherwise stated in this document.  

Development shall provide the following minimum parking spaces per dwelling unit based on the number of 
bedrooms:  

# of Bedrooms: Proposed Minimum Parking Ratio: 

1 & 2 Bedrooms 1.3 spaces per unit 

3 bedrooms 1.8 spaces per unit 

The following table is an estimate of the proposed parking vs the UDO requirement using the number of units 
listed in the Wake Co. Residential Development Notification sheet in the application.  

- Page 679 -



STAFF REPORT 
Rezoning #22CZ07 Chapel Ridge North PUD  

July 26, 2022 Town Council Meeting 
 

 

Page 5 of 12  Prepared by: Shelly Mayo, Planner II 

 

Parking Space Comparison 

Estimated # of 
Units 

Per UDO Ratio  
Min Required 

Per UDO Total 
Spaces 

Per PUD Ratio  
Min Required 

Per PUD  
Total Spaces 

1 & 2 bedrooms: 
370 

1.5 per unit 555 1.3 per unit 481 
 

Total: 370 
 

555  481 

PUD difference 
from UDO 

 
0  -74 

Electric Vehicle Charging Spaces: 

A minimum of 5% of the total parking spaces required by the UDO for the project shall be Electric Vehicle Charging 
spaces consistent with the standards of UDO Section 8.3.11. At least 6 bicycle parking spaces shall also be 
provided. 

Proposed RCA, Buffers and Landscaping: 

The PUD will provide a minimum of 20% of the gross project area as a Resource Conservation Area (RCA). 
Designated RCA areas will be consistent with the items listed in Section 8.1.2(B) of the Town's UDO. Preserved 
streams, wetlands, and associated riparian buffers provide the primary RCAs throughout the site. Additional RCA 
areas may include perimeter and streetfront buffers, stormwater management areas (as permitted by the UDO), 
and greenways. 

Buffers: UDO Requirement: Proposed: 

Chapel Ridge Road (Minor Collector): 10-foot Type A 10-foot Type A* 

North boundary: 15-foot Type A 20-foot Type A 

South boundary: 20-foot Type B 25-foot Type A 

East boundary   

Adjacent to Single-family lots: 20-foot Type B 25-foot Type A 

Adjacent to Townhomes: 15-foot Type A 15-foot Type A 

West boundary   

Adjacent to Jordan Lutheran Church: 15-foot Type A 20-foot Type A 

Adjacent to vacant PC-CZ parcel: 20-foot Type B 20-foot Type B 

*Only required along the public right-of-way fronting the Property. A buffer is not required along the public 
access easement. Developer shall only be responsible for providing the buffer on property adjacent to the 
public right-of-way which is within this rezoning.  

 The project shall select and install tree, shrub and perennial species with special attention to providing 
diverse and abundant pollinator and bird food sources, including plants that bloom in succession from spring 
to fall.  

 The project will increase biodiversity in perimeter buffers and open space areas by providing a variety of 
species for the canopy, understory, and shrub levels. Native and adaptive plant species shall be provided 
within these areas to minimize death from disease and to provide increased habitat and food sources for 
insects and animals. A minimum of 70% of the species provided shall be native or a nativar of North Carolina. 
No invasive species shall be permitted. No single species of tree or shrub shall constitute more than 20% of 
the plant material of its type installed on a single development site. 

 The project shall install a minimum of one sign for each Resource Conservation area. The signage shall 
indicate that the area is RCA and is to be preserved in perpetuity and not disturbed. 

- Page 680 -



STAFF REPORT 
Rezoning #22CZ07 Chapel Ridge North PUD  

July 26, 2022 Town Council Meeting 
 

 

Page 6 of 12  Prepared by: Shelly Mayo, Planner II 

 

 Six-foot wide private walking trails may be located throughout the development, including RCA areas. 
Locations of trails are to be determined at site plan. 

 Tree canopy areas in Chapel Ridge North are primarily concentrated around the wetland areas, stream 
features, and perimeter buffers.  

 Existing trees greater than 18” in diameter that are removed by site development shall be replaced by 
planting a 1.5” caliper native tree from the Town of Apex Design and Development Manual either onsite or 
at an alternative location approved by Town Planning Staff, above and beyond standard UDO requirements. 

Public Facilities: 

The Chapel Ridge North PUD will be served by Town of Apex water, sanitary sewer, and electrical systems. The 
utility design will be finalized at Master Subdivision Plan review. A conceptual Utility Plan is included in the PUD 
Plan for reference. The ultimate design for the utilities shall meet the current Town of Apex Master Water and 
Sewer Plans for approval. 

This PUD shall go above the stormwater management requirements for quality and quantity treatment outlined 
in Section 6.1.7 of the UDO such that: 

• Post development peak runoff shall not exceed pre-development peak runoff conditions for the 1 year, 
10-year, 25-year, and 24-hour storm events. 

• Treatment for the first 1 inch of runoff will provide 85% removal of total suspended solids. 

Acceptable stormwater structures shall include detention ponds, constructed wetlands, bio-retention areas, or 
other approved devices consistent with the NC DEQ Stormwater Design Manual and the Town of Apex UDO. 

Apex Transportation Plan/Access and Circulation: 

Pedestrian Facilities:  

Per the proposed Apex Bicycle and Pedestrian System Plan Map amendment, future sidepath is shown being 
extended along the northern and eastern side of Chapel Ridge Road. The following facilities will be provided to 
contribute to a walkable community within and surrounding the Chapel Ridge North development: 

• Five-foot wide public sidewalk along the western side of Chapel Ridge Road public right-of-way fronting 
the development. 

• Ten-foot wide side path along the eastern and northern side of Chapel Ridge Rd adjacent to land that's a 
part of this rezoning application. 

• Sidewalks along entry drives and parking areas will comply with the UDO.  

• Five-foot wide sidewalk along the south side of Ackerman Drive fronting the project. 

• A crosswalk will be provided from the future sidewalk on the south side of Ackerman Drive to the existing 
sidewalk on the north side of Ackerman Drive. 

• Six-foot wide private walking trails throughout the development, locations to be determined at site plan. 

Transit: 

The Apex Transit Plan Map shows GoApex Route 1 turning around in Olive Chapel Professional Park. The Town 
was only able to negotiate a 5-year lease with the owners of the Professional Park. By connecting Chapel Ridge 
Road to Beaver Creek Commons Drive, the development will provide a natural turnaround for the Town’s first 
transit line and provide natural access to the residents in the proposed apartments. 

The developer shall design, construct and install a bus stop along the west side of Chapel Ridge Road in a location 
mutually agreed to by the developer and the Traffic Engineering Manager. The bus stop shall include an 8 x 30-

- Page 681 -



STAFF REPORT 
Rezoning #22CZ07 Chapel Ridge North PUD  

July 26, 2022 Town Council Meeting 
 

 

Page 7 of 12  Prepared by: Shelly Mayo, Planner II 

 

foot pad, bench, and bike rack. Construction costs for the bus stop shall not exceed a maximum of $25,000 (the 
“Cost Limit”). In the event construction costs exceed the Cost Limit, the developer may elect to either (a) pay a 
fee in lieu of $25,000 for the bus stop, or (b) design and construct the bus stop despite construction costs 
exceeding the Cost Limit. The bus stop shall be shown on the overall site plan and designed, approved, and 
constructed concurrently with the project. 

Road Improvements: 

Per the proposed Apex Thoroughfare and Collector Street Plan map amendment, Chapel Ridge Road is designated 
as an existing 2-lane Minor Collector and is shown connecting to Beaver Creek Commons Drive just north of the 
Jordan Lutheran Church property. The developer will dedicate right-of-way along their property frontage on 
Chapel Ridge Road to meet the requirements shown in Advance Apex.  

Roadway improvements are subject to modification and final approval by the Town of Apex and NCDOT as part 
of the Master Subdivision Plan review and approval process. A Traffic Impact Analysis has been performed as part 
of this PUD rezoning consistent with the Town’s standards for the same. Based upon the Traffic Impact Analysis, 
the following traffic improvements are proposed for this development: 

1. All proposed driveway access and improvements on state-maintained roadways are subject to both Apex 
and NCDOT review and approval. This includes proposed access to Chapel Ridge Road and any 
modifications to Chapel Ridge Road. 

2. Chapel Ridge Road shall be extended north to connect to Beaver Creek Commons Drive (the “Road 
Extension”) in the approximate location shown on the Concept Plan. The Road Extension shall be 
constructed to Town of Apex standards and specifications. At the site plan stage, the portion of the Road 
Extension shown in pink on the Concept Plan and labeled “Public ROW” shall be dedicated to the Town 
as public right-of-way (the “Public ROW Section”). The portion of the Public ROW Section south of the 
shared property line with PIN 0732366134 shall have a minimum ROW width of 60 feet and be 
constructed to the Minor Collector Street standard. The portion of the Public ROW Section across PIN 
0732258769 shall have a minimum ROW width of 50 feet. The portion of the Road Extension shown in 
orange on the Concept Plan and labeled “Private drive with minimum 45’ public access easement” (the 
“Easement Section”) shall be subject to a recorded public access and maintenance agreement with a 
minimum easement width of 45 feet. The public access and maintenance agreement shall be approved 
by the Planning Director as to form. 

3. The center turn lane on Beaver Creek Commons Drive shall be restriped to provide 75 feet of southbound 
left turn storage and 75 feet of taper at the site driveway. 

ENVIROMENTAL ADVISORY BOARD: 

The Apex Environmental Advisory Board (EAB) held a pre-application meeting for this rezoning on February 17, 
2022. The zoning conditions suggested by the EAB are listed below along with the applicant’s response to each 
condition. 

EAB Suggested Conditions Applicant’s Response 

5% of all required motor vehicle spaces shall be electric vehicle charging spaces Added 

Locate the EV charging stations such that the charging cables do not cause a trip 
hazard across the sidewalks. 

Added 

A minimum of 3 pet waste stations shall be installed (at least one per building). Added 

Exterior lighting shall be shielded in a way that focuses lighting to the ground. Added 

Increase biodiversity. Added 

Plant pollinator-friendly flora. Added 

- Page 682 -



STAFF REPORT 
Rezoning #22CZ07 Chapel Ridge North PUD  

July 26, 2022 Town Council Meeting 
 

 

Page 8 of 12  Prepared by: Shelly Mayo, Planner II 

 

EAB Suggested Conditions Applicant’s Response 

Plant native flora (Refer to the Apex Design & Development Manual for approved 
native species). 

Added 

Implement green infrastructure. Not added 

Provide diverse and abundant pollinator and bird food sources (e.g. nectar, pollen, 
and berries from blooming plants) that bloom in succession from spring to fall. 

Added 

Add information signage or other marking at the boundary of lots when they are 
adjacent to a wooded or natural condition resource conservation area (RCA) 
indicating that the area beyond the sign is RCA and is not to be disturbed. 

Added 

If possible, increase the type A buffer width from 15 feet to 20 feet in order to 
increase the distance between site line and the adjacent church. 

Added 

Add 75-kW of solar PV in total over all three buildings on site. Not added 

Apply for green building certifications, such as LEED, Energy Star, BREEAM, Green 
Globes, NGBS Green, or GreenGuard. 

Added 

 
Parks, Recreation, and Cultural Resources Advisory Commission: 

The Parks, Recreation, and Cultural Resources Advisory Commission reviewed the Chapel Ridge North Planned 
Unit Development at their April 17, 2022 meeting. The Advisory Commission unanimously recommended fee-in-
lieu of dedication. The fee per unit will be $2,226.05.  

PLANNING STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

Planning staff recommends approval of Rezoning #22CZ07 Chapel Ridge North PUD as proposed by the applicant.  

PLANNING BOARD RECOMMENDATION: 

Planning Board held a Public Hearing on July 11, 2022 and voted 4 to 2 to recommend approval of the rezoning 
with the conditions offered by the applicant. The reasons provided for the dissenting votes were a lack of 
cohesion, lack of communication on the Town's part, insufficient space in schools, and incompatible architectural 
context and scale. 
 
ANALYSIS STATEMENT OF THE REASONABLENESS OF THE PROPOSED REZONING: 

This Statement will address consistency with the Town’s comprehensive and other applicable plans, 
reasonableness, and effect on public interest: 

The 2045 Land Use Map designates the site as Medium Density Residential. The Medium Density 
Residential designation permits up to 7 dwelling units per acre and does not permit apartments. Chapel 
Ridge North PUD proposes 370 dwelling units on 20.62 acres, or approximately 17.94 dwelling units per 
acre. If the properties are rezoned as proposed, the 2045 LUM will automatically be amended to High 
Density Residential per NCGS 160D-605(a). The proposed rezoning to Planned Unit Development–
Conditional Zoning (PUD-CZ) will provide the flexibility to accommodate the growth in population, 
economy, and infrastructure consistent with that contemplated by the 2045 Land Use Map. 

The proposed rezoning is reasonable and in the public interest because it will provide for infill 
redevelopment that serves as a transition from the large commercial development to the north while being 
compatible with the scale of the townhome development to the east. The rezoning will also require more 
energy efficient housing, improve local transit options, and offer affordable housing units. The proximity to 
large shopping centers, bus stops, and greenways will encourage residents to walk, bike, or take transit to 
local destinations and the proximity to regional highways provides easy access to that network, thus 

- Page 683 -



STAFF REPORT 
Rezoning #22CZ07 Chapel Ridge North PUD  

July 26, 2022 Town Council Meeting 
 

 

Page 9 of 12  Prepared by: Shelly Mayo, Planner II 

 

reducing the impacts of a similar amount of traffic on the local street network. The compact nature of the 
proposed development lowers the cost per capita of providing and maintaining public services and 
infrastructure while also ensuring the protection of open space.  

 

PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT AND CONDITIONAL ZONING STANDARDS: 

Standards  
In return for greater flexibility in site design requirements, Planned Development (PD) Districts are expected to 
deliver exceptional quality community designs that preserve critical environmental resources; provide high 
quality community amenities; incorporate creative design in the layout of buildings, Resource Conservation Area 
and circulation; ensure compatibility with surrounding land uses and neighborhood character; provide high 
quality architecture; and provide greater efficiency in the layout and provision of roads, utilities, and other 
infrastructure. The Planned Development (PD) Districts shall not be used as a means of circumventing the Town’s 
adopted land development regulations for routine developments.  

1. Planned Unit Development (PUD-CZ) District  
In approving a Planned Development (PD) Zoning District designation for a PUD-CZ, the Town Council 
shall find the PUD-CZ district designation and PD Plan for PUD-CZ demonstrates compliance with the 
following standards:  
a) Development parameters  

(i) The uses proposed to be developed in the PD Plan for PUD-CZ are those uses permitted in 
Sec. 4.2.2 Use Table.  

(ii) The uses proposed in the PD Plan for PUD-CZ can be entirely residential, entirely non-
residential, or a mix of residential and non-residential uses, provided a minimum percentage 
of non-residential land area is included in certain mixed use areas as specified on the 2045 
Land Use Map. The location of uses proposed by the PUD-CZ must be shown in the PD Plan 
with a maximum density for each type of residential use and a maximum square footage for 
each type of non-residential use.  

(iii) The dimensional standards in Sec. 5.1.3 Table of Intensity and Dimensional Standards, 
Planned Development Districts may be varied in the PD Plan for PUD-CZ. The PUD-CZ shall 
demonstrate compliance with all other dimensional standards of the UDO, North Carolina 
Building Code, and North Carolina Fire Code.  

(iv) The development proposed in the PD Plan for PUD-CZ encourages cluster and compact 
development to the greatest extent possible that is interrelated and linked by pedestrian 
ways, bikeways and other transportation systems. At a minimum, the PD Plan must show 
sidewalk improvements as required by the Apex Transportation Plan and the Town of Apex 
Standard Specifications and Standard Details, and greenway improvements as required by 
the Town of Apex Parks, Recreation, Greenways, and Open Space Plan and the Apex 
Transportation Plan. In addition, sidewalks shall be provided on both sides of all streets for 
single-family detached homes.  

(v) The design of development in the PD Plan for PUD-CZ results in land use patterns that 
promote and expand opportunities for walkability, connectivity, public transportation, and 
an efficient compact network of streets. Cul-de-sacs shall be avoided unless the design of the 
subdivision and the existing or proposed street system in the surrounding area indicate that 
a through street is not essential in the location of the proposed cul-de-sac, or where sensitive 
environmental areas such as streams, floodplains, and wetlands would be substantially 
disturbed by making road connections.  

- Page 684 -



STAFF REPORT 
Rezoning #22CZ07 Chapel Ridge North PUD  

July 26, 2022 Town Council Meeting 
 

 

Page 10 of 12  Prepared by: Shelly Mayo, Planner II 

 

(vi) The development proposed in the PD Plan for PUD-CZ is compatible with the character of 
surrounding land uses and maintains and enhances the value of surrounding properties.  

(vii) The development proposed in the PD Plan for PUD-CZ has architectural and design standards 
that are exceptional and provide higher quality than routine developments. All residential 
uses proposed in a PD Plan for PUD-CZ shall provide architectural elevations representative 
of the residential structures to be built to ensure the Standards of this Section are met.  

b) Off-street parking and loading. The PD Plan for PUD-CZ shall demonstrate compliance with the 
standards of Sec. 8.3 Off-Street Parking and Loading, except that variations from these standards 
may be permitted if a comprehensive parking and loading plan for the PUD-CZ is submitted as part 
of the PD Plan that is determined to be suitable for the PUD-CZ, and generally consistent with the 
intent and purpose of the off-street parking and loading standards.  

c) RCA. The PD Plan for PUD-CZ shall demonstrate compliance with Sec. 8.1.2 Resource Conservation 
Area, except that the percentage of RCA required under Sec. 8.1.2 may be reduced by the Town 
Council by no more than 10% provided that the PD Plan for PUD-CZ includes one or more of the 
following:  
(i) A non-residential component; (ii) An overall density of 7 residential units per acre or more; 

or (iii) Environmental measures including but not limited to the following:  
a. The installation of a solar photovoltaic (PV) system on a certain number or 

percentage of single-family or townhouse lots or on a certain number or percentage 
of multifamily, mixed-use, or nonresidential buildings. All required solar installation 
shall be completed or under construction prior to 90% of the building permits being 
issued for the approved number of lots or buildings. For single-family or townhouse 
installations, the lots on which these homes are located shall be identified on the 
Master Subdivision Plat, which may be amended;  

b. The installation of a geothermal system for a certain number or percentage of units 
within the development; or  

c. Energy efficiency standards that exceed minimum Building Code requirements (i.e. 
SEER rating for HVAC). 

d) Landscaping. The PD Plan for PUD-CZ shall demonstrate compliance with the standards of Sec. 8.2 
Landscaping, Buffering and Screening, except that variations from these standards may be 
permitted where it is demonstrated that the proposed landscaping sufficiently buffers uses from 
each other, ensures compatibility with land uses on surrounding properties, creates attractive 
streetscapes and parking areas and is consistent with the character of the area. In no case shall a 
buffer be less than one half of the width required by Sec. 8.2 or 10 feet in width, whichever is 
greater.  

e) Signs. Signage in the PD Plan for PUD-CZ shall demonstrate compliance with Sec. 8.7 Signs, except 
that the standards can be varied if a master signage plan is submitted for review and approval 
concurrent with the PD plan and is determined by the Town Council to be suitable for the PUD-CZ 
and generally consistent with the intent and purpose of the sign standards of the UDO. The master 
signage plan shall have design standards that are exceptional and provide for higher quality signs 
than those in routine developments and shall comply with Sec. 8.7.2 Prohibited Signs. 

f) Public facilities. The improvements standards and guarantees applicable to the public facilities that 
will serve the site shall comply with Article 7: Subdivision and Article 14: Parks, Recreation, 
Greenways, and Open Space.  
(i) The PD Plan for PUD-CZ demonstrates a safe and adequate on-site transportation circulation 

system. The on-site transportation circulation system shall be integrated with the off-site 
transportation circulation system of the Town. The PD Plan for PUD-CZ shall be consistent 

- Page 685 -



STAFF REPORT 
Rezoning #22CZ07 Chapel Ridge North PUD  

July 26, 2022 Town Council Meeting 
 

 

Page 11 of 12  Prepared by: Shelly Mayo, Planner II 

 

with the Apex Transportation Plan and the Town of Apex Standard Specifications and 
Standard Details and show required right-of-way widths and road sections. A Traffic Impact 
Analysis (TIA) shall be required per Sec. 13.19.  

(ii) The PD Plan for PUD-CZ demonstrates a safe and adequate on-site system of potable water 
and wastewater lines that can accommodate the proposed development, and are efficiently 
integrated into off-site potable water and wastewater public improvement plans. The PD 
Plan shall include a proposed water and wastewater plan.  

(iii) Adequate off-site facilities for potable water supply, sewage disposal, solid waste disposal, 
electrical supply, fire protection and roads shall be planned and programmed for the 
development proposed in the PD Plan for PUD-CZ, and the development is conveniently 
located in relation to schools and police protection services.  

(iv) The PD Plan shall demonstrate compliance with the parks and recreation requirements of 
Sec. Article 14: Parks, Recreation, Greenways, and Open Space and Sec. 7.3.1 Privately-owned 
Play Lawns if there is a residential component in the PUD-CZ.  

g) Natural resource and environmental protection. The PD Plan for PUD-CZ demonstrates compliance 
with the current regulatory standards of this Ordinance related to natural resource and 
environmental protection in Sec. 6.1 Watershed Protection Overlay District, Sec. 6.2 Flood Damage 
Prevention Overlay District, and Sec. 8.1 Resource Conservation.  

h) Storm water management. The PD Plan shall demonstrate that the post-development rate of on-
site storm water discharge from the entire site shall not exceed pre-development levels in 
accordance with Sec. 6.1.7 of the UDO.  

i) Phasing. The PD Plan for PUD-CZ shall include a phasing plan for the development. If development 
of the PUD-CZ is proposed to occur in more than one phase, then guarantees shall be provided that 
project improvements and amenities that are necessary and desirable for residents of the project, 
or that are of benefit to the Town, are constructed with the first phase of the project, or, if this is 
not possible, then as early in the project as is technically feasible.  

j) Consistency with 2045 Land Use Map. The PD Plan for PUD-CZ demonstrates consistency with the 
goals and policies established in the Town’s 2045 Land Use Map.  

k) Complies with the UDO. The PD Plan for PUD-CZ demonstrates compliance with all other relevant 
portions of the UDO. 

Legislative Considerations  

The Town Council shall find the Planned Unit Development-Conditional Zoning (PUD-CZ) designation 
demonstrates compliance with the following standards. 2.3.3.F: 

The applicant shall propose site-specific standards and conditions that take into account the following 
considerations, which are considerations that are relevant to the legislative determination of whether or not the 
proposed conditional zoning district rezoning request is in the public interest. These considerations do not 
exclude the legislative consideration of any other factor that is relevant to the public interest.             

1) Consistency with 2045 Land Use Map. The proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use’s 
appropriateness for its proposed location and consistency with the purposes, goals, objectives, and 
policies of the 2045 Land Use Map.  

2) Compatibility. The proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use’s appropriateness for its proposed 
location and compatibility with the character of surrounding land uses.  

3) Zoning district supplemental standards. The proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use’s compliance 
with Sec 4.4 Supplemental Standards, if applicable.  

- Page 686 -



STAFF REPORT 
Rezoning #22CZ07 Chapel Ridge North PUD  

July 26, 2022 Town Council Meeting 
 

 

Page 12 of 12  Prepared by: Shelly Mayo, Planner II 

 

4) Design minimizes adverse impact. The design of the proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use’s 
minimization of adverse effects, including visual impact of the proposed use on adjacent lands; and 
avoidance of significant adverse impacts on surrounding lands regarding trash, traffic, service delivery, 
parking and loading, odors, noise, glare, and vibration and not create a nuisance. 

5) Design minimizes environmental impact. The proposed Conditional Zoning District use’s minimization of 
environmental impacts and protection from significant deterioration of water and air resources, wildlife 
habitat, scenic resources, and other natural resources. 

6) Impact on public facilities. The proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use’s avoidance of having 
adverse impacts on public facilities and services, including roads, potable water and wastewater facilities, 
parks, schools, police, fire and EMS facilities. 

7) Health, safety, and welfare. The proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use’s effect on the health, 
safety, or welfare of the residents of the Town or its ETJ. 

8) Detrimental to adjacent properties. Whether the proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use is 
substantially detrimental to adjacent properties. 

9) Not constitute nuisance or hazard. Whether the proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use constitutes 
a nuisance or hazard due to traffic impact or noise, or because of the number of persons who will be 
using the Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use. 

10) Other relevant standards of this Ordinance. Whether the proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use 
complies with all standards imposed on it by all other applicable provisions of this Ordinance for use, 
layout, and general development characteristics. 

- Page 687 -



 

PUBLIC WORKS & TRANSPORTATION - TRAFFIC 

 

TOWN OF APEX  
The Peak of Good Living 

PO Box 250 Apex, NC 27502  |  (919) 249-3400  |  www.apexnc.org 

 

 

April 7, 2022 
 
 
Kevin Dean 
Kimley-Horn & Associates, Inc.  
300 S. Main Street, Suite 212  
Holly Springs, NC 27540  
 
 
Subject: Staff summary and comments for the Chapel Ridge Apartments TIA, 

3/1/2022 
 
 
Mr. Dean: 
 
Please review the following summary of my comments and recommendations.  You may 
schedule a meeting with me and your client to discuss at your convenience. 
 
 
Study Area 
 
The TIA studied access to the proposed development via five (5) intersections:  
 

• Beaver Creek Commons Drive and Proposed Site Access 

• Chapel Ridge Road and Proposed Site Access/North Site Driveway 

• Chapel Ridge Road and Central Site Driveway 

• Chapel Ridge Road and South Site Driveway 

• Ackerman Hill Drive and Site Driveway 
 
Additionally, the TIA studied the following four (4) intersections within the study area: 
 

• Kelly Road and Wendhurst Court/Beaver Creek Commons Drive 

• Olive Chapel Road and Chapel Ridge Road 

• Chapel Ridge Road and Ackerman Hill Drive 

• Beaver Creek Commons Drive and Creekside Landing Drive 
 
 
Trip Generation 
 
The proposed development is expected to consist of 350 apartment units. The development is 
projected to generate approximately 30 new trips entering and 87 new trips exiting the site 
during the weekday A.M. peak hour and 90 new trips entering and 57 new trips exiting the site 
during the weekday P.M. peak hour. The development is projected to add a total of 1,906 daily 
trips onto the adjacent roadway network.  
 

- Page 688 -



2 

Background traffic 
 
Background traffic consists of 3% annual background traffic growth compounded to build out 
year 2025, and a portion of the Olive Chapel Professional Park (50% of build-out traffic). It 
should be noted that traffic from the adjacent Chapel Ridge Townhomes development was 
evaluated as a supplemental analysis but not included in the background traffic as the 
development had not yet been rezoned by Town Council at the time this TIA was prepared.  It 
also happened to be below the trip threshold for requiring a TIA by itself and is providing 
additional direct full movement access on Olive Chapel Road, which will minimize potential 
traffic impacts to Chapel Ridge Road from that development plan. 
 
Trip Distribution and Assignment 
 
The trip distributions to and from the development are as follows: 
 

• 40% to/from the north on Kelly Road (via Beaver Creek Commons Drive) 

• 20% to/from the east on Beaver Creek Commons Drive 

• 15% to/from the east on Olive Chapel Road 

• 15% to/from the west on Olive Chapel Road 

• 10% to/from the north on Creekside Landing Drive 

 
Traffic Capacity Analysis and Recommendations 
 

Level of Service (LOS) is a grade of A through F assigned to an intersection, approach, or 

movement to describe how well or how poorly it operates.  LOS A through D is considered 

acceptable for peak hour operation.  LOS E or F describes potentially unacceptable operation 

and developers may be required to mitigate their anticipated traffic impact to improve LOS 

based on the Apex Unified Development Ordinance (UDO). Tables 1 through 9 describe the 

levels of service (LOS) for the scenarios analyzed in the TIA.  “NA” is shown when the scenario 

does not apply.  The scenarios are as follows: 

• Existing 2021 - Existing year 2021 traffic counts. 

• No Build 2025 – Projected year (2025) with background traffic growth and committed 

improvements by others, where applicable. 

• Build 2025 – Projected year (2025) with background traffic, and site build-out including 

recommended improvements, where applicable. 

 

 

  

- Page 689 -



3 

Beaver Creek Commons Drive and Proposed Site Access 

Table 1. A.M. / P.M. Unsignalized Peak Hour Levels of Service 

Beaver Creek Commons Drive and Proposed Site Access 

 Build 2025 

Overall NA  

Westbound (Site Access) B / B1 

Northbound (Beaver Creek Commons Drive) NA 

Southbound (Beaver Creek Commons Drive) A / A2 

1. Level of service for stop-controlled minor street approaches. 

2. Level of service for major street left turn. 

TIA recommendations: 

• The TIA recommends construction of Proposed Site Access approximately half-way 

between the proposed Jordan Lutheran Church (200 feet to the south) and the existing 

Beaver Creek Crossing mall alley (200 feet to the north).  The TIA recommends the Site 

Access be constructed as a stop-controlled, privately maintained driveway with one lane 

of ingress and one lane of egress.  Additionally, the TIA recommends restriping the two-

way left turn lane of Beaver Creek Commons Drive to provide for a 100-foot left turn 

storage bay in the southbound direction of travel.    

Apex staff recommendations: 

• There’s an existing driveway and gravel road that serves a sanitary sewer pump station, 

just a few feet north of the Proposed Site Access.  Apex staff recommends that the 

Proposed Site Access driveway is constructed to serve both the apartment site and the 

existing pump station to reduce the number of driveways and potential turn movement 

conflicts through this short stretch of frontage along Beaver Creek Commons Drive. The 

Proposed Site Access should provide a public access easement up to its termination 

point with the Chapel Ridge Road extension. Apex staff also recommends the center 

turn lane on Beaver Creek Commons Drive be restriped to provide 75 feet of 

southbound left turn storage and 75 feet of taper at the Proposed Site Driveway. 

 

• The intersection is projected to operate at LOS B or better for all movements.  

Additionally, Apex staff reviewed right turn warrants for this location.  Based on the p.m. 

peak hour projected traffic volumes, a right turn taper is warranted per NCDOT 

guidelines.  However, due to the context of this roadway facility (35 mph thoroughfare 

with many closely spaced commercial access points), a right turn lane is not 

recommended at this location.   

 

  

 

- Page 690 -



4 

Chapel Ridge Road and Proposed Site Access/North Site Driveway 

Table 2. A.M. / P.M. Unsignalized Peak Hour Levels of Service 

Chapel Ridge Road and Proposed Site Access/North Site Driveway 

 Build 2025 

Overall NA 

Eastbound (Proposed Site Access) NA 

Westbound (North Site Driveway) A / A2 

Northbound (Chapel Ridge Road) A / A1 

1. Level of service for minor street stop-controlled approaches. 

2. Level of service for major street left turn movements. 

 

TIA recommendations: 

• The TIA recommends realignment and extension of Chapel Ridge Road by 

approximately 550 feet to the north, from its existing terminus point at the cul-de-sac, to 

the Proposed Site Access.  The TIA proposes that the Chapel Ridge Road extension is 

constructed as a two-lane, two-way, public roadway on 60 feet of right of way, with stop 

control at the intersection of the Proposed Site Access and North Site Driveway.  

Apex staff recommendations: 

• Apex staff concur with the realignment and extension of Chapel Ridge Road as a two-

way, two lane road.  Additionally, Apex staff recommends coordination with the Jordan 

Lutheran Church to connect their southern driveway to the realigned roadway, and to 

remove the existing asphalt driveway on their site that extends south to the existing 

Chapel Ridge Road cul-de-sac.  The realignment of the road, as proposed, will cause an 

issue with the existing asphalt drive connection and should be addressed as part of this 

development plan. 

• The proposed intersection of Chapel Ridge Road and the Proposed Site Access / North 

Site Driveway is projected to operate at LOS A for all intersection movements during 

both peak hours of the day.   

  

- Page 691 -



5 

Chapel Ridge Road and Central Site Driveway 

Table 3. A.M. / P.M. Unsignalized Peak Hour Levels of Service 

Chapel Ridge Road and Central Site Driveway 

 Build 2025 

Overall NA 

Eastbound (Chapel Ridge Road) A / A2 

Westbound (Chapel Ridge Road) A / A2 

Northbound (Central Site Driveway) A / A1 

Southbound (Central Site Driveway) A / A1 

1. Level of service for minor street stop-controlled approaches. 

2. Level of service for major street left turn movements. 

 

TIA recommendations: 

• The TIA recommends construction of the Central Site Driveway as a privately 

maintained two-lane, two-way roadway with stop-control on both minor street 

approaches at the intersection with Chapel Ridge Road.   

Apex staff recommendations: 

• Apex staff concur with the recommendation in the TIA. All movements are projected to 

operate at LOS A at this intersection during both peak hours of the day.   

 

  

- Page 692 -



6 

Chapel Ridge Road and South Site Driveway 

Table 4. A.M. / P.M. Unsignalized Peak Hour Levels of Service 

Chapel Ridge Road and South Site Driveway 

 Build 2025 

Overall NA 

Eastbound (Chapel Ridge Road) A / A2 

Westbound (Chapel Ridge Road) A / A2 

Northbound (South Site Driveway) A / A1 

Southbound (South Site Driveway) A / A1 

1. Level of service for minor street stop-controlled approaches. 

2. Level of service for major street left turn movements. 

 

TIA recommendations: 

• The TIA recommends construction of the South Site Driveway as a privately maintained 

two-lane, two-way roadway with stop-control on both minor street approaches at the 

intersection with Chapel Ridge Road.   

Apex staff recommendations: 

• Apex staff concur with the recommendation in the TIA. All movements are projected to 

operate at LOS A at this intersection during both peak hours of the day.   

 

Ackerman Hill Drive and Site Driveway 

Table 5. A.M. / P.M. Unsignalized Peak Hour Levels of Service 

Ackerman Hill Drive and Site Driveway 

 Build 2025 

Overall NA 

Eastbound (Ackerman Hill Drive) NA 

Westbound (Ackerman Hill Drive) A / A2 

Northbound (Site Driveway) A / A1 

1. Level of service for minor street stop-controlled approaches. 

2. Level of service for major street left turn movements. 

 

TIA recommendations: 

• The TIA recommends construction of Site Driveway as a privately maintained two-lane, 

two-way roadway with stop-control at the intersection with Ackerman Hill Drive.   

Apex staff recommendations: 

• Apex staff concur with the recommendation in the TIA. All movements are projected to 

operate at LOS A at this intersection during both peak hours of the day.   

- Page 693 -



7 

Kelly Road and Wendhurst Court/Beaver Creek Commons Drive 

Table 6. A.M. / P.M. Signalized Peak Hour Levels of Service 
Kelly Road and Wendhurst Court/Beaver Creek Commons Drive 

 

 Existing 2021 
No Build 

2025 
Build 2025 

Overall B / C B / C B / C 

Eastbound (Wendhurst Court) C / B C / B C / B 

Westbound (Beaver Creek Commons Drive) E / D E / D D / D 

Northbound (Kelly Road) A / B A / B A / B 

Southbound (Kelly Road) A / C A / C A / C 

TIA recommendations: 

• The TIA recommends no improvements at this intersection.  The TIA also notes that 

development traffic is projected to account for approximately 3% of total intersection 

traffic, and the overall level of service (LOS B and C in the AM and PM peak hours 

respectively), is not projected to change with or without the development. 

Apex staff recommendations: 

• Apex staff concur with the recommendation in the TIA. All approaches are projected to 

operate at LOS D or better in the build scenario.  As noted in the TIA, the westbound 

approach improves from LOS E to D in the AM peak hour from the No Build to the Build 

scenario.  That improvement is negligible and due to the addition of site trips to 

movements already operating with adequate capacity and the associated weighted-

average methodology for delay calculations.   

- Page 694 -



8 

Olive Chapel Road and Chapel Ridge Road 

Table 7. A.M. / P.M. Unsignalized Peak Hour Levels of Service 
Olive Chapel Road and Chapel Ridge Road 

 
Existing 

2021 

No Build 
2025 

Build 2025 

Overall NA NA NA 

Eastbound (Olive Chapel Road) A / A2 A / A2 A / A2 

Westbound (Olive Chapel Road) NA NA NA 

Southbound (Chapel Ridge Road) B / B1 B / C1 B / C1 

1. Level of service for minor street stop-controlled approaches. 

2. Level of service for major street left turn movements. 

TIA recommendations: 

• The TIA recommends no improvements at this intersection.   

Apex staff recommendations: 

• Apex staff concur with the recommendation in the TIA. All movements are projected to 

operate at LOS C or better in the build scenario during both peak hours.  95th percentile 

queues are not projected to exceed 25 feet on the stop-controlled southbound approach. 

An eastbound left turn lane on Olive Chapel Road already exist to store the major street 

left turn queues. 

Chapel Ridge Road and Ackerman Hill Drive 

Table 8. A.M. / P.M. Unsignalized Peak Hour Levels of Service 
Chapel Ridge Road and Ackerman Hill Drive 

 
Existing 

2021 

No Build 
2025 

Build 2025 

Overall NA NA NA 

Westbound (Ackerman Hill Drive) A / A1 A / A1 A / A1 

Northbound (Chapel Ridge Road) NA NA NA 

Southbound (Chapel Ridge Road) A / A2 A / A2 A / A2 

1. Level of service for minor street stop-controlled approaches. 

2. Level of service for major street left turn movements. 

TIA recommendations: 

• The TIA recommends no improvements at this intersection.   

Apex staff recommendations: 

• Apex staff concur with the recommendation in the TIA. All movements are projected to 

operate at LOS A in the build scenario during both peak hours.   

  

- Page 695 -



9 

Beaver Creek Commons Drive and Creekside Landing Drive (Roundabout) 

Table 9. A.M. / P.M. Unsignalized Roundabout Peak Hour Levels of Service 
Beaver Creek Commons Drive and Creekside Landing Drive 

 
Existing 

2021 

No Build 
2025 

Build 2025 

Overall A / A A / A A / B 

Eastbound (Beaver Creek Commons Drive) A / A A / A A / B 

Westbound (Beaver Creek Commons Drive) A / A A / A A / B 

Northbound (Creekside Landing Drive) A / A A / B A / B 

Southbound (Creekside Landing Drive) A / A A / A A / A 

TIA recommendations: 

• The TIA recommends no improvements at this intersection.   

Apex staff recommendations: 

• Apex staff concur with the recommendation in the TIA. All approaches are projected to 

operate at LOS B or better in the build scenario during both peak hours.  The 

roundabout is projected to have ample capacity to handle future traffic growth from this 

development. 

 

Please coordinate with the NCDOT District Engineer’s Office concerning recommended 

improvements.  Town staff will be available for meetings with NCDOT staff to discuss 

improvements on state maintained roadways as needed.  All recommendations are subject to 

review by Town Council prior to approval. 

 

Sincerely, 

 
Serge Grebenschikov 
Traffic Engineer 
919-372-7448 
 

- Page 696 -



- Page 697 -



PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION   
This document is a public record under the North Carolina 
third parties.

Application #:    Submittal Date:  
Fee Paid $  Check #  

 

Last Updated: July 1, 2021 

PETITION TO AMEND THE OFFICIAL ZONING DISTRICT MAP 

Project Name:  

Address(es):  

PIN(s)  

  Acreage:  

Current Zoning:  Proposed Zoning:  

Current 2045 LUM Designation:  

Is the proposed rezoning consistent with the 2045 LUM Classification(s)?     Yes                              No                              
 

If any portion of the project is shown as mixed use (3 or more stripes on the 2045 Land Use Map) provide the following: 

 Area classified as mixed use: Acreage:  

 Area proposed as non-residential development: Acreage:  

 Percent of mixed use area proposed as non-residential: Percent:  

Applicant Information 

Name:  

Address:  

City:  State:  Zip:  

Phone:  E-mail:  
 

Owner Information 

Name:  

Address:  

City:  State:  Zip:  

Phone:  E-mail:  
 

Agent Information 

Name:  

Address:  

City:  State:  Zip:  

Phone:  E-mail:  

Other contacts:  

 

 

3 of 20 Planned Unit Develoment-Conditional Zoning Application
- Page 698 -



 

PPAB 6867950v1 

Exhibit A 
To Chapel Ridge PUD-CZ Application 

Owner Information Addendum 

Parcel 1 
Site Address: 1200 Chapel Ridge Road 
PIN: 0732256180 
Deed Reference (book/page): 12343/2193 
Acreage: 5.27 
Owner: Su Yueh Kao and Chi Chang Ho 
Owner Address: 1200 Chapel Ridge Road, Apex, NC 27502-8502 
 
Parcel 2 
Site Address: 1204 Chapel Ridge Road 
PIN: 0732249869 
Deed Reference (book/page): 8218/1726 
Acreage: 1.71 
Owner: Michael P. Mohan and Catherine A. Mohan  
Owner Address: 1204 Chapel Ridge Road, Apex, NC 27502-8502 
 
Parcel 3 
Site Address: 1205 Chapel Ridge Road 
PIN: 0732352538 
Deed Reference (book/page): 12171/2059 
Acreage: 2.48 
Owner: Douglas Cox and Carrie Cox 
Owner Address: 1205 Chapel Hill Road, Apex, NC 27502-8502 
 
Parcel 4 
Site Address: 1209 Chapel Ridge Road 
PIN: 0732354594 
Deed Reference (book/page): 6236/386 
Acreage: 3.0 
Owner: Ronald L. Stringari, and Katherine L. Stringari 
Owner Address: 1209 Chapel Ridge Road, Apex, NC 27502-8502 
 
Parcel 5 
Site Address: 1220 Chapel Ridge Road 
PIN: 0732343920 
Deed Reference (book/page): 4168/302 
Acreage: 2.88 
Owner: Larry L. Carlson and Kathi E. Carlson 
Owner Address: 1220 Chapel Ridge Road, Apex, NC 27502-8502 
 

- Page 699 -



 

PPAB 6867950v1 2 

 
Parcel 6 
Site Address: 1225 Chapel Ridge Road 
PIN: 0732347912 
Deed Reference (book/page): 9720/361 
Acreage: 2.13 
Owner: Tigh M. Dundieff and Diane Cundieff 
Owner Address: 1225 Chapel Ridge Road, Apex, NC 27502-8502 
 
Parcel 7 
Site Address: 1512 Clark Farm Road 
PIN: 0732340602 
Deed Reference (book/page): 5351/223 
Acreage: 2.34 
Owner: David D. Sherry and Ethel V. Sherry 
Owner Address: 1512 Clark Farm Road, Apex, NC 27502-8500 
 
 
 

 

 

- Page 700 -



PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION

Application #: Submittal Date: 

Last Updated: July 1, 2021 

PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT STANDARDS: 

In return for greater flexibility in site design requirements, Planned Development (PD) Districts are expected to deliver 
exceptional quality community designs that preserve critical environmental resources; provide high quality community 
amenities; incorporate creative design in the layout of buildings, Resource Conservation Area and circulation; ensure 
compatibility with surrounding land uses and neighborhood character; provide high quality architecture; and provide 
greater efficiency in the layout and provision of roads, utilities, and other infrastructure. The Planned Development (PD) 

developments. The PD text and plan should demonstrate how the standards of Sec. 2.3.4.F are met be the proposed 
rezoning. 

LEGISLATIVE CONSIDERATIONS - CONDITIONAL ZONING 

The applicant shall propose site-specific standards and conditions that take into account the following considerations, 
which are considerations that are relevant to the legislative determination of whether or not the proposed conditional 
zoning district rezoning request is in the public interest.  These considerations do not exclude the legislative consideration 
of any other factor that is relevant to the public interest. Use additional pages as needed. 

1) Consistency with 2045 Land Use Map.  
proposed location and consistency with the purposes, goals, objectives, and policies of the 2045 Land Use Map.

2) Compatibility.  
compatibility with the character of surrounding land uses.

Supplemental Standards, if applicable.

4 of 20 Planned Unit Develoment-Conditional Zoning Application
- Page 701 -



PETITION PROCESS INFORMATION 

Last Updated: July 1, 2021 

4) Design minimizes adverse impact.  
adverse effects, including visual impact of the proposed use on adjacent lands; and avoidance of significant adverse
impacts on surrounding lands regarding trash, traffic, service delivery, parking and loading, odors, noise, glare, and
vibration and not create a nuisance.

5) Design minimizes environmental impact.  
environmental impacts and protection from significant deterioration of water and air resources, wildlife habitat, scenic
resources, and other natural resources.

6) Impact on public facilities.  
on public facilities and services, including roads, potable water and wastewater facilities, parks, schools, police, fire and
EMS facilities.

7) Health, safety, and welfare.  
welfare of the residents of the Town or its ETJ.

8) Detrimental to adjacent properties.  Whether the proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use is substantially
detrimental to adjacent properties.

5 of 20 Planned Unit Develoment-Conditional Zoning Application
- Page 702 -



PETITION PROCESS INFORMATION 

Last Updated: July 1, 2021 

9) Not constitute nuisance or hazard.  Whether the proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use constitutes a nuisance
or hazard due to traffic impact or noise, or because of the number of persons who will be using the Conditional Zoning
(CZ) District use.

10) Other relevant standards of this Ordinance.  Whether the proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use complies
with all standards imposed on it by all other applicable provisions of this Ordinance for use, layout, and general
development characteristics.

6 of 20 Planned Unit Develoment-Conditional Zoning Application
- Page 703 -



DEVELOPMENT NAME APPROVAL APPLICATION 
 

Application #:    Submittal Date:  
 

Last Updated: June 13, 2016  

Fee for Initial Submittal:  No Charge         Fee for Name Change after Approval:  $500*   
Purpose 
To provide a consistent and clearly stated procedure for the naming of subdivisions and/or developments and 
entrance roadways (in conjunction with Town of Apex Address Policy) so as to allow developers to define and 

the quality of life and safety for all residents of Apex proper and extraterritorial jurisdiction. 
 
Guidelines 

The subdivision/development name shall not duplicate, resemble, or present confusion with an existing 
subdivision/development within Apex corporate limits or extraterritorial jurisdiction except for the 
extension of an existing subdivision/development of similar or same name that shares a continuous 
roadway. 

The subdivision/development name shall not resemble an existing street name within Apex corporate 
limits or extraterritorial jurisdiction unless the roadway is a part of the subdivision/development or 
provides access to the main entrance. 

The entrance roadway of a proposed subdivision/development shall contain the name of the 
subdivision/development where this name does not conflict with the Town of Apex Road Name 
Approval Application and Town of Apex Address Policy guidelines. 

 
 

 
Descriptive words that are commonly used by existing developments will be scrutinized more seriously 
in order to limit confusion and encourage distinctiveness. A list of commonly used descriptive words in 

 
 

The proposed subdivision/development name must be requested, reviewed and approved during 
preliminary review by the Town. 

 
A $500.00 fee will be assessed to the developer if a subdivision/development name change is requested 
after official submittal of the project to the Town.* 

 
*The imposed fee offsets the cost of administrative changes required to alleviate any confusion for the 
applicant, Planning staff, other Town departments, decision-making bodies, concerned utility companies and 
other interested parties. There is no charge for the initial name submittal. 
 
Existing Development Titles, Recurring 
 

 Residential Non-Residential 
10 or more Creek, Farm(s), Village(s), Center/Centre 
6 to 9 Crossing(s), Park, Ridge, Wood(s) Commons, Park 
3 to 5 Acres, Estates, Glen(s), Green , Hills Crossing(s), Plaza, Station, Village(s) 

excludes names with Green Level 

12 of 20 Planned Unit Develoment-Conditional Zoning Application
- Page 704 -



DEVELOPMENT NAME APPROVAL APPLICATION 
 

Application #:    Submittal Date:  
 

Last Updated: June 13, 2016  

Proposed Subdivision/Development Information 

Description of location:  

Nearest intersecting roads:  

Wake County PIN(s):  

Township:  
 

Contact Information (as appropriate) 

Contact person:    

Phone number:  Fax number:  

Address:  

E-mail address:  

Owner:  

Phone number:  Fax number:  

Address:  

E-mail address:  
 

Proposed Subdivision/Development Name 

1st Choice:  

2nd Choice (Optional):  
 
 

Town of Apex Staff Approval: 
   

Town of Apex Planning Department Staff  Date 
 

13 of 20 Planned Unit Develoment-Conditional Zoning Application
- Page 705 -



- Page 706 -



- Page 707 -



AGENT AUTHORIZATION FORM   

Application #:    Submittal Date:  
 

Last Updated: August 30, 2019 

 is the owner* of the property for which the attached  

application is being submitted:  
 

☐ Land Use Amendment 

☐ Rezoning: For Conditional Zoning and Planned Development rezoning applications, this 
authorization includes express consent to zoning conditions that are agreed to by the 
Agent which will apply if the application is approved. 

☐ Site Plan 

☐ Subdivision 

☐ Variance 

☐ Other:  
 

The property address is:  

The agent for this project is:  

   ☐  I am the owner of the property and will be acting as my own agent 

Agent Name:  

Address:  

Telephone Number:  

E-Mail Address:  
 

Signature(s) of Owner(s)* 
   

  

Type or print name  Date 

   

  

Type or print name  Date 

Attach additional sheets if there are additional owners. 
 
*Owner of record as shown on the latest equalized assessment rolls of Wake County. An option to purchase does not 
constitute ownership. If ownership has been recently transferred, a copy of the deed must accompany this authorization. 

 
Pursuant to Article 40 of Chapter 66 of the North Carolina General Statutes (the Uniform Electronic Transactions Act) this 
application and all documents related hereto containing an electronic or digitized signature are legally binding in the same 
manner as are hard copy documents executed by hand signature. The parties hereby consent to use electronic or digitized 
signatures in accordance with the Town’s Electronic Signature Policy and intend to be bound by the application and any 
related documents. If electronic signatures are used the application shall be delivered in an electronic record capable of 
retention by the recipient at the time of receipt. 

17 of 20 Planned Unit Develoment-Conditional Zoning Application

Larry L. Carlson and Kathi E. Carlson

✔

✔

1220 Chapel Ridge Road, Apex, NC 27502-8502

Josh Dix

Josh Dix

555 Fayetteville Street, Suite 300, Raleigh, NC 27601

(919) 835-4032

JDix@trammellcrow.com

Larry L. Carlson March 1, 2022

Kathi E. Carlson March 1, 2022

- Page 708 -



AGENT AUTHORIZATION FORM   

Application #:    Submittal Date:  
 

Last Updated: August 30, 2019 

 is the owner* of the property for which the attached  

application is being submitted:  
 

☐ Land Use Amendment 

☐ Rezoning: For Conditional Zoning and Planned Development rezoning applications, this 
authorization includes express consent to zoning conditions that are agreed to by the 
Agent which will apply if the application is approved. 

☐ Site Plan 

☐ Subdivision 

☐ Variance 

☐ Other:  
 

The property address is:  

The agent for this project is:  

   ☐  I am the owner of the property and will be acting as my own agent 

Agent Name:  

Address:  

Telephone Number:  

E-Mail Address:  
 

Signature(s) of Owner(s)* 
   

  

Type or print name  Date 

   

  

Type or print name  Date 

Attach additional sheets if there are additional owners. 
 
*Owner of record as shown on the latest equalized assessment rolls of Wake County. An option to purchase does not 
constitute ownership. If ownership has been recently transferred, a copy of the deed must accompany this authorization. 

 
Pursuant to Article 40 of Chapter 66 of the North Carolina General Statutes (the Uniform Electronic Transactions Act) this 
application and all documents related hereto containing an electronic or digitized signature are legally binding in the same 
manner as are hard copy documents executed by hand signature. The parties hereby consent to use electronic or digitized 
signatures in accordance with the Town’s Electronic Signature Policy and intend to be bound by the application and any 
related documents. If electronic signatures are used the application shall be delivered in an electronic record capable of 
retention by the recipient at the time of receipt. 

17 of 20 Planned Unit Develoment-Conditional Zoning Application

Douglas Cox and Carrie Cox

✔

✔

1205 Chapel Ridge Road, Apex, NC 27502-8502

Josh Dix

Josh Dix

555 Fayetteville Street, Suite 300, Raleigh, NC 27601

(919) 835-4032

JDix@trammellcrow.com

Douglas Cox March 1, 2022

Carrie Cox March 1, 2022

DocuSign Envelope ID: 69081AF8-17B5-4D75-9420-A706A3A88464

- Page 709 -



AGENT AUTHORIZATION FORM   

Application #:    Submittal Date:  
 

Last Updated: August 30, 2019 

 is the owner* of the property for which the attached  

application is being submitted:  
 

☐ Land Use Amendment 

☐ Rezoning: For Conditional Zoning and Planned Development rezoning applications, this 
authorization includes express consent to zoning conditions that are agreed to by the 
Agent which will apply if the application is approved. 

☐ Site Plan 

☐ Subdivision 

☐ Variance 

☐ Other:  
 

The property address is:  

The agent for this project is:  

   ☐  I am the owner of the property and will be acting as my own agent 

Agent Name:  

Address:  

Telephone Number:  

E-Mail Address:  
 

Signature(s) of Owner(s)* 
   

  

Type or print name  Date 

   

  

Type or print name  Date 

Attach additional sheets if there are additional owners. 
 
*Owner of record as shown on the latest equalized assessment rolls of Wake County. An option to purchase does not 
constitute ownership. If ownership has been recently transferred, a copy of the deed must accompany this authorization. 

 
Pursuant to Article 40 of Chapter 66 of the North Carolina General Statutes (the Uniform Electronic Transactions Act) this 
application and all documents related hereto containing an electronic or digitized signature are legally binding in the same 
manner as are hard copy documents executed by hand signature. The parties hereby consent to use electronic or digitized 
signatures in accordance with the Town’s Electronic Signature Policy and intend to be bound by the application and any 
related documents. If electronic signatures are used the application shall be delivered in an electronic record capable of 
retention by the recipient at the time of receipt. 

17 of 20 Planned Unit Develoment-Conditional Zoning Application

Tigh M. Cundieff and Diane Cundieff

✔

✔

1225 Chapel Ridge Road, Apex, NC 27502-8502

Josh Dix

Josh Dix

555 Fayetteville Street, Suite 300, Raleigh, NC 27601

(919) 835-4032

JDix@trammellcrow.com

Tigh M. Cundieff February 28, 2022

Diane Cundieff February 28, 2022

DocuSign Envelope ID: 905EEF63-6B85-4F96-B3CE-C4C5989F96FF

- Page 710 -



AGENT AUTHORIZATION FORM   

Application #:    Submittal Date:  
 

Last Updated: August 30, 2019 

 is the owner* of the property for which the attached  

application is being submitted:  
 

☐ Land Use Amendment 

☐ Rezoning: For Conditional Zoning and Planned Development rezoning applications, this 
authorization includes express consent to zoning conditions that are agreed to by the 
Agent which will apply if the application is approved. 

☐ Site Plan 

☐ Subdivision 

☐ Variance 

☐ Other:  
 

The property address is:  

The agent for this project is:  

   ☐  I am the owner of the property and will be acting as my own agent 

Agent Name:  

Address:  

Telephone Number:  

E-Mail Address:  
 

Signature(s) of Owner(s)* 
   

  

Type or print name  Date 

   

  

Type or print name  Date 

Attach additional sheets if there are additional owners. 
 
*Owner of record as shown on the latest equalized assessment rolls of Wake County. An option to purchase does not 
constitute ownership. If ownership has been recently transferred, a copy of the deed must accompany this authorization. 

 
Pursuant to Article 40 of Chapter 66 of the North Carolina General Statutes (the Uniform Electronic Transactions Act) this 
application and all documents related hereto containing an electronic or digitized signature are legally binding in the same 
manner as are hard copy documents executed by hand signature. The parties hereby consent to use electronic or digitized 
signatures in accordance with the Town’s Electronic Signature Policy and intend to be bound by the application and any 
related documents. If electronic signatures are used the application shall be delivered in an electronic record capable of 
retention by the recipient at the time of receipt. 

17 of 20 Planned Unit Develoment-Conditional Zoning Application

Su Yueh Kao and Chi-Chang Ho

✔

✔

1200 Chapel Ridge Road, Apex, NC 27502-8502

Josh Dix

Josh Dix

555 Fayetteville Street, Suite 300, Raleigh, NC 27601

(919) 835-4032

JDix@trammellcrow.com

Su Yueh Kao February 28, 2022

Chi-Chang Ho February 28, 2022

DocuSign Envelope ID: DE05AF53-287A-4737-9208-96D7948D3093

- Page 711 -



AGENT AUTHORIZATION FORM 

Application #: Submittal Date: 

Last Updated: August 30, 2019 

 is the owner* of the property for which the attached 

application is being submitted: 

Land Use Amendment 
Rezoning: For Conditional Zoning and Planned Development rezoning applications, this 

authorization includes express consent to zoning conditions that are agreed to by the 
Agent which will apply if the application is approved. 

Site Plan 
Subdivision 
Variance 
Other: 

The property address is:  

The agent for this project is:  

     I am the owner of the property and will be acting as my own agent 

Agent Name:  

Address:  

Telephone Number:  

E-Mail Address:  

Signature(s) of Owner(s)* 

Type or print name Date 

Type or print name Date 

Attach additional sheets if there are additional owners. 

*Owner of record as shown on the latest equalized assessment rolls of Wake County. An option to purchase does not
constitute ownership. If ownership has been recently transferred, a copy of the deed must accompany this authorization.

Pursuant to Article 40 of Chapter 66 of the North Carolina General Statutes (the Uniform Electronic Transactions Act) this 
application and all documents related hereto containing an electronic or digitized signature are legally binding in the same 
manner as are hard copy documents executed by hand signature. The parties hereby consent to use electronic or digitized 
signatures in accordance with the Town’s Electronic Signature Policy and intend to be bound by the application and any 
related documents. If electronic signatures are used the application shall be delivered in an electronic record capable of 
retention by the recipient at the time of receipt. 

17 of 20 Planned Unit Develoment-Conditional Zoning Application

Michael P. Mohan and Catherine A. Mohan

✔

✔

1204 Chapel Ridge Road, Apex, NC 27502-8502

Josh Dix

Josh Dix

555 Fayetteville Street, Suite 300, Raleigh, NC 27601

(919) 835-4032

JDix@trammellcrow.com

Michael P. Mohan February 28, 2022

Catherine A. Mohan February 28, 2022

- Page 712 -



AGENT AUTHORIZATION FORM   

Application #:    Submittal Date:  
 

Last Updated: August 30, 2019 

 is the owner* of the property for which the attached  

application is being submitted:  
 

☐ Land Use Amendment 

☐ Rezoning: For Conditional Zoning and Planned Development rezoning applications, this 
authorization includes express consent to zoning conditions that are agreed to by the 
Agent which will apply if the application is approved. 

☐ Site Plan 

☐ Subdivision 

☐ Variance 

☐ Other:  
 

The property address is:  

The agent for this project is:  

   ☐  I am the owner of the property and will be acting as my own agent 

Agent Name:  

Address:  

Telephone Number:  

E-Mail Address:  
 

Signature(s) of Owner(s)* 
   

  

Type or print name  Date 

   

  

Type or print name  Date 

Attach additional sheets if there are additional owners. 
 
*Owner of record as shown on the latest equalized assessment rolls of Wake County. An option to purchase does not 
constitute ownership. If ownership has been recently transferred, a copy of the deed must accompany this authorization. 

 
Pursuant to Article 40 of Chapter 66 of the North Carolina General Statutes (the Uniform Electronic Transactions Act) this 
application and all documents related hereto containing an electronic or digitized signature are legally binding in the same 
manner as are hard copy documents executed by hand signature. The parties hereby consent to use electronic or digitized 
signatures in accordance with the Town’s Electronic Signature Policy and intend to be bound by the application and any 
related documents. If electronic signatures are used the application shall be delivered in an electronic record capable of 
retention by the recipient at the time of receipt. 

17 of 20 Planned Unit Develoment-Conditional Zoning Application

David D. Sherry and Ethel V. Sherry

✔

✔

1512 Clark Farm Road, Apex, NC 27502-8500

Josh Dix

Josh Dix

555 Fayetteville Street, Suite 300, Raleigh, NC 27601

(919) 835-4032

JDix@trammellcrow.com

David D. Sherry February 28, 2022

Ethel V. Sherry February 28, 2022

DocuSign Envelope ID: BFCF3ACC-6083-4721-8E75-E081FB628033

- Page 713 -



AGENT AUTHORIZATION FORM   

Application #:    Submittal Date:  
 

Last Updated: August 30, 2019 

 is the owner* of the property for which the attached  

application is being submitted:  
 

☐ Land Use Amendment 

☐ Rezoning: For Conditional Zoning and Planned Development rezoning applications, this 
authorization includes express consent to zoning conditions that are agreed to by the 
Agent which will apply if the application is approved. 

☐ Site Plan 

☐ Subdivision 

☐ Variance 

☐ Other:  
 

The property address is:  

The agent for this project is:  

   ☐  I am the owner of the property and will be acting as my own agent 

Agent Name:  

Address:  

Telephone Number:  

E-Mail Address:  
 

Signature(s) of Owner(s)* 
   

  

Type or print name  Date 

   

  

Type or print name  Date 

Attach additional sheets if there are additional owners. 
 
*Owner of record as shown on the latest equalized assessment rolls of Wake County. An option to purchase does not 
constitute ownership. If ownership has been recently transferred, a copy of the deed must accompany this authorization. 

 
Pursuant to Article 40 of Chapter 66 of the North Carolina General Statutes (the Uniform Electronic Transactions Act) this 
application and all documents related hereto containing an electronic or digitized signature are legally binding in the same 
manner as are hard copy documents executed by hand signature. The parties hereby consent to use electronic or digitized 
signatures in accordance with the Town’s Electronic Signature Policy and intend to be bound by the application and any 
related documents. If electronic signatures are used the application shall be delivered in an electronic record capable of 
retention by the recipient at the time of receipt. 

17 of 20 Planned Unit Develoment-Conditional Zoning Application

Katherine L. Stringari

✔

✔

1209 Chapel Ridge Road, Apex, NC 27502-8502

Josh Dix

Josh Dix

555 Fayetteville Street, Suite 300, Raleigh, NC 27601

(919) 835-4032

JDix@trammellcrow.com

Katherine L. Stringari March 10, 2022

DocuSign Envelope ID: F1E58606-B680-4A3F-9C13-947A79C1C97B

- Page 714 -



Being all of lots 1, 2, 5, and 6 with no right-of-way taking as shown on book of maps 1987, page 556 in 
the Wake County Register of Deeds; all of lot 8 with no right-of-way taking as shown on book of maps 
1987, page 1272 in the Wake County Register of Deeds; all of lot 10 with no right-of-way taking as 
shown on book of maps 1986, page 1627 in the Wake County Register of Deeds; and a portion of lot 3 as 
shown on book of maps 1987, page 556 with a right-of-way taking described in deed book 15527, page 
772 in the Wake County Register of Deeds. Being more particularly described as follows.  

Beginning at a point on the southern right-of-way line of Ackerman Hill Drive as shown on book of maps 
2017, page 467, being the common corner of lands now or formally owned by MREC DT Beaver Creek 
LLC to the east as shown on book of maps 2006, page 1567; thence with the western line of MREC DT 
Beaver Creek LLC South 02°41'18" East a distance of 67.48 feet to an iron pipe, thence South 89°20'41" 
East a distance of 74.94 feet to an iron pipe, thence South 09°36'18" East a distance of 299.04 feet to an 
iron pipe, being the common corner of lands now or formally owned by MREC DT Beaver Creek LLC to 
the northeast and Daniel E. Corey, Et.Al. to the south as shown on book of maps 1987, page 1272; 
thence with the northern line of Daniel E. Corey, Et.Al. North 89°32'41" West a distance of 270.13 feet to 
an iron pipe, being the common corner on the eastern right-of-way line of Chapel Ridge Road as shown 
on book of maps 1987, page 1272; thence along the eastern right-of-way line of Chapel Ridge Road with 
a curve to the right a radius of 405.00 feet, an arc length of 50.19 feet, a chord bearing of South 
03°10'24" East, a chord length of 50.16 feet to a point, thence North 89°32'50" West a distance of 50.00 
feet to a point on the western right-of-way line of Chapel Ridge Road, being the common corner of land 
now or formally owned by James Patrick Serino and Melinda Busi to the south as shown on book of 
maps 1986, page 1627; thence leaving the right-of-way along the northern line of James Patrick Serino 
and Melinda Busi North 89°32'50" West a distance of 345.06 feet to an iron pipe, thence along the 
western line of the aforesaid land owners South 18°59'36" West a distance of 180.00 feet to a point, 
being the common corner of lands now or formally owned by James Patrick Serino and Melinda Busi to 
the northeast and Rita L. and Raymond V. Boykin Jr to the southeast as shown on book of maps 1986, 
page 1627; thence along the western line of Rita L. and Raymond V. Boykin Jr. South 18°59'39" West a 
distance of 269.66 feet to a point, being the common corner on the northern right-of-way line of Clark 
Farm Road as shown on book of maps 1986, page 1627; thence along the northern right-of-way line of 
Clark Farm Road with a curve to the left a radius of 2407.57 feet, an arc length of 172.19 feet, a chord 
bearing of North 71°16'12" West, a chord length of 172.15 feet to a point, thence with a curve to the 
right a radius of 25.00 feet, an arc length of 15.09 feet, a chord bearing of North 56°01'37" West, a 
chord length of 14.86 feet to a point, being the common corner of land now or formally owned by 
Christine and Frank A. Bria III to the west as shown on book of maps 1986, page 1627; thence leaving the 
northern right-of-way line with the eastern line of Christine and Frank A. Bria III North 01°00'50" West a 
distance of 364.22 feet to a point, thence along the northern line of the aforesaid land owners North 
89°32'50" West a distance of 78.77 feet to a point, thence North 89°32'50" West a distance of 435.45 
feet to a point, being the common corner of land now or formally owned by Christine and Frank A. Bria 
III to the south on the eastern right-of-way line of NC 540 HWY; thence along the eastern right-of-way 
line North 12°30'06" West a distance of 163.69 feet to a concrete monument; thence North 27°30'03" 
West a distance of 31.60 feet to a point, being the common corner of land now or formally owned by 
Shee Gopalprabhu LLC to the north, as described in deed book 18530, page 244, on the eastern right-of-
way line of NC 540 HWY; thence leaving the right-of-way along the eastern line of Shee Gopalprabhu LLC 

- Page 715 -



North 36°50'22" East a distance of 21.14 feet to a point, thence North 38°51'36" East a distance of 40.28 
feet to a point, thence North 38°00'37" East a distance of 83.84 feet to a point, thence North 38°19'59" 
East a distance of 53.41 feet to a point, thence North 34°12'14" East a distance of 64.39 feet to a rebar, 
being the common corner of lands now or formally owned by Shee Gopalprabhu LLC to the west and 
Jordan Lutheran Church LLC to the northeast as shown on book of maps 1987, page 556; thence with 
the southern line of Jordan Lutheran Church LLC South 89°18'34" East a distance of 516.36 feet to an 
iron pipe, thence North 84°43'51" East a distance of 165.05 feet to an iron pipe, being the common 
corner on the southern right-of-way line of Chapel Ridge Road; thence along the right-of-way line with a 
curve to the right a radius of 50.00 feet, an arc length of 62.76 feet, a chord bearing of North 30°41'41" 
East, a chord length of 58.72 feet to a point, being the common corner of lands now or formally owned 
by Jordan Lutheran Church LLC to the west on the aforesaid right-of-way line; thence leaving the right-
of-way along the eastern line of Jordan Lutheran Church LLC North 23°21'49" West a distance of 162.27 
feet to an iron pipe, thence North 03°08'58" West a distance of 329.33 feet to an iron pipe, being the 
common corner of lands now or formally owned by Jordan Lutheran Church LLC to the southwest and 
CTO21 Apex LLC to the north as shown on book of maps 2021, page 1878; thence along the southern 
line of CTO21 Apex LLC North 88°45'08" East a distance of 388.91 feet to an iron pipe, thence North 
88°45'08" East a distance of 47.28 feet to an iron pipe, thence North 88°42'10" East a distance of 177.95 
feet to an iron pipe, being the common corner of lands now or formally owned by CTO21 Apex LLC to 
the northwest and MREC DT Beaver Creek LLC to the east; thence along the western line of MREC DT 
Beaver Creek LLC South 02°41'18" East a distance of 157.29 feet to a point, being the common corner of 
lands now or formally owned by MREC DT Beaver Creek LLC to the east and Michael J. Bishop to the 
south as shown on book of maps 1987, page 556; thence along the northern line of Michael J. Bishop 
South 51°53'36" West a distance of 297.36 feet to an iron pipe, thence along the western line of the 
aforesaid land owner South 25°27'10" West a distance of 274.97 feet to a point, being the common 
corner on the northern right-of-way line of Chapel Ridge Road; thence along the right-of-way line with a 
curve to the right a radius of 405.00 feet, an arc length of 118.06 feet, a chord bearing of South 
56°11'36" East, a chord length of 117.64 feet to a point, thence with a curve to the right a radius of 
405.00 feet, an arc length of 45.37 feet, a chord bearing of South 44°36'20" East, a chord length of 45.34 
feet to a rebar, being the common corner on the southern right-of-way line of Ackerman Hill Drive and 
the northern right-of-way line of Chapel Ridge Road; thence leaving the Chapel Ridge Road right-of-way 
along the Ackerman Hill Drive right-of-way North 45°10'55" East a distance of 115.22 feet to a point, 
thence with a curve to the right a radius of 199.04 feet, an arc length of 145.84 feet, a chord bearing of 
North 66°19'50" East, a chord length of 142.60 feet to a point, thence North 87°15'57" East a distance of 
28.56 feet to the point and place of beginning, containing an area of 898,352 square feet, 20.62 acres 
more or less.  

  

- Page 716 -



Wake County Residential Development Notification 

Revised 0 / /201

Developer Company Information 
Company Name 
Company Phone Number
Developer Representative Name
Developer Representative Phone Number 
Developer Representative Email

New Residential Subdivision  Information 
Date of Application for Subdivision 
City, Town or Wake County Jurisdiction
Name of Subdivision
Address of Subdivision (if unknown enter nearest cross streets) 
REID(s)
PIN(s) 

Projected Dates Information
Subdivision Completion Date
Subdivision Projected First Occupancy Date 

Lot by Lot Development Information

Unit Type
Total # of 
Units 

Se
ni

or
 L

iv
in

g

St
ud

io

1 
Be

dr
oo

m

2 
Be

dr
oo

m

3 
Be

dr
oo

m

4 
Be

dr
oo

m

Square Foot  
Range 

Price Range Anticipated Completion Units & Dates 

Min Max Low High Year # Units Year # Units Year # Units

Single Family

Townhomes

Condos
Apartments

Other

Town of Apex staff will 
enter this information  
into the online WCPSS 
form.

Please complete each 
section of this form and 
submit with your 
application.

Please send any questions 
about this form to:

studentassignment-gis-
group@wcpss.net

- Page 717 -



NOTICE OF ELECTRONIC NEIGHBORHOOD MEETING 
This document is a public record under the North Carolina Public Records Act and may be published on the Town�s website 
or disclosed to third parties. 

Page 3 of 9 Instruction Packet & Affidavit of Electronic Neighborhood Meetings Last Updated: March 25, 2020  

Date 

Dear Neighbor: 
You are invited to an electronic neighborhood meeting to review and discuss the development proposal at 

Address(es) PIN(s) 

in accordance with the Town of Apex Electronic Neighborhood Meeting procedures. This meeting is intended 
to be a way for the applicant to discuss the project and review the proposed plans with adjacent neighbors 
and neighborhood organizations before the submittal of an application to the Town. This provides neighbors 
an opportunity to raise questions and discuss any concerns about the impacts of the project before it is 
officially submitted. If you are unable to attend, you may contact the applicant before or after the meeting is 
held. Once an application has been submitted to the Town, it may be tracked using the Interactive 
Development Map or the Apex Development Report located on the Town of Apex website at 
www.apexnc.org. If at all feasible given emergency declarations, limits on in-person gatherings, and social 
distancing, an additional in-person Neighborhood Meeting may be scheduled and held prior to a public 
hearing or staff decision on the application. 

An Electronic Neighborhood Meeting is required because this project includes (check all that apply): 
Application Type Approving Authority 

 Rezoning (including Planned Unit Development) Town Council 
 Major Site Plan Town Council (QJPH*) 
 Special Use Permit Town Council (QJPH*) 
 Residential Master Subdivision Plan (excludes exempt subdivisions) Technical Review 

Committee (staff) 
*Quasi-Judicial Public Hearing: The Town Council cannot discuss the project prior to the public hearing.

The following is a description of the proposal (also see attached map(s) and/or plan sheet(s)): 

Estimated submittal date: 

MEETING INFORMATION: 
Property Owner(s) name(s): 

Applicant(s): 

Contact information (email/phone):  

Electronic Meeting invitation/call in 
info:  

Date of meeting**:  

Time of meeting**:  

MEETING AGENDA TIMES: 
Welcome:  _____________    Project Presentation:  _____________    Question & Answer:  _____________ 

**Meetings shall occur between 5:00 p.m.-9:00 p.m. on a Monday through Thursday (excluding Town recognized 
holidays). If you have questions about the general process for this application, please contact the Planning Department 
at 919-249-3426. You may also find information about the Apex Planning Department and on-going planning efforts at 
http://www.apexnc.org/180/Planning. 

January 31, 2022

See attached Exhibit A See attached Exhibit A

March 1, 2022

See attached Exhibit A

Josh Dix, Trammell Crow Company c/o Matthew Carpenter

matthewcarpenter@parkerpoe.com; (919) 835-4032

See accompanying letter with Zoom instructions

between 6:00 - 8:00 PM6:00 PM between 6:00 - 8:00 PM

February 16, 2022

6:00 PM - 8:00 PM

- Page 718 -



PROJECT CONTACT INFORMATION 
This document is a public record under the North Carolina Public Records Act and may be published on the Town�s website  
or disclosed to third parties. 
 

Page 4 of 9 Instruction Packet & Affidavit of Electronic Neighborhood Meetings Last Updated: March 25, 2020  

Development Contacts:  

Project Name:  Zoning:  

Location:  

Property PIN(s):  Acreage/Square Feet:  
 

Property Owner:  

Address:  

City:  State:  Zip:  

Phone:  Email:  

Developer:  

Address:  

City:  State:  Zip:  

Phone:  Fax:  Email:  

Engineer:  

Address:  

City:  State:  Zip:  

Phone:  Fax:  Email:  

Builder (if known):  

Address:  

City:  State:  Zip:  

Phone:  Fax:  Email:  

 

Please note that Town staff will not have complete information about a proposed development until the 
application is submitted for review. If you have a question about Town development standards and how 
they relate to the proposed development, please contact the appropriate staff person listed below. 

Town of Apex Department Contacts 
Planning Department Main Number 

(Provide development name or location to be routed to correct planner) 
 
(919) 249-3426 

Parks, Recreation & Cultural Resources Department 
Angela Reincke, Parks Planner  

 
(919) 249-7468 

Public Works - Transportation 
Russell Dalton, Senior Transportation Engineer 

 
(919) 249-3358 

Water Resources Department  
Jessica Bolin, Senior Engineer (Stormwater, Sedimentation & Erosion Control) 
Stan Fortier, Senior Engineer (Stormwater, Sedimentation & Erosion Control) 
James Gregg, Utility Engineer (Water & Sewer) 

 
(919) 249-3537 
(919) 249-1166 
(919) 249-3324 

Electric Utilities Division 
Rodney Smith, Electric Technical Services Manager 

 
(919) 249-3342 

Chapel Ridge Rural Residential (RR)

See attached Exhibit A

See attached Exhibit A 19.81 acres

See attached Exhibit A

Trammell Crow Company, c/o Matthew Carpenter

301 Fayetteville Street, Suite 1400

Raleigh NC 27601

919-835-4032 n/a MatthewCarpenter@parkerpoe.com

McAdams, attn. Kody Trowbridge

One Glenwood, Suite 201

Raleigh NC 27603

919-287-0841 n/a trowbridge@mcadamsco.com

n/a

- Page 719 -



PPAB 6868138v1 

January 31, 2022 

Re: Notice of Virtual Neighborhood Meeting 

Neighboring Property Owners:  

 You are invited to attend a neighborhood meeting on February 16, 2022 from 6�8pm. 
The purpose of the meeting is to discuss an upcoming application to rezone 7 parcels of land 
located at 1200 Chapel Ridge Road (PIN 0732256180), 1204 Chapel Ridge Road                    
(PIN 0732249869), 1205 Chapel Ridge Road (PIN 0732352538), 1209 Chapel Ridge Road              
(PIN 0732354594), 1220 Chapel Ridge Road (PIN 0732343920), 1225 Chapel Ridge Road          
(PIN 0732347912), and 1512 Clark Farm Road (PIN 0732340602) (collectively, the �Property�).  
The Property is currently zoned Rural Residential (RR) and is proposed to be rezoned to Planned 
Unit Development-Conditional Zoning (PUD-CZ).  

 The applicant is proposing a rezoning to PUD-CZ to facilitate the development of an 
amenitized multi-family community. During the meeting, the applicant will describe the nature 
of this rezoning request and field any questions from the public. Enclosed are: (1) a vicinity map 
outlining the location of the subject parcel; (2) a zoning map of the subject area; (3) a 
preliminary concept plan; (4) a project contact information sheet; and (5) a common construction 
issues & who to call information sheet.  
 

The meeting will be held virtually. You can participate online via Zoom or by telephone. 
To participate in the Zoom online meeting:  

Visit:       https://zoom.us./join 
Enter the following meeting ID:  893 2645 9717 
Enter the following password:  329414 

To participate by telephone:  

 Dial:       1 929 205 6099 
Enter the following meeting ID:  893 2645 9717 # 
Enter the Participant ID:   # 
Enter the Meeting password:   329414 # 
 

If you have any questions about this rezoning, please contact me at (919) 835-4032 or via 
email at matthewcarpenter@parkerpoe.com.   

Thank you, 
 

Matthew Carpenter 

- Page 720 -



- Page 721 -



- Page 722 -



LL
C

A
R

CH
IT

EC
TU

R
E

IN
TE

R
IO

R 
D

ES
IG

N
RU

BI
O

TR
A

M
M

EL
L

U
LE

R
O

Y
J

30
0 

G
al

le
ri

a 
Pa

rk
w

ay
   

Su
ite

 7
40

   
A

tla
nt

a,
 G

eo
rg

ia
 3

03
39

77
0-

66
1-

14
92

 (p
ho

ne
) 7

70
-6

61
-1

49
3 

(fa
x)

w
w

w
.rj

tr
de

sig
n.

co
m

T
H

IS
 D

E
SI

G
N

 A
N

D
 D

R
A

W
IN

G
 A

R
E 

T
H

E
 P

R
O

PE
R

TY
 O

F 
R

U
L

E
 J

O
Y

 T
R

A
M

M
E

L
L

 +
 R

U
B

IO
, L

L
C

 A
N

D
 M

A
Y

 N
O

T
 B

E
 C

O
PI

E
D

 O
R

 R
E

PR
O

D
U

C
E

D
 W

IT
H

O
U

T 
W

R
IT

T
E

N
C

O
N

SE
N

T
 ©

 2
02

0

DRAWING NO:

PRINTED
DATE ISSUE/REVISION

COMMISSION NO:

PR
EL

IM
IN

A
RY

 S
IT

E 
PL

A
N

A
PE

X
, N

O
RT

H
 C

A
RO

LI
N

A

2021-105.00

- Page 723 -



PPAB 6867950v1 

Exhibit A 
Trammell Crow PUD-CZ 

Owner Information Addendum 

Parcel 1 
Site Address: 1200 Chapel Ridge Road 
PIN: 0732256180 
Deed Reference (book/page): 12343/2193 
Acreage: 5.27 
Owner: Su Yueh Kao and Chi Chang Ho 
Owner Address: 1200 Chapel Ridge Road, Apex, NC 27502-8502 

Parcel 2 
Site Address: 1204 Chapel Ridge Road 
PIN: 0732249869 
Deed Reference (book/page): 8218/1726 
Acreage: 1.71 
Owner: Michael P. Mohan and Catherine A. Mohan  
Owner Address: 1204 Chapel Ridge Road, Apex, NC 27502-8502 

Parcel 3 
Site Address: 1205 Chapel Ridge Road 
PIN: 0732352538 
Deed Reference (book/page): 12171/2059 
Acreage: 2.48 
Owner: Douglas Cox and Carrie Cox 
Owner Address: 1205 Chapel Hill Road, Apex, NC 27502-8502 

Parcel 4 
Site Address: 1209 Chapel Ridge Road 
PIN: 0732354594 
Deed Reference (book/page): 6236/386 
Acreage: 3.0 
Owner: Ronald L. Stringari, and Katherine L. Stringari 
Owner Address: 1209 Chapel Ridge Road, Apex, NC 27502-8502 

Parcel 5 
Site Address: 1220 Chapel Ridge Road 
PIN: 0732343920 
Deed Reference (book/page): 4168/302 
Acreage: 2.88 
Owner: Larry L. Carlson and Kathi E. Carlson 
Owner Address: 1220 Chapel Ridge Road, Apex, NC 27502-8502 

- Page 724 -



PPAB 6867950v1 2 

Parcel 6 
Site Address: 1225 Chapel Ridge Road 
PIN: 0732347912 
Deed Reference (book/page): 9720/361 
Acreage: 2.13 
Owner: Tigh M. Dundieff and Diane Cundieff 
Owner Address: 1225 Chapel Ridge Road, Apex, NC 27502-8502 

Parcel 7 
Site Address: 1512 Clark Farm Road 
PIN: 0732340602 
Deed Reference (book/page): 5351/223 
Acreage: 2.34 
Owner: David D. Sherry and Ethel V. Sherry 
Owner Address: 1512 Clark Farm Road, Apex, NC 27502-8500 

- Page 725 -



 

Page 5 of 9 Instruction Packet & Affidavit of Electronic Neighborhood Meetings Last Updated: March 25, 2020  

Providing Input to Town Council:  
Each Town Council meeting agenda includes a Public Forum time when anyone is permitted to speak for 
three (3) minutes on any topic with the exception of items listed as Public Hearings for that meeting. The 
Town Council meets on the 1st and 3rd Tuesdays of each month at 6:00 p.m. (except for holidays, see schedule 
of meetings at http://www.apexnc.org/838/Agendas-Minutes). You may also contact Town Council by e-mail 
at AllCouncil@apexnc.org. 
 
Private Agreements and Easement Negotiation:   

The Town of Apex cannot enforce private agreements between developers and neighbors and is not a party 
to the easement and right-of-way negotiation that occurs between developers and neighboring property 
owners for easements or rights-of-way that are necessary to build the project.  
 
It is recommended that all private agreements be made in writing and that if a property owner feels it 
necessary, they should obtain private legal counsel in order to protect their interests in both private 
agreements and during easement negotiations. The only conditions that the Town of Apex can enforce are 
those conditions that are made a part of the conditional zoning of the property by agreement of the 
developer and the Town.  
 
As an example, if a developer offers to build a fence for a neighbor to mitigate some impact, the Town can 
only enforce the construction of the fence if the fence becomes a condition of the rezoning. This would occur 
by the developer offering the condition as part of their conditional zoning application package or at the Town 
Council public hearing on the conditional zoning and the Town accepting it as a condition. Private agreements 
regarding a fence being constructed will not be enforced by the Town. 
 
To request that any agreement with a developer is made a part of the conditional zoning at the time of 
approval, you may ask at the Town Council public hearing if the agreement is included in the conditions. If it 
is not, you may request that the Town Council not approve the rezoning without the agreement being 
included in the conditions (note that it is up to Town Council whether to approve or deny the rezoning but 
they cannot impose conditions that the applicant does not agree to add). The developer�s proposed 
conditions can be viewed any time after a rezoning is submitted on the Interactive Development Map at: 
http://apexnc.maps.arcgis.com/apps/OnePane/basicviewer/index.html?appid=fa9ba2017b784030b15ef4d
a27d9e795 

Documentation:   
Neighbors to a requested new development and/or rezoning are strongly encouraged to fully document (such 
as through dated photographs) the condition of their property before any work is initiated for the new 
development. Stormwater controls installed on developed property are not designed to and will likely not 
remove 100% of the soil particles transported by stormwater runoff. As a result, creeks and ponds could 
become cloudy for a period of time after rain events. 
 

- Page 726 -



COMMON CONSTRUCTION ISSUES & WHO TO CALL 
This document is a public record under the North Carolina Public Records Act and may be published on the Town�s website  
or disclosed to third parties. 

Page 6 of 9 Instruction Packet & Affidavit of Electronic Neighborhood Meetings Last Updated: March 25, 2020  

Noise & Hours of Construction: Non-Emergency Police 919-362-8661 
Noise from tree removal, grading, excavating, paving, and building structures is a routine part of the 
construction process. The Town generally limits construction hours from 7:00 a.m. to 8:30 p.m. so that there 
are quiet times even during the construction process. Note that construction outside of these hours is 
allowed with special permission from the Town when it makes more sense to have the construction occur at 
night, often to avoid traffic issues. In addition, the Town limits hours of blasting rock to Monday through 
Friday from 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. Report violations of construction hours and other noise complaints to the 
Non-Emergency Police phone number at 919-362-8661. 
Construction Traffic: James Misciagno 919-372-7470 
Construction truck traffic will be heavy throughout the development process, including but not limited to 
removal of trees from site, loads of dirt coming in and/or out of the site, construction materials such as brick 
and wood brought to the site, asphalt and concrete trucks come in to pave, etc. The Town requires a 
construction entrance that is graveled to try to prevent as much dirt from leaving the site as possible. If dirt 
does get into the road, the Town can require they clean the street (see �Dirt in the Road� below).  
Road Damage & Traffic Control: Water Resources � Infrastructure Inspections 919-362-8166 
There can be issues with roadway damage, roadway improvements, and traffic control. Potholes, rutting, 
inadequate lanes/signing/striping, poor traffic control, blocked sidewalks/paths are all common issues that should 
be reported to Water Resources � Infrastructure Inspections at 919-249-3427. The Town will get NCDOT involved 
if needed. 
Parking Violations: Non-Emergency Police 919-362-8661 
Unless a neighbor gives permission, there should be no construction parking in neighbors� driveways or on their 
property. Note that parking in the right-of-way is allowed, but Town regulations prohibit parking within 15 feet of 
driveways so as not to block sight triangles. Trespassing and parking complaints should be reported to the Non-
Emergency Police phone number at 919-362-8661. 
Dirt in the Road: James Misciagno 919-372-7470 
Sediment (dirt) and mud gets into the existing roads due to rain events and/or vehicle traffic. These incidents 
should be reported to James Misciagno. He will coordinate the cleaning of the roadways with the developer. 
Dirt on Properties or in Streams: James Misciagno 919-372-7470 
 Danny Smith Danny.Smith@ncdenr.gov 
Sediment (dirt) can leave the site and get onto adjacent properties or into streams and stream buffers; it is typically 
transported off-site by rain events. These incidents should be reported to James Misciagno at 919-372-7470 so 
that he can coordinate the appropriate repairs with the developer. Impacts to the streams and stream buffers 
should also be reported to Danny Smith (danny.smith@ncdenr.gov) with the State. 
Dust: James Misciagno 919-372-7470 
During dry weather dust often becomes a problem blowing into existing neighborhoods or roadways. These 
incidents should be reported to James Misciagno at 919-372-7470 so that he can coordinate the use of water 
trucks onsite with the grading contractor to help control the dust. 
Trash: James Misciagno 919-372-7470 
Excessive garbage and construction debris can blow around on a site or even off of the site. These incidents should 
be reported to James Misciagno at 919-372-7470. He will coordinate the cleanup and trash collection with the 
developer/home builder. 
Temporary Sediment Basins: James Misciagno 919-372-7470 
Temporary sediment basins during construction (prior to the conversion to the final stormwater pond) are often 
quite unattractive. Concerns should be reported to James Misciagno at 919-372-7470 so that he can coordinate 
the cleaning and/or mowing of the slopes and bottom of the pond with the developer. 
Stormwater Control Measures: Jessica Bolin 919-249-3537 
Post-construction concerns related to Stormwater Control Measures (typically a stormwater pond) such as 
conversion and long-term maintenance should be reported to Mike Deaton at 919-249-3413.  
Electric Utility Installation: Rodney Smith 919-249-3342 
Concerns with electric utility installation can be addressed by the Apex Electric Utilities Department. Contact 
Rodney Smith at 919-249-3342. 

- Page 727 -



NEIGHBORHOOD MEETING SIGN-IN SHEET
website or disclosed to third parties.

Page 8 of 10 Neighborhood Meeting Instruction Packet & Affidavit  Last Updated: June 21, 2021  

Meeting Address:   _______________________________________________________________
Date of meeting:  ______________________________ Time of meeting:  ____________________________

Property Owner(s) name(s):  _________________________________________________________
Applicant(s):  ___________________________________________________________________

Please print your name below, state your address and/or affiliation with a neighborhood group, and provide your phone number and email address. 
Providing your name below does not represent support or opposition to the project; it is for documentation purposes only. For virtual meetings, applicants 
must include all known participants and request the information below. 

NAME/ORGANIZATION ADDRESS PHONE # EMAIL 
SEND PLANS 
& UPDATES 

1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

6. 

7. 

8. 

9. 

10. 

11. 

12. 

13. 

14. 

Use additional sheets, if necessary. 
- Page 728 -



 

  

Chapel Ridge PUD 
Neighborhood Meeting Sign-In Sheet 

February 16, 2022 
 

Mike Bishop 
Rita Boykin 
Sara Grover 
James Faulkner 
Melinda Busi 
Jim Serino 
Nancy Corey 
Prakash Patel 
Mike Mohan 
Michael Merker 
Carrie Cox 
Kathi Carlson 
Jason Buehring 
Scott Kipp 
David Prestrud 
Shree Gopalprabhu LLC 
Russ Overton  
Cat Mohan 
Richard Biseli 
Charles Pope 
 
*Contact information was received but has been redacted for filing 
 

- Page 729 -



Page 9 of 10 Neighborhood Meeting Instruction Packet & Affidavit  Last Updated: June 21, 2021  

SUMMARY OF DISCUSSION FROM THE NEIGHBORHOOD MEETING 
or disclosed to third parties. 

Property Owner(s) name(s): _____________________________________________________
Applicant(s):  ______________________________________________________________
Contact information (email/phone):   _______________________________________________
Meeting Address:  ___________________________________________________________
Date of meeting:  __________________________ Time of meeting:  ____________________________

Please summarize the questions/comments and your responses from the Neighborhood Meeting or 
emails/phone calls received in the spaces below (attach additional sheets, if necessary). Please state if/how the 
project has been modified in response to any concerns. 

no change was deemed warranted. 

Question/Concern #1: 

 Response: 

Question/Concern #2: 

 
 Response: 

 

Question/Concern #3: 

 

 Response: 

 Question/Concern #4:

 

 Response: 

- Page 730 -



PPAB 7761823v1 

Chapel Ridge North PUD 

Summary of Neighborhood Meeting Discussion 

February 16, 2022 

6:00 PM via Zoom 

 

Question 1. What is the expected density? Net and gross if you have it.   

Response: We are currently planning approximately 350 units and an overall density between 

17-20 units an acre depending on our final total acreage.   

Question 2. Could you further explain the PUD designation? Maybe give more background? 

Why PUD. Obviously it’s zoning adjacent to Beaver Creek. What real flexibility does that give 

you? Or what are Apex’s from a PUD zoning as opposed to something more traditional? And a 

follow up, how does that fit into Apex’s land use plans?    

Response:  Normally when you go for rezoning request, you’re asking for a change from the 

base district, so you could be asking for a change from low density residential to high density 

residential. So those standards for those districts are outlined in the UDO and so what the PUD 

does, it allows you to draft your own ordinance for just this property and the idea is you can 

change certain standards like, provide larger sidewalks or reduce a setback. You can change a lot 

of different things to allow kind of a unique site design. So, part of the reason we went that route, 

was because it allows us flexibility as to where to locate buildings, driveways, RCA areas, which 

we will comply with, which won’t be any deviation we don’t think anyway. So what the Town 

looks for when you do a PUD, is in exchange for those separate standards, they look for a 

development that’s higher quality. They look for things like architectural commitments, and 

conditions in that text that ensure that the Town and the neighbors will get a high quality 

development in that location. It also adds a lot of conditions and certainty at this stage that you 

don’t see in a regular re-zoning request.   

Question 3. I’m at 1213 Chapel Ridge Road, and I just want to make it clear that I don’t want to 

be the “donut hole” in the center of the re-zoning, nor does the town want a donut hole where the 

property and the town knows So currently my property is for sale for current market value ….. 

Response: Reaching out in next week to better understand what your goals are.  

Question 4: It’s my understanding that the Toll brothers was denied a permit at the beginning of 

the neighborhood due to [not] enough resources for school and education purposes, so can you 

explain what you’re doing to alleviate those concerns that  the Town posed the Toll Brothers. 

Response: We don’t have a definitive answer on schools right now, but we are aware of the 

school capacity situation in Apex and we’re in the process of doing some research as to what 

schools in the neighborhood are capped, what schools are under construction, are planned over 

the next several years, and how those future opening and districting will align with our project. 

We have had some early discussions as a team about that. We’ve reached out to Wake County 

Public Schools, and so it’s an ongoing conversation.  

Question 5: I assume as part of the traffic studies as well, for what you’re proposing it may 

include a light at Chapel Ridge Road and Old Chapel Road but again I assume you’re not quite 

far enough along to reach those discussion topics.  

- Page 731 -



PPAB 7761823v1 2 

Response: We don’t anticipate there will be a light required but we are in the process now of 

putting together the traffic impact analysis  which will be finished by the time we file. So once 

we’re done with that, we will submit it to the Town and the Town’s traffic engineers… well first, 

when you file a TIA you meet with the Town’s engineers and agree on the scoping of the study 

and what your development will look like which will trigger the traffic numbers in the study. So 

once we file the TIA the Town will review it and their traffic engineers will recommend 

mitigation efforts or improvements required based on the impact of the traffic impact analysis. 

Question 6: Is the Church property going to connect to the proposed Northern access to your 

development or is it going to have a separate driveway?  

Response: Right now the plan is for the church to have its own driveway.  We have thought 

about it and have reviewed the plans.  First, the Church is well ahead of our planning process and 

they’re moving forward and the last thing we want to do is and the last thing they wanted us to 

do is derail their process. That became difficult. Second, as you all know there are very strict 

requirements for RCA areas and greenspace,  and so we would struggle to fit a roadway 

anywhere on their site that would impact their greenspace requitement. In the end it made more 

sense to route the road to the North across the space that is being used as a pump station pull out 

drainage pond for the shopping center and that doesn’t impact the church or their plans 

whatsoever.  

Question 7: I have a couple of questions on the site plan/layout. The first Question: you have the 

color that runs over my property line. Could you explain a little about that?  

Response: This color is actually my way of showing the steam buffer. Not a plan or anything, 

just trying to identify the buffers.  

Question 8: have a concern about that because that site map that you’re showing everybody, 

unless you can expand it, the site plan that was given to us, the Southwest of building 3, there is 

an existing stream on that property  so if  you develop that property what’s going to happen to 

that stream in terms of pushing it on to people’s property to the south?   

Response: I can clarify a little on this one. Early on in this process we downloaded GIS data 

before we could get survey teams and environmental consultants out to the site. And so that line 

came from GIS data but we have since had natural resource consultants go out and evaluate the 

environmental  features on this site and the stream buffer that has been determined kind of ends 

about in the middle of that southern parcel where that green line is going through and does not 

extend. So it’s even further west than the ..and down of that far south parcel above that buffer 

and everything to the right of that has been determined non-jurisdictional. Which The town of 

Apex , the natural resource consultants are coordinating with them to confirm their initial 

determination but we do not plan to impact any stream buffers. 

Question 9: that leads me into my second question. And thank you for answering that, is on the 

west side are you keeping that open, I think you called it a park area and all that, there is  a large 

portion of that that is deemed wetlands,  okay. I believe it’s up and to the left. Are you planning 

on petitioning to convert any of those wetland at any point in the future. And secondly, no matter 

what, if you do building #3, are you planning on doing an environmental impact study?  

- Page 732 -



PPAB 7761823v1 3 

Response: We do not plan to have any wetlands impacted by this project. I believe in the most 

recent determination we received they did not find any jurisdictional wetlands out in that area. 

And that will still go through coordination through the town and confirmation with Town staff.  

But the only environmental features determined on this site  by our consultant are the stream 

along the far western property boundary kind of parallel to beaver creek road and then that 

portion of the southern stream up until about the middle of that southern parcel.  

Follow up: ok did I hear that right? You checked and you said it wasn’t wetlands?  

Response: Yes, that’s correct. We’ve had a professional environmental consultant evaluate that 

area.  

Question 10: Russ Overton: Mike asked a question about the traffic study and the signal, but I 

was wondering about the, at the appropriate time, if it was possible to get a copy of the traffic 

study just to see what the assumptions are, how much traffic this is actually going to out on 

Chapel Ridge Road itself, not necessarily a question about a signal or not, just traffic in general. 

Response: We will actually file that as part of our application. So it will be publicly available.    

Question 11: Ok and number of units are one thing, do you have an idea of breakdown of units;   

if its 1 bedroom, 2 bedroom, 3 bedroom and potentially with that how many people that might 

end up bringing and also then how many parking spaces would then be required?  

Response: Obviously Russ, it’s a bit in flux as you could imagine, but we’re looking at a pretty 

even mix, about 50/50 or 45/55 between 1’s and 2-3s. that’s the current plan. I just pulled it up 

real quick. It looks like we’re 45/45/10. So 45% one bedroom, 45% 2, and 3 bedroom 10%. The 

average size for the units is under 1,000 square feet, 950 across the buildings.  We are looking at 

all surface parking if you can see on this plan, nothing structured and a ratio that will be 1.5 

maybe even under that. We will be refining the parking as we refine the bedroom count mix. We 

like to make sure generally in all developments we do that you have about one parking space per 

bedroom. So it works out somewhere about that 1.5 a little less.  

Question 12: Are you going with the Apex standard parking or are you asking for any special 

reductions? Does the PUD allow for any reductions as a special condition or anything?  

Response: The PUD does allow for it,  but you know we went in to our initial meeting with the 

Town and what you see I believe meets the UDO standard, which I think is 1.5 if I remember 

correctly. But the Town did mention they have a lot of parking lot landscaping requirements that 

actually exceed what you see here, so that may reduce a couple of spaces. So we’re going to be 

right around what’s required maybe a couple spaces less, we don’t know for sure yet.  

Question 13: I was going to ask you about storm water. I know it’s a preliminary concept plan, 

but is it under the parking? Have you contemplated that yet? How you might treat stormwater? 

Response: We’re planning on the majority of the treatment to be through surface treatment, 

through most likely a wet pond, essentially a bio retention area but more of your typical surface 

pond treatment as opposed to large underground vaults.  

Question 14: There’s like a curve line, it’s in the middle, it’s probably I’m guessing where the 

cul-de-sac is, yes right there, So it’s a curve and it’s a collector and Matthew I was asking you 

- Page 733 -



PPAB 7761823v1 4 

it’s a collector by Apex standards coming out of Hempstead, so the rest of it’s a DOT road, are 

you contemplating some abandonment by DOT, I’m guessing that might be an abandoned right 

of way that you’d be taking advantage of because you’re re-aligning  the road and then would 

that become a private street, an Apex street, how are you dealing with the DOT situation with the 

current status of the road?  

Response: We talked to the Town transportation stuff about this and they are open to all of 

Chapel Ridge being a Town maintained road but we haven’t settled on that yet. The majority of 

the extension would be public Right of way, whether that’s DOT or that’s the Town of Apex. 

Right here, you can see that line, shaded in the blue area here, north of that area shaded in blue is 

the Beaver Creek Commons Property. So what we’re going to acquire from them is an easement 

over this portion and so for that reason that portion of the road is most likely going to eb a 

private drive. What that will look like practically we think, is that will execute a public access 

easement to the Town so that it will function just like a public right of way, but be maintained by 

the property owner.  

This curve continues there so you can see think pink on the screen and the property line is 

actually more about right here and so this is intended to have that right of way go to the Town or 

to NC DOT, and regardless of how it ends up working out, it would be public right of way of 

some sort from that pink line I’m drawing back down to the existing right of way. So that swath 

would be right of way.    And as Matthew said this (references blue portion) is a little more 

complicated and we’re working with the Town in terms of the best way, the intention is that it’s 

public access no matter what. But what form legally it takes, is still TBD.  

Question 15: I have a very minute question that probably pertains alone to my property, but in 

the building 2 schematics you have there, is there room for negotiation as far as where you have 

that trash dumpster? I would really like to not go out on my back porch and be smelling trash.  

Response: Absolutely we can talked about where that can be. Again, I wouldn’t get too hung up 

on a lot of this but it’s a valid point and we’re happy to talk about that. The Architect and Kody 

are taking notes. We will take a look we’re that can be. The locations of things like dumpsters, 

will actually be determined at the site plan and so that process happens after the zoning. So 

locations of things like this are normally sited at  site plan, but there’s some specific requests like 

the one you just raised, that we can make sure of that before we go to site plan. We can work on 

a condition that would limit how close dumpsters can be placed to your property line.  

Question 16:  Going back to that buffer area to the West of Chapel Ridge Road and the Church 

property, who would be responsible for whatever would be in that buffer zone as far as planting 

and that kind of thing. You drew those pink lines to the West… 

Response: So the intent is that this would all be sidewalks and would be landscaped and would 

all be done by the development team, by us, and that we would maintain those buffer zones as 

we would the rest of the property. Commercially landscaped, commercially mowed, things like 

that.  

Question 17: One other question, on the south side under the property line, there’s a pond that 

runs through the property line, what is your consideration of that pond. We can talk offline about 

it if you would like, but if you have an answer?  

- Page 734 -



PPAB 7761823v1 5 

Response: We currently don’t have any plans to use the pond but can discuss this further.  

Question 18: My personal feeling, and I’m only speaking for myself,  I have always had a hard 

time with it being maintained by DOT, maintenance whatever, even though it looks great right 

now because they just repaved it, but just to get some consistency rather than it being segmented 

Dot owns that then back to Apex.  

Response: We don’t have strong preferences who maintains it. For example, if you want to have 

Apex maintain all of Chapel Ridge, we can definitely include you in those discussions, might 

make them more likely to take over the street 

Question 19: What will be discussed at EAB tomorrow night? Can you give us details? Are you 

asking them for anything? Proposing something? What do they look for what do they do?  Can 

you clue us into an EAB meeting in Apex? 

Response: The EAB is the Environmental Advisory Board and it’s kind of like, a sub-board for 

the a planning commission for the environment. What they’ll do, we’ve submitted a request to 

them saying you know, we’ve filed this zoning request, here are our initial plans, and they will 

provide recommendations to us that will provide a certain number of electric vehicle charging 

stations.  They request things like signs that demarcate wetlands, or buffers, solar power.  So the 

initial meeting is going for them to provide recommendations to us as to what they think  we 

should include in our re-zoning application. They’re a little unique, they are the only jurisdiction 

that has this that I know of.  

Question 20:  Regardless of the traffic study, we’re actually living here in this subdivision and 

have noticed a ridiculous amount of traffic that has come from that Hempstead community, so 

whether you take over the whole road, or just that small portion, I’d like to strongly encourage 

the use of speedbumps through there. People are unfortunately using it as  a cut through to get to 

other areas of Apex. I normally take walks,   and I’m constantly wondering if I’m going to be hit 

because people are not driving 25 mph through there. So I would like to strongly suggest your 

consideration of that.  

Response: We can explore traffic calming measures but Town transportation staff and NCDOT 

are normally pretty strict when it comes to traffic calming measures.   

Question 21:  I have several things, but let me start of by saying (address given) and my husband 

and I along with our neighbors are opposed to this, strongly. I just want to go ahead and get that 

out front. I think everyone else probably knows that. First, I noticed at the beginning of the 

introduction, you showed the overview of everything and you pointed out Beaver Creek, you 

pointed out Hempstead, you pointed out these neighbors that want to sell and put apartments 

there,   and noticed, I think you may have pointed out, 540, office park and you did the 100 

townhomes that are supposed to be possibly developed here. You did not mention the 

homeowners who are single family homes,  who want to stay here. I just thought that was sort of 

obvious. You talk about everyone else here in the neighborhood but those of us, some of us, 

living here for over 30 years.  

Response: There was no nefarious intent there. You all live there  

- Page 735 -



PPAB 7761823v1 6 

Question 22: I’m sure there wasn’t but you talked about everyone else…but anyway.. I’m going 

to continue from there, okay? You were going to out forward to the Town of Apex, requesting a 

rezoning  from rural residential, even though the 2045 plan says medium density, to the PUD. 

Apparently, you are not submitting your own land use map amendment to Apex, you are 

requesting a PUD – CZ. All that is, is just going around and changing that property from medium 

to high density. That’s all it is. Instead of going in and being straight forward about it and trying 

to see if you can get it re-zoned …anyway…you know what I’m talking about. It just doesn’t 

seem quite right. I know that’s the way things are done.  

Response: We are not actually trying to get around anything, that’s actually a change in the law 

recently. You know, before, I think it was last year, we you submitted a rezoning request that 

was different than the future land use map, you also submitted a future land use map amendment 

request. And so now, 160D, which is the new statute that governs development and 

municipalities, when  you re-zone properties and the proposed use is different than the land use 

map, the land use map is automatically amended. So even if we filed a future land use map 

amendment, the Town wouldn’t review it. You know, the Town did that in another case, and the 

said, you know it happens automatically now, we don’t accept these with re-zonings.  

Question 23: You have an area on Barnside lane and that area is approximately a little over 21 

acres. And you’re dealing with a little over 19. They have gone to the Town of Apex, and first of 

all I think they were request 116 townhomes. That did not pass by the Town council, because of 

schooling and I think a few other issues. You on the other hand, are looking at little over 19 acres 

and are proposing, now well was 344, now I think its 350 approximately on just about the same 

acreage. I mean that’s going from 4 plus units an acre down her on the Barnside and you’re 

proposing 17-19 units per acre. That’s just the extreme.   I mean what they’re proposing at 

Chapel Ridge Townes is within the medium density, the lower part because medium density for 

residential is 3-7 units per acre. Why are you coming up with this many? Is it because you’re 

having to pay that much more for the property than they have?  I mean when you’re talking 

about putting 4 story apartment buildings next to single story family homes, it’s just…abhorrent. 

It’s about the only word I can think of right now. … I can’t understand why one developer is 

working at 100 units and you’re working at 350 on pretty much the same acreage. But, okay, 

after that, the other thing I want to talk is let’s see.. you were talking about traffic. The road 

coming through here. Well, if you think  this is such an ideal situation to the extend Chapel 

Ridge Road out behind a shopping center, coming in and out at the back of the shopping center 

then why don’t you think about putting a cul de sac right there before your apartment buildings 

start.  And that way you’ll have that one entrance and exit. They can also use Hempstead, unless, 

because you want to put in 350 units you have to have 3 exits, is that why?  

Response: No, it’s not the density. The Town really dis-favors cul de sacs, you know they 

haven’t said this, but my experience in the past they probably wouldn’t approve a cul de sac 

here. They like connectivity and different access points to help with traffic circulation. But that’s 

what this plan does. We differ in that I understand.  

Question 24: I understand completely and it makes sense not to put one there, but I do not see 

350 units/people or more,  wanting to go in an and out of that back entrance from the back of the 

shopping center. They’re going to come in off Chapel Ridge Road. I mean Olive Chapel and it's 

just going to add to that I mean we have what we have we're dealing with now Hempstead is 193 

townhomes I believe. They now want to put 1 00 at the entrance. And you're talking 3 50 more 

individuals or families I mean that traffic situation is going to be again just a poor just abhorrent. 

- Page 736 -



PPAB 7761823v1 7 

Absolutely it’s going to be a nightmare. We live here. And you don’t. Ok you got all this green 

and it might not be wetlands, but it's wet back there which if you've had anyone traipsing back 

through there and we have seen surveyors going back there. 

They know it's wet. That's an awful lot of land that's not cannot be used I mean you can say it's 

part of the RCA and you’re going to use it for screen buffers and stuff like that and storm 

retention. That's a lot of acreage that's not being utilized and then you have a Sherry property 

which is right beside my property and also the Brea’s and no …..  You're going to jut out 

between three homes I mean that’s just when you look at that it just makes no sense whatsoever. 

 

Response: The Sherry property actually you know they're right now they're no buildings or 

developments proposed for that lot. So the site, that property is included in the site, but there are 

no buildings there so it won’t jut out at all by your property. It will stop along the edge of the 

parking lot right there.  

 

Question 25: but what should happen in 10 years? You own the property what’s to say it's not 

going to be developed later on? 

 

Response: If we include it as part of our plan,  and show it as open space or RCA area, then it 

won’t be.  If we cut it off and sold it, it could be re-developed. But it’s a small enough lot that it 

would be tough to support really a separate development on just that parcel because it’s not its 

own space. 

 

Question 26: why even have their why even have that lot in that home in with everything else?  I 

know part of it because I know little bit of what’s been going on we have a bunch of neighbors 

rather than sell their houses individually, decide to get together because they thought they could 

get more money for their property and the Sherry’s said OK let's get in and join it and it just….. I 

don't know anyway that's not real please pleasant either. Then there's the issue with the lighting. 

You’ve got lighting at all on these apartments lights I'm sure on the buildings lights in the 

parking lot next to single-family homes that's not good. We’ve had issues with the office park 

down here. It took nine months to get that straight and it still an awful lot of lights with three 

more buildings to. So there’s a concern. I mean we’re talking concern with trash cans, lighting is 

another concern. Lighting is right next to those people and it's just…. 

It's a mess I mean you look at something you're going in and putting apartments. 

And I want to say 19 acres you're not even utilizing 19 acres and then they're just right next to 

single-family homes whether it’s the Bishops whether for the  Coreys it ….it just...It does not 

look like it's been well thought out and well planned .. um…. I'm trying to think there's anything 

else I wanted to ask because I've got notes here and there.  It is not wanted. When you take a 

look at the chapel the Old  Chapel Ridge land map, the original development, which was 22 lots 

and you look at that now and it wants to be chopped up into six different projects you might say 

it's not really projects, but you're talking flex 540,  you're talking the office Park, you’re talking a 

possible 100 and townhomes at the south end,  you're talking about those people who have 

single-family homes who wish to stay here who do not wish to sell out to developers you have 

this, your group which wants to put 350 high-rise apartments right next to us. 

 

Question 27: Can I follow up on her…. Rita sparked  some questions and I want to get a couple 

of them to on the cul-de-sac issue and Matthew I know you said with Apex likes but I might 

would point to …  I think it's the village at Westford apartments.  This was brought up 

- Page 737 -



PPAB 7761823v1 8 

previously. The developer actually built a cul de sac in that and that it's kind of stubbed my 

opinion from a traffic engineer prospective, which I am one they should've connected through 

but they didn't for some reason so it's really hard to understand when Apex says things like that 

why one subdivision  gets something in our subdivision get something different. 

 

Response: That’s fair. What I was referencing is there’s language in the PUD section in the 

UDO that actually says that cul-de-sacs should be avoided. I think what people do, is reference 

the sentence after that that says, except for some extenuating circumstances and they probably 

cited those. 

 

Question 28: I'm not trying to call you out with me in particular have pointed some of these 

inconsistencies out to Apex and we seem to always be at the… so I get Rita’s frustration and a 

lot of frustration in the neighborhood,  because we seem to get the deal and I think I mentioned it 

feels like a death by 1 000 cuts sometimes… well if I can qualify something you said on the 

Sherry property, you said that property could be included in the CRA? I wanted to…  is it 

included as a CRA or not. 

 

Response: Let me be more clear on what we’re evaluating there, We're trying to decide whether 

we're going to include that lot in our re-zoning request in this development at all. And so if we 

include it, I think, and Kody can correct me if I’m wrong, most of it will be RCA and if we don't 

include it then it would stay a single-family home and it wouldn’t be part of our re-zoning 

request.  

 

Question 29: The medium density thing is hard to swallow …a sub-committee of the Town 

Council invited us to a meeting. Some of the neighbors that wanted to sell, some that don’t want 

to sell, it was a mixed bag from the neighborhood I guess,  we all went they were asking us our 

opinion I guess. We all got to speak. Well, the ones that wanted to speak, because they were 

changing the plan at the time and ultimately they concluded through a no vote not to change the 

plan, so I think it's hard to understand you know where Apex is at regardless of what the law 

allows or doesn't allow it's like there's an open dialogue about keeping the Land use plan at 

medium density despite what some people may have wanted to change it and they kept it that 

way so I think that's that again something maybe for us talk to Apex about to get an 

understanding. For myself, I just want to understand what the neighborhood should or wants to 

become. And I’ll make this my last comment; as I feel like Rita. I’m not supportive of this either. 

 

Question 30: My wife and I are at 1313 Chapel Ridge Rd. which is next-door to Russ across the 

street from Rita and Melinda and I just wanted to say amen to everything to Rita said. I want it to 

be understood that she pretty much speaks for all of us who plan to stay here, in her concerns and 

her frustration with the way things have gone here in in particular what's being proposed here so 

just want to put that on the table thanks. 

 

 

 

 

 

- Page 738 -



- Page 739 -



- Page 740 -



- Page 741 -



CLIENT NAME
PROJECT TITLE

DRAFT | DATE

CHAPEL RIDGE NORTH
PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT

1225 CHAPEL RIDGE RD
APEX, NORTH CAROLINA | PD PLAN

REZONING CASE #22CZ07

- Page 742 -



CHAPEL RIDGE NORTH

Submittal Dates
First Submittal:   March 1, 2022
Second Submittal:  April 8, 2022
Third Submittal:  May 13, 2022
Fourth Submittal:  June 10, 2022
Fifth Submittal:  June 28, 2022
Sixth Submittal:  July 6, 2022

Developer
High Street Residential
555 Fayetteville Street, Suite 300
Raleigh, NC 27601

Planner, Engineer, Landscape Architect, Surveyor
McAdams
2905 Meridian Parkway
Durham NC 27113

Attorney
Parker Poe
301 Fayetteville St, Suite 1400
Raleigh, NC 27601

Planned Unit Development
Prepared for Town of Apex, North Carolina

- Page 743 -



TABLE OF CONTENTS
1.  VICINITY MAP

2.  PROJECT DATA

3.  PURPOSE STATEMENT

4.  PERMITTED USES

5. AFFORDABLE HOUSING

6.  DESIGN CONTROLS

7.  ARCHITECTURAL STANDARDS

8.  PARKING AND LOADING

9.  SIGNAGE

10.  LANDSCAPING

11.  NATURAL RESOURCE AND ENVIRONMENTAL DATA

12.  STORMWATER MANAGEMENT

13.  PARKS AND RECREATION

14.  PUBLIC FACILITIES

15.  PHASING PLAN

16.  CONSISTENCY WITH LAND USE PLAN

17.  COMPLIANCE WITH UDO

18.  TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENTS

19.  REPRESENTATIVE BUILDING ELEVATIONS

- Page 744 -



64 64

K
e

ll
y

R
d M o r r i s A c r e s R d

540

K
e

ll
y

R
d

O l i v e C h a p e l R d

C
h

a
p

e
l

R
i d

g
e

R
d

V i s
i o

n
D

r

Disclaimer
iMaps makes every effort to produce and publish
the most current and accurate information possible.
However, the maps are produced for information purposes,
and are NOT surveys. No warranties, expressed or implied
,are provided for the data therein, its use,or its interpretation.

Vicinity

±
1 inch equals 800 feet

400 1600 ft8000

Property

Streets

VICINITY MAP

64 64

K
e

ll
y

R
d M o r r i s A c r e s R d

540

K
e

ll
y

R
d

O l i v e C h a p e l R d

C
h

a
p

e
l

R
i d

g
e

R
d

V i s
i o

n
D

r

Disclaimer
iMaps makes every effort to produce and publish
the most current and accurate information possible.
However, the maps are produced for information purposes,
and are NOT surveys. No warranties, expressed or implied
,are provided for the data therein, its use,or its interpretation.

Vicinity

±
1 inch equals 800 feet

400 1600 ft8000

Property

Streets4
- Page 745 -



PROJECT DATA

Name of Project:     Chapel Ridge North

Applicant/Developer:    High Street Residential
       555 Fayetteville Street, Suite 300
       Raleigh, NC 27601
       202-337-1025

Prepared By:      McAdams 
       2905 Meridian Parkway
       Durham, NC 27713
       919-361-5000

Current Zoning Designation:   RR

Proposed Zoning Designation:   PUD-CZ

Current 2045 Land Use Map Designation:  Medium Density Residential

Proposed 2045 Land Use Map Designation: High Density Residential

Size of Project:      Approximately 20.62 acres   
 

Property Identification Numbers:   0732352538, 0732343920, 0732249869,   
       0732354594, 0732347912, 0732256180,  
       0732340602 (the "Property")

CHAPEL RIDGE NORTH > PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT

5
- Page 746 -



PURPOSE STATEMENT
This document and the accompanying concept plan (the “Concept Plan”) (collectively, the “PUD”) 
are provided pursuant to the Town of Apex Unified Development Ordinance (“UDO”) Planned Unit 
Development Provisions.  Chapel Ridge North will be a fully amenitized apartment community 
with interior corridors, an elevator, fitness centers, walking paths, and natural areas;  it will be 
conveniently located near future transit and existing employment centers, restaurants, and retail. 
The Concept Plan offers an efficient site layout, with significant open space preserved in a unified 
area and appropriate buffers between adjacent uses.   Required Resource Conservation Areas 
are set aside throughout the 20.62-acre property. This PUD is consistent with the Town’s goal to 
provide site-specific, high-quality neighborhoods that exhibit natural feature preservation and 
compatibility with surrounding land uses. This development will comply with the PUD Development 
Parameters outlined in UDO §2.3.4.F.1.a.i-vii.  This PUD meets or exceeds the Development 
Parameters as follows:

• The uses to be developed in the PD Plan for the PUD-CZ are those uses permitted in Section 
4.2.2, Use Table. 

 » The uses permitted within the Chapel Ridge North PUD are permitted per §4.2.2 of the 
Town of Apex UDO. 

• The uses proposed in the PD Plan for the PUD-CZ can be entirely residential, entirely non-
residential, or a mix of residential and non-residential uses, provided a minimum percentage of 
the non-residential land area is included in certain mixed-use areas as specified on the 2045 
Land Use Map. The location of uses proposed by the PUD-CZ must be shown on the PD Plan 
with a maximum density for each type of residential use and a maximum square footage for 
each type of non-residential use. 

 » Chapel Ridge North is an entirely residential development including a maximum of 370 
multi-family units.

• The dimensional standards in §5.1.3 Table of Intensity and Dimensional Standards, Planned 
Development Districts, may be varied in the PD Plan for PUD-CZ. The PUD-CZ shall demonstrate 
compliance with all other dimensional standards of the UDO, North Carolina Building Code, and 
North Carolina Fire Code. 

 » Any deviations from underlying UDO standards are contained in this PUD.  Otherwise, 
Chapel Ridge North will comply with the base standards of the UDO, North Carolina Building 
Code, and North Carolina Fire Code. 

• The development proposed in the PD Plan for PUD-CZ encourages cluster and compact 
development to the greatest extent possible that is interrelated and linked by pedestrian ways, 
bikeways, and other transportation systems. At a minimum, the PD Plan must show sidewalk 
improvements as required by the Apex Transportation Plan and the Town of Apex Standard 
Specifications and Details, and greenway improvements as required by the Town of Apex Parks, 
Recreation, and Open Space Plan and the Apex Transportation Plan. In addition, sidewalks shall 
be provided on both sides of all streets for single-family detached homes. 

 » Except the small northern portion of Chapel Ridge Road as shown on the Concept Plan, 
five-foot wide public sidewalks will be constructed along both sides of all internal streets 
per UDO standards. Pedestrian improvements along road frontages shall be consistent 

6
- Page 747 -



with the Transportation and Bike Ped System Map Plan. See Walkability section for 
specific details of sidewalk and sidepath locations. To encourage a healthy lifestyle 
and establish a walkable community, pedestrian greenways will also be incorporated 
throughout the development connecting residential areas to open space amenities and 
RCA areas. In addition, the Property is located within a mile of connections to the Beaver 
Creek Greenway which may be accessed from the Pearson Farms neighborhood south of 
Chapel Ridge North. 

• The design of development in the PD Plan for the PUD-CZ results in land use patterns that 
promote and expand opportunities for walkability, connectivity, public transportation, and an 
efficient network of streets. Cul-de-sacs shall be avoided unless the design of the subdivision 
and the existing proposed or proposed street system in the surrounding area indicated that a 
through street is not essential in the location of the proposed cul-de-sacs, or where sensitive 
environmental features such as streams, floodplains, or wetlands would be substantially 
disturbed by making road connections. 

 » Chapel Ridge North will create a walkable residential community connected by sidewalks,  
side paths, tree-lined streets, and greenways. Cul-de-sacs will be avoided to enhance the 
connectivity of the development.  The northern extension of Chapel Ridge Road will allow 
residents to walk to the future transit stop on Beaver Creek Commons Drive identified in the 
Town of Apex Comprehensive Transportation Plan (the “Transportation Plan”).  Additionally, 
residents will be able to walk and/or bike to existing shops, restaurants, and retail at the 
Beaver Creek Crossings shopping center. 

• The development proposed in the PD Plan for PUD-CZ is compatible with the character of 
surrounding land uses and maintains and enhances the value of surrounding properties. 

 » The proposed development is compatible with the character of surrounding land uses 
and will enhance property values in the area. To the north of the Property is Beaver Creek 
Crossings, an existing shopping center with a mix of commercial uses.  Adjacent to the east 
are the Hempstead Townhomes, a dense townhome community.  The proposed apartment 
community will effectuate a transition down in intensity from the more intense commercial 
uses to the north to lower density single-family detached homes to the south.  Appropriate 
buffering will be provided between Chapel Ridge North and existing single-family homes 
to the south.

• The development proposed in the PD Plan for the PUD-CZ has architectural and design standards 
that are exceptional and provide a higher quality than routine developments. All residential uses 
proposed in a PD Plan for PUD-CZ shall provide architectural elevations representative of the 
residential structures to be built to ensure the Standards of this Section are met. 

 » Multi-family buildings will be of high-quality construction. Architectural controls and 
sample elevations illustrating the high-quality appearance of buildings are included in this 
PUD.

All site-specific standards and conditions of this PUD shall be consistent with all Conditional 
Zoning (CZ) District standards set forth in the UDO Section 2.3.3, Conditional Zoning Districts. 

CHAPEL RIDGE NORTH > PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT

7
- Page 748 -



PERMITTED USES
The Property may be used for, and only for, the uses listed immediately below. The permitted uses 
are subject to the limitations and regulations stated in the UDO and any additional limitations or 
regulations of this PUD. 

Permitted uses include:

Residential
Multi-family or apartment

Condominiums

Utilities
Utility, minor

Recreational Uses

Greenway

Park, Active

Park, Passive

Recreation Facility, private

AFFORDABLE HOUSING
A minimum of  three and a half percent (3.5%) of the total residential units (as shown on the first site plan 
submittal) shall be designated as restricted low-income affordable housing rental units (the “Affordable 
Units”) for a minimum affordability period of ten (10) years starting from the date of issuance of the 
first residential Certificate of Occupancy (the “Affordable Restriction Period”). The Affordable Units shall 
be occupied by low-income households earning no more than sixty percent (60%) of the Raleigh, NC 
Metropolitan Statistical Area (MSA) Area Median Income (AMI), adjusted for family size, as most recently 
published by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD).  The Affordable Units 
shall be one-bedroom units and rented to low-income households during the Affordable Restriction 
Period at maximum rent limits per bedroom size, no greater than  sixty percent (60%) of the Raleigh, 
NC Area Median Income (“AMI”) as most recently published by HUD and stipulated by the most recently 
published North Carolina Housing Finance Agency (NCHFA) Low-Income Housing Tax Credit (LIHTC) 
Multifamily Tax Subsidy Program (MTSP) income and rent limits for the Wake County Metropolitan Area. 
If the Affordable Units calculation results in a fraction between 0.00 and 0.49, the number of Affordable 
Units shall be rounded down to the nearest whole number. If the Affordable Units calculation results in 
a fraction between 0.50 and 0.99, the number of Affordable Units shall be rounded up to the nearest 
whole number. Prior to issuance of the first residential Certificate of Occupancy, a restrictive covenant 
between the Town and property owner shall be executed and recorded in the Wake County Registry 
to memorialize the affordable housing terms and conditions. During the Affordable Restriction Period, 
the property owner shall be responsible for performing all property management and administration 
duties to ensure compliance with this affordable housing condition and shall submit annual compliance 
reports to the Town verifying compliance with this affordable housing condition.  Following expiration of 
the Affordable Restriction Period, this affordable housing condition shall expire, and the property owner 
shall be relieved of all obligations set forth in this affordable housing condition, and the Affordable Units 
may freely be marketed and leased  at market-rate rents.   

8
- Page 749 -



DESIGN CONTROLS
Total Project Area:        20.62 acres

• Maximum number of multi-family apartment units:  370

Multi-Family Design Controls

• Maximum Building Height: 55 feet (5 stories)

 » Building facades facing PINs 073243658, 0732340602, and 0732348711 shall be limited to a 
minimum of four stories.

• Minimum Building Setbacks

 » Front:  10 feet

 » Rear:  20 feet

 » Side:  20 feet

 » Alley:  5 feet

 » Corner: 20 feet

 » From buffer or RCA: 10 feet

ARCHITECTURAL STANDARDS
The proposed development offers the following architectural controls to ensure consistency of character 
throughout the development. Conceptual elevation examples are included in Section 19 of this PUD.  
Elevations included are limited examples of multiple style options being considered. Changes to the 
exterior materials, roof, windows, doors, process, trim, etc. are allowable with administrative approval at 
the staff level. Further details shall be provided at the time of Major Site Plan submittal. In an effort to   
reflect the unique nature of the existing neighborhood, the architectural style of the buildings shall be 
classic southern traditional architecture.

Additional features used as focal points or key terminus points shall be located within or around the 
development (i.e. a patio seating area, water feature, pedestrian plaza with benches, planters, public 
art, decorative bicycle parking, or focal feature) in order to meet the Community Amenities requirement 
of the UDO. Other features not mentioned may be considered with administrative staff approval.

CHAPEL RIDGE NORTH > PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT

9
- Page 750 -



Design Guidelines:

1. The project shall use full cutoff LED fixtures that have a maximum color temperature of 3500K for all 
exterior lighting, including, but not limited to, parking lot and building mounted fixtures.

2. The project shall be designed to meet the requirements for one of the following green building 
certifications: LEED, Energy Star, BREEAM, Green Globes, NGBS Green, or GreenGuard. Prior to 
the issuance of building permits, the developer shall hire a third-party consultant to evaluate the 
project and ensure the design conforms with green building certification requirements. Prior to the 
issuance of a certificate of occupancy for a building, the developer shall demonstrate to the Town 
that that building has been certified as a green building by providing a copy of the green building 
certification. 

3. The project shall install at least three (3) pet waste stations across the development locations that 
are publicly accessible, such as adjacent to, but outside of public property and/or public easement(s), 
amenity centers, sidewalks, greenways, or side paths.

Multi-family/Apartments/Condominiums:

1. Vinyl siding is not permitted; however, vinyl windows, decorative elements and trim are permitted.

2. Rear and side elevations of units that have  right-of-way  frontage shall have trim around the 
windows.

3. A minimum of four of the following decorative features shall be used on each building: 

 » Decorative shake

 » Board and batten

 » Decorative porch railing/posts

 » Shutters

 » Decorative/functional air vents on roof or foundation 

 » Recessed windows

 » Decorative windows

 » Decorative brick/stone

 » Decorative gables

 » Decorative cornices

 » Tin/metal roof

4. Garage doors must have windows, decorative details, or carriage-style adornments on them.

5. Siding materials shall be varied in type and/or color on 30% of each façade on each building.

6. Windows must vary in size and/or type.

7. Windows that are not recessed must be trimmed.

8. Solar conduit shall be provided on all buildings to accommodate the future installation of solar 
panels.

10
- Page 751 -



Proposed Residential Materials and Styles

Proposed materials and styles will be of a similar palette to provide consistency of character along with 
visual interest. Exterior materials that may be incorporated into any of the building products include:

• Cementitious lap, board and batten, and/or shake and shingle siding

• Stone or synthetic stone

• Brick

Additional building materials may be included with administrative staff approval. Substitute materials 
shall be allowed by staff as long as they are determined by the Director of Planning and Development 
to be substantially similar.

PARKING AND LOADING
Development shall provide the following minimum parking spaces per dwelling unit based on the 
number of bedrooms:

Bedrooms per unit Minimum ratio

1 or 2 1.3 spaces per dwelling unit

3 1.8 spaces per dwelling unit

A minimum of 5% of the total parking spaces required by the UDO for the project shall be Electric 
Vehicle Charging spaces consistent with the standards of UDO Section 8.3.11. At least 6 bicycle parking 
spaces shall also be provided.

SIGNAGE
All signage for this PUD shall comply with Section 8.7, Signs, of the Town of Apex UDO.

LANDSCAPING
Minimum perimeter and streetscape landscape buffers are as follows (see PUD Plan Sheet C2.00 for 
details):

• 15-ft Type A adjacent to townhomes

• 25-ft Type A adjacent to single-family lots

• 20-ft Type A adjacent to church*

• 20-ft Type A adjacent to retail

• 10-ft Type A adjacent to Chapel Ridge Road**

• 20-ft Type B adjacent to PIN 0732266081 

CHAPEL RIDGE NORTH > PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT

11
- Page 752 -



*A fire access lane shall be permitted to encroach into the first 150 feet of the buffer as measured from 
Chapel Ridge Road west along the shared property line with the church.

**Only required along the public right-of-way fronting the Property. A buffer is not required along 
the public access easement. Developer shall only be responsible for providing the buffer on property 
adjacent to the public right-of-way which is within this rezoning.

The project shall select and install tree, shrub and perennial species with special attention to providing 
diverse and abundant pollinator and bird food sources, including plants that bloom in succession from 
spring to fall.

The project will increase biodiversity in perimeter buffers and open space areas by providing a variety of 
species for the canopy, understory, and shrub levels. Native and adaptive plant species shall be provided 
within these areas to minimize death from disease and to provide increased habitat and food sources 
for insects and animals. A minimum of 70% of the species provided shall be native or a nativar of North 
Carolina. No invasive species shall be permitted. No single species of tree or shrub shall constitute more 
than 20% of the plant material of its type installed on a single development site.

No dumpster shall be located within 50 feet of the northern property line of Lot 12, Chapel Ridge 
Subdivision, as shown in Book of Maps 1986, Page 1627, Wake County Registry.

NATURAL RESOURCES AND ENVIRONMENTAL DATA
River Basins and Watershed Protection Overlay Districts

This project is located within the Cape Fear River Basin. This project site is located within the Primary 
Watershed Protection Overlay District as shown on the Town of Apex Watershed Protection Map. 
Accordingly, this PUD will comply with all built upon area, vegetated conveyances, structural SCMs and 
riparian stream buffer requirements of Section 6.1.7.

Resource Conservation Areas (RCA) - Required and Provided

This PUD will be subject to, and meet the requirements of, Section 8.1.2 of the UDO, Resource 
Conservation Area and Section 2.3.4, Planned Development Districts.

The PUD will provide a minimum of 20% of the gross project area as a Resource Conservation Area (RCA). 
Designated RCA areas will be consistent with the items listed in Section 8.1.2(B)  of the Town's UDO. 
Preserved streams, wetlands, and associated riparian buffers provide the primary RCAs throughout 
the site. Additional RCA areas may include perimeter and streetfront buffers, stormwater management  
areas (as permitted by the UDO), and greenways.

The project shall install a minimum of one sign for each Resource Conservation area. The signage shall 
indicate that the area is RCA and is to be preserved in perpetuity and not disturbed. Signage shall be 
installed in locations that are publicly accessible, such as adjacent to, but outside of public property 
and/or public easement(s), amenity centers, sidewalks, greenways, or side paths.

Six-foot wide private walking trails may be located throughout the development, including RCA areas.
Locations of trails are to be determined at site plan. 

12
- Page 753 -



Floodplain

The project site does not sit within a designated current or future 100-year floodplain as shown on the 
Town of Apex FEMA map and FIRM Panel 3720073200J, dated May 2, 2006.

Tree Canopy

Tree canopy areas in Chapel Ridge North are primarily concentrated around the wetland areas,  stream 
features, and perimeter buffers.

Existing trees greater than 18” in diameter that are removed by site development shall be replaced by 
planting a 1.5” caliper native tree from the Town of Apex Design and Development Manual either on-
site or at an alternative location approved by Town Planning Staff, above and beyond standard UDO 
requirements.

Historic Structures

As confirmed by the North Carolina State Historic Preservation Office there are no historic structures 
present within the project boundary.

Environmental Commitments Summary

The applicant team met with the Apex Environmental Advisory Board on February 17, 2022. Below is a 
summary of the environmental commitments for the Chapel Ridge North development:

• Increased stormwater quantity and quality control measures (see Stormwater Management section 
for details)

• The project shall install at least three (3) pet waste stations across the development in locations that 
are publicly accessible, but outside of public property and/or pubic easement(s), such as adjacent 
to amenity centers, sidewalks, greenways, or side paths. 

• The project shall use full cutoff LED fixtures that have a maximum color temperature of 3500K for all 
exterior lighting, including, but not limited to, parking lot and building mounted fixtures.

• A minimum of 5% of the total parking spaces that the UDO would require for the project shall be 
Electric Vehicle Charging spaces. Final unit mix and amount of required parking shall be determined 
at site plan. The EV charging stations shall comply with the standards set forth in the UDO.

• The project shall select and install tree, shrub and perennial species with special attention to 
providing diverse and abundant pollinator and bird food sources, including plants that bloom in 
succession from spring to fall.

• The project will increase biodiversity in perimeter buffers and open space areas by providing a 
variety of species for the canopy, understory, and shrub levels. Native and adaptive plant species 
shall be provided within these areas to minimize death from disease and to provide increased 
habitat and food sources for insects and animals. A minimum of 70% of the species provided shall 
be native or a nativar of North Carolina. No invasive species shall be permitted. No single species 
of tree or shrub shall constitute more than 20% of the plant material of its type installed on a single 

CHAPEL RIDGE NORTH > PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT

13
- Page 754 -



development site.

• The project shall install signage adjacent to wooded or natural condition Resource Conservation 
area. The signage shall indicate that the area is RCA and is to be preserved in perpetuity and not 
disturbed. Signage shall be installed in locations that are publically accessible, such as adjacent to, 
but outside of public property and/or public easement(s), amenity centers, sidewalks, greenways, 
or side paths.

• The project shall be designed to meet the requirements for one of the following green building 
certifications: LEED, Energy Star, BREEAM, Green Globes, NGBS Green, or GreenGuard. A third-party 
consultant shall be hired to evaluate the project and certify to the Town of Apex that the project 
meets the standards for the certification. The applicant shall forward a copy of the certification 
application to the Town of Apex Planning Department to verify that the application has been 
submitted.

• Solar conduit shall be provided on all multi-family and/or condominium buildings to accommodate 
the future installation of solar panels.

STORMWATER MANAGEMENT
This PUD shall go above the stormwater management requirements for quality and quantity treatment 
outlined in Section 6.1.7 of the UDO such that:

• Post development peak runoff shall not exceed pre-development peak runoff conditions for the 1 
year, 10-year, 25-year, and 24-hour storm events.

• Treatment for the first 1 inch of runoff will provide 85% removal of total suspended solids.

Acceptable stormwater structures shall include detention ponds, constructed wetlands, bio-retention 
areas, or other approved devices consistent with the NC DEQ Stormwater Design Manual and the Town 
of Apex UDO.

PARKS AND RECREATION
This project was reviewed by the Parks, Recreation and Cultural Resources Advisory Commission on 
April 27, 2022 and fee-in-lieu of dedication was recommended. 

Number of Units* Housing Type Fee Per Unit** Total Fees

370 Multi-Family $2,226.05 $823,638.50

Total - - $823,638.50

*Final unit count will be determined at the time of Master Site Plan.

**Fees are based upon approval date and runs with project with exception of the increase in total unit 

14
- Page 755 -



PUBLIC FACILITIES
The proposed PUD shall meet all Public Facilities requirements as set forth in UDO Section 2.3.4(F)(1)
(f) and be designed according to sound engineering standards. Road and utility infrastructure shall be 
as follows:

General Roadway Infrastructure

All proposed roadway infrastructure and right-of-way dedications will be consistent with the Town of 
Apex UDO and Transportation Plan, unless specifically set forth in the PUD Text.

Chapel Ridge Road shall be extended north to connect to Beaver Creek Commons Drive (the “Road 
Extension”) in the approximate location shown on the Concept Plan.  The Road Extension shall be 
constructed to Town of Apex standards and specifications.  At the site plan stage, the portion of the 
Road Extension shown in pink on the Concept Plan and labeled “Public ROW” shall be dedicated to the 
Town as public right-of-way (the “Public ROW Section”).  The portion of the Public ROW Section south 
of the shared property line with PIN 0732366134 shall have a minimum ROW width of 60 feet and be 
constructed to the Minor Collector Street standard.  The portion of the Public ROW Section across PIN 
0732258769 shall have a minimum ROW width of 50 feet.  The portion of the Road Extension shown 
in orange on the Concept Plan and labeled “Private drive with minimum 45’ public access easement” 
(the “Easement Section”) shall be subject to a recorded public access and maintenance agreement 
with a minimum easement width of 45 feet.  The public access and maintenance agreement shall be 
approved by the Planning Director as to form.

Water and Sanitary Sewer

Apartments within the project will be served by Town of Apex for water and sanitary sewer. The utility 
design will be finalized at the time of Construction Drawing and be based on available facilities adjacent 
to the site at that time. The design will meet the current Town of Apex master plans for water and sewer 
and standard specifications.

Water and sewer lines shall be extended for the length of the Property’s frontage along Chapel Ridge 
Road, and they shall always be extended along any and all natural drainage courses/draws that are 
located within the property line boundaries of the proposed development. Sewer shall be extended 
to all adjacent upstream property lines. The portion of the Property fronting Clark Farm Road shall be 
served by the extension of water and sanitary sewer lines from the north, through the internal portion of 
the Property.  At site plan, water and sewer line easements shall be dedicated to facilitate the extension.

CHAPEL RIDGE NORTH > PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT

15
- Page 756 -



Walkability

The following facilities will be provided to contribute to a walkable community within and surrounding 
the Chapel Ridge North development:

• Five-foot wide public sidewalk along the western side of Chapel Ridge Road public right-of-way 
fronting the development.

• Ten-foot wide side path along the eastern and northern side of Chapel Ridge Rd adjacent to land 
that's a part of this rezoning application (as shown on the Concept Plan).

• Five-foot wide sidewalk along the south side of Ackerman Drive fronting the project.

• A crosswalk will be provided from the future sidewalk on the south side of Ackerman Drive to the 
existing sidewalk on the north side of Ackerman Drive.

• Six-foot wide private walking trails throughout the development, locations to be determined at site 
plan.

Transit

The developer shall design, construct and install a bus stop along the west side of Chapel Ridge Road in 
a location mutually agreed to by the developer and the Traffic Engineering Manager.  The bus stop shall 
include an 8 x 30-foot pad, bench, and bike rack.  Construction costs for the bus stop shall not exceed 
a maximum of $25,000 (the “Cost Limit”).  In the event construction costs exceed the Cost Limit, the 
developer may elect to either (a) pay a fee in lieu of $25,000 for the bus stop, or (b) design and construct 
the bus stop despite construction costs exceeding the Cost Limit.  The bus stop shall be shown on the 
overall site plan and designed, approved, and constructed concurrently with the project.  

Other Utilities and Facilities

Electricity will be provided by Apex Electric. Phone, cable, and gas will be provided by the developer and 
shall meet the Town of Apex standards as outlined in the UDO.

Streetscape features may be used to help with establishing a framework for the proposed development. 
These features may include street trees, benches, trash receptacles, and street and/or pedestrian lights 
compatible with their context. 

PHASING PLAN
The development will be completed in multiple phases, which will be determined during site or 
subdivision plan review.

16
- Page 757 -



CONSISTENCY WITH LAND USE PLAN
The proposed development is consistent with Advance Apex 2045: The Apex Comprehensive Plan, 
adopted February 2019.  The 2045 Land Use Map designates the Property as Medium Density Residential.  
Given the high intensity commercial uses to the north, and the existing high density townhome 
community to the east, higher density is appropriate in this location.  Accordingly, this PUD updates the 
FLUM designation to High Density Residential. 

COMPLIANCE WITH UDO
The development standards adopted for this PUD comply with those set forth in the current version of 
the Town’s Unified Development Ordinance (UDO). 

TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENTS
The following transportation improvements are proposed:

• All proposed driveway access and improvements on state-maintained roadways are subject to both 
Apex and NCDOT review and approval.  This includes proposed access to Chapel Ridge Road and 
any modifications to Chapel Ridge Road.

• Chapel Ridge Road shall be extended north to connect to Beaver Creek Commons Drive (the “Road 
Extension”) in the approximate location shown on the Concept Plan.  The Road Extension shall be 
constructed to Town of Apex standards and specifications.  At the site plan stage, the portion of the 
Road Extension shown in pink on the Concept Plan and labeled “Public ROW” shall be dedicated to 
the Town as public right-of-way (the “Public ROW Section”).  The portion of the Public ROW Section 
south of the shared property line with PIN 0732366134 shall have a minimum ROW width of 60 
feet and be constructed to the Minor Collector Street standard.  The portion of the Public ROW 
Section across PIN 0732258769 shall have a minimum ROW width of 50 feet.  The portion of the 
Road Extension shown in orange on the Concept Plan and labeled “Private drive with minimum 45’ 
public access easement” (the “Easement Section”) shall be subject to a recorded public access 
and maintenance agreement with a minimum easement width of 45 feet.  The public access and 
maintenance agreement shall be approved by the Planning Director as to form. 

• The center turn lane on Beaver Creek Commons Drive shall be restriped to provide 75 feet of 
southbound left turn storage and 75 feet of taper at the site driveway.

CHAPEL RIDGE NORTH > PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT

17
- Page 758 -



18
- Page 759 -



REPRESENTATIVE BUILDING ELEVATIONS

SOUTHERN TRADITIONAL CLASSIC STYLE

Elevations are conceptual in nature. 

CHAPEL RIDGE NORTH > PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT

19
- Page 760 -



SOUTHERN / MODERN FARMHOUSE TRANSITIONAL STYLE

Elevations are conceptual in nature. 

20
- Page 761 -



MODERN FARMHOUSE STYLE

Elevations are conceptual in nature. 

CHAPEL RIDGE NORTH > PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT

21
- Page 762 -



CLIENT

M
:\

Pr
oj

ec
ts

\T
CR

\2
02

11
10

51
3\

04
-P

ro
du

ct
io

n\
En

gi
ne

er
in

g\
Co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n 
Dr

aw
in

gs
\P

U
D\

Cu
rr

en
t D

ra
w

in
gs

\2
02

11
10

51
3-

CS
1.

dw
g,

 7
/6

/2
02

2 
8:

10
:4

1 
AM

, K
od

y 
Tr

ow
br

id
ge

The John R. McAdams Company, Inc.

www.mcadamsco.com

One Glenwood Avenue

phone 919. 823. 4300
fax 919. 361. 2269

license number: C-0293, C-187

Raleigh, NC 27603
Suite 201

CONTACTCHAPEL RIDGE ROAD
APEX, NORTH CAROLINA

PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR PUD-CZ
PROJECT NUMBER: 2021110513

DATE: MARCH 01, 2022

VICINITY MAP & AERIAL IMAGE
1" = 500'

REVISIONS
N0. DATE

1 04. 08. 2022 PER TOWN OF APEX COMMENTS

PLANNED UNIT
DEVELOPMENT

PLAN FOR:

CHAPEL RIDGE NORTH

CHAPEL RIDGE APARTMENTS
APEX, NC 27502

PROJECT NUMBER: 2021110513

JESSIE HARDESTY
hardesty@mcadamsco.com
PHONE: 919. 287. 0824
DERICK BLANKENSHIP
BLANKENSHIP@MCADAMSCO.COM
PHONE: 919. 287. 0836

SHEET INDEX
C0.00 COVER
C1.00 EXISTING CONDITIONS
C2.00 PRELIMINARY LAYOUT PLAN

PRELIMINARY DRAWING - NOT RELEASED FOR CONSTRUCTION

SITE DATA
0732343920, 0732340602, 0732249869, 0732256180,
0732347912, 0732354594, 0732352538

PARCEL IDENTIFICATION
NUMBER (PIN)

RREXISTING ZONING

MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIALCURRENT 2045 LAND USE
MAP DESIGNATION

APPROX. 20.62 AC - GROSSSITE AREA

SETBACKS FRONT

REAR

CORNER

10'

20'

20'

BUILT-UPON AREA
(IMPERVIOUS SURFACE)

MAXIMUM

RESOURCE CONSERVATION
AREA

13.93 AC (70%)

MINIMUM 3.98 AC (20%)

PRIMARY WATERSHED PROTECTION OVERLAY DISTRICTWATERSHED PROTECTION
OVERLAY

NONE (FIRM PANEL 3720073200J, EFFECTIVE 05/02/2006)FEMA FLOODPLAIN

NONEHISTORIC STRUCTURES

HIGH DENSITY RESIDENTIAL - APARTMENTSPROPOSED USE

MAXIMUMBUILDING HEIGHT 55' (5 STORIES) *4 STORY MAX FACING PINS
0732343658, 0732340602 AND 0732348711

APPROX. 19.89 AC - NET

PARKING MINIMUM 1.3 SPACES / 1 0R 2 BEDROOM UNITS

HIGH DENSITY RESIDENTIALPROPOSED 2045 LAND USE
MAP DESIGNATION

PUD-CZPROPOSED ZONING

SINGLE FAMILY LOTSEXISTING USE

SIDE 20'

ALLEY 5'

1.8 SPACES / 3 BEDROOM UNITS

APPROX. 0.73 - INSIDE R/W

SETBACKS FROM REQUIRED BUFFERS 10' (BUILDING) 5' (PARKING)

HIGH STREET DISTRICT DEVELOPMENT, INC.
555 FAYETTEVILLE STREET SUITE 300
RALEIGH, NC 27601
CONTACT: JOSH DIX

REVISED: APRIL 08, 2022
REVISED: MAY 13, 2022

2 05. 13. 2022 PER TOWN OF APEX COMMENTS

MINIMUM

PROPOSED LESS THAN 13.93 AC (70%)

PROPOSED MORE THAN 3.98 AC (20%)

3 06. 10. 2022 PER TOWN OF APEX COMMENTS

REVISED: JUNE 10, 2022
REVISED: JUNE 28, 2022

4 06. 28. 2022 PER TOWN OF APEX COMMENTS

MAXIMUMDENSITY 370 UNITS

REVISED: JULY 06, 2022

5 07. 06. 2022 PER TOWN OF APEX COMMENTS

- Page 763 -



GRAPHIC SCALE
0 50 100 200

1 inch = 100 ft. C1.00

2021110513-PUD-XC1

1"=100'

EXISTING CONDITIONS

KST

PLAN

EXISTING

BEAVER CREEK ROAD

(65' PUBLIC
 R/W

)

EXISTING
CHAPEL RIDGE ROAD

(50' PUBLIC R/W)

EXISTING

ACKERM
AN HILL DRIVE

(60' PUBLIC R/W
)

CLIENT

REVISIONS

PROJECT NO. 2021110513

FILENAME

CHECKED BY

DRAWN BY

SCALE

DATE 03. 01. 2022

N0. DATE

M
:\

Pr
oj

ec
ts

\T
CR

\2
02

11
10

51
3\

04
-P

ro
du

ct
io

n\
En

gi
ne

er
in

g\
Co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n 
Dr

aw
in

gs
\P

U
D\

Cu
rr

en
t D

ra
w

in
gs

\2
02

11
10

51
3-

PU
D-

XC
1.

dw
g,

 7
/6

/2
02

2 
8:

11
:3

1 
AM

, K
od

y 
Tr

ow
br

id
ge

The John R. McAdams Company, Inc.

www.mcadamsco.com

One Glenwood Avenue

phone 919. 823. 4300
fax 919. 361. 2269

license number: C-0293, C-187

Raleigh, NC 27603
Suite 201

CH
AP

EL
 R

ID
G

E 
N

O
RT

H
PL

AN
N

ED
 U

N
IT

 D
VE

LO
PM

EN
T 

PL
AN

AP
EX

, N
O

RT
H 

CA
RO

LI
N

A

SHEET

PLAN INFORMATION

PRELIMINARY DRAWING - NOT RELEASED FOR CONSTRUCTION

1 04. 08. 2022 PER TOWN OF APEX COMMENTS
2 05. 13. 2022 PER TOWN OF APEX COMMENTS

HIGH STREET DISTRICT DEVELOPMENT, INC.
555 FAYETTEVILLE STREET SUITE 300
RALEIGH, NC 27601
CONTACT: JOSH DIX

3 06. 10. 2022 PER TOWN OF APEX COMMENTS
4 06. 28. 2022 PER TOWN OF APEX COMMENTS
5 07. 06. 2022 PER TOWN OF APEX COMMENTS

EX
IS

TI
N

G
IN

TE
RS

TA
TE

 5
40

EX
IS

TI
N

G
W

AY
M

AK
ER

 C
T

(5
0'

 P
U

BL
IC

 R
/W

)

EX
IS

TI
N

G
CR

EE
KS

ID
E 

LA
N

DI
N

G 
DR

(V
AR

IA
BL

E 
PU

BL
IC

 R
/W

)

DCB

RIPARIAN BUFFER NOTE
1. RIPARIAN BUFFERS SHOWN ON THIS PLAN WERE DETERMINED BY

NATURAL RESOURCE CONSULTANTS.  COORDINATION IS ONGOING WITH
THE TOWN OF APEX TO VERIFY DETERMINATIONS.  TOWN PROJECT ID
NUMBER AND FINAL DETERMINATIONS TO BE PROVIDED AT SITE PLAN
STAGE.

- Page 764 -



GRAPHIC SCALE
0 50 100 200

1 inch = 100 ft. C2.00

2021110513-PUD-OAS1

1"=100'

PRELIMINARY LAYOUT

KST

PLAN

EXISTING

BEAVER CREEK ROAD

(65' PUBLIC
 R/W

)

EXISTING
CHAPEL RIDGE ROAD

(50' PUBLIC R/W)

EXISTING

ACKERM
AN HILL DRIVE

(60' PUBLIC R/W
)

CLIENT

REVISIONS

PROJECT NO. 2021110513

FILENAME

CHECKED BY

DRAWN BY

SCALE

DATE 03. 01. 2022

N0. DATE

M
:\

Pr
oj

ec
ts

\T
CR

\2
02

11
10

51
3\

04
-P

ro
du

ct
io

n\
En

gi
ne

er
in

g\
Co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n 
Dr

aw
in

gs
\P

U
D\

Cu
rr

en
t D

ra
w

in
gs

\2
02

11
10

51
3-

PU
D-

O
AS

1.
dw

g,
 7

/6
/2

02
2 

8:
09

:5
6 

AM
, K

od
y 

Tr
ow

br
id

ge

The John R. McAdams Company, Inc.

www.mcadamsco.com

One Glenwood Avenue

phone 919. 823. 4300
fax 919. 361. 2269

license number: C-0293, C-187

Raleigh, NC 27603
Suite 201

CH
AP

EL
 R

ID
G

E 
N

O
RT

H
PL

AN
N

ED
 U

N
IT

 D
VE

LO
PM

EN
T 

PL
AN

AP
EX

, N
O

RT
H 

CA
RO

LI
N

A

SHEET

PLAN INFORMATION

PRELIMINARY DRAWING - NOT RELEASED FOR CONSTRUCTION

1 04. 08. 2022 PER TOWN OF APEX COMMENTS
2 05. 13. 2022 PER TOWN OF APEX COMMENTS

HIGH STREET DISTRICT DEVELOPMENT, INC.
555 FAYETTEVILLE STREET SUITE 300
RALEIGH, NC 27601
CONTACT: JOSH DIX

3 06. 10. 2022 PER TOWN OF APEX COMMENTS
4 06. 28. 2022 PER TOWN OF APEX COMMENTS
5 07. 06. 2022 PER TOWN OF APEX COMMENTS

CONCEPTUAL
STORMWATER

POND

EX
IS

TI
N

G
IN

TE
RS

TA
TE

 5
40

EX
IS

TI
N

G
W

AY
M

AK
ER

 C
T

(5
0'

 P
U

BL
IC

 R
/W

)

EX
IS

TI
N

G
CR

EE
KS

ID
E 

LA
N

DI
N

G 
DR

(V
AR

IA
BL

E 
PU

BL
IC

 R
/W

)

LEGEND

PASSIVE OPEN SPACE (STREAM BUFFERS/
WETLANDS/PONDS/PERIMETER BUFFERS)

MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL CONCEPTUAL
DEVELOPMENT BLOCK

CONCEPTUAL 5' SIDEWALK

CONCEPTUAL PUBLIC
VEHICULAR ACCESS

CONCEPTUAL VEHICULAR
INTERPARCEL ACCESS

NOTE: LOCATIONS OF VEHICULAR AND PEDESTRIAN CIRCULATION
ARE CONCEPTUAL. FINAL LOCATIONS WILL BE DETERMINED AT THE
TIME OF SITE PLAN OR MASTER SUBDIVISION PLAN APPROVAL.

GENERAL NOTES
1. REFER TO PUD DOCUMENT FOR COMPLETE LIST OF ALLOWABLE USES

FOR EACH TRACT OR DEVELOPMENT AREA.

2. SITE ELEMENTS REQUIRED TO SATISFY RECREATIONAL REQUIREMENTS
SUCH AS, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, PLAY FIELDS AND GREENWAY TRAILS
AND ITEMS TYPICALLY ASSOCIATED WITH THEM (BENCHES, TRASH
CONTAINERS, SIGNS, ETC.) MUST MEET ANY APPLICABLE STANDARDS
FOUND IN THE TOWN OF APEX STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS AND
CONSTRUCTION DETAILS AND THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE TOWN OF
APEX PARKS AND RECREATION DEPARTMENT.

3. SITE ITEMS SUCH AS BUT NOT LIMITED TO, LIGHTING, LANDSCAPING
(INCLUDING MULCH), SCREENING (i.e.: DUMPSTERS/TRASH,
MECHANICAL/HVAC. ETC.), SITE STABILIZATION (SEEDING), AND PARING
AND PAVEMENT MARKING MUST BE COMPLETED PRIOR TO SCHEDULING
A FINAL SITE INSPECTION.

4. NO SIGNS ARE APPROVED AS PART OF THE PUD-CZ PLAN APPROVAL. A
SEPARATE SIGN PERMIT MUST BE OBTAINED. SIGNAGE WILL COMPLY
WITH APEX'S UDO.

5. EXACT ACCESS AND STUB LOCATIONS TO BE FINALIZED AT MAJOR SITE
PLAN PHASE.

6. EXACT LOCATION OF RESOURCE CONSERVATION AREA TO BE FINALIZED
AT MAJOR SITE PLAN PHASE.

7. THE PORTION OF THE INTERNAL STREET DESIGNATED AS A PUBLIC
STREETS SHALL BE DEDICATED TO THE TOWN OF APEX.

8. ALL PARKING STANDARDS WITHIN THE PUD WILL COMPLY WITH THE
TOWN OF APEX'S UDO.

9. PLAN SHEETS ARE INTENDED FOR ILLUSTRATIVE USE ONLY.

STORMWATER MANAGEMENT
CONCEPTUAL DEVELOPMENT ENVELOPE

PUBLIC VEHICULAR CIRCULATION (EXTERIOR)

WETLAND

CONCEPTUAL 10' SIDEPATH

DCB

PROPOSED
CHAPEL RIDGE ROAD

(60' PUBLIC R/W)

PUBLIC VEHICULAR CIRCULATION (INTERIOR)

RESIDENTIAL RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

CONCEPTUAL RCA AREA

CONCEPTUAL RCA AREA

PRIVATE VEHICULAR CIRCULATION (INTERIOR
ALONG PUBLIC ACCESS EASEMENT)

(MULTI-FAMILY)(MULTI-FAMILY)

(MULTI-FAMILY)

- Page 765 -



ã Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. 2022

Prepared for:

Trammel Crow Company

Chapel Ridge Apartments
Apex, NC

Traffic Impact Analysis

- Page 766 -



Traffic Impact Analysis for

Chapel Ridge Apartments
Apex, North Carolina

Prepared for:

Trammell Crow Company
Raleigh, NC

Prepared by:

Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc.
NC License #F-0102

300 S. Main Street, Suite 212
Holly Springs, NC 27540

(919) 677-2000

February 2022

011270040

2/22/2022

- Page 767 -



This document, together with the concepts and designs presented herein, as an instrument of service, is intended only for
the specific purpose and client for which it was prepared. Reuse of and improper reliance on this document without written
authorization and adaptation by Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. shall be without liability to Kimley-Horn and
Associates, Inc.

- Page 768 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments – Apex, NC

ES-1

Executive Summary

Kimley-Horn has completed a Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA) for the proposed Chapel Ridge
Apartments development located along Chapel Ridge Road at Ackerman Hill Drive in Apex,
North Carolina. The site is currently occupied by several single-family homes and as currently
envisioned will include approximately 350 apartments. Full build-out of the development was
assumed in 2025 for this analysis.

This report presents trip generation, distribution, traffic analyses, and recommendations for
transportation improvements required to meet anticipated traffic demands in conjunction with the
development. The traffic conditions studied include the existing (2021) traffic condition as well
as the projected (2025) background and build-out traffic conditions.

As shown in Table ES-1, the proposed development has the potential to generate 117 new trips
during the AM peak hour and 147 new trips during the PM peak hour on a typical weekday.

Table ES-1
ITE Traffic Generation (Vehicles)

Land
Use

Code
Land Use Intensity

AM Peak Hour PM Peak Hour
In Out In Out

221 Multifamily Housing (Mid-Rise) 350 d.u. 30 87 90 57

Capacity analyses were performed using Synchro Version 10 and Sidra Intersection 9 software.
Table ES-2 summarizes the operation of the study intersections for the AM and PM peak hour
traffic conditions.

Table ES-2
Level-of-Service Summary

Condition AM Peak Hour
LOS (Delay)

PM Peak Hour
LOS (Delay)

Kelly Road at Wendhurst Court/Beaver Creek Commons Drive (Signalized)

Existing (2021) Traffic B (11.7) C (24.5)

Background (2025) Traffic B (12.3) C (28.7)

Build-Out (2025) Traffic B (12.3) C (28.4)

- Page 769 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments – Apex, NC

ES-2

Table ES-2 (cont.)
Level-of-Service Summary

Condition AM Peak Hour
LOS (Delay)

PM Peak Hour
LOS (Delay)

Olive Chapel Road at Chapel Ridge Road (Unsignalized)

Existing (2021) Traffic SB – B (12.7)
EBL – A (8.3)

SB – B (13.6)
EBL – A (8.7)

Background (2025) Traffic SB – B (13.9)
EBL – A (8.8)

SB – C (15.8)
EBL – A (9.0)

Build-Out (2025) Traffic SB – B (14.7)
EBL – A (8.8)

SB – C (16.6)
EBL – A (9.1)

Chapel Ridge Road at Ackerman Hill Drive (Unsignalized)

Existing (2021) Traffic WB – A (8.6)
SBL – A (7.3)

WB – A (8.7)
SBL – A (7.3)

Background (2025) Traffic WB – A (8.7)
SBL – A (7.3)

WB – A (8.7)
SBL – A (7.3)

Build-Out (2025) Traffic WB – A (8.9)
SBL – A (7.3)

WB – A (9.2)
SBL – A (7.4)

Beaver Creek Commons Drive at Creekside Landing Drive (Roundabout)^

Existing (2021) Traffic A (4.2)
v/c = 0.16

A (8.5)
v/c = 0.47

Background (2025) Traffic A (4.5)
v/c = 0.18

A (9.6)
v/c = 0.52

Build-Out (2025) Traffic A (4.7)
v/c = 0.21

B (10.3)
v/c = 0.55

Beaver Creek Commons Drive at Proposed Site Access (Unsignalized)

Build-Out (2025) Traffic WB – B (11.4)
SBL – A (7.8)

WB – B (14.5)
SBL – A (8.6)

Chapel Ridge Road at Proposed Site Access/North Site Driveway (Unsignalized)

Build-Out (2025) Traffic NB – A (9.2)
WBL – A (7.3)

NB – A (9.3)
WBL – A (7.5)

Chapel Ridge Road at Central Site Driveway (Unsignalized)

Build-Out (2025) Traffic

NB – A (9.4)
SB – A (9.4)

EBL – A (7.4)
WBL – A (7.3)

NB – A (9.6)
SB – A (9.5)

EBL – A (7.3)
WBL – A (7.4)

Chapel Ridge Road at South Site Driveway (Unsignalized)

Build-Out (2025) Traffic

EB – A (9.0)
WB – A (9.1)
NBL – A (7.3)
SBL – A (7.3)

EB – A (9.2)
WB – B (9.4)
NBL – A (7.3)
SBL – A (7.4)

Ackerman Hill Drive at Site Driveway (Unsignalized)

Build-Out (2025) Traffic NB – A (8.9)
WBL – A (7.3)

NB – A (9.0)
WBL – A (7.4)

^Note: Results reported from SIDRA software.

- Page 770 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments – Apex, NC

ES-3

The following roadway improvements are recommended to be performed as part of this project:

Chapel Ridge Road Extension/Proposed Site Access:
· Realign and extend Chapel Ridge Road/Proposed Site Access to Beaver Creek Commons

Drive as a two-lane undivided roadway

Beaver Creek Commons Drive at Proposed Site Access:
· Construct the Proposed Site Access with one ingress lane and one egress lane
· Restripe Beaver Creek Commons Drive to provide a southbound left-turn lane with 100 feet

of storage

Chapel Ridge Road at Proposed Site Access/North Site Driveway:
· Construct the North Site Driveway with one ingress lane and one egress lane

Chapel Ridge Road at Central Site Driveway:
· Construct the Central Site Driveway with one ingress lane and one egress lane on both minor

street approaches

Chapel Ridge Road at South Site Driveway:
· Construct the South Site Driveway with one ingress lane and one egress lane on both minor

street approaches

Ackerman Hill Drive at Site Driveway:
· Construct the Site Driveway with one ingress lane and one egress lane

These recommended improvements are shown on Figure ES-1.

Analyses indicate that with the recommended improvements in place, all of the study
intersections will operate at acceptable LOS at project build-out. Only minor increases in
intersection delays are anticipated between the background and build-out conditions, and no
queuing issues are anticipated in the build-out traffic condition.

- Page 771 -



- Page 772 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments – Apex, NC

i

TABLE OF CONTENTS
Page No.

1.0 INTRODUCTION ........................................................................................................ 1

2.0 INVENTORY ............................................................................................................... 2
2.1 STUDY AREA ....................................................................................................... 2
2.2 EXISTING CONDITIONS ........................................................................................ 2

3.0 TRAFFIC GENERATION........................................................................................... 7

4.0 SITE TRAFFIC DISTRIBUTION ............................................................................... 8

5.0 PROJECTED TRAFFIC VOLUMES ....................................................................... 10
5.1 EXISTING TRAFFIC ............................................................................................ 10
5.2 HISTORIC GROWTH TRAFFIC .............................................................................. 10
5.3 APPROVED DEVELOPMENT TRAFFIC .................................................................. 10
5.4 TOTAL BACKGROUND TRAFFIC .......................................................................... 11
5.5 SITE TRAFFIC .................................................................................................... 11
5.6 BEAVER CREEK COMMONS DRIVE CONNECTION TRAFFIC IMPACTS ...................... 11
5.7 BUILD-OUT TRAFFIC ......................................................................................... 12

6.0 CAPACITY ANALYSIS ............................................................................................ 17
6.1 KELLY ROAD AT WENDHURST COURT/BEAVER CREEK COMMONS DRIVE .............. 18
6.2 OLIVE CHAPEL ROAD AT CHAPEL RIDGE ROAD................................................... 19
6.3 CHAPEL RIDGE ROAD AT ACKERMAN HILL DRIVE ............................................... 20
6.4 BEAVER CREEK COMMONS DRIVE AT CREEKSIDE LANDING DRIVE ....................... 21
6.5 BEAVER CREEK COMMONS DRIVE AT PROPOSED SITE ACCESS ............................. 22
6.6 CHAPEL RIDGE ROAD AT PROPOSED SITE ACCESS/NORTH SITE DRIVEWAY ........... 23
6.7 CHAPEL RIDGE ROAD AT CENTRAL SITE DRIVEWAY ............................................. 24
6.8 CHAPEL RIDGE ROAD AT SOUTH SITE DRIVEWAY ................................................ 25
6.9 ACKERMAN HILL DRIVE AT SITE DRIVEWAY ........................................................ 26

7.0 SUPPLEMENTAL ANALYSIS – WITH CHAPEL RIDGE TOWNES .................. 27
7.1 BACKGROUND VOLUME DEVELOPMENT ............................................................. 27
7.2 BEAVER CREEK COMMONS DRIVE TRAFFIC IMPACTS........................................... 28
7.3 CAPACITY ANALYSIS .......................................................................................... 28

8.0 RECOMMENDATIONS ............................................................................................ 30

- Page 773 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments – Apex, NC

ii

Appendices
A.  APPROVED ASSUMPTIONS MEMORANDUM
B.  TRAFFIC COUNT DATA
C.  APPROVED DEVELOPMENT DATA - OLIVE CHAPEL PROFESSIONAL PARK
D.  TRIP GENERATION
E.  INTERSECTION SPREADSHEETS
F.  SYNCHRO & SIDRA OUTPUT: EXISTING (2021)
G.  SYNCHRO OUTPUT: BACKGROUND (2025)
H.  SYNCHRO OUTPUT: BUILD-OUT (2025)
I. TRAFFIC SIGNAL WARRANT ANALYSIS: OLIVE CHAPEL ROAD AT CHAPEL RIDGE ROAD
J. SUPPLEMENTAL ANALYSIS: CHAPEL RIDGE TOWNES DEVELOPMENT DATA
K.  SUPPLEMENTAL ANALYSIS: INTERSECTION SPREADSHEETS
L. SUPPLEMENTAL ANALYSIS: SYNCHRO & SIDRA OUTPUT: BACKGROUND (2025)
M.  SUPPLEMENTAL ANALYSIS: SYNCHRO OUTPUT: BUILD-OUT (2025)
N.  TRAFFIC SIGNAL PLANS

- Page 774 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments – Apex, NC

iii

LIST OF TABLES
Table No. Title      Page No.

Table 3.1 ITE Traffic Generation (Vehicles) .......................................................................... 7

Table 6.0 Level-of-Service Control Delay Thresholds ......................................................... 17

Table 6.1 Level-of-Service: Kelly Road at Wendhurst Court/Beaver Creek Commons Dr. 18

Table 6.2 Level-of-Service: Olive Chapel Road at Chapel Ridge Road. .............................. 19

Table 6.3 Level-of-Service: Chapel Ridge Road at Ackerman Hill Drive............................ 20

Table 6.4 Level-of-Service: Beaver Creek Commons Drive at Creekside Landing Drive ... 21

Table 6.5 Level-of-Service: Beaver Creek Commons Drive at Proposed Site Access ......... 22

Table 6.6 Level-of-Service: Chapel Ridge Rd at Proposed Site Access/North Site Drwy ... 23

Table 6.7 Level-of-Service: Chapel Ridge Road at Central Site Driveway .......................... 24

Table 6.8 Level-of-Service: Chapel Ridge Road at South Site Driveway ............................ 25

Table 6.9 Level-of-Service: Ackerman Hill Drive at Site Driveway .................................... 26

Table 7.1 ITE Traffic Generation (Chapel Ridge Townes)................................................... 27

Table 7.2 Level-of-Service Summary - Supplemental Analysis ........................................... 28

LIST OF FIGURES
Figure No. Title       Page No.

Figure 2.1 Site Location ........................................................................................................... 4

Figure 2.2 Preliminary Layout Plan ......................................................................................... 5

Figure 2.3 Existing Roadway Laneage ..................................................................................... 6

Figure 4.1 Site Traffic Distribution and Percent Assignment .................................................. 9

Figure 5.1 Existing and Projected (2025) Background AM Peak Hour Traffic Volumes ...... 13

Figure 5.2 Existing and Projected (2025) Background PM Peak Hour Traffic Volumes ...... 14

Figure 5.3 Projected (2025) Build-out AM Peak Hour Traffic Volumes ............................... 15

Figure 5.4 Projected (2025) Build-out PM Peak Hour Traffic Volumes................................ 16

Figure 8.1 Recommended Roadway Laneage ........................................................................ 31

- Page 775 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments – Apex, NC

1

1.0 Introduction

Kimley-Horn has completed a Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA) for the proposed Chapel Ridge
Apartments development located along Chapel Ridge Road at Ackerman Hill Drive in Apex,
North Carolina. The site is currently occupied by several single-family homes and as currently
envisioned will include approximately 350 apartments. Full build-out of the development was
assumed in 2025 for this analysis.

This report presents trip generation, distribution, traffic analyses, and recommendations for
transportation improvements required to meet anticipated traffic demands in conjunction with the
development. The traffic conditions studied include the existing (2021) traffic condition as well
as the projected (2025) background and build-out traffic conditions.

North Carolina Department of Transportation (NCDOT) and Town of Apex staff provided
background data and were consulted regarding the elements to be covered in this analysis. The
approved Memorandum of Understanding is included in the Appendix of this report.

- Page 776 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments – Apex, NC

2

2.0 Inventory

2.1 Study Area

The study area for this development includes the following intersections:

§ Kelly Road at Wendhurst Court/Beaver Creek Commons Drive
§ Olive Chapel Road at Chapel Ridge Road
§ Chapel Ridge Road at Ackerman Hill Drive
§ Beaver Creek Commons Drive at Creekside Landing Drive
§ Beaver Creek Commons Drive at Proposed Site Access
§ Chapel Ridge Road at Proposed Site Access/North Site Driveway
§ Chapel Ridge Road at Central Site Driveway
§ Chapel Ridge Road at South Site Driveway
§ Ackerman Hill Drive at Site Driveway

Figure 2.1 shows the site location, and Figure 2.2 shows the preliminary layout plan.

2.2 Existing Conditions

The proposed Chapel Ridge Apartments development is located along Chapel Ridge Road at
Ackerman Hill Drive in Apex, North Carolina. Roadways in the study area include Kelly Road,
Olive Chapel Road, Beaver Creek Commons Drive, Creekside Landing Drive, Wendhurst Court,
Chapel Ridge Road, and Ackerman Hill Drive. The existing roadway laneage is shown in Figure
2.3.

Kelly Road is generally a multi-lane undivided roadway in the vicinity of Beaver Creek
Commons Drive with a posted speed limit of 45 mph. NCDOT reported a 2017 average daily
traffic (ADT) volume of 14,000 vehicles per day (vpd) south of Beaver Creek Commons Drive.

Olive Chapel Road is generally a 2-lane undivided roadway with a posted speed limit of 45 mph
in the vicinity of Chapel Ridge Road. NCDOT reported a 2019 average daily traffic (ADT)
volume of 9,700 vehicles per day (vpd) east of Chapel Ridge Road.

Beaver Creek Commons Drive is generally a 3-lane undivided roadway with a posted speed limit
of 35 mph. Based on December 2021 traffic count data, the ADT volume on Beaver Creek
Commons Drive is approximately 7,000 vpd southwest of the Kohl’s driveway.

Creekside Landing Drive is generally a 2-lane undivided roadway with a posted speed limit of 25
mph. Based on December 2021 traffic count data, the ADT volume is approximately 5,200 vpd
north of Beaver Creek Commons Drive.

- Page 777 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments – Apex, NC

3

Wendhurst Court is generally a 2-lane undivided roadway with a posted speed limit of 25 mph
and an estimated 2021 ADT volume of less than 1,000 vpd.

Chapel Ridge Road is generally a 2-lane undivided roadway with a posted speed limit of 25 mph.
Based on December 2021 traffic count data, the ADT volume is estimated to less than 1,000 vpd.

Ackerman Hill Drive is generally a 2-lane undivided roadway with a posted speed limit of 25
mph. Based on December 2021 traffic count data, the ADT volume on Ackerman Hill Drive is
less than 1,000 vpd in the vicinity of Chapel Ridge Road.

- Page 778 -



- Page 779 -



- Page 780 -



- Page 781 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments – Apex, NC

7

3.0 Traffic Generation

The traffic generation potential of the proposed development was determined using the traffic
generation data published in ITE Trip Generation (Institute of Transportation Engineers, Tenth
Edition, 2017). The site is currently occupied by several single-family homes and as currently
envisioned will include approximately 350 apartments.

The trip generation potential of the site is shown below in Table 3.1.

Table 3.1
ITE Traffic Generation (Vehicles)

Land
Use

Code
Land Use Intensity

AM Peak Hour PM Peak Hour
In Out In Out

221 Multifamily Housing (Mid-Rise) 350 d.u. 30 87 90 57

As shown in Table 3.1, the proposed development has the potential to generate 117 new trips
during the AM peak hour and 147 new trips during the PM peak hour on a typical weekday.
Detailed trip generation calculations are included in the Appendix.

- Page 782 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments – Apex, NC

8

4.0 Site Traffic Distribution

The proposed generated trips were assigned to the surrounding roadway network. The directional
distribution and assignment are based on land uses in the area and existing travel patterns and
confirmed as part of the TIA scoping discussions with the Town and NCDOT. Site trips were
assigned to the network based on the following distribution:

§ 40% to/from the north on Kelly Road (via Beaver Creek Commons Drive)
§ 20% to/from the east on Beaver Creek Commons Drive
§ 15% to/from the east on Olive Chapel Road
§ 15% to/from the west on Olive Chapel Road
§ 10% to/from the north on Creekside Landing Drive

The site traffic distribution and percent assignment are shown on Figure 4.1.

- Page 783 -



- Page 784 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments – Apex, NC

10

5.0 Projected Traffic Volumes

5.1 Existing Traffic

AM peak hour (7:00 to 9:00 AM) and PM peak hour (4:00 to 6:00 PM) turning movement counts
were performed at the following intersections:

§ Kelly Road at Wendhurst Court/Beaver Creek Commons Drive November 16, 2021
§ Olive Chapel Road at Chapel Ridge Road               November 16, 2021
§ Chapel Ridge Road at Ackerman Hill Drive November 16, 2021
§ Beaver Creek Commons Drive at Creekside Landing Drive November 16, 2021

Traffic counts were performed while Wake County Public Schools were in session. The existing
AM and PM peak hour traffic volumes are shown on Figures 5.1 and 5.2 respectively, and the
traffic count data are included in the Appendix.

5.2 Historic Growth Traffic

Historic growth traffic is the increase in traffic due to non-specific growth throughout the area.
Based on discussions with Town staff, an annual growth rate of 3% was applied to the
intersections in the study area up to the build-out year 2025. No growth was applied to volumes
onto/off of Wendhurst Court, Chapel Ridge Road, and the southern leg of Creekside Landing
Drive as development along those roadways is either built-out or otherwise accounted for in
approved development traffic.

5.3 Approved Development Traffic

Approved development traffic is generated by approved, but not yet constructed, projects in the
vicinity of the proposed project. For this analysis, site trips from the Olive Chapel Professional
Park development were included.

Per the Olive Chapel Professional Park TIA (Ramey-Kemp, October 2016), the Olive Chapel
Professional Park development is anticipated to include up to approximately 80,000 square feet
(SF) of general office space. This project was approximately 50% occupied at the time of this
study, so only the remaining 50% of site traffic from this project was included in this analysis as
background traffic.

It was also noted that while the Jordan Lutheran Church has been approved on an adjacent parcel
along Beaver Creek Commons Drive, that project is expected to have a minimal impact on traffic
volumes during the AM and PM peak hours on a typical weekday and as such was not included in
this analysis.

- Page 785 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments – Apex, NC

11

5.4 Total Background Traffic

Total AM and PM peak hour traffic volumes, which include existing, historic growth, and
approved development traffic, are shown on Figures 5.1 and 5.2, respectively.

5.5 Site Traffic

The proposed site traffic was generated and assigned to the adjacent roadway network according
to the distribution discussed previously in Section 4.0.  The site  traffic  volumes for  the AM and
PM peak hours are shown in Figures 5.3 and 5.4, respectively.

5.6 Beaver Creek Commons Drive Connection Traffic Impacts

As noted, this project will be required to construct a proposed site access that extends Chapel
Ridge Road to connect with Beaver Creek Commons Drive and it is anticipated that this new
connection will not be restricted to site traffic-use only.

In the existing condition, development traffic from the Hempstead at Beaver Creek Townhomes
community has access to Beaver Creek Commons Drive via Creekside Landing Drive in addition
to cross-access near the retail stores. However, the proposed connection to Beaver Creek
Commons Drive constructed as part of this development is expected to be more direct and, while
somewhat longer in terms of travel distance, may include fewer traffic calming measures than the
Creekside Landing Drive route. It was conservatively estimated that 55% of traffic from the
Hempstead development would use the proposed connection to Beaver Creek Commons Drive in
the future, so site trips were generated and assigned to the network generally consistent with the
distribution discussed in Section 4.0.

Traffic diversions were also assumed for the Olive Chapel Professional Park project, and while
that project is currently 50% built-out, this analysis assumed that all of the site trips assigned
to/from the north in the Olive Chapel Professional Park TIA would use the new connection to
Beaver Creek Commons Drive as opposed to the existing travel path along Creekside Landing
Drive through the Hempstead development.

The anticipated traffic diversions associated with the proposed site access construction are shown
in Figures 5.3 and 5.4 for the AM and PM peak hours, respectively.

It should be noted that no trip reductions were applied to existing or approved development
volumes. The diversions discussed above for the Hempstead and Olive Chapel Professional Park
projects were added to projected traffic volumes, which will result in a significant volume of
double-counted trips and present very conservative results.

- Page 786 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments – Apex, NC

12

5.7 Build-Out Traffic

To obtain the projected (2025) build-out traffic volumes, the projected site traffic and Beaver
Creek Commons Drive connection diversion trips were added to the projected (2025) background
traffic. Traffic volume calculations are detailed in intersection spreadsheets in the Appendix of
this report. Figures 5.3 and 5.4 show the projected (2025) AM and PM peak hour build-out
traffic volumes, respectively.

- Page 787 -



- Page 788 -



- Page 789 -



- Page 790 -



- Page 791 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments - Apex, NC

17

6.0 Capacity Analysis

Highway Capacity Manual LOS Thresholds
Capacity is defined as the maximum number of vehicles that can pass over a particular road
segment or through a particular intersection within a set time duration. Capacity is combined with
Level-of-Service (LOS) to describe the operating characteristics of a road segment or
intersection. LOS is a qualitative measure that describes operational conditions and motorist
perceptions within a traffic stream. The Highway Capacity Manual defines six levels of service,
LOS A through LOS F, with A representing the shortest average delays and F representing the
longest average delays. LOS D is the typically accepted standard for signalized intersections in
urbanized areas. For signalized intersections, LOS is defined for the overall intersection.

For unsignalized intersections, only the movements that must yield right-of-way experience
control delay. Therefore, LOS criteria for the overall intersection is not reported by Synchro or
SimTraffic or computable using methodology published in the Highway Capacity Manual. It is
typical for stop sign controlled side streets and driveways intersecting major streets to experience
long delays during peak hours, while the majority of the traffic moving through the intersection
on the major street experiences little or no delay. Table 6.0 lists the LOS control delay thresholds
published in the Highway Capacity Manual for signalized and unsignalized intersections.

Table 6.0
Level-of-Service Control Delay Thresholds

Level-of-
Service

Signalized Intersections –
Control Delay Per Vehicle

[sec/veh]

Unsignalized Intersections – Average
Control Delay [sec/veh] & Qualitative

Operational Description
A ≤ 10 ≤ 10

Short DelaysB > 10 – 20 > 10 – 15
C > 20 – 35 > 15 – 25
D > 35 – 55 > 25 – 35

Moderate Delays
E > 55 – 80 > 35 – 50
F > 80 > 50 Long Delays

Right-turns on red were allowed as currently permitted in the field. As there is no expectation that
right-turns on red would be prohibited due to the addition of background or site traffic, field
conditions were maintained for consistency. Additionally, existing peak hour factors (PHF) were
used at existing intersections, while a 0.90 PHF was used at new intersections. As actual PHF
were confirmed from field-collected data, and since it is typical for PHF to at least be maintained
or increased with study area build-out, the use of actual PHF was determined to be appropriate.

Capacity analyses were performed for the AM and PM peak hours using Synchro/SimTraffic
Version 10 and Sidra Intersection 9 software to determine the operating characteristics of the
adjacent road network and the impacts of the proposed project. Those analyses are included in the
Appendix and are briefly summarized in the following sub-sections.

- Page 792 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments - Apex, NC

18

6.1 Kelly Road at Wendhurst Court/Beaver Creek Commons Drive

Analyses indicate that the signalized intersection of Kelly Road at Wendhurst Court/Beaver
Creek Commons Drive currently operates at LOS B in the AM peak hour and LOS C in the PM
peak hour. The intersection is expected to continue operating at LOS B in the AM peak hour and
LOS C in the PM peak hour in the study year 2025 with or without the proposed project in place.
As only minor increases in delays are anticipated with the project in place, and since site traffic is
anticipated to account for less than 3% of total intersection traffic at project build-out, no
improvements are recommended to be performed at this intersection to accommodate site traffic.
Note that the minor decrease in delay between the background and build-out conditions in the PM
peak hour is likely due to the addition of site trips to movements already operating at acceptable
levels of service and the associated weighted-average methodology for delay calculations. Such
decreases are negligible and are not uncommon.

Table 6.1 summarizes operations at the intersection of Kelly Road at Wendhurst Court/Beaver
Creek Commons Drive for the existing (2021) and projected (2025) background and build-out
traffic conditions.

Table 6.1
Level-of-Service

Kelly Road at Wendhurst Court/Beaver Creek Commons Drive (Signalized)

Condition AM Peak Hour
LOS (Delay)

PM Peak Hour
LOS (Delay)

Existing (2021) Traffic B (11.7) C (24.5)

Background (2025) Traffic B (12.3) C (28.7)

Build-Out (2025) Traffic B (12.3) C (28.4)

- Page 793 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments - Apex, NC

19

6.2 Olive Chapel Road at Chapel Ridge Road

Analyses indicate that the unsignalized intersection of Olive Chapel Road at Chapel Ridge Road
currently operates with short delays on the minor street approach (Chapel Ridge Road) in both
peak hours. In the 2025 study year the intersection is expected to continue operating with short
delays on the minor street approaches in both peak hours with or without the proposed project in
place.

For reference, a signal warrant analysis was also performed at this intersection to determine if
projected (2025) build-out traffic volumes met volume warrants in the Manual for Uniform
Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD). Based on this analysis, projected (2025) build-out traffic
volumes are not expected to meet peak, 4-hour, or 8-hour volume warrants. Traffic signal warrant
data is included in the Appendix of this report.

Since only minor increases in delays and queues are anticipated with the addition of site traffic,
no improvements are recommended to be performed at this intersection to accommodate site
traffic.

Table 6.2 summarizes operations at the intersection of Olive Chapel Road at Chapel Ridge Road
for the existing (2021) and projected (2025) background and build-out traffic conditions.

Table 6.2
Level-of-Service

Olive Chapel Road at Chapel Ridge Road (Unsignalized)

Condition AM Peak Hour
LOS (Delay)

PM Peak Hour
LOS (Delay)

Existing (2021) Traffic SB – B (12.7)
EBL – A (8.3)

SB – B (13.6)
EBL – A (8.7)

Background (2025) Traffic SB – B (13.9)
EBL – A (8.8)

SB – C (15.8)
EBL – A (9.0)

Build-Out (2025) Traffic SB – B (14.7)
EBL – A (8.8)

SB – C (16.6)
EBL – A (9.1)

- Page 794 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments - Apex, NC

20

6.3 Chapel Ridge Road at Ackerman Hill Drive

Analyses indicate that the unsignalized intersection of Chapel Ridge Road at Ackerman Hill
Drive currently operates with short delays on the minor street approach (Ackerman Hill Drive) in
both peak hours. In the 2025 study year, the intersection is expected to continue operating with
short delays on the minor street approaches in both peak hours with or without the proposed
project in place. Since only minor increases in delays and queues are anticipated with the addition
of site traffic, no improvements are recommended to be performed at this intersection to
accommodate site traffic.

Table 6.3 summarizes operations at the intersection of Chapel Ridge Road at Ackerman Hill
Drive for the existing (2021) and projected (2025) background and build-out traffic conditions.

Table 6.3
Level-of-Service

Chapel Ridge Road at Ackerman Hill Drive (Unsignalized)

Condition AM Peak Hour
LOS (Delay)

PM Peak Hour
LOS (Delay)

Existing (2021) Traffic WB – A (8.6)
SBL – A (7.3)

WB – A (8.7)
SBL – A (7.3)

Background (2025) Traffic WB – A (8.7)
SBL – A (7.3)

WB – A (8.7)
SBL – A (7.3)

Build-Out (2025) Traffic WB – A (8.9)
SBL – A (7.3)

WB – A (9.2)
SBL – A (7.4)

- Page 795 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments - Apex, NC

21

6.4 Beaver Creek Commons Drive at Creekside Landing Drive

Analyses indicate that the roundabout intersection of Beaver Creek Commons Drive at Creekside
Landing Drive currently operates at LOS A and low volume to capacity ratios in both peak hours.
In the 2025 study year, the intersection is expected to continue operating at acceptable overall
LOS and low volume to capacity ratios with or without the proposed project in place. No
queueing issues are expected at this intersection. Therefore, no improvements are recommended
to be performed to accommodate site traffic at this intersection.

Table 6.4 summarizes operations at the intersection of Beaver Creek Commons Drive at
Creekside Landing Drive for the existing (2021) and projected (2025) background and build-out
traffic conditions.

Table 6.4
Level-of-Service

Beaver Creek Commons Drive at Creekside Landing Drive^

Condition AM Peak Hour
LOS (Delay)

PM Peak Hour
LOS (Delay)

Existing (2021) Traffic A (4.2)
v/c = 0.16

A (8.5)
v/c = 0.47

Background (2025) Traffic A (4.5)
v/c = 0.18

A (9.6)
v/c = 0.52

Build-Out (2025) Traffic A (4.7)
v/c = 0.21

B (10.3)
v/c = 0.55

^Note: Results reported from SIDRA software.

- Page 796 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments - Apex, NC

22

6.5 Beaver Creek Commons Drive at Proposed Site Access

As required by the Town, site access is proposed along Beaver Creek Commons Drive. This
connection is proposed as a full-movement site driveway approximately 1,800 feet southwest of
Creekside Landing Drive, and it was assumed that Beaver Creek Commons Drive would be
restriped to provide a left-turn lane into the Site Access. Analyses indicate that this intersection is
expected to operate with short delays and queues on the minor street approach (Proposed Site
Access) at project build-out.

Table 6.5 summarizes operations at the intersection of Beaver Creek Commons Drive at Proposed
Site Access for the build-out (2025) traffic condition.

Table 6.5
Level-of-Service

Beaver Creek Commons Drive at Proposed Site Access (Unsignalized)

Condition AM Peak Hour
LOS (Delay)

PM Peak Hour
LOS (Delay)

Build-Out (2025) Traffic WB – B (11.4)
SBL – A (7.8)

WB – B (14.5)
SBL – A (8.6)

- Page 797 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments - Apex, NC

23

6.6 Chapel Ridge Road at Proposed Site Access/North Site Driveway

A full-movement site driveway with one ingress lane and one egress lane is proposed to be
constructed on Chapel Ridge Road approximately 350 feet east of Beaver Creek Commons Drive
and align with the Site Access connection to Beaver Creek Commons Driveway. This driveway is
proposed to be constructed with one ingress and one egress lane, and analyses indicate that this
intersection is expected to operate with short delays and queues on the minor street approach
(Chapel Ridge Road) at project build-out.

Table 6.6 summarizes operations at the intersection of Chapel Ridge Road at Proposed Site
Access/North Site Driveway for the projected (2025) build-out traffic condition.

Table 6.6
Level-of-Service

Chapel Ridge Road at Proposed Site Access/North Site Driveway (Unsignalized)

Condition AM Peak Hour
LOS (Delay)

PM Peak Hour
LOS (Delay)

Build-Out (2025) Traffic NB – A (9.2)
WBL – A (7.3)

NB – A (9.3)
WBL – A (7.5)

- Page 798 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments - Apex, NC

24

6.7 Chapel Ridge Road at Central Site Driveway

A full-movement site driveway with one ingress lane and one egress lane is proposed to be
constructed on Chapel Ridge Road approximately 175 feet west of Ackerman Hill Drive. This
intersection is proposed to be constructed with one ingress and one egress lane, and analyses
indicate that this intersection is expected to operate with short delays and queues on the minor
street approach (Central Site Driveway) at project build-out.

Table 6.7 summarizes operations at the intersection of Chapel Ridge Road at Central Site
Driveway for the projected (2025) build-out traffic condition.

Table 6.7
Level-of-Service

Chapel Ridge Road at Central Site Driveway (Unsignalized)

Condition AM Peak Hour
LOS (Delay)

PM Peak Hour
LOS (Delay)

Build-Out (2025) Traffic

NB – A (9.4)
SB – A (9.4)

EBL – A (7.4)
WBL – A (7.3)

NB – A (9.6)
SB – A (9.5)

EBL – A (7.3)
WBL – A (7.4)

- Page 799 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments - Apex, NC

25

6.8 Chapel Ridge Road at South Site Driveway

A full-movement site driveway with one ingress lane and one egress lane is proposed to be
constructed on Chapel Ridge Road approximately 250 feet south of Ackerman Hill Drive.
Analyses indicate that this intersection is expected to operate with short delays and queues on the
minor street approach (South Site Driveway) at project build-out.

Table 6.8 summarizes operations at the intersection of Chapel Ridge Road at South Site
Driveway for the projected (2025) build-out traffic condition.

Table 6.8
Level-of-Service

Chapel Ridge Road at South Site Driveway (Unsignalized)

Condition AM Peak Hour
LOS (Delay)

PM Peak Hour
LOS (Delay)

Build-Out (2025) Traffic

EB – A (9.0)
WB – A (9.1)
NBL – A (7.3)
SBL – A (7.3)

EB – A (9.2)
WB – B (9.4)
NBL – A (7.3)
SBL – A (7.4)

- Page 800 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments - Apex, NC

26

6.9 Ackerman Hill Drive at Site Driveway

A full-movement site driveway with one ingress lane and one egress lane is proposed to be
constructed on Ackerman Hill Drive approximately 175 feet east of Chapel Ridge Road. This
intersection is proposed to be constructed with one ingress and one egress lane, and analyses
indicate that this intersection is expected to operate with short delays and queues on the minor
street approach (Site Driveway) at project build-out.

Table 6.9 summarizes operations at the intersection of Ackerman Hill Drive at Site Driveway for
the projected (2025) build-out traffic condition.

Table 6.9
Level-of-Service

Ackerman Hill Drive at Site Driveway (Unsignalized)

Condition AM Peak Hour
LOS (Delay)

PM Peak Hour
LOS (Delay)

Build-Out (2025) Traffic NB – A (8.9)
WBL – A (7.3)

NB – A (9.0)
WBL – A (7.4)

- Page 801 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments - Apex, NC

27

7.0 Supplemental Analysis – With Chapel Ridge Townes

The Chapel Ridge Townes project, which envisioned the construction of 116 townhomes, was
previously proposed for construction in the northeast corner of the intersection of the Olive
Chapel Road at Chapel Ridge Road. While that proposed rezoning was denied through the public
hearing process and therefore would not have any impacts on the network, Town staff indicated
that supplemental analyses considering the potential impact of such a project on the network
would provide helpful context with this study. It should be noted that the intent of this
supplemental analysis was for information purposes only and not to identify additional
improvements required of the Chapel Ridge Apartments project since the additional trip impact
discussed in this section is associated with a project that was not approved.

7.1 Background Volume Development

No changes were made to existing AM and PM peak hour traffic volumes or historic growth
traffic as discussed in Section 5. For this supplemental analysis, the trip generation for the Chapel
Ridge Townes project was obtained from the “Chapel Ridge Tracts Residential Development Trip
Generation Letter” (Exult Engineering, March 2021) and is shown below in Table 7.1.

Table 7.1
ITE Traffic Generation (Vehicles)

Land
Use

Code
Land Use Intensity

AM Peak Hour PM Peak Hour
In Out In Out

220 Multifamily Housing (Low-Rise) 116 d.u. 13 42 43 25

The proposed generated trips were assigned to the surrounding roadway network. The directional
distribution and assignment are based on land uses in the area and existing travel patterns
generally consistent with the Chapel Ridge Apartments project. Site trips were assigned to the
network based on the following distribution:

§ 50% to/from the west on Olive Chapel Road
§ 40% to/from the east on Olive Chapel Road
§ 5% to/from the east on Beaver Creek Commons Drive
§ 5% to/from the north on Creekside Landing Drive

Total background traffic volumes for this supplemental analysis included existing traffic and
historic growth traffic volumes as well as approved development traffic volumes, which included
the build-out of the Olive Chapel Professional Park project as well as the Chapel Ridge Townes
project. These calculations are detailed on intersection spreadsheets in the Appendix of this
report.

- Page 802 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments - Apex, NC

28

7.2 Beaver Creek Commons Drive Traffic Impacts

Similar to the Olive Chapel Professional Park diversion discussed in Section 5, it is anticipated
that the proposed connection to Beaver Creek Commons Drive would also result in traffic
diversion from this previously-proposed project. Chapel Ridge Townes site trips to/from the north
on Ackerman Hill Drive included as approved development trips in the background condition
were diverted to the new connection in the build-out condition of this supplemental analysis.

No changes to Chapel Ridge Apartments site traffic were made for this supplemental analysis.

To obtain the projected build-out traffic volumes for this supplemental analysis, the projected site
traffic and Beaver Creek Commons Drive connection diversion trips were added to the projected
background traffic noted in Section 7.1. Traffic volume calculations are detailed in intersection
spreadsheets in the Appendix of this report.

7.3 Capacity Analysis

Capacity analyses were performed for the AM and PM peak hours using Synchro/SimTraffic
Version 10 and Sidra Intersection 9 software to determine the operating characteristics of the
adjacent road network and the impacts of the proposed project. As no changes were made to the
existing traffic condition analyses summarized previously in this report, only results for the
supplemental background and build-out conditions are reported below in Table 7.2.

Table 7.2
Level-of-Service Summary – Supplemental Analysis

Condition AM Peak Hour
LOS (Delay)

PM Peak Hour
LOS (Delay)

Kelly Road at Wendhurst Court/Beaver Creek Commons Drive (Signalized)

Background (2025) Traffic B (12.3) C (28.7)

Build-Out (2025) Traffic B (12.3) C (28.4)

Olive Chapel Road at Chapel Ridge Road (Unsignalized)

Background (2025) Traffic SB – B (13.9)
EBL – A (8.8)

SB – C (15.8)
EBL – A (9.0)

Build-Out (2025) Traffic SB – B (14.7)
EBL – A (8.8)

SB – C (16.6)
EBL – A (9.1)

Chapel Ridge Road at Ackerman Hill Drive (Unsignalized)

Background (2025) Traffic WB – A (8.7)
SBL – A (7.3)

WB – A (8.8)
SBL – A (7.3)

Build-Out (2025) Traffic WB – A (8.9)
SBL – A (7.3)

WB – A (9.2)
SBL – A (7.4)

- Page 803 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments - Apex, NC

29

Table 7.2 (cont.)
Level-of-Service Summary

Condition AM Peak Hour
LOS (Delay)

PM Peak Hour
LOS (Delay)

Beaver Creek Commons Drive at Creekside Landing Drive (Roundabout)

Background (2025) Traffic A (4.5)
v/c = 0.19

A (9.7)
v/c = 0.53

Build-Out (2025) Traffic A (4.7)
v/c = 0.22

B (10.3)
v/c = 0.55

Beaver Creek Commons Drive at Proposed Site Access (Unsignalized)

Build-Out (2025) Traffic WB – B (11.4)
SBL – A (7.8)

WB – B (14.5)
SBL – A (8.6)

Chapel Ridge Road at Proposed Site Access/North Site Driveway (Unsignalized)

Build-Out (2025) Traffic NB – A (9.3)
WBL – A (7.3)

NB – A (9.3)
WBL – A (7.5)

Chapel Ridge Road at Central Site Driveway (Unsignalized)

Build-Out (2025) Traffic

NB – A (9.5)
SB – A (9.4)

EBL – A (7.4)
WBL – A (7.3)

NB – A (9.7)
SB – A (9.5)

EBL – A (7.3)
WBL – A (7.4)

Chapel Ridge Road at South Site Driveway (Unsignalized)

Build-Out (2025) Traffic

EB – A (9.0)
WB – A (9.1)
NBL – A (7.3)
SBL – A (7.3)

EB – A (9.2)
WB – B (9.4)
NBL – A (7.3)
SBL – A (7.4)

Ackerman Hill Drive at Site Driveway (Unsignalized)

Build-Out (2025) Traffic WB – A (8.9)
SBL – A (7.3)

WB – A (9.1)
SBL – A (7.4)

- Page 804 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments - Apex, NC

30

8.0 Recommendations

The following roadway improvements are recommended to be performed as part of this project:

Chapel Ridge Road Extension/Proposed Site Access:
· Realign and extend Chapel Ridge Road/Proposed Site Access to Beaver Creek Commons

Drive as a two-lane undivided roadway

Beaver Creek Commons Drive at Proposed Site Access:
· Construct the Proposed Site Access with one ingress lane and one egress lane
· Restripe Beaver Creek Commons Drive to provide a southbound left-turn lane with 100 feet

of storage

Chapel Ridge Road at Proposed Site Access/North Site Driveway:
· Construct the North Site Driveway with one ingress lane and one egress lane
· Extend Chapel Ridge Road approximately 600 feet with one ingress lane and one egress lane

Chapel Ridge Road at Central Site Driveway:
· Construct the Central Site Driveway with one ingress lane and one egress lane

Chapel Ridge Road at South Site Driveway:
· Construct the South Site Driveway with one ingress lane and one egress lane

Ackerman Hill Drive at Site Driveway:
· Construct the Site Driveway with one ingress lane and one egress lane

These recommended improvements are also shown on Figure 8.1.

Analyses indicate that with the recommended improvements in place, all of the study
intersections will operate at acceptable LOS at project build-out. Only minor increases in
intersection delays are anticipated between the background and build-out conditions, and no
queuing issues are anticipated in the build-out traffic condition.

- Page 805 -



- Page 806 -



 

 

Appendix 

  

- Page 807 -



 

 

Appendix A: 

Approved TIA Assumptions Memo 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

- Page 808 -



12/2/2021

Preliminary Assumptions
Chapel Ridge Apartments - Traffic Impact Analysis

Apex, North Carolina

KHA will perform an analysis for the proposed Chapel Ridge Apartments project, which is
proposed to be located along Chapel Ridge Road at Ackerman Hill Drive in Apex, North
Carolina. The site is currently occupied by several single-family parcels and as currently
envisioned will include approximately 350 apartments. Build-out is anticipated in the year 2025.
The following assumptions will be used in the analysis based on a TIA scoping meeting
conducted with the Town of Apex on November 29, 2021.

Study Scenarios
The study scenarios will consist of:

· Existing (2021)
· Background (2025)
· Build-out (2025)
· Supplemental Background (2025): with Chapel Ridge Tracts Residential
· Supplemental Build-out (2025): with Chapel Ridge Tracts Residential

Study Intersections
The study area will consist of the following intersections:

· Kelly Road at Beaver Creek Commons Drive/Wendhurst Court
· Beaver Creek Commons Drive at Creekside Landing Drive
· Olive Chapel Road at Chapel Ridge Road
· Beaver Creek Commons at Proposed Site Access

Existing Volume Development
Existing traffic counts will be collected in 15-minute intervals for the AM peak hour (7:00 to 9:00
AM) and PM peak hour (4:00 to 6:00 PM) at each of the existing study intersections while Wake
County Public Schools are in session. No volume adjustments will be applied to existing traffic
counts.

Background Volume Development
A 3% annual growth rate will be applied to existing traffic volumes up to the study year 2025
except for trips onto/off of Wendhurst Court, Chapel Ridge Road, and the southern leg of
Creekside Landing Drive as development along those roadways is either built-out or otherwise
accounted for in approved development traffic (discussed below).

Two developments were identified for inclusion in this analysis as background.

The Olive Chapel Professional Park, located generally northwest of the Olive Chapel Road –
Chapel Ridge Road intersection, is currently partially built-out. It is assumed that this project will
reach full build-out by the study year 2025, so the remaining site traffic will be included in this
analysis as background traffic.

Per the “Chapel Ridge Tracts Residential Development Trip Generation Letter”, that project
proposed the construction of 116 townhomes generally northeast of the Olive Chapel Road –
Chapel Ridge Road intersection. While that rezoning was not approved, site traffic from that
project will be included in this analysis to account for potential development on that parcel. As a
formal TIA was not required for that project, site trip generation will be obtained from the Trip

- Page 809 -



12/2/2021

Generation and assigned to the Olive Chapel Road – Chapel Ridge Road intersection based on an
assigned site traffic assignment.

Based on discussions with Town staff, no development or roadway projects in the area are
anticipated to result in traffic diversions that would impact any of the study intersections.

Trip Generation
Trip generation for this project will be performed using data from the 10th Edition of the ITE Trip
Generation Manual. Trip generation calculations are attached. To be conservative, no reduction
will be applied to account for trips generated by the existing single-family residences that will be
replaced as part of this project.

Site Traffic Distribution
The following distribution will be used for project site traffic as shown on the attached sketch:

· 40% to/from the north on Kelly Road (via Beaver Creek Commons Drive)
· 20% to/from the east on Beaver Creek Commons Drive
· 15% to/from the east on Olive Chapel Road
· 15% to/from the west on Olive Chapel Road
· 10% to/from the north on Creekside Landing Drive

Other Study Assumptions
· Existing peak hour factors (PHF’s) will be used at existing intersections, while a PHF of

0.90 will be used at new intersections.
· Right-turns on red (RTOR) will be included in the analysis where currently permitted in

the field.
· Existing signal timings will be used in the existing condition, though timings may be

optimized in the future traffic conditions.
· Analyses will be performed using Synchro/SimTraffic version 10.

- Page 810 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments
Table 1 - Trip Generation

AM Peak Hour PM Peak Hour

Total Total In Out Total In Out
221 Multifamily Housing (Mid-Rise) 350 d.u. 1,906 117 30 87 147 90 57

1,906 117 30 87 147 90 57

Land Use Intensity
Daily

Total Net New External Trips

- Page 811 -



(10%)

(20%)

70% (70%)

(30%)

30%

10% 20%

(30%)

30%

(20%)

20%

20%

20%

10%

- Page 812 -



- Page 813 -



- Page 814 -



- Page 815 -



 

 

Appendix B: 

Traffic Count Data 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

- Page 816 -



Type of peak hour being reported: Intersection Peak Method for determining peak hour: Total Entering Volume

LOCATION: LOCATION: Kelly Rd -- Beaver Creek Commons Dr QC JOB #: QC JOB #: 15646901
CITY/STATE: CITY/STATE: Apex, NC DATE: DATE: Tue, Dec 7 2021

384
0.94

725

9 346 29

51 19 22 109

0.86 8 0.980.98 4 0.85

65 38 83 154

38 684 117

0.94
467 839

Peak-Hour: 7:30 AM -- 8:30 AMPeak-Hour: 7:30 AM -- 8:30 AM
Peak 15-Min: 7:30 AM -- 7:45 AMPeak 15-Min: 7:30 AM -- 7:45 AM

4.7 2.2

22.2 4 6.9

5.9 0 4.5 1.8

0 0

4.6 7.9 1.2 1.9

2.6 2.2 0.9

3.9 2

0

0 0

0

0 0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0 0

N/A

N/A N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A N/A

N/A

15-Min Count15-Min Count
Period Period 

Beginning AtBeginning At

Kelly Rd Kelly Rd 
(Northbound)(Northbound)

Kelly Rd Kelly Rd 
(Southbound)(Southbound)

Beaver Creek Commons DrBeaver Creek Commons Dr
(Eastbound)(Eastbound)

Beaver Creek Commons DrBeaver Creek Commons Dr
(Westbound)(Westbound) TotalTotal HourlyHourly

TotalsTotals
LeftLeft ThruThru RightRight UU LeftLeft ThruThru RightRight UU LeftLeft ThruThru RightRight UU LeftLeft ThruThru RightRight UU

7:00 AM 4 141 14 0 1 42 2 0 3 0 17 0 12 0 4 0 240
7:15 AM 9 194 23 0 4 53 1 0 3 0 14 0 16 0 2 0 319
7:30 AM 8 193 22 0 7 87 2 0 4 4 11 0 14 0 6 0 358
7:45 AM 7 163 29 0 4 96 2 0 2 2 11 0 18 2 7 0 343 1260
8:00 AM 12 166 33 0 9 78 3 0 8 2 7 0 28 1 3 0 350 1370
8:15 AM 11 162 33 0 9 85 2 0 5 0 9 0 23 1 6 0 346 1397
8:30 AM 4 148 26 0 12 82 4 0 1 2 17 0 20 2 8 0 326 1365
8:45 AM 12 145 46 0 6 94 1 0 0 1 18 0 21 1 9 0 354 1376

Peak 15-MinPeak 15-Min
FlowratesFlowrates

NorthboundNorthbound SouthboundSouthbound EastboundEastbound WestboundWestbound
TotalTotalLeftLeft ThruThru RightRight UU LeftLeft ThruThru RightRight UU LeftLeft ThruThru RightRight UU LeftLeft ThruThru RightRight UU

All Vehicles 32 772 88 0 28 348 8 0 16 16 44 0 56 0 24 0 1432
Heavy Trucks 0 16 0 4 4 4 0 0 4 4 0 4 40

Buses
Pedestrians 0 0 0 0 0

Bicycles 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Scooters

Comments:

Report generated on 12/13/2021 8:15 AM SOURCE: Quality Counts, LLC (http://www.qualitycounts.net) 1-877-580-2212

Page 1 of 1- Page 817 -



Type of peak hour being reported: Intersection Peak Method for determining peak hour: Total Entering Volume

LOCATION: LOCATION: Kelly Rd -- Beaver Creek Commons Dr QC JOB #: QC JOB #: 15646902
CITY/STATE: CITY/STATE: Apex, NC DATE: DATE: Tue, Dec 7 2021

860
0.96

567

23 748 89

110 10 55 322

0.77 14 0.980.98 20 0.88

71 47 247 373

67 502 270

0.92
1042 839

Peak-Hour: 4:45 PM -- 5:45 PMPeak-Hour: 4:45 PM -- 5:45 PM
Peak 15-Min: 5:30 PM -- 5:45 PMPeak 15-Min: 5:30 PM -- 5:45 PM

0.7 1.2

0 0.8 0

0.9 0 0 0.6

0 0

0 0 0.8 0

1.5 1.4 0

0.8 1

0

1 1

0

0 0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0 1

N/A

N/A N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A N/A

N/A

15-Min Count15-Min Count
Period Period 

Beginning AtBeginning At

Kelly Rd Kelly Rd 
(Northbound)(Northbound)

Kelly Rd Kelly Rd 
(Southbound)(Southbound)

Beaver Creek Commons DrBeaver Creek Commons Dr
(Eastbound)(Eastbound)

Beaver Creek Commons DrBeaver Creek Commons Dr
(Westbound)(Westbound) TotalTotal HourlyHourly

TotalsTotals
LeftLeft ThruThru RightRight UU LeftLeft ThruThru RightRight UU LeftLeft ThruThru RightRight UU LeftLeft ThruThru RightRight UU

4:00 PM 26 117 52 0 23 149 3 0 4 3 13 0 47 5 17 0 459
4:15 PM 18 127 59 0 25 178 7 0 4 4 14 0 59 3 13 0 511
4:30 PM 10 127 53 0 26 151 7 0 2 2 11 0 79 4 12 0 484
4:45 PM 21 115 67 0 23 197 5 0 4 1 16 0 59 6 13 0 527 1981
5:00 PM 13 149 66 0 20 177 6 0 0 2 7 0 56 5 11 0 512 2034
5:15 PM 18 102 71 0 25 182 7 0 3 6 14 0 75 5 11 0 519 2042
5:30 PM 15 136 66 0 21 192 5 0 3 5 10 0 57 4 20 0 534 2092
5:45 PM 8 121 53 0 20 189 2 0 0 4 9 0 60 8 20 0 494 2059

Peak 15-MinPeak 15-Min
FlowratesFlowrates

NorthboundNorthbound SouthboundSouthbound EastboundEastbound WestboundWestbound
TotalTotalLeftLeft ThruThru RightRight UU LeftLeft ThruThru RightRight UU LeftLeft ThruThru RightRight UU LeftLeft ThruThru RightRight UU

All Vehicles 60 544 264 0 84 768 20 0 12 20 40 0 228 16 80 0 2136
Heavy Trucks 0 16 0 0 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 20

Buses
Pedestrians 0 0 4 0 4

Bicycles 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Scooters

Comments:

Report generated on 12/13/2021 8:15 AM SOURCE: Quality Counts, LLC (http://www.qualitycounts.net) 1-877-580-2212

Page 1 of 1- Page 818 -



Type of peak hour being reported: Intersection Peak Method for determining peak hour: Total Entering Volume

LOCATION: LOCATION: Chapel Ridge Rd -- Olive Chapel Rd QC JOB #: QC JOB #: 15646905
CITY/STATE: CITY/STATE: Apex, NC DATE: DATE: Tue, Dec 7 2021

46
0.88

38

26 0 20

547 16 22 543

0.93 436 0.930.93 521 0.93

452 0 0 456

0 0 0

0
0 0

Peak-Hour: 4:45 PM -- 5:45 PMPeak-Hour: 4:45 PM -- 5:45 PM
Peak 15-Min: 4:45 PM -- 5:00 PMPeak 15-Min: 4:45 PM -- 5:00 PM

0 0

0 0 0

1.5 0 0 1.5

1.6 1.5

1.5 0 0 1.5

0 0 0

0 0

0

0 0

4

0 0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0 0

N/A

N/A N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A N/A

N/A

15-Min Count15-Min Count
Period Period 

Beginning AtBeginning At

Chapel Ridge Rd Chapel Ridge Rd 
(Northbound)(Northbound)

Chapel Ridge Rd Chapel Ridge Rd 
(Southbound)(Southbound)

Olive Chapel RdOlive Chapel Rd
(Eastbound)(Eastbound)

Olive Chapel RdOlive Chapel Rd
(Westbound)(Westbound) TotalTotal HourlyHourly

TotalsTotals
LeftLeft ThruThru RightRight UU LeftLeft ThruThru RightRight UU LeftLeft ThruThru RightRight UU LeftLeft ThruThru RightRight UU

6:00 AM 0 0 0 0 1 0 2 0 0 12 0 0 0 8 3 0 26
6:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 21 0 0 0 17 0 0 38
6:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 2 20 0 0 0 42 3 0 69
6:45 AM 0 0 0 0 2 0 7 0 5 22 0 0 0 62 2 0 100 233
7:00 AM 0 0 0 0 8 0 6 0 2 48 0 0 0 58 1 0 123 330
7:15 AM 0 0 0 0 3 0 3 0 1 92 0 0 0 68 0 0 167 459
7:30 AM 0 0 0 0 3 0 4 0 2 76 0 0 0 89 5 0 179 569
7:45 AM 0 0 0 0 4 0 4 0 5 77 0 0 0 87 6 0 183 652
8:00 AM 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 2 76 0 0 0 91 10 0 181 710
8:15 AM 0 0 0 0 3 0 2 0 7 76 0 0 0 89 1 0 178 721
8:30 AM 0 0 0 0 5 0 1 0 4 100 0 0 0 68 8 0 186 728
8:45 AM 0 0 0 0 2 0 3 0 7 103 0 0 0 108 5 0 228 773
9:00 AM 0 0 0 0 3 0 1 0 6 87 0 0 0 99 5 0 201 793
9:15 AM 0 0 0 0 4 0 2 0 4 77 0 0 0 71 4 0 162 777
9:30 AM 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 3 54 0 0 0 71 1 0 131 722
9:45 AM 0 0 0 0 3 0 7 0 6 63 0 0 0 73 6 0 158 652

10:00 AM 0 0 0 0 2 0 2 0 1 49 0 0 0 50 2 0 106 557
10:15 AM 0 0 0 0 4 0 2 0 4 62 0 0 0 62 2 0 136 531
10:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 4 0 6 59 0 0 0 69 3 0 141 541
10:45 AM 0 0 0 0 3 0 7 0 4 78 0 0 0 65 3 0 160 543
11:00 AM 0 0 0 0 5 0 5 0 5 62 0 0 0 74 2 0 153 590
11:15 AM 0 0 0 0 2 0 4 0 3 62 0 0 0 81 2 0 154 608
11:30 AM 0 0 0 0 4 0 3 0 1 48 0 0 0 79 7 0 142 609
11:45 AM 0 0 0 0 3 0 9 0 6 81 0 0 0 105 7 0 211 660
12:00 PM 0 0 0 0 6 0 5 0 6 68 0 0 0 77 3 0 165 672
12:15 PM 0 0 0 0 5 0 2 0 8 93 0 0 0 115 2 0 225 743
12:30 PM 0 0 0 0 2 0 4 0 2 82 0 0 0 94 4 0 188 789
12:45 PM 0 0 0 0 4 0 6 0 10 93 0 0 0 96 3 0 212 790
1:00 PM 0 0 0 0 2 0 5 0 3 72 0 0 0 99 1 0 182 807
1:15 PM 0 0 0 0 6 0 7 0 7 61 0 0 0 89 3 0 173 755
1:30 PM 0 0 0 0 5 0 7 0 6 60 0 0 0 66 8 0 152 719
1:45 PM 0 0 0 0 6 0 3 0 7 56 0 0 0 75 5 0 152 659
2:00 PM 0 0 0 0 3 0 4 0 4 55 0 0 0 68 7 0 141 618
2:15 PM 0 0 0 0 3 0 6 0 5 60 0 0 0 71 4 0 149 594
2:30 PM 0 0 0 0 7 0 4 0 7 85 0 0 0 68 3 0 174 616
2:45 PM 0 0 0 0 5 0 11 0 5 104 0 0 0 94 6 0 225 689
3:00 PM 0 0 0 0 6 0 5 0 3 78 0 0 0 100 5 0 197 745
3:15 PM 0 0 0 0 2 0 7 0 5 82 0 0 0 112 0 0 208 804
3:30 PM 0 0 0 0 2 0 5 0 4 89 0 0 0 126 7 0 233 863

Page 1 of 2- Page 819 -



3:45 PM 0 0 0 0 1 0 4 0 7 90 0 0 0 128 3 0 233 871
4:00 PM 0 0 0 0 3 0 3 0 5 112 0 0 0 127 6 0 256 930
4:15 PM 0 0 0 0 3 0 7 0 7 95 0 0 0 126 6 0 244 966
4:30 PM 0 0 0 0 5 0 11 0 3 100 0 0 0 101 13 0 233 966
4:45 PM 0 0 0 0 4 0 8 0 1 121 0 0 0 138 8 0 280 1013
5:00 PM 0 0 0 0 6 0 6 0 6 103 0 0 0 117 4 0 242 999
5:15 PM 0 0 0 0 5 0 8 0 4 114 0 0 0 140 3 0 274 1029
5:30 PM 0 0 0 0 5 0 4 0 5 98 0 0 0 126 7 0 245 1041
5:45 PM 0 0 0 0 6 0 11 0 4 90 0 0 0 116 5 0 232 993
6:00 PM 0 0 0 0 3 0 2 0 5 74 0 0 0 107 4 0 195 946
6:15 PM 0 0 0 0 7 0 5 0 3 79 0 0 0 122 7 0 223 895
6:30 PM 0 0 0 0 5 0 4 0 1 90 0 0 0 75 5 0 180 830
6:45 PM 0 0 0 0 6 0 11 0 3 58 0 0 0 104 3 0 185 783

15-Min Count15-Min Count
Period Period 

Beginning AtBeginning At

Chapel Ridge Rd Chapel Ridge Rd 
(Northbound)(Northbound)

Chapel Ridge Rd Chapel Ridge Rd 
(Southbound)(Southbound)

Olive Chapel RdOlive Chapel Rd
(Eastbound)(Eastbound)

Olive Chapel RdOlive Chapel Rd
(Westbound)(Westbound) TotalTotal HourlyHourly

TotalsTotals
LeftLeft ThruThru RightRight UU LeftLeft ThruThru RightRight UU LeftLeft ThruThru RightRight UU LeftLeft ThruThru RightRight UU

Peak 15-MinPeak 15-Min
FlowratesFlowrates

NorthboundNorthbound SouthboundSouthbound EastboundEastbound WestboundWestbound
TotalTotalLeftLeft ThruThru RightRight UU LeftLeft ThruThru RightRight UU LeftLeft ThruThru RightRight UU LeftLeft ThruThru RightRight UU

All Vehicles 0 0 0 0 16 0 32 0 4 484 0 0 0 552 32 0 1120
Heavy Trucks 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 8 0 0 12 0 20

Buses
Pedestrians 12 0 0 0 12

Bicycles 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Scooters

Comments:

Report generated on 12/13/2021 8:15 AM SOURCE: Quality Counts, LLC (http://www.qualitycounts.net) 1-877-580-2212

Page 2 of 2- Page 820 -



Type of report: Tube Count - Volume Data

LOCATION: LOCATION: Ackerman Hill Dr btwn Chapel Ridge Rd and Drayman Pl QC JOB #: QC JOB #: 15646906
SPECIFIC LOCATION:SPECIFIC LOCATION: DIRECTION: DIRECTION: NB, SB
CITY/STATE: CITY/STATE: Apex, NC DATE: DATE: Dec 7 2021 - Dec 7 2021

Start TimeStart Time
MonMon TueTue WedWed ThuThu FriFri Average Weekday Average Weekday 

15-min Traffic15-min Traffic
SatSat SunSun Average Week Average Week 

15-min Traffic15-min Traffic
Average Week ProfileAverage Week Profile

7 Dec 21
06:00 AM 3 3 3
06:15 AM 0 0 0
06:30 AM 3 3 3
06:45 AM 6 6 6
07:00 AM 5 5 5
07:15 AM 2 2 2
07:30 AM 8 8 8
07:45 AM 3 3 3
08:00 AM 4 4 4
08:15 AM 2 2 2
08:30 AM 7 7 7
08:45 AM 10 10 10
09:00 AM 4 4 4
09:15 AM 4 4 4
09:30 AM 2 2 2
09:45 AM 4 4 4
10:00 AM 3 3 3
10:15 AM 6 6 6
10:30 AM 3 3 3
10:45 AM 7 7 7
11:00 AM 7 7 7
11:15 AM 3 3 3
11:30 AM 1 1 1
11:45 AM 1313 1313 1313

Day TotalDay Total

% Weekday
Average

% Week 
Average

AM Peak 
15-min Vol

PM Peak 
15-min Vol

Comments:
Report generated on 12/10/2021 5:01 PM SOURCE: Quality Counts, LLC (http://www.qualitycounts.net)

72

- Page 821 -



Type of report: Tube Count - Volume Data

LOCATION: LOCATION: Ackerman Hill Dr btwn Chapel Ridge Rd and Drayman Pl QC JOB #: QC JOB #: 15646906
SPECIFIC LOCATION:SPECIFIC LOCATION: DIRECTION: DIRECTION: NB, SB
CITY/STATE: CITY/STATE: Apex, NC DATE: DATE: Dec 7 2021 - Dec 7 2021

Start TimeStart Time
MonMon TueTue WedWed ThuThu FriFri Average Weekday Average Weekday 

15-min Traffic15-min Traffic
SatSat SunSun Average Week Average Week 

15-min Traffic15-min Traffic
Average Week ProfileAverage Week Profile

7 Dec 21
12:00 PM 4 4 4
12:15 PM 3 3 3
12:30 PM 5 5 5
12:45 PM 6 6 6
01:00 PM 4 4 4
01:15 PM 10 10 10
01:30 PM 1212 1212 1212
01:45 PM 7 7 7
02:00 PM 5 5 5
02:15 PM 5 5 5
02:30 PM 8 8 8
02:45 PM 6 6 6
03:00 PM 4 4 4
03:15 PM 3 3 3
03:30 PM 6 6 6
03:45 PM 6 6 6
04:00 PM 8 8 8
04:15 PM 7 7 7
04:30 PM 12 12 12
04:45 PM 10 10 10
05:00 PM 11 11 11
05:15 PM 6 6 6
05:30 PM 8 8 8
05:45 PM 8 8 8

Day TotalDay Total

% Weekday
Average

% Week 
Average

AM Peak 
15-min Vol

PM Peak 
15-min Vol

Comments:
Report generated on 12/10/2021 5:01 PM SOURCE: Quality Counts, LLC (http://www.qualitycounts.net)

96

- Page 822 -



Type of peak hour being reported: Intersection Peak Method for determining peak hour: Total Entering Volume

LOCATION: LOCATION: Creekside Landing Dr -- Beaver Creek Commons Dr QC JOB #: QC JOB #: 15646903
CITY/STATE: CITY/STATE: Apex, NC DATE: DATE: Tue, Dec 7 2021

132
0.87

119

47 28 57

116 33 58 152

0.75 117 0.840.84 69 0.88

158 8 25 195

0 28 21

0.72
61 49

Peak-Hour: 8:00 AM -- 9:00 AMPeak-Hour: 8:00 AM -- 9:00 AM
Peak 15-Min: 8:45 AM -- 9:00 AMPeak 15-Min: 8:45 AM -- 9:00 AM

0 1.7

0 0 0

0.9 3 0 2

2.6 1.4

2.5 0 8 2.6

0 3.6 9.5

3.3 6.1

0

0 0

0

0 0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0 0

N/A

N/A N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A N/A

N/A

15-Min Count15-Min Count
Period Period 

Beginning AtBeginning At

Creekside Landing Dr Creekside Landing Dr 
(Northbound)(Northbound)

Creekside Landing Dr Creekside Landing Dr 
(Southbound)(Southbound)

Beaver Creek Commons DrBeaver Creek Commons Dr
(Eastbound)(Eastbound)

Beaver Creek Commons DrBeaver Creek Commons Dr
(Westbound)(Westbound) TotalTotal HourlyHourly

TotalsTotals
LeftLeft ThruThru RightRight UU LeftLeft ThruThru RightRight UU LeftLeft ThruThru RightRight UU LeftLeft ThruThru RightRight UU

7:00 AM 0 8 3 0 4 3 6 0 2 13 0 0 2 9 4 0 54
7:15 AM 1 3 8 0 7 4 4 0 3 18 2 0 1 4 7 0 62
7:30 AM 0 6 6 0 12 2 11 0 7 23 2 0 3 9 4 0 85
7:45 AM 0 7 1 0 15 9 10 0 8 18 0 0 2 18 7 0 95 296
8:00 AM 0 12 5 0 15 8 9 0 6 28 1 0 4 22 14 0 124 366
8:15 AM 0 5 2 0 15 7 11 0 9 24 2 0 5 15 11 0 106 410
8:30 AM 0 6 7 0 9 3 17 0 9 24 2 0 9 13 16 0 115 440
8:45 AM 0 5 7 0 18 10 10 0 9 41 3 0 7 19 17 0 146 491

Peak 15-MinPeak 15-Min
FlowratesFlowrates

NorthboundNorthbound SouthboundSouthbound EastboundEastbound WestboundWestbound
TotalTotalLeftLeft ThruThru RightRight UU LeftLeft ThruThru RightRight UU LeftLeft ThruThru RightRight UU LeftLeft ThruThru RightRight UU

All Vehicles 0 20 28 0 72 40 40 0 36 164 12 0 28 76 68 0 584
Heavy Trucks 0 4 4 0 0 0 0 4 0 0 0 0 12

Buses
Pedestrians 0 0 0 0 0

Bicycles 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Scooters

Comments:

Report generated on 12/13/2021 8:15 AM SOURCE: Quality Counts, LLC (http://www.qualitycounts.net) 1-877-580-2212

Page 1 of 1- Page 823 -



Type of peak hour being reported: Intersection Peak Method for determining peak hour: Total Entering Volume

LOCATION: LOCATION: Creekside Landing Dr -- Beaver Creek Commons Dr QC JOB #: QC JOB #: 15646904
CITY/STATE: CITY/STATE: Apex, NC DATE: DATE: Tue, Dec 7 2021

426
0.88

364

131 159 136

368 104 168 450

0.87 196 0.940.94 209 0.88

321 21 73 436

25 95 103

0.93
252 223

Peak-Hour: 5:00 PM -- 6:00 PMPeak-Hour: 5:00 PM -- 6:00 PM
Peak 15-Min: 5:15 PM -- 5:30 PMPeak 15-Min: 5:15 PM -- 5:30 PM

0 0.3

0 0 0

0 1 0 0.2

0 0

0.3 0 1.4 0

0 0 0

0.4 0

0

0 0

0

0 0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0 0

N/A

N/A N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A N/A

N/A

15-Min Count15-Min Count
Period Period 

Beginning AtBeginning At

Creekside Landing Dr Creekside Landing Dr 
(Northbound)(Northbound)

Creekside Landing Dr Creekside Landing Dr 
(Southbound)(Southbound)

Beaver Creek Commons DrBeaver Creek Commons Dr
(Eastbound)(Eastbound)

Beaver Creek Commons DrBeaver Creek Commons Dr
(Westbound)(Westbound) TotalTotal HourlyHourly

TotalsTotals
LeftLeft ThruThru RightRight UU LeftLeft ThruThru RightRight UU LeftLeft ThruThru RightRight UU LeftLeft ThruThru RightRight UU

4:00 PM 1 22 19 0 24 28 30 0 21 42 4 0 19 48 41 0 299
4:15 PM 2 24 22 0 29 28 24 0 18 55 5 0 16 57 35 2 317
4:30 PM 4 18 21 1 35 25 27 0 17 50 3 0 19 69 35 0 324
4:45 PM 3 25 20 0 39 37 28 1 19 52 8 0 12 51 40 0 335 1275
5:00 PM 4 28 28 0 30 34 32 0 26 44 4 0 24 50 54 0 358 1334
5:15 PM 9 25 25 0 31 47 33 0 23 64 5 0 14 63 37 1 377 1394
5:30 PM 6 24 22 0 37 27 34 0 27 46 6 2 15 46 36 0 328 1398
5:45 PM 6 18 28 0 38 51 32 0 25 42 6 1 19 50 41 0 357 1420

Peak 15-MinPeak 15-Min
FlowratesFlowrates

NorthboundNorthbound SouthboundSouthbound EastboundEastbound WestboundWestbound
TotalTotalLeftLeft ThruThru RightRight UU LeftLeft ThruThru RightRight UU LeftLeft ThruThru RightRight UU LeftLeft ThruThru RightRight UU

All Vehicles 36 100 100 0 124 188 132 0 92 256 20 0 56 252 148 4 1508
Heavy Trucks 0 0 0 0 0 0 4 0 0 4 0 0 8

Buses
Pedestrians 0 0 0 0 0

Bicycles 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Scooters

Comments:

Report generated on 12/13/2021 8:15 AM SOURCE: Quality Counts, LLC (http://www.qualitycounts.net) 1-877-580-2212

Page 1 of 1- Page 824 -



 

 

Appendix C: 

Approved Development Data –  

Olive Chapel Professional Park 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

- Page 825 -



- Page 826 -



Traffic Impact Analysis Olive Chapel Professional Park – Apex, North Carolina 

 14

4. SITE TRIP GENERATION AND DISTRIBUTION 

4.1. Trip Generation 

The proposed development is assumed to consist of approximately 80,000 sq. ft. of general 

office space. Average weekday daily, AM peak hour, and PM peak hour trips for the proposed 

development were estimated using methodology contained within the ITE Trip Generation 

Manual, 9th Edition. Table 1 provides a summary of the trip generation potential for the site.  

 

Table 1: Trip Generation Summary 

Land Use 
(ITE Code) 

Intensity 
Daily 

Traffic 
(vpd) 

AM Peak Hour 
Trips (vph) 

PM Peak Hour 
Trips (vph) 

Enter Exit Enter Exit 
General Office Building 

(710) 
80,000 
sq. ft. 

1,110 141 19 29 139 

 

It is estimated that the proposed development will generate approximately 1,110 total site trips 

on the roadway network during a typical 24-hour weekday period. Of the daily traffic volume, 

it is anticipated that 160 trips (141 entering and 19 exiting) will occur during the AM peak 

hour and 168 (29 entering and 139 exiting) will occur during the PM peak hour.  

 

4.2. Site Trip Distribution and Assignment 

Trip distribution percentages used in assigning site traffic for this development were estimated 

based on a combination of existing traffic patterns, population centers adjacent to the study 

area, and engineering judgment. It is estimated that trips will be distributed as follows: 

 45% to/from the west via Olive Chapel Road 

 45% to/from the east via Olive Chapel Road 

 10% to/from the north via Chapel Ridge Road (utilizing the proposed connection to 

the Beaver Creek Crossing Shopping Center, which is being constructed as part of 

the Hempstead at Beaver Creek development). 

 

The site trip distribution, which has been reviewed and approved by the Town, is shown in 

Figure 9. Refer to Figure 10 for the site trip assignment.  

- Page 827 -



- Page 828 -



- Page 829 -



 

 

Appendix D: 

Trip Generation 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

- Page 830 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments
Table 1 - Trip Generation

AM Peak Hour PM Peak Hour

Total Total In Out Total In Out
221 Multifamily Housing (Mid-Rise) 350 d.u. 1,906 117 30 87 147 90 57

1,906 117 30 87 147 90 57

Land Use Intensity
Daily

Total Net New External Trips

- Page 831 -



 

 

Appendix E: 

Intersection Spreadsheets  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

- Page 832 -



INTERSECTION ANALYSIS SHEET
AM In AM Out PM In PM Out

Project: Chapel Ridge Apartments Net New Trips: 30 87 90 57
Location: Apex, NC
Scenario: Without Chapel Ridge Townhomes
Ct. Date 12/7/2021
N/S Street: Kelly Road Annual Growth Rate: 3.0% Existing Year: 2021
E/W Street: Wendhurst Ct/Beaver Creek Commons Dr Growth Factor: 0.125509 Buildout Year: 2025

AM PEAK HOUR
AM PHF = 0.98

Description Left Through Right Left Through Right Left Through Right Left Through Right

2021 Traffic Count 19 8 38 83 4 22 38 684 117 29 346 9
Count Balancing 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2021 Existing Traffic 19 8 38 83 4 22 38 684 117 29 346 9

Growth Factor (0.03 per year) 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.126 0.000 0.126 0.000 0.126 0.126 0.126 0.126 0.000
2025 Background Growth 0 0 0 10 0 3 0 86 15 4 43 0

Committed Projects
Olive Chapel Professional Park 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 19 0
Total Committed Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 19 0

2025 Background Traffic 19 8 38 93 4 25 38 773 132 33 408 9

Project Traffic
Percent Assignment Inbound 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 40% 0% 0%
Inbound Project Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 12 0 0

Percent Assignment Outbound 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 40% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Outbound Project Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 35 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total External Site Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 35 0 0 0 12 0 0

Total Project Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 35 0 0 0 12 0 0

Hempstead Traffic Diversion 0 0 0 0 0 28 0 0 0 8 0 0

2025 Buildout Total 19 8 38 93 4 88 38 773 132 53 408 9
Percent Impact (Approach)

2.8%
PM PEAK HOUR

PM PHF = 0.98

Description Left Through Right Left Through Right Left Through Right Left Through Right

2021 Traffic Count 10 14 47 247 20 55 67 502 270 89 748 23
Count Balancing 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2021 Existing Traffic 10 14 47 247 20 55 67 502 270 89 748 23

Growth Factor (0.03 per year) 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.126 0.000 0.126 0.000 0.126 0.126 0.126 0.126 0.000
2025 Background Growth 0 0 0 31 0 7 0 63 34 11 94 0

Committed Projects
Olive Chapel Professional Park 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 19 0 0 4 0
Total Committed Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 19 0 0 4 0

2025 Background Traffic 10 14 47 278 20 62 67 584 304 100 846 23

Project Traffic
Percent Assignment Inbound 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 40% 0% 0%
Inbound Project Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 36 0 0

Percent Assignment Outbound 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 40% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Outbound Project Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 23 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total External Site Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 23 0 0 0 36 0 0

Total Project Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 23 0 0 0 36 0 0

Hempstead Traffic Diversion 0 0 0 0 0 16 0 0 0 28 0 0

2025 Buildout Total 10 14 47 278 20 101 67 584 304 164 846 23
Percent Impact (Approach)

2.4%

k:\dur_ldev\011270040 chapel ridge apex\t4 - analysis\[chapelridgeapartments-tiadata.xls]int. #1 2/9/22

Kelly Road

3.5%

2.6%

Wendhurst Court Kelly Road Kelly Road
Eastbound Northbound Southbound

Beaver Creek Commons Drive
Westbound

Overall Percent Impact

Overall Percent Impact

Wendhurst Court
Eastbound

Kelly Road
Northbound

Beaver Creek Commons Drive
SouthboundWestbound

0.0%18.9%0.0%

0.0% 5.8% 0.0%

- Page 833 -



INTERSECTION ANALYSIS SHEET
AM In AM Out PM In PM Out

Project: Chapel Ridge Apartments Net New Trips: 30 87 90 57
Location: Apex, NC
Scenario: Without Chapel Ridge Townhomes
Ct. Date 12/7/2021
N/S Street: Chapel Ridge Road Annual Growth Rate: 3.0% Existing Year: 2021
E/W Street: Olive Chapel Road Growth Factor: 0.125509 Buildout Year: 2025

AM PEAK HOUR
AM PHF = 0.85

Description Left Through Right Left Through Right Left Through Right Left Through Right

2021 Traffic Count 20 355 0 0 356 24 0 0 0 11 0 7
Count Balancing 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2021 Existing Traffic 20 355 0 0 356 24 0 0 0 11 0 7

Growth Factor (0.03 per year) 0.000 0.126 0.000 0.000 0.126 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2025 Background Growth 0 45 0 0 45 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Committed Projects
Olive Chapel Professional Park 32 0 0 0 0 32 0 0 0 4 0 5
Total Committed Traffic 32 0 0 0 0 32 0 0 0 4 0 5

2025 Background Traffic 52 400 0 0 401 56 0 0 0 15 0 12

Project Traffic
Percent Assignment Inbound 10% 0% 0% 0% 0% 20% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Inbound Project Traffic 3 0 0 0 0 6 0 0 0 0 0 0

Percent Assignment Outbound 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 20% 0% 10%
Outbound Project Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 17 0 9

Total External Site Traffic 3 0 0 0 0 6 0 0 0 17 0 9

Total Project Traffic 3 0 0 0 0 6 0 0 0 17 0 9

2025 Buildout Total 55 400 0 0 401 62 0 0 0 32 0 21
Percent Impact (Approach)

3.6%
PM PEAK HOUR

PM PHF = 0.93

Description Left Through Right Left Through Right Left Through Right Left Through Right

2021 Traffic Count 16 436 0 0 521 22 0 0 0 20 0 26
Count Balancing 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2021 Existing Traffic 16 436 0 0 521 22 0 0 0 20 0 26

Growth Factor (0.03 per year) 0.000 0.126 0.000 0.000 0.126 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2025 Background Growth 0 55 0 0 65 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Committed Projects
Olive Chapel Professional Park 7 0 0 0 0 7 0 0 0 31 0 32
Total Committed Traffic 7 0 0 0 0 7 0 0 0 31 0 32

2025 Background Traffic 23 491 0 0 586 29 0 0 0 51 0 58

Project Traffic
Percent Assignment Inbound 10% 0% 0% 0% 0% 20% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Inbound Project Traffic 9 0 0 0 0 18 0 0 0 0 0 0

Percent Assignment Outbound 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 20% 0% 10%
Outbound Project Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 11 0 6

Total External Site Traffic 9 0 0 0 0 18 0 0 0 11 0 6

Total Project Traffic 9 0 0 0 0 18 0 0 0 11 0 6

2025 Buildout Total 32 491 0 0 586 47 0 0 0 62 0 64
Percent Impact (Approach)

3.4%

k:\dur_ldev\011270040 chapel ridge apex\t4 - analysis\[chapelridgeapartments-tiadata.xls]int. #2 2/9/22

Olive Chapel Road Olive Chapel Road Chapel Ridge Road
Eastbound Westbound Northbound Southbound

0.7% 1.3% - 49.1%
Overall Percent Impact

Olive Chapel Road Olive Chapel Road Chapel Ridge Road
Eastbound Westbound Northbound Southbound

1.7% 2.8% - 13.5%
Overall Percent Impact

- Page 834 -



INTERSECTION ANALYSIS SHEET
AM In AM Out PM In PM Out

Project: Chapel Ridge Apartments Net New Trips: 30 87 90 57
Location: Apex, NC
Scenario: Without Chapel Ridge Townhomes
Ct. Date 12/7/2021
N/S Street: Chapel Ridge Road Annual Growth Rate: 3.0% Existing Year: 2021
E/W Street: Ackerman Hill Drive Growth Factor: 0.125509 Buildout Year: 2025

AM PEAK HOUR
AM PHF = 0.90

Description Left Through Right Left Through Right Left Through Right Left Through Right

2021 Traffic Count 0 0 0 11 0 0 0 0 12 0 0 0
Count Balancing 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2021 Existing Traffic 0 0 0 11 0 0 0 0 12 0 0 0

Growth Factor (0.03 per year) 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2025 Background Growth 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Committed Projects
Olive Chapel Professional Park 0 0 0 8 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0
Total Committed Traffic 0 0 0 8 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0

2025 Background Traffic 0 0 0 19 0 0 0 0 13 0 0 0

Project Traffic
Percent Assignment Inbound 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 15% 0% 10% 10% 0%
Inbound Project Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 5 0 3 3 0

Percent Assignment Outbound 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 10% 0% 10% 0% 0% 15% 0%
Outbound Project Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 9 0 9 0 0 13 0

Total External Site Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 9 0 14 0 3 16 0

Total Project Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 9 0 14 0 3 16 0

Hempstead Traffic Diversion 0 0 0 0 0 39 0 0 0 12 0 0

OliveChapProfPark Reassign 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 16 0

2025 Buildout Total 0 0 0 19 0 48 0 16 13 15 32 0
Percent Impact (Approach)

29.4%
PM PEAK HOUR

PM PHF = 0.90

Description Left Through Right Left Through Right Left Through Right Left Through Right

2021 Traffic Count 0 0 0 15 0 0 0 0 25 0 0 0
Count Balancing 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2021 Existing Traffic 0 0 0 15 0 0 0 0 25 0 0 0

Growth Factor (0.03 per year) 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2025 Background Growth 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Committed Projects
Olive Chapel Professional Park 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 7 0 0 0
Total Committed Traffic 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 7 0 0 0

2025 Background Traffic 0 0 0 17 0 0 0 0 32 0 0 0

Project Traffic
Percent Assignment Inbound 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 15% 0% 10% 10% 0%
Inbound Project Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 14 0 9 9 0

Percent Assignment Outbound 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 10% 0% 10% 0% 0% 15% 0%
Outbound Project Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 6 0 6 0 0 9 0

Total External Site Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 6 0 20 0 9 18 0

Total Project Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 6 0 20 0 9 18 0

Hempstead Traffic Diversion 0 0 0 0 0 22 0 0 0 38 0 0

OliveChapProfPark Reassign 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 14 0 0 4 0

2025 Buildout Total 0 0 0 17 0 28 0 34 32 47 22 0
Percent Impact (Approach)

29.4%

k:\dur_ldev\011270040 chapel ridge apex\t4 - analysis\[chapelridgeapartments-tiadata.xls]int. #3 2/9/22

Ackerman Hill Drive Chapel Ridge Road Chapel Ridge Road
Eastbound Westbound Northbound Southbound

- 13.4% 48.3% 40.4%
Overall Percent Impact

Ackerman Hill Drive Chapel Ridge Road Chapel Ridge Road
Eastbound Westbound Northbound Southbound

- 13.3% 30.3% 39.1%
Overall Percent Impact

- Page 835 -



INTERSECTION ANALYSIS SHEET
AM In AM Out PM In PM Out

Project: Chapel Ridge Apartments Net New Trips: 30 87 90 57
Location: Apex, NC
Scenario: Without Chapel Ridge Townhomes
Ct. Date 12/7/2021
N/S Street: Creekside Landing Drive Annual Growth Rate: 3.0% Existing Year: 2021
E/W Street: Beaver Creek Commons Drive Growth Factor: 0.125509 Buildout Year: 2025

AM PEAK HOUR
AM PHF = 0.84

Description Left Through Right Left Through Right Left Through Right Left Through Right

2021 Traffic Count 33 117 8 25 69 58 0 28 21 57 28 47
Count Balancing 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2021 Existing Traffic 33 117 8 25 69 58 0 28 21 57 28 47

Growth Factor (0.03 per year) 0.126 0.126 0.000 0.000 0.126 0.126 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.126 0.000 0.126
2025 Background Growth 4 15 0 0 9 7 0 0 0 7 0 6

Committed Projects
Olive Chapel Professional Park 0 0 0 4 0 0 0 0 1 0 4 0
Total Committed Traffic 0 0 0 4 0 0 0 0 1 0 4 0

2025 Background Traffic 37 132 8 29 78 65 0 28 22 64 32 53

Project Traffic
Percent Assignment Inbound 0% 0% 0% 0% 20% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 10%
Inbound Project Traffic 0 0 0 0 6 0 0 0 0 0 0 3

Percent Assignment Outbound 10% 20% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Outbound Project Traffic 9 17 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total External Site Traffic 9 17 0 0 6 0 0 0 0 0 0 3

Total Project Traffic 9 17 0 0 6 0 0 0 0 0 0 3

OliveChapProfPark Reassign 0 2 0 0 8 0 0 0 0 0 0 8

2025 Buildout Total 46 151 8 29 92 65 0 28 22 64 32 64
Percent Impact (Approach)

5.8%
PM PEAK HOUR

PM PHF = 0.94

Description Left Through Right Left Through Right Left Through Right Left Through Right

2021 Traffic Count 104 196 21 73 209 168 25 95 103 136 159 131
Count Balancing 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2021 Existing Traffic 104 196 21 73 209 168 25 95 103 136 159 131

Growth Factor (0.03 per year) 0.126 0.126 0.000 0.000 0.126 0.126 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.126 0.000 0.126
2025 Background Growth 13 25 0 0 26 21 0 0 0 17 0 16

Committed Projects
Olive Chapel Professional Park 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 3 4 0 1 0
Total Committed Traffic 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 3 4 0 1 0

2025 Background Traffic 117 221 21 74 235 189 25 98 107 153 160 147

Project Traffic
Percent Assignment Inbound 0% 0% 0% 0% 20% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 10%
Inbound Project Traffic 0 0 0 0 18 0 0 0 0 0 0 9

Percent Assignment Outbound 10% 20% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Outbound Project Traffic 6 11 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total External Site Traffic 6 11 0 0 18 0 0 0 0 0 0 9

Total Project Traffic 6 11 0 0 18 0 0 0 0 0 0 9

OliveChapProfPark Reassign 6 8 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 2

2025 Buildout Total 129 240 21 74 255 189 25 98 107 153 160 158
Percent Impact (Approach)

2.7%

k:\dur_ldev\011270040 chapel ridge apex\t4 - analysis\[chapelridgeapartments-tiadata.xls]int. #4 2/9/22

Northbound
Beaver Creek Commons Drive Beaver Creek Commons Drive Creekside Landing Drive Creekside Landing Drive

Eastbound Westbound Southbound

Beaver Creek Commons Drive Beaver Creek Commons Drive Creekside Landing Drive Creekside Landing Drive
Eastbound Westbound Northbound Southbound

1.9%

Overall Percent Impact

Overall Percent Impact

1.9%0.0%3.2%12.7%

4.4% 3.5% 0.0%

- Page 836 -



INTERSECTION ANALYSIS SHEET
AM In AM Out PM In PM Out

Project: Chapel Ridge Apartments Net New Trips: 30 87 90 57
Location: Apex, NC
Scenario: Without Chapel Ridge Townhomes
Ct. Date 12/7/2021
N/S Street: Beaver Creek Commons Drive Annual Growth Rate: 3.0% Existing Year: 2021
E/W Street: Proposed Site Access Growth Factor: 0.125509 Buildout Year: 2025

AM PEAK HOUR
AM PHF = 0.90

Description Left Through Right Left Through Right Left Through Right Left Through Right

2021 Traffic Count 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 187 0 0 111 0
Count Balancing 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2021 Existing Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 187 0 0 111 0

Growth Factor (0.03 per year) 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.126 0.000 0.000 0.126 0.000
2025 Background Growth 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 23 0 0 14 0

Committed Projects
Olive Chapel Professional Park 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total Committed Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

2025 Background Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 210 0 0 125 0

Project Traffic
Percent Assignment Inbound 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 40% 30% 0% 0%
Inbound Project Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 12 9 0 0

Percent Assignment Outbound 0% 0% 0% 40% 0% 30% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Outbound Project Traffic 0 0 0 35 0 26 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total External Site Traffic 0 0 0 35 0 26 0 0 12 9 0 0

Total Project Traffic 0 0 0 35 0 26 0 0 12 9 0 0

Hempstead Traffic Diversion 0 0 0 28 0 11 0 0 8 3 0 0

OliveChapProfPark Reassign 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 16 0 0

2025 Buildout Total 0 0 0 63 0 39 0 210 20 28 125 0
Percent Impact (Approach)

16.9%
PM PEAK HOUR

PM PHF = 0.90

Description Left Through Right Left Through Right Left Through Right Left Through Right

2021 Traffic Count 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 355 0 0 335 0
Count Balancing 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2021 Existing Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 355 0 0 335 0

Growth Factor (0.03 per year) 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.126 0.000 0.000 0.126 0.000
2025 Background Growth 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 45 0 0 42 0

Committed Projects
Olive Chapel Professional Park 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total Committed Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

2025 Background Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 400 0 0 377 0

Project Traffic
Percent Assignment Inbound 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 40% 30% 0% 0%
Inbound Project Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 36 27 0 0

Percent Assignment Outbound 0% 0% 0% 40% 0% 30% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Outbound Project Traffic 0 0 0 23 0 17 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total External Site Traffic 0 0 0 23 0 17 0 0 36 27 0 0

Total Project Traffic 0 0 0 23 0 17 0 0 36 27 0 0

Hempstead Traffic Diversion 0 0 0 16 0 6 0 0 28 10 0 0

OliveChapProfPark Reassign 0 0 0 0 0 14 0 0 0 4 0 0

2025 Buildout Total 0 0 0 39 0 37 0 400 64 41 377 0
Percent Impact (Approach)

10.8%

k:\dur_ldev\011270040 chapel ridge apex\t4 - analysis\[chapelridgeapartments-tiadata.xls]int. #5 2/9/22

Proposed Site Access Beaver Creek Commons Drive Beaver Creek Commons Drive
Eastbound Westbound Northbound Southbound

- 59.8% 5.2% 5.9%
Overall Percent Impact

Proposed Site Access Beaver Creek Commons Drive Beaver Creek Commons Drive
Eastbound Westbound Northbound Southbound

- 52.6% 7.8% 6.5%
Overall Percent Impact

- Page 837 -



INTERSECTION ANALYSIS SHEET
AM In AM Out PM In PM Out

Project: Chapel Ridge Apartments Net New Trips: 30 87 90 57
Location: Apex, NC
Scenario: Without Chapel Ridge Townhomes
Ct. Date -
N/S Street: Chapel Ridge Road Annual Growth Rate: 3.0% Existing Year: 2021
E/W Street: Proposed Site Access/North Site Driveway Growth Factor: 0.125509 Buildout Year: 2025

AM PEAK HOUR
AM PHF = 0.90

Description Left Through Right Left Through Right Left Through Right Left Through Right

2021 Traffic Count 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Count Balancing 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2021 Existing Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Growth Factor (0.03 per year) 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2025 Background Growth 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Committed Projects
Olive Chapel Professional Park 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total Committed Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

2025 Background Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Project Traffic
Percent Assignment Inbound 0% 20% 50% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Inbound Project Traffic 0 6 15 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Percent Assignment Outbound 0% 0% 0% 0% 20% 0% 50% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Outbound Project Traffic 0 0 0 0 17 0 44 0 0 0 0 0

Total External Site Traffic 0 6 15 0 17 0 44 0 0 0 0 0

Total Project Traffic 0 6 15 0 17 0 44 0 0 0 0 0

Hempstead Traffic Diversion 0 0 12 0 0 0 39 0 0 0 0 0

OliveChapProfPark Reassign 0 0 16 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0

2025 Buildout Total 0 6 43 0 17 0 85 0 0 0 0 0
Percent Impact (Approach)

54.3%
PM PEAK HOUR

PM PHF = 0.90

Description Left Through Right Left Through Right Left Through Right Left Through Right

2021 Traffic Count 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Count Balancing 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2021 Existing Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Growth Factor (0.03 per year) 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2025 Background Growth 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Committed Projects
Olive Chapel Professional Park 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total Committed Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

2025 Background Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Project Traffic
Percent Assignment Inbound 0% 20% 50% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Inbound Project Traffic 0 18 45 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Percent Assignment Outbound 0% 0% 0% 0% 20% 0% 50% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Outbound Project Traffic 0 0 0 0 11 0 29 0 0 0 0 0

Total External Site Traffic 0 18 45 0 11 0 29 0 0 0 0 0

Total Project Traffic 0 18 45 0 11 0 29 0 0 0 0 0

Hempstead Traffic Diversion 0 0 38 0 0 0 22 0 0 0 0 0

OliveChapProfPark Reassign 0 0 4 0 0 0 14 0 0 0 0 0

2025 Buildout Total 0 18 87 0 11 0 65 0 0 0 0 0
Percent Impact (Approach)

56.9%

k:\dur_ldev\011270040 chapel ridge apex\t4 - analysis\[chapelridgeapartments-tiadata.xls]int. #6 2/9/22

Proposed Site Access North Site Driveway Chapel Ridge Road
Eastbound Westbound Northbound Southbound

42.9% 100.0% 51.8% -
Overall Percent Impact

Proposed Site Access North Site Driveway Chapel Ridge Road
Eastbound Westbound Northbound Southbound

60.0% 100.0% 44.6% -
Overall Percent Impact

- Page 838 -



INTERSECTION ANALYSIS SHEET
AM In AM Out PM In PM Out

Project: Chapel Ridge Apartments Net New Trips: 30 87 90 57
Location: Apex, NC
Scenario: Without Chapel Ridge Townhomes
Ct. Date -
N/S Street: Central Site Driveway Annual Growth Rate: 3.0% Existing Year: 2021
E/W Street: Chapel Ridge Road Growth Factor: 0.125509 Buildout Year: 2025

AM PEAK HOUR
AM PHF = 0.90

Description Left Through Right Left Through Right Left Through Right Left Through Right

2021 Traffic Count 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Count Balancing 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2021 Existing Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Growth Factor (0.03 per year) 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2025 Background Growth 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Committed Projects
Olive Chapel Professional Park 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total Committed Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

2025 Background Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Project Traffic
Percent Assignment Inbound 5% 20% 25% 5% 0% 10% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Inbound Project Traffic 2 6 8 2 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 0

Percent Assignment Outbound 0% 0% 0% 0% 20% 0% 25% 0% 5% 10% 0% 5%
Outbound Project Traffic 0 0 0 0 17 0 22 0 4 9 0 4

Total External Site Traffic 2 6 8 2 17 3 22 0 4 9 0 4

Total Project Traffic 2 6 8 2 17 3 22 0 4 9 0 4

Hempstead Traffic Diversion 0 12 0 0 39 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

OliveChapProfPark Reassign 0 16 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

2025 Buildout Total 2 34 8 2 58 3 22 0 4 9 0 4
Percent Impact (Approach)

52.7%
PM PEAK HOUR

PM PHF = 0.90

Description Left Through Right Left Through Right Left Through Right Left Through Right

2021 Traffic Count 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Count Balancing 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2021 Existing Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Growth Factor (0.03 per year) 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2025 Background Growth 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Committed Projects
Olive Chapel Professional Park 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total Committed Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

2025 Background Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Project Traffic
Percent Assignment Inbound 5% 20% 25% 5% 0% 10% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Inbound Project Traffic 5 18 23 5 0 9 0 0 0 0 0 0

Percent Assignment Outbound 0% 0% 0% 0% 20% 0% 25% 0% 5% 10% 0% 5%
Outbound Project Traffic 0 0 0 0 11 0 14 0 3 6 0 3

Total External Site Traffic 5 18 23 5 11 9 14 0 3 6 0 3

Total Project Traffic 5 18 23 5 11 9 14 0 3 6 0 3

Hempstead Traffic Diversion 0 38 0 0 22 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

OliveChapProfPark Reassign 0 4 0 0 14 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

2025 Buildout Total 5 60 23 5 47 9 14 0 3 6 0 3
Percent Impact (Approach)

55.4%

k:\dur_ldev\011270040 chapel ridge apex\t4 - analysis\[chapelridgeapartments-tiadata.xls]int. #7 2/9/22

Chapel Ridge Road Chapel Ridge Road Central Site Driveway Central Site Driveway
Eastbound Westbound Northbound Southbound

36.4% 34.9% 100.0% 100.0%
Overall Percent Impact

Chapel Ridge Road Chapel Ridge Road Central Site Driveway Central Site Driveway
Eastbound Westbound Northbound Southbound

52.3% 41.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Overall Percent Impact

- Page 839 -



INTERSECTION ANALYSIS SHEET
AM In AM Out PM In PM Out

Project: Chapel Ridge Apartments Net New Trips: 30 87 90 57
Location: Apex, NC
Scenario: Without Chapel Ridge Townhomes
Ct. Date Balanced with Ackerman Hill
N/S Street: Chapel Ridge Road Annual Growth Rate: 3.0% Existing Year: 2021
E/W Street: South Site Driveway Growth Factor: 0.125509 Buildout Year: 2025

AM PEAK HOUR
AM PHF = 0.90

Description Left Through Right Left Through Right Left Through Right Left Through Right

2021 Traffic Count 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Count Balancing 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 12 0 0 11 0
2021 Existing Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 12 0 0 11 0

Growth Factor (0.03 per year) 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2025 Background Growth 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Committed Projects
Olive Chapel Professional Park 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 8 0
Total Committed Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 8 0

2025 Background Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 13 0 0 19 0

Project Traffic
Percent Assignment Inbound 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 10% 15% 5% 5% 0% 5%
Inbound Project Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 5 2 2 0 2

Percent Assignment Outbound 5% 0% 10% 5% 0% 5% 0% 0% 0% 0% 15% 0%
Outbound Project Traffic 4 0 9 4 0 4 0 0 0 0 13 0

Total External Site Traffic 4 0 9 4 0 4 3 5 2 2 13 2

Total Project Traffic 4 0 9 4 0 4 3 5 2 2 13 2

OliveChapProfPark Reassign 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 16 0

2025 Buildout Total 4 0 9 4 0 4 3 20 2 2 48 2
Percent Impact (Approach)

49.0%
PM PEAK HOUR

PM PHF = 0.90

Description Left Through Right Left Through Right Left Through Right Left Through Right

2021 Traffic Count 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Count Balancing 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 25 0 0 15 0
2021 Existing Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 25 0 0 15 0

Growth Factor (0.03 per year) 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2025 Background Growth 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Committed Projects
Olive Chapel Professional Park 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 7 0 0 2 0
Total Committed Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 7 0 0 2 0

2025 Background Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 32 0 0 17 0

Project Traffic
Percent Assignment Inbound 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 10% 15% 5% 5% 0% 5%
Inbound Project Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 9 14 5 5 0 5

Percent Assignment Outbound 5% 0% 10% 5% 0% 5% 0% 0% 0% 0% 15% 0%
Outbound Project Traffic 3 0 6 3 0 3 0 0 0 0 9 0

Total External Site Traffic 3 0 6 3 0 3 9 14 5 5 9 5

Total Project Traffic 3 0 6 3 0 3 9 14 5 5 9 5

OliveChapProfPark Reassign 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 14 0 0 4 0

2025 Buildout Total 3 0 6 3 0 3 9 60 5 5 30 5
Percent Impact (Approach)

48.1%

k:\dur_ldev\011270040 chapel ridge apex\t4 - analysis\[chapelridgeapartments-tiadata.xls]int. #8 2/9/22

South Site Driveway South Site Driveway Chapel Ridge Road Chapel Ridge Road
Eastbound Westbound Northbound Southbound

100.0% 100.0% 40.0% 32.7%
Overall Percent Impact

South Site Driveway South Site Driveway Chapel Ridge Road Chapel Ridge Road
Eastbound Westbound Northbound Southbound

100.0% 100.0% 37.8% 47.5%
Overall Percent Impact

- Page 840 -



INTERSECTION ANALYSIS SHEET
AM In AM Out PM In PM Out

Project: Chapel Ridge Apartments Net New Trips: 30 87 90 57
Location: Apex, NC
Scenario: Without Chapel Ridge Townhomes
Ct. Date Balanced with Ackerman Hill
N/S Street: Site Driveway Annual Growth Rate: 3.0% Existing Year: 2021
E/W Street: Ackerman Hill Drive Growth Factor: 0.125509 Buildout Year: 2025

AM PEAK HOUR
AM PHF = 0.90

Description Left Through Right Left Through Right Left Through Right Left Through Right

2021 Traffic Count 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Count Balancing 0 12 0 0 11 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2021 Existing Traffic 0 12 0 0 11 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Growth Factor (0.03 per year) 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2025 Background Growth 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Committed Projects
Olive Chapel Professional Park 0 1 0 0 8 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total Committed Traffic 0 1 0 0 8 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

2025 Background Traffic 0 13 0 0 19 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Project Traffic
Percent Assignment Inbound 0% 0% 10% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Inbound Project Traffic 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Percent Assignment Outbound 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 10% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Outbound Project Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 9 0 0 0 0 0

Total External Site Traffic 0 0 3 0 0 0 9 0 0 0 0 0

Total Project Traffic 0 0 3 0 0 0 9 0 0 0 0 0

Hempstead Traffic Diversion 0 12 0 0 39 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

OliveChapProfPark Reassign 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

2025 Buildout Total 0 25 3 0 58 0 9 0 0 0 0 0
Percent Impact (Approach)

12.6%
PM PEAK HOUR

PM PHF = 0.90

Description Left Through Right Left Through Right Left Through Right Left Through Right

2021 Traffic Count 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Count Balancing 0 25 0 0 15 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2021 Existing Traffic 0 25 0 0 15 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Growth Factor (0.03 per year) 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2025 Background Growth 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Committed Projects
Olive Chapel Professional Park 0 7 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total Committed Traffic 0 7 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

2025 Background Traffic 0 32 0 0 17 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Project Traffic
Percent Assignment Inbound 0% 0% 10% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Inbound Project Traffic 0 0 9 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Percent Assignment Outbound 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 10% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Outbound Project Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 6 0 0 0 0 0

Total External Site Traffic 0 0 9 0 0 0 6 0 0 0 0 0

Total Project Traffic 0 0 9 0 0 0 6 0 0 0 0 0

Hempstead Traffic Diversion 0 38 0 0 22 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

OliveChapProfPark Reassign 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

2025 Buildout Total 0 70 9 0 39 0 6 0 0 0 0 0
Percent Impact (Approach)

12.1%

k:\dur_ldev\011270040 chapel ridge apex\t4 - analysis\[chapelridgeapartments-tiadata.xls]int. #9 2/9/22

Ackerman Hill Drive Ackerman Hill Drive Site Driveway
Eastbound Westbound Northbound Southbound

10.7% 0.0% 100.0% -
Overall Percent Impact

Ackerman Hill Drive Ackerman Hill Drive Site Driveway
Eastbound Westbound Northbound Southbound

11.4% 0.0% 100.0% -
Overall Percent Impact

- Page 841 -



 

 

Appendix F: 

Synchro & SIDRA Output: 

Existing (2021) 

- Page 842 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments Existing AM
1: Kelly Road & Wendhurst Court/Beaver Creek Commons Drive 02/08/2022

K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Synchro\1 - Existing AM.syn Synchro 10 Report
Kimley-Horn Page 1

Lane Group EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 19 8 38 83 4 22 38 684 117 29 346 9
Future Volume (vph) 19 8 38 83 4 22 38 684 117 29 346 9
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Width (ft) 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12
Grade (%) 0% 1% 3% -4%
Storage Length (ft) 0 0 275 0 275 0 170 0
Storage Lanes 0 0 1 1 1 0 1 0
Taper Length (ft) 25 50 125 170
Satd. Flow (prot) 0 1641 0 0 1768 1575 1743 3409 0 1753 1838 0
Flt Permitted 0.887 0.699 0.524 0.320
Satd. Flow (perm) 0 1477 0 0 1296 1575 961 3409 0 591 1838 0
Right Turn on Red Yes Yes Yes Yes
Satd. Flow (RTOR) 39 32 25 2
Link Speed (mph) 25 35 45 45
Link Distance (ft) 513 641 1004 905
Travel Time (s) 14.0 12.5 15.2 13.7
Confl. Peds. (#/hr)
Confl. Bikes (#/hr)
Peak Hour Factor 0.98 0.98 0.98 0.98 0.98 0.98 0.98 0.98 0.98 0.98 0.98 0.98
Growth Factor 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
Heavy Vehicles (%) 5% 5% 5% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 5% 5% 5%
Bus Blockages (#/hr) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Parking  (#/hr)
Mid-Block Traffic (%) 0% 0% 0% 0%
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 0 66 0 0 89 22 39 817 0 30 362 0
Turn Type Perm NA pm+pt NA pm+ov D.P+P NA D.P+P NA
Protected Phases 4 3 8 1 5 2 1 6
Permitted Phases 4 8 8 6 2
Detector Phase 4 4 3 8 1 5 2 1 6
Switch Phase
Minimum Initial (s) 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 12.0 7.0 12.0
Minimum Split (s) 30.0 30.0 14.0 30.0 14.0 14.0 30.0 14.0 25.0
Total Split (s) 20.0 20.0 15.0 35.0 15.0 15.0 70.0 15.0 70.0
Total Split (%) 16.7% 16.7% 12.5% 29.2% 12.5% 12.5% 58.3% 12.5% 58.3%
Yellow Time (s) 3.2 3.2 3.0 3.1 3.0 3.0 4.9 3.0 4.9
All-Red Time (s) 2.6 2.6 2.8 2.7 2.8 2.4 1.6 2.8 1.6
Lost Time Adjust (s) -0.8 -0.8 -0.8 -0.4 -1.5 -0.8 -1.5
Total Lost Time (s) 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0
Lead/Lag Lead Lead Lag Lead Lead Lag Lead Lag
Lead-Lag Optimize? Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
Recall Mode None None None None None None C-Max None C-Max
Act Effct Green (s) 13.3 13.3 26.1 93.7 86.4 92.7 89.2
Actuated g/C Ratio 0.11 0.11 0.22 0.78 0.72 0.77 0.74
v/c Ratio 0.33 0.62 0.06 0.05 0.33 0.06 0.26
Control Delay 27.6 68.5 7.4 3.2 7.3 3.3 6.8
Queue Delay 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total Delay 27.6 68.5 7.4 3.2 7.3 3.3 6.8
LOS C E A A A A A
Approach Delay 27.6 56.4 7.1 6.5
Approach LOS C E A A
Queue Length 50th (ft) 19 67 0 5 113 4 92
Queue Length 95th (ft) 60 118 15 15 173 12 160
Internal Link Dist (ft) 433 561 924 825
Turn Bay Length (ft) 275 170
Base Capacity (vph) 230 324 396 827 2462 561 1367
Starvation Cap Reductn 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Spillback Cap Reductn 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Storage Cap Reductn 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Reduced v/c Ratio 0.29 0.27 0.06 0.05 0.33 0.05 0.26

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Cycle Length: 120
Actuated Cycle Length: 120

- Page 843 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments Existing AM
1: Kelly Road & Wendhurst Court/Beaver Creek Commons Drive 02/08/2022

K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Synchro\1 - Existing AM.syn Synchro 10 Report
Kimley-Horn Page 2

Offset: 0 (0%), Referenced to phase 2:NBSB and 6:NBSB, Start of Green
Natural Cycle: 90
Control Type: Actuated-Coordinated
Maximum v/c Ratio: 0.62
Intersection Signal Delay: 11.7 Intersection LOS: B
Intersection Capacity Utilization 51.4% ICU Level of Service A
Analysis Period (min) 15
Description: Signal No. 052254

Splits and Phases:     1: Kelly Road & Wendhurst Court/Beaver Creek Commons Drive

- Page 844 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments Existing AM
2: Olive Chapel Road & Chapel Ridge Road 02/08/2022

K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Synchro\1 - Existing AM.syn Synchro 10 Report
Kimley-Horn Page 3

Lane Group EBL EBT WBT WBR SBL SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 20 355 356 24 11 7
Future Volume (vph) 20 355 356 24 11 7
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Width (ft) 12 12 12 12 12 12
Grade (%) 0% 0% 0%
Storage Length (ft) 150 0 75 0
Storage Lanes 1 0 1 1
Taper Length (ft) 300 25
Satd. Flow (prot) 1736 1827 1812 0 1703 1524
Flt Permitted 0.950 0.950
Satd. Flow (perm) 1736 1827 1812 0 1703 1524
Link Speed (mph) 45 45 25
Link Distance (ft) 797 812 509
Travel Time (s) 12.1 12.3 13.9
Confl. Peds. (#/hr)
Confl. Bikes (#/hr)
Peak Hour Factor 0.85 0.85 0.85 0.85 0.85 0.85
Growth Factor 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
Heavy Vehicles (%) 4% 4% 4% 4% 6% 6%
Bus Blockages (#/hr) 0 0 0 0 0 0
Parking  (#/hr)
Mid-Block Traffic (%) 0% 0% 0%
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 24 418 447 0 13 8
Sign Control Free Free Stop

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Control Type: Unsignalized
Intersection Capacity Utilization 30.2% ICU Level of Service A
Analysis Period (min) 15

- Page 845 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments Existing AM
2: Olive Chapel Road & Chapel Ridge Road 02/08/2022

K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Synchro\1 - Existing AM.syn Synchro 10 Report
Kimley-Horn Page 4

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 0.5

Movement EBL EBT WBT WBR SBL SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 20 355 356 24 11 7
Future Vol, veh/h 20 355 356 24 11 7
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Free Free Free Free Stop Stop
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length 150 - - - 75 0
Veh in Median Storage, # - 0 0 - 0 -
Grade, % - 0 0 - 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 85 85 85 85 85 85
Heavy Vehicles, % 4 4 4 4 6 6
Mvmt Flow 24 418 419 28 13 8

Major/Minor Major1 Major2 Minor2
Conflicting Flow All 447 0 - 0 899 433
          Stage 1 - - - - 433 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 466 -
Critical Hdwy 4.14 - - - 6.46 6.26
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 - - - - 5.46 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 - - - - 5.46 -
Follow-up Hdwy 2.236 - - - 3.554 3.354
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 1103 - - - 304 614
          Stage 1 - - - - 646 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 623 -
Platoon blocked, % - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver 1103 - - - 297 614
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver - - - - 422 -
          Stage 1 - - - - 632 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 623 -

Approach EB WB SB
HCM Control Delay, s 0.4 0 12.7
HCM LOS B

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt EBL EBT WBT WBR SBLn1 SBLn2
Capacity (veh/h) 1103 - - - 422 614
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.021 - - - 0.031 0.013
HCM Control Delay (s) 8.3 - - - 13.8 10.9
HCM Lane LOS A - - - B B
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0.1 - - - 0.1 0

- Page 846 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments Existing AM
3: Chapel Ridge Road & Ackerman Hill Drive 02/08/2022

K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Synchro\1 - Existing AM.syn Synchro 10 Report
Kimley-Horn Page 5

Lane Group WBL WBR NBT NBR SBL SBT
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 11 4 4 12 4 4
Future Volume (vph) 11 4 4 12 4 4
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Width (ft) 12 12 12 12 12 12
Grade (%) 0% 0% 0%
Storage Length (ft) 0 0 0 0
Storage Lanes 1 0 0 0
Taper Length (ft) 25 25
Satd. Flow (prot) 1735 0 1671 0 0 1818
Flt Permitted 0.964 0.976
Satd. Flow (perm) 1735 0 1671 0 0 1818
Link Speed (mph) 25 25 25
Link Distance (ft) 289 696 330
Travel Time (s) 7.9 19.0 9.0
Confl. Peds. (#/hr)
Confl. Bikes (#/hr)
Peak Hour Factor 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90
Growth Factor 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
Heavy Vehicles (%) 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2%
Bus Blockages (#/hr) 0 0 0 0 0 0
Parking  (#/hr)
Mid-Block Traffic (%) 0% 0% 0%
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 16 0 17 0 0 8
Sign Control Stop Free Free

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Control Type: Unsignalized
Intersection Capacity Utilization 13.8% ICU Level of Service A
Analysis Period (min) 15

- Page 847 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments Existing AM
3: Chapel Ridge Road & Ackerman Hill Drive 02/08/2022

K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Synchro\1 - Existing AM.syn Synchro 10 Report
Kimley-Horn Page 6

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 4

Movement WBL WBR NBT NBR SBL SBT
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 11 4 4 12 4 4
Future Vol, veh/h 11 4 4 12 4 4
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length 0 - - - - -
Veh in Median Storage, # 0 - 0 - - 0
Grade, % 0 - 0 - - 0
Peak Hour Factor 90 90 90 90 90 90
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 12 4 4 13 4 4

Major/Minor Minor1 Major1 Major2
Conflicting Flow All 23 11 0 0 17 0
          Stage 1 11 - - - - -
          Stage 2 12 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 6.42 6.22 - - 4.12 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 5.42 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 5.42 - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.518 3.318 - - 2.218 -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 993 1070 - - 1600 -
          Stage 1 1012 - - - - -
          Stage 2 1011 - - - - -
Platoon blocked, % - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver 990 1070 - - 1600 -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver 990 - - - - -
          Stage 1 1012 - - - - -
          Stage 2 1008 - - - - -

Approach WB NB SB
HCM Control Delay, s 8.6 0 3.6
HCM LOS A

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBT NBR WBLn1 SBL SBT
Capacity (veh/h) - - 1010 1600 -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio - - 0.017 0.003 -
HCM Control Delay (s) - - 8.6 7.3 0
HCM Lane LOS - - A A A
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) - - 0.1 0 -

- Page 848 -



MOVEMENT SUMMARY
Site: 4 [Existing AM (Site Folder: General)]

Beaver Creek Commons Drive at Creekside Landing Drive
Site Category: Chapel Ridge Apartments
Roundabout

Vehicle Movement Performance
INPUT

VOLUMES
DEMAND
FLOWS

95% BACK OF
QUEUE

Mov
ID

Turn Deg.
Satn

Aver.
Delay

Level of
Service

Prop.
Que

Effective
Stop
Rate

Aver.
No.

Cycles

Aver.
Speed

[ Total HV ] [ Total HV ] [ Veh. Dist ]
veh/h % veh/h % v/c sec veh ft mph

South: Creekside Landing Drive

3 L2 4 6.0 5 6.0 0.063 4.1 LOS A 0.3 6.6 0.38 0.24 0.38 21.2
8 T1 28 6.0 33 6.0 0.063 4.1 LOS A 0.3 6.6 0.38 0.24 0.38 19.6
18 R2 21 6.0 25 6.0 0.063 4.1 LOS A 0.3 6.6 0.38 0.24 0.38 18.0
Approach 53 6.0 63 6.0 0.063 4.1 LOS A 0.3 6.6 0.38 0.24 0.38 19.1

East: Beaver Creek Commons Drive

1 L2 25 2.0 30 2.0 0.145 4.1 LOS A 0.7 17.3 0.22 0.10 0.22 16.6
6 T1 69 2.0 82 2.0 0.145 4.1 LOS A 0.7 17.3 0.22 0.10 0.22 21.3
16 R2 58 2.0 69 2.0 0.145 4.1 LOS A 0.7 17.3 0.22 0.10 0.22 18.8
Approach 152 2.0 181 2.0 0.145 4.1 LOS A 0.7 17.3 0.22 0.10 0.22 19.7

North: Creekside Landing Drive

7 L2 57 2.0 68 2.0 0.131 4.1 LOS A 0.6 15.2 0.27 0.14 0.27 19.8
4 T1 28 2.0 33 2.0 0.131 4.1 LOS A 0.6 15.2 0.27 0.14 0.27 16.3
14 R2 47 2.0 56 2.0 0.131 4.1 LOS A 0.6 15.2 0.27 0.14 0.27 19.2
Approach 132 2.0 157 2.0 0.131 4.1 LOS A 0.6 15.2 0.27 0.14 0.27 18.9

West: Beaver Creek Commons Drive

5 L2 33 3.0 39 3.0 0.161 4.5 LOS A 0.7 19.0 0.30 0.16 0.30 21.1
2 T1 117 3.0 139 3.0 0.161 4.5 LOS A 0.7 19.0 0.30 0.16 0.30 21.0
12 R2 8 3.0 10 3.0 0.161 4.5 LOS A 0.7 19.0 0.30 0.16 0.30 18.9
Approach 158 3.0 188 3.0 0.161 4.5 LOS A 0.7 19.0 0.30 0.16 0.30 20.9

All Vehicles 495 2.7 589 2.7 0.161 4.2 LOS A 0.7 19.0 0.28 0.15 0.28 19.9

Site Level of Service (LOS) Method: Delay & v/c (HCM 6). Site LOS Method is specified in the Parameter Settings dialog (Site tab).
Roundabout LOS Method: Same as Sign Control.
Vehicle movement LOS values are based on average delay and v/c ratio (degree of saturation) per movement.
LOS F will result if v/c > 1 irrespective of movement delay value (does not apply for approaches and intersection).
Intersection and Approach LOS values are based on average delay for all movements (v/c not used as specified in HCM 6).
Roundabout Capacity Model: US HCM 6.
Delay Model: HCM Delay Formula (Geometric Delay is not included).
Queue Model: HCM Queue Formula.
Gap-Acceptance Capacity: Traditional M1.
HV (%) values are calculated for All Movement Classes of All Heavy Vehicle Model Designation.

SIDRA INTERSECTION 9.0 | Copyright © 2000-2020 Akcelik and Associates Pty Ltd | sidrasolutions.com
Organisation: KIMLEY-HORN & ASSOCIATES INC | Licence: NETWORK / Enterprise | Processed: Tuesday, February 8, 2022 2:38:59 PM
Project: K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Sidra\BC Commons @ Creekside Landing.sip9

- Page 849 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments Existing PM
1: Kelly Road & Wendhurst Court/Beaver Creek Commons Drive 02/08/2022

K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Synchro\2 - Existing PM.syn Synchro 10 Report
Kimley-Horn Page 1

Lane Group EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 10 14 47 247 20 55 67 502 270 89 748 23
Future Volume (vph) 10 14 47 247 20 55 67 502 270 89 748 23
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Width (ft) 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12
Grade (%) 0% 1% 3% -4%
Storage Length (ft) 0 0 275 0 275 0 170 0
Storage Lanes 0 0 1 1 1 0 1 0
Taper Length (ft) 25 50 125 170
Satd. Flow (prot) 0 1683 0 0 1772 1575 1743 3275 0 1805 1891 0
Flt Permitted 0.945 0.709 0.174 0.293
Satd. Flow (perm) 0 1602 0 0 1314 1575 319 3275 0 556 1891 0
Right Turn on Red Yes Yes Yes Yes
Satd. Flow (RTOR) 48 56 102 2
Link Speed (mph) 25 35 45 45
Link Distance (ft) 513 641 1004 905
Travel Time (s) 14.0 12.5 15.2 13.7
Confl. Peds. (#/hr) 1 1 1 1
Confl. Bikes (#/hr)
Peak Hour Factor 0.98 0.98 0.98 0.98 0.98 0.98 0.98 0.98 0.98 0.98 0.98 0.98
Growth Factor 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
Heavy Vehicles (%) 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2%
Bus Blockages (#/hr) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Parking  (#/hr)
Mid-Block Traffic (%) 0% 0% 0% 0%
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 0 72 0 0 272 56 68 788 0 91 786 0
Turn Type Perm NA pm+pt NA pm+ov D.P+P NA D.P+P NA
Protected Phases 4 3 8 1 5 2 1 6
Permitted Phases 4 8 8 6 2
Detector Phase 4 4 3 8 1 5 2 1 6
Switch Phase
Minimum Initial (s) 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 12.0 7.0 12.0
Minimum Split (s) 30.0 30.0 14.0 30.0 14.0 14.0 30.0 14.0 25.0
Total Split (s) 25.0 25.0 20.0 45.0 20.0 15.0 55.0 20.0 60.0
Total Split (%) 20.8% 20.8% 16.7% 37.5% 16.7% 12.5% 45.8% 16.7% 50.0%
Yellow Time (s) 3.2 3.2 3.0 3.1 3.0 3.0 4.9 3.0 4.9
All-Red Time (s) 2.6 2.6 2.8 2.7 2.8 2.4 1.6 2.8 1.6
Lost Time Adjust (s) -0.8 -0.8 -0.8 -0.4 -1.5 -0.8 -1.5
Total Lost Time (s) 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0
Lead/Lag Lead Lead Lag Lead Lead Lag Lead Lag
Lead-Lag Optimize? Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
Recall Mode None None None None None None C-Max None C-Max
Act Effct Green (s) 30.7 30.7 44.0 75.3 66.0 74.3 69.1
Actuated g/C Ratio 0.26 0.26 0.37 0.63 0.55 0.62 0.58
v/c Ratio 0.16 0.81 0.09 0.23 0.43 0.21 0.72
Control Delay 13.7 59.7 5.4 11.0 15.6 10.1 26.3
Queue Delay 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total Delay 13.7 59.7 5.4 11.0 15.6 10.1 26.3
LOS B E A B B B C
Approach Delay 13.7 50.5 15.3 24.6
Approach LOS B D B C
Queue Length 50th (ft) 14 197 0 17 155 23 444
Queue Length 95th (ft) 46 274 23 42 249 53 #797
Internal Link Dist (ft) 433 561 924 825
Turn Bay Length (ft) 275 170
Base Capacity (vph) 445 438 697 323 1846 523 1089
Starvation Cap Reductn 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Spillback Cap Reductn 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Storage Cap Reductn 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Reduced v/c Ratio 0.16 0.62 0.08 0.21 0.43 0.17 0.72

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Cycle Length: 120
Actuated Cycle Length: 120

- Page 850 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments Existing PM
1: Kelly Road & Wendhurst Court/Beaver Creek Commons Drive 02/08/2022

K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Synchro\2 - Existing PM.syn Synchro 10 Report
Kimley-Horn Page 2

Offset: 0 (0%), Referenced to phase 2:NBSB and 6:NBSB, Start of Green
Natural Cycle: 100
Control Type: Actuated-Coordinated
Maximum v/c Ratio: 0.81
Intersection Signal Delay: 24.5 Intersection LOS: C
Intersection Capacity Utilization 80.5% ICU Level of Service D
Analysis Period (min) 15
Description: Signal No. 052254
#    95th percentile volume exceeds capacity, queue may be longer.
     Queue shown is maximum after two cycles.

Splits and Phases:     1: Kelly Road & Wendhurst Court/Beaver Creek Commons Drive

- Page 851 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments Existing PM
2: Olive Chapel Road & Chapel Ridge Road 02/08/2022

K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Synchro\2 - Existing PM.syn Synchro 10 Report
Kimley-Horn Page 3

Lane Group EBL EBT WBT WBR SBL SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 16 436 521 22 20 26
Future Volume (vph) 16 436 521 22 20 26
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Width (ft) 12 12 12 12 12 12
Grade (%) 0% 0% 0%
Storage Length (ft) 150 0 75 0
Storage Lanes 1 0 1 1
Taper Length (ft) 300 25
Satd. Flow (prot) 1770 1863 1852 0 1770 1583
Flt Permitted 0.950 0.950
Satd. Flow (perm) 1770 1863 1852 0 1770 1583
Link Speed (mph) 45 45 25
Link Distance (ft) 797 812 509
Travel Time (s) 12.1 12.3 13.9
Confl. Peds. (#/hr)
Confl. Bikes (#/hr)
Peak Hour Factor 0.93 0.93 0.93 0.93 0.93 0.93
Growth Factor 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
Heavy Vehicles (%) 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2%
Bus Blockages (#/hr) 0 0 0 0 0 0
Parking  (#/hr)
Mid-Block Traffic (%) 0% 0% 0%
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 17 469 584 0 22 28
Sign Control Free Free Stop

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Control Type: Unsignalized
Intersection Capacity Utilization 38.8% ICU Level of Service A
Analysis Period (min) 15

- Page 852 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments Existing PM
2: Olive Chapel Road & Chapel Ridge Road 02/08/2022

K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Synchro\2 - Existing PM.syn Synchro 10 Report
Kimley-Horn Page 4

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 0.7

Movement EBL EBT WBT WBR SBL SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 16 436 521 22 20 26
Future Vol, veh/h 16 436 521 22 20 26
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Free Free Free Free Stop Stop
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length 150 - - - 75 0
Veh in Median Storage, # - 0 0 - 0 -
Grade, % - 0 0 - 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 93 93 93 93 93 93
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 17 469 560 24 22 28

Major/Minor Major1 Major2 Minor2
Conflicting Flow All 584 0 - 0 1075 572
          Stage 1 - - - - 572 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 503 -
Critical Hdwy 4.12 - - - 6.42 6.22
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 - - - - 5.42 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 - - - - 5.42 -
Follow-up Hdwy 2.218 - - - 3.518 3.318
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 991 - - - 243 520
          Stage 1 - - - - 565 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 607 -
Platoon blocked, % - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver 991 - - - 239 520
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver - - - - 373 -
          Stage 1 - - - - 555 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 607 -

Approach EB WB SB
HCM Control Delay, s 0.3 0 13.6
HCM LOS B

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt EBL EBT WBT WBR SBLn1 SBLn2
Capacity (veh/h) 991 - - - 373 520
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.017 - - - 0.058 0.054
HCM Control Delay (s) 8.7 - - - 15.2 12.3
HCM Lane LOS A - - - C B
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0.1 - - - 0.2 0.2

- Page 853 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments Existing PM
3: Chapel Ridge Road & Ackerman Hill Drive 02/08/2022

K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Synchro\2 - Existing PM.syn Synchro 10 Report
Kimley-Horn Page 5

Lane Group WBL WBR NBT NBR SBL SBT
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 15 4 4 25 4 4
Future Volume (vph) 15 4 4 25 4 4
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Width (ft) 12 12 12 12 12 12
Grade (%) 0% 0% 0%
Storage Length (ft) 0 0 0 0
Storage Lanes 1 0 0 0
Taper Length (ft) 25 25
Satd. Flow (prot) 1744 0 1643 0 0 1818
Flt Permitted 0.961 0.976
Satd. Flow (perm) 1744 0 1643 0 0 1818
Link Speed (mph) 25 25 25
Link Distance (ft) 289 696 330
Travel Time (s) 7.9 19.0 9.0
Confl. Peds. (#/hr)
Confl. Bikes (#/hr)
Peak Hour Factor 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90
Growth Factor 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
Heavy Vehicles (%) 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2%
Bus Blockages (#/hr) 0 0 0 0 0 0
Parking  (#/hr)
Mid-Block Traffic (%) 0% 0% 0%
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 21 0 32 0 0 8
Sign Control Stop Free Free

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Control Type: Unsignalized
Intersection Capacity Utilization 13.8% ICU Level of Service A
Analysis Period (min) 15

- Page 854 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments Existing PM
3: Chapel Ridge Road & Ackerman Hill Drive 02/08/2022

K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Synchro\2 - Existing PM.syn Synchro 10 Report
Kimley-Horn Page 6

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 3.5

Movement WBL WBR NBT NBR SBL SBT
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 15 4 4 25 4 4
Future Vol, veh/h 15 4 4 25 4 4
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length 0 - - - - -
Veh in Median Storage, # 0 - 0 - - 0
Grade, % 0 - 0 - - 0
Peak Hour Factor 90 90 90 90 90 90
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 17 4 4 28 4 4

Major/Minor Minor1 Major1 Major2
Conflicting Flow All 30 18 0 0 32 0
          Stage 1 18 - - - - -
          Stage 2 12 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 6.42 6.22 - - 4.12 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 5.42 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 5.42 - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.518 3.318 - - 2.218 -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 984 1061 - - 1580 -
          Stage 1 1005 - - - - -
          Stage 2 1011 - - - - -
Platoon blocked, % - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver 981 1061 - - 1580 -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver 981 - - - - -
          Stage 1 1005 - - - - -
          Stage 2 1008 - - - - -

Approach WB NB SB
HCM Control Delay, s 8.7 0 3.6
HCM LOS A

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBT NBR WBLn1 SBL SBT
Capacity (veh/h) - - 997 1580 -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio - - 0.021 0.003 -
HCM Control Delay (s) - - 8.7 7.3 0
HCM Lane LOS - - A A A
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) - - 0.1 0 -

- Page 855 -



MOVEMENT SUMMARY
Site: 4 [Existing PM (Site Folder: General)]

Beaver Creek Commons Drive at Creekside Landing Drive
Site Category: Chapel Ridge Apartments
Roundabout

Vehicle Movement Performance
INPUT

VOLUMES
DEMAND
FLOWS

95% BACK OF
QUEUE

Mov
ID

Turn Deg.
Satn

Aver.
Delay

Level of
Service

Prop.
Que

Effective
Stop
Rate

Aver.
No.

Cycles

Aver.
Speed

[ Total HV ] [ Total HV ] [ Veh. Dist ]
veh/h % veh/h % v/c sec veh ft mph

South: Creekside Landing Drive

3 L2 25 2.0 27 2.0 0.284 7.4 LOS A 1.3 33.3 0.59 0.55 0.59 23.2
8 T1 95 2.0 101 2.0 0.284 7.4 LOS A 1.3 33.3 0.59 0.55 0.59 23.1
18 R2 103 2.0 110 2.0 0.284 7.4 LOS A 1.3 33.3 0.59 0.55 0.59 22.7
Approach 223 2.0 237 2.0 0.284 7.4 LOS A 1.3 33.3 0.59 0.55 0.59 22.9

East: Beaver Creek Commons Drive

1 L2 73 2.0 78 2.0 0.453 8.5 LOS A 2.8 69.9 0.54 0.42 0.54 22.9
6 T1 209 2.0 222 2.0 0.453 8.5 LOS A 2.8 69.9 0.54 0.42 0.54 22.8
16 R2 168 2.0 179 2.0 0.453 8.5 LOS A 2.8 69.9 0.54 0.42 0.54 22.4
Approach 450 2.0 479 2.0 0.453 8.5 LOS A 2.8 69.9 0.54 0.42 0.54 22.7

North: Creekside Landing Drive

7 L2 136 2.0 145 2.0 0.471 9.4 LOS A 2.9 74.4 0.62 0.56 0.66 22.6
4 T1 159 2.0 169 2.0 0.471 9.4 LOS A 2.9 74.4 0.62 0.56 0.66 22.5
14 R2 131 2.0 139 2.0 0.471 9.4 LOS A 2.9 74.4 0.62 0.56 0.66 22.1
Approach 426 2.0 453 2.0 0.471 9.4 LOS A 2.9 74.4 0.62 0.56 0.66 22.4

West: Beaver Creek Commons Drive

5 L2 104 2.0 111 2.0 0.379 8.3 LOS A 2.0 49.5 0.60 0.54 0.60 22.9
2 T1 196 2.0 209 2.0 0.379 8.3 LOS A 2.0 49.5 0.60 0.54 0.60 22.8
12 R2 21 2.0 22 2.0 0.379 8.3 LOS A 2.0 49.5 0.60 0.54 0.60 22.3
Approach 321 2.0 341 2.0 0.379 8.3 LOS A 2.0 49.5 0.60 0.54 0.60 22.8

All Vehicles 1420 2.0 1511 2.0 0.471 8.5 LOS A 2.9 74.4 0.59 0.51 0.60 22.7

Site Level of Service (LOS) Method: Delay & v/c (HCM 6). Site LOS Method is specified in the Parameter Settings dialog (Site tab).
Roundabout LOS Method: Same as Sign Control.
Vehicle movement LOS values are based on average delay and v/c ratio (degree of saturation) per movement.
LOS F will result if v/c > 1 irrespective of movement delay value (does not apply for approaches and intersection).
Intersection and Approach LOS values are based on average delay for all movements (v/c not used as specified in HCM 6).
Roundabout Capacity Model: US HCM 6.
Delay Model: HCM Delay Formula (Geometric Delay is not included).
Queue Model: HCM Queue Formula.
Gap-Acceptance Capacity: Traditional M1.
HV (%) values are calculated for All Movement Classes of All Heavy Vehicle Model Designation.

SIDRA INTERSECTION 9.0 | Copyright © 2000-2020 Akcelik and Associates Pty Ltd | sidrasolutions.com
Organisation: KIMLEY-HORN & ASSOCIATES INC | Licence: NETWORK / Enterprise | Processed: Tuesday, February 8, 2022 2:39:01 PM
Project: K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Sidra\BC Commons @ Creekside Landing.sip9

- Page 856 -



 

 

Appendix G: 

Synchro & SIDRA Output: 

Background (2025) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

- Page 857 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments Background AM
1: Kelly Road & Wendhurst Court/Beaver Creek Commons Drive 02/08/2022

K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Synchro\3 - Background AM.syn Synchro 10 Report
Kimley-Horn Page 1

Lane Group EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 19 8 38 93 4 25 38 773 132 33 408 9
Future Volume (vph) 19 8 38 93 4 25 38 773 132 33 408 9
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Width (ft) 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12
Grade (%) 0% 1% 3% -4%
Storage Length (ft) 0 0 275 0 275 0 170 0
Storage Lanes 0 0 1 1 1 0 1 0
Taper Length (ft) 25 50 125 170
Satd. Flow (prot) 0 1641 0 0 1768 1575 1743 3409 0 1753 1840 0
Flt Permitted 0.888 0.700 0.481 0.279
Satd. Flow (perm) 0 1478 0 0 1297 1575 883 3409 0 515 1840 0
Right Turn on Red Yes Yes Yes Yes
Satd. Flow (RTOR) 39 32 25 1
Link Speed (mph) 25 35 45 45
Link Distance (ft) 513 641 1004 905
Travel Time (s) 14.0 12.5 15.2 13.7
Confl. Peds. (#/hr)
Confl. Bikes (#/hr)
Peak Hour Factor 0.98 0.98 0.98 0.98 0.98 0.98 0.98 0.98 0.98 0.98 0.98 0.98
Growth Factor 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
Heavy Vehicles (%) 5% 5% 5% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 5% 5% 5%
Bus Blockages (#/hr) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Parking  (#/hr)
Mid-Block Traffic (%) 0% 0% 0% 0%
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 0 66 0 0 99 26 39 924 0 34 425 0
Turn Type Perm NA pm+pt NA pm+ov D.P+P NA D.P+P NA
Protected Phases 4 3 8 1 5 2 1 6
Permitted Phases 4 8 8 6 2
Detector Phase 4 4 3 8 1 5 2 1 6
Switch Phase
Minimum Initial (s) 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 12.0 7.0 12.0
Minimum Split (s) 30.0 30.0 14.0 30.0 14.0 14.0 30.0 14.0 25.0
Total Split (s) 20.0 20.0 15.0 35.0 15.0 15.0 70.0 15.0 70.0
Total Split (%) 16.7% 16.7% 12.5% 29.2% 12.5% 12.5% 58.3% 12.5% 58.3%
Yellow Time (s) 3.2 3.2 3.0 3.1 3.0 3.0 4.9 3.0 4.9
All-Red Time (s) 2.6 2.6 2.8 2.7 2.8 2.4 1.6 2.8 1.6
Lost Time Adjust (s) -0.8 -0.8 -0.8 -0.4 -1.5 -0.8 -1.5
Total Lost Time (s) 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0
Lead/Lag Lead Lead Lag Lead Lead Lag Lead Lag
Lead-Lag Optimize? Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
Recall Mode None None None None None None C-Max None C-Max
Act Effct Green (s) 14.4 14.4 27.2 92.6 85.3 91.6 88.1
Actuated g/C Ratio 0.12 0.12 0.23 0.77 0.71 0.76 0.73
v/c Ratio 0.31 0.64 0.07 0.05 0.38 0.07 0.31
Control Delay 26.2 67.5 9.3 3.6 8.2 3.8 7.7
Queue Delay 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total Delay 26.2 67.5 9.3 3.6 8.2 3.8 7.7
LOS C E A A A A A
Approach Delay 26.2 55.4 8.0 7.4
Approach LOS C E A A
Queue Length 50th (ft) 19 74 0 5 140 4 118
Queue Length 95th (ft) 59 126 19 16 212 14 204
Internal Link Dist (ft) 433 561 924 825
Turn Bay Length (ft) 275 170
Base Capacity (vph) 238 324 410 764 2431 503 1351
Starvation Cap Reductn 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Spillback Cap Reductn 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Storage Cap Reductn 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Reduced v/c Ratio 0.28 0.31 0.06 0.05 0.38 0.07 0.31

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Cycle Length: 120
Actuated Cycle Length: 120

- Page 858 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments Background AM
1: Kelly Road & Wendhurst Court/Beaver Creek Commons Drive 02/08/2022

K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Synchro\3 - Background AM.syn Synchro 10 Report
Kimley-Horn Page 2

Offset: 0 (0%), Referenced to phase 2:NBSB and 6:NBSB, Start of Green
Natural Cycle: 90
Control Type: Actuated-Coordinated
Maximum v/c Ratio: 0.64
Intersection Signal Delay: 12.3 Intersection LOS: B
Intersection Capacity Utilization 51.9% ICU Level of Service A
Analysis Period (min) 15
Description: Signal No. 052254

Splits and Phases:     1: Kelly Road & Wendhurst Court/Beaver Creek Commons Drive

- Page 859 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments Background AM
2: Olive Chapel Road & Chapel Ridge Road 02/08/2022

K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Synchro\3 - Background AM.syn Synchro 10 Report
Kimley-Horn Page 3

Lane Group EBL EBT WBT WBR SBL SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 52 400 401 56 15 12
Future Volume (vph) 52 400 401 56 15 12
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Width (ft) 12 12 12 12 12 12
Grade (%) 0% 0% 0%
Storage Length (ft) 150 0 75 0
Storage Lanes 1 0 1 1
Taper Length (ft) 300 25
Satd. Flow (prot) 1736 1827 1796 0 1703 1524
Flt Permitted 0.950 0.950
Satd. Flow (perm) 1736 1827 1796 0 1703 1524
Link Speed (mph) 45 45 25
Link Distance (ft) 797 812 509
Travel Time (s) 12.1 12.3 13.9
Confl. Peds. (#/hr)
Confl. Bikes (#/hr)
Peak Hour Factor 0.85 0.85 0.85 0.85 0.85 0.85
Growth Factor 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
Heavy Vehicles (%) 4% 4% 4% 4% 6% 6%
Bus Blockages (#/hr) 0 0 0 0 0 0
Parking  (#/hr)
Mid-Block Traffic (%) 0% 0% 0%
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 61 471 538 0 18 14
Sign Control Free Free Stop

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Control Type: Unsignalized
Intersection Capacity Utilization 41.2% ICU Level of Service A
Analysis Period (min) 15

- Page 860 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments Background AM
2: Olive Chapel Road & Chapel Ridge Road 02/08/2022

K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Synchro\3 - Background AM.syn Synchro 10 Report
Kimley-Horn Page 4

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 0.9

Movement EBL EBT WBT WBR SBL SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 52 400 401 56 15 12
Future Vol, veh/h 52 400 401 56 15 12
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Free Free Free Free Stop Stop
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length 150 - - - 75 0
Veh in Median Storage, # - 0 0 - 0 -
Grade, % - 0 0 - 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 85 85 85 85 85 85
Heavy Vehicles, % 4 4 4 4 6 6
Mvmt Flow 61 471 472 66 18 14

Major/Minor Major1 Major2 Minor2
Conflicting Flow All 538 0 - 0 1098 505
          Stage 1 - - - - 505 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 593 -
Critical Hdwy 4.14 - - - 6.46 6.26
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 - - - - 5.46 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 - - - - 5.46 -
Follow-up Hdwy 2.236 - - - 3.554 3.354
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 1020 - - - 231 559
          Stage 1 - - - - 598 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 544 -
Platoon blocked, % - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver 1020 - - - 217 559
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver - - - - 351 -
          Stage 1 - - - - 562 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 544 -

Approach EB WB SB
HCM Control Delay, s 1 0 13.9
HCM LOS B

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt EBL EBT WBT WBR SBLn1 SBLn2
Capacity (veh/h) 1020 - - - 351 559
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.06 - - - 0.05 0.025
HCM Control Delay (s) 8.8 - - - 15.8 11.6
HCM Lane LOS A - - - C B
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0.2 - - - 0.2 0.1

- Page 861 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments Background AM
3: Chapel Ridge Road & Ackerman Hill Drive 02/08/2022

K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Synchro\3 - Background AM.syn Synchro 10 Report
Kimley-Horn Page 5

Lane Group WBL WBR NBT NBR SBL SBT
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 19 4 4 13 4 4
Future Volume (vph) 19 4 4 13 4 4
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Width (ft) 12 12 12 12 12 12
Grade (%) 0% 0% 0%
Storage Length (ft) 0 0 0 0
Storage Lanes 1 0 0 0
Taper Length (ft) 25 25
Satd. Flow (prot) 1749 0 1667 0 0 1818
Flt Permitted 0.960 0.976
Satd. Flow (perm) 1749 0 1667 0 0 1818
Link Speed (mph) 25 25 25
Link Distance (ft) 289 696 330
Travel Time (s) 7.9 19.0 9.0
Confl. Peds. (#/hr)
Confl. Bikes (#/hr)
Peak Hour Factor 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90
Growth Factor 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
Heavy Vehicles (%) 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2%
Bus Blockages (#/hr) 0 0 0 0 0 0
Parking  (#/hr)
Mid-Block Traffic (%) 0% 0% 0%
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 25 0 18 0 0 8
Sign Control Stop Free Free

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Control Type: Unsignalized
Intersection Capacity Utilization 13.8% ICU Level of Service A
Analysis Period (min) 15

- Page 862 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments Background AM
3: Chapel Ridge Road & Ackerman Hill Drive 02/08/2022

K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Synchro\3 - Background AM.syn Synchro 10 Report
Kimley-Horn Page 6

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 4.8

Movement WBL WBR NBT NBR SBL SBT
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 19 4 4 13 4 4
Future Vol, veh/h 19 4 4 13 4 4
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length 0 - - - - -
Veh in Median Storage, # 0 - 0 - - 0
Grade, % 0 - 0 - - 0
Peak Hour Factor 90 90 90 90 90 90
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 21 4 4 14 4 4

Major/Minor Minor1 Major1 Major2
Conflicting Flow All 23 11 0 0 18 0
          Stage 1 11 - - - - -
          Stage 2 12 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 6.42 6.22 - - 4.12 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 5.42 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 5.42 - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.518 3.318 - - 2.218 -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 993 1070 - - 1599 -
          Stage 1 1012 - - - - -
          Stage 2 1011 - - - - -
Platoon blocked, % - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver 990 1070 - - 1599 -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver 990 - - - - -
          Stage 1 1012 - - - - -
          Stage 2 1008 - - - - -

Approach WB NB SB
HCM Control Delay, s 8.7 0 3.6
HCM LOS A

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBT NBR WBLn1 SBL SBT
Capacity (veh/h) - - 1003 1599 -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio - - 0.025 0.003 -
HCM Control Delay (s) - - 8.7 7.3 0
HCM Lane LOS - - A A A
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) - - 0.1 0 -

- Page 863 -



MOVEMENT SUMMARY
Site: 4 [Background AM (Site Folder: General)]

Beaver Creek Commons Drive at Creekside Landing Drive
Site Category: Chapel Ridge Apartments
Roundabout

Vehicle Movement Performance
INPUT

VOLUMES
DEMAND
FLOWS

95% BACK OF
QUEUE

Mov
ID

Turn Deg.
Satn

Aver.
Delay

Level of
Service

Prop.
Que

Effective
Stop
Rate

Aver.
No.

Cycles

Aver.
Speed

[ Total HV ] [ Total HV ] [ Veh. Dist ]
veh/h % veh/h % v/c sec veh ft mph

South: Creekside Landing Drive

3 L2 4 6.0 5 6.0 0.066 4.3 LOS A 0.3 6.9 0.40 0.27 0.40 24.0
8 T1 28 6.0 33 6.0 0.066 4.3 LOS A 0.3 6.9 0.40 0.27 0.40 23.9
18 R2 22 6.0 26 6.0 0.066 4.3 LOS A 0.3 6.9 0.40 0.27 0.40 23.5
Approach 54 6.0 64 6.0 0.066 4.3 LOS A 0.3 6.9 0.40 0.27 0.40 23.7

East: Beaver Creek Commons Drive

1 L2 29 2.0 35 2.0 0.165 4.3 LOS A 0.8 20.0 0.24 0.11 0.24 24.0
6 T1 78 2.0 93 2.0 0.165 4.3 LOS A 0.8 20.0 0.24 0.11 0.24 23.8
16 R2 65 2.0 77 2.0 0.165 4.3 LOS A 0.8 20.0 0.24 0.11 0.24 23.4
Approach 172 2.0 205 2.0 0.165 4.3 LOS A 0.8 20.0 0.24 0.11 0.24 23.7

North: Creekside Landing Drive

7 L2 64 2.0 76 2.0 0.150 4.3 LOS A 0.7 17.7 0.30 0.16 0.30 23.7
4 T1 32 2.0 38 2.0 0.150 4.3 LOS A 0.7 17.7 0.30 0.16 0.30 23.6
14 R2 53 2.0 63 2.0 0.150 4.3 LOS A 0.7 17.7 0.30 0.16 0.30 23.1
Approach 149 2.0 177 2.0 0.150 4.3 LOS A 0.7 17.7 0.30 0.16 0.30 23.5

West: Beaver Creek Commons Drive

5 L2 37 3.0 44 3.0 0.184 4.8 LOS A 0.9 22.1 0.33 0.19 0.33 23.8
2 T1 132 3.0 157 3.0 0.184 4.8 LOS A 0.9 22.1 0.33 0.19 0.33 23.7
12 R2 8 3.0 10 3.0 0.184 4.8 LOS A 0.9 22.1 0.33 0.19 0.33 23.3
Approach 177 3.0 211 3.0 0.184 4.8 LOS A 0.9 22.1 0.33 0.19 0.33 23.7

All Vehicles 552 2.7 657 2.7 0.184 4.5 LOS A 0.9 22.1 0.30 0.17 0.30 23.6

Site Level of Service (LOS) Method: Delay & v/c (HCM 6). Site LOS Method is specified in the Parameter Settings dialog (Site tab).
Roundabout LOS Method: Same as Sign Control.
Vehicle movement LOS values are based on average delay and v/c ratio (degree of saturation) per movement.
LOS F will result if v/c > 1 irrespective of movement delay value (does not apply for approaches and intersection).
Intersection and Approach LOS values are based on average delay for all movements (v/c not used as specified in HCM 6).
Roundabout Capacity Model: US HCM 6.
Delay Model: HCM Delay Formula (Geometric Delay is not included).
Queue Model: HCM Queue Formula.
Gap-Acceptance Capacity: Traditional M1.
HV (%) values are calculated for All Movement Classes of All Heavy Vehicle Model Designation.

SIDRA INTERSECTION 9.0 | Copyright © 2000-2020 Akcelik and Associates Pty Ltd | sidrasolutions.com
Organisation: KIMLEY-HORN & ASSOCIATES INC | Licence: NETWORK / Enterprise | Processed: Tuesday, February 8, 2022 2:39:00 PM
Project: K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Sidra\BC Commons @ Creekside Landing.sip9

- Page 864 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments Background PM
1: Kelly Road & Wendhurst Court/Beaver Creek Commons Drive 02/08/2022

K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Synchro\4 - Background PM.syn Synchro 10 Report
Kimley-Horn Page 1

Lane Group EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 10 14 47 278 20 62 67 584 304 100 846 23
Future Volume (vph) 10 14 47 278 20 62 67 584 304 100 846 23
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Width (ft) 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12
Grade (%) 0% 1% 3% -4%
Storage Length (ft) 0 0 275 0 275 0 170 0
Storage Lanes 0 0 1 1 1 0 1 0
Taper Length (ft) 25 50 125 170
Satd. Flow (prot) 0 1683 0 0 1770 1575 1743 3283 0 1805 1891 0
Flt Permitted 0.943 0.710 0.087 0.237
Satd. Flow (perm) 0 1598 0 0 1316 1575 160 3283 0 450 1891 0
Right Turn on Red Yes Yes Yes Yes
Satd. Flow (RTOR) 48 63 95 1
Link Speed (mph) 25 35 45 45
Link Distance (ft) 513 641 1004 905
Travel Time (s) 14.0 12.5 15.2 13.7
Confl. Peds. (#/hr) 1 1 1 1
Confl. Bikes (#/hr)
Peak Hour Factor 0.98 0.98 0.98 0.98 0.98 0.98 0.98 0.98 0.98 0.98 0.98 0.98
Growth Factor 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
Heavy Vehicles (%) 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2%
Bus Blockages (#/hr) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Parking  (#/hr)
Mid-Block Traffic (%) 0% 0% 0% 0%
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 0 72 0 0 304 63 68 906 0 102 886 0
Turn Type Perm NA pm+pt NA pm+ov D.P+P NA D.P+P NA
Protected Phases 4 3 8 1 5 2 1 6
Permitted Phases 4 8 8 6 2
Detector Phase 4 4 3 8 1 5 2 1 6
Switch Phase
Minimum Initial (s) 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 12.0 7.0 12.0
Minimum Split (s) 30.0 30.0 14.0 30.0 14.0 14.0 30.0 14.0 25.0
Total Split (s) 25.0 25.0 20.0 45.0 20.0 15.0 55.0 20.0 60.0
Total Split (%) 20.8% 20.8% 16.7% 37.5% 16.7% 12.5% 45.8% 16.7% 50.0%
Yellow Time (s) 3.2 3.2 3.0 3.1 3.0 3.0 4.9 3.0 4.9
All-Red Time (s) 2.6 2.6 2.8 2.7 2.8 2.4 1.6 2.8 1.6
Lost Time Adjust (s) -0.8 -0.8 -0.8 -0.4 -1.5 -0.8 -1.5
Total Lost Time (s) 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0
Lead/Lag Lead Lead Lag Lead Lead Lag Lead Lag
Lead-Lag Optimize? Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
Recall Mode None None None None None None C-Max None C-Max
Act Effct Green (s) 33.0 33.0 46.6 73.0 63.4 72.0 66.7
Actuated g/C Ratio 0.28 0.28 0.39 0.61 0.53 0.60 0.56
v/c Ratio 0.15 0.84 0.10 0.34 0.51 0.28 0.84
Control Delay 13.1 60.9 4.9 14.5 18.5 11.6 34.0
Queue Delay 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total Delay 13.1 60.9 4.9 14.5 18.5 11.6 34.0
LOS B E A B B B C
Approach Delay 13.1 51.3 18.2 31.7
Approach LOS B D B C
Queue Length 50th (ft) 14 219 0 19 206 29 586
Queue Length 95th (ft) 46 312 25 42 307 59 #968
Internal Link Dist (ft) 433 561 924 825
Turn Bay Length (ft) 275 170
Base Capacity (vph) 473 438 730 231 1778 457 1051
Starvation Cap Reductn 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Spillback Cap Reductn 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Storage Cap Reductn 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Reduced v/c Ratio 0.15 0.69 0.09 0.29 0.51 0.22 0.84

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Cycle Length: 120
Actuated Cycle Length: 120

- Page 865 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments Background PM
1: Kelly Road & Wendhurst Court/Beaver Creek Commons Drive 02/08/2022

K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Synchro\4 - Background PM.syn Synchro 10 Report
Kimley-Horn Page 2

Offset: 0 (0%), Referenced to phase 2:NBSB and 6:NBSB, Start of Green
Natural Cycle: 110
Control Type: Actuated-Coordinated
Maximum v/c Ratio: 0.84
Intersection Signal Delay: 28.7 Intersection LOS: C
Intersection Capacity Utilization 87.4% ICU Level of Service E
Analysis Period (min) 15
Description: Signal No. 052254
#    95th percentile volume exceeds capacity, queue may be longer.
     Queue shown is maximum after two cycles.

Splits and Phases:     1: Kelly Road & Wendhurst Court/Beaver Creek Commons Drive

- Page 866 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments Background PM
2: Olive Chapel Road & Chapel Ridge Road 02/08/2022

K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Synchro\4 - Background PM.syn Synchro 10 Report
Kimley-Horn Page 3

Lane Group EBL EBT WBT WBR SBL SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 23 491 586 29 51 58
Future Volume (vph) 23 491 586 29 51 58
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Width (ft) 12 12 12 12 12 12
Grade (%) 0% 0% 0%
Storage Length (ft) 150 0 75 0
Storage Lanes 1 0 1 1
Taper Length (ft) 300 25
Satd. Flow (prot) 1770 1863 1852 0 1770 1583
Flt Permitted 0.950 0.950
Satd. Flow (perm) 1770 1863 1852 0 1770 1583
Link Speed (mph) 45 45 25
Link Distance (ft) 797 812 509
Travel Time (s) 12.1 12.3 13.9
Confl. Peds. (#/hr)
Confl. Bikes (#/hr)
Peak Hour Factor 0.93 0.93 0.93 0.93 0.93 0.93
Growth Factor 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
Heavy Vehicles (%) 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2%
Bus Blockages (#/hr) 0 0 0 0 0 0
Parking  (#/hr)
Mid-Block Traffic (%) 0% 0% 0%
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 25 528 661 0 55 62
Sign Control Free Free Stop

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Control Type: Unsignalized
Intersection Capacity Utilization 42.9% ICU Level of Service A
Analysis Period (min) 15

- Page 867 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments Background PM
2: Olive Chapel Road & Chapel Ridge Road 02/08/2022

K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Synchro\4 - Background PM.syn Synchro 10 Report
Kimley-Horn Page 4

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 1.6

Movement EBL EBT WBT WBR SBL SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 23 491 586 29 51 58
Future Vol, veh/h 23 491 586 29 51 58
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Free Free Free Free Stop Stop
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length 150 - - - 75 0
Veh in Median Storage, # - 0 0 - 0 -
Grade, % - 0 0 - 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 93 93 93 93 93 93
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 25 528 630 31 55 62

Major/Minor Major1 Major2 Minor2
Conflicting Flow All 661 0 - 0 1224 646
          Stage 1 - - - - 646 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 578 -
Critical Hdwy 4.12 - - - 6.42 6.22
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 - - - - 5.42 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 - - - - 5.42 -
Follow-up Hdwy 2.218 - - - 3.518 3.318
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 927 - - - 198 472
          Stage 1 - - - - 522 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 561 -
Platoon blocked, % - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver 927 - - - 193 472
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver - - - - 331 -
          Stage 1 - - - - 508 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 561 -

Approach EB WB SB
HCM Control Delay, s 0.4 0 15.8
HCM LOS C

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt EBL EBT WBT WBR SBLn1 SBLn2
Capacity (veh/h) 927 - - - 331 472
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.027 - - - 0.166 0.132
HCM Control Delay (s) 9 - - - 18 13.8
HCM Lane LOS A - - - C B
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0.1 - - - 0.6 0.5

- Page 868 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments Background PM
3: Chapel Ridge Road & Ackerman Hill Drive 02/08/2022

K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Synchro\4 - Background PM.syn Synchro 10 Report
Kimley-Horn Page 5

Lane Group WBL WBR NBT NBR SBL SBT
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 17 4 4 32 4 4
Future Volume (vph) 17 4 4 32 4 4
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Width (ft) 12 12 12 12 12 12
Grade (%) 0% 0% 0%
Storage Length (ft) 0 0 0 0
Storage Lanes 1 0 0 0
Taper Length (ft) 25 25
Satd. Flow (prot) 1747 0 1635 0 0 1818
Flt Permitted 0.960 0.976
Satd. Flow (perm) 1747 0 1635 0 0 1818
Link Speed (mph) 25 25 25
Link Distance (ft) 289 696 330
Travel Time (s) 7.9 19.0 9.0
Confl. Peds. (#/hr)
Confl. Bikes (#/hr)
Peak Hour Factor 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90
Growth Factor 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
Heavy Vehicles (%) 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2%
Bus Blockages (#/hr) 0 0 0 0 0 0
Parking  (#/hr)
Mid-Block Traffic (%) 0% 0% 0%
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 23 0 40 0 0 8
Sign Control Stop Free Free

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Control Type: Unsignalized
Intersection Capacity Utilization 13.8% ICU Level of Service A
Analysis Period (min) 15

- Page 869 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments Background PM
3: Chapel Ridge Road & Ackerman Hill Drive 02/08/2022

K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Synchro\4 - Background PM.syn Synchro 10 Report
Kimley-Horn Page 6

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 3.3

Movement WBL WBR NBT NBR SBL SBT
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 17 4 4 32 4 4
Future Vol, veh/h 17 4 4 32 4 4
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length 0 - - - - -
Veh in Median Storage, # 0 - 0 - - 0
Grade, % 0 - 0 - - 0
Peak Hour Factor 90 90 90 90 90 90
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 19 4 4 36 4 4

Major/Minor Minor1 Major1 Major2
Conflicting Flow All 34 22 0 0 40 0
          Stage 1 22 - - - - -
          Stage 2 12 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 6.42 6.22 - - 4.12 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 5.42 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 5.42 - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.518 3.318 - - 2.218 -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 979 1055 - - 1570 -
          Stage 1 1001 - - - - -
          Stage 2 1011 - - - - -
Platoon blocked, % - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver 976 1055 - - 1570 -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver 976 - - - - -
          Stage 1 1001 - - - - -
          Stage 2 1008 - - - - -

Approach WB NB SB
HCM Control Delay, s 8.7 0 3.6
HCM LOS A

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBT NBR WBLn1 SBL SBT
Capacity (veh/h) - - 990 1570 -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio - - 0.024 0.003 -
HCM Control Delay (s) - - 8.7 7.3 0
HCM Lane LOS - - A A A
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) - - 0.1 0 -

- Page 870 -



MOVEMENT SUMMARY
Site: 4 [Background PM (Site Folder: General)]

Beaver Creek Commons Drive at Creekside Landing Drive
Site Category: Chapel Ridge Apartments
Roundabout

Vehicle Movement Performance
INPUT

VOLUMES
DEMAND
FLOWS

95% BACK OF
QUEUE

Mov
ID

Turn Deg.
Satn

Aver.
Delay

Level of
Service

Prop.
Que

Effective
Stop
Rate

Aver.
No.

Cycles

Aver.
Speed

[ Total HV ] [ Total HV ] [ Veh. Dist ]
veh/h % veh/h % v/c sec veh ft mph

South: Creekside Landing Drive

3 L2 25 2.0 27 2.0 0.311 8.2 LOS A 1.4 36.4 0.62 0.61 0.62 23.0
8 T1 98 2.0 104 2.0 0.311 8.2 LOS A 1.4 36.4 0.62 0.61 0.62 22.9
18 R2 107 2.0 114 2.0 0.311 8.2 LOS A 1.4 36.4 0.62 0.61 0.62 22.5
Approach 230 2.0 245 2.0 0.311 8.2 LOS A 1.4 36.4 0.62 0.61 0.62 22.7

East: Beaver Creek Commons Drive

1 L2 74 2.0 79 2.0 0.511 9.6 LOS A 3.3 83.3 0.60 0.47 0.60 22.7
6 T1 235 2.0 250 2.0 0.511 9.6 LOS A 3.3 83.3 0.60 0.47 0.60 22.6
16 R2 189 2.0 201 2.0 0.511 9.6 LOS A 3.3 83.3 0.60 0.47 0.60 22.2
Approach 498 2.0 530 2.0 0.511 9.6 LOS A 3.3 83.3 0.60 0.47 0.60 22.4

North: Creekside Landing Drive

7 L2 153 2.0 163 2.0 0.523 10.6 LOS B 4.1 104.7 0.67 0.72 0.85 22.3
4 T1 160 2.0 170 2.0 0.523 10.6 LOS B 4.1 104.7 0.67 0.72 0.85 22.2
14 R2 147 2.0 156 2.0 0.523 10.6 LOS B 4.1 104.7 0.67 0.72 0.85 21.8
Approach 460 2.0 489 2.0 0.523 10.6 LOS B 4.1 104.7 0.67 0.72 0.85 22.1

West: Beaver Creek Commons Drive

5 L2 117 2.0 124 2.0 0.433 9.3 LOS A 2.5 64.4 0.64 0.63 0.71 22.6
2 T1 221 2.0 235 2.0 0.433 9.3 LOS A 2.5 64.4 0.64 0.63 0.71 22.5
12 R2 21 2.0 22 2.0 0.433 9.3 LOS A 2.5 64.4 0.64 0.63 0.71 22.1
Approach 359 2.0 382 2.0 0.433 9.3 LOS A 2.5 64.4 0.64 0.63 0.71 22.5

All Vehicles 1547 2.0 1646 2.0 0.523 9.6 LOS A 4.1 104.7 0.63 0.60 0.70 22.4

Site Level of Service (LOS) Method: Delay & v/c (HCM 6). Site LOS Method is specified in the Parameter Settings dialog (Site tab).
Roundabout LOS Method: Same as Sign Control.
Vehicle movement LOS values are based on average delay and v/c ratio (degree of saturation) per movement.
LOS F will result if v/c > 1 irrespective of movement delay value (does not apply for approaches and intersection).
Intersection and Approach LOS values are based on average delay for all movements (v/c not used as specified in HCM 6).
Roundabout Capacity Model: US HCM 6.
Delay Model: HCM Delay Formula (Geometric Delay is not included).
Queue Model: HCM Queue Formula.
Gap-Acceptance Capacity: Traditional M1.
HV (%) values are calculated for All Movement Classes of All Heavy Vehicle Model Designation.

SIDRA INTERSECTION 9.0 | Copyright © 2000-2020 Akcelik and Associates Pty Ltd | sidrasolutions.com
Organisation: KIMLEY-HORN & ASSOCIATES INC | Licence: NETWORK / Enterprise | Processed: Tuesday, February 8, 2022 2:39:01 PM
Project: K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Sidra\BC Commons @ Creekside Landing.sip9

- Page 871 -



 

 

Appendix H: 

Synchro & SIDRA Output: 

Build-Out (2025) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

- Page 872 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments Build AM
1: Kelly Road & Wendhurst Court/Beaver Creek Commons Drive 02/08/2022

K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Synchro\5 - Build AM.syn Synchro 10 Report
Kimley-Horn Page 1

Lane Group EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 19 8 38 93 4 88 38 773 132 53 408 9
Future Volume (vph) 19 8 38 93 4 88 38 773 132 53 408 9
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Width (ft) 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12
Grade (%) 0% 1% 3% -4%
Storage Length (ft) 0 0 275 0 275 0 170 0
Storage Lanes 0 0 1 1 1 0 1 0
Taper Length (ft) 25 50 125 170
Satd. Flow (prot) 0 1641 0 0 1768 1575 1743 3409 0 1753 1840 0
Flt Permitted 0.888 0.700 0.481 0.276
Satd. Flow (perm) 0 1478 0 0 1297 1575 883 3409 0 509 1840 0
Right Turn on Red Yes Yes Yes Yes
Satd. Flow (RTOR) 39 90 25 1
Link Speed (mph) 25 35 45 45
Link Distance (ft) 513 641 1004 905
Travel Time (s) 14.0 12.5 15.2 13.7
Confl. Peds. (#/hr)
Confl. Bikes (#/hr)
Peak Hour Factor 0.98 0.98 0.98 0.98 0.98 0.98 0.98 0.98 0.98 0.98 0.98 0.98
Growth Factor 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
Heavy Vehicles (%) 5% 5% 5% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 5% 5% 5%
Bus Blockages (#/hr) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Parking  (#/hr)
Mid-Block Traffic (%) 0% 0% 0% 0%
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 0 66 0 0 99 90 39 924 0 54 425 0
Turn Type Perm NA pm+pt NA pm+ov D.P+P NA D.P+P NA
Protected Phases 4 3 8 1 5 2 1 6
Permitted Phases 4 8 8 6 2
Detector Phase 4 4 3 8 1 5 2 1 6
Switch Phase
Minimum Initial (s) 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 12.0 7.0 12.0
Minimum Split (s) 30.0 30.0 14.0 30.0 14.0 14.0 30.0 14.0 25.0
Total Split (s) 20.0 20.0 15.0 35.0 15.0 15.0 70.0 15.0 70.0
Total Split (%) 16.7% 16.7% 12.5% 29.2% 12.5% 12.5% 58.3% 12.5% 58.3%
Yellow Time (s) 3.2 3.2 3.0 3.1 3.0 3.0 4.9 3.0 4.9
All-Red Time (s) 2.6 2.6 2.8 2.7 2.8 2.4 1.6 2.8 1.6
Lost Time Adjust (s) -0.8 -0.8 -0.8 -0.4 -1.5 -0.8 -1.5
Total Lost Time (s) 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0
Lead/Lag Lead Lead Lag Lead Lead Lag Lead Lag
Lead-Lag Optimize? Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
Recall Mode None None None None None None C-Max None C-Max
Act Effct Green (s) 14.4 14.4 27.2 92.6 82.8 90.6 88.1
Actuated g/C Ratio 0.12 0.12 0.23 0.77 0.69 0.76 0.73
v/c Ratio 0.31 0.64 0.21 0.05 0.39 0.12 0.31
Control Delay 26.2 67.5 8.0 3.6 8.8 4.0 7.7
Queue Delay 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total Delay 26.2 67.5 8.0 3.6 8.8 4.0 7.7
LOS C E A A A A A
Approach Delay 26.2 39.2 8.5 7.3
Approach LOS C D A A
Queue Length 50th (ft) 19 74 0 5 140 7 118
Queue Length 95th (ft) 59 126 40 16 212 20 204
Internal Link Dist (ft) 433 561 924 825
Turn Bay Length (ft) 275 170
Base Capacity (vph) 238 324 454 764 2359 497 1351
Starvation Cap Reductn 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Spillback Cap Reductn 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Storage Cap Reductn 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Reduced v/c Ratio 0.28 0.31 0.20 0.05 0.39 0.11 0.31

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Cycle Length: 120
Actuated Cycle Length: 120

- Page 873 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments Build AM
1: Kelly Road & Wendhurst Court/Beaver Creek Commons Drive 02/08/2022

K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Synchro\5 - Build AM.syn Synchro 10 Report
Kimley-Horn Page 2

Offset: 0 (0%), Referenced to phase 2:NBSB and 6:NBSB, Start of Green
Natural Cycle: 90
Control Type: Actuated-Coordinated
Maximum v/c Ratio: 0.64
Intersection Signal Delay: 12.3 Intersection LOS: B
Intersection Capacity Utilization 55.9% ICU Level of Service B
Analysis Period (min) 15
Description: Signal No. 052254

Splits and Phases:     1: Kelly Road & Wendhurst Court/Beaver Creek Commons Drive

- Page 874 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments Build AM
2: Olive Chapel Road & Chapel Ridge Road 02/08/2022

K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Synchro\5 - Build AM.syn Synchro 10 Report
Kimley-Horn Page 3

Lane Group EBL EBT WBT WBR SBL SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 55 400 401 62 32 21
Future Volume (vph) 55 400 401 62 32 21
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Width (ft) 12 12 12 12 12 12
Grade (%) 0% 0% 0%
Storage Length (ft) 150 0 75 0
Storage Lanes 1 0 1 1
Taper Length (ft) 300 25
Satd. Flow (prot) 1736 1827 1794 0 1703 1524
Flt Permitted 0.950 0.950
Satd. Flow (perm) 1736 1827 1794 0 1703 1524
Link Speed (mph) 45 45 25
Link Distance (ft) 797 812 509
Travel Time (s) 12.1 12.3 13.9
Confl. Peds. (#/hr)
Confl. Bikes (#/hr)
Peak Hour Factor 0.85 0.85 0.85 0.85 0.85 0.85
Growth Factor 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
Heavy Vehicles (%) 4% 4% 4% 4% 6% 6%
Bus Blockages (#/hr) 0 0 0 0 0 0
Parking  (#/hr)
Mid-Block Traffic (%) 0% 0% 0%
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 65 471 545 0 38 25
Sign Control Free Free Stop

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Control Type: Unsignalized
Intersection Capacity Utilization 41.5% ICU Level of Service A
Analysis Period (min) 15

- Page 875 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments Build AM
2: Olive Chapel Road & Chapel Ridge Road 02/08/2022

K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Synchro\5 - Build AM.syn Synchro 10 Report
Kimley-Horn Page 4

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 1.3

Movement EBL EBT WBT WBR SBL SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 55 400 401 62 32 21
Future Vol, veh/h 55 400 401 62 32 21
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Free Free Free Free Stop Stop
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length 150 - - - 75 0
Veh in Median Storage, # - 0 0 - 0 -
Grade, % - 0 0 - 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 85 85 85 85 85 85
Heavy Vehicles, % 4 4 4 4 6 6
Mvmt Flow 65 471 472 73 38 25

Major/Minor Major1 Major2 Minor2
Conflicting Flow All 545 0 - 0 1110 509
          Stage 1 - - - - 509 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 601 -
Critical Hdwy 4.14 - - - 6.46 6.26
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 - - - - 5.46 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 - - - - 5.46 -
Follow-up Hdwy 2.236 - - - 3.554 3.354
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 1014 - - - 227 556
          Stage 1 - - - - 595 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 540 -
Platoon blocked, % - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver 1014 - - - 212 556
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver - - - - 347 -
          Stage 1 - - - - 557 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 540 -

Approach EB WB SB
HCM Control Delay, s 1.1 0 14.7
HCM LOS B

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt EBL EBT WBT WBR SBLn1 SBLn2
Capacity (veh/h) 1014 - - - 347 556
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.064 - - - 0.108 0.044
HCM Control Delay (s) 8.8 - - - 16.6 11.8
HCM Lane LOS A - - - C B
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0.2 - - - 0.4 0.1

- Page 876 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments Build AM
3: Chapel Ridge Road & Ackerman Hill Drive 02/08/2022

K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Synchro\5 - Build AM.syn Synchro 10 Report
Kimley-Horn Page 5

Lane Group WBL WBR NBT NBR SBL SBT
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 19 48 16 13 15 32
Future Volume (vph) 19 48 16 13 15 32
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Width (ft) 12 12 12 12 12 12
Grade (%) 0% 0% 0%
Storage Length (ft) 0 0 0 0
Storage Lanes 1 0 0 0
Taper Length (ft) 25 25
Satd. Flow (prot) 1659 0 1753 0 0 1833
Flt Permitted 0.986 0.984
Satd. Flow (perm) 1659 0 1753 0 0 1833
Link Speed (mph) 25 25 25
Link Distance (ft) 292 213 210
Travel Time (s) 8.0 5.8 5.7
Confl. Peds. (#/hr)
Confl. Bikes (#/hr)
Peak Hour Factor 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90
Growth Factor 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
Heavy Vehicles (%) 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2%
Bus Blockages (#/hr) 0 0 0 0 0 0
Parking  (#/hr)
Mid-Block Traffic (%) 0% 0% 0%
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 74 0 32 0 0 53
Sign Control Stop Free Free

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Control Type: Unsignalized
Intersection Capacity Utilization 19.9% ICU Level of Service A
Analysis Period (min) 15

- Page 877 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments Build AM
3: Chapel Ridge Road & Ackerman Hill Drive 02/08/2022

K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Synchro\5 - Build AM.syn Synchro 10 Report
Kimley-Horn Page 6

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 4.9

Movement WBL WBR NBT NBR SBL SBT
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 19 48 16 13 15 32
Future Vol, veh/h 19 48 16 13 15 32
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length 0 - - - - -
Veh in Median Storage, # 0 - 0 - - 0
Grade, % 0 - 0 - - 0
Peak Hour Factor 90 90 90 90 90 90
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 21 53 18 14 17 36

Major/Minor Minor1 Major1 Major2
Conflicting Flow All 95 25 0 0 32 0
          Stage 1 25 - - - - -
          Stage 2 70 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 6.42 6.22 - - 4.12 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 5.42 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 5.42 - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.518 3.318 - - 2.218 -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 905 1051 - - 1580 -
          Stage 1 998 - - - - -
          Stage 2 953 - - - - -
Platoon blocked, % - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver 895 1051 - - 1580 -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver 895 - - - - -
          Stage 1 998 - - - - -
          Stage 2 943 - - - - -

Approach WB NB SB
HCM Control Delay, s 8.9 0 2.3
HCM LOS A

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBT NBR WBLn1 SBL SBT
Capacity (veh/h) - - 1001 1580 -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio - - 0.074 0.011 -
HCM Control Delay (s) - - 8.9 7.3 0
HCM Lane LOS - - A A A
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) - - 0.2 0 -

- Page 878 -



MOVEMENT SUMMARY
Site: 4 [Build-Out AM (Site Folder: General)]

Beaver Creek Commons Drive at Creekside Landing Drive
Site Category: Chapel Ridge Apartments
Roundabout

Vehicle Movement Performance
INPUT

VOLUMES
DEMAND
FLOWS

95% BACK OF
QUEUE

Mov
ID

Turn Deg.
Satn

Aver.
Delay

Level of
Service

Prop.
Que

Effective
Stop
Rate

Aver.
No.

Cycles

Aver.
Speed

[ Total HV ] [ Total HV ] [ Veh. Dist ]
veh/h % veh/h % v/c sec veh ft mph

South: Creekside Landing Drive

3 L2 4 6.0 5 6.0 0.068 4.5 LOS A 0.3 7.1 0.43 0.30 0.43 24.0
8 T1 28 6.0 33 6.0 0.068 4.5 LOS A 0.3 7.1 0.43 0.30 0.43 23.9
18 R2 22 6.0 26 6.0 0.068 4.5 LOS A 0.3 7.1 0.43 0.30 0.43 23.4
Approach 54 6.0 64 6.0 0.068 4.5 LOS A 0.3 7.1 0.43 0.30 0.43 23.7

East: Beaver Creek Commons Drive

1 L2 29 2.0 35 2.0 0.181 4.5 LOS A 0.9 22.2 0.26 0.13 0.26 23.9
6 T1 92 2.0 110 2.0 0.181 4.5 LOS A 0.9 22.2 0.26 0.13 0.26 23.8
16 R2 65 2.0 77 2.0 0.181 4.5 LOS A 0.9 22.2 0.26 0.13 0.26 23.4
Approach 186 2.0 221 2.0 0.181 4.5 LOS A 0.9 22.2 0.26 0.13 0.26 23.7

North: Creekside Landing Drive

7 L2 64 2.0 76 2.0 0.164 4.5 LOS A 0.8 19.5 0.32 0.19 0.32 23.7
4 T1 32 2.0 38 2.0 0.164 4.5 LOS A 0.8 19.5 0.32 0.19 0.32 23.6
14 R2 64 2.0 76 2.0 0.164 4.5 LOS A 0.8 19.5 0.32 0.19 0.32 23.1
Approach 160 2.0 190 2.0 0.164 4.5 LOS A 0.8 19.5 0.32 0.19 0.32 23.4

West: Beaver Creek Commons Drive

5 L2 46 3.0 55 3.0 0.213 5.0 LOS A 1.0 26.3 0.34 0.20 0.34 23.7
2 T1 151 3.0 180 3.0 0.213 5.0 LOS A 1.0 26.3 0.34 0.20 0.34 23.6
12 R2 8 3.0 10 3.0 0.213 5.0 LOS A 1.0 26.3 0.34 0.20 0.34 23.2
Approach 205 3.0 244 3.0 0.213 5.0 LOS A 1.0 26.3 0.34 0.20 0.34 23.6

All Vehicles 605 2.7 720 2.7 0.213 4.7 LOS A 1.0 26.3 0.32 0.18 0.32 23.6

Site Level of Service (LOS) Method: Delay & v/c (HCM 6). Site LOS Method is specified in the Parameter Settings dialog (Site tab).
Roundabout LOS Method: Same as Sign Control.
Vehicle movement LOS values are based on average delay and v/c ratio (degree of saturation) per movement.
LOS F will result if v/c > 1 irrespective of movement delay value (does not apply for approaches and intersection).
Intersection and Approach LOS values are based on average delay for all movements (v/c not used as specified in HCM 6).
Roundabout Capacity Model: US HCM 6.
Delay Model: HCM Delay Formula (Geometric Delay is not included).
Queue Model: HCM Queue Formula.
Gap-Acceptance Capacity: Traditional M1.
HV (%) values are calculated for All Movement Classes of All Heavy Vehicle Model Designation.

SIDRA INTERSECTION 9.0 | Copyright © 2000-2020 Akcelik and Associates Pty Ltd | sidrasolutions.com
Organisation: KIMLEY-HORN & ASSOCIATES INC | Licence: NETWORK / Enterprise | Processed: Tuesday, February 8, 2022 2:39:00 PM
Project: K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Sidra\BC Commons @ Creekside Landing.sip9

- Page 879 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments Build AM
5: Beaver Creek Commons Drive & Proposed Site Access 02/08/2022

K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Synchro\5 - Build AM.syn Synchro 10 Report
Kimley-Horn Page 8

Lane Group WBL WBR NBT NBR SBL SBT
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 63 39 210 20 28 125
Future Volume (vph) 63 39 210 20 28 125
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Width (ft) 12 12 12 12 12 12
Grade (%) 0% 0% 0%
Storage Length (ft) 0 0 0 100
Storage Lanes 1 0 0 1
Taper Length (ft) 25 100
Satd. Flow (prot) 1715 0 1840 0 1770 1863
Flt Permitted 0.970 0.950
Satd. Flow (perm) 1715 0 1840 0 1770 1863
Link Speed (mph) 25 35 35
Link Distance (ft) 432 357 558
Travel Time (s) 11.8 7.0 10.9
Confl. Peds. (#/hr)
Confl. Bikes (#/hr)
Peak Hour Factor 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90
Growth Factor 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
Heavy Vehicles (%) 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2%
Bus Blockages (#/hr) 0 0 0 0 0 0
Parking  (#/hr)
Mid-Block Traffic (%) 0% 0% 0%
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 113 0 255 0 31 139
Sign Control Stop Free Free

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Control Type: Unsignalized
Intersection Capacity Utilization 31.5% ICU Level of Service A
Analysis Period (min) 15

- Page 880 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments Build AM
5: Beaver Creek Commons Drive & Proposed Site Access 02/08/2022

K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Synchro\5 - Build AM.syn Synchro 10 Report
Kimley-Horn Page 9

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 2.8

Movement WBL WBR NBT NBR SBL SBT
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 63 39 210 20 28 125
Future Vol, veh/h 63 39 210 20 28 125
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length 0 - - - 100 -
Veh in Median Storage, # 0 - 0 - - 0
Grade, % 0 - 0 - - 0
Peak Hour Factor 90 90 90 90 90 90
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 70 43 233 22 31 139

Major/Minor Minor1 Major1 Major2
Conflicting Flow All 445 244 0 0 255 0
          Stage 1 244 - - - - -
          Stage 2 201 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 6.42 6.22 - - 4.12 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 5.42 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 5.42 - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.518 3.318 - - 2.218 -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 571 795 - - 1310 -
          Stage 1 797 - - - - -
          Stage 2 833 - - - - -
Platoon blocked, % - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver 557 795 - - 1310 -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver 621 - - - - -
          Stage 1 797 - - - - -
          Stage 2 813 - - - - -

Approach WB NB SB
HCM Control Delay, s 11.4 0 1.4
HCM LOS B

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBT NBR WBLn1 SBL SBT
Capacity (veh/h) - - 678 1310 -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio - - 0.167 0.024 -
HCM Control Delay (s) - - 11.4 7.8 -
HCM Lane LOS - - B A -
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) - - 0.6 0.1 -

- Page 881 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments Build AM
6: Chapel Ridge Road & Proposed Site Access/North Site Driveway 02/08/2022

K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Synchro\5 - Build AM.syn Synchro 10 Report
Kimley-Horn Page 10

Lane Group EBT EBR WBL WBT NBL NBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 6 43 4 17 85 4
Future Volume (vph) 6 43 4 17 85 4
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Width (ft) 12 12 12 12 12 12
Grade (%) 0% 0% 0%
Storage Length (ft) 0 0 0 0
Storage Lanes 0 0 1 0
Taper Length (ft) 25 25
Satd. Flow (prot) 1643 0 0 1846 1766 0
Flt Permitted 0.991 0.954
Satd. Flow (perm) 1643 0 0 1846 1766 0
Link Speed (mph) 25 25 25
Link Distance (ft) 432 273 553
Travel Time (s) 11.8 7.4 15.1
Confl. Peds. (#/hr)
Confl. Bikes (#/hr)
Peak Hour Factor 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90
Growth Factor 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
Heavy Vehicles (%) 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2%
Bus Blockages (#/hr) 0 0 0 0 0 0
Parking  (#/hr)
Mid-Block Traffic (%) 0% 0% 0%
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 55 0 0 23 98 0
Sign Control Free Free Stop

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Control Type: Unsignalized
Intersection Capacity Utilization 16.0% ICU Level of Service A
Analysis Period (min) 15

- Page 882 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments Build AM
6: Chapel Ridge Road & Proposed Site Access/North Site Driveway 02/08/2022

K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Synchro\5 - Build AM.syn Synchro 10 Report
Kimley-Horn Page 11

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 5.3

Movement EBT EBR WBL WBT NBL NBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 6 43 4 17 85 4
Future Vol, veh/h 6 43 4 17 85 4
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Free Free Free Free Stop Stop
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length - - - - 0 -
Veh in Median Storage, # 0 - - 0 0 -
Grade, % 0 - - 0 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 90 90 90 90 90 90
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 7 48 4 19 94 4

Major/Minor Major1 Major2 Minor1
Conflicting Flow All 0 0 55 0 58 31
          Stage 1 - - - - 31 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 27 -
Critical Hdwy - - 4.12 - 6.42 6.22
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 - - - - 5.42 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 - - - - 5.42 -
Follow-up Hdwy - - 2.218 - 3.518 3.318
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver - - 1550 - 949 1043
          Stage 1 - - - - 992 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 996 -
Platoon blocked, % - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver - - 1550 - 946 1043
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver - - - - 946 -
          Stage 1 - - - - 992 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 993 -

Approach EB WB NB
HCM Control Delay, s 0 1.4 9.2
HCM LOS A

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBLn1 EBT EBR WBL WBT
Capacity (veh/h) 950 - - 1550 -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.104 - - 0.003 -
HCM Control Delay (s) 9.2 - - 7.3 0
HCM Lane LOS A - - A A
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0.3 - - 0 -

- Page 883 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments Build AM
7: Central Site Driveway & Chapel Ridge Road 02/08/2022

K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Synchro\5 - Build AM.syn Synchro 10 Report
Kimley-Horn Page 12

Lane Group EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 4 34 8 4 58 4 22 4 4 9 4 4
Future Volume (vph) 4 34 8 4 58 4 22 4 4 9 4 4
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Width (ft) 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12
Grade (%) 0% 0% 0% 0%
Storage Length (ft) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Storage Lanes 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Taper Length (ft) 25 25 25 25
Satd. Flow (prot) 0 1811 0 0 1842 0 0 1765 0 0 1758 0
Flt Permitted 0.996 0.997 0.964 0.973
Satd. Flow (perm) 0 1811 0 0 1842 0 0 1765 0 0 1758 0
Link Speed (mph) 25 25 25 25
Link Distance (ft) 553 210 358 340
Travel Time (s) 15.1 5.7 9.8 9.3
Confl. Peds. (#/hr)
Confl. Bikes (#/hr)
Peak Hour Factor 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90
Growth Factor 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
Heavy Vehicles (%) 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2%
Bus Blockages (#/hr) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Parking  (#/hr)
Mid-Block Traffic (%) 0% 0% 0% 0%
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 0 51 0 0 72 0 0 32 0 0 18 0
Sign Control Free Free Stop Stop

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Control Type: Unsignalized
Intersection Capacity Utilization 14.3% ICU Level of Service A
Analysis Period (min) 15

- Page 884 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments Build AM
7: Central Site Driveway & Chapel Ridge Road 02/08/2022

K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Synchro\5 - Build AM.syn Synchro 10 Report
Kimley-Horn Page 13

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 3.1

Movement EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 4 34 8 4 58 4 22 4 4 9 4 4
Future Vol, veh/h 4 34 8 4 58 4 22 4 4 9 4 4
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Free Free Free Free Free Free Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop
RT Channelized - - None - - None - - None - - None
Storage Length - - - - - - - - - - - -
Veh in Median Storage, # - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Grade, % - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 4 38 9 4 64 4 24 4 4 10 4 4

Major/Minor Major1 Major2 Minor1 Minor2
Conflicting Flow All 68 0 0 47 0 0 129 127 43 129 129 66
          Stage 1 - - - - - - 51 51 - 74 74 -
          Stage 2 - - - - - - 78 76 - 55 55 -
Critical Hdwy 4.12 - - 4.12 - - 7.12 6.52 6.22 7.12 6.52 6.22
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 - - - - - - 6.12 5.52 - 6.12 5.52 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 - - - - - - 6.12 5.52 - 6.12 5.52 -
Follow-up Hdwy 2.218 - - 2.218 - - 3.518 4.018 3.318 3.518 4.018 3.318
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 1533 - - 1560 - - 844 764 1027 844 762 998
          Stage 1 - - - - - - 962 852 - 935 833 -
          Stage 2 - - - - - - 931 832 - 957 849 -
Platoon blocked, % - - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver 1533 - - 1560 - - 833 759 1027 833 757 998
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver - - - - - - 833 759 - 833 757 -
          Stage 1 - - - - - - 959 849 - 932 831 -
          Stage 2 - - - - - - 919 830 - 945 846 -

Approach EB WB NB SB
HCM Control Delay, s 0.6 0.4 9.4 9.4
HCM LOS A A

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBLn1 EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR SBLn1
Capacity (veh/h) 843 1533 - - 1560 - - 846
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.04 0.003 - - 0.003 - - 0.022
HCM Control Delay (s) 9.4 7.4 0 - 7.3 0 - 9.4
HCM Lane LOS A A A - A A - A
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0.1 0 - - 0 - - 0.1

- Page 885 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments Build AM
8: Chapel Ridge Road & South Site Driveway 02/08/2022

K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Synchro\5 - Build AM.syn Synchro 10 Report
Kimley-Horn Page 14

Lane Group EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 4 4 9 4 4 4 4 20 4 4 48 4
Future Volume (vph) 4 4 9 4 4 4 4 20 4 4 48 4
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Width (ft) 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12
Grade (%) 0% 0% 0% 0%
Storage Length (ft) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Storage Lanes 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Taper Length (ft) 25 25 25 25
Satd. Flow (prot) 0 1704 0 0 1750 0 0 1816 0 0 1840 0
Flt Permitted 0.989 0.984 0.993 0.997
Satd. Flow (perm) 0 1704 0 0 1750 0 0 1816 0 0 1840 0
Link Speed (mph) 25 25 25 25
Link Distance (ft) 248 378 405 213
Travel Time (s) 6.8 10.3 11.0 5.8
Confl. Peds. (#/hr)
Confl. Bikes (#/hr)
Peak Hour Factor 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90
Growth Factor 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
Heavy Vehicles (%) 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2%
Bus Blockages (#/hr) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Parking  (#/hr)
Mid-Block Traffic (%) 0% 0% 0% 0%
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 0 18 0 0 12 0 0 30 0 0 61 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Free Free

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Control Type: Unsignalized
Intersection Capacity Utilization 13.4% ICU Level of Service A
Analysis Period (min) 15

- Page 886 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments Build AM
8: Chapel Ridge Road & South Site Driveway 02/08/2022

K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Synchro\5 - Build AM.syn Synchro 10 Report
Kimley-Horn Page 15

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 2.8

Movement EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 4 4 9 4 4 4 4 20 4 4 48 4
Future Vol, veh/h 4 4 9 4 4 4 4 20 4 4 48 4
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Free Free Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - - None - - None - - None - - None
Storage Length - - - - - - - - - - - -
Veh in Median Storage, # - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Grade, % - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 4 4 10 4 4 4 4 22 4 4 53 4

Major/Minor Minor2 Minor1 Major1 Major2
Conflicting Flow All 99 97 55 102 97 24 57 0 0 26 0 0
          Stage 1 63 63 - 32 32 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 36 34 - 70 65 - - - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 7.12 6.52 6.22 7.12 6.52 6.22 4.12 - - 4.12 - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 6.12 5.52 - 6.12 5.52 - - - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 6.12 5.52 - 6.12 5.52 - - - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.518 4.018 3.318 3.518 4.018 3.318 2.218 - - 2.218 - -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 883 793 1012 879 793 1052 1547 - - 1588 - -
          Stage 1 948 842 - 984 868 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 980 867 - 940 841 - - - - - - -
Platoon blocked, % - - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver 872 788 1012 862 788 1052 1547 - - 1588 - -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver 872 788 - 862 788 - - - - - - -
          Stage 1 945 839 - 981 865 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 968 864 - 923 838 - - - - - - -

Approach EB WB NB SB
HCM Control Delay, s 9 9.1 1 0.5
HCM LOS A A

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBL NBT NBR EBLn1 WBLn1 SBL SBT SBR
Capacity (veh/h) 1547 - - 916 888 1588 - -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.003 - - 0.021 0.015 0.003 - -
HCM Control Delay (s) 7.3 0 - 9 9.1 7.3 0 -
HCM Lane LOS A A - A A A A -
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0 - - 0.1 0 0 - -

- Page 887 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments Build AM
9: Site Driveway & Ackerman Hill Drive 02/08/2022

K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Synchro\5 - Build AM.syn Synchro 10 Report
Kimley-Horn Page 16

Lane Group EBT EBR WBL WBT NBL NBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 25 4 4 58 9 4
Future Volume (vph) 25 4 4 58 9 4
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Width (ft) 12 12 12 12 12 12
Grade (%) 0% 0% 0%
Storage Length (ft) 0 0 0 0
Storage Lanes 0 0 1 0
Taper Length (ft) 25 25
Satd. Flow (prot) 1831 0 0 1857 1729 0
Flt Permitted 0.997 0.966
Satd. Flow (perm) 1831 0 0 1857 1729 0
Link Speed (mph) 25 25 25
Link Distance (ft) 292 367 225
Travel Time (s) 8.0 10.0 6.1
Confl. Peds. (#/hr)
Confl. Bikes (#/hr)
Peak Hour Factor 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90
Growth Factor 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
Heavy Vehicles (%) 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2%
Bus Blockages (#/hr) 0 0 0 0 0 0
Parking  (#/hr)
Mid-Block Traffic (%) 0% 0% 0%
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 32 0 0 68 14 0
Sign Control Free Free Stop

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Control Type: Unsignalized
Intersection Capacity Utilization 16.3% ICU Level of Service A
Analysis Period (min) 15

- Page 888 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments Build AM
9: Site Driveway & Ackerman Hill Drive 02/08/2022

K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Synchro\5 - Build AM.syn Synchro 10 Report
Kimley-Horn Page 17

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 1.4

Movement EBT EBR WBL WBT NBL NBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 25 4 4 58 9 4
Future Vol, veh/h 25 4 4 58 9 4
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Free Free Free Free Stop Stop
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length - - - - 0 -
Veh in Median Storage, # 0 - - 0 0 -
Grade, % 0 - - 0 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 90 90 90 90 90 90
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 28 4 4 64 10 4

Major/Minor Major1 Major2 Minor1
Conflicting Flow All 0 0 32 0 102 30
          Stage 1 - - - - 30 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 72 -
Critical Hdwy - - 4.12 - 6.42 6.22
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 - - - - 5.42 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 - - - - 5.42 -
Follow-up Hdwy - - 2.218 - 3.518 3.318
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver - - 1580 - 896 1044
          Stage 1 - - - - 993 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 951 -
Platoon blocked, % - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver - - 1580 - 893 1044
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver - - - - 893 -
          Stage 1 - - - - 993 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 948 -

Approach EB WB NB
HCM Control Delay, s 0 0.5 8.9
HCM LOS A

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBLn1 EBT EBR WBL WBT
Capacity (veh/h) 935 - - 1580 -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.015 - - 0.003 -
HCM Control Delay (s) 8.9 - - 7.3 0
HCM Lane LOS A - - A A
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0 - - 0 -

- Page 889 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments Build PM
1: Kelly Road & Wendhurst Court/Beaver Creek Commons Drive 02/08/2022

K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Synchro\6 - Build PM.syn Synchro 10 Report
Kimley-Horn Page 1

Lane Group EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 10 14 47 278 20 101 67 584 304 164 846 23
Future Volume (vph) 10 14 47 278 20 101 67 584 304 164 846 23
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Width (ft) 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12
Grade (%) 0% 1% 3% -4%
Storage Length (ft) 0 0 275 0 275 0 170 0
Storage Lanes 0 0 1 1 1 0 1 0
Taper Length (ft) 25 50 125 170
Satd. Flow (prot) 0 1683 0 0 1770 1575 1743 3283 0 1805 1891 0
Flt Permitted 0.943 0.710 0.087 0.232
Satd. Flow (perm) 0 1598 0 0 1316 1575 160 3283 0 441 1891 0
Right Turn on Red Yes Yes Yes Yes
Satd. Flow (RTOR) 48 103 95 1
Link Speed (mph) 25 35 45 45
Link Distance (ft) 513 641 1004 905
Travel Time (s) 14.0 12.5 15.2 13.7
Confl. Peds. (#/hr) 1 1 1 1
Confl. Bikes (#/hr)
Peak Hour Factor 0.98 0.98 0.98 0.98 0.98 0.98 0.98 0.98 0.98 0.98 0.98 0.98
Growth Factor 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
Heavy Vehicles (%) 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2%
Bus Blockages (#/hr) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Parking  (#/hr)
Mid-Block Traffic (%) 0% 0% 0% 0%
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 0 72 0 0 304 103 68 906 0 167 886 0
Turn Type Perm NA pm+pt NA pm+ov D.P+P NA D.P+P NA
Protected Phases 4 3 8 1 5 2 1 6
Permitted Phases 4 8 8 6 2
Detector Phase 4 4 3 8 1 5 2 1 6
Switch Phase
Minimum Initial (s) 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 12.0 7.0 12.0
Minimum Split (s) 30.0 30.0 14.0 30.0 14.0 14.0 30.0 14.0 25.0
Total Split (s) 25.0 25.0 20.0 45.0 20.0 15.0 55.0 20.0 60.0
Total Split (%) 20.8% 20.8% 16.7% 37.5% 16.7% 12.5% 45.8% 16.7% 50.0%
Yellow Time (s) 3.2 3.2 3.0 3.1 3.0 3.0 4.9 3.0 4.9
All-Red Time (s) 2.6 2.6 2.8 2.7 2.8 2.4 1.6 2.8 1.6
Lost Time Adjust (s) -0.8 -0.8 -0.8 -0.4 -1.5 -0.8 -1.5
Total Lost Time (s) 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0
Lead/Lag Lead Lead Lag Lead Lead Lag Lead Lag
Lead-Lag Optimize? Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
Recall Mode None None None None None None C-Max None C-Max
Act Effct Green (s) 33.0 33.0 48.2 73.0 61.8 72.0 66.7
Actuated g/C Ratio 0.28 0.28 0.40 0.61 0.52 0.60 0.56
v/c Ratio 0.15 0.84 0.15 0.34 0.52 0.44 0.84
Control Delay 13.1 60.9 3.7 14.5 19.8 13.6 34.0
Queue Delay 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total Delay 13.1 60.9 3.7 14.5 19.8 13.6 34.0
LOS B E A B B B C
Approach Delay 13.1 46.4 19.4 30.8
Approach LOS B D B C
Queue Length 50th (ft) 14 219 0 19 214 49 586
Queue Length 95th (ft) 46 312 29 42 322 91 #968
Internal Link Dist (ft) 433 561 924 825
Turn Bay Length (ft) 275 170
Base Capacity (vph) 473 438 752 231 1737 449 1051
Starvation Cap Reductn 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Spillback Cap Reductn 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Storage Cap Reductn 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Reduced v/c Ratio 0.15 0.69 0.14 0.29 0.52 0.37 0.84

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Cycle Length: 120
Actuated Cycle Length: 120

- Page 890 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments Build PM
1: Kelly Road & Wendhurst Court/Beaver Creek Commons Drive 02/08/2022

K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Synchro\6 - Build PM.syn Synchro 10 Report
Kimley-Horn Page 2

Offset: 0 (0%), Referenced to phase 2:NBSB and 6:NBSB, Start of Green
Natural Cycle: 110
Control Type: Actuated-Coordinated
Maximum v/c Ratio: 0.84
Intersection Signal Delay: 28.4 Intersection LOS: C
Intersection Capacity Utilization 87.4% ICU Level of Service E
Analysis Period (min) 15
Description: Signal No. 052254
#    95th percentile volume exceeds capacity, queue may be longer.
     Queue shown is maximum after two cycles.

Splits and Phases:     1: Kelly Road & Wendhurst Court/Beaver Creek Commons Drive

- Page 891 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments Build PM
2: Olive Chapel Road & Chapel Ridge Road 02/08/2022

K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Synchro\6 - Build PM.syn Synchro 10 Report
Kimley-Horn Page 3

Lane Group EBL EBT WBT WBR SBL SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 32 491 586 47 62 64
Future Volume (vph) 32 491 586 47 62 64
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Width (ft) 12 12 12 12 12 12
Grade (%) 0% 0% 0%
Storage Length (ft) 150 0 75 0
Storage Lanes 1 0 1 1
Taper Length (ft) 300 25
Satd. Flow (prot) 1770 1863 1844 0 1770 1583
Flt Permitted 0.950 0.950
Satd. Flow (perm) 1770 1863 1844 0 1770 1583
Link Speed (mph) 45 45 25
Link Distance (ft) 797 812 509
Travel Time (s) 12.1 12.3 13.9
Confl. Peds. (#/hr)
Confl. Bikes (#/hr)
Peak Hour Factor 0.93 0.93 0.93 0.93 0.93 0.93
Growth Factor 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
Heavy Vehicles (%) 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2%
Bus Blockages (#/hr) 0 0 0 0 0 0
Parking  (#/hr)
Mid-Block Traffic (%) 0% 0% 0%
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 34 528 681 0 67 69
Sign Control Free Free Stop

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Control Type: Unsignalized
Intersection Capacity Utilization 44.3% ICU Level of Service A
Analysis Period (min) 15

- Page 892 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments Build PM
2: Olive Chapel Road & Chapel Ridge Road 02/08/2022

K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Synchro\6 - Build PM.syn Synchro 10 Report
Kimley-Horn Page 4

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 1.9

Movement EBL EBT WBT WBR SBL SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 32 491 586 47 62 64
Future Vol, veh/h 32 491 586 47 62 64
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Free Free Free Free Stop Stop
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length 150 - - - 75 0
Veh in Median Storage, # - 0 0 - 0 -
Grade, % - 0 0 - 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 93 93 93 93 93 93
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 34 528 630 51 67 69

Major/Minor Major1 Major2 Minor2
Conflicting Flow All 681 0 - 0 1252 656
          Stage 1 - - - - 656 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 596 -
Critical Hdwy 4.12 - - - 6.42 6.22
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 - - - - 5.42 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 - - - - 5.42 -
Follow-up Hdwy 2.218 - - - 3.518 3.318
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 912 - - - 190 465
          Stage 1 - - - - 516 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 550 -
Platoon blocked, % - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver 912 - - - 183 465
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver - - - - 322 -
          Stage 1 - - - - 497 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 550 -

Approach EB WB SB
HCM Control Delay, s 0.6 0 16.6
HCM LOS C

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt EBL EBT WBT WBR SBLn1 SBLn2
Capacity (veh/h) 912 - - - 322 465
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.038 - - - 0.207 0.148
HCM Control Delay (s) 9.1 - - - 19.1 14.1
HCM Lane LOS A - - - C B
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0.1 - - - 0.8 0.5

- Page 893 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments Build PM
3: Chapel Ridge Road & Ackerman Hill Drive 02/08/2022

K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Synchro\6 - Build PM.syn Synchro 10 Report
Kimley-Horn Page 5

Lane Group WBL WBR NBT NBR SBL SBT
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 17 28 34 32 47 22
Future Volume (vph) 17 28 34 32 47 22
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Width (ft) 12 12 12 12 12 12
Grade (%) 0% 0% 0%
Storage Length (ft) 0 0 0 0
Storage Lanes 1 0 0 0
Taper Length (ft) 25 25
Satd. Flow (prot) 1674 0 1740 0 0 1801
Flt Permitted 0.981 0.967
Satd. Flow (perm) 1674 0 1740 0 0 1801
Link Speed (mph) 25 25 25
Link Distance (ft) 292 213 210
Travel Time (s) 8.0 5.8 5.7
Confl. Peds. (#/hr)
Confl. Bikes (#/hr)
Peak Hour Factor 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90
Growth Factor 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
Heavy Vehicles (%) 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2%
Bus Blockages (#/hr) 0 0 0 0 0 0
Parking  (#/hr)
Mid-Block Traffic (%) 0% 0% 0%
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 50 0 74 0 0 76
Sign Control Stop Free Free

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Control Type: Unsignalized
Intersection Capacity Utilization 20.4% ICU Level of Service A
Analysis Period (min) 15

- Page 894 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments Build PM
3: Chapel Ridge Road & Ackerman Hill Drive 02/08/2022

K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Synchro\6 - Build PM.syn Synchro 10 Report
Kimley-Horn Page 6

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 4.3

Movement WBL WBR NBT NBR SBL SBT
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 17 28 34 32 47 22
Future Vol, veh/h 17 28 34 32 47 22
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length 0 - - - - -
Veh in Median Storage, # 0 - 0 - - 0
Grade, % 0 - 0 - - 0
Peak Hour Factor 90 90 90 90 90 90
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 19 31 38 36 52 24

Major/Minor Minor1 Major1 Major2
Conflicting Flow All 184 56 0 0 74 0
          Stage 1 56 - - - - -
          Stage 2 128 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 6.42 6.22 - - 4.12 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 5.42 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 5.42 - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.518 3.318 - - 2.218 -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 805 1011 - - 1526 -
          Stage 1 967 - - - - -
          Stage 2 898 - - - - -
Platoon blocked, % - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver 777 1011 - - 1526 -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver 777 - - - - -
          Stage 1 967 - - - - -
          Stage 2 867 - - - - -

Approach WB NB SB
HCM Control Delay, s 9.2 0 5.1
HCM LOS A

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBT NBR WBLn1 SBL SBT
Capacity (veh/h) - - 908 1526 -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio - - 0.055 0.034 -
HCM Control Delay (s) - - 9.2 7.4 0
HCM Lane LOS - - A A A
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) - - 0.2 0.1 -

- Page 895 -



MOVEMENT SUMMARY
Site: 4 [Build-Out PM (Site Folder: General)]

Beaver Creek Commons Drive at Creekside Landing Drive
Site Category: Chapel Ridge Apartments
Roundabout

Vehicle Movement Performance
INPUT

VOLUMES
DEMAND
FLOWS

95% BACK OF
QUEUE

Mov
ID

Turn Deg.
Satn

Aver.
Delay

Level of
Service

Prop.
Que

Effective
Stop
Rate

Aver.
No.

Cycles

Aver.
Speed

[ Total HV ] [ Total HV ] [ Veh. Dist ]
veh/h % veh/h % v/c sec veh ft mph

South: Creekside Landing Drive

3 L2 25 2.0 27 2.0 0.322 8.6 LOS A 1.5 37.5 0.64 0.64 0.64 22.9
8 T1 98 2.0 104 2.0 0.322 8.6 LOS A 1.5 37.5 0.64 0.64 0.64 22.8
18 R2 107 2.0 114 2.0 0.322 8.6 LOS A 1.5 37.5 0.64 0.64 0.64 22.4
Approach 230 2.0 245 2.0 0.322 8.6 LOS A 1.5 37.5 0.64 0.64 0.64 22.7

East: Beaver Creek Commons Drive

1 L2 74 2.0 79 2.0 0.538 10.2 LOS B 4.1 104.5 0.63 0.56 0.70 22.5
6 T1 255 2.0 271 2.0 0.538 10.2 LOS B 4.1 104.5 0.63 0.56 0.70 22.4
16 R2 189 2.0 201 2.0 0.538 10.2 LOS B 4.1 104.5 0.63 0.56 0.70 22.0
Approach 518 2.0 551 2.0 0.538 10.2 LOS B 4.1 104.5 0.63 0.56 0.70 22.3

North: Creekside Landing Drive

7 L2 153 2.0 163 2.0 0.548 11.3 LOS B 4.7 118.9 0.70 0.80 0.96 22.2
4 T1 160 2.0 170 2.0 0.548 11.3 LOS B 4.7 118.9 0.70 0.80 0.96 22.1
14 R2 158 2.0 168 2.0 0.548 11.3 LOS B 4.7 118.9 0.70 0.80 0.96 21.7
Approach 471 2.0 501 2.0 0.548 11.3 LOS B 4.7 118.9 0.70 0.80 0.96 22.0

West: Beaver Creek Commons Drive

5 L2 129 2.0 137 2.0 0.471 10.0 LOS B 3.1 79.3 0.66 0.70 0.80 22.5
2 T1 240 2.0 255 2.0 0.471 10.0 LOS B 3.1 79.3 0.66 0.70 0.80 22.4
12 R2 21 2.0 22 2.0 0.471 10.0 LOS B 3.1 79.3 0.66 0.70 0.80 22.0
Approach 390 2.0 415 2.0 0.471 10.0 LOS B 3.1 79.3 0.66 0.70 0.80 22.4

All Vehicles 1609 2.0 1712 2.0 0.548 10.3 LOS B 4.7 118.9 0.66 0.68 0.79 22.3

Site Level of Service (LOS) Method: Delay & v/c (HCM 6). Site LOS Method is specified in the Parameter Settings dialog (Site tab).
Roundabout LOS Method: Same as Sign Control.
Vehicle movement LOS values are based on average delay and v/c ratio (degree of saturation) per movement.
LOS F will result if v/c > 1 irrespective of movement delay value (does not apply for approaches and intersection).
Intersection and Approach LOS values are based on average delay for all movements (v/c not used as specified in HCM 6).
Roundabout Capacity Model: US HCM 6.
Delay Model: HCM Delay Formula (Geometric Delay is not included).
Queue Model: HCM Queue Formula.
Gap-Acceptance Capacity: Traditional M1.
HV (%) values are calculated for All Movement Classes of All Heavy Vehicle Model Designation.

SIDRA INTERSECTION 9.0 | Copyright © 2000-2020 Akcelik and Associates Pty Ltd | sidrasolutions.com
Organisation: KIMLEY-HORN & ASSOCIATES INC | Licence: NETWORK / Enterprise | Processed: Tuesday, February 8, 2022 2:39:02 PM
Project: K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Sidra\BC Commons @ Creekside Landing.sip9

- Page 896 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments Build PM
5: Beaver Creek Commons Drive & Proposed Site Access 02/08/2022

K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Synchro\6 - Build PM.syn Synchro 10 Report
Kimley-Horn Page 8

Lane Group WBL WBR NBT NBR SBL SBT
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 39 37 400 64 41 377
Future Volume (vph) 39 37 400 64 41 377
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Width (ft) 12 12 12 12 12 12
Grade (%) 0% 0% 0%
Storage Length (ft) 0 0 0 100
Storage Lanes 1 0 0 0
Taper Length (ft) 25 100
Satd. Flow (prot) 1696 0 1827 0 0 1853
Flt Permitted 0.975 0.995
Satd. Flow (perm) 1696 0 1827 0 0 1853
Link Speed (mph) 25 35 35
Link Distance (ft) 432 357 558
Travel Time (s) 11.8 7.0 10.9
Confl. Peds. (#/hr)
Confl. Bikes (#/hr)
Peak Hour Factor 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90
Growth Factor 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
Heavy Vehicles (%) 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2%
Bus Blockages (#/hr) 0 0 0 0 0 0
Parking  (#/hr)
Mid-Block Traffic (%) 0% 0% 0%
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 84 0 515 0 0 465
Sign Control Stop Free Free

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Control Type: Unsignalized
Intersection Capacity Utilization 61.5% ICU Level of Service B
Analysis Period (min) 15

- Page 897 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments Build PM
5: Beaver Creek Commons Drive & Proposed Site Access 02/08/2022

K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Synchro\6 - Build PM.syn Synchro 10 Report
Kimley-Horn Page 9

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 1.5

Movement WBL WBR NBT NBR SBL SBT
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 39 37 400 64 41 377
Future Vol, veh/h 39 37 400 64 41 377
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length 0 - - - - -
Veh in Median Storage, # 0 - 0 - - 0
Grade, % 0 - 0 - - 0
Peak Hour Factor 90 90 90 90 90 90
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 43 41 444 71 46 419

Major/Minor Minor1 Major1 Major2
Conflicting Flow All 991 480 0 0 515 0
          Stage 1 480 - - - - -
          Stage 2 511 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 6.42 6.22 - - 4.12 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 5.42 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 5.42 - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.518 3.318 - - 2.218 -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 273 586 - - 1051 -
          Stage 1 622 - - - - -
          Stage 2 602 - - - - -
Platoon blocked, % - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver 257 586 - - 1051 -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver 388 - - - - -
          Stage 1 622 - - - - -
          Stage 2 568 - - - - -

Approach WB NB SB
HCM Control Delay, s 14.5 0 0.8
HCM LOS B

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBT NBR WBLn1 SBL SBT
Capacity (veh/h) - - 464 1051 -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio - - 0.182 0.043 -
HCM Control Delay (s) - - 14.5 8.6 0
HCM Lane LOS - - B A A
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) - - 0.7 0.1 -

- Page 898 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments Build PM
6: Chapel Ridge Road & Proposed Site Access/North Site Driveway 02/08/2022

K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Synchro\6 - Build PM.syn Synchro 10 Report
Kimley-Horn Page 10

Lane Group EBT EBR WBL WBT NBL NBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 18 87 4 11 65 4
Future Volume (vph) 18 87 4 11 65 4
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Width (ft) 12 12 12 12 12 12
Grade (%) 0% 0% 0%
Storage Length (ft) 0 0 0 0
Storage Lanes 0 0 1 0
Taper Length (ft) 25 25
Satd. Flow (prot) 1654 0 0 1840 1766 0
Flt Permitted 0.988 0.955
Satd. Flow (perm) 1654 0 0 1840 1766 0
Link Speed (mph) 25 25 25
Link Distance (ft) 432 273 553
Travel Time (s) 11.8 7.4 15.1
Confl. Peds. (#/hr)
Confl. Bikes (#/hr)
Peak Hour Factor 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90
Growth Factor 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
Heavy Vehicles (%) 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2%
Bus Blockages (#/hr) 0 0 0 0 0 0
Parking  (#/hr)
Mid-Block Traffic (%) 0% 0% 0%
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 117 0 0 16 76 0
Sign Control Free Free Stop

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Control Type: Unsignalized
Intersection Capacity Utilization 16.8% ICU Level of Service A
Analysis Period (min) 15

- Page 899 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments Build PM
6: Chapel Ridge Road & Proposed Site Access/North Site Driveway 02/08/2022

K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Synchro\6 - Build PM.syn Synchro 10 Report
Kimley-Horn Page 11

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 3.6

Movement EBT EBR WBL WBT NBL NBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 18 87 4 11 65 4
Future Vol, veh/h 18 87 4 11 65 4
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Free Free Free Free Stop Stop
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length - - - - 0 -
Veh in Median Storage, # 0 - - 0 0 -
Grade, % 0 - - 0 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 90 90 90 90 90 90
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 20 97 4 12 72 4

Major/Minor Major1 Major2 Minor1
Conflicting Flow All 0 0 117 0 89 69
          Stage 1 - - - - 69 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 20 -
Critical Hdwy - - 4.12 - 6.42 6.22
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 - - - - 5.42 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 - - - - 5.42 -
Follow-up Hdwy - - 2.218 - 3.518 3.318
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver - - 1471 - 912 994
          Stage 1 - - - - 954 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 1003 -
Platoon blocked, % - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver - - 1471 - 909 994
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver - - - - 909 -
          Stage 1 - - - - 954 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 1000 -

Approach EB WB NB
HCM Control Delay, s 0 2 9.3
HCM LOS A

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBLn1 EBT EBR WBL WBT
Capacity (veh/h) 914 - - 1471 -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.084 - - 0.003 -
HCM Control Delay (s) 9.3 - - 7.5 0
HCM Lane LOS A - - A A
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0.3 - - 0 -

- Page 900 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments Build PM
7: Central Site Driveway & Chapel Ridge Road 02/08/2022

K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Synchro\6 - Build PM.syn Synchro 10 Report
Kimley-Horn Page 12

Lane Group EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 5 60 23 5 47 9 14 4 4 6 4 4
Future Volume (vph) 5 60 23 5 47 9 14 4 4 6 4 4
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Width (ft) 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12
Grade (%) 0% 0% 0% 0%
Storage Length (ft) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Storage Lanes 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Taper Length (ft) 25 25 25 25
Satd. Flow (prot) 0 1792 0 0 1818 0 0 1762 0 0 1754 0
Flt Permitted 0.997 0.996 0.968 0.977
Satd. Flow (perm) 0 1792 0 0 1818 0 0 1762 0 0 1754 0
Link Speed (mph) 25 25 25 25
Link Distance (ft) 553 210 358 340
Travel Time (s) 15.1 5.7 9.8 9.3
Confl. Peds. (#/hr)
Confl. Bikes (#/hr)
Peak Hour Factor 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90
Growth Factor 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
Heavy Vehicles (%) 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2%
Bus Blockages (#/hr) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Parking  (#/hr)
Mid-Block Traffic (%) 0% 0% 0% 0%
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 0 99 0 0 68 0 0 24 0 0 15 0
Sign Control Free Free Stop Stop

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Control Type: Unsignalized
Intersection Capacity Utilization 15.8% ICU Level of Service A
Analysis Period (min) 15

- Page 901 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments Build PM
7: Central Site Driveway & Chapel Ridge Road 02/08/2022

K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Synchro\6 - Build PM.syn Synchro 10 Report
Kimley-Horn Page 13

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 2.2

Movement EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 5 60 23 5 47 9 14 4 4 6 4 4
Future Vol, veh/h 5 60 23 5 47 9 14 4 4 6 4 4
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Free Free Free Free Free Free Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop
RT Channelized - - None - - None - - None - - None
Storage Length - - - - - - - - - - - -
Veh in Median Storage, # - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Grade, % - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 6 67 26 6 52 10 16 4 4 7 4 4

Major/Minor Major1 Major2 Minor1 Minor2
Conflicting Flow All 62 0 0 93 0 0 165 166 80 165 174 57
          Stage 1 - - - - - - 92 92 - 69 69 -
          Stage 2 - - - - - - 73 74 - 96 105 -
Critical Hdwy 4.12 - - 4.12 - - 7.12 6.52 6.22 7.12 6.52 6.22
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 - - - - - - 6.12 5.52 - 6.12 5.52 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 - - - - - - 6.12 5.52 - 6.12 5.52 -
Follow-up Hdwy 2.218 - - 2.218 - - 3.518 4.018 3.318 3.518 4.018 3.318
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 1541 - - 1501 - - 800 727 980 800 719 1009
          Stage 1 - - - - - - 915 819 - 941 837 -
          Stage 2 - - - - - - 937 833 - 911 808 -
Platoon blocked, % - - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver 1541 - - 1501 - - 788 721 980 788 713 1009
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver - - - - - - 788 721 - 788 713 -
          Stage 1 - - - - - - 911 816 - 937 834 -
          Stage 2 - - - - - - 924 830 - 898 805 -

Approach EB WB NB SB
HCM Control Delay, s 0.4 0.6 9.6 9.5
HCM LOS A A

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBLn1 EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR SBLn1
Capacity (veh/h) 803 1541 - - 1501 - - 814
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.03 0.004 - - 0.004 - - 0.019
HCM Control Delay (s) 9.6 7.3 0 - 7.4 0 - 9.5
HCM Lane LOS A A A - A A - A
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0.1 0 - - 0 - - 0.1

- Page 902 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments Build PM
8: Chapel Ridge Road & South Site Driveway 02/08/2022

K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Synchro\6 - Build PM.syn Synchro 10 Report
Kimley-Horn Page 14

Lane Group EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 4 4 6 4 4 4 9 60 5 5 30 5
Future Volume (vph) 4 4 6 4 4 4 9 60 5 5 30 5
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Width (ft) 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12
Grade (%) 0% 0% 0% 0%
Storage Length (ft) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Storage Lanes 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Taper Length (ft) 25 25 25 25
Satd. Flow (prot) 0 1723 0 0 1750 0 0 1833 0 0 1816 0
Flt Permitted 0.987 0.984 0.994 0.993
Satd. Flow (perm) 0 1723 0 0 1750 0 0 1833 0 0 1816 0
Link Speed (mph) 25 25 25 25
Link Distance (ft) 248 378 405 213
Travel Time (s) 6.8 10.3 11.0 5.8
Confl. Peds. (#/hr)
Confl. Bikes (#/hr)
Peak Hour Factor 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90
Growth Factor 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
Heavy Vehicles (%) 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2%
Bus Blockages (#/hr) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Parking  (#/hr)
Mid-Block Traffic (%) 0% 0% 0% 0%
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 0 15 0 0 12 0 0 83 0 0 45 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Free Free

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Control Type: Unsignalized
Intersection Capacity Utilization 15.2% ICU Level of Service A
Analysis Period (min) 15

- Page 903 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments Build PM
8: Chapel Ridge Road & South Site Driveway 02/08/2022

K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Synchro\6 - Build PM.syn Synchro 10 Report
Kimley-Horn Page 15

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 2.5

Movement EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 4 4 6 4 4 4 9 60 5 5 30 5
Future Vol, veh/h 4 4 6 4 4 4 9 60 5 5 30 5
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Free Free Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - - None - - None - - None - - None
Storage Length - - - - - - - - - - - -
Veh in Median Storage, # - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Grade, % - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 4 4 7 4 4 4 10 67 6 6 33 6

Major/Minor Minor2 Minor1 Major1 Major2
Conflicting Flow All 142 141 36 144 141 70 39 0 0 73 0 0
          Stage 1 48 48 - 90 90 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 94 93 - 54 51 - - - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 7.12 6.52 6.22 7.12 6.52 6.22 4.12 - - 4.12 - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 6.12 5.52 - 6.12 5.52 - - - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 6.12 5.52 - 6.12 5.52 - - - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.518 4.018 3.318 3.518 4.018 3.318 2.218 - - 2.218 - -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 828 750 1037 825 750 993 1571 - - 1527 - -
          Stage 1 965 855 - 917 820 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 913 818 - 958 852 - - - - - - -
Platoon blocked, % - - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver 814 742 1037 809 742 993 1571 - - 1527 - -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver 814 742 - 809 742 - - - - - - -
          Stage 1 958 852 - 911 814 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 898 812 - 943 849 - - - - - - -

Approach EB WB NB SB
HCM Control Delay, s 9.2 9.4 0.9 0.9
HCM LOS A A

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBL NBT NBR EBLn1 WBLn1 SBL SBT SBR
Capacity (veh/h) 1571 - - 870 835 1527 - -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.006 - - 0.018 0.016 0.004 - -
HCM Control Delay (s) 7.3 0 - 9.2 9.4 7.4 0 -
HCM Lane LOS A A - A A A A -
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0 - - 0.1 0 0 - -

- Page 904 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments Build PM
9: Site Driveway & Ackerman Hill Drive 02/08/2022

K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Synchro\6 - Build PM.syn Synchro 10 Report
Kimley-Horn Page 16

Lane Group EBT EBR WBL WBT NBL NBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 70 9 4 39 6 4
Future Volume (vph) 70 9 4 39 6 4
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Width (ft) 12 12 12 12 12 12
Grade (%) 0% 0% 0%
Storage Length (ft) 0 0 0 0
Storage Lanes 0 0 1 0
Taper Length (ft) 25 25
Satd. Flow (prot) 1835 0 0 1855 1717 0
Flt Permitted 0.996 0.969
Satd. Flow (perm) 1835 0 0 1855 1717 0
Link Speed (mph) 25 25 25
Link Distance (ft) 292 367 225
Travel Time (s) 8.0 10.0 6.1
Confl. Peds. (#/hr)
Confl. Bikes (#/hr)
Peak Hour Factor 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90
Growth Factor 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
Heavy Vehicles (%) 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2%
Bus Blockages (#/hr) 0 0 0 0 0 0
Parking  (#/hr)
Mid-Block Traffic (%) 0% 0% 0%
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 88 0 0 47 11 0
Sign Control Free Free Stop

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Control Type: Unsignalized
Intersection Capacity Utilization 15.4% ICU Level of Service A
Analysis Period (min) 15

- Page 905 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments Build PM
9: Site Driveway & Ackerman Hill Drive 02/08/2022

K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Synchro\6 - Build PM.syn Synchro 10 Report
Kimley-Horn Page 17

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 0.9

Movement EBT EBR WBL WBT NBL NBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 70 9 4 39 6 4
Future Vol, veh/h 70 9 4 39 6 4
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Free Free Free Free Stop Stop
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length - - - - 0 -
Veh in Median Storage, # 0 - - 0 0 -
Grade, % 0 - - 0 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 90 90 90 90 90 90
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 78 10 4 43 7 4

Major/Minor Major1 Major2 Minor1
Conflicting Flow All 0 0 88 0 134 83
          Stage 1 - - - - 83 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 51 -
Critical Hdwy - - 4.12 - 6.42 6.22
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 - - - - 5.42 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 - - - - 5.42 -
Follow-up Hdwy - - 2.218 - 3.518 3.318
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver - - 1508 - 860 976
          Stage 1 - - - - 940 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 971 -
Platoon blocked, % - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver - - 1508 - 857 976
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver - - - - 857 -
          Stage 1 - - - - 940 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 968 -

Approach EB WB NB
HCM Control Delay, s 0 0.7 9
HCM LOS A

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBLn1 EBT EBR WBL WBT
Capacity (veh/h) 901 - - 1508 -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.012 - - 0.003 -
HCM Control Delay (s) 9 - - 7.4 0
HCM Lane LOS A - - A A
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0 - - 0 -

- Page 906 -



 

 

Appendix I: 

Supplemental Analysis: 

Chapel Ridge Townes Development Data 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

- Page 907 -



Appendix I:
Traffic Signal Warrant Analysis:

Olive Chapel Road at Chapel Ridge Road

- Page 908 -



Start End Left Thru Right Left Thru Right Left Thru Right
06:00 AM TO 06:15 AM 1 0 2 0 12 0 0 8 3
06:15 AM TO 06:30 AM 0 0 0 0 21 0 0 17 0
06:30 AM TO 06:45 AM 0 0 2 2 20 0 0 42 3
06:45 AM TO 07:00 AM 2 0 7 5 22 0 0 62 2
07:00 AM TO 07:15 AM 8 0 6 2 48 0 0 58 1
07:15 AM TO 07:30 AM 3 0 3 1 92 0 0 68 0
07:30 AM TO 07:45 AM 3 0 4 2 76 0 0 89 5
07:45 AM TO 08:00 AM 4 0 4 5 77 0 0 87 6
08:00 AM TO 08:15 AM 1 0 1 2 76 0 0 91 10
08:15 AM TO 08:30 AM 3 0 2 7 76 0 0 89 1
08:30 AM TO 08:45 AM 5 0 1 4 100 0 0 68 8
08:45 AM TO 09:00 AM 2 0 3 7 103 0 0 108 5
09:00 AM TO 09:15 AM 3 0 1 6 87 0 0 99 5
09:15 AM TO 09:30 AM 4 0 2 4 77 0 0 71 4
09:30 AM TO 09:45 AM 1 0 1 3 54 0 0 71 1
09:45 AM TO 10:00 AM 3 0 7 6 63 0 0 73 6
10:00 AM TO 10:15 AM 2 0 2 1 49 0 0 50 2
10:15 AM TO 10:30 AM 4 0 2 4 62 0 0 62 2
10:30 AM TO 10:45 AM 0 0 4 6 59 0 0 69 3
10:45 AM TO 11:00 AM 3 0 7 4 78 0 0 65 3
11:00 AM TO 11:15 AM 5 0 5 5 62 0 0 74 2
11:15 AM TO 11:30 AM 2 0 4 3 62 0 0 81 2
11:30 AM TO 11:45 AM 4 0 3 1 48 0 0 79 7
11:45 AM TO 12:00 PM 3 0 9 6 81 0 0 105 7
12:00 PM TO 12:15 PM 6 0 5 6 68 0 0 77 3
12:15 PM TO 12:30 PM 5 0 2 8 93 0 0 115 2
12:30 PM TO 12:45 PM 2 0 4 2 82 0 0 94 4
12:45 PM TO 01:00 PM 4 0 6 10 93 0 0 96 3
01:00 PM TO 01:15 PM 2 0 5 3 72 0 0 99 1
01:15 PM TO 01:30 PM 6 0 7 7 61 0 0 89 3
01:30 PM TO 01:45 PM 5 0 7 6 60 0 0 66 8
01:45 PM TO 02:00 PM 6 0 3 7 56 0 0 75 5
02:00 PM TO 02:15 PM 3 0 4 4 55 0 0 68 7
02:15 PM TO 02:30 PM 3 0 6 5 60 0 0 71 4
02:30 PM TO 02:45 PM 7 0 4 7 85 0 0 68 3
02:45 PM TO 03:00 PM 5 0 11 5 104 0 0 94 6
03:00 PM TO 03:15 PM 6 0 5 3 78 0 0 100 5
03:15 PM TO 03:30 PM 2 0 7 5 82 0 0 112 0
03:30 PM TO 03:45 PM 2 0 5 4 89 0 0 126 7
03:45 PM TO 04:00 PM 1 0 4 7 90 0 0 128 3
04:00 PM TO 04:15 PM 3 0 3 5 112 0 0 127 6
04:15 PM TO 04:30 PM 3 0 7 7 95 0 0 126 6
04:30 PM TO 04:45 PM 5 0 11 3 100 0 0 101 13
04:45 PM TO 05:00 PM 4 0 8 1 121 0 0 138 8
05:00 PM TO 05:15 PM 6 0 6 6 103 0 0 117 4
05:15 PM TO 05:30 PM 5 0 8 4 114 0 0 140 3
05:30 PM TO 05:45 PM 5 0 4 5 98 0 0 126 7
05:45 PM TO 06:00 PM 6 0 11 4 90 0 0 116 5
06:00 PM TO 06:15 PM 3 0 2 5 74 0 0 107 4
06:15 PM TO 06:30 PM 7 0 5 3 79 0 0 122 7
06:30 PM TO 06:45 PM 5 0 4 1 90 0 0 75 5
06:45 PM TO 07:00 PM 6 0 11 3 58 0 0 104 3

Start Time End Time Left Thru Right Left Thru Right Left Thru Right
06:00 AM TO 07:00 AM 3 0 11 7 75 0 0 129 8
07:00 AM TO 08:00 AM 18 0 17 10 293 0 0 302 12
08:00 AM TO 09:00 AM 11 0 7 20 355 0 0 356 24
09:00 AM TO 10:00 AM 11 0 11 19 281 0 0 314 16
10:00 AM TO 11:00 AM 9 0 15 15 248 0 0 246 10
11:00 AM TO 12:00 PM 14 0 21 15 253 0 0 339 18
12:00 PM TO 01:00 PM 17 0 17 26 336 0 0 382 12
01:00 PM TO 02:00 PM 19 0 22 23 249 0 0 329 17
02:00 PM TO 03:00 PM 18 0 25 21 304 0 0 301 20
03:00 PM TO 04:00 PM 11 0 21 19 339 0 0 466 15
04:00 PM TO 05:00 PM 15 0 29 16 428 0 0 492 33
05:00 PM TO 06:00 PM 22 0 29 19 405 0 0 499 19
06:00 PM TO 07:00 PM 21 0 22 12 301 0 0 408 19

Raw Count Volumes (15-minute intervals)

Hourly Count Volumes

Chapel Ridge Road Olive Chapel Road Olive Chapel Road
SB EB WB

Chapel Ridge Road Olive Chapel Road Olive Chapel Road
SB EB WB

- Page 909 -



Left Thru Right Left Thru Right Left Thru Right
06:00 AM TO 07:00 AM 3 0 11 7 75 0 0 129 8
07:00 AM TO 08:00 AM 18 0 17 10 293 0 0 302 12
08:00 AM TO 09:00 AM 11 0 7 20 355 0 0 356 24
09:00 AM TO 10:00 AM 11 0 11 19 281 0 0 314 16
10:00 AM TO 11:00 AM 9 0 15 15 248 0 0 246 10
11:00 AM TO 12:00 PM 14 0 21 15 253 0 0 339 18
12:00 PM TO 01:00 PM 17 0 17 26 336 0 0 382 12
01:00 PM TO 02:00 PM 19 0 22 23 249 0 0 329 17
02:00 PM TO 03:00 PM 18 0 25 21 304 0 0 301 20
03:00 PM TO 04:00 PM 11 0 21 19 339 0 0 466 15
04:00 PM TO 05:00 PM 15 0 29 16 428 0 0 492 33
05:00 PM TO 06:00 PM 22 0 29 19 405 0 0 499 19
06:00 PM TO 07:00 PM 21 0 22 12 301 0 0 408 19

Left Thru Right Left Thru Right Left Thru Right
06:00 AM TO 07:00 AM 3 0 0 7 75 0 0 129 8
07:00 AM TO 08:00 AM 18 0 0 10 293 0 0 302 12
08:00 AM TO 09:00 AM 11 0 0 20 355 0 0 356 24
09:00 AM TO 10:00 AM 11 0 0 19 281 0 0 314 16
10:00 AM TO 11:00 AM 9 0 0 15 248 0 0 246 10
11:00 AM TO 12:00 PM 14 0 0 15 253 0 0 339 18
12:00 PM TO 01:00 PM 17 0 0 26 336 0 0 382 12
01:00 PM TO 02:00 PM 19 0 0 23 249 0 0 329 17
02:00 PM TO 03:00 PM 18 0 0 21 304 0 0 301 20
03:00 PM TO 04:00 PM 11 0 0 19 339 0 0 466 15
04:00 PM TO 05:00 PM 15 0 0 16 428 0 0 492 33
05:00 PM TO 06:00 PM 22 0 0 19 405 0 0 499 19
06:00 PM TO 07:00 PM 21 0 0 12 301 0 0 408 19

Existing Volumes

Existing Right-turn Volumes Adjusted

Olive Chapel Road

Chapel Ridge Road Olive Chapel Road Olive Chapel Road
SB EB WB

Chapel Ridge Road
SB

Olive Chapel Road
EB WB

- Page 910 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments

Olive Chapel Road at Chapel Ridge COUNT DATE: 1-Jan-10

Existing

MAJOR STREET: Olive Chapel Road # OF APPROACH LANES: 1
MINOR STREET: Chapel Ridge Road/Chapel Ridge Road # OF APPROACH LANES: 1

ISOLATED COMMUNITY WITH POPULATION LESS THAN 10,000 (Y OR N): N
85TH PERCENTILE SPEED GREATER THAN 40 MPH ON MAJOR STREET (Y OR N): Y

HIGHEST HOUR  WARRANT 1, Combination Warrant
MAJOR ST MINOR ST  CONDITION A  CONDITION B WARRANT 2 WARRANT 3

BOTH
APPROACHES

 HIGHEST
APPROACH

MAJOR
STREET

MINOR
STREET

BOTH
MET

MAJOR
STREET

MINOR
STREET

BOTH
MET

MAJOR
STREET

MINOR
STREET

BOTH
MET

MAJOR
STREET

MINOR
STREET

BOTH
MET

   THRESHOLD VALUES 350 105 525 53 280 84 420 42
06:00 AM TO 07:00 AM 219 3
07:00 AM TO 08:00 AM 617 18 Y Y Y Y
08:00 AM TO 09:00 AM 755 11 Y Y Y Y
09:00 AM TO 10:00 AM 630 11 Y Y Y Y
10:00 AM TO 11:00 AM 519 9 Y Y Y
11:00 AM TO 12:00 PM 625 14 Y Y Y Y
12:00 PM TO 01:00 PM 756 17 Y Y Y Y
01:00 PM TO 02:00 PM 618 19 Y Y Y Y
02:00 PM TO 03:00 PM 646 18 Y Y Y Y
03:00 PM TO 04:00 PM 839 11 Y Y Y Y
04:00 PM TO 05:00 PM 969 15 Y Y Y Y
05:00 PM TO 06:00 PM 942 22 Y Y Y Y
06:00 PM TO 07:00 PM 740 21 Y Y Y Y

8,875 189 0 0 0 0 0 0

8 HOURS NEEDED 4 HRS NEEDED 1 HR NEEDED
NOT SATISFIED NOT SATISFIED NOT SATISFIED NOT SATISFIED NOT SATISFIED

WARRANT 1 -- Eight-Hour Vehicular Volume Warrant
          Condition A :  Minimum Vehicular Volume
          Condition B : Interruption of Continuous Traffic
          Combination : Combination of Condition A and Condition B
WARRANT 2 -- Four-Hour Vehicular Volume Warrant
WARRANT 3 -- Peak Hour Warrant
K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Prelim Signal Warrants\[OliveChapel@ChapelRidge-BaseScenario.xls]Existing Warrant 2/9/2022 21:18

TRAFFIC SIGNAL VOLUME WARRANT ANALYSIS

8 HOURS NEEDED 8 HOURS OF BOTH COND. A  AND COND. B NEEDED

INTERSECTION CONDITION:

INTERSECTION NAME:

WARRANT 1, Condition A WARRANT 1, Condition B

- Page 911 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments
Table 1 - Trip Generation (Approved Development #1)

AM Peak Hour PM Peak Hour

Total In Out Total In Out Total In Out
710 General Office Building3 80,000 s.f. 1,110 555 555 160 141 19 168 29 139

555 278 278 80 71 10 84 15 70

K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Prelim Signal Warrants\[OliveChapel@ChapelRidge-BaseScenario.xls]Trip Gen (AD #1) 2/9/22

Total Net New External Trips (50% occupied)

Land Use Intensity
Daily

- Page 912 -



Left Thru Right Left Thru Right Left Thru Right
06:00 AM TO 07:00 AM 1 0 0 6 0 0 0 0 6
07:00 AM TO 08:00 AM 4 0 0 32 0 0 0 0 32
08:00 AM TO 09:00 AM 4 0 0 18 0 0 0 0 18
09:00 AM TO 10:00 AM 5 0 0 8 0 0 0 0 8
10:00 AM TO 11:00 AM 7 0 0 7 0 0 0 0 7
11:00 AM TO 12:00 PM 13 0 0 8 0 0 0 0 8
12:00 PM TO 01:00 PM 13 0 0 13 0 0 0 0 13
01:00 PM TO 02:00 PM 8 0 0 11 0 0 0 0 11
02:00 PM TO 03:00 PM 8 0 0 10 0 0 0 0 10
03:00 PM TO 04:00 PM 11 0 0 9 0 0 0 0 9
04:00 PM TO 05:00 PM 19 0 0 7 0 0 0 0 7
05:00 PM TO 06:00 PM 31 0 0 7 0 0 0 0 7
06:00 PM TO 07:00 PM 4 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 2

Left Thru Right Left Thru Right Left Thru Right
06:00 AM TO 07:00 AM 1 0 0 6 0 0 0 0 6
07:00 AM TO 08:00 AM 4 0 0 32 0 0 0 0 32
08:00 AM TO 09:00 AM 4 0 0 18 0 0 0 0 18
09:00 AM TO 10:00 AM 5 0 0 8 0 0 0 0 8
10:00 AM TO 11:00 AM 7 0 0 7 0 0 0 0 7
11:00 AM TO 12:00 PM 13 0 0 8 0 0 0 0 8
12:00 PM TO 01:00 PM 13 0 0 13 0 0 0 0 13
01:00 PM TO 02:00 PM 8 0 0 11 0 0 0 0 11
02:00 PM TO 03:00 PM 8 0 0 10 0 0 0 0 10
03:00 PM TO 04:00 PM 11 0 0 9 0 0 0 0 9
04:00 PM TO 05:00 PM 19 0 0 7 0 0 0 0 7
05:00 PM TO 06:00 PM 31 0 0 7 0 0 0 0 7
06:00 PM TO 07:00 PM 4 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 2

Approved Development Volumes: Remaining Build-out of Olive Chapel Professional Park
Chapel Ridge Road Olive Chapel Road Olive Chapel Road

SB EB WB
Olive Chapel Road Olive Chapel Road

Approved Development Right-turn Volumes Adjusted: Remaining Build-out of Olive Chapel Professional Park
Chapel Ridge Road

SB WBEB

- Page 913 -



Left Thru Right Left Thru Right Left Thru Right Left Thru Right
06:00 AM TO 07:00 AM 4 0 11 0 0 0 13 84 0 0 145 14
07:00 AM TO 08:00 AM 22 0 17 0 0 0 42 330 0 0 340 44
08:00 AM TO 09:00 AM 15 0 7 0 0 0 38 400 0 0 401 42
09:00 AM TO 10:00 AM 16 0 11 0 0 0 27 316 0 0 353 24
10:00 AM TO 11:00 AM 16 0 15 0 0 0 22 279 0 0 277 17
11:00 AM TO 12:00 PM 27 0 21 0 0 0 23 285 0 0 382 26
12:00 PM TO 01:00 PM 30 0 17 0 0 0 39 378 0 0 430 25
01:00 PM TO 02:00 PM 27 0 22 0 0 0 34 280 0 0 370 28
02:00 PM TO 03:00 PM 26 0 25 0 0 0 31 342 0 0 339 30
03:00 PM TO 04:00 PM 22 0 21 0 0 0 28 382 0 0 524 24
04:00 PM TO 05:00 PM 34 0 29 0 0 0 23 482 0 0 554 40
05:00 PM TO 06:00 PM 53 0 29 0 0 0 26 456 0 0 562 26
06:00 PM TO 07:00 PM 25 0 22 0 0 0 14 339 0 0 459 21

Left Thru Right Left Thru Right Left Thru Right Left Thru Right
06:00 AM TO 07:00 AM 4 0 0 0 0 0 13 84 0 0 145 14
07:00 AM TO 08:00 AM 22 0 0 0 0 0 42 330 0 0 340 44
08:00 AM TO 09:00 AM 15 0 0 0 0 0 38 400 0 0 401 42
09:00 AM TO 10:00 AM 16 0 0 0 0 0 27 316 0 0 353 24
10:00 AM TO 11:00 AM 16 0 0 0 0 0 22 279 0 0 277 17
11:00 AM TO 12:00 PM 27 0 0 0 0 0 23 285 0 0 382 26
12:00 PM TO 01:00 PM 30 0 0 0 0 0 39 378 0 0 430 25
01:00 PM TO 02:00 PM 27 0 0 0 0 0 34 280 0 0 370 28
02:00 PM TO 03:00 PM 26 0 0 0 0 0 31 342 0 0 339 30
03:00 PM TO 04:00 PM 22 0 0 0 0 0 28 382 0 0 524 24
04:00 PM TO 05:00 PM 34 0 0 0 0 0 23 482 0 0 554 40
05:00 PM TO 06:00 PM 53 0 0 0 0 0 26 456 0 0 562 26
06:00 PM TO 07:00 PM 25 0 0 0 0 0 14 339 0 0 459 21

No-Build Right-Turn Volumes Adjusted

Chapel Ridge Road Chapel Ridge Road Olive Chapel Road Olive Chapel Road
SB NB EB WB

No-Build Traffic Volumes (Existing + Growth + Approved Developments)

Chapel Ridge Road Chapel Ridge Road Olive Chapel Road Olive Chapel Road
SB NB EB WB

- Page 914 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments

Olive Chapel Road at Chapel Ridge COUNT DATE: 1-Jan-10

No-Build

MAJOR STREET: Olive Chapel Road # OF APPROACH LANES: 1
MINOR STREET: Chapel Ridge Road/Chapel Ridge Road # OF APPROACH LANES: 1

ISOLATED COMMUNITY WITH POPULATION LESS THAN 10,000 (Y OR N): N
85TH PERCENTILE SPEED GREATER THAN 40 MPH ON MAJOR STREET (Y OR N): Y

HIGHEST HOUR  WARRANT 1, Combination Warrant
MAJOR ST MINOR ST  CONDITION A  CONDITION B WARRANT 2 WARRANT 3

BOTH
APPROACHES

 HIGHEST
APPROACH

MAJOR
STREET

MINOR
STREET

BOTH
MET

MAJOR
STREET

MINOR
STREET

BOTH
MET

MAJOR
STREET

MINOR
STREET

BOTH
MET

MAJOR
STREET

MINOR
STREET

BOTH
MET

   THRESHOLD VALUES 350 105 525 53 280 84 420 42
06:00 AM TO 07:00 AM 256 4
07:00 AM TO 08:00 AM 756 22 Y Y Y Y
08:00 AM TO 09:00 AM 881 15 Y Y Y Y
09:00 AM TO 10:00 AM 720 16 Y Y Y Y
10:00 AM TO 11:00 AM 595 16 Y Y Y Y
11:00 AM TO 12:00 PM 716 27 Y Y Y Y
12:00 PM TO 01:00 PM 872 30 Y Y Y Y
01:00 PM TO 02:00 PM 712 27 Y Y Y Y
02:00 PM TO 03:00 PM 742 26 Y Y Y Y
03:00 PM TO 04:00 PM 958 22 Y Y Y Y
04:00 PM TO 05:00 PM 1,099 34 Y Y Y Y
05:00 PM TO 06:00 PM 1,070 53 Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
06:00 PM TO 07:00 PM 833 25 Y Y Y Y

10,216 324 0 1 0 1 0 0

8 HOURS NEEDED 4 HRS NEEDED 1 HR NEEDED
NOT SATISFIED NOT SATISFIED NOT SATISFIED NOT SATISFIED NOT SATISFIED

WARRANT 1 -- Eight-Hour Vehicular Volume Warrant
          Condition A :  Minimum Vehicular Volume
          Condition B : Interruption of Continuous Traffic
          Combination : Combination of Condition A and Condition B
WARRANT 2 -- Four-Hour Vehicular Volume Warrant
WARRANT 3 -- Peak Hour Warrant
K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Prelim Signal Warrants\[OliveChapel@ChapelRidge-BaseScenario.xls]Full No-Build Warrant 2/9/2022 21:18

TRAFFIC SIGNAL VOLUME WARRANT ANALYSIS

INTERSECTION NAME:

INTERSECTION CONDITION:

WARRANT 1, Condition A WARRANT 1, Condition B

8 HOURS NEEDED 8 HOURS OF BOTH COND. A  AND COND. B NEEDED

- Page 915 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments
Table 1 - Trip Generation

AM Peak Hour PM Peak Hour

Total In Out Total In Out Total In Out
221 Multifamily Housing (Mid-Rise) 350 d.u. 1,906 953 953 117 30 87 147 90 57

1,906 953 953 117 30 87 147 90 57

K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Prelim Signal Warrants\[OliveChapel@ChapelRidge-BaseScenario.xls]Trip Gen (Site) 2/9/22

Land Use Intensity
Daily

Total Net New External Trips

- Page 916 -



Left Thru Right Left Thru Right Left Thru Right
06:00 AM TO 07:00 AM 12 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 3
07:00 AM TO 08:00 AM 17 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 6
08:00 AM TO 09:00 AM 17 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 7
09:00 AM TO 10:00 AM 11 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 5
10:00 AM TO 11:00 AM 9 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 5
11:00 AM TO 12:00 PM 9 0 0 4 0 0 0 0 9
12:00 PM TO 01:00 PM 9 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 9
01:00 PM TO 02:00 PM 9 0 0 4 0 0 0 0 8
02:00 PM TO 03:00 PM 10 0 0 6 0 0 0 0 11
03:00 PM TO 04:00 PM 9 0 0 6 0 0 0 0 13
04:00 PM TO 05:00 PM 12 0 0 10 0 0 0 0 20
05:00 PM TO 06:00 PM 11 0 0 9 0 0 0 0 18
06:00 PM TO 07:00 PM 13 0 0 9 0 0 0 0 18

Left Thru Right Left Thru Right Left Thru Right
06:00 AM TO 07:00 AM 12 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 3
07:00 AM TO 08:00 AM 17 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 6
08:00 AM TO 09:00 AM 17 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 7
09:00 AM TO 10:00 AM 11 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 5
10:00 AM TO 11:00 AM 9 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 5
11:00 AM TO 12:00 PM 9 0 0 4 0 0 0 0 9
12:00 PM TO 01:00 PM 9 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 9
01:00 PM TO 02:00 PM 9 0 0 4 0 0 0 0 8
02:00 PM TO 03:00 PM 10 0 0 6 0 0 0 0 11
03:00 PM TO 04:00 PM 9 0 0 6 0 0 0 0 13
04:00 PM TO 05:00 PM 12 0 0 10 0 0 0 0 20
05:00 PM TO 06:00 PM 11 0 0 9 0 0 0 0 18
06:00 PM TO 07:00 PM 13 0 0 9 0 0 0 0 18

Site Volumes
Chapel Ridge Road Olive Chapel Road Olive Chapel Road

SB EB WB
Olive Chapel Road Olive Chapel Road

Site Volumes Right-turn Volumes Adjusted
Chapel Ridge Road

SB WBEB

- Page 917 -



Left Thru Right Left Thru Right Left Thru Right
06:00 AM TO 07:00 AM 16 0 11 14 84 0 0 145 17
07:00 AM TO 08:00 AM 39 0 17 45 330 0 0 340 50
08:00 AM TO 09:00 AM 32 0 7 41 400 0 0 401 49
09:00 AM TO 10:00 AM 27 0 11 30 316 0 0 353 29
10:00 AM TO 11:00 AM 25 0 15 25 279 0 0 277 22
11:00 AM TO 12:00 PM 36 0 21 27 285 0 0 382 35
12:00 PM TO 01:00 PM 39 0 17 44 378 0 0 430 34
01:00 PM TO 02:00 PM 36 0 22 38 280 0 0 370 36
02:00 PM TO 03:00 PM 36 0 25 37 342 0 0 339 41
03:00 PM TO 04:00 PM 31 0 21 34 382 0 0 524 37
04:00 PM TO 05:00 PM 46 0 29 33 482 0 0 554 60
05:00 PM TO 06:00 PM 64 0 29 35 456 0 0 562 44
06:00 PM TO 07:00 PM 38 0 22 23 339 0 0 459 39

Left Thru Right Left Thru Right Left Thru Right
06:00 AM TO 07:00 AM 16 0 0 14 84 0 0 145 17
07:00 AM TO 08:00 AM 39 0 0 45 330 0 0 340 50
08:00 AM TO 09:00 AM 32 0 0 41 400 0 0 401 49
09:00 AM TO 10:00 AM 27 0 0 30 316 0 0 353 29
10:00 AM TO 11:00 AM 25 0 0 25 279 0 0 277 22
11:00 AM TO 12:00 PM 36 0 0 27 285 0 0 382 35
12:00 PM TO 01:00 PM 39 0 0 44 378 0 0 430 34
01:00 PM TO 02:00 PM 36 0 0 38 280 0 0 370 36
02:00 PM TO 03:00 PM 36 0 0 37 342 0 0 339 41
03:00 PM TO 04:00 PM 31 0 0 34 382 0 0 524 37
04:00 PM TO 05:00 PM 46 0 0 33 482 0 0 554 60
05:00 PM TO 06:00 PM 64 0 0 35 456 0 0 562 44
06:00 PM TO 07:00 PM 38 0 0 23 339 0 0 459 39

Build Right-Turn Volumes Adjusted

Chapel Ridge Road Olive Chapel Road Olive Chapel Road
SB EB WB

Build Traffic Volumes (Existing + Growth + Approved Developments + Project Site)

Chapel Ridge Road Olive Chapel Road Olive Chapel Road
SB EB WB

- Page 918 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments

Olive Chapel Road at Chapel Ridge COUNT DATE: 1-Jan-10

Build

MAJOR STREET: Olive Chapel Road # OF APPROACH LANES: 1
MINOR STREET: Chapel Ridge Road/Chapel Ridge Road # OF APPROACH LANES: 1

ISOLATED COMMUNITY WITH POPULATION LESS THAN 10,000 (Y OR N): N
85TH PERCENTILE SPEED GREATER THAN 40 MPH ON MAJOR STREET (Y OR N): Y

HIGHEST HOUR  WARRANT 1, Combination Warrant
MAJOR ST MINOR ST  CONDITION A  CONDITION B WARRANT 2 WARRANT 3

BOTH
APPROACHES

 HIGHEST
APPROACH

MAJOR
STREET

MINOR
STREET

BOTH
MET

MAJOR
STREET

MINOR
STREET

BOTH
MET

MAJOR
STREET

MINOR
STREET

BOTH
MET

MAJOR
STREET

MINOR
STREET

BOTH
MET

   THRESHOLD VALUES 350 105 525 53 280 84 420 42
06:00 AM TO 07:00 AM 260 16
07:00 AM TO 08:00 AM 765 39 Y Y Y Y
08:00 AM TO 09:00 AM 891 32 Y Y Y Y
09:00 AM TO 10:00 AM 728 27 Y Y Y Y
10:00 AM TO 11:00 AM 603 25 Y Y Y Y
11:00 AM TO 12:00 PM 729 36 Y Y Y Y
12:00 PM TO 01:00 PM 886 39 Y Y Y Y
01:00 PM TO 02:00 PM 724 36 Y Y Y Y
02:00 PM TO 03:00 PM 759 36 Y Y Y Y
03:00 PM TO 04:00 PM 977 31 Y Y Y Y
04:00 PM TO 05:00 PM 1,129 46 Y Y Y Y Y Y
05:00 PM TO 06:00 PM 1,097 64 Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
06:00 PM TO 07:00 PM 860 38 Y Y Y Y

10,472 491 0 1 0 2 1 0

8 HOURS NEEDED 4 HRS NEEDED 1 HR NEEDED
NOT SATISFIED NOT SATISFIED NOT SATISFIED NOT SATISFIED NOT SATISFIED

WARRANT 1 -- Eight-Hour Vehicular Volume Warrant
          Condition A :  Minimum Vehicular Volume
          Condition B : Interruption of Continuous Traffic
          Combination : Combination of Condition A and Condition B
WARRANT 2 -- Four-Hour Vehicular Volume Warrant
WARRANT 3 -- Peak Hour Warrant
K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Prelim Signal Warrants\[OliveChapel@ChapelRidge-BaseScenario.xls]Build Warrant 2/9/2022 21:18

TRAFFIC SIGNAL VOLUME WARRANT ANALYSIS

INTERSECTION NAME:

INTERSECTION CONDITION:

WARRANT 1, Condition A WARRANT 1, Condition B

8 HOURS NEEDED 8 HOURS OF BOTH COND. A  AND COND. B NEEDED

- Page 919 -



Appendix J:
Supplemental Analysis:

Chapel Ridge Townes Development Data

- Page 920 -



- Page 921 -



INTERSECTION ANALYSIS SHEET
AM In AM Out PM In PM Out

Project: Supp. Analysis-Chapel Ridge Townes Trips Net New Trips: 13 42 43 25
Location: Apex, NC
Scenario: Chapel Ridge Townhomes Trip Calcs
Ct. Date 12/7/2021
N/S Street: Kelly Road Annual Growth Rate: 3.0% Existing Year: 2021
E/W Street: Wendhurst Ct/Beaver Creek Commons Dr Growth Factor: 0.125509 Buildout Year: 2025

AM PEAK HOUR
AM PHF = 0.98

Description Left Through Right Left Through Right Left Through Right Left Through Right

Project Traffic
Percent Assignment Inbound 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 40% 0%
Inbound Project Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 5 0

Percent Assignment Outbound 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 40% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Outbound Project Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 17 0 0 0 0

Total Project Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 17 0 0 5 0

PM PEAK HOUR
PM PHF = 0.98

Description Left Through Right Left Through Right Left Through Right Left Through Right

Project Traffic
Percent Assignment Inbound 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 40% 0%
Inbound Project Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 17 0

Percent Assignment Outbound 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 40% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Outbound Project Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 10 0 0 0 0

Total Project Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 10 0 0 17 0

k:\dur_ldev\011270040 chapel ridge apex\t3 - background data\approved development\[supplementalanalysis-appdevtrips-chapelridgetownes.xls]int. #1 2/9/22

Kelly Road

Wendhurst Court Kelly Road Kelly Road
Eastbound Northbound Southbound

Beaver Creek Commons Drive
Westbound

Wendhurst Court
Eastbound

Kelly Road
Northbound

Beaver Creek Commons Drive
SouthboundWestbound

- Page 922 -



INTERSECTION ANALYSIS SHEET
AM In AM Out PM In PM Out

Project: Supp. Analysis-Chapel Ridge Townes Trips Net New Trips: 13 42 43 25
Location: Apex, NC
Scenario: Chapel Ridge Townhomes Trip Calcs
Ct. Date 12/7/2021
N/S Street: Chapel Ridge Road Annual Growth Rate: 3.0% Existing Year: 2021
E/W Street: Olive Chapel Road Growth Factor: 0.125509 Buildout Year: 2025

AM PEAK HOUR
AM PHF = 0.85

Description Left Through Right Left Through Right Left Through Right Left Through Right

Project Traffic
Percent Assignment Inbound 30% 20% 0% 0% 0% 15% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Inbound Project Traffic 4 3 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0

Percent Assignment Outbound 0% 0% 0% 0% 20% 0% 0% 0% 0% 15% 0% 30%
Outbound Project Traffic 0 0 0 0 8 0 0 0 0 6 0 13

Total Project Traffic 4 3 0 0 8 2 0 0 0 6 0 13

PM PEAK HOUR
PM PHF = 0.93

Description Left Through Right Left Through Right Left Through Right Left Through Right

Project Traffic
Percent Assignment Inbound 30% 20% 0% 0% 0% 15% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Inbound Project Traffic 13 9 0 0 0 6 0 0 0 0 0 0

Percent Assignment Outbound 0% 0% 0% 0% 20% 0% 0% 0% 0% 15% 0% 30%
Outbound Project Traffic 0 0 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 4 0 7

Total Project Traffic 13 9 0 0 5 6 0 0 0 4 0 7

k:\dur_ldev\011270040 chapel ridge apex\t3 - background data\approved development\[supplementalanalysis-appdevtrips-chapelridgetownes.xls]int. #2 2/9/22

Olive Chapel Road Olive Chapel Road Chapel Ridge Road
Eastbound Westbound Northbound Southbound

Olive Chapel Road Olive Chapel Road Chapel Ridge Road
Eastbound Westbound Northbound Southbound

- Page 923 -



INTERSECTION ANALYSIS SHEET
AM In AM Out PM In PM Out

Project: Supp. Analysis-Chapel Ridge Townes Trips Net New Trips: 13 42 43 25
Location: Apex, NC
Scenario: Chapel Ridge Townhomes Trip Calcs
Ct. Date 12/7/2021
N/S Street: Chapel Ridge Road Annual Growth Rate: 3.0% Existing Year: 2021
E/W Street: Ackerman Hill Drive Growth Factor: 0.125509 Buildout Year: 2025

AM PEAK HOUR
AM PHF = 0.90

Description Left Through Right Left Through Right Left Through Right Left Through Right

Project Traffic
Percent Assignment Inbound 0% 0% 0% 10% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Inbound Project Traffic 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Percent Assignment Outbound 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 10% 0% 0% 0%
Outbound Project Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4 0 0 0

Total Project Traffic 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 4 0 0 0

PM PEAK HOUR
PM PHF = 0.90

Description Left Through Right Left Through Right Left Through Right Left Through Right

Project Traffic
Percent Assignment Inbound 0% 0% 0% 10% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Inbound Project Traffic 0 0 0 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Percent Assignment Outbound 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 10% 0% 0% 0%
Outbound Project Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0

Total Project Traffic 0 0 0 4 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0

k:\dur_ldev\011270040 chapel ridge apex\t3 - background data\approved development\[supplementalanalysis-appdevtrips-chapelridgetownes.xls]int. #3 2/9/22

Ackerman Hill Drive Chapel Ridge Road Chapel Ridge Road
Eastbound Westbound Northbound Southbound

Ackerman Hill Drive Chapel Ridge Road Chapel Ridge Road
Eastbound Westbound Northbound Southbound

- Page 924 -



INTERSECTION ANALYSIS SHEET
AM In AM Out PM In PM Out

Project: Supp. Analysis-Chapel Ridge Townes Trips Net New Trips: 13 42 43 25
Location: Apex, NC
Scenario: Chapel Ridge Townhomes Trip Calcs
Ct. Date 12/7/2021
N/S Street: Creekside Landing Drive Annual Growth Rate: 3.0% Existing Year: 2021
E/W Street: Beaver Creek Commons Drive Growth Factor: 0.125509 Buildout Year: 2025

AM PEAK HOUR
AM PHF = 0.84

Description Left Through Right Left Through Right Left Through Right Left Through Right

Project Traffic
Percent Assignment Inbound 0% 0% 0% 5% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 5% 0%
Inbound Project Traffic 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0

Percent Assignment Outbound 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 5% 5% 0% 0% 0%
Outbound Project Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 2 0 0 0

Total Project Traffic 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 2 2 0 1 0

PM PEAK HOUR
PM PHF = 0.94

Description Left Through Right Left Through Right Left Through Right Left Through Right

Project Traffic
Percent Assignment Inbound 0% 0% 0% 5% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 5% 0%
Inbound Project Traffic 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0

Percent Assignment Outbound 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 5% 5% 0% 0% 0%
Outbound Project Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 0

Total Project Traffic 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 1 1 0 2 0

k:\dur_ldev\011270040 chapel ridge apex\t3 - background data\approved development\[supplementalanalysis-appdevtrips-chapelridgetownes.xls]int. #4 2/9/22

Northbound
Beaver Creek Commons Drive Beaver Creek Commons Drive Creekside Landing Drive Creekside Landing Drive

Eastbound Westbound Southbound

Beaver Creek Commons Drive Beaver Creek Commons Drive Creekside Landing Drive Creekside Landing Drive
Eastbound Westbound Northbound Southbound

- Page 925 -



INTERSECTION ANALYSIS SHEET
AM In AM Out PM In PM Out

Project: Supp. Analysis-Chapel Ridge Townes Trips Net New Trips: 13 42 43 25
Location: Apex, NC
Scenario: Chapel Ridge Townhomes Trip Calcs
Ct. Date 12/7/2021
N/S Street: Beaver Creek Commons Drive Annual Growth Rate: 3.0% Existing Year: 2021
E/W Street: Proposed Site Access Growth Factor: 0.125509 Buildout Year: 2025

AM PEAK HOUR
AM PHF = 0.90

Description Left Through Right Left Through Right Left Through Right Left Through Right

Project Traffic
Percent Assignment Inbound 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Inbound Project Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Percent Assignment Outbound 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Outbound Project Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total Project Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

PM PEAK HOUR
PM PHF = 0.90

Description Left Through Right Left Through Right Left Through Right Left Through Right

Project Traffic
Percent Assignment Inbound 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Inbound Project Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Percent Assignment Outbound 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Outbound Project Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total Project Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

k:\dur_ldev\011270040 chapel ridge apex\t3 - background data\approved development\[supplementalanalysis-appdevtrips-chapelridgetownes.xls]int. #5 2/9/22

Proposed Site Access Beaver Creek Commons Drive Beaver Creek Commons Drive
Eastbound Westbound Northbound Southbound

Proposed Site Access Beaver Creek Commons Drive Beaver Creek Commons Drive
Eastbound Westbound Northbound Southbound

- Page 926 -



INTERSECTION ANALYSIS SHEET
AM In AM Out PM In PM Out

Project: Supp. Analysis-Chapel Ridge Townes Trips Net New Trips: 13 42 43 25
Location: Apex, NC
Scenario: Chapel Ridge Townhomes Trip Calcs
Ct. Date -
N/S Street: Chapel Ridge Road Annual Growth Rate: 3.0% Existing Year: 2021
E/W Street: Proposed Site Access/North Site Driveway Growth Factor: 0.125509 Buildout Year: 2025

AM PEAK HOUR
AM PHF = 0.90

Description Left Through Right Left Through Right Left Through Right Left Through Right

Project Traffic
Percent Assignment Inbound 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Inbound Project Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Percent Assignment Outbound 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Outbound Project Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total Project Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

PM PEAK HOUR
PM PHF = 0.90

Description Left Through Right Left Through Right Left Through Right Left Through Right

Project Traffic
Percent Assignment Inbound 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Inbound Project Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Percent Assignment Outbound 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Outbound Project Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total Project Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

k:\dur_ldev\011270040 chapel ridge apex\t3 - background data\approved development\[supplementalanalysis-appdevtrips-chapelridgetownes.xls]int. #6 2/9/22

Proposed Site Access North Site Driveway Chapel Ridge Road
Eastbound Westbound Northbound Southbound

Proposed Site Access North Site Driveway Chapel Ridge Road
Eastbound Westbound Northbound Southbound

- Page 927 -



INTERSECTION ANALYSIS SHEET
AM In AM Out PM In PM Out

Project: Supp. Analysis-Chapel Ridge Townes Trips Net New Trips: 13 42 43 25
Location: Apex, NC
Scenario: Chapel Ridge Townhomes Trip Calcs
Ct. Date -
N/S Street: Central Site Driveway Annual Growth Rate: 3.0% Existing Year: 2021
E/W Street: Chapel Ridge Road Growth Factor: 0.125509 Buildout Year: 2025

AM PEAK HOUR
AM PHF = 0.90

Description Left Through Right Left Through Right Left Through Right Left Through Right

Project Traffic
Percent Assignment Inbound 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Inbound Project Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Percent Assignment Outbound 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Outbound Project Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total Project Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

PM PEAK HOUR
PM PHF = 0.90

Description Left Through Right Left Through Right Left Through Right Left Through Right

Project Traffic
Percent Assignment Inbound 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Inbound Project Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Percent Assignment Outbound 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Outbound Project Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total Project Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

k:\dur_ldev\011270040 chapel ridge apex\t3 - background data\approved development\[supplementalanalysis-appdevtrips-chapelridgetownes.xls]int. #7 2/9/22

Chapel Ridge Road Chapel Ridge Road Central Site Driveway Central Site Driveway
Eastbound Westbound Northbound Southbound

Chapel Ridge Road Chapel Ridge Road Central Site Driveway Central Site Driveway
Eastbound Westbound Northbound Southbound

- Page 928 -



INTERSECTION ANALYSIS SHEET
AM In AM Out PM In PM Out

Project: Supp. Analysis-Chapel Ridge Townes Trips Net New Trips: 13 42 43 25
Location: Apex, NC
Scenario: Chapel Ridge Townhomes Trip Calcs
Ct. Date Balanced with Ackerman Hill
N/S Street: Chapel Ridge Road Annual Growth Rate: 3.0% Existing Year: 2021
E/W Street: South Site Driveway Growth Factor: 0.125509 Buildout Year: 2025

AM PEAK HOUR
AM PHF = 0.90

Description Left Through Right Left Through Right Left Through Right Left Through Right

Project Traffic
Percent Assignment Inbound 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 10% 0%
Inbound Project Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0

Percent Assignment Outbound 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 10% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Outbound Project Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4 0 0 0 0

Total Project Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4 0 0 1 0

PM PEAK HOUR
PM PHF = 0.90

Description Left Through Right Left Through Right Left Through Right Left Through Right

Project Traffic
Percent Assignment Inbound 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 10% 0%
Inbound Project Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4 0

Percent Assignment Outbound 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 10% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Outbound Project Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 0

Total Project Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 4 0

k:\dur_ldev\011270040 chapel ridge apex\t3 - background data\approved development\[supplementalanalysis-appdevtrips-chapelridgetownes.xls]int. #8 2/9/22

South Site Driveway South Site Driveway Chapel Ridge Road Chapel Ridge Road
Eastbound Westbound Northbound Southbound

South Site Driveway South Site Driveway Chapel Ridge Road Chapel Ridge Road
Eastbound Westbound Northbound Southbound

- Page 929 -



INTERSECTION ANALYSIS SHEET
AM In AM Out PM In PM Out

Project: Supp. Analysis-Chapel Ridge Townes Trips Net New Trips: 13 42 43 25
Location: Apex, NC
Scenario: Chapel Ridge Townhomes Trip Calcs
Ct. Date Balanced with Ackerman Hill
N/S Street: Site Driveway Annual Growth Rate: 3.0% Existing Year: 2021
E/W Street: Ackerman Hill Drive Growth Factor: 0.125509 Buildout Year: 2025

AM PEAK HOUR
AM PHF = 0.90

Description Left Through Right Left Through Right Left Through Right Left Through Right

Project Traffic
Percent Assignment Inbound 0% 0% 0% 0% 10% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Inbound Project Traffic 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Percent Assignment Outbound 0% 10% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Outbound Project Traffic 0 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total Project Traffic 0 4 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

PM PEAK HOUR
PM PHF = 0.90

Description Left Through Right Left Through Right Left Through Right Left Through Right

Project Traffic
Percent Assignment Inbound 0% 0% 0% 0% 10% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Inbound Project Traffic 0 0 0 0 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Percent Assignment Outbound 0% 10% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Outbound Project Traffic 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total Project Traffic 0 2 0 0 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

k:\dur_ldev\011270040 chapel ridge apex\t3 - background data\approved development\[supplementalanalysis-appdevtrips-chapelridgetownes.xls]int. #9 2/9/22

Ackerman Hill Drive Ackerman Hill Drive Site Driveway
Eastbound Westbound Northbound Southbound

Ackerman Hill Drive Ackerman Hill Drive Site Driveway
Eastbound Westbound Northbound Southbound

- Page 930 -



Appendix K:
Supplemental Analysis:

Intersection Spreadsheets

- Page 931 -



INTERSECTION ANALYSIS SHEET
AM In AM Out PM In PM Out

Project: Chapel Ridge Apartments Net New Trips: 30 87 90 57
Location: Apex, NC
Scenario: Supp. Analysis: With Chapel Ridge Townes
Ct. Date 12/7/2021
N/S Street: Kelly Road Annual Growth Rate: 3.0% Existing Year: 2021
E/W Street: Wendhurst Ct/Beaver Creek Commons Dr Growth Factor: 0.125509 Buildout Year: 2025

AM PEAK HOUR
AM PHF = 0.98

Description Left Through Right Left Through Right Left Through Right Left Through Right

2021 Traffic Count 19 8 38 83 4 22 38 684 117 29 346 9
Count Balancing 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2021 Existing Traffic 19 8 38 83 4 22 38 684 117 29 346 9

Growth Factor (0.03 per year) 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.126 0.000 0.126 0.000 0.126 0.126 0.126 0.126 0.000
2025 Background Growth 0 0 0 10 0 3 0 86 15 4 43 0

Committed Projects
Olive Chapel Professional Park 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 19 0
Chapel Ridge Townes 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 17 0 0 5 0
Total Committed Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 20 0 0 24 0

2025 Background Traffic 19 8 38 93 4 25 38 790 132 33 413 9

Project Traffic
Percent Assignment Inbound 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 40% 0% 0%
Inbound Project Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 12 0 0

Percent Assignment Outbound 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 40% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Outbound Project Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 35 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total Project Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 35 0 0 0 12 0 0

Hempstead Traffic Diversion 0 0 0 0 0 28 0 0 0 8 0 0

2025 Buildout Total 19 8 38 93 4 88 38 790 132 53 413 9
Percent Impact (Approach)

2.8%
PM PEAK HOUR

PM PHF = 0.98

Description Left Through Right Left Through Right Left Through Right Left Through Right

2021 Traffic Count 10 14 47 247 20 55 67 502 270 89 748 23
Count Balancing 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2021 Existing Traffic 10 14 47 247 20 55 67 502 270 89 748 23

Growth Factor (0.03 per year) 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.126 0.000 0.126 0.000 0.126 0.126 0.126 0.126 0.000
2025 Background Growth 0 0 0 31 0 7 0 63 34 11 94 0

Committed Projects
Olive Chapel Professional Park 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 19 0 0 4 0
Chapel Ridge Townes 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 10 0 0 17 0
Total Committed Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 29 0 0 21 0

2025 Background Traffic 10 14 47 278 20 62 67 594 304 100 863 23

Project Traffic
Percent Assignment Inbound 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 40% 0% 0%
Inbound Project Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 36 0 0

Percent Assignment Outbound 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 40% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Outbound Project Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 23 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total Project Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 23 0 0 0 36 0 0

Hempstead Traffic Diversion 0 0 0 0 0 16 0 0 0 28 0 0

2025 Buildout Total 10 14 47 278 20 101 67 594 304 164 863 23
Percent Impact (Approach)

2.4%

k:\dur_ldev\011270040 chapel ridge apex\t4 - analysis\supplemental analysis - with chapel ridge townes\[addend-chapelridgeapts-withchapridgetownes-tiadata.xls]int. #1 2/9/22

SouthboundWestbound

0.0%18.9%0.0%

0.0% 5.8% 0.0%

Overall Percent Impact

Overall Percent Impact

Wendhurst Court
Eastbound

Kelly Road
Northbound

Beaver Creek Commons Drive

Wendhurst Court Kelly Road Kelly Road
Eastbound Northbound Southbound

Beaver Creek Commons Drive
Westbound

Kelly Road

3.4%

2.5%

- Page 932 -



INTERSECTION ANALYSIS SHEET
AM In AM Out PM In PM Out

Project: Chapel Ridge Apartments Net New Trips: 30 87 90 57
Location: Apex, NC
Scenario: Supp. Analysis: With Chapel Ridge Townes
Ct. Date 12/7/2021
N/S Street: Chapel Ridge Road Annual Growth Rate: 3.0% Existing Year: 2021
E/W Street: Olive Chapel Road Growth Factor: 0.125509 Buildout Year: 2025

AM PEAK HOUR
AM PHF = 0.85

Description Left Through Right Left Through Right Left Through Right Left Through Right

2021 Traffic Count 20 355 0 0 356 24 0 0 0 11 0 7
Count Balancing 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2021 Existing Traffic 20 355 0 0 356 24 0 0 0 11 0 7

Growth Factor (0.03 per year) 0.000 0.126 0.000 0.000 0.126 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2025 Background Growth 0 45 0 0 45 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Committed Projects
Olive Chapel Professional Park 32 0 0 0 0 32 0 0 0 4 0 5
Chapel Ridge Townes 4 3 0 0 8 2 0 0 0 6 0 13
Total Committed Traffic 36 3 0 0 8 34 0 0 0 10 0 18

2025 Background Traffic 56 403 0 0 409 58 0 0 0 21 0 25

Project Traffic
Percent Assignment Inbound 10% 0% 0% 0% 0% 20% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Inbound Project Traffic 3 0 0 0 0 6 0 0 0 0 0 0

Percent Assignment Outbound 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 20% 0% 10%
Outbound Project Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 17 0 9

Total Project Traffic 3 0 0 0 0 6 0 0 0 17 0 9

2025 Buildout Total 59 403 0 0 409 64 0 0 0 38 0 34
Percent Impact (Approach)

3.5%
PM PEAK HOUR

PM PHF = 0.93

Description Left Through Right Left Through Right Left Through Right Left Through Right

2021 Traffic Count 16 436 0 0 521 22 0 0 0 20 0 26
Count Balancing 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2021 Existing Traffic 16 436 0 0 521 22 0 0 0 20 0 26

Growth Factor (0.03 per year) 0.000 0.126 0.000 0.000 0.126 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2025 Background Growth 0 55 0 0 65 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Committed Projects
Olive Chapel Professional Park 7 0 0 0 0 7 0 0 0 31 0 32
Chapel Ridge Townes 13 9 0 0 5 6 0 0 0 4 0 7
Total Committed Traffic 20 9 0 0 5 13 0 0 0 35 0 39

2025 Background Traffic 36 500 0 0 591 35 0 0 0 55 0 65

Project Traffic
Percent Assignment Inbound 10% 0% 0% 0% 0% 20% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Inbound Project Traffic 9 0 0 0 0 18 0 0 0 0 0 0

Percent Assignment Outbound 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 20% 0% 10%
Outbound Project Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 11 0 6

Total Project Traffic 9 0 0 0 0 18 0 0 0 11 0 6

2025 Buildout Total 45 500 0 0 591 53 0 0 0 66 0 71
Percent Impact (Approach)

3.3%

k:\dur_ldev\011270040 chapel ridge apex\t4 - analysis\supplemental analysis - with chapel ridge townes\[addend-chapelridgeapts-withchapridgetownes-tiadata.xls]int. #2 2/9/22

Overall Percent Impact
1.7% 2.8% - 12.4%

Eastbound Westbound Northbound Southbound
Olive Chapel Road Olive Chapel Road Chapel Ridge Road

0.6% 1.3% - 36.1%
Overall Percent Impact

Eastbound Westbound Northbound Southbound
Olive Chapel Road Olive Chapel Road Chapel Ridge Road

- Page 933 -



INTERSECTION ANALYSIS SHEET
AM In AM Out PM In PM Out

Project: Chapel Ridge Apartments Net New Trips: 30 87 90 57
Location: Apex, NC
Scenario: Supp. Analysis: With Chapel Ridge Townes
Ct. Date 12/7/2021
N/S Street: Chapel Ridge Road Annual Growth Rate: 3.0% Existing Year: 2021
E/W Street: Ackerman Hill Drive Growth Factor: 0.125509 Buildout Year: 2025

AM PEAK HOUR
AM PHF = 0.90

Description Left Through Right Left Through Right Left Through Right Left Through Right

2021 Traffic Count 0 0 0 11 0 0 0 0 12 0 0 0
Count Balancing 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2021 Existing Traffic 0 0 0 11 0 0 0 0 12 0 0 0

Growth Factor (0.03 per year) 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2025 Background Growth 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Committed Projects
Olive Chapel Professional Park 0 0 0 8 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0
Chapel Ridge Townes 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 4 0 0 0
Total Committed Traffic 0 0 0 9 0 0 0 0 5 0 0 0

2025 Background Traffic 0 0 0 20 0 0 0 0 17 0 0 0

Project Traffic
Percent Assignment Inbound 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 15% 0% 10% 10% 0%
Inbound Project Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 5 0 3 3 0

Percent Assignment Outbound 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 10% 0% 10% 0% 0% 15% 0%
Outbound Project Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 9 0 9 0 0 13 0

Total Project Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 9 0 14 0 3 16 0

Hempstead Traffic Diversion 0 0 0 0 0 39 0 0 0 12 0 0

OliveChapProfPark Reassign 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 16 0

ChapelRidgeTownes Divers. 0 0 0 -1 0 0 0 4 -4 0 1 0

2025 Buildout Total 0 0 0 19 0 48 0 20 13 15 33 0
Percent Impact (Approach)

28.4%
PM PEAK HOUR

PM PHF = 0.90

Description Left Through Right Left Through Right Left Through Right Left Through Right

2021 Traffic Count 0 0 0 15 0 0 0 0 25 0 0 0
Count Balancing 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2021 Existing Traffic 0 0 0 15 0 0 0 0 25 0 0 0

Growth Factor (0.03 per year) 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2025 Background Growth 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Committed Projects
Olive Chapel Professional Park 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 7 0 0 0
Chapel Ridge Townes 0 0 0 4 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0
Total Committed Traffic 0 0 0 6 0 0 0 0 9 0 0 0

2025 Background Traffic 0 0 0 21 0 0 0 0 34 0 0 0

Project Traffic
Percent Assignment Inbound 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 15% 0% 10% 10% 0%
Inbound Project Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 14 0 9 9 0

Percent Assignment Outbound 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 10% 0% 10% 0% 0% 15% 0%
Outbound Project Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 6 0 6 0 0 9 0

Total Project Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 6 0 20 0 9 18 0

Hempstead Traffic Diversion 0 0 0 0 0 22 0 0 0 38 0 0

OliveChapProfPark Reassign 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 14 0 0 4 0

ChapelRidgeTownes Divers. 0 0 0 -4 0 0 0 2 -2 0 4 0

2025 Buildout Total 0 0 0 17 0 28 0 36 32 47 26 0
Percent Impact (Approach)

28.5%

k:\dur_ldev\011270040 chapel ridge apex\t4 - analysis\supplemental analysis - with chapel ridge townes\[addend-chapelridgeapts-withchapridgetownes-tiadata.xls]int. #3 2/9/22

Overall Percent Impact
- 13.3% 29.4% 37.0%

Eastbound Westbound Northbound Southbound
Ackerman Hill Drive Chapel Ridge Road Chapel Ridge Road

- 13.4% 42.4% 39.6%
Overall Percent Impact

Eastbound Westbound Northbound Southbound
Ackerman Hill Drive Chapel Ridge Road Chapel Ridge Road

- Page 934 -



INTERSECTION ANALYSIS SHEET
AM In AM Out PM In PM Out

Project: Chapel Ridge Apartments Net New Trips: 30 87 90 57
Location: Apex, NC
Scenario: Supp. Analysis: With Chapel Ridge Townes
Ct. Date 12/7/2021
N/S Street: Creekside Landing Drive Annual Growth Rate: 3.0% Existing Year: 2021
E/W Street: Beaver Creek Commons Drive Growth Factor: 0.125509 Buildout Year: 2025

AM PEAK HOUR
AM PHF = 0.84

Description Left Through Right Left Through Right Left Through Right Left Through Right

2021 Traffic Count 33 117 8 25 69 58 0 28 21 57 28 47
Count Balancing 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2021 Existing Traffic 33 117 8 25 69 58 0 28 21 57 28 47

Growth Factor (0.03 per year) 0.126 0.126 0.000 0.000 0.126 0.126 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.126 0.000 0.126
2025 Background Growth 4 15 0 0 9 7 0 0 0 7 0 6

Committed Projects
Olive Chapel Professional Park 0 0 0 4 0 0 0 0 1 0 4 0
Chapel Ridge Townes 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 2 2 0 1 0
Total Committed Traffic 0 0 0 5 0 0 0 2 3 0 5 0

2025 Background Traffic 37 132 8 30 78 65 0 30 24 64 33 53

Project Traffic
Percent Assignment Inbound 0% 0% 0% 0% 20% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 10%
Inbound Project Traffic 0 0 0 0 6 0 0 0 0 0 0 3

Percent Assignment Outbound 10% 20% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Outbound Project Traffic 9 17 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total Project Traffic 9 17 0 0 6 0 0 0 0 0 0 3

OliveChapProfPark Reassign 0 2 0 0 8 0 0 0 0 0 0 8

ChapelRidgeTownes Divers. 2 2 0 -1 1 0 0 -2 -2 0 -1 1

2025 Buildout Total 48 153 8 29 93 65 0 28 22 64 32 65
Percent Impact (Approach)

5.8%
PM PEAK HOUR

PM PHF = 0.94

Description Left Through Right Left Through Right Left Through Right Left Through Right

2021 Traffic Count 104 196 21 73 209 168 25 95 103 136 159 131
Count Balancing 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2021 Existing Traffic 104 196 21 73 209 168 25 95 103 136 159 131

Growth Factor (0.03 per year) 0.126 0.126 0.000 0.000 0.126 0.126 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.126 0.000 0.126
2025 Background Growth 13 25 0 0 26 21 0 0 0 17 0 16

Committed Projects
Olive Chapel Professional Park 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 3 4 0 1 0
Chapel Ridge Townes 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 1 1 0 2 0
Total Committed Traffic 0 0 0 3 0 0 0 4 5 0 3 0

2025 Background Traffic 117 221 21 76 235 189 25 99 108 153 162 147

Project Traffic
Percent Assignment Inbound 0% 0% 0% 0% 20% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 10%
Inbound Project Traffic 0 0 0 0 18 0 0 0 0 0 0 9

Percent Assignment Outbound 10% 20% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Outbound Project Traffic 6 11 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total Project Traffic 6 11 0 0 18 0 0 0 0 0 0 9

OliveChapProfPark Reassign 6 8 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 2

ChapelRidgeTownes Divers. 1 1 0 -2 2 0 0 -1 -1 0 -2 2

2025 Buildout Total 130 241 21 74 257 189 25 98 107 153 160 160
Percent Impact (Approach)

2.7%

k:\dur_ldev\011270040 chapel ridge apex\t4 - analysis\supplemental analysis - with chapel ridge townes\[addend-chapelridgeapts-withchapridgetownes-tiadata.xls]int. #4 2/9/22

Overall Percent Impact

Overall Percent Impact

1.9%0.0%3.2%12.4%

4.3% 3.5% 0.0% 1.9%

Southbound

Beaver Creek Commons Drive Beaver Creek Commons Drive Creekside Landing Drive Creekside Landing Drive
Eastbound Westbound Northbound Southbound

Beaver Creek Commons Drive Beaver Creek Commons Drive Creekside Landing Drive Creekside Landing Drive
Eastbound Westbound Northbound

- Page 935 -



INTERSECTION ANALYSIS SHEET
AM In AM Out PM In PM Out

Project: Chapel Ridge Apartments Net New Trips: 30 87 90 57
Location: Apex, NC
Scenario: Supp. Analysis: With Chapel Ridge Townes
Ct. Date 12/7/2021
N/S Street: Beaver Creek Commons Drive Annual Growth Rate: 3.0% Existing Year: 2021
E/W Street: Proposed Site Access Growth Factor: 0.125509 Buildout Year: 2025

AM PEAK HOUR
AM PHF = 0.90

Description Left Through Right Left Through Right Left Through Right Left Through Right

2021 Traffic Count 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 187 0 0 111 0
Count Balancing 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2021 Existing Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 187 0 0 111 0

Growth Factor (0.03 per year) 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.126 0.000 0.000 0.126 0.000
2025 Background Growth 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 23 0 0 14 0

Committed Projects
Olive Chapel Professional Park 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Chapel Ridge Townes 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total Committed Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

2025 Background Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 210 0 0 125 0

Project Traffic
Percent Assignment Inbound 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 40% 30% 0% 0%
Inbound Project Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 12 9 0 0

Percent Assignment Outbound 0% 0% 0% 40% 0% 30% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Outbound Project Traffic 0 0 0 35 0 26 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total Project Traffic 0 0 0 35 0 26 0 0 12 9 0 0

Hempstead Traffic Diversion 0 0 0 28 0 11 0 0 8 3 0 0

OliveChapProfPark Reassign 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 16 0 0

ChapelRidgeTownes Divers. 0 0 0 0 0 4 0 0 0 2 0 0

2025 Buildout Total 0 0 0 63 0 43 0 210 20 30 125 0
Percent Impact (Approach)

16.7%
PM PEAK HOUR

PM PHF = 0.90

Description Left Through Right Left Through Right Left Through Right Left Through Right

2021 Traffic Count 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 355 0 0 335 0
Count Balancing 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2021 Existing Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 355 0 0 335 0

Growth Factor (0.03 per year) 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.126 0.000 0.000 0.126 0.000
2025 Background Growth 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 45 0 0 42 0

Committed Projects
Olive Chapel Professional Park 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Chapel Ridge Townes 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total Committed Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

2025 Background Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 400 0 0 377 0

Project Traffic
Percent Assignment Inbound 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 40% 30% 0% 0%
Inbound Project Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 36 27 0 0

Percent Assignment Outbound 0% 0% 0% 40% 0% 30% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Outbound Project Traffic 0 0 0 23 0 17 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total Project Traffic 0 0 0 23 0 17 0 0 36 27 0 0

Hempstead Traffic Diversion 0 0 0 16 0 6 0 0 28 10 0 0

OliveChapProfPark Reassign 0 0 0 0 0 14 0 0 0 4 0 0

ChapelRidgeTownes Divers. 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 4 0 0

2025 Buildout Total 0 0 0 39 0 39 0 400 64 45 377 0
Percent Impact (Approach)

10.7%

k:\dur_ldev\011270040 chapel ridge apex\t4 - analysis\supplemental analysis - with chapel ridge townes\[addend-chapelridgeapts-withchapridgetownes-tiadata.xls]int. #5 2/9/22

Overall Percent Impact
- 51.3% 7.8% 6.4%

Eastbound Westbound Northbound Southbound
Proposed Site Access Beaver Creek Commons Drive Beaver Creek Commons Drive

- 57.5% 5.2% 5.8%
Overall Percent Impact

Eastbound Westbound Northbound Southbound
Proposed Site Access Beaver Creek Commons Drive Beaver Creek Commons Drive

- Page 936 -



INTERSECTION ANALYSIS SHEET
AM In AM Out PM In PM Out

Project: Chapel Ridge Apartments Net New Trips: 30 87 90 57
Location: Apex, NC
Scenario: Supp. Analysis: With Chapel Ridge Townes
Ct. Date -
N/S Street: Chapel Ridge Road Annual Growth Rate: 3.0% Existing Year: 2021
E/W Street: Proposed Site Access/North Site Driveway Growth Factor: 0.125509 Buildout Year: 2025

AM PEAK HOUR
AM PHF = 0.90

Description Left Through Right Left Through Right Left Through Right Left Through Right

2021 Traffic Count 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Count Balancing 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2021 Existing Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Growth Factor (0.03 per year) 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2025 Background Growth 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Committed Projects
Olive Chapel Professional Park 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Chapel Ridge Townes 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total Committed Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

2025 Background Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Project Traffic
Percent Assignment Inbound 0% 20% 50% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Inbound Project Traffic 0 6 15 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Percent Assignment Outbound 0% 0% 0% 0% 20% 0% 50% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Outbound Project Traffic 0 0 0 0 17 0 44 0 0 0 0 0

Total Project Traffic 0 6 15 0 17 0 44 0 0 0 0 0

Hempstead Traffic Diversion 0 0 12 0 0 0 39 0 0 0 0 0

OliveChapProfPark Reassign 0 0 16 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0

ChapelRidgeTownes Divers. 0 0 2 0 0 0 4 0 0 0 0 0

2025 Buildout Total 0 6 45 0 17 0 89 0 0 0 0 0
Percent Impact (Approach)

52.2%
PM PEAK HOUR

PM PHF = 0.90

Description Left Through Right Left Through Right Left Through Right Left Through Right

2021 Traffic Count 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Count Balancing 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2021 Existing Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Growth Factor (0.03 per year) 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2025 Background Growth 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Committed Projects
Olive Chapel Professional Park 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Chapel Ridge Townes 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total Committed Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

2025 Background Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Project Traffic
Percent Assignment Inbound 0% 20% 50% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Inbound Project Traffic 0 18 45 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Percent Assignment Outbound 0% 0% 0% 0% 20% 0% 50% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Outbound Project Traffic 0 0 0 0 11 0 29 0 0 0 0 0

Total Project Traffic 0 18 45 0 11 0 29 0 0 0 0 0

Hempstead Traffic Diversion 0 0 38 0 0 0 22 0 0 0 0 0

OliveChapProfPark Reassign 0 0 4 0 0 0 14 0 0 0 0 0

ChapelRidgeTownes Divers. 0 0 4 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0

2025 Buildout Total 0 18 91 0 11 0 67 0 0 0 0 0
Percent Impact (Approach)

55.1%

k:\dur_ldev\011270040 chapel ridge apex\t4 - analysis\supplemental analysis - with chapel ridge townes\[addend-chapelridgeapts-withchapridgetownes-tiadata.xls]int. #6 2/9/22

Overall Percent Impact
57.8% 100.0% 43.3% -

Eastbound Westbound Northbound Southbound
Proposed Site Access North Site Driveway Chapel Ridge Road

41.2% 100.0% 49.4% -
Overall Percent Impact

Eastbound Westbound Northbound Southbound
Proposed Site Access North Site Driveway Chapel Ridge Road

- Page 937 -



INTERSECTION ANALYSIS SHEET
AM In AM Out PM In PM Out

Project: Chapel Ridge Apartments Net New Trips: 30 87 90 57
Location: Apex, NC
Scenario: Supp. Analysis: With Chapel Ridge Townes
Ct. Date -
N/S Street: Central Site Driveway Annual Growth Rate: 3.0% Existing Year: 2021
E/W Street: Chapel Ridge Road Growth Factor: 0.125509 Buildout Year: 2025

AM PEAK HOUR
AM PHF = 0.90

Description Left Through Right Left Through Right Left Through Right Left Through Right

2021 Traffic Count 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Count Balancing 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2021 Existing Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Growth Factor (0.03 per year) 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2025 Background Growth 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Committed Projects
Olive Chapel Professional Park 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Chapel Ridge Townes 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total Committed Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

2025 Background Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Project Traffic
Percent Assignment Inbound 5% 20% 25% 5% 0% 10% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Inbound Project Traffic 2 6 8 2 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 0

Percent Assignment Outbound 0% 0% 0% 0% 20% 0% 25% 0% 5% 10% 0% 5%
Outbound Project Traffic 0 0 0 0 17 0 22 0 4 9 0 4

Total Project Traffic 2 6 8 2 17 3 22 0 4 9 0 4

Hempstead Traffic Diversion 0 12 0 0 39 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

OliveChapProfPark Reassign 0 16 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

ChapelRidgeTownes Divers. 0 2 0 0 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

2025 Buildout Total 2 36 8 2 62 3 22 0 4 9 0 4
Percent Impact (Approach)

50.7%
PM PEAK HOUR

PM PHF = 0.90

Description Left Through Right Left Through Right Left Through Right Left Through Right

2021 Traffic Count 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Count Balancing 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2021 Existing Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Growth Factor (0.03 per year) 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2025 Background Growth 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Committed Projects
Olive Chapel Professional Park 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Chapel Ridge Townes 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total Committed Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

2025 Background Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Project Traffic
Percent Assignment Inbound 5% 20% 25% 5% 0% 10% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Inbound Project Traffic 5 18 23 5 0 9 0 0 0 0 0 0

Percent Assignment Outbound 0% 0% 0% 0% 20% 0% 25% 0% 5% 10% 0% 5%
Outbound Project Traffic 0 0 0 0 11 0 14 0 3 6 0 3

Total Project Traffic 5 18 23 5 11 9 14 0 3 6 0 3

Hempstead Traffic Diversion 0 38 0 0 22 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

OliveChapProfPark Reassign 0 4 0 0 14 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

ChapelRidgeTownes Divers. 0 4 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

2025 Buildout Total 5 64 23 5 49 9 14 0 3 6 0 3
Percent Impact (Approach)

53.6%

k:\dur_ldev\011270040 chapel ridge apex\t4 - analysis\supplemental analysis - with chapel ridge townes\[addend-chapelridgeapts-withchapridgetownes-tiadata.xls]int. #7 2/9/22

Overall Percent Impact
50.0% 39.7% 100.0% 100.0%

Eastbound Westbound Northbound Southbound
Chapel Ridge Road Chapel Ridge Road Central Site Driveway Central Site Driveway

34.8% 32.8% 100.0% 100.0%
Overall Percent Impact

Eastbound Westbound Northbound Southbound
Chapel Ridge Road Chapel Ridge Road Central Site Driveway Central Site Driveway

- Page 938 -



INTERSECTION ANALYSIS SHEET
AM In AM Out PM In PM Out

Project: Chapel Ridge Apartments Net New Trips: 30 87 90 57
Location: Apex, NC
Scenario: Supp. Analysis: With Chapel Ridge Townes
Ct. Date Balanced with Ackerman Hill
N/S Street: Chapel Ridge Road Annual Growth Rate: 3.0% Existing Year: 2021
E/W Street: South Site Driveway Growth Factor: 0.125509 Buildout Year: 2025

AM PEAK HOUR
AM PHF = 0.90

Description Left Through Right Left Through Right Left Through Right Left Through Right

2021 Traffic Count 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Count Balancing 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 12 0 0 11 0
2021 Existing Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 12 0 0 11 0

Growth Factor (0.03 per year) 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2025 Background Growth 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Committed Projects
Olive Chapel Professional Park 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 5 0 0 9 0
Chapel Ridge Townes 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4 0 0 1 0
Total Committed Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 9 0 0 10 0

2025 Background Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 21 0 0 21 0

Project Traffic
Percent Assignment Inbound 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 10% 15% 5% 5% 0% 5%
Inbound Project Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 5 2 2 0 2

Percent Assignment Outbound 5% 0% 10% 5% 0% 5% 0% 0% 0% 0% 15% 0%
Outbound Project Traffic 4 0 9 4 0 4 0 0 0 0 13 0

Total Project Traffic 4 0 9 4 0 4 3 5 2 2 13 2

OliveChapProfPark Reassign 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 16 0

2025 Buildout Total 4 0 9 4 0 4 3 28 2 2 50 2
Percent Impact (Approach)

44.4%
PM PEAK HOUR

PM PHF = 0.90

Description Left Through Right Left Through Right Left Through Right Left Through Right

2021 Traffic Count 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Count Balancing 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 25 0 0 15 0
2021 Existing Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 25 0 0 15 0

Growth Factor (0.03 per year) 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2025 Background Growth 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Committed Projects
Olive Chapel Professional Park 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 9 0 0 6 0
Chapel Ridge Townes 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 4 0
Total Committed Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 11 0 0 10 0

2025 Background Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 36 0 0 25 0

Project Traffic
Percent Assignment Inbound 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 10% 15% 5% 5% 0% 5%
Inbound Project Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 9 14 5 5 0 5

Percent Assignment Outbound 5% 0% 10% 5% 0% 5% 0% 0% 0% 0% 15% 0%
Outbound Project Traffic 3 0 6 3 0 3 0 0 0 0 9 0

Total Project Traffic 3 0 6 3 0 3 9 14 5 5 9 5

OliveChapProfPark Reassign 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 14 0 0 4 0

2025 Buildout Total 3 0 6 3 0 3 9 64 5 5 38 5
Percent Impact (Approach)

44.0%

k:\dur_ldev\011270040 chapel ridge apex\t4 - analysis\supplemental analysis - with chapel ridge townes\[addend-chapelridgeapts-withchapridgetownes-tiadata.xls]int. #8 2/9/22

Overall Percent Impact
100.0% 100.0% 35.9% 39.6%

Eastbound Westbound Northbound Southbound
South Site Driveway South Site Driveway Chapel Ridge Road Chapel Ridge Road

100.0% 100.0% 30.3% 31.5%
Overall Percent Impact

Eastbound Westbound Northbound Southbound
South Site Driveway South Site Driveway Chapel Ridge Road Chapel Ridge Road

- Page 939 -



INTERSECTION ANALYSIS SHEET
AM In AM Out PM In PM Out

Project: Chapel Ridge Apartments Net New Trips: 30 87 90 57
Location: Apex, NC
Scenario: Supp. Analysis: With Chapel Ridge Townes
Ct. Date Balanced with Ackerman Hill
N/S Street: Site Driveway Annual Growth Rate: 3.0% Existing Year: 2021
E/W Street: Ackerman Hill Drive Growth Factor: 0.125509 Buildout Year: 2025

AM PEAK HOUR
AM PHF = 0.90

Description Left Through Right Left Through Right Left Through Right Left Through Right

2021 Traffic Count 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Count Balancing 0 12 0 0 11 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2021 Existing Traffic 0 12 0 0 11 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Growth Factor (0.03 per year) 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2025 Background Growth 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Committed Projects
Olive Chapel Professional Park 0 5 0 0 9 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Chapel Ridge Townes 0 4 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total Committed Traffic 0 9 0 0 10 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

2025 Background Traffic 0 21 0 0 21 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Project Traffic
Percent Assignment Inbound 0% 0% 10% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Inbound Project Traffic 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Percent Assignment Outbound 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 10% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Outbound Project Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 9 0 0 0 0 0

Total Project Traffic 0 0 3 0 0 0 9 0 0 0 0 0

Hempstead Traffic Diversion 0 12 0 0 39 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

OliveChapProfPark Reassign 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

ChapelRidgeTownes Divers. 0 -4 0 0 -1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

2025 Buildout Total 0 29 3 0 59 0 9 0 0 0 0 0
Percent Impact (Approach)

12.0%
PM PEAK HOUR

PM PHF = 0.90

Description Left Through Right Left Through Right Left Through Right Left Through Right

2021 Traffic Count 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Count Balancing 0 25 0 0 15 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2021 Existing Traffic 0 25 0 0 15 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Growth Factor (0.03 per year) 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2025 Background Growth 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Committed Projects
Olive Chapel Professional Park 0 9 0 0 6 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Chapel Ridge Townes 0 2 0 0 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total Committed Traffic 0 11 0 0 10 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

2025 Background Traffic 0 36 0 0 25 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Project Traffic
Percent Assignment Inbound 0% 0% 10% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Inbound Project Traffic 0 0 9 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Percent Assignment Outbound 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 10% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Outbound Project Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 6 0 0 0 0 0

Total Project Traffic 0 0 9 0 0 0 6 0 0 0 0 0

Hempstead Traffic Diversion 0 38 0 0 22 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

OliveChapProfPark Reassign 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

ChapelRidgeTownes Divers. 0 -2 0 0 -4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

2025 Buildout Total 0 72 9 0 43 0 6 0 0 0 0 0
Percent Impact (Approach)

11.5%

k:\dur_ldev\011270040 chapel ridge apex\t4 - analysis\supplemental analysis - with chapel ridge townes\[addend-chapelridgeapts-withchapridgetownes-tiadata.xls]int. #9 2/9/22

Overall Percent Impact
11.1% 0.0% 100.0% -

Eastbound Westbound Northbound Southbound
Ackerman Hill Drive Ackerman Hill Drive Site Driveway

9.4% 0.0% 100.0% -
Overall Percent Impact

Eastbound Westbound Northbound Southbound
Ackerman Hill Drive Ackerman Hill Drive Site Driveway

- Page 940 -



Appendix L:
Supplemental Analysis:

Synchro & SIDRA Output:
Background (2025)

- Page 941 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments Supplemental Analysis: Background AM
1: Kelly Road & Wendhurst Court/Beaver Creek Commons Drive 02/09/2022

K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Supplemental Analysis - with Chapel Ridge Townes\Synchro\3 - Background AM.syn Synchro 10 Report
Kimley-Horn Page 1

Lane Group EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 19 8 38 93 4 25 38 790 132 33 413 9
Future Volume (vph) 19 8 38 93 4 25 38 790 132 33 413 9
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Width (ft) 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12
Grade (%) 0% 1% 3% -4%
Storage Length (ft) 0 0 275 0 275 0 170 0
Storage Lanes 0 0 1 1 1 0 1 0
Taper Length (ft) 25 50 125 170
Satd. Flow (prot) 0 1641 0 0 1768 1575 1743 3409 0 1753 1840 0
Flt Permitted 0.888 0.700 0.478 0.273
Satd. Flow (perm) 0 1478 0 0 1297 1575 877 3409 0 504 1840 0
Right Turn on Red Yes Yes Yes Yes
Satd. Flow (RTOR) 39 32 25 1
Link Speed (mph) 25 35 45 45
Link Distance (ft) 513 641 1004 905
Travel Time (s) 14.0 12.5 15.2 13.7
Confl. Peds. (#/hr)
Confl. Bikes (#/hr)
Peak Hour Factor 0.98 0.98 0.98 0.98 0.98 0.98 0.98 0.98 0.98 0.98 0.98 0.98
Growth Factor 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
Heavy Vehicles (%) 5% 5% 5% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 5% 5% 5%
Bus Blockages (#/hr) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Parking  (#/hr)
Mid-Block Traffic (%) 0% 0% 0% 0%
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 0 66 0 0 99 26 39 941 0 34 430 0
Turn Type Perm NA pm+pt NA pm+ov D.P+P NA D.P+P NA
Protected Phases 4 3 8 1 5 2 1 6
Permitted Phases 4 8 8 6 2
Detector Phase 4 4 3 8 1 5 2 1 6
Switch Phase
Minimum Initial (s) 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 12.0 7.0 12.0
Minimum Split (s) 30.0 30.0 14.0 30.0 14.0 14.0 30.0 14.0 25.0
Total Split (s) 20.0 20.0 15.0 35.0 15.0 15.0 70.0 15.0 70.0
Total Split (%) 16.7% 16.7% 12.5% 29.2% 12.5% 12.5% 58.3% 12.5% 58.3%
Yellow Time (s) 3.2 3.2 3.0 3.1 3.0 3.0 4.9 3.0 4.9
All-Red Time (s) 2.6 2.6 2.8 2.7 2.8 2.4 1.6 2.8 1.6
Lost Time Adjust (s) -0.8 -0.8 -0.8 -0.4 -1.5 -0.8 -1.5
Total Lost Time (s) 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0
Lead/Lag Lead Lead Lag Lead Lead Lag Lead Lag
Lead-Lag Optimize? Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
Recall Mode None None None None None None C-Max None C-Max
Act Effct Green (s) 14.4 14.4 27.2 92.6 85.3 91.6 88.1
Actuated g/C Ratio 0.12 0.12 0.23 0.77 0.71 0.76 0.73
v/c Ratio 0.31 0.64 0.07 0.05 0.39 0.07 0.32
Control Delay 26.2 67.5 9.3 3.6 8.3 3.8 7.8
Queue Delay 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total Delay 26.2 67.5 9.3 3.6 8.3 3.8 7.8
LOS C E A A A A A
Approach Delay 26.2 55.4 8.1 7.5
Approach LOS C E A A
Queue Length 50th (ft) 19 74 0 5 143 4 120
Queue Length 95th (ft) 59 126 19 16 217 14 206
Internal Link Dist (ft) 433 561 924 825
Turn Bay Length (ft) 275 170
Base Capacity (vph) 238 324 410 760 2431 496 1351
Starvation Cap Reductn 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Spillback Cap Reductn 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Storage Cap Reductn 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Reduced v/c Ratio 0.28 0.31 0.06 0.05 0.39 0.07 0.32

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Cycle Length: 120
Actuated Cycle Length: 120

- Page 942 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments Supplemental Analysis: Background AM
1: Kelly Road & Wendhurst Court/Beaver Creek Commons Drive 02/09/2022

K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Supplemental Analysis - with Chapel Ridge Townes\Synchro\3 - Background AM.syn Synchro 10 Report
Kimley-Horn Page 2

Offset: 0 (0%), Referenced to phase 2:NBSB and 6:NBSB, Start of Green
Natural Cycle: 90
Control Type: Actuated-Coordinated
Maximum v/c Ratio: 0.64
Intersection Signal Delay: 12.3 Intersection LOS: B
Intersection Capacity Utilization 51.9% ICU Level of Service A
Analysis Period (min) 15

Splits and Phases:     1: Kelly Road & Wendhurst Court/Beaver Creek Commons Drive

- Page 943 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments Supplemental Analysis: Background AM
2: Olive Chapel Road & Chapel Ridge Road 02/09/2022

K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Supplemental Analysis - with Chapel Ridge Townes\Synchro\3 - Background AM.syn Synchro 10 Report
Kimley-Horn Page 3

Lane Group EBL EBT WBT WBR SBL SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 56 403 409 58 21 25
Future Volume (vph) 56 403 409 58 21 25
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Width (ft) 12 12 12 12 12 12
Grade (%) 0% 0% 0%
Storage Length (ft) 150 0 75 0
Storage Lanes 1 0 1 1
Taper Length (ft) 300 25
Satd. Flow (prot) 1736 1827 1796 0 1703 1524
Flt Permitted 0.950 0.950
Satd. Flow (perm) 1736 1827 1796 0 1703 1524
Link Speed (mph) 45 45 25
Link Distance (ft) 797 812 509
Travel Time (s) 12.1 12.3 13.9
Confl. Peds. (#/hr)
Confl. Bikes (#/hr)
Peak Hour Factor 0.85 0.85 0.85 0.85 0.85 0.85
Growth Factor 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
Heavy Vehicles (%) 4% 4% 4% 4% 6% 6%
Bus Blockages (#/hr) 0 0 0 0 0 0
Parking  (#/hr)
Mid-Block Traffic (%) 0% 0% 0%
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 66 474 549 0 25 29
Sign Control Free Free Stop

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Control Type: Unsignalized
Intersection Capacity Utilization 41.7% ICU Level of Service A
Analysis Period (min) 15

- Page 944 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments Supplemental Analysis: Background AM
2: Olive Chapel Road & Chapel Ridge Road 02/09/2022

K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Supplemental Analysis - with Chapel Ridge Townes\Synchro\3 - Background AM.syn Synchro 10 Report
Kimley-Horn Page 4

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 1.2

Movement EBL EBT WBT WBR SBL SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 56 403 409 58 21 25
Future Vol, veh/h 56 403 409 58 21 25
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Free Free Free Free Stop Stop
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length 150 - - - 75 0
Veh in Median Storage, # - 0 0 - 0 -
Grade, % - 0 0 - 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 85 85 85 85 85 85
Heavy Vehicles, % 4 4 4 4 6 6
Mvmt Flow 66 474 481 68 25 29

Major/Minor Major1 Major2 Minor2
Conflicting Flow All 549 0 - 0 1121 515
          Stage 1 - - - - 515 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 606 -
Critical Hdwy 4.14 - - - 6.46 6.26
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 - - - - 5.46 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 - - - - 5.46 -
Follow-up Hdwy 2.236 - - - 3.554 3.354
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 1011 - - - 224 552
          Stage 1 - - - - 592 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 537 -
Platoon blocked, % - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver 1011 - - - 209 552
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver - - - - 344 -
          Stage 1 - - - - 554 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 537 -

Approach EB WB SB
HCM Control Delay, s 1.1 0 13.9
HCM LOS B

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt EBL EBT WBT WBR SBLn1 SBLn2
Capacity (veh/h) 1011 - - - 344 552
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.065 - - - 0.072 0.053
HCM Control Delay (s) 8.8 - - - 16.3 11.9
HCM Lane LOS A - - - C B
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0.2 - - - 0.2 0.2

- Page 945 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments Supplemental Analysis: Background AM
3: Chapel Ridge Road & Ackerman Hill Drive 02/09/2022

K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Supplemental Analysis - with Chapel Ridge Townes\Synchro\3 - Background AM.syn Synchro 10 Report
Kimley-Horn Page 5

Lane Group WBL WBR NBT NBR SBL SBT
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 20 4 4 17 4 4
Future Volume (vph) 20 4 4 17 4 4
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Width (ft) 12 12 12 12 12 12
Grade (%) 0% 0% 0%
Storage Length (ft) 0 0 0 0
Storage Lanes 1 0 0 0
Taper Length (ft) 25 25
Satd. Flow (prot) 1749 0 1654 0 0 1818
Flt Permitted 0.959 0.976
Satd. Flow (perm) 1749 0 1654 0 0 1818
Link Speed (mph) 25 25 25
Link Distance (ft) 289 696 330
Travel Time (s) 7.9 19.0 9.0
Confl. Peds. (#/hr)
Confl. Bikes (#/hr)
Peak Hour Factor 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90
Growth Factor 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
Heavy Vehicles (%) 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2%
Bus Blockages (#/hr) 0 0 0 0 0 0
Parking  (#/hr)
Mid-Block Traffic (%) 0% 0% 0%
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 26 0 23 0 0 8
Sign Control Stop Free Free

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Control Type: Unsignalized
Intersection Capacity Utilization 13.8% ICU Level of Service A
Analysis Period (min) 15

- Page 946 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments Supplemental Analysis: Background AM
3: Chapel Ridge Road & Ackerman Hill Drive 02/09/2022

K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Supplemental Analysis - with Chapel Ridge Townes\Synchro\3 - Background AM.syn Synchro 10 Report
Kimley-Horn Page 6

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 4.5

Movement WBL WBR NBT NBR SBL SBT
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 20 4 4 17 4 4
Future Vol, veh/h 20 4 4 17 4 4
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length 0 - - - - -
Veh in Median Storage, # 0 - 0 - - 0
Grade, % 0 - 0 - - 0
Peak Hour Factor 90 90 90 90 90 90
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 22 4 4 19 4 4

Major/Minor Minor1 Major1 Major2
Conflicting Flow All 26 14 0 0 23 0
          Stage 1 14 - - - - -
          Stage 2 12 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 6.42 6.22 - - 4.12 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 5.42 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 5.42 - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.518 3.318 - - 2.218 -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 989 1066 - - 1592 -
          Stage 1 1009 - - - - -
          Stage 2 1011 - - - - -
Platoon blocked, % - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver 986 1066 - - 1592 -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver 986 - - - - -
          Stage 1 1009 - - - - -
          Stage 2 1008 - - - - -

Approach WB NB SB
HCM Control Delay, s 8.7 0 3.6
HCM LOS A

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBT NBR WBLn1 SBL SBT
Capacity (veh/h) - - 998 1592 -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio - - 0.027 0.003 -
HCM Control Delay (s) - - 8.7 7.3 0
HCM Lane LOS - - A A A
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) - - 0.1 0 -

- Page 947 -



MOVEMENT SUMMARY
Site: 4 [Background AM (Site Folder: General)]

Beaver Creek Commons Drive at Creekside Landing Drive
Site Category: Supp. Analysis - With Chapel Ridge Townhomes
Roundabout

Vehicle Movement Performance
INPUT

VOLUMES
DEMAND
FLOWS

95% BACK OF
QUEUE

Mov
ID

Turn Deg.
Satn

Aver.
Delay

Level of
Service

Prop.
Que

Effective
Stop
Rate

Aver.
No.

Cycles

Aver.
Speed

[ Total HV ] [ Total HV ] [ Veh. Dist ]
veh/h % veh/h % v/c sec veh ft mph

South: Creekside Landing Drive

3 L2 4 6.0 5 6.0 0.071 4.3 LOS A 0.3 7.4 0.40 0.27 0.40 24.0
8 T1 30 6.0 36 6.0 0.071 4.3 LOS A 0.3 7.4 0.40 0.27 0.40 23.9
18 R2 24 6.0 29 6.0 0.071 4.3 LOS A 0.3 7.4 0.40 0.27 0.40 23.5
Approach 58 6.0 69 6.0 0.071 4.3 LOS A 0.3 7.4 0.40 0.27 0.40 23.7

East: Beaver Creek Commons Drive

1 L2 30 2.0 36 2.0 0.167 4.3 LOS A 0.8 20.2 0.24 0.11 0.24 23.9
6 T1 78 2.0 93 2.0 0.167 4.3 LOS A 0.8 20.2 0.24 0.11 0.24 23.8
16 R2 65 2.0 77 2.0 0.167 4.3 LOS A 0.8 20.2 0.24 0.11 0.24 23.4
Approach 173 2.0 206 2.0 0.167 4.3 LOS A 0.8 20.2 0.24 0.11 0.24 23.7

North: Creekside Landing Drive

7 L2 64 2.0 76 2.0 0.152 4.4 LOS A 0.7 17.8 0.30 0.17 0.30 23.7
4 T1 33 2.0 39 2.0 0.152 4.4 LOS A 0.7 17.8 0.30 0.17 0.30 23.6
14 R2 53 2.0 63 2.0 0.152 4.4 LOS A 0.7 17.8 0.30 0.17 0.30 23.1
Approach 150 2.0 179 2.0 0.152 4.4 LOS A 0.7 17.8 0.30 0.17 0.30 23.5

West: Beaver Creek Commons Drive

5 L2 37 3.0 44 3.0 0.184 4.8 LOS A 0.9 22.1 0.33 0.19 0.33 23.8
2 T1 132 3.0 157 3.0 0.184 4.8 LOS A 0.9 22.1 0.33 0.19 0.33 23.7
12 R2 8 3.0 10 3.0 0.184 4.8 LOS A 0.9 22.1 0.33 0.19 0.33 23.3
Approach 177 3.0 211 3.0 0.184 4.8 LOS A 0.9 22.1 0.33 0.19 0.33 23.7

All Vehicles 558 2.7 664 2.7 0.184 4.5 LOS A 0.9 22.1 0.30 0.17 0.30 23.6

Site Level of Service (LOS) Method: Delay & v/c (HCM 6). Site LOS Method is specified in the Parameter Settings dialog (Site tab).
Roundabout LOS Method: Same as Sign Control.
Vehicle movement LOS values are based on average delay and v/c ratio (degree of saturation) per movement.
LOS F will result if v/c > 1 irrespective of movement delay value (does not apply for approaches and intersection).
Intersection and Approach LOS values are based on average delay for all movements (v/c not used as specified in HCM 6).
Roundabout Capacity Model: US HCM 6.
Delay Model: HCM Delay Formula (Geometric Delay is not included).
Queue Model: HCM Queue Formula.
Gap-Acceptance Capacity: Traditional M1.
HV (%) values are calculated for All Movement Classes of All Heavy Vehicle Model Designation.

SIDRA INTERSECTION 9.0 | Copyright © 2000-2020 Akcelik and Associates Pty Ltd | sidrasolutions.com
Organisation: KIMLEY-HORN & ASSOCIATES INC | Licence: NETWORK / Enterprise | Processed: Wednesday, February 9, 2022 2:20:12 PM
Project: K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Supplemental Analysis - with Chapel Ridge Townes\Sidra\BC Commons @
Creekside Landing.sip9

- Page 948 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments Supplemental Analysis: Background PM
1: Kelly Road & Wendhurst Court/Beaver Creek Commons Drive 02/09/2022

K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Supplemental Analysis - with Chapel Ridge Townes\Synchro\4 - Background PM.syn Synchro 10 Report
Kimley-Horn Page 1

Lane Group EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 10 14 47 278 20 62 67 594 304 100 863 23
Future Volume (vph) 10 14 47 278 20 62 67 594 304 100 863 23
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Width (ft) 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12
Grade (%) 0% 1% 3% -4%
Storage Length (ft) 0 0 275 0 275 0 170 0
Storage Lanes 0 0 1 1 1 0 1 0
Taper Length (ft) 25 50 125 170
Satd. Flow (prot) 0 1683 0 0 1770 1575 1743 3283 0 1805 1891 0
Flt Permitted 0.943 0.710 0.075 0.233
Satd. Flow (perm) 0 1598 0 0 1316 1575 138 3283 0 443 1891 0
Right Turn on Red Yes Yes Yes Yes
Satd. Flow (RTOR) 48 63 93 1
Link Speed (mph) 25 35 45 45
Link Distance (ft) 513 641 1004 905
Travel Time (s) 14.0 12.5 15.2 13.7
Confl. Peds. (#/hr) 1 1 1 1
Confl. Bikes (#/hr)
Peak Hour Factor 0.98 0.98 0.98 0.98 0.98 0.98 0.98 0.98 0.98 0.98 0.98 0.98
Growth Factor 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
Heavy Vehicles (%) 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2%
Bus Blockages (#/hr) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Parking  (#/hr)
Mid-Block Traffic (%) 0% 0% 0% 0%
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 0 72 0 0 304 63 68 916 0 102 904 0
Turn Type Perm NA pm+pt NA pm+ov D.P+P NA D.P+P NA
Protected Phases 4 3 8 1 5 2 1 6
Permitted Phases 4 8 8 6 2
Detector Phase 4 4 3 8 1 5 2 1 6
Switch Phase
Minimum Initial (s) 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 12.0 7.0 12.0
Minimum Split (s) 30.0 30.0 14.0 30.0 14.0 14.0 30.0 14.0 25.0
Total Split (s) 25.0 25.0 20.0 45.0 20.0 15.0 55.0 20.0 60.0
Total Split (%) 20.8% 20.8% 16.7% 37.5% 16.7% 12.5% 45.8% 16.7% 50.0%
Yellow Time (s) 3.2 3.2 3.0 3.1 3.0 3.0 4.9 3.0 4.9
All-Red Time (s) 2.6 2.6 2.8 2.7 2.8 2.4 1.6 2.8 1.6
Lost Time Adjust (s) -0.8 -0.8 -0.8 -0.4 -1.5 -0.8 -1.5
Total Lost Time (s) 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0
Lead/Lag Lead Lead Lag Lead Lead Lag Lead Lag
Lead-Lag Optimize? Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
Recall Mode None None None None None None C-Max None C-Max
Act Effct Green (s) 33.0 33.0 46.6 73.0 63.4 72.0 66.7
Actuated g/C Ratio 0.28 0.28 0.39 0.61 0.53 0.60 0.56
v/c Ratio 0.15 0.84 0.10 0.36 0.52 0.28 0.86
Control Delay 13.1 60.9 4.9 15.6 18.7 11.7 35.4
Queue Delay 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total Delay 13.1 60.9 4.9 15.6 18.7 11.7 35.4
LOS B E A B B B D
Approach Delay 13.1 51.3 18.5 33.0
Approach LOS B D B C
Queue Length 50th (ft) 14 219 0 19 210 29 608
Queue Length 95th (ft) 46 312 25 43 312 59 #999
Internal Link Dist (ft) 433 561 924 825
Turn Bay Length (ft) 275 170
Base Capacity (vph) 473 438 730 219 1778 454 1051
Starvation Cap Reductn 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Spillback Cap Reductn 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Storage Cap Reductn 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Reduced v/c Ratio 0.15 0.69 0.09 0.31 0.52 0.22 0.86

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Cycle Length: 120
Actuated Cycle Length: 120

- Page 949 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments Supplemental Analysis: Background PM
1: Kelly Road & Wendhurst Court/Beaver Creek Commons Drive 02/09/2022

K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Supplemental Analysis - with Chapel Ridge Townes\Synchro\4 - Background PM.syn Synchro 10 Report
Kimley-Horn Page 2

Offset: 0 (0%), Referenced to phase 2:NBSB and 6:NBSB, Start of Green
Natural Cycle: 110
Control Type: Actuated-Coordinated
Maximum v/c Ratio: 0.86
Intersection Signal Delay: 29.3 Intersection LOS: C
Intersection Capacity Utilization 88.3% ICU Level of Service E
Analysis Period (min) 15
Description: Signal No. 052254
#    95th percentile volume exceeds capacity, queue may be longer.
     Queue shown is maximum after two cycles.

Splits and Phases:     1: Kelly Road & Wendhurst Court/Beaver Creek Commons Drive

- Page 950 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments Supplemental Analysis: Background PM
2: Olive Chapel Road & Chapel Ridge Road 02/09/2022

K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Supplemental Analysis - with Chapel Ridge Townes\Synchro\4 - Background PM.syn Synchro 10 Report
Kimley-Horn Page 3

Lane Group EBL EBT WBT WBR SBL SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 36 500 591 35 55 65
Future Volume (vph) 36 500 591 35 55 65
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Width (ft) 12 12 12 12 12 12
Grade (%) 0% 0% 0%
Storage Length (ft) 150 0 75 0
Storage Lanes 1 0 1 1
Taper Length (ft) 300 25
Satd. Flow (prot) 1770 1863 1848 0 1770 1583
Flt Permitted 0.950 0.950
Satd. Flow (perm) 1770 1863 1848 0 1770 1583
Link Speed (mph) 45 45 25
Link Distance (ft) 797 812 509
Travel Time (s) 12.1 12.3 13.9
Confl. Peds. (#/hr)
Confl. Bikes (#/hr)
Peak Hour Factor 0.93 0.93 0.93 0.93 0.93 0.93
Growth Factor 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
Heavy Vehicles (%) 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2%
Bus Blockages (#/hr) 0 0 0 0 0 0
Parking  (#/hr)
Mid-Block Traffic (%) 0% 0% 0%
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 39 538 673 0 59 70
Sign Control Free Free Stop

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Control Type: Unsignalized
Intersection Capacity Utilization 43.9% ICU Level of Service A
Analysis Period (min) 15

- Page 951 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments Supplemental Analysis: Background PM
2: Olive Chapel Road & Chapel Ridge Road 02/09/2022

K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Supplemental Analysis - with Chapel Ridge Townes\Synchro\4 - Background PM.syn Synchro 10 Report
Kimley-Horn Page 4

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 1.8

Movement EBL EBT WBT WBR SBL SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 36 500 591 35 55 65
Future Vol, veh/h 36 500 591 35 55 65
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Free Free Free Free Stop Stop
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length 150 - - - 75 0
Veh in Median Storage, # - 0 0 - 0 -
Grade, % - 0 0 - 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 93 93 93 93 93 93
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 39 538 635 38 59 70

Major/Minor Major1 Major2 Minor2
Conflicting Flow All 673 0 - 0 1270 654
          Stage 1 - - - - 654 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 616 -
Critical Hdwy 4.12 - - - 6.42 6.22
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 - - - - 5.42 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 - - - - 5.42 -
Follow-up Hdwy 2.218 - - - 3.518 3.318
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 918 - - - 186 467
          Stage 1 - - - - 517 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 539 -
Platoon blocked, % - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver 918 - - - 178 467
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver - - - - 317 -
          Stage 1 - - - - 495 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 539 -

Approach EB WB SB
HCM Control Delay, s 0.6 0 16.3
HCM LOS C

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt EBL EBT WBT WBR SBLn1 SBLn2
Capacity (veh/h) 918 - - - 317 467
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.042 - - - 0.187 0.15
HCM Control Delay (s) 9.1 - - - 18.9 14.1
HCM Lane LOS A - - - C B
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0.1 - - - 0.7 0.5

- Page 952 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments Supplemental Analysis: Background PM
3: Chapel Ridge Road & Ackerman Hill Drive 02/09/2022

K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Supplemental Analysis - with Chapel Ridge Townes\Synchro\4 - Background PM.syn Synchro 10 Report
Kimley-Horn Page 5

Lane Group WBL WBR NBT NBR SBL SBT
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 21 4 4 34 4 4
Future Volume (vph) 21 4 4 34 4 4
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Width (ft) 12 12 12 12 12 12
Grade (%) 0% 0% 0%
Storage Length (ft) 0 0 0 0
Storage Lanes 1 0 0 0
Taper Length (ft) 25 25
Satd. Flow (prot) 1751 0 1635 0 0 1818
Flt Permitted 0.959 0.976
Satd. Flow (perm) 1751 0 1635 0 0 1818
Link Speed (mph) 25 25 25
Link Distance (ft) 289 696 330
Travel Time (s) 7.9 19.0 9.0
Confl. Peds. (#/hr)
Confl. Bikes (#/hr)
Peak Hour Factor 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90
Growth Factor 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
Heavy Vehicles (%) 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2%
Bus Blockages (#/hr) 0 0 0 0 0 0
Parking  (#/hr)
Mid-Block Traffic (%) 0% 0% 0%
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 27 0 42 0 0 8
Sign Control Stop Free Free

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Control Type: Unsignalized
Intersection Capacity Utilization 13.8% ICU Level of Service A
Analysis Period (min) 15

- Page 953 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments Supplemental Analysis: Background PM
3: Chapel Ridge Road & Ackerman Hill Drive 02/09/2022

K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Supplemental Analysis - with Chapel Ridge Townes\Synchro\4 - Background PM.syn Synchro 10 Report
Kimley-Horn Page 6

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 3.5

Movement WBL WBR NBT NBR SBL SBT
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 21 4 4 34 4 4
Future Vol, veh/h 21 4 4 34 4 4
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length 0 - - - - -
Veh in Median Storage, # 0 - 0 - - 0
Grade, % 0 - 0 - - 0
Peak Hour Factor 90 90 90 90 90 90
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 23 4 4 38 4 4

Major/Minor Minor1 Major1 Major2
Conflicting Flow All 35 23 0 0 42 0
          Stage 1 23 - - - - -
          Stage 2 12 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 6.42 6.22 - - 4.12 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 5.42 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 5.42 - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.518 3.318 - - 2.218 -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 978 1054 - - 1567 -
          Stage 1 1000 - - - - -
          Stage 2 1011 - - - - -
Platoon blocked, % - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver 975 1054 - - 1567 -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver 975 - - - - -
          Stage 1 1000 - - - - -
          Stage 2 1008 - - - - -

Approach WB NB SB
HCM Control Delay, s 8.8 0 3.7
HCM LOS A

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBT NBR WBLn1 SBL SBT
Capacity (veh/h) - - 987 1567 -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio - - 0.028 0.003 -
HCM Control Delay (s) - - 8.8 7.3 0
HCM Lane LOS - - A A A
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) - - 0.1 0 -

- Page 954 -



MOVEMENT SUMMARY
Site: 4 [Background PM (Site Folder: General)]

Beaver Creek Commons Drive at Creekside Landing Drive
Site Category: Supp. Analysis - With Chapel Ridge Townhomes
Roundabout

Vehicle Movement Performance
INPUT

VOLUMES
DEMAND
FLOWS

95% BACK OF
QUEUE

Mov
ID

Turn Deg.
Satn

Aver.
Delay

Level of
Service

Prop.
Que

Effective
Stop
Rate

Aver.
No.

Cycles

Aver.
Speed

[ Total HV ] [ Total HV ] [ Veh. Dist ]
veh/h % veh/h % v/c sec veh ft mph

South: Creekside Landing Drive

3 L2 25 2.0 27 2.0 0.314 8.2 LOS A 1.4 36.8 0.63 0.61 0.63 23.0
8 T1 99 2.0 105 2.0 0.314 8.2 LOS A 1.4 36.8 0.63 0.61 0.63 22.9
18 R2 108 2.0 115 2.0 0.314 8.2 LOS A 1.4 36.8 0.63 0.61 0.63 22.5
Approach 232 2.0 247 2.0 0.314 8.2 LOS A 1.4 36.8 0.63 0.61 0.63 22.7

East: Beaver Creek Commons Drive

1 L2 76 2.0 81 2.0 0.513 9.6 LOS A 3.3 83.9 0.60 0.48 0.60 22.7
6 T1 235 2.0 250 2.0 0.513 9.6 LOS A 3.3 83.9 0.60 0.48 0.60 22.6
16 R2 189 2.0 201 2.0 0.513 9.6 LOS A 3.3 83.9 0.60 0.48 0.60 22.2
Approach 500 2.0 532 2.0 0.513 9.6 LOS A 3.3 83.9 0.60 0.48 0.60 22.4

North: Creekside Landing Drive

7 L2 153 2.0 163 2.0 0.527 10.7 LOS B 4.2 106.7 0.67 0.73 0.87 22.3
4 T1 162 2.0 172 2.0 0.527 10.7 LOS B 4.2 106.7 0.67 0.73 0.87 22.2
14 R2 147 2.0 156 2.0 0.527 10.7 LOS B 4.2 106.7 0.67 0.73 0.87 21.8
Approach 462 2.0 491 2.0 0.527 10.7 LOS B 4.2 106.7 0.67 0.73 0.87 22.1

West: Beaver Creek Commons Drive

5 L2 117 2.0 124 2.0 0.435 9.4 LOS A 2.6 65.2 0.64 0.64 0.72 22.6
2 T1 221 2.0 235 2.0 0.435 9.4 LOS A 2.6 65.2 0.64 0.64 0.72 22.5
12 R2 21 2.0 22 2.0 0.435 9.4 LOS A 2.6 65.2 0.64 0.64 0.72 22.1
Approach 359 2.0 382 2.0 0.435 9.4 LOS A 2.6 65.2 0.64 0.64 0.72 22.5

All Vehicles 1553 2.0 1652 2.0 0.527 9.7 LOS A 4.2 106.7 0.64 0.61 0.71 22.4

Site Level of Service (LOS) Method: Delay & v/c (HCM 6). Site LOS Method is specified in the Parameter Settings dialog (Site tab).
Roundabout LOS Method: Same as Sign Control.
Vehicle movement LOS values are based on average delay and v/c ratio (degree of saturation) per movement.
LOS F will result if v/c > 1 irrespective of movement delay value (does not apply for approaches and intersection).
Intersection and Approach LOS values are based on average delay for all movements (v/c not used as specified in HCM 6).
Roundabout Capacity Model: US HCM 6.
Delay Model: HCM Delay Formula (Geometric Delay is not included).
Queue Model: HCM Queue Formula.
Gap-Acceptance Capacity: Traditional M1.
HV (%) values are calculated for All Movement Classes of All Heavy Vehicle Model Designation.

SIDRA INTERSECTION 9.0 | Copyright © 2000-2020 Akcelik and Associates Pty Ltd | sidrasolutions.com
Organisation: KIMLEY-HORN & ASSOCIATES INC | Licence: NETWORK / Enterprise | Processed: Wednesday, February 9, 2022 2:20:10 PM
Project: K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Supplemental Analysis - with Chapel Ridge Townes\Sidra\BC Commons @
Creekside Landing.sip9

- Page 955 -



Appendix M:
Supplemental Analysis:

Synchro & SIDRA Output:
Build-out (2025)

- Page 956 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments Supplemental Analysis: Build AM
1: Kelly Road & Wendhurst Court/Beaver Creek Commons Drive 02/09/2022

K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Supplemental Analysis - with Chapel Ridge Townes\Synchro\5 - Build AM.syn Synchro 10 Report
Kimley-Horn Page 1

Lane Group EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 19 8 38 93 4 88 38 790 132 53 413 9
Future Volume (vph) 19 8 38 93 4 88 38 790 132 53 413 9
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Width (ft) 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12
Grade (%) 0% 1% 3% -4%
Storage Length (ft) 0 0 275 0 275 0 170 0
Storage Lanes 0 0 1 1 1 0 1 0
Taper Length (ft) 25 50 125 170
Satd. Flow (prot) 0 1641 0 0 1768 1575 1743 3409 0 1753 1840 0
Flt Permitted 0.888 0.700 0.478 0.270
Satd. Flow (perm) 0 1478 0 0 1297 1575 877 3409 0 498 1840 0
Right Turn on Red Yes Yes Yes Yes
Satd. Flow (RTOR) 39 90 25 1
Link Speed (mph) 25 35 45 45
Link Distance (ft) 513 641 1004 905
Travel Time (s) 14.0 12.5 15.2 13.7
Confl. Peds. (#/hr)
Confl. Bikes (#/hr)
Peak Hour Factor 0.98 0.98 0.98 0.98 0.98 0.98 0.98 0.98 0.98 0.98 0.98 0.98
Growth Factor 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
Heavy Vehicles (%) 5% 5% 5% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 5% 5% 5%
Bus Blockages (#/hr) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Parking  (#/hr)
Mid-Block Traffic (%) 0% 0% 0% 0%
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 0 66 0 0 99 90 39 941 0 54 430 0
Turn Type Perm NA pm+pt NA pm+ov D.P+P NA D.P+P NA
Protected Phases 4 3 8 1 5 2 1 6
Permitted Phases 4 8 8 6 2
Detector Phase 4 4 3 8 1 5 2 1 6
Switch Phase
Minimum Initial (s) 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 12.0 7.0 12.0
Minimum Split (s) 30.0 30.0 14.0 30.0 14.0 14.0 30.0 14.0 25.0
Total Split (s) 20.0 20.0 15.0 35.0 15.0 15.0 70.0 15.0 70.0
Total Split (%) 16.7% 16.7% 12.5% 29.2% 12.5% 12.5% 58.3% 12.5% 58.3%
Yellow Time (s) 3.2 3.2 3.0 3.1 3.0 3.0 4.9 3.0 4.9
All-Red Time (s) 2.6 2.6 2.8 2.7 2.8 2.4 1.6 2.8 1.6
Lost Time Adjust (s) -0.8 -0.8 -0.8 -0.4 -1.5 -0.8 -1.5
Total Lost Time (s) 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0
Lead/Lag Lead Lead Lag Lead Lead Lag Lead Lag
Lead-Lag Optimize? Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
Recall Mode None None None None None None C-Max None C-Max
Act Effct Green (s) 14.4 14.4 27.2 92.6 82.8 90.6 88.1
Actuated g/C Ratio 0.12 0.12 0.23 0.77 0.69 0.76 0.73
v/c Ratio 0.31 0.64 0.21 0.05 0.40 0.12 0.32
Control Delay 26.2 67.5 8.0 3.6 8.8 4.0 7.8
Queue Delay 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total Delay 26.2 67.5 8.0 3.6 8.8 4.0 7.8
LOS C E A A A A A
Approach Delay 26.2 39.2 8.6 7.4
Approach LOS C D A A
Queue Length 50th (ft) 19 74 0 5 143 7 120
Queue Length 95th (ft) 59 126 40 16 217 20 206
Internal Link Dist (ft) 433 561 924 825
Turn Bay Length (ft) 275 170
Base Capacity (vph) 238 324 454 760 2359 489 1351
Starvation Cap Reductn 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Spillback Cap Reductn 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Storage Cap Reductn 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Reduced v/c Ratio 0.28 0.31 0.20 0.05 0.40 0.11 0.32

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Cycle Length: 120
Actuated Cycle Length: 120

- Page 957 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments Supplemental Analysis: Build AM
1: Kelly Road & Wendhurst Court/Beaver Creek Commons Drive 02/09/2022

K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Supplemental Analysis - with Chapel Ridge Townes\Synchro\5 - Build AM.syn Synchro 10 Report
Kimley-Horn Page 2

Offset: 0 (0%), Referenced to phase 2:NBSB and 6:NBSB, Start of Green
Natural Cycle: 90
Control Type: Actuated-Coordinated
Maximum v/c Ratio: 0.64
Intersection Signal Delay: 12.3 Intersection LOS: B
Intersection Capacity Utilization 56.4% ICU Level of Service B
Analysis Period (min) 15
Description: Signal No. 052254

Splits and Phases:     1: Kelly Road & Wendhurst Court/Beaver Creek Commons Drive

- Page 958 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments Supplemental Analysis: Build AM
2: Olive Chapel Road & Chapel Ridge Road 02/09/2022

K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Supplemental Analysis - with Chapel Ridge Townes\Synchro\5 - Build AM.syn Synchro 10 Report
Kimley-Horn Page 3

Lane Group EBL EBT WBT WBR SBL SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 59 403 409 64 38 34
Future Volume (vph) 59 403 409 64 38 34
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Width (ft) 12 12 12 12 12 12
Grade (%) 0% 0% 0%
Storage Length (ft) 150 0 75 0
Storage Lanes 1 0 1 1
Taper Length (ft) 300 25
Satd. Flow (prot) 1736 1827 1794 0 1703 1524
Flt Permitted 0.950 0.950
Satd. Flow (perm) 1736 1827 1794 0 1703 1524
Link Speed (mph) 45 45 25
Link Distance (ft) 797 812 509
Travel Time (s) 12.1 12.3 13.9
Confl. Peds. (#/hr)
Confl. Bikes (#/hr)
Peak Hour Factor 0.85 0.85 0.85 0.85 0.85 0.85
Growth Factor 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
Heavy Vehicles (%) 4% 4% 4% 4% 6% 6%
Bus Blockages (#/hr) 0 0 0 0 0 0
Parking  (#/hr)
Mid-Block Traffic (%) 0% 0% 0%
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 69 474 556 0 45 40
Sign Control Free Free Stop

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Control Type: Unsignalized
Intersection Capacity Utilization 42.1% ICU Level of Service A
Analysis Period (min) 15

- Page 959 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments Supplemental Analysis: Build AM
2: Olive Chapel Road & Chapel Ridge Road 02/09/2022

K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Supplemental Analysis - with Chapel Ridge Townes\Synchro\5 - Build AM.syn Synchro 10 Report
Kimley-Horn Page 4

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 1.6

Movement EBL EBT WBT WBR SBL SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 59 403 409 64 38 34
Future Vol, veh/h 59 403 409 64 38 34
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Free Free Free Free Stop Stop
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length 150 - - - 75 0
Veh in Median Storage, # - 0 0 - 0 -
Grade, % - 0 0 - 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 85 85 85 85 85 85
Heavy Vehicles, % 4 4 4 4 6 6
Mvmt Flow 69 474 481 75 45 40

Major/Minor Major1 Major2 Minor2
Conflicting Flow All 556 0 - 0 1131 519
          Stage 1 - - - - 519 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 612 -
Critical Hdwy 4.14 - - - 6.46 6.26
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 - - - - 5.46 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 - - - - 5.46 -
Follow-up Hdwy 2.236 - - - 3.554 3.354
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 1005 - - - 221 549
          Stage 1 - - - - 589 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 533 -
Platoon blocked, % - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver 1005 - - - 206 549
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver - - - - 341 -
          Stage 1 - - - - 548 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 533 -

Approach EB WB SB
HCM Control Delay, s 1.1 0 14.7
HCM LOS B

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt EBL EBT WBT WBR SBLn1 SBLn2
Capacity (veh/h) 1005 - - - 341 549
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.069 - - - 0.131 0.073
HCM Control Delay (s) 8.8 - - - 17.1 12.1
HCM Lane LOS A - - - C B
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0.2 - - - 0.4 0.2

- Page 960 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments Supplemental Analysis: Build AM
3: Chapel Ridge Road & Ackerman Hill Drive 02/09/2022

K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Supplemental Analysis - with Chapel Ridge Townes\Synchro\5 - Build AM.syn Synchro 10 Report
Kimley-Horn Page 5

Lane Group WBL WBR NBT NBR SBL SBT
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 19 48 20 13 15 33
Future Volume (vph) 19 48 20 13 15 33
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Width (ft) 12 12 12 12 12 12
Grade (%) 0% 0% 0%
Storage Length (ft) 0 0 0 0
Storage Lanes 1 0 0 0
Taper Length (ft) 25 25
Satd. Flow (prot) 1659 0 1764 0 0 1835
Flt Permitted 0.986 0.985
Satd. Flow (perm) 1659 0 1764 0 0 1835
Link Speed (mph) 25 25 25
Link Distance (ft) 292 213 210
Travel Time (s) 8.0 5.8 5.7
Confl. Peds. (#/hr)
Confl. Bikes (#/hr)
Peak Hour Factor 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90
Growth Factor 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
Heavy Vehicles (%) 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2%
Bus Blockages (#/hr) 0 0 0 0 0 0
Parking  (#/hr)
Mid-Block Traffic (%) 0% 0% 0%
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 74 0 36 0 0 54
Sign Control Stop Free Free

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Control Type: Unsignalized
Intersection Capacity Utilization 19.9% ICU Level of Service A
Analysis Period (min) 15

- Page 961 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments Supplemental Analysis: Build AM
3: Chapel Ridge Road & Ackerman Hill Drive 02/09/2022

K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Supplemental Analysis - with Chapel Ridge Townes\Synchro\5 - Build AM.syn Synchro 10 Report
Kimley-Horn Page 6

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 4.8

Movement WBL WBR NBT NBR SBL SBT
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 19 48 20 13 15 33
Future Vol, veh/h 19 48 20 13 15 33
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length 0 - - - - -
Veh in Median Storage, # 0 - 0 - - 0
Grade, % 0 - 0 - - 0
Peak Hour Factor 90 90 90 90 90 90
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 21 53 22 14 17 37

Major/Minor Minor1 Major1 Major2
Conflicting Flow All 100 29 0 0 36 0
          Stage 1 29 - - - - -
          Stage 2 71 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 6.42 6.22 - - 4.12 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 5.42 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 5.42 - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.518 3.318 - - 2.218 -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 899 1046 - - 1575 -
          Stage 1 994 - - - - -
          Stage 2 952 - - - - -
Platoon blocked, % - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver 889 1046 - - 1575 -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver 889 - - - - -
          Stage 1 994 - - - - -
          Stage 2 942 - - - - -

Approach WB NB SB
HCM Control Delay, s 8.9 0 2.3
HCM LOS A

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBT NBR WBLn1 SBL SBT
Capacity (veh/h) - - 996 1575 -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio - - 0.075 0.011 -
HCM Control Delay (s) - - 8.9 7.3 0
HCM Lane LOS - - A A A
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) - - 0.2 0 -

- Page 962 -



MOVEMENT SUMMARY
Site: 4 [Build-Out AM (Site Folder: General)]

Beaver Creek Commons Drive at Creekside Landing Drive
Site Category: Supp. Analysis - With Chapel Ridge Townhomes
Roundabout

Vehicle Movement Performance
INPUT

VOLUMES
DEMAND
FLOWS

95% BACK OF
QUEUE

Mov
ID

Turn Deg.
Satn

Aver.
Delay

Level of
Service

Prop.
Que

Effective
Stop
Rate

Aver.
No.

Cycles

Aver.
Speed

[ Total HV ] [ Total HV ] [ Veh. Dist ]
veh/h % veh/h % v/c sec veh ft mph

South: Creekside Landing Drive

3 L2 4 6.0 5 6.0 0.069 4.5 LOS A 0.3 7.1 0.43 0.30 0.43 24.0
8 T1 28 6.0 33 6.0 0.069 4.5 LOS A 0.3 7.1 0.43 0.30 0.43 23.9
18 R2 22 6.0 26 6.0 0.069 4.5 LOS A 0.3 7.1 0.43 0.30 0.43 23.4
Approach 54 6.0 64 6.0 0.069 4.5 LOS A 0.3 7.1 0.43 0.30 0.43 23.7

East: Beaver Creek Commons Drive

1 L2 29 2.0 35 2.0 0.182 4.5 LOS A 0.9 22.4 0.26 0.13 0.26 23.9
6 T1 93 2.0 111 2.0 0.182 4.5 LOS A 0.9 22.4 0.26 0.13 0.26 23.8
16 R2 65 2.0 77 2.0 0.182 4.5 LOS A 0.9 22.4 0.26 0.13 0.26 23.3
Approach 187 2.0 223 2.0 0.182 4.5 LOS A 0.9 22.4 0.26 0.13 0.26 23.7

North: Creekside Landing Drive

7 L2 64 2.0 76 2.0 0.166 4.6 LOS A 0.8 19.6 0.32 0.19 0.32 23.7
4 T1 32 2.0 38 2.0 0.166 4.6 LOS A 0.8 19.6 0.32 0.19 0.32 23.6
14 R2 65 2.0 77 2.0 0.166 4.6 LOS A 0.8 19.6 0.32 0.19 0.32 23.1
Approach 161 2.0 192 2.0 0.166 4.6 LOS A 0.8 19.6 0.32 0.19 0.32 23.4

West: Beaver Creek Commons Drive

5 L2 48 3.0 57 3.0 0.217 5.1 LOS A 1.1 27.0 0.34 0.20 0.34 23.7
2 T1 153 3.0 182 3.0 0.217 5.1 LOS A 1.1 27.0 0.34 0.20 0.34 23.6
12 R2 8 3.0 10 3.0 0.217 5.1 LOS A 1.1 27.0 0.34 0.20 0.34 23.2
Approach 209 3.0 249 3.0 0.217 5.1 LOS A 1.1 27.0 0.34 0.20 0.34 23.6

All Vehicles 611 2.7 727 2.7 0.217 4.7 LOS A 1.1 27.0 0.32 0.19 0.32 23.6

Site Level of Service (LOS) Method: Delay & v/c (HCM 6). Site LOS Method is specified in the Parameter Settings dialog (Site tab).
Roundabout LOS Method: Same as Sign Control.
Vehicle movement LOS values are based on average delay and v/c ratio (degree of saturation) per movement.
LOS F will result if v/c > 1 irrespective of movement delay value (does not apply for approaches and intersection).
Intersection and Approach LOS values are based on average delay for all movements (v/c not used as specified in HCM 6).
Roundabout Capacity Model: US HCM 6.
Delay Model: HCM Delay Formula (Geometric Delay is not included).
Queue Model: HCM Queue Formula.
Gap-Acceptance Capacity: Traditional M1.
HV (%) values are calculated for All Movement Classes of All Heavy Vehicle Model Designation.

SIDRA INTERSECTION 9.0 | Copyright © 2000-2020 Akcelik and Associates Pty Ltd | sidrasolutions.com
Organisation: KIMLEY-HORN & ASSOCIATES INC | Licence: NETWORK / Enterprise | Processed: Wednesday, February 9, 2022 2:20:11 PM
Project: K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Supplemental Analysis - with Chapel Ridge Townes\Sidra\BC Commons @
Creekside Landing.sip9

- Page 963 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments Supplemental Analysis: Build AM
5: Beaver Creek Commons Drive & Proposed Site Access 02/09/2022

K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Supplemental Analysis - with Chapel Ridge Townes\Synchro\5 - Build AM.syn Synchro 10 Report
Kimley-Horn Page 8

Lane Group WBL WBR NBT NBR SBL SBT
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 63 43 210 20 30 125
Future Volume (vph) 63 43 210 20 30 125
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Width (ft) 12 12 12 12 12 12
Grade (%) 0% 0% 0%
Storage Length (ft) 0 0 0 100
Storage Lanes 1 0 0 1
Taper Length (ft) 25 100
Satd. Flow (prot) 1709 0 1840 0 1770 1863
Flt Permitted 0.971 0.950
Satd. Flow (perm) 1709 0 1840 0 1770 1863
Link Speed (mph) 25 35 35
Link Distance (ft) 432 357 558
Travel Time (s) 11.8 7.0 10.9
Confl. Peds. (#/hr)
Confl. Bikes (#/hr)
Peak Hour Factor 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90
Growth Factor 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
Heavy Vehicles (%) 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2%
Bus Blockages (#/hr) 0 0 0 0 0 0
Parking  (#/hr)
Mid-Block Traffic (%) 0% 0% 0%
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 118 0 255 0 33 139
Sign Control Stop Free Free

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Control Type: Unsignalized
Intersection Capacity Utilization 31.7% ICU Level of Service A
Analysis Period (min) 15

- Page 964 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments Supplemental Analysis: Build AM
5: Beaver Creek Commons Drive & Proposed Site Access 02/09/2022

K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Supplemental Analysis - with Chapel Ridge Townes\Synchro\5 - Build AM.syn Synchro 10 Report
Kimley-Horn Page 9

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 2.9

Movement WBL WBR NBT NBR SBL SBT
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 63 43 210 20 30 125
Future Vol, veh/h 63 43 210 20 30 125
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length 0 - - - 100 -
Veh in Median Storage, # 0 - 0 - - 0
Grade, % 0 - 0 - - 0
Peak Hour Factor 90 90 90 90 90 90
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 70 48 233 22 33 139

Major/Minor Minor1 Major1 Major2
Conflicting Flow All 449 244 0 0 255 0
          Stage 1 244 - - - - -
          Stage 2 205 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 6.42 6.22 - - 4.12 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 5.42 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 5.42 - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.518 3.318 - - 2.218 -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 568 795 - - 1310 -
          Stage 1 797 - - - - -
          Stage 2 829 - - - - -
Platoon blocked, % - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver 554 795 - - 1310 -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver 619 - - - - -
          Stage 1 797 - - - - -
          Stage 2 808 - - - - -

Approach WB NB SB
HCM Control Delay, s 11.4 0 1.5
HCM LOS B

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBT NBR WBLn1 SBL SBT
Capacity (veh/h) - - 680 1310 -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio - - 0.173 0.025 -
HCM Control Delay (s) - - 11.4 7.8 -
HCM Lane LOS - - B A -
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) - - 0.6 0.1 -

- Page 965 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments Supplemental Analysis: Build AM
6: Chapel Ridge Road & Proposed Site Access/North Site Driveway 02/09/2022

K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Supplemental Analysis - with Chapel Ridge Townes\Synchro\5 - Build AM.syn Synchro 10 Report
Kimley-Horn Page 10

Lane Group EBT EBR WBL WBT NBL NBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 6 45 4 17 89 4
Future Volume (vph) 6 45 4 17 89 4
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Width (ft) 12 12 12 12 12 12
Grade (%) 0% 0% 0%
Storage Length (ft) 0 0 0 0
Storage Lanes 0 0 1 0
Taper Length (ft) 25 25
Satd. Flow (prot) 1643 0 0 1846 1768 0
Flt Permitted 0.991 0.954
Satd. Flow (perm) 1643 0 0 1846 1768 0
Link Speed (mph) 25 25 25
Link Distance (ft) 432 273 553
Travel Time (s) 11.8 7.4 15.1
Confl. Peds. (#/hr)
Confl. Bikes (#/hr)
Peak Hour Factor 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90
Growth Factor 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
Heavy Vehicles (%) 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2%
Bus Blockages (#/hr) 0 0 0 0 0 0
Parking  (#/hr)
Mid-Block Traffic (%) 0% 0% 0%
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 57 0 0 23 103 0
Sign Control Free Free Stop

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Control Type: Unsignalized
Intersection Capacity Utilization 16.2% ICU Level of Service A
Analysis Period (min) 15

- Page 966 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments Supplemental Analysis: Build AM
6: Chapel Ridge Road & Proposed Site Access/North Site Driveway 02/09/2022

K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Supplemental Analysis - with Chapel Ridge Townes\Synchro\5 - Build AM.syn Synchro 10 Report
Kimley-Horn Page 11

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 5.4

Movement EBT EBR WBL WBT NBL NBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 6 45 4 17 89 4
Future Vol, veh/h 6 45 4 17 89 4
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Free Free Free Free Stop Stop
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length - - - - 0 -
Veh in Median Storage, # 0 - - 0 0 -
Grade, % 0 - - 0 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 90 90 90 90 90 90
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 7 50 4 19 99 4

Major/Minor Major1 Major2 Minor1
Conflicting Flow All 0 0 57 0 59 32
          Stage 1 - - - - 32 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 27 -
Critical Hdwy - - 4.12 - 6.42 6.22
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 - - - - 5.42 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 - - - - 5.42 -
Follow-up Hdwy - - 2.218 - 3.518 3.318
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver - - 1547 - 948 1042
          Stage 1 - - - - 991 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 996 -
Platoon blocked, % - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver - - 1547 - 945 1042
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver - - - - 945 -
          Stage 1 - - - - 991 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 993 -

Approach EB WB NB
HCM Control Delay, s 0 1.4 9.3
HCM LOS A

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBLn1 EBT EBR WBL WBT
Capacity (veh/h) 949 - - 1547 -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.109 - - 0.003 -
HCM Control Delay (s) 9.3 - - 7.3 0
HCM Lane LOS A - - A A
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0.4 - - 0 -

- Page 967 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments Supplemental Analysis: Build AM
7: Central Site Driveway & Chapel Ridge Road 02/09/2022

K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Supplemental Analysis - with Chapel Ridge Townes\Synchro\5 - Build AM.syn Synchro 10 Report
Kimley-Horn Page 12

Lane Group EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 4 36 8 4 62 4 22 4 4 9 4 4
Future Volume (vph) 4 36 8 4 62 4 22 4 4 9 4 4
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Width (ft) 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12
Grade (%) 0% 0% 0% 0%
Storage Length (ft) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Storage Lanes 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Taper Length (ft) 25 25 25 25
Satd. Flow (prot) 0 1813 0 0 1844 0 0 1765 0 0 1758 0
Flt Permitted 0.996 0.997 0.964 0.973
Satd. Flow (perm) 0 1813 0 0 1844 0 0 1765 0 0 1758 0
Link Speed (mph) 25 25 25 25
Link Distance (ft) 553 210 358 340
Travel Time (s) 15.1 5.7 9.8 9.3
Confl. Peds. (#/hr)
Confl. Bikes (#/hr)
Peak Hour Factor 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90
Growth Factor 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
Heavy Vehicles (%) 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2%
Bus Blockages (#/hr) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Parking  (#/hr)
Mid-Block Traffic (%) 0% 0% 0% 0%
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 0 53 0 0 77 0 0 32 0 0 18 0
Sign Control Free Free Stop Stop

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Control Type: Unsignalized
Intersection Capacity Utilization 14.5% ICU Level of Service A
Analysis Period (min) 15

- Page 968 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments Supplemental Analysis: Build AM
7: Central Site Driveway & Chapel Ridge Road 02/09/2022

K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Supplemental Analysis - with Chapel Ridge Townes\Synchro\5 - Build AM.syn Synchro 10 Report
Kimley-Horn Page 13

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 3

Movement EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 4 36 8 4 62 4 22 4 4 9 4 4
Future Vol, veh/h 4 36 8 4 62 4 22 4 4 9 4 4
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Free Free Free Free Free Free Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop
RT Channelized - - None - - None - - None - - None
Storage Length - - - - - - - - - - - -
Veh in Median Storage, # - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Grade, % - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 4 40 9 4 69 4 24 4 4 10 4 4

Major/Minor Major1 Major2 Minor1 Minor2
Conflicting Flow All 73 0 0 49 0 0 136 134 45 136 136 71
          Stage 1 - - - - - - 53 53 - 79 79 -
          Stage 2 - - - - - - 83 81 - 57 57 -
Critical Hdwy 4.12 - - 4.12 - - 7.12 6.52 6.22 7.12 6.52 6.22
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 - - - - - - 6.12 5.52 - 6.12 5.52 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 - - - - - - 6.12 5.52 - 6.12 5.52 -
Follow-up Hdwy 2.218 - - 2.218 - - 3.518 4.018 3.318 3.518 4.018 3.318
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 1527 - - 1558 - - 835 757 1025 835 755 991
          Stage 1 - - - - - - 960 851 - 930 829 -
          Stage 2 - - - - - - 925 828 - 955 847 -
Platoon blocked, % - - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver 1527 - - 1558 - - 823 752 1025 824 750 991
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver - - - - - - 823 752 - 824 750 -
          Stage 1 - - - - - - 957 848 - 927 827 -
          Stage 2 - - - - - - 913 826 - 943 844 -

Approach EB WB NB SB
HCM Control Delay, s 0.6 0.4 9.5 9.4
HCM LOS A A

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBLn1 EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR SBLn1
Capacity (veh/h) 834 1527 - - 1558 - - 838
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.04 0.003 - - 0.003 - - 0.023
HCM Control Delay (s) 9.5 7.4 0 - 7.3 0 - 9.4
HCM Lane LOS A A A - A A - A
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0.1 0 - - 0 - - 0.1

- Page 969 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments Supplemental Analysis: Build AM
8: Chapel Ridge Road & South Site Driveway 02/09/2022

K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Supplemental Analysis - with Chapel Ridge Townes\Synchro\5 - Build AM.syn Synchro 10 Report
Kimley-Horn Page 14

Lane Group EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 4 4 9 4 4 4 4 28 4 4 50 4
Future Volume (vph) 4 4 9 4 4 4 4 28 4 4 50 4
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Width (ft) 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12
Grade (%) 0% 0% 0% 0%
Storage Length (ft) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Storage Lanes 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Taper Length (ft) 25 25 25 25
Satd. Flow (prot) 0 1704 0 0 1750 0 0 1827 0 0 1842 0
Flt Permitted 0.989 0.984 0.995 0.997
Satd. Flow (perm) 0 1704 0 0 1750 0 0 1827 0 0 1842 0
Link Speed (mph) 25 25 25 25
Link Distance (ft) 248 378 405 213
Travel Time (s) 6.8 10.3 11.0 5.8
Confl. Peds. (#/hr)
Confl. Bikes (#/hr)
Peak Hour Factor 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90
Growth Factor 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
Heavy Vehicles (%) 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2%
Bus Blockages (#/hr) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Parking  (#/hr)
Mid-Block Traffic (%) 0% 0% 0% 0%
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 0 18 0 0 12 0 0 39 0 0 64 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Free Free

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Control Type: Unsignalized
Intersection Capacity Utilization 13.7% ICU Level of Service A
Analysis Period (min) 15

- Page 970 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments Supplemental Analysis: Build AM
8: Chapel Ridge Road & South Site Driveway 02/09/2022

K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Supplemental Analysis - with Chapel Ridge Townes\Synchro\5 - Build AM.syn Synchro 10 Report
Kimley-Horn Page 15

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 2.6

Movement EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 4 4 9 4 4 4 4 28 4 4 50 4
Future Vol, veh/h 4 4 9 4 4 4 4 28 4 4 50 4
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Free Free Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - - None - - None - - None - - None
Storage Length - - - - - - - - - - - -
Veh in Median Storage, # - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Grade, % - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 4 4 10 4 4 4 4 31 4 4 56 4

Major/Minor Minor2 Minor1 Major1 Major2
Conflicting Flow All 111 109 58 114 109 33 60 0 0 35 0 0
          Stage 1 66 66 - 41 41 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 45 43 - 73 68 - - - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 7.12 6.52 6.22 7.12 6.52 6.22 4.12 - - 4.12 - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 6.12 5.52 - 6.12 5.52 - - - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 6.12 5.52 - 6.12 5.52 - - - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.518 4.018 3.318 3.518 4.018 3.318 2.218 - - 2.218 - -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 867 781 1008 863 781 1041 1544 - - 1576 - -
          Stage 1 945 840 - 974 861 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 969 859 - 937 838 - - - - - - -
Platoon blocked, % - - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver 856 776 1008 847 776 1041 1544 - - 1576 - -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver 856 776 - 847 776 - - - - - - -
          Stage 1 942 837 - 971 858 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 957 856 - 920 835 - - - - - - -

Approach EB WB NB SB
HCM Control Delay, s 9.1 9.2 0.8 0.5
HCM LOS A A

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBL NBT NBR EBLn1 WBLn1 SBL SBT SBR
Capacity (veh/h) 1544 - - 906 875 1576 - -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.003 - - 0.021 0.015 0.003 - -
HCM Control Delay (s) 7.3 0 - 9.1 9.2 7.3 0 -
HCM Lane LOS A A - A A A A -
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0 - - 0.1 0 0 - -

- Page 971 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments Supplemental Analysis: Build AM
9: Site Driveway & Ackerman Hill Drive 02/09/2022

K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Supplemental Analysis - with Chapel Ridge Townes\Synchro\5 - Build AM.syn Synchro 10 Report
Kimley-Horn Page 16

Lane Group EBT EBR WBL WBT NBL NBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 29 4 4 59 9 4
Future Volume (vph) 29 4 4 59 9 4
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Width (ft) 12 12 12 12 12 12
Grade (%) 0% 0% 0%
Storage Length (ft) 0 0 0 0
Storage Lanes 0 0 1 0
Taper Length (ft) 25 25
Satd. Flow (prot) 1835 0 0 1857 1729 0
Flt Permitted 0.997 0.966
Satd. Flow (perm) 1835 0 0 1857 1729 0
Link Speed (mph) 25 25 25
Link Distance (ft) 292 367 225
Travel Time (s) 8.0 10.0 6.1
Confl. Peds. (#/hr)
Confl. Bikes (#/hr)
Peak Hour Factor 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90
Growth Factor 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
Heavy Vehicles (%) 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2%
Bus Blockages (#/hr) 0 0 0 0 0 0
Parking  (#/hr)
Mid-Block Traffic (%) 0% 0% 0%
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 36 0 0 70 14 0
Sign Control Free Free Stop

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Control Type: Unsignalized
Intersection Capacity Utilization 16.4% ICU Level of Service A
Analysis Period (min) 15

- Page 972 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments Supplemental Analysis: Build AM
9: Site Driveway & Ackerman Hill Drive 02/09/2022

K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Supplemental Analysis - with Chapel Ridge Townes\Synchro\5 - Build AM.syn Synchro 10 Report
Kimley-Horn Page 17

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 1.4

Movement EBT EBR WBL WBT NBL NBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 29 4 4 59 9 4
Future Vol, veh/h 29 4 4 59 9 4
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Free Free Free Free Stop Stop
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length - - - - 0 -
Veh in Median Storage, # 0 - - 0 0 -
Grade, % 0 - - 0 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 90 90 90 90 90 90
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 32 4 4 66 10 4

Major/Minor Major1 Major2 Minor1
Conflicting Flow All 0 0 36 0 108 34
          Stage 1 - - - - 34 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 74 -
Critical Hdwy - - 4.12 - 6.42 6.22
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 - - - - 5.42 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 - - - - 5.42 -
Follow-up Hdwy - - 2.218 - 3.518 3.318
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver - - 1575 - 889 1039
          Stage 1 - - - - 988 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 949 -
Platoon blocked, % - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver - - 1575 - 886 1039
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver - - - - 886 -
          Stage 1 - - - - 988 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 946 -

Approach EB WB NB
HCM Control Delay, s 0 0.5 8.9
HCM LOS A

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBLn1 EBT EBR WBL WBT
Capacity (veh/h) 928 - - 1575 -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.016 - - 0.003 -
HCM Control Delay (s) 8.9 - - 7.3 0
HCM Lane LOS A - - A A
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0 - - 0 -

- Page 973 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments Supplemental Analysis: Build PM
1: Kelly Road & Wendhurst Court/Beaver Creek Commons Drive 02/09/2022

K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Supplemental Analysis - with Chapel Ridge Townes\Synchro\6 - Build PM.syn Synchro 10 Report
Kimley-Horn Page 1

Lane Group EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 10 14 47 278 20 101 67 594 304 164 863 23
Future Volume (vph) 10 14 47 278 20 101 67 594 304 164 863 23
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Width (ft) 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12
Grade (%) 0% 1% 3% -4%
Storage Length (ft) 0 0 275 0 275 0 170 0
Storage Lanes 0 0 1 1 1 0 1 0
Taper Length (ft) 25 50 125 170
Satd. Flow (prot) 0 1683 0 0 1770 1575 1743 3283 0 1805 1891 0
Flt Permitted 0.943 0.710 0.075 0.228
Satd. Flow (perm) 0 1598 0 0 1316 1575 138 3283 0 433 1891 0
Right Turn on Red Yes Yes Yes Yes
Satd. Flow (RTOR) 48 103 93 1
Link Speed (mph) 25 35 45 45
Link Distance (ft) 513 641 1004 905
Travel Time (s) 14.0 12.5 15.2 13.7
Confl. Peds. (#/hr) 1 1 1 1
Confl. Bikes (#/hr)
Peak Hour Factor 0.98 0.98 0.98 0.98 0.98 0.98 0.98 0.98 0.98 0.98 0.98 0.98
Growth Factor 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
Heavy Vehicles (%) 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2%
Bus Blockages (#/hr) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Parking  (#/hr)
Mid-Block Traffic (%) 0% 0% 0% 0%
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 0 72 0 0 304 103 68 916 0 167 904 0
Turn Type Perm NA pm+pt NA pm+ov D.P+P NA D.P+P NA
Protected Phases 4 3 8 1 5 2 1 6
Permitted Phases 4 8 8 6 2
Detector Phase 4 4 3 8 1 5 2 1 6
Switch Phase
Minimum Initial (s) 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 12.0 7.0 12.0
Minimum Split (s) 30.0 30.0 14.0 30.0 14.0 14.0 30.0 14.0 25.0
Total Split (s) 25.0 25.0 20.0 45.0 20.0 15.0 55.0 20.0 60.0
Total Split (%) 20.8% 20.8% 16.7% 37.5% 16.7% 12.5% 45.8% 16.7% 50.0%
Yellow Time (s) 3.2 3.2 3.0 3.1 3.0 3.0 4.9 3.0 4.9
All-Red Time (s) 2.6 2.6 2.8 2.7 2.8 2.4 1.6 2.8 1.6
Lost Time Adjust (s) -0.8 -0.8 -0.8 -0.4 -1.5 -0.8 -1.5
Total Lost Time (s) 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0
Lead/Lag Lead Lead Lag Lead Lead Lag Lead Lag
Lead-Lag Optimize? Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
Recall Mode None None None None None None C-Max None C-Max
Act Effct Green (s) 33.0 33.0 48.2 73.0 61.8 72.0 66.7
Actuated g/C Ratio 0.28 0.28 0.40 0.61 0.52 0.60 0.56
v/c Ratio 0.15 0.84 0.15 0.36 0.53 0.44 0.86
Control Delay 13.1 60.9 3.7 15.6 20.0 13.7 35.4
Queue Delay 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total Delay 13.1 60.9 3.7 15.6 20.0 13.7 35.4
LOS B E A B B B D
Approach Delay 13.1 46.4 19.7 32.0
Approach LOS B D B C
Queue Length 50th (ft) 14 219 0 19 218 49 608
Queue Length 95th (ft) 46 312 29 43 328 91 #999
Internal Link Dist (ft) 433 561 924 825
Turn Bay Length (ft) 275 170
Base Capacity (vph) 473 438 752 219 1737 445 1051
Starvation Cap Reductn 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Spillback Cap Reductn 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Storage Cap Reductn 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Reduced v/c Ratio 0.15 0.69 0.14 0.31 0.53 0.38 0.86

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Cycle Length: 120
Actuated Cycle Length: 120

- Page 974 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments Supplemental Analysis: Build PM
1: Kelly Road & Wendhurst Court/Beaver Creek Commons Drive 02/09/2022

K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Supplemental Analysis - with Chapel Ridge Townes\Synchro\6 - Build PM.syn Synchro 10 Report
Kimley-Horn Page 2

Offset: 0 (0%), Referenced to phase 2:NBSB and 6:NBSB, Start of Green
Natural Cycle: 110
Control Type: Actuated-Coordinated
Maximum v/c Ratio: 0.86
Intersection Signal Delay: 29.0 Intersection LOS: C
Intersection Capacity Utilization 88.3% ICU Level of Service E
Analysis Period (min) 15
Description: Signal No. 052254
#    95th percentile volume exceeds capacity, queue may be longer.
     Queue shown is maximum after two cycles.

Splits and Phases:     1: Kelly Road & Wendhurst Court/Beaver Creek Commons Drive

- Page 975 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments Supplemental Analysis: Build PM
2: Olive Chapel Road & Chapel Ridge Road 02/09/2022

K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Supplemental Analysis - with Chapel Ridge Townes\Synchro\6 - Build PM.syn Synchro 10 Report
Kimley-Horn Page 3

Lane Group EBL EBT WBT WBR SBL SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 45 500 591 53 66 71
Future Volume (vph) 45 500 591 53 66 71
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Width (ft) 12 12 12 12 12 12
Grade (%) 0% 0% 0%
Storage Length (ft) 150 0 75 0
Storage Lanes 1 0 1 1
Taper Length (ft) 300 25
Satd. Flow (prot) 1770 1863 1842 0 1770 1583
Flt Permitted 0.950 0.950
Satd. Flow (perm) 1770 1863 1842 0 1770 1583
Link Speed (mph) 45 45 25
Link Distance (ft) 797 812 509
Travel Time (s) 12.1 12.3 13.9
Confl. Peds. (#/hr)
Confl. Bikes (#/hr)
Peak Hour Factor 0.93 0.93 0.93 0.93 0.93 0.93
Growth Factor 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
Heavy Vehicles (%) 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2%
Bus Blockages (#/hr) 0 0 0 0 0 0
Parking  (#/hr)
Mid-Block Traffic (%) 0% 0% 0%
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 48 538 692 0 71 76
Sign Control Free Free Stop

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Control Type: Unsignalized
Intersection Capacity Utilization 47.7% ICU Level of Service A
Analysis Period (min) 15

- Page 976 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments Supplemental Analysis: Build PM
2: Olive Chapel Road & Chapel Ridge Road 02/09/2022

K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Supplemental Analysis - with Chapel Ridge Townes\Synchro\6 - Build PM.syn Synchro 10 Report
Kimley-Horn Page 4

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 2.1

Movement EBL EBT WBT WBR SBL SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 45 500 591 53 66 71
Future Vol, veh/h 45 500 591 53 66 71
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Free Free Free Free Stop Stop
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length 150 - - - 75 0
Veh in Median Storage, # - 0 0 - 0 -
Grade, % - 0 0 - 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 93 93 93 93 93 93
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 48 538 635 57 71 76

Major/Minor Major1 Major2 Minor2
Conflicting Flow All 692 0 - 0 1298 664
          Stage 1 - - - - 664 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 634 -
Critical Hdwy 4.12 - - - 6.42 6.22
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 - - - - 5.42 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 - - - - 5.42 -
Follow-up Hdwy 2.218 - - - 3.518 3.318
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 903 - - - 178 461
          Stage 1 - - - - 512 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 529 -
Platoon blocked, % - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver 903 - - - 169 461
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver - - - - 308 -
          Stage 1 - - - - 485 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 529 -

Approach EB WB SB
HCM Control Delay, s 0.8 0 17.2
HCM LOS C

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt EBL EBT WBT WBR SBLn1 SBLn2
Capacity (veh/h) 903 - - - 308 461
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.054 - - - 0.23 0.166
HCM Control Delay (s) 9.2 - - - 20.2 14.4
HCM Lane LOS A - - - C B
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0.2 - - - 0.9 0.6

- Page 977 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments Supplemental Analysis: Build PM
3: Chapel Ridge Road & Ackerman Hill Drive 02/09/2022

K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Supplemental Analysis - with Chapel Ridge Townes\Synchro\6 - Build PM.syn Synchro 10 Report
Kimley-Horn Page 5

Lane Group WBL WBR NBT NBR SBL SBT
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 17 28 36 32 47 26
Future Volume (vph) 17 28 36 32 47 26
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Width (ft) 12 12 12 12 12 12
Grade (%) 0% 0% 0%
Storage Length (ft) 0 0 0 0
Storage Lanes 1 0 0 0
Taper Length (ft) 25 25
Satd. Flow (prot) 1674 0 1744 0 0 1805
Flt Permitted 0.981 0.969
Satd. Flow (perm) 1674 0 1744 0 0 1805
Link Speed (mph) 25 25 25
Link Distance (ft) 292 213 210
Travel Time (s) 8.0 5.8 5.7
Confl. Peds. (#/hr)
Confl. Bikes (#/hr)
Peak Hour Factor 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90
Growth Factor 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
Heavy Vehicles (%) 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2%
Bus Blockages (#/hr) 0 0 0 0 0 0
Parking  (#/hr)
Mid-Block Traffic (%) 0% 0% 0%
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 50 0 76 0 0 81
Sign Control Stop Free Free

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Control Type: Unsignalized
Intersection Capacity Utilization 20.6% ICU Level of Service A
Analysis Period (min) 15

- Page 978 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments Supplemental Analysis: Build PM
3: Chapel Ridge Road & Ackerman Hill Drive 02/09/2022

K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Supplemental Analysis - with Chapel Ridge Townes\Synchro\6 - Build PM.syn Synchro 10 Report
Kimley-Horn Page 6

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 4.1

Movement WBL WBR NBT NBR SBL SBT
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 17 28 36 32 47 26
Future Vol, veh/h 17 28 36 32 47 26
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length 0 - - - - -
Veh in Median Storage, # 0 - 0 - - 0
Grade, % 0 - 0 - - 0
Peak Hour Factor 90 90 90 90 90 90
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 19 31 40 36 52 29

Major/Minor Minor1 Major1 Major2
Conflicting Flow All 191 58 0 0 76 0
          Stage 1 58 - - - - -
          Stage 2 133 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 6.42 6.22 - - 4.12 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 5.42 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 5.42 - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.518 3.318 - - 2.218 -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 798 1008 - - 1523 -
          Stage 1 965 - - - - -
          Stage 2 893 - - - - -
Platoon blocked, % - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver 770 1008 - - 1523 -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver 770 - - - - -
          Stage 1 965 - - - - -
          Stage 2 862 - - - - -

Approach WB NB SB
HCM Control Delay, s 9.2 0 4.8
HCM LOS A

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBT NBR WBLn1 SBL SBT
Capacity (veh/h) - - 903 1523 -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio - - 0.055 0.034 -
HCM Control Delay (s) - - 9.2 7.4 0
HCM Lane LOS - - A A A
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) - - 0.2 0.1 -

- Page 979 -



MOVEMENT SUMMARY
Site: 4 [Build-Out PM (Site Folder: General)]

Beaver Creek Commons Drive at Creekside Landing Drive
Site Category: Supp. Analysis - With Chapel Ridge Townhomes
Roundabout

Vehicle Movement Performance
INPUT

VOLUMES
DEMAND
FLOWS

95% BACK OF
QUEUE

Mov
ID

Turn Deg.
Satn

Aver.
Delay

Level of
Service

Prop.
Que

Effective
Stop
Rate

Aver.
No.

Cycles

Aver.
Speed

[ Total HV ] [ Total HV ] [ Veh. Dist ]
veh/h % veh/h % v/c sec veh ft mph

South: Creekside Landing Drive

3 L2 25 2.0 27 2.0 0.323 8.6 LOS A 1.5 37.6 0.64 0.64 0.64 22.9
8 T1 98 2.0 104 2.0 0.323 8.6 LOS A 1.5 37.6 0.64 0.64 0.64 22.8
18 R2 107 2.0 114 2.0 0.323 8.6 LOS A 1.5 37.6 0.64 0.64 0.64 22.4
Approach 230 2.0 245 2.0 0.323 8.6 LOS A 1.5 37.6 0.64 0.64 0.64 22.6

East: Beaver Creek Commons Drive

1 L2 74 2.0 79 2.0 0.541 10.3 LOS B 4.2 106.7 0.63 0.57 0.71 22.5
6 T1 257 2.0 273 2.0 0.541 10.3 LOS B 4.2 106.7 0.63 0.57 0.71 22.4
16 R2 189 2.0 201 2.0 0.541 10.3 LOS B 4.2 106.7 0.63 0.57 0.71 22.0
Approach 520 2.0 553 2.0 0.541 10.3 LOS B 4.2 106.7 0.63 0.57 0.71 22.3

North: Creekside Landing Drive

7 L2 153 2.0 163 2.0 0.552 11.4 LOS B 4.8 121.0 0.70 0.81 0.97 22.1
4 T1 160 2.0 170 2.0 0.552 11.4 LOS B 4.8 121.0 0.70 0.81 0.97 22.0
14 R2 160 2.0 170 2.0 0.552 11.4 LOS B 4.8 121.0 0.70 0.81 0.97 21.6
Approach 473 2.0 503 2.0 0.552 11.4 LOS B 4.8 121.0 0.70 0.81 0.97 21.9

West: Beaver Creek Commons Drive

5 L2 130 2.0 138 2.0 0.473 10.1 LOS B 3.2 80.3 0.66 0.71 0.81 22.5
2 T1 241 2.0 256 2.0 0.473 10.1 LOS B 3.2 80.3 0.66 0.71 0.81 22.4
12 R2 21 2.0 22 2.0 0.473 10.1 LOS B 3.2 80.3 0.66 0.71 0.81 22.0
Approach 392 2.0 417 2.0 0.473 10.1 LOS B 3.2 80.3 0.66 0.71 0.81 22.4

All Vehicles 1615 2.0 1718 2.0 0.552 10.3 LOS B 4.8 121.0 0.66 0.68 0.80 22.3

Site Level of Service (LOS) Method: Delay & v/c (HCM 6). Site LOS Method is specified in the Parameter Settings dialog (Site tab).
Roundabout LOS Method: Same as Sign Control.
Vehicle movement LOS values are based on average delay and v/c ratio (degree of saturation) per movement.
LOS F will result if v/c > 1 irrespective of movement delay value (does not apply for approaches and intersection).
Intersection and Approach LOS values are based on average delay for all movements (v/c not used as specified in HCM 6).
Roundabout Capacity Model: US HCM 6.
Delay Model: HCM Delay Formula (Geometric Delay is not included).
Queue Model: HCM Queue Formula.
Gap-Acceptance Capacity: Traditional M1.
HV (%) values are calculated for All Movement Classes of All Heavy Vehicle Model Designation.

SIDRA INTERSECTION 9.0 | Copyright © 2000-2020 Akcelik and Associates Pty Ltd | sidrasolutions.com
Organisation: KIMLEY-HORN & ASSOCIATES INC | Licence: NETWORK / Enterprise | Processed: Wednesday, February 9, 2022 2:20:11 PM
Project: K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Supplemental Analysis - with Chapel Ridge Townes\Sidra\BC Commons @
Creekside Landing.sip9

- Page 980 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments Supplemental Analysis: Build PM
5: Beaver Creek Commons Drive & Proposed Site Access 02/09/2022

K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Supplemental Analysis - with Chapel Ridge Townes\Synchro\6 - Build PM.syn Synchro 10 Report
Kimley-Horn Page 8

Lane Group WBL WBR NBT NBR SBL SBT
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 39 39 400 64 45 377
Future Volume (vph) 39 39 400 64 45 377
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Width (ft) 12 12 12 12 12 12
Grade (%) 0% 0% 0%
Storage Length (ft) 0 0 0 100
Storage Lanes 1 0 0 0
Taper Length (ft) 25 100
Satd. Flow (prot) 1694 0 1827 0 0 1853
Flt Permitted 0.976 0.995
Satd. Flow (perm) 1694 0 1827 0 0 1853
Link Speed (mph) 25 35 35
Link Distance (ft) 432 357 558
Travel Time (s) 11.8 7.0 10.9
Confl. Peds. (#/hr)
Confl. Bikes (#/hr)
Peak Hour Factor 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90
Growth Factor 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
Heavy Vehicles (%) 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2%
Bus Blockages (#/hr) 0 0 0 0 0 0
Parking  (#/hr)
Mid-Block Traffic (%) 0% 0% 0%
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 86 0 515 0 0 469
Sign Control Stop Free Free

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Control Type: Unsignalized
Intersection Capacity Utilization 61.8% ICU Level of Service B
Analysis Period (min) 15

- Page 981 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments Supplemental Analysis: Build PM
5: Beaver Creek Commons Drive & Proposed Site Access 02/09/2022

K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Supplemental Analysis - with Chapel Ridge Townes\Synchro\6 - Build PM.syn Synchro 10 Report
Kimley-Horn Page 9

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 1.6

Movement WBL WBR NBT NBR SBL SBT
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 39 39 400 64 45 377
Future Vol, veh/h 39 39 400 64 45 377
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length 0 - - - - -
Veh in Median Storage, # 0 - 0 - - 0
Grade, % 0 - 0 - - 0
Peak Hour Factor 90 90 90 90 90 90
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 43 43 444 71 50 419

Major/Minor Minor1 Major1 Major2
Conflicting Flow All 999 480 0 0 515 0
          Stage 1 480 - - - - -
          Stage 2 519 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 6.42 6.22 - - 4.12 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 5.42 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 5.42 - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.518 3.318 - - 2.218 -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 270 586 - - 1051 -
          Stage 1 622 - - - - -
          Stage 2 597 - - - - -
Platoon blocked, % - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver 253 586 - - 1051 -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver 384 - - - - -
          Stage 1 622 - - - - -
          Stage 2 560 - - - - -

Approach WB NB SB
HCM Control Delay, s 14.5 0 0.9
HCM LOS B

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBT NBR WBLn1 SBL SBT
Capacity (veh/h) - - 464 1051 -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio - - 0.187 0.048 -
HCM Control Delay (s) - - 14.5 8.6 0
HCM Lane LOS - - B A A
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) - - 0.7 0.1 -

- Page 982 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments Supplemental Analysis: Build PM
6: Chapel Ridge Road & Proposed Site Access/North Site Driveway 02/09/2022

K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Supplemental Analysis - with Chapel Ridge Townes\Synchro\6 - Build PM.syn Synchro 10 Report
Kimley-Horn Page 10

Lane Group EBT EBR WBL WBT NBL NBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 18 91 4 11 67 4
Future Volume (vph) 18 91 4 11 67 4
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Width (ft) 12 12 12 12 12 12
Grade (%) 0% 0% 0%
Storage Length (ft) 0 0 0 0
Storage Lanes 0 0 1 0
Taper Length (ft) 25 25
Satd. Flow (prot) 1652 0 0 1840 1766 0
Flt Permitted 0.988 0.955
Satd. Flow (perm) 1652 0 0 1840 1766 0
Link Speed (mph) 25 25 25
Link Distance (ft) 432 273 553
Travel Time (s) 11.8 7.4 15.1
Confl. Peds. (#/hr)
Confl. Bikes (#/hr)
Peak Hour Factor 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90
Growth Factor 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
Heavy Vehicles (%) 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2%
Bus Blockages (#/hr) 0 0 0 0 0 0
Parking  (#/hr)
Mid-Block Traffic (%) 0% 0% 0%
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 121 0 0 16 78 0
Sign Control Free Free Stop

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Control Type: Unsignalized
Intersection Capacity Utilization 17.2% ICU Level of Service A
Analysis Period (min) 15

- Page 983 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments Supplemental Analysis: Build PM
6: Chapel Ridge Road & Proposed Site Access/North Site Driveway 02/09/2022

K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Supplemental Analysis - with Chapel Ridge Townes\Synchro\6 - Build PM.syn Synchro 10 Report
Kimley-Horn Page 11

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 3.5

Movement EBT EBR WBL WBT NBL NBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 18 91 4 11 67 4
Future Vol, veh/h 18 91 4 11 67 4
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Free Free Free Free Stop Stop
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length - - - - 0 -
Veh in Median Storage, # 0 - - 0 0 -
Grade, % 0 - - 0 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 90 90 90 90 90 90
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 20 101 4 12 74 4

Major/Minor Major1 Major2 Minor1
Conflicting Flow All 0 0 121 0 91 71
          Stage 1 - - - - 71 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 20 -
Critical Hdwy - - 4.12 - 6.42 6.22
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 - - - - 5.42 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 - - - - 5.42 -
Follow-up Hdwy - - 2.218 - 3.518 3.318
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver - - 1467 - 909 991
          Stage 1 - - - - 952 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 1003 -
Platoon blocked, % - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver - - 1467 - 906 991
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver - - - - 906 -
          Stage 1 - - - - 952 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 1000 -

Approach EB WB NB
HCM Control Delay, s 0 2 9.3
HCM LOS A

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBLn1 EBT EBR WBL WBT
Capacity (veh/h) 910 - - 1467 -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.087 - - 0.003 -
HCM Control Delay (s) 9.3 - - 7.5 0
HCM Lane LOS A - - A A
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0.3 - - 0 -

- Page 984 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments Supplemental Analysis: Build PM
7: Central Site Driveway & Chapel Ridge Road 02/09/2022

K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Supplemental Analysis - with Chapel Ridge Townes\Synchro\6 - Build PM.syn Synchro 10 Report
Kimley-Horn Page 12

Lane Group EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 5 64 23 5 49 9 14 4 4 6 4 4
Future Volume (vph) 5 64 23 5 49 9 14 4 4 6 4 4
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Width (ft) 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12
Grade (%) 0% 0% 0% 0%
Storage Length (ft) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Storage Lanes 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Taper Length (ft) 25 25 25 25
Satd. Flow (prot) 0 1794 0 0 1820 0 0 1762 0 0 1754 0
Flt Permitted 0.997 0.996 0.968 0.977
Satd. Flow (perm) 0 1794 0 0 1820 0 0 1762 0 0 1754 0
Link Speed (mph) 25 25 25 25
Link Distance (ft) 553 210 358 340
Travel Time (s) 15.1 5.7 9.8 9.3
Confl. Peds. (#/hr)
Confl. Bikes (#/hr)
Peak Hour Factor 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90
Growth Factor 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
Heavy Vehicles (%) 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2%
Bus Blockages (#/hr) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Parking  (#/hr)
Mid-Block Traffic (%) 0% 0% 0% 0%
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 0 103 0 0 70 0 0 24 0 0 15 0
Sign Control Free Free Stop Stop

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Control Type: Unsignalized
Intersection Capacity Utilization 16.1% ICU Level of Service A
Analysis Period (min) 15

- Page 985 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments Supplemental Analysis: Build PM
7: Central Site Driveway & Chapel Ridge Road 02/09/2022

K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Supplemental Analysis - with Chapel Ridge Townes\Synchro\6 - Build PM.syn Synchro 10 Report
Kimley-Horn Page 13

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 2.2

Movement EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 5 64 23 5 49 9 14 4 4 6 4 4
Future Vol, veh/h 5 64 23 5 49 9 14 4 4 6 4 4
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Free Free Free Free Free Free Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop
RT Channelized - - None - - None - - None - - None
Storage Length - - - - - - - - - - - -
Veh in Median Storage, # - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Grade, % - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 6 71 26 6 54 10 16 4 4 7 4 4

Major/Minor Major1 Major2 Minor1 Minor2
Conflicting Flow All 64 0 0 97 0 0 171 172 84 171 180 59
          Stage 1 - - - - - - 96 96 - 71 71 -
          Stage 2 - - - - - - 75 76 - 100 109 -
Critical Hdwy 4.12 - - 4.12 - - 7.12 6.52 6.22 7.12 6.52 6.22
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 - - - - - - 6.12 5.52 - 6.12 5.52 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 - - - - - - 6.12 5.52 - 6.12 5.52 -
Follow-up Hdwy 2.218 - - 2.218 - - 3.518 4.018 3.318 3.518 4.018 3.318
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 1538 - - 1496 - - 792 721 975 792 714 1007
          Stage 1 - - - - - - 911 815 - 939 836 -
          Stage 2 - - - - - - 934 832 - 906 805 -
Platoon blocked, % - - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver 1538 - - 1496 - - 780 715 975 780 708 1007
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver - - - - - - 780 715 - 780 708 -
          Stage 1 - - - - - - 907 812 - 935 833 -
          Stage 2 - - - - - - 921 829 - 893 802 -

Approach EB WB NB SB
HCM Control Delay, s 0.4 0.6 9.7 9.5
HCM LOS A A

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBLn1 EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR SBLn1
Capacity (veh/h) 796 1538 - - 1496 - - 809
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.031 0.004 - - 0.004 - - 0.019
HCM Control Delay (s) 9.7 7.3 0 - 7.4 0 - 9.5
HCM Lane LOS A A A - A A - A
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0.1 0 - - 0 - - 0.1

- Page 986 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments Supplemental Analysis: Build PM
8: Chapel Ridge Road & South Site Driveway 02/09/2022

K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Supplemental Analysis - with Chapel Ridge Townes\Synchro\6 - Build PM.syn Synchro 10 Report
Kimley-Horn Page 14

Lane Group EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 4 4 6 4 4 4 9 64 5 5 38 5
Future Volume (vph) 4 4 6 4 4 4 9 64 5 5 38 5
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Width (ft) 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12
Grade (%) 0% 0% 0% 0%
Storage Length (ft) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Storage Lanes 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Taper Length (ft) 25 25 25 25
Satd. Flow (prot) 0 1723 0 0 1750 0 0 1835 0 0 1824 0
Flt Permitted 0.987 0.984 0.994 0.994
Satd. Flow (perm) 0 1723 0 0 1750 0 0 1835 0 0 1824 0
Link Speed (mph) 25 25 25 25
Link Distance (ft) 248 378 405 213
Travel Time (s) 6.8 10.3 11.0 5.8
Confl. Peds. (#/hr)
Confl. Bikes (#/hr)
Peak Hour Factor 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90
Growth Factor 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
Heavy Vehicles (%) 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2%
Bus Blockages (#/hr) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Parking  (#/hr)
Mid-Block Traffic (%) 0% 0% 0% 0%
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 0 15 0 0 12 0 0 87 0 0 54 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Free Free

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Control Type: Unsignalized
Intersection Capacity Utilization 15.7% ICU Level of Service A
Analysis Period (min) 15

- Page 987 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments Supplemental Analysis: Build PM
8: Chapel Ridge Road & South Site Driveway 02/09/2022

K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Supplemental Analysis - with Chapel Ridge Townes\Synchro\6 - Build PM.syn Synchro 10 Report
Kimley-Horn Page 15

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 2.3

Movement EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 4 4 6 4 4 4 9 64 5 5 38 5
Future Vol, veh/h 4 4 6 4 4 4 9 64 5 5 38 5
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Free Free Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - - None - - None - - None - - None
Storage Length - - - - - - - - - - - -
Veh in Median Storage, # - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Grade, % - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 4 4 7 4 4 4 10 71 6 6 42 6

Major/Minor Minor2 Minor1 Major1 Major2
Conflicting Flow All 155 154 45 157 154 74 48 0 0 77 0 0
          Stage 1 57 57 - 94 94 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 98 97 - 63 60 - - - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 7.12 6.52 6.22 7.12 6.52 6.22 4.12 - - 4.12 - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 6.12 5.52 - 6.12 5.52 - - - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 6.12 5.52 - 6.12 5.52 - - - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.518 4.018 3.318 3.518 4.018 3.318 2.218 - - 2.218 - -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 812 738 1025 809 738 988 1559 - - 1522 - -
          Stage 1 955 847 - 913 817 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 908 815 - 948 845 - - - - - - -
Platoon blocked, % - - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver 798 730 1025 794 730 988 1559 - - 1522 - -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver 798 730 - 794 730 - - - - - - -
          Stage 1 948 844 - 907 811 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 893 809 - 933 842 - - - - - - -

Approach EB WB NB SB
HCM Control Delay, s 9.3 9.4 0.8 0.8
HCM LOS A A

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBL NBT NBR EBLn1 WBLn1 SBL SBT SBR
Capacity (veh/h) 1559 - - 856 824 1522 - -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.006 - - 0.018 0.016 0.004 - -
HCM Control Delay (s) 7.3 0 - 9.3 9.4 7.4 0 -
HCM Lane LOS A A - A A A A -
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0 - - 0.1 0 0 - -

- Page 988 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments Supplemental Analysis: Build PM
9: Site Driveway & Ackerman Hill Drive 02/09/2022

K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Supplemental Analysis - with Chapel Ridge Townes\Synchro\6 - Build PM.syn Synchro 10 Report
Kimley-Horn Page 16

Lane Group EBT EBR WBL WBT NBL NBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 72 9 4 43 6 4
Future Volume (vph) 72 9 4 43 6 4
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Width (ft) 12 12 12 12 12 12
Grade (%) 0% 0% 0%
Storage Length (ft) 0 0 0 0
Storage Lanes 0 0 1 0
Taper Length (ft) 25 25
Satd. Flow (prot) 1835 0 0 1855 1717 0
Flt Permitted 0.996 0.969
Satd. Flow (perm) 1835 0 0 1855 1717 0
Link Speed (mph) 25 25 25
Link Distance (ft) 292 367 225
Travel Time (s) 8.0 10.0 6.1
Confl. Peds. (#/hr)
Confl. Bikes (#/hr)
Peak Hour Factor 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90
Growth Factor 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
Heavy Vehicles (%) 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2%
Bus Blockages (#/hr) 0 0 0 0 0 0
Parking  (#/hr)
Mid-Block Traffic (%) 0% 0% 0%
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 90 0 0 52 11 0
Sign Control Free Free Stop

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Control Type: Unsignalized
Intersection Capacity Utilization 15.6% ICU Level of Service A
Analysis Period (min) 15

- Page 989 -



Chapel Ridge Apartments Supplemental Analysis: Build PM
9: Site Driveway & Ackerman Hill Drive 02/09/2022

K:\DUR_LDEV\011270040 Chapel Ridge Apex\T4 - Analysis\Supplemental Analysis - with Chapel Ridge Townes\Synchro\6 - Build PM.syn Synchro 10 Report
Kimley-Horn Page 17

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 0.9

Movement EBT EBR WBL WBT NBL NBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 72 9 4 43 6 4
Future Vol, veh/h 72 9 4 43 6 4
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Free Free Free Free Stop Stop
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length - - - - 0 -
Veh in Median Storage, # 0 - - 0 0 -
Grade, % 0 - - 0 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 90 90 90 90 90 90
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 80 10 4 48 7 4

Major/Minor Major1 Major2 Minor1
Conflicting Flow All 0 0 90 0 141 85
          Stage 1 - - - - 85 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 56 -
Critical Hdwy - - 4.12 - 6.42 6.22
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 - - - - 5.42 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 - - - - 5.42 -
Follow-up Hdwy - - 2.218 - 3.518 3.318
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver - - 1505 - 852 974
          Stage 1 - - - - 938 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 967 -
Platoon blocked, % - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver - - 1505 - 849 974
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver - - - - 849 -
          Stage 1 - - - - 938 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 964 -

Approach EB WB NB
HCM Control Delay, s 0 0.6 9.1
HCM LOS A

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBLn1 EBT EBR WBL WBT
Capacity (veh/h) 895 - - 1505 -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.012 - - 0.003 -
HCM Control Delay (s) 9.1 - - 7.4 0
HCM Lane LOS A - - A A
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0 - - 0 -

- Page 990 -



Appendix N:
Traffic Signal Plans

- Page 991 -



- Page 992 -



PLANNING BOARD REPORT TO TOWN COUNCIL 
Rezoning Case:  
Planning Board Meeting Date: 

Page 1 Planning Board Report to Town Council 

Report Requirements:  
Per NCGS §160D-604(b), all proposed amendments to the zoning ordinance or zoning map shall be submitted to the 
Planning Board for review and comment. If no written report is received from the Planning Board within 30 days of referral 
of the amendment to the Planning Board, the Town Council may act on the amendment without the Planning Board report. 
The Town Council is not bound by the recommendations, if any, of the Planning Board. 
 
Per NCGS §160D-604(d), the Planning Board shall advise and comment on whether the proposed action is consistent with 
all applicable officially adopted plans, and provide a written recommendation to the Town Council that addresses plan 
consistency and other matters as deemed appropriate by the Planning Board, but a comment by the Planning Board that a 
proposed amendment is inconsistent with the officially adopted plans shall not preclude consideration or approval of the 
proposed amendment by the Town Council. 
 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION:  
Acreage:  
PIN(s): 
 

 

Current Zoning: 
 

 

Proposed Zoning:  
 

 

Current 2045 Land Use Map:  
 

If rezoned as proposed, the 2045 Land Use Map Designation will change to: 
  
Town Limits:  

 

 

Applicable Officially Adopted Plans: 
 

The Board must state whether the project is consistent or inconsistent with the following officially adopted plans, 
if applicable. Applicable plans have a check mark next to them.  

 2045 Land Use Map 
 Consistent  Inconsistent Reason:  

 
 
 
 
 

 Apex Transportation Plan 
 Consistent  Inconsistent Reason:  

 
 
 
 
 

 Parks, Recreation, Open Space, and Greenways Plan 
 Consistent  Inconsistent Reason:  

 
 
 
 
 

July 11, 2022

22CZ07 Chapel Ridge North PUD

+/- 20.62
0732340602, 0732347912, 0732343920, 0732354594, 0732352538, 

RR

PUD-CZ

Medium Density Residential

Inside the ETJ

High Density Residential

If rezoned, the 2045 Land Use

Map will automatically be amended to High Density Residential.

Planning Board recommended

approval of the associated Transportation Plan amendment.

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

0732249869, & 0732256180

- Page 993 -



PLANNING BOARD REPORT TO TOWN COUNCIL 
Rezoning Case:  
Planning Board Meeting Date: 

Page 2 Planning Board Report to Town Council 

Legislative Considerations: 
The applicant shall propose site-specific standards and conditions that take into account the following 
considerations, which are considerations that are relevant to the legislative determination of whether or not the 
proposed conditional zoning district rezoning request is in the public interest.  These considerations do not 
exclude the legislative consideration of any other factor that is relevant to the public interest. 
 
1. Consistency with 2045 Land Use Plan. The proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use’s appropriateness 

for its proposed location and consistency with the purposes, goals, objectives, and policies of the 2045 Land 
Use Plan. 

 Consistent  Inconsistent Reason:  
  
 
 
 
 
2. Compatibility. The proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use’s appropriateness for its proposed 

location and compatibility with the character of surrounding land uses. 
 Consistent  Inconsistent Reason:  

 
 
 
 
 
3. Zoning district supplemental standards. The proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use’s compliance 

with Sec. 4.4 Supplemental Standards, if applicable. 
 Consistent  Inconsistent Reason:  

 
 
 
 
 
4. Design minimizes adverse impact. The design of the proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use’s 

minimization of adverse effects, including visual impact of the proposed use on adjacent lands; and 
avoidance of significant adverse impacts on surrounding lands regarding trash, traffic, service delivery, 
parking and loading, odors, noise, glare, and vibration and not create a nuisance. 

 Consistent  Inconsistent Reason:  
 
 
 
 
 
5. Design minimizes environmental impact. The proposed Conditional Zoning District use’s minimization of 

environmental impacts and protection from significant deterioration of water and air resources, wildlife 
habitat, scenic resources, and other natural resources. 

 Consistent  Inconsistent Reason:  
 
 
 
 
  

If  rezoned, the 2045 Land Use

Map will automatically be amended to High Density Residential.

July 11, 2022

22CZ07 Chapel Ridge North PUD

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

- Page 994 -



PLANNING BOARD REPORT TO TOWN COUNCIL 
Rezoning Case:  
Planning Board Meeting Date: 

Page 3 Planning Board Report to Town Council 

 
6. Impact on public facilities. The proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use’s avoidance of having adverse 

impacts on public facilities and services, including roads, potable water and wastewater facilities, parks, 
schools, police, fire and EMS facilities. 

 Consistent  Inconsistent Reason:  
 
 
 
 
 
7. Health, safety, and welfare. The proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use’s effect on the health, 

safety, or welfare of the residents of the Town or its ETJ. 
 Consistent  Inconsistent Reason:  

 
 
 
 
 
8. Detrimental to adjacent properties.  Whether the proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use is 

substantially detrimental to adjacent properties. 
 Consistent  Inconsistent Reason:  

 
 
 
 
 
9. Not constitute nuisance or hazard.  Whether the proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use constitutes 

a nuisance or hazard due to traffic impact or noise, or because of the number of persons who will be using 
the Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use. 

 Consistent  Inconsistent Reason:  
 
 
 
 
 
10. Other relevant standards of this Ordinance.  Whether the proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use 

complies with all standards imposed on it by all other applicable provisions of this Ordinance for use, 
layout, and general development characteristics. 

 Consistent  Inconsistent Reason:  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

July 11, 2022

22CZ07 Chapel Ridge North PUD

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

- Page 995 -



PLANNING BOARD REPORT TO TOWN COUNCIL 
Rezoning Case:  
Planning Board Meeting Date: 

Page 4 Planning Board Report to Town Council 

Planning Board Recommendation: 
 

Motion:  

Introduced by Planning Board member:  

Seconded by Planning Board member:  

  
 Approval: the project is consistent with all applicable officially adopted plans and the applicable legislative 

considerations listed above. 
 

 Approval with conditions: the project is not consistent with all applicable officially adopted plans and/or the 
applicable legislative considerations as noted above, so the following conditions are recommended to be 
included in the project in order to make it fully consistent: 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

  
 Denial: the project is not consistent with all applicable officially adopted plans and/or the applicable 

legislative considerations as noted above. 
  
  

 With ____ Planning Board Member(s) voting “aye” 
 

With ____ Planning Board Member(s) voting “no” 
  

Reasons for dissenting votes: 
  

  

  

  

  
This report reflects the recommendation of the Planning Board, this the  day of  2022. 
  
Attest:  
 
 

 

   
Reg  Skinner, Planning Board Chair  Dianne Khin, Director of Planning and 

Community Development 

Dianne Khin Digitally signed by Dianne Khin 
Date: 2022.07.11 20:44:09 
-04'00'

To recommend approval with conditions as presented.
Keith Braswell
Mark Steele

July 11, 2022

22CZ07 Chapel Ridge North PUD

✔

Conditions as presented.

4

2

Tina Sherman - lack of cohesion and lack of communication on the Town's part.
Sarah Soh - agree with Tina, plus insufficient space in schools and incompatible architectural context and
scale.

11th July

- Page 996 -



- Page 997 -



- Page 998 -



- Page 999 -



 TOWN OF APEX 
POST OFFICE BOX 250 
APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 27502 
PHONE 919-249-3426 

 

PUBLIC NOTIFICATION 
OF PUBLIC HEARINGS 

CONDITIONAL ZONING #22CZ07 
Chapel Ridge North PUD 

 

Published Dates: June 24 – July 11, 2022 

Pursuant to the provisions of North Carolina General Statutes §160D-602 and to the Town of Apex Unified Development 
Ordinance (UDO) Section 2.2.11, notice is hereby given of public hearings before the Planning Board of the Town of Apex. The 
purpose of these hearings is to consider the following: 

Applicant: High Street District Development, Inc. 
Authorized Agent:  Joshua Dix 
Property Addresses: 1200, 1204, 1205, 1209, 1220, 1225 Chapel Ridge Rd and 1512 Clark Farm Rd 
Acreage: ±20.62 acres   
Property Identification Numbers (PINs): 0732340602, 0732347912, 0732343920, 0732354594, 0732352538, 
0732249869, & 0732256180. 
Current 2045 Land Use Map Designation: Medium Density Residential  
If rezoned as proposed, the 2045 Land Use Map Designation will change to: High Density Residential 
Existing Zoning of Properties:  Rural Residential 
Proposed Zoning of Properties: Planned Unit Development-Conditional Zoning (PUD-CZ) 

Public Hearing Location:  Apex Town Hall  
                                              Council Chamber, 2nd Floor 
                                              73 Hunter Street, Apex, North Carolina  

Planning Board Public Hearing Date and Time:  July 11, 2022   4:30 PM 
You may attend the meeting in person or view the meeting through the Town’s YouTube livestream 
at: https://www.youtube.com/c/townofapexgov. Please visit www.apexnc.org on the day of the meeting to 
confirm whether the meeting will be held in-person or remotely. 

If you are unable to attend, you may provide a written statement by email to public.hearing@apexnc.org, or 
submit it to the clerk of the Planning Board, Jeri Pederson (73 Hunter Street or USPS mail - P.O. Box 250, Apex, NC 
27502), at least two business days prior to the Planning Board vote. You must provide your name and address for 
the record. The written statements will be delivered to the Planning Board prior to their vote. Please include the 
Public Hearing name in the subject line. 

In the event that the Planning Board meeting is held remotely or with at least one member attending virtually, 
written comments may be submitted up to 24 hours prior to the scheduled time of the meeting per NCGS §166A-
19.24 according to the methods specified above. Virtual meetings may be viewed via the Town’s YouTube 
livestream at https://www.youtube.com/c/townofapexgov. 

A separate notice of the Town Council public hearing on this project will be mailed and posted in order to comply 
with State public notice requirements. 

Vicinity Map:  

 
Property owners, tenants, and neighborhood associations within 300 feet of the proposed conditional zoning have been sent 
this notice via first class mail. All interested parties may submit comments with respect to the application by the means specified 
above. In addition to the above map, the location of the property may be viewed online at https://maps.raleighnc.gov/imaps. 
The 2045 Land Use Map may be viewed online at www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/478. You may call 919-249-3426, 
Department of Planning and Community Development, with questions or for further information. To view the petition and 
related documents on-line: https://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/38521  

Dianne F. Khin, AICP 
Director of Planning and Community Development 

- Page 1000 -

https://www.youtube.com/c/townofapexgov
http://www.apexnc.org/
mailto:public.hearing@apexnc.org
https://www.youtube.com/c/townofapexgov
https://maps.raleighnc.gov/imaps
https://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/478/2045-Land-Use-Map-PDF
https://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/38521


 

TOWN OF APEX 
PO BOX 250 
APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 27502 
TELÉFONO 919-249-3426 
 

NOTIFICACIÓN PÚBLICA DE AUDIENCIAS PÚBLICAS 
ORDENAMIENTO TERRITORIAL CONDICIONAL #22CZ07 

Chapel Ridge North PUD (Desarrollo de Unidad Planificada) 
 

 

Fechas de publicación: 24 de junio - 11 de julio de 2022 

De conformidad con las disposiciones de los Estatutos Generales de Carolina del Norte §160D-602 y con la Sección 2.2.11 de la 
Ordenanza de Desarrollo Unificado (UDO) del ayuntamiento de Apex, por la presente se notifican las audiencias públicas ante 
la Junta de Planificación de Apex. El propósito de estas audiencias es considerar lo siguiente: 
 
Solicitante: High Street District Development, Inc. 
Agente autorizado: Joshua Dix 
Dirección de las propiedades: 1200, 1204, 1205, 1209, 1220, 1225 Chapel Ridge Rd, and 1512 Clark Farm Rd 
Superficie: ±20.62 acres  
Números de identificación de las propiedades: 0732340602, 0732347912, 0732343920, 0732354594, 0732352538, 
0732249869, & 0732256180. 
Designación actual en el Mapa de Uso Territorial para 2045: Medium Density Residential 
Si se aprueba el cambio de zonificación como se propone, el Mapa de Uso Territorial para el 2045 cambiará a: 
High Density Residential 
Ordenamiento territorial existente de las propiedades: Rural Residential (RR)  
Ordenamiento territorial propuesto para las propiedades: Planned Unit Development-Conditional Zoning (PUD-
CZ) 
 
Lugar de la audiencia pública:  Ayuntamiento de Apex  

                                               Cámara del Consejo, 2º piso 
                                               73 Hunter Street, Apex, Carolina del Norte 

 
Fecha y hora de la audiencia pública de la Junta de Planificación: 11 de julio de 2022 4:30 P.M. 

Puede asistir a la reunión de manera presencial o seguir la transmisión en directo por YouTube a través del siguiente 
enlace: https://www.youtube.com/c/townofapexgov. Por favor visite  www.apexnc.org el día de la reunión para 
confirmar si la reunión se llevará a cabo de manera presencial o remotamente.   
 

Si no puede asistir, puede enviar una declaración escrita por correo electrónico a public.hearing@apexnc.org, o 
presentarla a la secretaría de la Junta de Planificación, Jeri Pederson (73 Hunter Street o por correo USPS a P.O. Box 
250, Apex, NC 27502), al menos dos días hábiles antes de la votación de la Junta de Planificación. Debe proporcionar 
su nombre y dirección para que conste en el registro. Las declaraciones escritas se entregarán a la Junta de Planificación 
antes de la votación. No olvide incluir el nombre de la audiencia pública en el asunto. 
 

En caso de que la reunión de la Junta de Planificación se lleve a cabo remotamente o que por lo menos uno de los 
miembros asista virtualmente, se permite presentar comentarios por escrito hasta 24 horas antes de la hora 
programada de la reunión según los estatutos de Carolina del Norte NCGS §166A-19.24 siguiendo los métodos 
especificados anteriormente. Las reuniones virtuales se pueden seguir en la transmisión en directo por YouTube a través 
del siguiente enlace: https://www.youtube.com/c/townofapexgov.  
 

De conformidad con los requisitos estatales de notificaciones públicas, se enviará por correo y se publicará por 
separado una notificación de la audiencia pública del Consejo Municipal sobre este proyecto. 

 
Mapa de las inmediaciones:  

 
Los propietarios, inquilinos y asociaciones de vecinos en un radio de 300 pies del Ordenamiento Territorial Condicional 
propuesto han recibido esta notificación por correo postal de primera clase. Todas las partes interesadas pueden presentar 
comentarios sobre la solicitud a través de los medios especificados anteriormente. La ubicación de la propiedad también puede 
verse aquí: https://maps.raleighnc.gov/imaps. Puede ver el Mapa de Uso Territorial para 2045 
aquí: www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/478. Si tiene preguntas o desea obtener más información, puede comunicarse 
con el Departamento de Planificación y Desarrollo Comunitario al 919-249-3426. Puede ver la solicitud y otros documentos 
relacionados aquí: https://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/38521 

Dianne F. Khin, AICP 
Directora de Planificación y Desarrollo Comunitario 

- Page 1001 -

https://www.youtube.com/c/townofapexgov
http://www.apexnc.org/
mailto:public.hearing@apexnc.org
https://www.youtube.com/c/townofapexgov
https://maps.raleighnc.gov/imaps
https://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/478/2045-Land-Use-Map-PDF
https://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/38521


- Page 1002 -



- Page 1003 -



- Page 1004 -



 

TOWN OF APEX 
POST OFFICE BOX 250 
APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 27502 
PHONE 919-249-3426 

PUBLIC NOTIFICATION 
OF PUBLIC HEARINGS 

CONDITIONAL ZONING #22CZ07 
Chapel Ridge North PUD 

 

Published Dates: July 1-July 26, 2022 

Pursuant to the provisions of North Carolina General Statutes §160D-602 and to the Town of Apex Unified Development 
Ordinance (UDO) Section 2.2.11, notice is hereby given of public hearings before the Town Council of the Town of Apex. The 
purpose of these hearings is to consider the following: 

Applicant: High Street District Development, Inc. 
Authorized Agent:  Joshua Dix 
Property Addresses: 1200, 1204, 1205, 1209, 1220, 1225 Chapel Ridge Rd and 1512 Clark Farm Rd 
Acreage: ±20.62 acres   
Property Identification Numbers (PINs): 0732340602, 0732347912, 0732343920, 0732354594, 0732352538, 
0732249869, & 0732256180. 
Current 2045 Land Use Map Designation: Medium Density Residential  
If rezoned as proposed, the 2045 Land Use Map Designation will change to: High Density Residential 
Existing Zoning of Properties:  Rural Residential (RR) 
Proposed Zoning of Properties: Planned Unit Development-Conditional Zoning (PUD-CZ) 

Public Hearing Location:  Apex Town Hall  
                                       Council Chamber, 2nd Floor 
                                       73 Hunter Street, Apex, North Carolina  

Comments received prior to the Planning Board public hearing will not be provided to the Town Council.  
Separate comments for the Town Council public hearing must be provided by the deadline specified below. 

Town Council Public Hearing Date and Time:  July 26, 2022    6:00 PM  
You may attend the meeting in person or view the meeting through the Town’s YouTube livestream 
at: https://www.youtube.com/c/townofapexgov. Please visit www.apexnc.org on the day of the meeting to 
confirm whether the meeting will be held in-person or remotely. 

If you are unable to attend, you may provide a written statement by email to public.hearing@apexnc.org, or 
submit it to the Office of the Town Clerk (73 Hunter Street or USPS mail - P.O. Box 250, Apex, NC 27502), at least 
two business days prior to the Town Council vote. You must provide your name and address for the record. The 
written statements will be delivered to the Town Council members prior to their vote. Please include the Public 
Hearing name in the subject line. 

In the event that the Town Council meeting is held remotely or with at least one member attending virtually, 
written comments may be submitted up to 24 hours prior to the scheduled time of the meeting per NCGS §166A-
19.24 according to the methods specified above. Virtual meetings may be viewed via the Town’s YouTube 
livestream at https://www.youtube.com/c/townofapexgov. 

Vicinity Map:  

 
Property owners, tenants, and neighborhood associations within 300 feet of the proposed conditional zoning have been sent 
this notice via first class mail. All interested parties may submit comments with respect to the application by the means specified 
above. In addition to the above map, the location of the property may be viewed online at https://maps.raleighnc.gov/imaps. 
The 2045 Land Use Map may be viewed online at www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/478. You may call 919-249-3426, 
Department of Planning and Community Development, with questions or for further information. To view the petition and 
related documents on-line: https://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/38521 

Dianne F. Khin, AICP 
Director of Planning and Community Development 

- Page 1005 -

https://www.youtube.com/c/townofapexgov
http://www.apexnc.org/
mailto:public.hearing@apexnc.org
https://www.youtube.com/c/townofapexgov
https://maps.raleighnc.gov/imaps
https://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/478/2045-Land-Use-Map-PDF
https://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/38521


 

TOWN OF APEX 
PO BOX 250 
APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 27502 
TELÉFONO 919-249-3426 
 

NOTIFICACIÓN PÚBLICA DE AUDIENCIAS PÚBLICAS 
ORDENAMIENTO TERRITORIAL CONDICIONAL #22CZ07 

Chapel Ridge North PUD (Desarrollo de Unidad Planificada) 
 

 

Fechas de publicación: 1 de julio - 26 de julio de 2022 

De conformidad con las disposiciones de los Estatutos Generales de Carolina del Norte §160D-602 y con la Sección 2.2.11 de la 
Ordenanza de Desarrollo Unificado (UDO) del ayuntamiento de Apex, por la presente se notifican las audiencias públicas ante 
el Consejo Municipal del Ayuntamiento de Apex. El propósito de estas audiencias es considerar lo siguiente: 

Solicitante: High Street District Development, Inc. 
Agente autorizado: Joshua Dix 
Dirección de las propiedades: 1200, 1204, 1205, 1209, 1220, 1225 Chapel Ridge Rd, and 1512 Clark Farm Rd 
Superficie: ±20.62 acres  
Números de identificación de las propiedades: 0732340602, 0732347912, 0732343920, 0732354594, 0732352538, 
0732249869, & 0732256180. 
Designación actual en el Mapa de Uso Territorial para 2045: Medium Density Residential 
Si se aprueba el cambio de zonificación como se propone, el Mapa de Uso Territorial para el 2045 cambiará a: 
High Density Residential 
Ordenamiento territorial existente de las propiedades: Rural Residential (RR)  
Ordenamiento territorial propuesto para las propiedades: Planned Unit Development-Conditional Zoning (PUD-
CZ) 
Lugar de la audiencia pública: Ayuntamiento de Apex 

                                              Cámara del Consejo, 2º piso 
                                              73 Hunter Street, Apex, Carolina del Norte 

Los comentarios recibidos antes de la audiencia pública de la Junta de Planificación no se proporcionarán al 
Consejo Municipal. Los comentarios para la audiencia pública del Consejo Municipal deben presentarse por 

separado en el plazo especificado a continuación. 

Fecha y hora de la audiencia pública del Consejo Municipal: 26 de julio de 2022   6:00 P.M.  
Puede asistir a la reunión de manera presencial o seguir la transmisión en directo por YouTube a través del siguiente 
enlace: https://www.youtube.com/c/townofapexgov. Por favor visite  www.apexnc.org el día de la reunión para 
confirmar si la reunión se llevará a cabo de manera presencial o remotamente.   

Si no puede asistir, puede enviar una declaración escrita por correo electrónico a public.hearing@apexnc.org, o 
presentarla a la oficina del Secretario Municipal (73 Hunter Street o por correo USPS a P.O. Box 250, Apex, NC 27502), 
al menos dos días hábiles antes de la votación del Consejo Municipal. Debe proporcionar su nombre y dirección para 
que conste en el registro. Las declaraciones escritas se entregarán al Consejo Municipal antes de la votación. No olvide 
incluir el nombre de la audiencia pública en el asunto. 

En caso de que la reunión del Consejo Municipal se lleve a cabo remotamente o que por lo menos uno de los miembros 
asista virtualmente, se permite presentar comentarios por escrito hasta 24 horas antes de la hora programada de la 
reunión según los estatutos de Carolina del Norte NCGS §166A-19.24 siguiendo los métodos especificados 
anteriormente. Las reuniones virtuales se pueden seguir en la transmisión en directo por YouTube a través del siguiente 
enlace: https://www.youtube.com/c/townofapexgov.  

Mapa de las inmediaciones:  

 
Los propietarios, inquilinos y asociaciones de vecinos en un radio de 300 pies del Ordenamiento Territorial Condicional 
propuesto han recibido esta notificación por correo postal de primera clase. Todas las partes interesadas pueden presentar 
comentarios sobre la solicitud a través de los medios especificados anteriormente. La ubicación de la propiedad también puede 
verse aquí: https://maps.raleighnc.gov/imaps. Puede ver el Mapa de Uso Territorial para 2045 
aquí: www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/478. Si tiene preguntas o desea obtener más información, puede comunicarse 
con el Departamento de Planificación y Desarrollo Comunitario al 919-249-3426. Puede ver la solicitud y otros documentos 
relacionados aquí: https://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/38521 

Dianne F. Khin, AICP 
Directora de Planificación y Desarrollo Comunitario 

- Page 1006 -

https://www.youtube.com/c/townofapexgov
http://www.apexnc.org/
mailto:public.hearing@apexnc.org
https://www.youtube.com/c/townofapexgov
https://maps.raleighnc.gov/imaps
https://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/478/2045-Land-Use-Map-PDF
https://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/38521


- Page 1007 -



 
 
 
 
 

 

www.wcpss.net 

Student Assignment  

5625 Dillard Drive   

Cary, NC, 27518 

Email: studentassignment@wcpss.net 

 

tel: (919) 431-7333 

fax: (919) 694-7753 

 

April 13, 2022 

Dianne Khin, AICP 
Director, Department of Planning and Community Development 
Town of Apex 
Dianne.Khin@apexnc.org 
 
Dear Dianne, 

The Wake County Public School System (WCPSS) Office of School Assignment received information 

about a proposed rezoning/development within the Town of Apex planning area. We are providing this 

letter to share information about WCPSS’s capacity related to the proposal. The following information 

about the proposed rezoning/development was provided through the Wake County Residential 

Development Notification database: 

• Date of application: March 1, 2022 

• Name of development: 22CZ07 Chapel Ridge Apartments PUD 

• Address of rezoning: 1200, 1204, 1205, 1209, 1220, & 1225 Chapel Ridge Rd; 1512 Clark Farm Rd 

• Total number of proposed residential units: 370 

• Type(s) of residential units proposed: Apartments 

Based on the information received at the time of application, the Office of School Assignment is 

providing the following assessment of possible impacts to the Wake County Public School System: 

☐ Schools at all grade levels within the current assignment area for the proposed 

rezoning/development are anticipated to have sufficient capacity for future students. 

☐ Schools at the following grade levels within the current assignment area for the proposed 

rezoning/development are anticipated to have insufficient capacity for future students; 

transportation to schools outside of the current assignment area should be anticipated: 

☐ Elementary ☐ Middle ☐ High 

The following mitigation of capacity concerns due to school construction or expansion is anticipated:  

☐ Not applicable – existing school capacity is anticipated to be sufficient. 

☐ School expansion or construction within the next five years is not anticipated to address concerns. 

☐ School expansion or construction within the next five years may address concerns at these grade 

levels:  

☐ Elementary ☐ Middle ☐ High 

Thank you for sharing this information with the Town of Apex Planning Board and Town Council as they 

consider the proposed rezoning/development. 

 

Sincerely, 

- Page 1008 -



 

 

         |  |  cover sheet 

                                                             f o r  c o n s i d e r a t i o n  b y  t h e  A p e x  T o w n  C o u n c i l  

 
 

Item Type: CLOSED SESSION 

Meeting Date: July 26, 2022 

 

_____________  Item Details  ____________________________________________ 

 

Presenter(s): Laurie Hohe, Town Attorney 

Department(s): Legal 

  

  

Requested Motion 

Possible motion to go into closed session pursuant to NCGS 143-318.11(a)(3) to consult with the Town 

Attorney in order to preserve the attorney-client privilege. 

 

Approval Recommended? 

Yes 

Item Details 

N/A  

 

Attachments 

 N/A 

- Page 1009 -


	Top
	CN2	Annexation No. 729 - 1302 N. Salem Street - 0.4937 acres
	CS - Annexation No. 729 - 1302 N. Salem Street
	Annex resolutions and certificate 729
	Annexation #xxx K-Jive Enterprise LLC Legal
	Annex729_Aerial
	Annex729_Zoning
	Petition

	CN3	Annexation No. 736 - Huxley Master Subdivision Plan - 71.543 acres
	CS - Annexation No. 736 - Huxley MSP
	Annex resolutions and certificate 736
	Hackney Annexation 2 Legals
	Annex736_Aerial
	Annex736_Zoning
	Petition for Voluntary Annexation

	CN4	Appointments - Transit Advisory Committee
	Transit Advisory Committee Appointments_July 2022

	CN5	Budget Ordinance Amendment No. 1 - HR - Cost of Living Supplement
	01 Cost of Living Supplement Cover Memo
	02 Budget Ord. Amend. No. 1

	CN6	Contract Multi-Year - Charles R. Underwood - Sewer Services - July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2025
	Coversheet
	Charles R Underwood MSA - Vendor Signed

	CN7	Contract Multi-Year - MasTec North America Inc. - General Electric Services - July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2025
	Electric - Master Services Agreement Multi-Year Contract w-MasTec North America Coversheet
	2022-2025 Service Agreement

	CN8	Contract Multi-Year - Sitelmprove  - July 2022 through June 30, 2025
	CN SiteImprove Multi-Year Contract
	SiteImprove - Multi Year Contract - Communications Dept.

	CN9	Contract Multi-Year - Wake County - Municipal Fire Protection Agreement - July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2025
	Fire Protection Agreement - Wake County
	Fire Protection Agreement for Apex Fire w-Wake County

	CN10	Encroachment Agreement - 2210 Winston Circle Lot 2
	01 Agenda Cover Sheet -  2210 Winston Circle Lot 2 Encroachment Agreement
	02 Encroachment Agreement -  2210 Winston Circle Lot 2
	03 Exhibit A - 2210 Winston Circle Lot 2

	appIS317ed506a94b407b8e9b20a479e566e7
	CN11	Ordinance Amendment Section 20-164(40) Production Drive No Parking Zone
	01 Agenda Item Cover Ord Amend 20-164(40)
	02 Ord Amend 20-164(40)
	03 Map Ord Amend 20-164(40)

	CN12	Resolution - Public Sewer Easement Abandonment
	Resolution - Public Sewer Easement Abandonment
	Resolution to Abandon Sewer Easement - Bella Casa
	BM 2014 Pg1421 Bella Casa Ph11
	BM 2014 Pg1422 Bella Casa Ph11

	CN1	Resolution - Supporting Federal Funding to Replace the Primary Runway at Raleigh-Durham International Airport
	Resolution - Supporting Federal Funding to Replace the Primary Runway at Raleigh-Durham International Airport
	Resolution in Support of Federal Funding to Replace the Primary Runway at Raleigh-Durham International Airport (RDU)

	CN14	Rezoning Case No. 22CZ03 Sweetwater PUD Amendment S&O
	22CZ03 Sweetwater PUD Amendment Cover S&O
	22CZ03 Sweetwater PUD Amendment Statement and Ordinance
	22CZ03 Legal Description Attachment A
	22CZ03 Sweetwater PUD Amendment - Attachment B

	CN15	Tax Report - June 2022
	CS Tax Report
	APEX-TX-REP-COLEMAN-JULY2022

	CN16	Triangle Home Services Waterline - Fee-in-Lieu (FIL)
	01 Coversheet Triangle Home Services Waterline - FIL
	02 Triangle Home Services Waterline -FIL Estimate

	CN17	Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) Amendments Statement - June 2022
	Cover June 2022 UDO Amendments-Statement
	June 2022 UDO Amendments-Statement

	PR1	Presentation by the Apex Public School Foundation
	CS - Presentation by the Apex Public School Foundation PEAK Star Awards

	PR2	Proclamation - Retiring Apex American Legion Post 124 Commander Mike Sayer
	PR - Proclamation Mike Sayers Appreciation Day Cover Sheet
	Proclamation Request - American Legion Mike Sayers

	PH1	Economic Development Agreement - Mills Chatham Development Group LLC
	Cover Sheet July 26 re Agreement
	20220720_ED_Project Real_Apex Economic Development Agreement (final)

	PH3	Rezoning Case No. 22CZ05 Morris Tract PUD
	22CZ05 Morris Tract PUD TC Cover Sheet PH
	22CZ05 Morris Tract PUD TC Staff Report- attachments

	PH4	Rezoning Case No. 22CZ06 Yellowbridge PUD
	22CZ06 Yellowbridge PUD Cover
	22CZ06 Yellowbridge PUD TC Staff Report-attachments

	PH6	Rezoning Case No. 22CZ07 Chapel Ridge North PUD
	22CZ07 Chapel Ridge North PUD - Cover
	22CZ07 Chapel Ridge North PUD TC Staff Report-Attachments

	PH2	Rezoning Case No. 22CZ11 1522 Salem Church Road
	22CZ11 1522 Salem Church Rd TC PH-Cover
	22CZ11 1522 Salem Church Rd TC staff report-attachments

	CS1	Closed Session to Consult with Attorney
	Closed session _attorney

	Bottom
	Proclamation - Mike Sayers Appreication Day - Requested by Constituent and Councilmember Gray.pdf
	Proclamation
	Mike Sayers Appreciation Day
	from the Office of the Mayor





